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Foreword of the writer

This story contains parts from many science fiction, fantasy and even manga stories, but often changed into a new definition. The main story of Luke and also the prequels and the appendices are from my own imagination and are played with my Lego, although I’m a grown up man who’s studying physics (I’ve changed to political sciences). The prequels were never played out, except for the story of Sharkthoot (the name is supposed to represent an archaic form), which I played when I was still very young (around the age of ten). The story is of course not literally what happened, only the general plot remains, something that can also be said for the early chapters of Luke’s story; towards the end I wrote more down from what I played. Because the other prequels and some other parts are written purely from my mind, the style might be different from the rest of the story.
This story is purely made for fun and as an artistic expression of my wild imagination; I don’t and never did have any plans to use it as a means to make money. I would like you to contact me if you want to publish this story anywhere else on the net. Any attempt to make money out of it would be illegal, because, as I said, there is much copyrighted material interwoven with the story. As a disclaimer, here’s a small list of some works I borrowed names and ideas from (I can’t remember them all): Star Trek, Star Wars, Stargate, the Matrix, Dragonball, Charmed, The Hitch Hiker’s Guide to the Galaxy (and its sequels), the works of Tolkien and Lego itself (including Bionicle).

But I came up with the story of Luke, travelling to the past to prevent the destruction of the U.L.F. before I saw “Samurai Jack” or Dragonball. I also devised the Tsufuru-jin’s plan to destroy all life, before reading Life, the Universe and Everything; but their planet was named after them.
A more formal disclaimer is included at the end of the document.

The names of Gods and several mythological explanations and situations are borrowed from a wide arrange of mythologies and religions; the situations can mostly be contributed to biblical stories, and the names come from many other religions of the world, yet in the end, like the rest of my story, the context and wider story is completely from my own imagination.

I would also like to tell you English is not my main language, but I’m confident of my knowledge from school, TV, the internet and of course the handy tools of ‘Word’ (© Microsoft) my main language is Dutch (I’m a Belgian) and syntax errors may have been made, using literal translations. If anyone (who speaks English as their main language) finds some confusing sentences, please contact me.

It is perhaps useful to understand several principles at forehand:

-Warp: a way of travelling faster than light.

-Hyperspace: another way for travelling faster than light, faster than warp, but more difficult.

-Shields: nearly always means an electromagnetic shield “bubble” projected around what needs to be protected, usually a ship.

That was about it, now enjoy my story, and tell me what you think of it.

The Story of Luke

Prologue

A man was standing in a dark chamber, illuminated only by the soft jade and harlequin glow of a tank in front of him. While he was staring at the unconscious young man floating inside the greenish fluid, a servant walked up to him.
-Is everything set up?

-Yes, my son has reached maturity in a matter of days.

-Is he really pure, sir?

-Yes, the computer checked my DNA, extracted all alien parts and made similar counterparts where necessary.

-What will he remember when they wake him?

-Not much, only what has been programmed in his mind. I let the computer convert an M-Tron training program into memories.

That, some basic things like reading and writing, some flashbacks of a battle and his first name is all he’ll know. I also downloaded a program that increases his emotions for a short period of time; it will be activated when he learns the truth.

-You really believe he can stop the Death Star?

-That thing was nothing but a prototype. I’m more concerned of the “Black Star”, powered by Medusa, which was the real threat. Combined with their grand army, it destroyed Valcron. But enough talk about the past, it’s time to talk to the past; ready the temporal transmitters, I’m going to contact my past self…

-One more question: what did you name your son?

-Luke…

The servant waited a few moments and kept staring at Luke, until his master called for him from the transmission room. If they’d have any chance at defeating the Empire, this was it…
Chapter1: The Awakening

Part 1: The U.L.F. and the Valcro-Zone

T

he U.L.F. , the United Lego Federation, was a large democratic semi-presidential monarchy (there were an elected president and prime minister, with equal power, but also a king, currently Alex Oz, with mere ceremonial powers) that had established their most important buildings and facilities on gigantic asteroids. They had a small understanding about shielding, weapons and warp-technology. They discovered that they were the only-life forms in the universe, which was only 3 galaxies big, not counting the numerous small satellites. They considered this entire cluster part of the U.L.F., but only a quarter of the first galaxy was populated, except for some distant mining planets. All the planets they had investigated had a destroyed surface, while underground caves were habitable. Some of these strange planets had pyramidal structures, so there must have been some ancient race. There had however been many other civilisations from where they had originated.

The U.L.F. was divided in different sectors, each controlled by an elected governor, who also held a seat in the senate
. The Capital sector, by far the largest, was the one consisting of asteroids; it was known as the “Spacelands”. Other sectors, some of them on asteroids, others underground cities on planets, were known as the “Colonies” (though most populated asteroids in the Spacelands were also given a Colony number, for administrative convenience). The major organisations were linked to the state:

*The Space Police: it keeps order in the streets and skies and space of the U.L.F.

*Tron: controlled by the Tron twins, divided into Blacktron: the greatest provider of technology in the U.L.F.; and M-Tron: Force sensitive Special Forces, but not Jedi, they use their enhanced senses for special operations and detective work.

*Ice inc.: a family corporation dedicated in research and security; founded by Timothy Ice.
These 3 organisations often work together for the greater good (without a big need for profit, in such an advanced civilisation).Together they form an army of the U.L.F. (except Blacktron), with each their own classes of ships, but of course created by working together. This 3-way army was set up after the first attacks in many centuries.

Jedi are those that can control the Force, a mystical energy field which creates, yet is created by all life. Through this control, they could see things before they happen, lift objects with their mind and sense what is happening. The Jedi used their power for good, their evil counterparts were called the Sith. The oldest human and also the first king (you can only be king for a hundred years) and leader of the Jedi, “Wizard” Oz, remembered that together with James Tron and Lady Ice he had united several Jedi on the planet Goranionburg (in another, more populated part of the universe) and that they (a group of Humans and Calamarians, who look identical) settled on these asteroids to escape the rule of a mysterious man called Jonathan Valcro; because many of the inhabitants’ forefathers and –mothers had been Jedi, sensitivity to the Force was present in many, which led to the creation of the aforementioned M-Tron.

What they didn’t know is that they were actually an experiment of Valcro, the evil mastermind and ruler over the Matrix, a computer program that controlled the known universe; he had allowed them to escape and build their democratic nation. Valcro had been attacking the U.L.F. capital for a few years now, without success, but it was just part of the experiment, to see how this peaceful society would react against them.

One of Valcro’s closest assistants, Empty-head (named this way because he is a robot, created by transferring a soul into the body of the droid, with use of the evil Hypno-Crystal, thus making him completely obedient)
 had once again control over his own thoughts and betrayed him, by creating a resistance of robots that had been used as spies at the Federation.
Their first mission was to let the people of the U.L.F know what they were and how to fight back. They contacted Blake Tron, leader of the Blacktron, and they invented a machine to instantly provide information into someone’s soul (a concept within the Matrix is that when a body is destroyed, the soul is transferred to the main computer, after the awakening, it became the computer of the resistance) the machine was activated on New Year’s day of the year 5000 (after the creation of the Matrix)
 and everybody realised what was going on. 

The Jedi now suspected that their control over the Force was the ability to reform the Matrix.
This event was known as ‘The Awakening’, but it’s much more than just this moment, a period of more than a year (to the end of this chapter), until another important event, bares this name. The U.L.F. had now access to the Valcro-Zone, a region inside the Matrix that is controlled by Valcro, and which contains two galaxies.

In the first galaxy, there are two provinces controlled by Valcro: the Insectoids, with ships resembling insects, and the Computer Virus’ province. This galaxy also had a large area, not under Valcro’s command: “the Empire”, ruled by the father of Jonathan, Palpatine Valcro, who is even more evil than his son. Jonathan created a revolution because the emperor didn’t want to place his offspring in high positions directly. Jonathan, who believed in Valcronian supremacy, then took over most of the Matrix.
In the second galaxy, there are also two provinces: the UFO province, with the Valcronian Motherplanet and Sharkthoot’s province. These Valcronian provinces together are called Valcron and are each controlled by one of the four members of the Valcronian High Council: Sharkthoot, the Computer Virus and Jonathan’s brothers, the twins Insectoz and Ufon.
To avoid any confusion, here’s a list of words and names:

*Valcron: The space controlled by Jonathan Valcro

*Valcro
: The family that controls the Matrix, or short for Jonathan Valcro

*Valcronian: From Valcron or from the Valcro family

*The Valcro-Zone: The two galaxies under Valcronian rule

Another Non-Valcronian nation is “the Neutrals”, they are all over the two galaxies and they provide technology, fuel, etc. to whoever pays them (not with money but with other technology).

Part 2: The Discovery of Luke

About 5 months after the Awakening, a small U.L.F.-scout ship entered the Valcro-Zone, searching for better weapons, shielding and propulsion, but it was destroyed. Fearing the power of Valcron and the Empire, the U.L.F. decided never to revisit the Valcro-Zone. Despite the help they got from Empty-head’s resistance, the Federation’s isolation caused them not to gain more knowledge and so they weren’t ready when a large Valcronian fleet came about 5 years later…

During the next two thousand years, Valcron was taken over by the Empire, which tightened its grip on the population and managed to get even more control over the Matrix itself, using the program to hunt down the remaining resistance cells.
Desperate for any technology to fight the Empire, the remnants of Empty-head’s resistance searched through debris from the long-gone war between the U.L.F. and Valcron.

On an ice-planet they found an intact, salvageable ship, but the most remarkable thing was that the pilot was still alive in a frozen state! They reanimated him, but the only things he remembered were his first name: Luke, and that he was an M-Tron, fighting against the Valcronian fleet. The resistance, which faced complete annihilation, thought this was the perfect moment for “Plan B”: sending someone back in time to warn the U.L.F. about the Valcronian assault. Luke was perfect for the job because his ship wasn’t filled with technology from 2000 years later, but from a few years into the future, making it an equal power for Valcronian ships around the time of the Awakening.

Luke was sent back and history would never be the same.

Part 3: The Change of History

The first scout that was sent to the Valcro-Zone transmitted some information about shields and weapons, but was destroyed. After reanimation of the two pilots, they found out that it was done by “Smallbots”, artificial disc-shaped robots with the ability to adapt to the weapons of its opponent. Realising the power of Valcro, the U.L.F. decided only to send probes. But suddenly, above the sky of the capital, a wormhole opened and a ship appeared which resembled an idea for a new fighter. After recognising the M-Tron signal, Luke got permission to land. He was greeted by two Space Police officers: Jack Neil and Ace Erdam, to perform some tests, to see if he wasn’t a Valcronian Agent (they have the ability to morph for a short period). He was questioned by the head of Space Police herself: Sofie Ice (daughter of Timothy, sister of current Ice President Sarah and a descendant of Lady Ice), Luke then told his story: in 5 and a half years (September of the year 5005, counting from the beginning of the Matrix) a Valcronian fleet would destroy the entire U.L.F.. Somehow, he had been frozen and was able to go back in time to warn them.

Luke’s ship had 2 photon torpedo (energy blasts, not actual technology) launchers, a phazer and the fastest warp engines they’d ever seen. Because of its strength, Luke was allowed to scout the south of the Insectoid Province, also known as the Smallbot-region. Some members of the resistance gave him the coordinates for a rather calm area of space, under control of a warlord named Thrawn Valcro.

It was in the middle of the SB-region, far enough from the southeast border with the Empire, where more and more troubles were beginning to rise, especially since rumours got around of some kind of super station… But anyway, Luke was going to go north until he would reach the Smallbot Badlands, known for its spatial anomalies, and beyond. It would take him about 3 months to get to the badlands, and he would travel for another 4 months, to an area of his interests, to decide after getting as much information as possible.

His first assignment was to search for a Neutral facility, to see if he could get even better technology and to get a map of the region to see where there were other facilities and to gain knowledge of traffic in the area, so he could blend in without Valcronian troops noticing him.

They opened a vortex to the Valcro-Zone, Luke said goodbye to his newfound friends as he flew into the unknown.

Part 4: The Smallbots

Luke arrived at the coordinates and checked his sensors to see if there were any ships around. He found 3 Smallbots scouting and a facility with markings that definitely indicated they were Neutrals. He was welcomed by 2 salesmen: a human and a Valcronian humanoid android, Luke feared he was already discovered, but the android assured him that he had left Valcron. He used to be an agent, but after refusing to kill innocent civilians, his soul was transferred in an android. He couldn’t get into his former body because his artificial one, which bared the Valcronian insignia, was printed on his soul. Luke asked them for the map and they shared technology: Luke got better shields and the Neutrals got the photon torpedo technology.

The Valcro-Zone seemed to be full of life, unlike their space. Because the U.L.F. was rather unknown, he could talk his way around patrols and the Smallbots ignored him. The first scout must have attacked them, because it had been destroyed.

Luke didn’t stay lucky. The photon torpedoes had been bought by Valcronian forces, and were added to most ships and even to Smallbots. Civilian crafts were forbidden to carry powerful weapons and Luke’s ship was identified as a warship by 3 Smallbots (they always travel with 3), and they attacked. Being an M-Tron, Luke could avoid most of their shot, but the hits rocked his small vehicle. Luke quickly disposed them with 1 torpedo shot and the phazer. He warped out of there, to a stable asteroid field a light year further. He soon realised he had been followed by six other Smallbots, 4 normal, a Shieldbot for quicker adaptation and a Smartbot for tactics. He destroyed 3 of them easily using all his different weapons. When he shot at the fourth, it had adapted: the blast swung it back, but it was OK. His shields didn’t protect him for long, and he had to make an emergency landing on one of the asteroids, which all had an atmosphere. The Shieldbot crashed into on of the rocks, so the others had to readjust the data of their shields; Luke used this moment of vulnerability to destroy the remaining two. Because he had used his weapons, the engines completely overloaded and Luke was stranded.

“Death in the water after only one month”, Luke thought by himself, as he tried to repair his ship. M-Trons are no technicians like the Blacktrons, but luckily his ship had an auto-repair function, which Luke had forgotten about (his memory was one giant gap, he only remembered basic things). When he got the computer working again, small beams started to repair the damage. Luke was happily surprised but sighed when the computer said it would take a day to get ship working again. During that time, he looked at the map to spot the nearest traffic route to disappear before more Smallbots arrived.

Part 5: Friends & Foes

The next 7 weeks were calm; Luke could quietly observe space and the oppressed civilisation,

who were punished for the smallest misstep and worshipped the Valcros as Gods. Their ‘religion’ tells them they saved the known universe from a great threat by creating the Matrix 5000 years ago. He made contact with local (organic) resistance cells whose organisation wasn’t linked to Empty-head’s android resistance, but some did have friendly relations. After making sure they were real, he made contact with the U.L.F.; if the Federation would ever attack Valcronian or Imperial forces, these rebels could help them. Unfortunately, they were rather unorganized; many cells were scattered over the Valcro-Zone, without true union between them, each their own leaders and agendas.

But things were changing; Luke started promoting unification and visited several cells, which were almost all interested in the idea. Coincidentally, he met a Human woman with similar ideas, Aïsha Hollings, who was also visiting different rebels with the offer to join the larger group she represented. It would take a lot of work, but they believed it was possible. Aïsha couldn’t sense the Force, but she felt something grand in the way Luke behaved, something she had only witnessed in the leader of the currently largest united resistance group, Carn Follon, and in the evil lord Abbat Valcro. She had to report the existence of this strange man and of a rather large democratic state (the U.L.F.) to Anna Kovitch, the head of a Calamarian Resistance group she was working for (which was not yet aligned with Carn’s). Before they both left, Luke assured her that although he had only been part of the U.L.F. for a short while (in this timeline), he knew they’d support any attempt of resistance cells working together.
Luke had only a few weeks before he reached the border of the badlands, and wondered why he hadn’t been attacked or even pursued by Smallbots. He asked for information at a neutral facility and it turned out many Smallbots were stationed at the border with the Empire, for an obscure reason. When they were walking outside, a ship parked behind Luke’s, for some fuel and a check-up. Luke recognised the alien’s blue face, the technological features added to it, and of course, his armour, which bared the Valcronian ‘V’. He had memorised it from his database, this was Colonel Thrawn, and next to his ship, which looked about as powerful as his own, were at least 20 Smallbots. Luke hoped his ship wasn’t in their database, and walked back to his ship. He was halted by Thrawn, who ordered him to kneel in front of his God. He did, and kept his head low, until the blue Valcro asked him to look at his face.

-What is the meaning of that big ‘M’ on your chest, I don’t know of any organisation that carries such symbol?!
-It’s a big universe, I don’t blame you for not knowing, but I would expect of a God to know everything

-How dare you, this will cost you your life!

“Not on neutral grounds”, the station keeper yelled. Thrawn ignited his red lightsabre so Luke ran to his ship and activated his warp engines. He destroyed half of the Smallbots by scraping his shields to them and behind his engines, when he went to warp. Thrawn ran a search through his computer for the M, and discovered that it was a U.L.F.-symbol. Valcron was now truly alerted to his presence. Personally offended, the Valcro went after him, without his Smallbots. Being a Sith, he had sensed Luke was powerful in the Force, and he could trace him if he was close. Thrawn was also a great strategist, so he thought it to be logical for the M-Tron to hide in a traffic route. He was quickly discovered and they flew to a quiet location, away from others. Luke formally introduced himself and told his new enemy that they knew about the Matrix. Thrawn replied they didn’t see the U.L.F. as a threat, but that he would be destroyed for his insult. They were both able to dodge much of the other’s fire. Their weapons were indeed equal in power, but Thrawn’s shields were just a bit more powerful, because Luke’s had been damaged by destroying the Smallbots. After a great battle, Luke had been defeated, but not destroyed. Only his life support was left intact, because the colonel wanted to capture him for questioning. Luke was smart enough to send out a message to the U.L.F. before his transmitters were disabled. Thrawn had gone away to get a prison transport for Luke, because his tractor-beam had been damaged in the fight.

After a few minutes, a vortex opened and two Federation ships, updated with Luke’s technology, came out. It were Jack Neil, the Space police officer, and John Ice, an Ice inc. researcher (and a cousin of Sarah Ice, the President of Ice inc. and of Sofie Ice, her sister).

They had been friends for years. Jack wanted to be an M-Tron, but believed he couldn’t, because he was born without a left arm. Instead, he became an engineer and joined Blacktron. He was powerful with the Force, so he also started training to become a Jedi, where he met John. They both became strong Jedi together and John convinced Jack to begin a career as Space Police officer. They had met Luke at the capital and they would all train together when he got back from his mission.

They repaired Luke’s ship and when Thrawn came back, destroyed him and the Smallbots that he had brought with him. He had been quickly revived by his grandfather Insectoz, on Insectoid 1st. He informed him that Jonathan had heard about Luke and wanted to see him to gain knowledge of the future. Thrawn himself was given a new assignment, outside his sector…
Part 6: The Badlands

John and Jack would follow Luke until they exited the badlands, during those weeks their friendship increased and they created a real strong bond. Luke even trained with them. They called themselves “the 3 amigos”. John and Jack felt Luke could become very powerful. They destroyed any attacking Smallbots, sometimes even with the Force, and their lightsabres (Luke didn’t have one yet, John had a blue one and Jack a yellow-greenish one). Thrawn didn’t show himself anymore. They finally reached the infamous badlands, which spread out to the borders of the Matrix, and to the centre of the galaxy; there was no way around, above or under it and had only one, truly save path, which was heavily guarded. They had learned they couldn’t use their warp drive, because of the radiation; it would take 3 weeks to get to the other side, or at least a month, if they used another path. They decided that the guards were a greater thread than the anomalies and flew through an opening in the giant red nebula, which was rocked by fierce lightening. When they entered, some Smallbots spotted them, but because they had no basic shielding, they were quickly destroyed by the nebulas.

Despite the beauty of the special anomalies, the first 3 weeks were very boring, they couldn’t receive any data from outside, so no holographic television, no new music, nothing. They were even beginning to hope they would be attacked or run in to a dangerous black hole. The next day was much more exciting: they discovered an open place with a group of small, unstable wormholes and some unknown fighters, which had probably been stranded there by accident. The computer identified them as TIE-fighters, one-man fighters from the Empire. They didn’t have strong shields but were very fast and they could shoot rapid laser fire. All but one fighter left through one of the wormholes. After an hour, a new group came out of another one and went in the same hole as the last group.

The 3 amigos observed this for a few hours and thought the fighters had figured out some kind of time dependant pattern in the unstable wormholes. The immobile TIE had no life-signs, so between two of the hourly convoys, they scanned the ships database and discovered a way to travel through the wormholes. The reasons for these actions were kept in restricted files. Luke, John and Jack travelled to another part of the badlands, inside a planetary system. Their sensors picked up signs of technology on one of the planets, a planet that would have many life forms, if it wasn’t bombarded with radiation from the nebulas. The technology they’d picked up came from the only building on the surface, which had been shielded against the deadly rays of the badlands. The same radiation must have kept them invisible for the building’s sensors. They decided to land and investigate the structure.

The oxygen in the atmosphere, combined with the red glow of the nebulas made the sky look purple. Because they didn’t have any kind of suit to protect them, they would beam themselves directly into the building (they could transport through the protective shield, because it was only designed to stop the radiation). Unfortunately, they had beamed directly into a place full of imperial storm troopers. John and Jack used their sabres to deflect the laser fire back to the troopers. Luke used his reflexes to dodge the lasers and almost instinctively attacked, using advanced martial arts. His strength in the Force made him very fast. The 3 of them quickly disposed of the troopers and were surprised of Luke’s power; it was much larger than any other M-Tron except for Emmett Tron himself, who actually was a Jedi. John and Jack feared Luke could fall to the dark side, without proper training.

After checking the local computers, they discovered the Empire was planning an assault on Valcron! They knew the badlands would get in their way and after the discovery of a wormhole leading directly into the nebulas, they came up with a plan to make the natural process of star birth in this sector go faster. The many shockwaves would make a huge gap, so a fleet would have no problem going to the other side.

The 3 amigos had learned of many populated worlds around the badlands, which would certainly be destroyed if the ambitious plan would be successful. Also, they found out this station transmitted the pattern of the wormholes to incoming fighters. They decided to use this information to set up a trap and remove all Imperial forces inside the sector. First they transmitted fake data to new fighters, so they would return from where they came from, making them believe the pattern had changed. The existing fleet was also sent home with a fake warning: “the wormhole to Imperial space would close and leave them stranded”. After they were sure no imperial ship was left, they went to that wormhole and destroyed it, letting the fleet on the other side believe the transmission was real, while destroying their only way in. Proud of their (almost) peaceful solution, they continued on their journey. They used the wormholes to travel faster, but it took them another 3 weeks to get outside the badlands. They transmitted the collected data back to the U.L.F. and were congratulated for their quick thinking. John and Jack were ordered home for a full debriefing. The trio would work together in the future, but for now, Luke was given the mission to find the Smallbot factories and to collect as much info as possible, of course, while travelling. Luke accepted the mission, but in the back of his head, he got the strange idea they wanted to keep him away from Federation space, he figured they were probably still afraid, because of his mysterious origins. The truth was that the U.L.F. had compared Luke’s genes with other citizens and had made a shocking discovery…

Part 7: Luke’s Vacation

Luke travelled for several months. Valcron believed he was still in the Smallbot-region, south of the badlands, because they thought the only way through it, was their guarded path. This way Luke hadn’t been attacked. He only revealed himself to confirmed neutral and resistance bases. He now entered his seventh month here and it had been New Year 5001 ACM (After the Creation of the Matrix), which was also the first anniversary of the Awakening, two months ago. So while everybody at the U.L.F. had been celebrating, Luke was still doing his job; so he decided to visit a planet known for its beautiful beaches, he wouldn’t be noticed between all the other tourists…
It was actually a double planet: Trinsia A and B. Trinsia A was the famous beach resort, but Trinsia B had no beaches, instead it was one large ocean. Both planets had been terraformed out of many asteroids, containing a lot of water ice. Valcron had made several planets this way to act as local command centres, but the Trinsian double planet (or “Insectoid 3rd”) offered free holidays, to show “how the Valcronian gods were better than the evil Emperor”. Luke’s only fear was giving information while checking in. Luckily, it was done by civilians instead of Valcronian Agents, or androids.

-Name?

-Luke…

-Just Luke? No family name?

-Eh no, I suffered from memory loss, eh, my doctor ordered a relaxing holiday

-Do you at least now your race?

-I expect I’m Human or Calamarian, but I’m not sure…

-I see. Well I don’t want you to get into trouble just because you lost your memory, so let’s call you Luke Grant, and this device can determine your race…

Luke put his finger into a small device and when the friendly man looked at the screen behind his desk, his face changed for nice, to worried and he started sweating…

-We eh we will give you our most beautiful room, normally reserved for important delegates.

-I don’t want any special treatment just because I’ve got memory loss.

-Oh, but mister Luke, I mean master, Lord, eh sir, sir Luke, you deserve only the best, and when your memory comes back, be sure to tell how good we treated you…

The man pushed a button and Luke was beamed into his room, a Valcronian Royal Suite. “Tell who?”, he said to himself, “he must think I’m some kind of inspector”.

The following two weeks were very relaxing, he was given all kinds of special treats like room service, access to areas restricted to paying costumers, etc.

After his week of vacation, he decided to visit underground caves, which had been the space between the different asteroids the planet was made of. Technology held the place together. Luke knew there was a resistance cell hidden here, so he used a special device, given to him by Aïsha, to transmit a password. Again, he was beamed to another location, but the transport seemed to last longer than usual; his personal sensors indicated he was on the other planet, in a base under the ocean floor…

Part 8: New Information

Luke was greeted by some members the local resistance, who explained that there actually was a command centre in the Trinsian System; but not on the beach planet, but here, in a dome on the ocean floor, under which they had their secret base. There were four terraformed planets in the Insectoid province; all of them had rather hostile surfaces: Insectoid 1st was an ice planet, Insectoid 2nd was a big desert, Insectoid 3rd was one ocean and Insectoid 4th was a volcanic planet, but all of them had many habitat-domes, great structures with giant cities inside. These planets were not only command centres, but also experiments. Trinsia B was an exception, because it didn’t have a real city under its single dome.

Luke went to the main chamber of the secret base and was surprised to see man who gave him his room.


-You’re part of the resistance?


-Kind of, I’m part of the U.L.F., and that memory loss is real.


-So you really don’t know? And I gave you my best room, ha-ha!


-Don’t know what?

-It’s not my place to tell you, you’ll probably discover it soon, but you made me wonder, what do you remember? 

Luke told them his story, how he was found, travelling trough time, his two Jedi friends, meeting Aïsha Hollings, the battle with Thrawn…

Afterwards he asked them for information of the sector, was this still Thrawn’s space? He was told this area was under the rule of Erick Valcro, Thrawn’s uncle. Erick was the second Valcro with a blue skin and first son of Insectoz himself. The many different skin tones of the Valcros were because of genetic experiments. Each Valcro was only a part of the original Race of Palpatine, the others were all part alien and also part machine, with many pieces of technology in their body. Erick wasn’t as sadistic as Thrawn and was known as a more temperate dictator, often allowing things other Valcros would punish with death. But the Valcronian Command didn’t care which ruler did what. This was actually a weakness of Valcron, if the leaders would be destroyed, the entire system would collapse, and local warlords would keep control over their systems and fight each other for the ultimate rule. But that could never happen, the Matrix made them able to revive anyone.

The story of Erick gave Luke his first ideas that the Valcros could come to the light side, like Jonathan’s brother Robotica, who had joined the U.L.F. They then told him this planet had no city under its dome, because of the great Smallbot factory in its core! This was exactly what Luke had been looking for since months; the different resistance groups didn’t share much information with each other, so Luke hadn’t known of groups close to such factories. He had now located one of the most important factories in this galaxy, the local rebels decided to give him the locations of other major Smallbot factories in the Insectoid province. Although the region he had visited was called the Smallbot Region, most factories were in the north, near the border of the Computer Virus’s Province. This sector was the only one controlled by a woman, a human woman who had invented the Smallbots. She had many names like “The Smallbot Queen” or “Femme Fatalle”. They also gave Luke directions for the fastest way to each factory, including many wormholes.

He transmitted the information to the U.L.F.; they honoured him by fully acknowledging him as an M-Tron. His next assignment was investigating the province of the Computer Virus, because the Insectoid region had given up most of its secrets.

Part 9: Femme Fatale

Luke used the information he had been given to travel near the factory that was the closest to the border. The wormhole he used came out near a system with much activity; many Smallbots were entering and leaving orbital factories. He saw Smartbots, Shieldbots, the rare Strongbots, which had their own shield, but couldn’t adapt; and even a bot with a black disc (a Blackbot, the most secret and the most uncommon).
In all their activity, they seemed to ignore Luke’s ship, many cargo and civilian ships were going to and from the planet as well. He could land in a city with a fake permit that had been given to him by the Resistance on Trinsia. Apparently, this planet was called Lifrinall, a planet populated mostly by Paragans, beings with a double chest and four arms, who originated from Paragall, which was located in the Province of the Computer Virus. When Jonathan had revolted against his father and taken over much of the Valcro Zone, this planet had been chosen to begin Smallbot development. This information was no secret; it was available at a local tourist centre. Luke wasn’t wearing the top of his uniform, only the white shirt, so nobody could ask questions about an “M”; but his face was recognised by several patrolling Droids. They started following him and Luke realised he had to lose them somehow. He tried to mix himself with the crowd and disappear, but the Droids’ sensors kept track of him.
He began running, but was quickly pulled into a narrow street by an attractive woman, with long red hair and a red dress; she beamed the two of them to a normal looking room inside a skyscraper. Luke thanked the beautiful lady.

-You saved my life, are you part of a Resistance?


-No, but I couldn’t let them arrest such a pretty face, now could I?


-Well, eh, thank you, eh, I really should go now, I’ve got a lot to do.


-Aren’t we going to introduce ourselves first or get a drink?
-My name’s Luke, nothing more, nothing less, I suffer from amnesia, and I’m a simple traveller.

-A simple traveller who’s being chased by Valcronian Droids.

-I might have caused some trouble here and there, but I can assure you, I’m not a criminal.
-I believe you, but if you’re not a thief, how did you get your hands on weapons that can destroy Thrawn’s ship.

-How can you possibly know about my battles with him?

-Word gets around faster than you know, even in a galaxy.

-What else do you know?

-You’re an M-Tron agent, sent by the U.L.F. to scout the Valcro Zone, you foiled an Imperial plot in the Smallbot Badlands and you used the name Luke Grant on Trinsia. You see, Mr. “Grant”, I’ve got eyes everywhere, but don’t worry, I won’t expose you… yet.

-You haven’t told me your name yet, or what you do.

-I suppose it’s only fair: my name is Chailey Bienne, I’m a scientist and engineer, my research includes soul transferring, androids; I work for Valcron, but I don’t like them that much. My former lover, Rob, and I helped Jonathan in his war against the Empire, but Rob was betrayed and had to go in exile, I haven’t seen him since.
-But, according to the information I’ve gathered, the Valcronian Revolution happened over 2000 years ago, and humans only live up to a 1000, at most?

-Indeed, I was killed by the Empire, but Rob created an artificial body for me, complete with holographic projectors, to make me look human, they managed to retrieve my soul so I could join them in their struggle.


-So you knew Jonathan Valcro personally?

-I still do, it’s somewhat logical if you’ve dated his older brother for so long.

-Rob… Robotica Valcro? You dated a Valcro?

-Is it such a strange thing to believe, according my sources, he’s now a part of the U.L.F.

-Well, yes, but it is still amazing, and you still have contact with Jonathan Valcro?

-Sometimes, Johnny gets emotional and megalomaniacal sometimes, but he used to be a nice guy. Before he pushed his fascistic ideas forward and before he became such a radical Sith, he was a warm person, pleasant to be with, and he generally cared about Rob. He was disillusioned by his father’s lack of concern about him. He always wanted to prove himself, but got obsessed with the fact that Palpatine didn’t want to give him, or any of his sons, direct high military places. Then his ideology of “Valcronian superiority” started to dominate him. Rob and I believed we could rule our new nation as enlightened despots, but Johnny wanted to repress rather than free. Rob went into exile, and I was forced to serve under him and help him with technology.

-That’s a sad story indeed; I guess we only hear the extreme sides of the story: Valcro the God, who freed his people from his father. Or Valcro the tyrant, who gave his people even less freedom than they had before.

-Don’t get me wrong, I got used to this live and have gotten many privileges. I’ve come to hate Johnny, but I respect him. I could never have gotten so much power without him.
-You’re starting to sound like an important person, how come I haven’t heard about you yet?

-I’m sure you have, but I don’t use this name anymore.

-So what name do you use?

-I think it is time for you to leave, before anyone figures out your landing permit is a fake.

-How do you know about my permit?

-I already told you: I’ve got eyes everywhere. Johnny thinks they’re completely under his control, but they answer to me first, millions of them, and if you don’t go now, I’ll have to call some of them to arrest you.

-No? You’re the Smallbot Queen?

-Call me Femme Fatale. I didn’t report you, even though Johnny Valcro himself wants you, because I like it when he doesn’t get what he wants immediately. In return I hope you don’t kill me.

-Alright, but remember: you still owe me a drink.

-Ok. But before you go, here’s a ticket for tomorrow’s opera, I have to go to a meeting and can’t make it. Don’t fret, there’ll be no one to arrest you.

You know, because of their double chests, Paragan singers have much more air at their disposal than other races. I prefer Apallian opera’s however; they’ve got two heads, now they created some really interesting music.
Femme Fatale put the ticket into his pocket and beamed him back to the street she had picked him up. Luke was dazzled by the perplexing talk he just had; he couldn’t believe her amazing story. He did trust her, for some reason, but decided he couldn’t risk being on the planet too long, because the Droid might recognise him. When he walked back to his ship, he had to put his landing permit into a slot, to enter the docking bays. It appeared his permit had been discovered as a fake and he was simply denied access. He spent the night in a hotel and the next evening he went to the opera. When he found his seat, 25B, he saw a small package on it with a note: “I still owe you that drink, but here’s a small present for not trying to kill me.” Inside the package, he found a new landing permit, which would allow him to leave the planet. After almost falling asleep while a Paragan held a low note for over two minutes, Luke went back to his ship and left without any incidents. He set course for the border…

Part 10: The Smallbot Planet

Luke was now travelling through the unpopulated void between the two provinces; it was a kind of natural border, because it was between two galactic arms and didn’t have many stars.

He would travel a week to the border of the Computer Virus’s Province and would pass through one of the scarce systems.

Strangely, he found a very small planet there, with no life signs. The planet seemed to be habitable, so he landed his ship to investigate. On the ground, he discovered there was a field around the planet hiding the underground technology and a single life form, in the core! His readings indicated that there was more technology than natural matter. It resembled a space station. He went in an elevator he had discovered and descended to just above the core. The hallway he now entered was curved, probably going around the core, coming back to the same spot, using the gravity of the strange planet. Behind some view screens, he saw what was really going on: the planet was producing Smallbots on a massive scale, to counter the strange reports of Imperial ships scouting Valcron. If Luke could stop the production, it could make the fleet, which would attack the U.L.F. in over four and a half years, smaller, or make the Empire win its planned war, which would completely stop the fleet (but perhaps to be replaced by an Imperial one). When he entered the core, he was surprised to find his enemy Thrawn floating in the middle, of course not affected by the gravity. There were three curved pathways, a peculiar bridge, going around him, which met in different places. Luke had expected to see the Smallbot Queen again, but a Valcro probably made more sense, because of their superiority complex.

Thrawn got out of his trance, pushed himself out of balance and in a strange way jumped on the surrounding bridge. He told Luke he had been ordered to bring him before Jonathan. Luke didn’t come unprepared and drew a phazer rifle. The beam couldn’t penetrate Thrawn’s body armour, but it did throw him back. The weapon alarmed the surrounding Smallbots and a great swarm entered through several holes. Luke jumped at the zero-G point and up the other side of the bridge; the confused Smallbots tried to pursue him, but couldn’t handle the strange situation. They flew into each other and started to explode. The planet only seemed to make regular Smallbots, because he didn’t see any smart- or shieldbots. Luke transported back to his ship to escape the exploding planet; the dumb Smallbots just kept flying into each other in an increasingly faster rate, and it had already destroyed Thrawn. Luke went to maximum warp, as the planet exploded in a great blue flash, but Luke wasn’t out of trouble, because all the Smallbots had faster than light technology, the massive explosion ripped subspace. Luke’s ship was swung out of control, to another part of the Matrix…

Part 11: Obi-Wan’s Search

Flashback to when Luke had just started his vacation on Trinsia…

On the request of Carn Follon, Jedi knight Obi-Wan Kenobi travelled to find the mysterious Luke, who was trying to unite several Resistance cells in Thrawn’s district. Trough a communiqué with Aïsha Hollings, they had found out he had come from the U.L.F. and that they were allied with Empty-head’s Resistance movement. Carn’s wish was also to unite the different cells and form a strong opposition to the reign of the Empire and Valcron.

Luke was supposed to make contact with the resistance on Trinsia and was expected to travel to the circle of five afterwards, a traffic intense region of space, centred around the three border point of the districts of Erick, Jake and Docen Valcro. If he’d use nearby wormholes, he’d be closest to Nar Shadaa, a small city planet, notorious for its pirates, fugitives and people who didn’t want to be seen or found by enemies or friends…

If he left now, he’d surely be there before Luke, so he could greet him. Obi-Wan was on Insectoid 2nd, shadowing the head of Valcro’s officers, one of the most powerful Jedi they had ever captured and brainwashed: Officer Jinn. But his new mission was more pressing: finding Luke might give him access to the Federation, which could provide a safe haven for Jedi to train and meditate.

I took him two weeks to get to Nar Shadaa and he spent several days on the planet, but he was contacted by rebels on Trinsia, informing him that Luke would travel to Lifrinall, an important Valcronian planet, instead. Kenobi was wanted by both the Empire and Valcron; his image was imprinted on every Imperial and Valcronian computer and in the memory cores of every droid and Smallbot. It had been hard enough to enter and leave Insectoid 2nd, but Lifrinall was Smallbot heaven, he would be detected long before he’d even enter the system. Obi-Wan needed an anonymous way to enter the planet and Nar Shadaa provided enough criminals to make a deal with.

One of the most fascinating races on the city planet were its group of Valcronian Agents, though that name might be considered an insult, since their the only part of their race not working directly for Valcro, yet their name had been forgotten, so all of them were now addressed as “Agents”. they got their unique shape-shifting abilities as a side-effect of being made purely from energy, which also explains why every Agent can use the Force. They couldn’t remain in a certain shape for much time, their normal (stable) appearance was either a ghost-like cloud of green energy or a man with many androgynous features (Agents are asexual), silver coloured hair and a blue latex-suit, which looks about the same for any of them. It were these Agents that Obi-Wan had made a deal with. They would smuggle him onboard a Valcronian transport ship, if he’d deliver a package to their informant on Lifrinall, who had made it possible for these Agents not to be enrolled by Valcro.

On Lifrinall, Obi-Wan hid his face under the brown cloak of his Jedi robes. He knew Luke was a user of the Force, so he could track him with his senses. He finally found him and he wanted to call out to him, but saw he was being chased by several droids. Luke was apparently aware of them too, because he was quickening his pace. He saw how Luke was being pulled into a small street by a shadowy figure. The droids changed their attention back to the crowd and noticed how Obi-Wan was looking directly at them. He was standing in the middle of a square and was quickly surrounded. The only way out were the sewers. Using the Force, he confused the droids for a small instance, just enough time to disappear underground. He came back to the surface a few kilometres further. It had almost become night on this side of the planet and he decided to stay at a hotel not to far from the civilian docking bays. To his surprise, he sensed Luke in the building, but when he entered an elevator, the Smallbot Queen herself was waiting for him. She beamed both of them to an empty room.

-I can’t believe those idiots sent a known resistance member to deliver the package. One of their own would have fitted right in.

-You’re my contact?

-Who could convince the Valcros to leave the Agents of Nar Shadaa alone, but someone like me? Now I believe you have something for me?

-This must be a trap, you work with Jonathan Valcro.

-Look, I don’t care about your freedom fighters. On Lifrinall I do things my way, not the Valcronian way. Tell me, can you see a resistance on this planet? No? I guess I’m not that bad after all.

-But if they don’t agree, you lock them up, right?

-Do you have the package or not?

-What do you gain by helping Agents halfway across this galaxy?

-I don’t know if you’re aware of it, but this is an android body with a holographic shell. It has held my soul for quite some time now, but sooner or later it will malfunction, or worse: be destroyed. The Empire is gathering its fleet and I believe they’re planning an invasion; Johnny is convinced of it too, but he didn’t tell me. You would think he’d just revive me and put me in a new body, but Valcro likes me less every day and after the stunt he pulled with Red and me, I don’t think he would revive me at all. Together with several scientists on my birth planet Wullioh (a planet of the circle of five) I am developing a soul retrieving system for non-organics, which acts as a filter to the Matrix, picking out my soul and those that I choose, transporting them directly to my computer. I have to smuggle this information through unofficial paths, so I don’t arouse suspicion.

-I understand the U.L.F. and Empty-head’s resistance use a very similar technique, if you were to work with them…
-I’m not rebelling against Valcron; I’ve grown accustomed to this position. The technology is only a safeguard, to assure I remain in power.

-If I give you the package, what assurance do I have that you won’t kill me?

-That wouldn’t be good for my deal with the Agents.

-Alright, here’s the data.

-I want you to do one more thing; here are two letters: one is for Luke, the other is for you. I don’t want you to meet Luke, instead you’ll put his note on seat 25B of the opera house around the corner, then go outside and open yours, you’ll know what to do next. If you don’t follow these instructions, I promise you my droids will arrest you.

Interested about what had happened between Luke and Femme Fatale, he asked about him, after which she revealed Luke’s secret to him. Obi-Wan was startled by the revelation, but decided to keep it for himself, because the repercussions could be enormous.

After delivering Luke’s package, which contained the landing permit, he opened his own letter. Inside was a ticket to Coruscant, leaving in the afternoon. Obi-Wan took the trip home and reported to Ken Lorren and Carn Follon, but kept the secret to himself.
Part 12: #01 and the Secret of Luke

Luke ended up between two other galactic arms, but at the borders of the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone (which was more stretched out than the first galaxy, and actually had only two main arms), the farthest place possible (inside the Matrix) from the Smallbot planet! He would have to travel for months to get to one of the provinces, but suddenly a crystalline structure grew around his ship, a virus, creating a corridor to a larger structure. Luke was forced to go through it and in a central room he was greeted by a voice. It told him it was an artificial intelligence, which could better itself by absorbing other life forms; its name was #01. Luke was afraid this was his end. But when zero-one examined him, he decided not to absorb him:

-You are the father of the creator, the one who has left him, which made my creation possible. Destroying you means destroying me.

-What? I don’t understand.

-Analysis of local time: you did not yet learn the truth, future history gives you several months before you do.

-What do you mean, I need real answers!

-Proposition accepted, making your meeting sooner does not gravely affect history. You will be transported via the system of the four rings…

Before Luke could ask more questions, he and his ship were instantly transported inside a Valcronian base, on the other side of the galaxy, right in front of Jonathan Valcro, who was just training. He looked like a Human, with black hair, heavy eyebrows and a goatee. Valcro was surprised, but didn’t call any guards.


-I’ve been expecting you…


-That’s a bit of a cliché.

-You don’t remember who you are, but remember what clichés are? Don’t you find it a bit suspicious that only very select data is missing, like someone erased it? Or perhaps it’s the complete opposite, it’s the only knowledge imprinted in your brain.
-I never really thought about that.

-You had enough time to think about it, on a constant boring mission for the United look we defeated Valcro again Lego Federation; they were so naïve, before my former bodyguard betrayed me. And I guess you never wondered why you couldn’t go back once, after they had sent you away?

-I did wonder that. Now are you going to give me answers or not?

-OK: more than a year ago I was contacted by someone from the future, myself actually, he said the U.L.F. would be conquered in more than 5 years, but the Empire would then use a massive planet destroying super weapon to take over Valcron, so I ordered the creation of millions of extra Smallbots, by the way I just got a report you destroyed the facility. My future self contacted me again, telling me it wasn’t enough. He had a second son, beside my Jonathan Junior, and genetically enhanced him to be a pure Valcro, like my father Palpatine. He had used techniques to instantly make him older and put only specific amounts of information in his head… You know where this is heading?

-I, I’m your, your…

-You’re my son! And the U.L.F. must know about it by now. Does this make you angry? Does it give you hate and fear?

-No! That leads to the dark side, what should I care, your brother is also on the light side.

-You are free to go, I’ve even opened a vortex for you, you can go spy on the U.L.F. for me, making it easier to destroy them; that is why you were sent to them, to make sure not too many ships are lost in the attack, to be used against the Empire.
The Federation will cast you out; I’ll be the only one you can run to.

-No, they’ll accept me for who I am.

-Go see for yourself, you’ll come back to me, as my apprentice!

Luke, who was filled with the things he just denied, flew his ship through the vortex, and landed at the U.L.F. capital’s Jedi temple. He felt John and Jack were there. He grabbed a lightsabre and ran to them. When he asked his friends if they knew who he was, they replied with yes. Luke was no longer in control of his emotions and attacked the two Jedi with all his fury. Being a great swordsman appeared to be one of his latent powers, given to him when he was created. John and Jack tried to talk him out of his rage, but Luke didn’t listen. The fight took them outside, to his parked ship. He opened it, with the idea to destroy them with his torpedoes. But he got surprised when another Jedi cut him in his head, from behind, he fell forward, into John’s sabre. The blue sabre cut through his ribs and his lung. He pushed himself away from John and fled to his ship, his limbs being cut off on the way. Being a Valcro, he appeared to survive the massive wounds on his body. With his last strength, he told the computer to go back through the vortex and head for Imperial space, with a message for the Emperor, explaining his position. The ship flew away as Luke lost his consciousness. He arrived outside Jonathan’s training base. His future self told him to give Luke anything he wanted, so he put him on a life support system and delivered him to his father, Palpatine, who was eager to see another pure Valcro, and to have him as his pupil. Imperial scientists gave Luke replacements for his lost body parts. He was now encased in a black suit, acting as an iron lung. He was the new apprentice of his grandfather; his Sith name would be Darth Vader. Meanwhile, at the U.L.F., Jack and John felt responsible for what happened to Luke, thinking he was death (though his soul wasn’t in the computer). They decided to go on a search mission to see if they could find Luke’s ship, because his last words were to get to Imperial space…

Chapter2: The Rebirth of Luke

Part 1: The Death Star

S

everal years before the Federation’s awakening, the Empire had started the Death Star Project. They were planning to retake Valcron with a moveable space station, which was able to blow up entire planets. The Empire’s control structure wasn’t centred around capital planets, but around their large space fleet and military, with a complicated command hierarchy. Valcron worked mostly with mercenaries, droids, clones and slaves, while the Valcros held supreme power over their territory and officers, usually ruling from one or two capitals. This was the reason the Death Star had been created, to first annihilate those planets and next simply take over the Valcronian armadas, which wouldn’t know what to do, without their leaders; filling the easily created power vacuum.
During the final months of Luke’s journey, the Federation had sent another scout into the Valcro Zone, special M-Tron agent Jim Johnson. He had been given the specific mission to infiltrate the Empire, to investigate the many rumours they had received about a giant space station. They hadn’t heard from him since and feared he had been captured (If he had been killed, he would have returned to Empty-Head’s Resistance computer). When John and Jack went on their search for Luke’s ship and body, they were ordered to try to contact their informant.

They travelled to the coordinates from which they had received Jim’s last report. There was much activity in the system: ships with entire battalions of troopers, transport ships with materials and a lot of construction ships. They all seemed to be heading for a small moon or large asteroid. Their sensors soon told them it wasn’t a moon at all; it was an enormous, incomplete space station: the Death Star. John and Jack were staring in awe, but soon had to concentrate, because several Tie-fighters were heading their way. A battle erupted and John and Jack decided to split up. John managed to get to the Death Star’s docking bay and landed. He used the Force to hide his presence from the troops and made his way through the structure, guided by a strange feeling. He sensed the dark side was present, but there was something familiar about it; as he got closer he started to recognise what he felt: Luke’s aura, but the feeling was perverse and twisted by evil. John sensed his friend was nearby, alive.
A dark armoured figure with a mask which helped him breath entered the corridor, John knew it was Luke. Overcome by emotions, he activated his sabre and attacked the Sith lord. Vader activated his red sabre and blocked every blow John delivered. He explained he was now Darth Vader, grandson of the Emperor, a fierce and pure Valcro, the only worthy successor to the Imperial throne. The U.L.F. and Valcron had lied to him; the Empire offered him truth and power. John tried to turn him back to the light side and dropped his guard. Vader cut off John’s right hand, who fell to the ground, screaming in pain.

Meanwhile, Jack had managed to land too and was en route to the same corridor. He saw Vader standing over John and rushed to his aid. He grabbed his friend and beamed them both back to the docking bay. They escaped and managed to return to the Federation, where John received medical help.
Robotica Valcro, Jonathan’s brother, who spent his exile in the Federation, was very skilled at creating bionic replacements for body parts and other robotic technology. He gave John a new hand and even managed to create a robotic arm for Jack, who had been born without a left arm.

Although they were probably the two best agents to gather more information about the Valcro-Zone, John and Jack were given local assignments, because they were emotionally too connected with Luke. Since they were home, they could work on their political careers. John’s cousins, Sofie and Sarah Ice were both minister of defence, together with Anthony Sharps. The post had three representatives since a government coup several years ago: Jean-Luc Sharkthoot, an extremist, under the control of the evil Hypno-crystal, fraudulently broke Emmett Tron’s 18 successive terms as prime minister and tried to become the dictator of the Federation, with the help of the leader of the Valcronian Agents, Red Sincam. He became obsessed with gaining knowledge and (inspired by the two-headed Apallians) he attached 3 extra heads! To give his enlarged brain enough blood, he had to give up a leg and a hand. He was already a warped figure, but still wanted more. In an attempt to connect his mind with a computer, he accidentally created the Computer Virus, who revealed his connection with Valcro, who had started his false attacks on the U.L.F. capital. Jean-Luc was relieved from command, but succeeded in a second attempt. He was defeated once more and escaped to Valcron, together with the Virus, where they were each granted their own province, and a place on the High Council, to the dismay of Red Sincam and Femme Fatale, who had been promised the positions and the provinces
 (“the stunt he pulled with Red and me”, as she said). Following the disastrous events, the Federation’s governmental system was drastically altered: the King’s (Alex Oz, the son of Blake Oz, who had stepped down, because he felt responsible) powers were completely stripped to mere ceremonial duties and the functions of President and Vice-President were created. The President (currently Emmett Tron) and the Prime Minister (currently Mon Mothma) had about the same amount of power, so neither could take absolute control. The coup and the attacks by Valcro also led to the triple post of minister of defence (and to the militarization of Ice Inc.).
John and Jack were now appointed as assistants to the ministers of defence and were also promoted in function with Ice and the Space Police, to reflect their governmental positions.
Part 2: The Slizer

While doing research on the history of the Matrix, Robotica’s interest became focussed on a reported artificial intelligence that was present in the third galaxy of the Federation, which was also known as the junkyard, because of its high amount of technological space debris, which was supposedly linked to the intelligence; according to rumours, the AI controlled a machine as large as almost half a galaxy, eventually problems because of relativity caused it to explode, resulting in the garbage. This had supposedly happened shortly after the creation of the Matrix. The only known artificial intelligences that were ever created were rare viruses of the Matrix; this AI would certainly give them a much greater understanding of the computer program that controlled space-time of the known universe. Was there something outside? Did the Matrix start time and create space, or was it simply something invented to control existing space?

Robotica only knew what his father had told him: he had made the Matrix and everything inside; he was supposed to rule it. The fact that there were several pockets of space: one with the U.L.F. and one with the Valcro Zone (and perhaps even more), already proved that Palpatine’s statement couldn’t be completely right. Also, if this AI controlled something so enormous, how could it have been constructed in such a short time?
Jack and John led a team of Ice and Space Police officers to the Garbage Galaxy, to search for the AI. The only practical way to the galaxy was travelling through a nearby artificial wormhole, to the second galaxy, near the Federation’s main mining operations, on Braal V, and then through another artificial wormhole, located on Braal V’s moon, to the third galaxy. According to Robotica, these ancient artificial wormholes once allowed travel across all galaxies, but most of them were destroyed during the war after the creation of the Matrix and during the war between the Empire and Jonathan’s movement. Only a few still existed, apparently also in this pocket of the Matrix.
It took them 2 months, but they finally caught up with the AI, which they had spotted on their sensors fairly early. The disappointment was great when they discovered only a small virus, barely aware of its own existence. It scanned the ships and fled to the Valcro-zone, before they could get any relevant data. Searching further would be pointless, if the actual “smart” AI they were looking for existed, it would take them way too much time to find. Another month was needed for them to return; 3 months down the drain.

Scouting the Empire had turned up an uninhabited planet in proximity of the Death Star. It was perfect for setting up a secret colony; the Empire wouldn’t come there, because according to research, it had something to do with the origin of Palpatine, and was made forbidden to travel to.

John and Jack were rather powerful as Jedi and were asked to assist the colonists and researchers on the planet Amagosa III. Their ban on going to the Valcro-zone had been lifted.
During their 3-month absence, a lot of materials and personnel had already been transferred. Only three persons, who had been on the search for the AI, had to travel to the new colony: John, Jack and Ace Erdam, an important Space Police agent, who had been given command of a powerful new one-man ship prototype: the Avenger-α, filled with new technologies, like lasers and quantum torpedoes. On their way to the planet, they noticed a signal on their sensors. It was recognised as the small virus they had encountered a month ago. It had grown by absorbing knowledge from the databanks of a crashed ship and other sources; it was now large enough to remember its origins. It confronted John, Jack and Ace and introduced himself as the Slizer, a name he had chosen because he had now sliced and hacked into several computer systems to expand his knowledge. He explained that he truly was the AI they had been looking for; the name of his former live was Medusa. It had been created by the Empire as a vault for the Hypno-crystal, which accidentally had given it a soul. This allowed it to expand himself to an enormous size (but not as large as myths would lead you to believe). At some point the Empire was taken over or defeated, and it decided to travel back in time to warn the Empire: all the way to the beginning of the Matrix. The Hypno-crystal, which powered and controlled all its parts, couldn’t travel with it; the instability made him explode. Its soul remained in the void and travelled aimlessly until it met the team of researchers, led by John and Jack. The encounter had given him a chance to grow again and was very thankful to them. He was no longer the evil Medusa, he would now fight for the light side and create several minions to help him.
The Slizer left them with a final warning: the initial creation of Medusa would happen soon and would be felt through the Force. The Hypno-crystal would make it almost unstoppable and near indestructible. But if it wouldn’t be stopped, the chance for freedom would forever be lost…
Part 3: The Colony

A few hours late, the trio arrived on Amagosa III. A small building was already constructed on one of the grass plains on a plateau, near a large glacial lake, formed by melted water of a nearby withdrawing glacier. The southwest horizon was filled by a chain of mountains which dominated the equatorial zones of the continent. Water and cool air from these mountains flowed to the plateau, which gave the area a temperate climate, although it was situated in the tropical climate belt. This climate and the small influence of seasons made the spot perfectly stable for the colony, which would be lead by Ice high officer Erick Johanson.

The first project was the development of deep space sensors, to track the Imperial fleet and the Death Star, of which they still had no idea what it was for.
The Federation already had great sensory technology, but building the equipment was the difficult part.

After a record time of one and a half weeks, the sensors were fully operational. Their data showed that the Death Star had been completed: it was roughly spherical, with a large disk in its northern hemisphere, which was probably its main weapon. Apparently it had the same propulsion system as the Star Destroyers (the massive Imperial flag ships, powerful in its own right, but mainly used as troop and ship transport, and as command post for the smaller units). These ships used a different superluminal technology than warp engines, namely hyperspace engines, which were vastly superior, but which needed careful plotting, to avoid any objects in space. It was only available to Imperial warships; any attempt of reverse engineering would result in the self-destruct of the engine. It seemed the Death Star was equipped with the same kind of hyperspace technology, which meant the station could get to the other end of the galaxy within a day or 6, if it had enough fuel capacities, and if such enormous engines didn’t need time to cool of.
The deep space sensors of Amagosa III now tracked the Death Star and 5 accompanying Star Destroyers moving through hyperspace, towards the border with Valcron, where a large Valcronian fleet, mostly consisting of Smallbots, was waiting for it…
Part 4: The Insider

While the Federation’s government was speculating about the war that was about to start between Valcron and the Empire and how Luke’s knowledge of the U.L.F. could make them a possible target of the Imperial fleet, they suddenly got an encrypted message, it was from Jim Johnson, their spy!
For some time now, the M-Tron top had feared Jim had capitulated to the enemy, because it wouldn’t be the first time. About two and a half centuries ago, when Jim had just started his M-Tron career, he infiltrated a crime syndicate and eventually became a double agent, only for his own advantage, disloyal to either side. When his acts were discovered he was imprisoned and fired from M-Tron. After his jail sentence had ended, he went into exile on the moon of Braal V, where he eventually discovered the ancient device to create an artificial wormhole to the garbage galaxy. He operated the device for a time, but his time on the moon had given him a stronger connection to the Force and he decided to take Emmett Tron’s class about gradations of Force users. He earned Emmett’s trust and even became the new lecturer, after Emmett started to concentrate more on M-Tron. After an accident in which most of his close family was killed, Jim was falsely accused. Enraged, he returned to the moon of Braal V. He was eventually convinced to help fight Sharkthoot and received the title of Special Agent for his acts.
There were some who rejected his appointment as spy, especially his ex-wife Riana Covelante, who also worked as a top member of M-Tron. It was she who suggested Jim could have capitulated to the Empire, but it now seemed she was wrong.

Jim had sent some general information about the complex command structure of the Empire: he was now a Pro-Consul, a political commander of a region under the control of a Consul. Coincidently, he ruled the area around the Amagosa system. The Consuls were on the same level as Grand Moffs (military rulers) and Grand Admirals (special functions given to those controlling special tasks), under them, on the same level as a Pro-Consul, were the Moffs, and under them were the Admirals (Grand Admirals had no direct underlings, but controlled much of their, often secret, missions themselves and had the authority to overrule Grand Moffs and Consuls, but those actions would have to be endorsed by the Emperor himself). A complete analysis of overlapping authorities would be long and complex and would stall the story
.
Jim also gave more important news: he was aboard the Death Star, which function was to blow up entire planets! They were now heading towards the Trinsia system, decided by Darth Vader, who wanted to destroy both the Smallbot factory as the local resistance cell; but apparently the station hadn’t been finished completely. A massive shield bubble around the structure would create too large a power drain to maintain. Instead, each part of the hull had its own shielding, powered by individual power units, which were linked to each other, in case of a dramatic loss of power in one of the sections. These shield generators hadn’t been completed yet on several parts of the hull; though they would be able to withstand even very powerful blasts, the inactive shields could be used to send an overload into the energy buffers, which could cause all other shields to overload and deactivate, if done properly. Completely isolated shields were placed to protect every important part of the station, but an exhaust line would be left unguarded. If a very power explosive would be able to enter it, it could theoretically destroy the entire station.
The U.L.F. started a plan to attack the Death Star, but they would need the help of the different resistance cells, and first of all warn them for the impending attack on the Trinsian planets.
Part 5: Resistance Rivals

Luke had started most of the talks between the different resistance cells, which distrusted Empty-Head’s resistance, because they couldn’t offer any assistance with ships or personnel, they simply didn’t have any. It mostly consisted of Empty-Head’s trustees and droids which had been used to spy on the Federation. Their one and only ship, located near the U.L.F. capital, was used as their command centre and didn’t have any weapons, all energy was used to maintain a link to the Matrix program, to revive anyone who carried their signal. This was however a good reason to join with Empty-Head, he could bring them back from the death. The only way of communicating with his resistance cell was through Luke and the Federation, but Luke had disappeared and the Federation wasn’t eager to show itself publicly, so contact and a way to revive themselves was impossible for now. Luke’s effort to unite the resistance cells had not been for nothing, because rebels from many different systems and races had started working together more closely, smaller groups had joined the larger ones.
One of the largest groups was controlled by Cerijin (humanoids with cone-shaped heads), Humans and even several Jedi. Their leader was Carn Follon, a wise and older Cerijin. Below him, he had two Human Generals: Ken Lorren and Maixi To Badong; who both lived on Coruscant, the cultural and economic capital of the Empire (and probably of the entire Valcro-zone), a massively urbanised planet, which had limited freedoms granted by the Empire.

Maixi had originated from Lavora, an important agricultural planet in the region controlled by Erick Valcro and part of the circle of five. Several Sith, under Valcro’s command, had extorted him and his family of farmers, but they hadn’t followed their agreement and burned down their crops to make way for an expansion of Lavora’s main city with a castle for Erick. He hadn’t really trusted any Force user since the incident and had moved to Coruscant.
Ken had come from a family of miners from a floating city above the planet Bespin, a gas giant. Unknown to him, his parents had been involved with resistance activities, and most of his family had been assassinated. He had escaped the massacre and fled to Coruscant.
The two had met each other there and though they were active in resistance cells against different regimes (Valcron and the Empire), they decided to join forces. They eventually met Dor Follon, Carn’s son, and made him convince his father to join his small Cerijin and Jedi based resistance cell from the UFO Province with their more Human oriented resistance. Together they became one of the largest cells of the Valcro Zone, until Luke came.

Unaware of the impending doom, Carn travelled to Trinsia to meet two other large groups, one, which had formed mostly through Luke’s efforts and another through Aïsha Hollings’ work. Talks to unite their cells and form the largest Resistance in the Valcro-Zone had just started, when an alarm was sounding al over both planets. The tourists started their evacuation, while the plant’s Smallbots stood ready. The Death Star and its fleet dropped out of hyperspace. Before the Valcronian ships and Smallbots could do anything effective, a large green beam came from the Death Star’s disc and blew up both planets, also destroying most of the surrounding fleet. What was left engaged the star destroyers. They managed to destroy one, before the Tie fighters obliterated the few ships and Smallbots left. The Imperial fleet jumped back to hyperspace, en route to Insectoid 1st.
News of the destruction travelled through the Valcro Zone almost instantly. Every ship, station, base and all Valcronian officers were put on high alert. Massive parts of the Valcronian fleet were ordered to go to the Insectoid Province. The Federation had also amassed their ships, but had arrived at Trinsia too late. A ship carrying Ken and Maixi arrived to witness the destruction and met with the Federation’s leaders, who operated many of the ships themselves, like Sarah and Sofie Ice, who were flying their most powerful ship: the Minister Class twin-warship. Another ship arrived, representatives of the Trinsia based resistance cell. The death of both their leaders made them unite to form the Resistance, with a capital R, which would include Empty-Head’s cell. From now on, no one would stay death.
Soon after, two united resistance cells, Mumifar and Calamarian oriented, joined the Resistance too, with the help of Aïsha Hollings, who had been advocating a union between the different cells years before Luke did (and who had met him when he was first exploring the Valcro Zone). She should have been at the meeting of Trinsia too, but her ship had been attacked by Smallbots; a battle that saved her from an untimely death.
They offered their help to the U.L.F. in their assault of the Death Star, but needed to decide leadership first. Each race should receive its own general as a representative. Maixi and Ken both opted for the post as Human General, but Ken won. Maixi still had an important function, but he wanted to be left alone for a while, and he travelled to the Forbidden Zone, an area above the Computer Virus’ Province, which supposedly held information regarding to creation of the Matrix, which he wanted to investigate.
The word of a united Resistance spread through the Valcro Zone by secret informants and soon almost every cell wanted to join them, but their joy would be very short lived if they wouldn’t destroy the Death Star first.
Part 6: Death of a Star

Jim passed on the information of their next targets: Insectoid 1st and Virus Prime. The fleet of the Federation and the Resistance would never be able to catch up with the Imperials, instead, they travelled back to the U.L.F. through a vortex and waited until they could open one close to either planet. A vortex can only be opened in the close proximity of the last one opened, but the accessible area grew much larger much faster after about a week.
Luckily, their assumptions were right: the Death Star’s engines had to be cooled down and refuelled frequently, giving them enough time for their plan. Unfortunately, they were too late to save Insectoid 1st, or even Virus Prime, witnessing the destruction of this planet with their own eyes. Unexpectedly, they attacked the Death Star, which had used up most of its power to fire its main weapon, the Tie fighters engaged them in a massive battle, but John and Jack managed to escape from the dogfight and head for the unprotected parts of the Death Star.
Unknown to them, these vulnerabilities had been located and finished, making their plan completely void. Inside the Death Star, Jim was hurrying to deactivate the shields himself, using the Force to remain undetected. He managed to keep part of the shields down long enough for John to create the overload. With the shields down, Jim could sent them a secret message: a backup program would repair the shields within two minutes, they had to act fast. They rushed to the exhaust pipe, but a large squadron of Tie fighters engaged them almost at point blank range. John took most of the blasts by positioning him in front of Jack’s ship, who managed to get to the exhaust. John’s ship was destroyed and the extra explosives onboard damaged almost all of the Tie fighters. Without John’s explosives and the rest of the fleet too far away, Jack’s missiles wouldn’t be powerful enough, so instead of firing them, he flew his ship into the exhaust, hoping it would deliver a large enough blast to cause a chain reaction. For a few seconds, the fleet thought they had failed, but suddenly the Death Star exploded in an enormous ball of light and the fleet managed to escape through a vortex, while the remaining Tie fighters and Star Destroyers were vaporized.
On New Year’s Day 5002, the Federation and the Resistance had achieved an enormous victory; unfortunately, this would cause Valcron and the Empire to finally see them as a real threat to their power.

John, Jack and all who had died were resurrected. John and Jack felt Luke had not been on board the Death Star and were still planning to turn him back to the light side. They also knew Palpatine’s hold would be strong, they needed to face them when they were together, information they’d have to get from Jim.
Part 7: Vader’s Hate
Darth Vader had left the Death Star shortly after the destruction of Insectoid 1st. He was searching for his father, planning to get revenge for keeping the secret of his identity from him.
Imperial spies had tracked Jonathan to Conia, the Cerijin’s home planet, in Abbat Valcro’s region, in the southwest of the Valcro Zone’s second galaxy. It was a planet with a large desert on its north pole and forests near the equator. The southern part of the planet was largely covered with its single ocean. The capital city was centred between the forests and the desert, in the most inhabitable climate zone and surrounded the planet like a ring.
Valcro could be anywhere. Vader travelled in an unmarked cargo ship, to avoid attracting attention, but his appearance would make it impossible to scout the megalopolis himself. Instead, he relied on the Force to guide him. He had to become calm in order to sense his father’s presence, something that was very difficult for him, especially since he felt so much hate for Valcro. Apparently, Jonathan wasn’t in the city, but in a Sith temple in the desert, which Abbat had ordered to be built, after he had become Lord of the region, yet he almost never visited it. Instead, Jonathan used it for training with several Cerijin, who had great senses and reflexes because of their large brains.
When Vader entered the training room, Valcro sent the Cerijin away.

-I see my father has saved your life, but hasn’t allowed you to take a new body; something he does regularly, to keep himself from ageing.

-This armour reminds me of the betrayal of my so called “friends” of the Federation.

-That’s not its only function, you must realise you can’t control your anger.

-I am a Sith, my anger and hate fuel my powers!

-Indeed, but these emotions don’t come from betrayal, they come from a program that was activated when you learned the truth about your origin. It was supposed to last only a short time, but your suit keeps it active.
-You lie; you’d try anything to get me on your side, to stop the Death Star. By now it has probably destroyed Virus Prime.

-Virus Prime has been destroyed several hours ago.

-Why are you so confident? Something isn’t right.

-The U.L.F. has destroyed your Death Star.

-Impossible! They don’t have the means to destroy it.

-You and I aren’t the only ones with spies.

-Even if they found a weakness, their fleet could never have penetrated the Death Star’s defences; yet, I sense you’re telling the truth, about everything.

-It was you who started the process of uniting the different resistance groups; with their help, the Federation was able to defeat the Death Star. The resources of the Empire have been greatly diminished, now the time is right to join me, son.

-I’m afraid you overestimated your powers of persuasion; this program which fuels my emotions can only make me stronger and the Emperor still has a few surprises up his sleeve. I’ve come here for only one thing: to kill you.

-That would be utterly pointless, I can simply be revived.

-I know, but it would make me happy.

Father and son drew their lightsabres, but it was soon clear Jonathan was stronger than Vader. After giving him a small cut in his arm, Vader propped his sabre, he was beaten. Surprisingly, Valcro offered him his own sabre.

-Kill me if you want, but turn off the program first and see how you really feel about my death.

Vader pressed several buttons on his suit and managed to turn it off. His rage hadn’t diminished, but his control was much higher and he stabbed his father through his heart. He felt relieved but also sad. He quickly convinced himself it was a feeling of malcontent because of the empty victory, he hadn’t defeated his father.
He returned to the Empire where Palpatine yelled at him for leaving the Death Star, which resulted in its destruction; had Vader been there, he would have sensed the danger. There was no time for grieving, because the Empire’s next project needed all their attention.

Part 8: Lure of the Dark Side
Jim Johnson’s secret was safe; the Death Star’s destruction had erased all evidence of his tampering with the shields. He knew the Emperor and Darth Vader were together and managed to transmit their location to the Federation.
When John and Jack arrived, they came out of warp in an area very similar to the construction site of the Death Star. When they scouted the area (in a ship they had borrowed from the Resistance, in which they wouldn’t be discovered), their fears became reality: a second Death Star was being built, large parts were already constructed. From inside the unfinished structure, Jim Johnson transmitted a signal to beam them over.
They met him inside an empty storage chamber.

-I’m sorry I can’t join you, I have to leave soon, I’m even not supposed to be here now, but I can tell you how to reach the Emperor’s throne room. I’m sure you can use the Force to stay undetected, it’s how I’m hiding my presence too.

-Why is the Emperor overlooking the construction of this unfinished station? Isn’t he vulnerable now?

-I truly don’t know guys, but good look trying to convert Luke back to the light side, it won’t be easy. I’ve never personally met Palpatine, but even feeling his presence is simply chilling.

-I just thought it was cold in here.

-Eh, it is; this is a storage chamber for food, kept at only a few degrees above freezing.
-I think John was only joking, Jim; now show us the way to the throne room, before anyone notices we’re here.

Jim left the station and hoped John and Jack knew what they were doing; Palpatine was the most powerful man in the Matrix, he could kill them in less than a second.
The duo was standing in front of the elevator that led up to the throne room; two guards, dressed in red, allowed them to pass. They were clearly trained in the ways of the Force, but it seemed the Emperor had already sensed their presence and allowed them to enter.

There he was: the most evil man of the known universe: Emperor Palpatine Valcro; he was over 5000 years old. Although he had transferred his soul into a younger version of himself on many occasions, each time it decayed more rapidly than before, the body tried to catch up with the age of the soul. Therefore the Emperor looked like such an old man, it seemed he could turn into dust any time, with his pale eyes and abnormally aged face.

Through the Matrix he had altered the fate of his children and their children: their ageing would stop at a certain point, they would be able to live forever. He couldn’t put the same program in himself.

The Emperor asked John and Jack to join them or die. They replied that could simply be resurrected. Palpatine smiled and showed his rotten teeth. Through the windows they saw a massive vortex opening. They realised they were going to the Federation and they couldn’t let it happen. They tried to attack Vader and his Emperor, but through the Force, Palpatine was able to fire lightning from his hands.

-Fools, you know nothing of the Force. You think it can only make you sense certain things, or increase your strength. You can levitate a rock or perhaps even a ship. All of that is nothing compared to the powers of the dark side. My emotions give me a greater control and understanding of the Force: I can create beams and blasts of pure energy, like this lighting, but at the same time I am keeping this entire station together. It is far from complete, even since we rushed the construction after the destruction of the first Death Star. But I have to get revenge. I feel that you two are responsible for its demolition, so your death will make me much happier!

First, I’ll destroy Empty Head’s ship, so I’m sure you won’t be able to be resurrected and escape. Vader will guard you while I concentrate.
-No.

-What?

-I will not help you anymore.

-How dare you, I am your master, I saved you from dieing and returning to the Federation.

-You also kept a program active which controlled my emotions. I deactivated it some time ago. It gave me control over them. I still have much hate and anger, but I can manage them and I feel I’m not evil, the dark side had no control over me anymore, I have seen the light.

-You’re an idiot; the light side of the Force doesn’t allow you to use those emotions, even for good.

John answered:

-You’re wrong now, Palpatine; the Jedi don’t have such an orthodox vision anymore, according to several historic accounts, such denial of emotions made people fall to the dark side in the first place. We are taught to control our emotions and use them in the Force. It is very difficult, and we must be careful for negative feelings, but such control is what truly makes us Jedi. The M-Tron never learn this, they have only a small control over the Force and don’t need such an advanced study. I believe that is why Luke fell, but he has learned our difficult lesson on his own, this makes him more powerful than you.

The Emperor became enraged and wanted to fire a bolt of lightening at him and Jack, but Vader stepped between them. He used the Force to push Palpatine down. Before he could get up, he picked up the Emperor and threw him down a ventilation shaft.
Palpatine plunged to his death. He would have been able to deflect Vader’s attack, or even fly up the shaft, but he was diverting all his energy in keeping the station together.

Vader had been mortally wounded by the Emperor’s blast. He warned his friends to escape before the station fell apart. John and Jack were worried that if Luke died, they’d never see him again, because his soul would be transferred to a computer of the Empire. John and Jack would at least stay by the side of their dieing friend.

The fleet of the U.L.F. was gathered at the exit point of the large vortex, when it opened, only debris came out; the second Death Star had completely fallen apart.

In Empty Head’s ship, John, Jack and Luke had been revived. Luke’s control of the Force (and thus the Matrix) had made him able to diverge his soul to the resistance, instead of the Empire. Luke’s body was whole again, he was reborn at the light side, but he still felt he needed revenge, he still hated his father. Until he dealt with that conflict, he couldn’t put his evil past behind him.
Part 9: The Smallbot War

Although Luke had committed many crimes of war, the courts of the Federation realised Luke had been manipulated. The knowledge he had gained and shared with the U.L.F. was enough to let him go free. Luke explained that Palpatine had created the Matrix with the help of the Valcronian agents’ special powers, killing many of them in the process. The Matrix was made to control the existing space, it didn’t create it. Palpatine had erased most of this knowledge from the public awareness; even Luke didn’t know the complete details of Palpatine’s past.
He did know that the Empire’s invasion in Valcron had started a new war. The Imperial fleet had to fight Smallbots, mostly, which is why the war was dubbed the “Smallbot War”.

Since it was Thrawn’s space that was being invaded, he had been put at the head of the Valcronian fleet, but he had been quickly captured by the Empire. Now, Erick Valcro was controlling the fleet.

The Resistance was rather angry when they learned Luke and Vader were the same. The destruction of the Trinsian double planet and death of Carn Follon had been because of Luke. The U.L.F. had also kept the information from them, which fuelled their anger even more, unbalancing their alliance. They would need some time before they could work together again.

The Federation feared the Empire would send their fleet to revenge the two Death Stars, but apparently all forces were used for the invasion of Valcron, which meant that Valcron was probably using most of their fleet against the incursion. The nation had been brutalised by the first Death Star and had already lost much of its forces; with the remaining ships fighting in the Smallbot War, it might be the perfect time to attack Valcron themselves. Luke was of course a strong supporter of the idea, but a lot of research had to be done first. They had learned of several important planets in Ufon’s province, namely Treneb, Valcro 2nd and of course the mother planet: Valcro Prime. Treneb had some of the most important shipyards and research centres of the Valcro-Zone and would be extremely difficult to attack, because it would have a large amount of ships, with the newest weapons. Valcro second had mostly training centres for Agents, officers and Sith and its defeat wouldn’t really harm Valcron that much.
The best choice was Valcro Prime, the planet from which Valcron and most of the Matrix was commanded. Before any kind of attack could be organized, a survey mission had to take place…
Part 10: The Survey

The exact location of the planet always remained a secret and the system was surrounded by an enormous mine field. Any intruder would be quickly noticed and destroyed. Unlike other capital planets of Valcron, Valcro Prime didn’t have ordinary citizens, only officials: Valcros, commanders, officers, droids, Agents, mercenaries, clone workers and slaves.
It was made sure the planet was completely self-sufficient, so no merchant, trucker, or other outsider would ever have to come near it. The most peculiar fact about the planet was that it was an artificial one; meteors and asteroids had been gathered to make the planet and shape it to the exact needs of Valcron.

The three amigos were sent to search for the planet. In order to stay undetected, their ships had been fitted with a new revolutionary experimental technology: a cloaking device; the first real military advantage over all other factions. This device would not only hide them from enemy sensors, it would also render them completely invisible. They’d be ably to sneak past the mine field, but they still didn’t know where the planet was. Luke’s exclusive knowledge helped them: it seemed there had been several ancient stations which created artificial wormholes in the Valcro-Zone, similar to those in the Federation. Most had been destroyed and only about 5 had been left. Those stations had been dismantled and their main device had been reprogrammed to be used only once more, for emergencies only: it would take the user directly to Valcro Prime.
John, Luke and Jack used one of the devices and were transported to the asteroid ring surrounding Valcro Prime. The creation of an artificial wormhole didn’t go unnoticed and soon several Smallbots came to investigate. They ignored the ships completely and went straight for the machine, the cloaking device worked! They still couldn’t see the planet, because it was completely surrounded by metallic rings; they hided the planet and its atmosphere completely. They couldn’t fly between them, because they nearly touched each other and every ring had its own shields. By now, the Smallbots had identified the device and more bots were alarmed. A docking bay on the outer ring opened to release them and the shields were deactivated, giving the amigos a chance to enter. With a personal cloaking device, they avoided being caught and they soon found a transporter which would take them down to the planet.

They were now inside one of the many skyscrapers and looked outside through a window. The planet was hideous: several tall identical buildings were placed at equal distances along the surface; in between were enormous power generators, which took electricity from the constant storms in the sky. The rings didn’t allow any light into the atmosphere, which was coloured purple, because of all the lightening. Acid rain poured down onto the death surface. Nothing on this planet had any aesthetic value.
Luke felt his father’s presence on the planet and feared he might have sensed him too. They were now looking for a transporter which would take them to the main building, but noticed those were shielded. Those with the right authority had been given a small device, so they could penetrate it.

Jack noticed a familiar person: Sharkthoot! They had to be extra still, because his 4 heads could hear every step and every breath. He suddenly looked in their general direction, but he walked away when he didn’t see anything. It seemed he was going to the main building; if they used their sensors to register what happened when Sharkthoot walked through the shield, they’d be able to duplicate the effect of the device. Unfortunately, stepping through the shield deactivated their cloak, which triggered the alarm. Luke and John pushed away their attackers with the Force, while Jack reprogrammed the transporter to take tem back to the hanger bay and their ships.
More Smallbots were released from the ring and the 3 amigos escaped with them; but while trying to be hasty, they unintentionally flew into the bots, deactivating their cloak. They quickly used their warp to fly to a save distance and reactivate their cloak, before they’d be noticed again, but it seemed the pursuing Smallbots were already waiting for them. All official Valcronian ships and Smallbots used transwarp, which was more than 20 times faster than normal warp technology. They realised the importance and usefulness of the technology and decided to try and capture one of the Smallbots; if the bot’s memory crystal is destroyed, the disc quickly destabilises too, except if it is directly caught in a tractor beam. John decided to sacrifice his ship as a distraction in order to capture such a disc and to reactivate their cloak. John beamed over to Jack’s Avenger and they escaped the system.

Before joining the Space Police, Jack had been a Black-Tron and had a doctorate in engineering. He had worked closely on the development of the cloak and now he managed to extract the transwarp technology from the homogenous looking yellow transparent disc. It would take more research to develop engines, but he’d be able to copy the effect for a while, so they could return to where they had entered the Valcro-Zone and return to the Federation.
Part 11: Luke’s Conscience

Although he had returned to the light side, Luke was still tainted by his inner darkness. The program that controlled him had only enhanced his emotions, it hadn’t really created them. Luke was now studying from the Federation’s Jedi Masters, who taught him those emotions were only natural, but even if you appear to control them, you could still easily be tempted by the dark side. Suppressing hate and anger can also lead to the dark side, because like every repressed emotion, it will eventually come out.
Control is the only way to stay at the light path, but of course no safeguard from evil influences. It all comes near to knowing how to combine your feelings and instincts with your knowledge and intelligence; to find a balance between heart and brain, between what you want and what you need. Lessons that apply not only to the Force, but to life itself.

The most important thing Luke had to do now, was to forgive himself for everything he had done as Darth Vader and accept that that side would always be a part of him; not necessarily as something purely evil, but also as a reminder of the failing nature of the dark side and to let him know that everybody has a darker side.
Luke knew he wouldn’t be able to forgive himself, if others didn’t, so he arranged a meeting with a Jedi master from the Resistance, an old Cerijin man named Cho-Adi Mundi. They met on an abandoned planet between Imperial and Neutral space, located in the east of the first galaxy of the Valcro-Zone. The largest parts of the surface had been destroyed, the only thing left were several ruined cities. It looked like it had been abandoned since many generations. Cho-Adi had been silent when they met and they’d travelled to the largest crater on the planet when he started to speak.
-According to legends and myths, this is where both the Jedi and Sith orders were born. A temple used to stand here, until it was destroyed in the last great war before the creation of the Matrix.

-Why have you brought me here?

-I can feel you’re trying to forgive yourself and apologise to the Resistance, so that you feel better and the link between the Federation and us is restored.

I wanted to show you that Jedi and Sith originate from the same place and from the same desires, it’s how we act on those feelings that defines us as good or evil, light or dark. You have walked the dark path and managed to overthrow the shadows; a great achievement on its own, something not many have done before you. For that alone you can be acknowledged as a hero. Don’t let your actions from the past cast their gloom over your future.
-I know, I’ve already learned that lesson, but I still have to live with what I’ve done.

-Only time can heal your wounds, but don’t let them turn into scars. I must admit that there’s another reason why I asked you to come here, to Valinéoleffas.

I wish to test you, to see how strong your connection to the Force and the Matrix is.

-Do you wish to fight me?

-No, you’re still thinking as a Sith, I want to know what you sense in this place.

-I can feel the dark side strongly on this planet, but very nuanced, in very different ways. Evil has touched this place many times; always very strong, yet very short.
-Indeed, that might be the most important lesson: the dark side offers a short and easy path and might seem stronger, but only the light side will endure and give everybody the happiness they deserve. But the two will always exist: good will build, evil will destroy, and then we will build again. Good without evil is an impossible utopia; evil without good is endless chaos. Darkness will always be a part of everybody, a lesson you might have heard many times recently, but it’s the only one that will truly make you come at peace with yourself. I believe you don’t need to be pardoned first by my fellow Resistance members, but quite the opposite; only when you’ve forgiven yourself, can others see you as you are: a strong Jedi, who serves the light side.
-I understand, Master Mundi, and I hope you will help me regain the trust of your friends.

Several weeks and many talks later, Luke had been fully exonerated from all he had done as Darth Vader and the Resistance decided to work closely with the U.L.F. again (with special thanks to Aïsha Hollings, who had admired Luke’s success in combining resistance cells). However, because of the Smallbot War, they had to relocate much of their already battered fleet and were in no condition to prepare them for a battle so soon, since the Federation wanted to attack Valcro Prime within two or three months.
Part 12: The Toa

They still had much time, but all of it was used for their preparations. The Federation’s ships had all been enhanced with cloak, transwarp engines and the newest weapons from the Neutrals: a phazer based on the principle as quantum torpedoes, making them practically the strongest weapons they had. This gave them a good chance against the armada guarding Valcro Prime, but without the Resistance’s help, they weren’t sure of victory.
Jack was successfully testing the new weapons on several Smallbots near the borders of Valcron when his sensors picked up a familiar signal: the Slizer. It was urgently trying to contact him, so Jack travelled to its location.

Six other viruses, the Toa, were guarding the Slizer, their creator. They were all built from a similar design, but had distinct weapons, colours and masks, symbolizing the elements they represented. The Slizer announced that Medusa would soon be created and that it would have to be stopped at al costs, all those who could sense the Force, would feel a tremor when the personification of the evil Hypno-Crystal was complete.
If the Federation would help him destroy Medusa, he’d help them in their battles against Valcron and the Empire. Each of his minions could control the element they represented and use it to fight. Jack accepted their help and asked them to join the battle against Valcro Prime in four weeks, nearly a year after the destruction of the first Death Star, eight and a half months after the demolition of the second one.
The Slizer and the Toa agreed; they didn’t need the coordinates for the planet, because they could feel where it was, since Valcro Prime controlled most of the Matrix, to which they were directly connected as viruses.

The six Toa would be powerful new allies in their struggle, especially with their unique powers over the elements. Tahu mastered fire, Lewa controlled weather and flora, Onua stone and shadows, Gali water, Pohatu sand and speed and Kopaka had power over ice. The Slizer hadn’t built a new body for himself yet, but was planning to do so; his element would be light.
The ultimate green light had been given and the Federation’s fleet travelled to one of the devices that would instantly take them to Valcro Prime.
They knew that if they’d succeed in their attempt, it would put them on the map even more than before. Both Valcron and the Empire would consider them a real danger for their reigns. If they had to fight Medusa too, they probably wouldn’t have months to prepare for battle, as had been the case with their previous fights.
Part 13: The Attack

The plan was not to take over Valcro Prime; they weren’t strong enough to openly rule a planet in the Valcro Zone yet. Instead, Luke would attempt to reach the surface and disable the power plants and the shields of the orbital rings. When the Valcronian armada would be defeated, they’d destroy the rings and bombard the world. With the Toa’s help, they should be able to devastate the planet.

The Federation believed most ships had been called back to serve in the war, leaving only a handful of ships and Smallbots behind to guard Valcro Prime, but after the mysterious visit by the three amigos, Jonathan and the Valcronian High Council decided to build a larger amount of Smallbots to guard the planet. The Federation’s fleet arrived in the middle of thousands of Smallbots and they quickly had to adapt their strategy. Many ships were destroyed, because the large number of bots swiftly adapted to their weapons.

Suddenly the Slizer and his Toa arrived (later than expected, because they had to get through the surrounding mine field). The Slizer uploaded a virus into the Smartbots to give a new command to every Shieldbot: they had to alter the shields to overload. Soon this data was spread to every single Smallbot, which was automatically destroyed. Only the Strongbots, with their autonomous shields, weren’t affected, but confused by the many explosions, they were quickly defeated. The officers in the capital ships were also very perplexed by the loss of all their Smallbots and Luke saw his chance to enter the outer ring undetected. He quickly found his way to a building on the surface, but was puzzled with the data of his sensors: he detected movement of the circles. The planet began to shake and the movement became visible: the rings were both spinning and revolving around the planet.

The fleet sent him an urgent message: the Valcronian ships had all retreated. Their sensors had automatically scanned the trail of their transwarp engines and it appeared the rings were starting to generate a similar kind of field; it went beyond their imagination, but they now believed the whole planet would be moved to escape the Federation’s fleet and the Toa. Luke saw that instead of harvesting energy from the clouds, the power plants were now directly sending their force to the moving rings. Luke now wanted to attempt the same as the Toa had done with the Smallbots: create an overload. He warned the fleet to escape, because the rings might explode.
Unfortunately, the plants were already giving all their energy to the circles, so he couldn’t create an overload. Luke came up with an even better plan: a short-circuit, it would overload and deactivate all the power plants themselves. Because the controls were located in a single building, Luke could perform his plan quickly. The short-circuit was even more powerful than he had thought, because apparently, the power plants’ storage went far down into the ground. He closed his eyes as he saw the explosion of the surface begin.

The complex plants had used many ways of harvesting energy: fusion, fission, lightening, geothermal, etc. Now all those had been overloaded because of the short-circuit, they failed in the worst possible way. The planet exploded. The rings were caught in the explosion and detonated themselves. The asteroid ring was caught in the blast and completely disintegrated. Eventually, half the system was completely destroyed. Even the surface of a planet than hadn’t been in the blast was completely destroyed. The remaining planets were all knocked out of their course, because of the radical gravitational shift.

The U.L.F. had sent a message alright…
Part 14: Valcro vs. Valcro

The Federation’s armada had already returned when Luke was resurrected. Sofie Ice flew into Luke’s arms; they had fallen in love during after he had returned from the dark side. She congratulated him on the spectacular result of his actions, but feared for repercussions.

After two weeks, a vortex opened near the Capital Asteroid, but only one small ship came through. It landed on the desert of the mother asteroid, around which all others revolved, including the capital. Jonathan Valcro himself stepped out of the ship and demanded to see his son.

Luke had sensed his father’s presence and confronted him.


-The offer to join me is still open, my son!


-I will never join a mass murderer like you.


-…Says the man who destroyed several planets filed with life.


-I am in control of my feelings now; I’m no longer Darth Vader, but Luke Valcro.


-I sense pride in you, when you say your name.

-I am indeed proud, not because of the heritage of my family, but because I managed to turn away from evil, as I anticipate more will do. I even hope you will see the light one day.

-You’ve not yet controlled your feelings, son. I can sense your struggle within from here. I think I only have to kill that woman over there, and you’ll gladly use the dark side again.

-Leave Sofie out of this!

-Can’t you see it’s like a game: all of us can be resurrected, I’m just having fun. Even when you know she can be revived instantly, you still become angry at the thought of her death. Turning of that program has changed almost nothing. The Jedi have taught you to control your emotions to walk the light path, but I can control my emotions too, partially, and let them control me at another level, just like the Force. I know you still feel much hate for me; that is one of those emotions you must cultivate to become stronger!
-I do not hate you anymore, father, I have learned more than you realise, I understand what you mean by controlling and being controlled. The Jedi do utilise a similar method, but we manage to regulate these emotions, so they only fuel our power, but never our actions. But if your idea of fun is torturing innocents, I’ll have to stop you.
-You only speak their propaganda; we’ll see how you truly feel.

Jonathan pushed a button on his suit and his ship fired a blast at Sofie. The area around Valcro’s ship had been shielded, so the blast never hit anyone, but Jonathan had been right; it was enough to anger Luke. Neither of them was carrying a lightsabre, so Valcro prepared for hand-to-hand combat. Luke just stood still, while a golden aura started to appear around him. suddenly he fainted and a blue light appeared above him. they sensed this was Luke’s soul and before they could react, it swiped into Jonathan, taking his soul out, pushing it into the Vortex, which was still open. It was scattered over the entire Valcro Zone.
Luke returned to his body and when people asked him what he had done with his father’s soul, he replied that he had created an overload. Jonathan wouldn’t be able to stabilise himself into a physical form for more than a few minutes and a new body wouldn’t be able to handle his energy, but he was able to communicate with the Valcronian High Council about the construction of droids which would be able to carry his conscience for a longer period. The only organic bodies that would be able to hold him were those of “pure” Valcros, Palpatine and Luke. Jonathan’s mother hadn’t been from Palpatine’s race, but Luke had been created as a full Valcro too.

A self destruct mechanism destroyed Jonathan’s original body, and they felt a great disturbance in the Force, not because Jonathan’s dark energy now covered the Valcro Zone, but because Medusa was now complete…
Chapter3: Medusa and the Hypno-crystal 

Part 1: History of the Hypno-crystal

T

he Hypno-crystal was a joined power source of all different kinds of energy. It was created at the beginning of the Matrix (more than 5000 years before) as a sign of power and a constant in the Valcro-zone.

Palpatine had made it using very ancient technology from a race known as the Spirion. This race used to rule the 1st galaxy of the U.L.F. millions of years before. But their realm came in contact with the staff, which contained the essence of pure evil, and which was the source of the dark side of the Force. The Spirion fought great wars over the artefact, but its power was too great to wield and it was lost to them. The wars had all but destroyed the Spirion Realm, but their hunger for the might of the staff had not ended.

In an attempt to duplicate its power, the Spirion combined this lust with their love for gems and created three crystals, one for each of their kings: Sincam, Minolus and Amonas. These crystals could be wielded and soon Minolus and Amonas fell. Sincam was wise and ordered a search for the two lost crystals. When the three were combined, he ordered their destruction. From that time their race lived in isolation on their planet, and evolved into beings of pure energy. During this time, other races started to populate their galaxy and found diamonds and scrolls containing information on how to create the crystals. The Sith were particularly interested, because they too had encountered the staff. In the end it was Palpatine Valcro who was able to create a crystal, combining the powers of the original three. He also rediscovered the Spirion and used the crystal and the race to create the Matrix.
During the uprising of his son, Jonathan, the scrolls and diamonds were lost. The Spirion then started to work for him under the name of Valcronian Agents, who managed to steal the Hypno-crystal from Palpatine and gave it to Jonathan, who promised their leader Red, a far relative of King Sincam, their own province.
It contained a lot of Force from the dark side, you might become evil, if you came in contact with it. The crystal could make you control others (that’s where its name comes from), had been in different hands and used on different occasions such as the creation of Empty-head. The Spirion wanted to find the planet they were taken from by Palpatine and stole the crystal and travelled to the U.L.F. where they used it to make Sharkthoot (more) evil, who used it to briefly take over the U.L.F. 8 years ago. After these events, which also created the Computer Virus, Sharkthoot, the Virus and the Spirion escaped back to the Valcro Zone, where Jonathan betrayed his Agents and gave a province to both of the two newcomers. The Federation realised the threat of the Hypno-crystal and jettisoned it into space, where it was recovered by Imperial spies.

It was now back in the hands of the Empire and they decided to keep others from it and it from others; they created a vault, but they made a fatal error: to make the vault totally impervious, they gave it a shield which was almost impossible to penetrate, using power from… the Hypno-crystal. Other powers got out and gave a conscience to the vault: Medusa. Lucky for them: Medusa helped the Empire.

The Slizer told the U.L.F. that they would destroy the Empire and that Medusa would become enormous and would be destroyed too, while travelling back in time. But not before it had caused much destruction. Now the U.L.F. had two things to do: destroying Medusa to prevent it all from happening and finding the technology that created the Hypno-crystal to revert it back into all that energy. Without it, the Matrix would be thrown into chaos (called “the Year of Chaos”, the next 3 chapters).
Part 2: The search

The Resistance, especially Empty Head’s cell, offered its full help on this matter, because he felt a strange connection to Medusa and to the crystal, probably because his former life was erased from his memory by this element of evil. If they destroyed it, he might remember what happened to him. They heard the technology stood unprotected in the core of the first galaxy of the Valcro-Zone and the 3 amigos were sent on a mission to find it.

On the same moment reports came in of destroyed Valcro-weapons facilities. The strange attacker took experimental technology with him. This didn’t sound strange to the Valcronians because they were in the middle of a war, but they didn’t have the information of the Slizer: this event was marked as the first step of the growth of Medusa. This happened not so far away from one of the few U.L.F. bases in the Valcro-zone, and a scout was sent to investigate. He quickly found Medusa: the vault was visible in the centre and around it were tubes, wires and loose technology; in the “front” it had its main sensors: two cameras, motion- and sound-sensors, etc., and a speaker, creating a “face”. Suddenly, another scout entered the area: an ISF (Insectoid Scout Fighter). It immediately engaged a fight with Medusa firing what seemed to be controlled anti-matter pulses; the pulses had a rather yellow colour, indicating this technology was in its developing stage (weapons usually go from yellow to orange to red, with yellow being the weakest and red the strongest); when having an impact on its shields, it scattered all over it, but without any real effect. Medusa fired a few shots of the same weapon, and the scout was almost destroyed. It finished him of with another weapon of pure white energy of an unknown kind. It had an electric effect on the ship, and it exploded. Afterwards the U.L.F. scout could scan the remains of it and found out that it was destroyed by a croniton blast (cronitons are an altered form of cronotons, used for time travel; in combination with tachyon particles cronitons can become cronotons and together open a temporal rift). He realised this was a great threat and went back to report it. His new orders were to go to a neutral facility to get these new weapons.

Meanwhile, John, Jack and Luke had reached the centre. They had to be extra careful: their cloaks didn’t work because of the high amount of energy and space distortions. But they found it: a lonely planet with only a small part of habitable ground around one of its poles. They landed and found a Sith temple, inside they saw Palpatine’s machine that had created the Hypno-crystal. They brought it trough a vortex back to the U.L.F. and to Empty Head’s Resistance.

Part 3: Crisis Meeting

The Valcronian High Council had a crisis meeting. Each of them stood in the Holo-Chamber of their HQ, transmitting their image to each other (It was forbidden for them to be all together at once, because one blow could destroy the entire leadership). Their mother planets had been destroyed, their leader transformed into a ghostlike form of energy, Thrawn captured, a weapons centre destroyed by an unknown entity… In short: they were losing the war.

Insectoz Valcro proposed a rescue mission for Thrawn. It was denied: he was probably kept deep inside the Empire, on one of the “prison planets”. The prisoners worked all day long, digging for energy crystals or metals with almost no chance of getting out. Most of them died because of the toxic gasses that hung over the planets. A few lucky ones got jobs as storm troopers, workpeople and even officers, after being brainwashed. The High Council considered Thrawn to be already dead.

Next topic: Jonathan. An android came into the Computer-Virus’ Holo-Chamber, he was given a very complex crystalline neural network, so it could be host to Jonathan’s soul (normal droids can also host a soul, but Jonathan’s is just too energetic). He was eager to test this new gadget, which was enhanced with isomeric projectors, they are like holographic-projectors, but more complicated: instead of using light and force fields, it actually mimics true matter (in case you’re wondering if it wouldn’t be easier to use this technology instead of building entire ships: it would use more energy than real ships, especially the weapons). Jonathan entered the droid, and his “body” was projected on it. His first order: sending all available Smallbots on a search for Medusa. He had witnessed the battle between the scout and the personalisation of the Hypno-crystal, he realised the great danger of such a soul: if it would be transformed into a “good” soul, it might mean the destruction of Valcron (in way it already had: the Slizer helped the U.L.F. in their latest victory). But if it stayed evil, it wouldn’t care about its destructions, and could wipe out the entire Matrix (somehow this vision reminded them all of a word they didn’t say out loud, a forbidden word, a myth, a legend, a curse: BOHROK…). The destruction of Medusa and the capturing of the Hypno-crystal could mean the total domination of the Valcro-Zone. “Luckily” Medusa had a sense of loyalty: to the Empire.

Secondly, Jonathan ordered the construction of a new home planet (they use special gravity devises) 25000 light years south of the centre of the second galaxy (the first one was located 25000 light years west of the centre).

Valcron had taken a fall, but their courage (and ego) could overcome it, they thought, and make their regime all powerful again!

Part 4: Changing Face

The Empire was very likely to take control over the Matrix again (like before Jonathan’s insurrection), but strangely, they offered a peace-treaty to the U.L.F., they had to wait with an answer until after New Year, because the United Lego Federation was in the middle of the elections, it was a great opportunity to give Jim Johnson a new assignment: find out if it wasn’t a trap. He would have to go to Coruscant, the semi-neutral planet in the middle of the Empire: even Valcronian officials were allowed to come there for non-military reasons (Anita Ice, ex-wife of Sharkthoot and ex-vice president of Ice, inc. was retired on it, she was to be the contact for Jim). Unfortunately, they couldn’t reach him, so they decided to send another M-Tron agent on an investigation. The journey would only take about a week from Amagosa III, which was located south of Coruscant.

The Empire was winning huge battles in the Smallbot War, especially since Thrawn had been captured. They had enlarged their territory halfway to the Smallbot badlands. But it wasn’t all great inside the Imperial forces: there were rumours that Jango Fett, a former bodyguard of Sharkthoot who had switched sides to Valcron together with him and who was cloned to get cheap workers and fighters, had gone to the Empire to be cloned once again, creating a huge army to invade entire Valcron. The storm troopers didn’t like the idea of being replaced, but only a few of them believed those rumours.

Saragossa V wasn’t “just” an imperial prison planet; it was a special facility for special prisoners. Recent additions included Thrawn Valcro and… Jim Johnson! It was lead by the sadistic Consul Bully Junior, son of the Sith Lord Darth Bully (Palpatine’s second before, after and even during Darth Vader’s days). He enjoyed executions by dropping prisoners into lava from high above, a fate not reserved for Thrawn. He was kept alone, without his Valcronian armour, which provides every Valcro, except Jonathan, Palpatine, Jonathan Junior (Jonathan’s first son) and of course the U.L.F.’s Valcros, with a special drug to keep them from plotting against their leader, it also heals them after a battle (it can even repair the entire body if only the head stays intact, but it would take days). Thrawn almost went insane. Jonathan created Valcron after his father didn’t want to give his family a higher status, they would have evolve through the entire military status to gain any power, Jonathan started his revolution with the idea of Valcronian superiority, each Valcro would rule over their territories as gods. Thrawn realised he never was in real control, his mind had been altered by Jonathan, perhaps the Empire wasn’t as bad as he had been made to believe…

Part 5: Bright Future

A new government had been formed:

Sofie Ice as president, Emmett Tron as vice president, Sarah Ice as prime minister, John, Jack, Mon Mothma (former prime minister) and Luke as ministers of defence, Luke was also vice first minister and Jack was also minister of offworld affairs. They were all so popular because of their successes in the war against Valcron and against the Empire (except for Mon Mothma, she was once leader of the defence facilities of the capital cities of the U.L.F. and did great research concerning energy-shielding). But that wasn’t all: from the moment Luke had been questioned by Sofie Ice, when he had arrived from the future, he was fond of her and over the years that fondness had turned into love and they had formed a relationship. Aïsha Hollings had shown a certain interest in him too and for a short while he even thought the Smallbot Queen had an eye on him, but his heart belonged to Sofie and now all their friends were invited for their wedding.

It had been more than 3 years since he was sent back in time and he already made many friends and settled. Recently he even made contact with his uncle; after the “destruction” of Jonathan, Luke finally felt it was time to get in touch with the good side of his family, which was growing. Luke knew the secret of the Valcronian armour and was confident that some Valcros would turn out to be non-evil without the drug, which he considered rather similar to the program that controlled him when he had been Darth Vader; but that wasn’t what I meant with “growing”: Sofie was pregnant of a son, which they both decided to call Anakin. The Valcronian genes were dominant: the pregnancy would last almost a year, but when he was born, he’d reach the look and brains of a 14 year old human after half a year, 16 after a year, and then he would age the same as most humans, but it would be greatly slowed down after 15 years. Everything would be great for the family. Luke had to go to Coruscant with John and Jack, they wouldn’t stay long…

Part 6: The Coruscant Mission

Tina Thomson, a powerful (in the Force) M-Tron agent, had reached Coruscant and was on her way to meet Anita. She felt so small under all those magnificent skyscrapers and wondered how this had been possible under Imperial rule. If the small bit of freedom this planet had could create this, what would an entirely free planet be able to do? Coruscant wasn’t all shiny, there were actual layers of population, with the rich on top, the poor on the bottom, and the scoundrels in between. Anita lived somewhere in the upper lower middle class, a social place but not as dirty as the lower levels, she could get into the finest clubs and was famous in the area, not something you would think of a military and science expert. The two women met, Anita had joined Carn Follon’s resistance through her contact with Ken Lorren, but knew practically nothing of the meeting. Most Jedi in the Valcro-zone were now part of the larger Resistance that had been created during the crisis of the Death Stars. Any Force-potent beings are hunted down anywhere in the Matrix, to be either exterminated or lured to the dark side. In Valcron, Jonathan’s mind-controlling technology is even used to make officers out of them. Tina’s new contact would be a Jedi named Obi-Wan Kenobi, who had travelled from one end of the Valcro-Zone to the other.

Luke, John and Jack had received the data for the meeting with the Jedi Knight and later, with the Empire, and they were on their way to Coruscant. Their ships were upgraded with the anti-matter weapons (the croniton weapon would ask too much energy from the ship) and the 3 amigos were now probably powerful enough to destroy a star destroyer, but it would never be enough to destroy Medusa. They didn’t have to worry about that, because they could cloak themselves. Tina and Obi-Wan were travelling towards them; they would meet in 3 days, so they had some time for other activities, like talking to the Slizer about how to defeat Medusa. He said that the only way to destroy him was to capture his mind directly after taking down the shield; it would be difficult, but not impossible. If they waited too long to capture his soul, he would be able to bring the shield back on line.
The Slizer’s visit hadn’t been noticed by the Empire or Medusa, but there was something else that had watched the conversation: Jonathan! An android transmitted a signal saying he was a Neutral and John, Jack and Luke decloaked. It asked them to land on an asteroid, so they did. Luke felt a strange presence and told John and Jack to be sure they had their lightsabres with them. The droid said that Valcron had invented something new, when a red cloud of energy entered the body and its appearance changed to look like Jonathan. “Neat, isn’t it?” he asked. He fired lightning at Jack, but he quickly placed his lightsabre in front of it and it was deflected. Luke had learned that trick too, when he was Vader. There was nothing really evil about it, it was like a force push, only, the energy was more concentrated, there were many other techniques like it, but Luke had never learned them. Luke fired at his father, but he was able to Force-push it away. All of them ignited their lightsabre now; Jonathan didn’t care about being outnumbered and attacked them all. Valcro’s saber clashed with John’s, Jack tried to kick him in the back, but he made a somersault and landed behind him, ready to strike, but then Luke intervened and got his lightsabre between them. Jonathan had gotten much stronger, but so did the others, Valcro was going to loose. John sprang upwards and sliced Jonathan, who was surrounded, in two. The red cloud left the droid and formed a face, telling them they could never destroy all the altered androids, and if they did, new ones would be made. Even if he couldn’t enter an organic body, he would destroy them. The energy cloud vanished and after eating something, the 3 amigos continued their trip. They hoped the destruction of the Hypno-crystal would have some effect on Jonathan.

Two days later, they met Tina and Obi-Wan. The Jedi Knight felt something in Luke that he had felt on Coruscant too. It could only have one meaning: the Emperor himself was on the planet, the peace-treaty was probably a trap. John, Jack and Luke decided to go anyway. Members of the Resistance were always welcome at the U.L.F. and Obi-Wan Kenobi was invited to go to Amagosa III and even to the capital city. The Jedi explained he had tried to contact Luke when he was first exploring the Valcro-zone, but had always been one step behind. After Luke disappeared he had focussed on more pressing matters; somehow he never came around meeting him after he’d returned to the light side, until now. He revealed he had known Luke was Jonathan’s son before the resistance did, but decided to keep it for himself, in order to keep good relations between the U.L.F. and the resistance cells.
3 days later the 3 amigos arrived at Coruscant. It was still 24 hours until the meeting started, so John decided to visit his cousin Anita; Jack and Luke went with him. It was the first time they met in 8 years, since Jean-Luc Sharkthoot took over the U.L.F. for a while and accidentally created the Computer-Virus. They had been rivals for a while, until they both started to work for Jonathan. Sharkthoot gained his power because of the Hypno-Crystal, strange how things are connected.
Part 7: Revelations

Anita lived in Ento-Town, which was rather far from the governmental district, so they had to leave early; most people were still awake from the night before. They took a taxi to check out the scenery, the driver looked Human or Calamarian (they are almost the same), but wore a strange hat that resembled something found at pyramidal structures on a planet near the U.L.F. asteroids. The 3 galaxies that are separated from the Valcro-zone are, except for the U.L.F., completely without live and those structures had been the only proof of other live, in their part of the known universe. Jack asked the driver for his race, he was a Mumifar, they looked like Humans and Calamarians during their first thousand years, but then their skin turns grey or white, giving them a rather morbid look, they can live up to 3000 years; his species had many colonies and build pyramids before Palpatine came, before the Matrix, but almost all of them were destroyed by… He stopped talking, it was forbidden to mention “them”. They were silent for the rest of the trip.

After a while they reached the Sith temple in which the meeting would take place. They were escorted by some storm troopers to a room, guarded by those men in red. Inside stood the Emperor, not changed a bit since Luke killed him 2 years ago. Next to him: Darth Bully, who wore a suit with isomeric projectors (like the androids designed for Jonathan), to hide his true Zybrac face. Palpatine started the conversation and decided to reveal the truth (or at least his version of it):

-You know about Medusa and are probably preparing to destroy him and the Hypno-crystal, you mustn’t! If you destroy the crystal, the Matrix will be destroyed. The 5 galaxies will not be erased, but it shall return to its normal state and will be part of the universe again, like 5004 years ago. I made the Matrix to have full control over the 5 galaxies, but most important because of…  The Bohrok! They are an unstoppable force. Only I have enough power to stop them, but I’ve grown old and weak. The Matrix will fade and will have vanished in 1 year, a Year of Chaos, which is also the time needed to create a new crystal, but then they would be already free. Of course you will do it anyway, so that’s the real reason I’ve brought you here: I need a young and powerful man, the only pure one, besides me: Luke!

Luke got angry and shouted that he would never join him again, but the Emperor said he didn’t need to do it voluntarily and he opened a door behind him. There, in a glass tank with a liquid inside, was the lifeless body of Darth Vader, Luke wanted to destroy it, but couldn’t move, there was a force field that held him back. Then, he fell. His soul was transported out of his body and inside Vader’s. John got mad, he told Jack to get Luke’s body and escape. Jack saw he couldn’t change John’s idea, so he took it, cloaked himself, got out of the building and flew away from the planet. John tried to attack Palpatine, but he flew up to the ceiling and said that he wasn’t as powerful as 5004 years ago, but he was still the most powerful in the Matrix. John thought that the only way to save his friend was to join the dark side. Palpatine accepted the offer. Because his last name was Ice, his Sith name would be Darth Cold. The Emperor Force-lifted Vader out of the tank, he woke up. Luke was evil again.

Palpatine gave them a little history lesson: more than 5500 years ago, the Bohrok invaded this group of 5 galaxies. The Jedi fought them, the Sith fought them, but they were no match for the power of the Bohrok. They could destroy perhaps 5 or 10, but not hundreds or thousands. The Bohrok annihilated all life in the 3 galaxies of the U.L.F. in less than 500 years and they were attacking the north of these two galaxies too. Then Palpatine arrived from another part of the universe, he was the first of his race with the ability to transform into a much more powerful form. Palpatine offered help in exchange of their freedom, only Coruscant would be left neutral. Because of his enormous power, he was able to destroy many Bohrok at once. The ones left were sealed by the creation of the Matrix and the Hypno-crystal. They were separated like The Valcro-zone and the U.L.F. are. But they needn’t worry, Medusa was indestructible! The Force was no side effect to the Matrix but the opposite was true: the Matrix actually took energy from the Force!

The Empire was winning the war against Valcron, there was only one problem: Valcron was too big to take over! Palpatine seemed to have an answer to everything: he had ordered an army of clones, to invade every Valcronian planet, after their space army was destroyed. They were replicas of a man John had known personally: Jango Fett! It would take half a year before they would be grown up, and during that time, a man would be trained to lead this project. Only one man new enough about strategy and tactics: the Valcro with the blue skin (not Erick Valcro, who’s blue too): Thrawn. Also, a new weapon was being created, which could carry the new army. And if everything failed and the Matrix would be destroyed, there was one last resort: a powerful android, made from self-replicating nano-probes, making him invincible. It was created by an unknown person. The android was named: “the Titan”…

Part 8: Leader of the Neutrals

All ships of the U.L.F. were gathered at a single location. They had all been upgraded with anti-matter and croniton technology and there were some new ships too with many weapons, but would it be enough to destroy Medusa? They had to be careful! Sofie, Sarah and the other ministers decided to send another scout first, to witness more battles, the federation forces didn’t feel like fighting anyway, because two of their heroes had been captured by the Empire during a make-believe peace-treaty, there was nothing lower than waving a white flag and then suddenly attacking. Jack wanted to follow Medusa, to put his mind off the sudden loss of his friends. He wanted to take the twin-warship, because of its power (the most powerful, after the upgrades) but he needed a partner: Obi-Wan Kenobi. His knowledge of the Valcro-zone would be useful, plus he barely knew Luke and John, so his emotions wouldn’t cloud his vision and he could keep Jack away from the dark side too.

Medusa was far away from the battles of the Smallbot War (though he had helped the Empire win many battles in it), he was in the other galaxy, but outside the borders of Valcron, in an unclassified piece of space, east of the centre. Obi-Wan said that there wasn’t much life in that area, but it was perfect for hiding something. It would take a month to get there, that was too long. Again, Kenobi had an answer: there was a huge Neutral facility, their home-base, close to the centre of the second galaxy, with a wormhole going back to the first galaxy, but its location was unknown. With some technology, they might reveal it. It took the two Jedi an hour to find a facility of the Neutrals and after giving them the information about how to create a red quantum-phazer, the most powerful form, they got the answer to their question: there was no fixed exit point for the wormhole, it was unstable. But something newly developed would help them: a device that creates a temporary gate to any wormhole in 200,000 light years. They weren’t able to create their own exits yet, but that would soon follow. The technology wasn’t given to them, but they could use it. In a matter of seconds, the ship was sent to the centre of the second galaxy.

The home base of the Neutrals was an awesome sight, no planets, but facilities, linked together, and in the middle an irregular space station, bigger than the first Death Star. They were escorted to an entrance. The inside was almost completely hollow, full of floating platforms with people on them, working on machines. An elevator shaft, in the middle, went from the bottom all the way to the top. Jack and Obi-Wan were invited to see the leader, known as “the collector”. Few had ever seen him, so it was truly an honour. Jack was surprised when he saw the collector: he looked the same as Darth Bully! The collector revealed he was a Zybrac and the brother of that Sith lord. He escaped the Emperor’s control and created the Neutrals after Palpatine started a purge of his race, because of their Force potency and frightening appearance, but he was forever locked to the device that hid his true face, that’s why he resembled Bully: the isomeric projectors created the same human-like face for them both. He wanted to talk to people of the U.L.F. because he was worried: Imperial ships carrying “black metal” (the hardest metal in the universe, very difficult to work with) had been going to the east of the galaxy for almost a year and recently, 2 ships of unknown designs, but with a lot of firepower, went to the same place… and one of them was Medusa! This was actually good news for Jack and Obi-Wan, because they were looking for it. They thanked the collector, whose real name was Andrew, for the info and were on their way to the mysterious location.

Part 9: The Nebula

After a day, the ship entered a nebula, which disabled their cloak. A few minutes later, they had accidentally flown into a mine-field, certainly no problem for two Jedi. Jack could sense the mines and avoid them if they would be attracted by the ship, Obi-Wan would be quick enough to shoot them away. The resulting blast would leave them spinning, but their Force-enhanced senses would be able to guide them. It wasn’t necessary, Jack gallantly flew the twin-warship between the explosives and got to the other side. The sensors picked up a ship close to them. It had an unknown design, but it wasn’t Medusa. It had to be that other vessel the collector talked about. Jack had a feeling he knew the pilot, perhaps… no, it wasn’t John or Luke. Who could it be? The strangely shaped ship came in sight. The sensors said it was a genetically altered (not engineered, the changes were made after his birth) human. Jack knew who it was: Jango Fett, the man who had changed allegiance twice. His ship, the Slave I, had only two visible weapons: two rapid lasers, with more power than a Tie Fighter. He started firing and Jack evaded most of the blast. The U.L.F. ship had much more weapons (it was the federation’s strength) and Obi-Wan fired the rear anti-matter turrets. The volley of torpedoes exploded on Jango’s shields and he decided he wouldn’t be nice anymore. At the front he opened two hatches and out of the hull came two arms with 4 croniton blasters each. He fired only two of them, which both hit the twin-warship. The energy was enough to destroy the shields and the emergency system was activated. Fett wanted to finish them of with a bomb, which came out of another hidden compartment, but the Jedi also had bombs, anti-matter explosives, to be exact. The two weapons came together in a great annihilation (matter + anti-matter destroy each other, leaving much energy; this process is an annihilation) and the ships were swung away. The Slave I was dangerously close to the mine field, so Obi-Wan fired some of the powerful red quantum-phazers, which pushed Fett’s craft directly into a mine. His sensors didn’t work because of the blast and Neil and Kenobi could escape. They soon exited the nebula and reactivated their cloak.

Part 10: Destruction of Medusa

Jack had fallen asleep, but was waked when 3 Star Destroyers flew past their ship. They’d entered the secret imperial construction site. Huge blocks of black metal were being shot at with large phazers, it would take a lot of energy to create something with them, but it seemed they had been working for years, because there was already a giant disk with backward curving plates and even a long structure within. Jack began to sweat, this looked very familiar and when he asked the computer to form a picture of a complete version of the strange thing, he cursed, it was yet another Death Star, the other two must have been prototypes for this monster! Something disconnected from the barely developed centre: Medusa. This “Black Star”, as they dubbed it, was going to be an indestructible, planet killing, sentient machine, powered by the Hypno-crystal. From under a Star Destroyer came a shuttle, it headed right to Jack and Obi-Wan. It had to be John or Luke, who else could sense the presence of the two Jedi. They flew away, in Medusa’s direction. Darth Cold made it known that there was a cloaked enemy between the shuttle and the Hypno-crystal’s vault. Medusa released a gas, taken from the nebula, which Jack couldn’t avoid. Their ship became visible and immediately came under attack. Medusa had as many weapons as the twin-ship and its shield was capable of standing the Jedi’s weapons. The ship did have a more rapid system, so they were able to push Medusa back a bit and they transwarped out of there. Obi-Wan checked the sensors to see if they were followed, but instead found out that a vortex to the 3rd U.L.F. Galaxy had been made. They sent a message to the capital to warn them, but they answered that the Slizer had made contact and told them Medusa would begin searching for the remains of its future self around this time, so the fleet was sent through the wormholes -which they now believed were made by the Mumifar- to capture its soul, destroy the vault and get to the crystal. Then, the two Jedi made an opening to the Vortex and arrived in the ‘junkyard’ right after Medusa did. The combined Federation/Resistance fleet, aided by the Toa, was already in a battle and made it impossible for the huge machine to escape.

Sam Darkner, a special M-Tron agent, like Jim (and great-grandson of Emmett Tron), sat in a small ship with a special device attached to it, able to capture a soul. Because Medusa used most of its energy for its weapons and shields, which were under constant fire, Sam pointed his weapon to the centre of the vault and the overheated Hypno-crystal gave up the A.I. . Nothing was controlling the vault now, so its shields and weapons stopped and the fleet destroyed Medusa.

All that was left was the crystal.

Chapter4: The Year of Chaos1:

The Titans

Part 1: End of the Hypno-crystal

T

he Fleet transported Medusa’s soul to the Resistance. On the Capital Asteroid, the machine that had created the Hypno-crystal and which was found over a year ago was now ready to destroy the evil power source that had caused so much pain. The 14th September 5004 ACM (after creation of the Matrix) would be the first day of the Year of Chaos. They now knew that the Matrix was made to control an already existing piece of space, after a year, these 5 galaxies would return to the rest of the universe. The officers of the fleet did wonder why the garbage of the 3rd galaxy hadn’t vanished after Medusa’s destruction. Blake Tron revealed shocking news: for the fleet it seemed that there was the same amount of junk since before their victory, but the capital was protected against changes in the timeline and he had discovered that there was actually more and stranger debris now!

They weren’t really bothered, it must have been there before. Medusa’s explosion in the past probably cleared most of it.

As the crystal vanished in a great green flash, everybody was swung back by all the energy that came free. For a minute or so, a strange wind flew in the entire Matrix, making it known to Jonathan and Palpatine that the Hypno-crystal was now history.

The Slizer and Empty-Head both attended the celebration ceremony, they were sure all computer viruses would get a stable body, when the Matrix would be completely gone. But the Slizer felt his job was complete, Medusa had been stopped from far greater evil, he now remembered the horror the “Black Star” inflicted on the galaxies of the Matrix. He was afraid the destruction of the thing that created him would have some negative side-affects, so he announced his “retirement”, he would travel to the past, to a time the Matrix still existed. His creations, the Toa, would stay to protect the elements they represented and were each given a planet. Everybody wished him a good journey and he opened a portal to the past.

Empty-Head was nervous too, he believed he would get his memory back, which was erased by the crystal, when he was transferred into his body. He didn’t know what to expect, he could’ve been a great Jedi master or an evil dictator. As the celebrations on the Capital Asteroid went on, he started to get flashbacks and the next day he finally knew the truth…

Part 2: The Consequences

The next day, the leaders of the Resistance and the U.L.F. held a press conference to inform the public about the consequences of the destruction of the Hypno-crystal. It started with the shocking revelation that Empty-Head was in fact the retired Slizer, captured by a young Jonathan Valcro and transformed into the droid they all knew. They had decided to erase the memory of Medusa’s soul and to send it to the beginning of the matrix, so it would become the Slizer and to stabilize the current timeline (which had now been changed for at least 3 times
).

Next thing on the agenda: the creation of vortexes to the Valcro-zone. Within a week after the creation of a vortex, a new one could only be created in a radius of one light-year from the original vortex, after that time, this radius got exponentially larger. This rule wouldn’t change during the year of chaos, but afterwards it would be impossible to travel to the Valcro-Zone, unless a vortex was kept open during the final transition to normal space. The vortex would then become a permanent wormhole; this meant they had to find a safe and secret location within enemy space. Amagosa III was only known to Valcron, who were losing a war against the Empire, but Thrawn, Luke and John could’ve told them the location of this secret base. The Neutrals wouldn’t allow a permanent wormhole in their space, but could perhaps be convinced to make their artificial wormholes, from time to time, but that was nothing to rely on. They had to find a solution before September 5005. That was also about the time Luke predicted the Valcronian fleet would attack. A lot had happened the last 4 and a half years, but nobody could predict if the attack had already been averted. For this reason, The U.L.F. had decided to create the first starship with a larger crew than 3 or 4. This ship would be a mobile command centre, a vessel of exploration and a war ship, all in one. It would be mainly created by Ice inc., but of course in cooperation with Space Police and Tron (M- and Black). Also, in combination with the creation of new classes of one-man fighters, made to incorporate all the new technologies, the U.L.F. considered itself prepared. Also, the different cells of the Resistance had started to work even more closely together, as one organisation, which would attack vital outposts and capture important communications centres, if the U.L.F. were to engage the Valcronian fleet. But for now, they didn’t even know if Valcron would still survive a whole year, considering the capture of Thrawn, the Empire’s advantage in the Smallbot War, the fact that Jonathan was now a non-corporal being, etc.

While pondering these things, the last fact really got hem thinking: what would happen to Jonathan Valcro, when the Matrix vanishes. Would he simply “die”? This was another strange idea, their souls would not go to a computer but perhaps to a mythical “after-life” or would they just stop existing?

The U.L.F. had a lot of unanswered questions, but they didn’t panic, they’d work it out somehow…

Part 3: The Valcronian Titan

The High Council of Valcron held yet another crisis meeting. There had been numerous meetings in the last year, but this was the most important one in months. They had all sensed the destruction of the Hypno-crystal; at one side, this was positive: if the crystal was gone, Medusa had to have been destroyed too. The indestructible machine had helped the Empire in some decisive battles of the Smallbot War and they had lost territory almost up to the badlands. Medusa’s end and their knowledge of the badlands might give them an opportunity. At the other side, the Valcros’ suits drew energy from the Matrix, should it completely vanish, their power would decrease drastically. They also didn’t know what would happen to their leader…

But a new force had arrived to help them. An anonymous inventor had given them an android made out of nano-probes, with the power to transform into anything. The only things that could destroy it were croniton weapons or Force-beams (like the Emperor’s lightning). The droid was completely black. It entered the Computer Virus’s Holo-Chamber, swore allegiance to Valcron and stated his name: #03, the Valcronian Titan. He explained the 3 stood for 3rd successful experiment. The Council asked him if he had anything to do with a computer virus nebula, in which many ships had been missing for weeks (including Luke), a virus that called himself #01? The Titan replied this virus was his creator’s first attempt to create an artificial intelligence. Jonathan’s soul asked if he could use the titan’s body. The answer was negative: his own soul had been linked to the nano-probes, so that he would only die after the last one was destroyed, even if several probes were light years apart. The body couldn’t host any other soul. #03 refused to answer any questions about his creator, only that he lived in the forbidden zone, a place north of the Virus’s province, which had been destroyed by the Bohrok, before the matrix was created. The real, but very secret reason this area was forbidden, was the huge amount of evidence of the Spirion Holocaust that was necessary to create the Matrix (but even before the creation of the Matrix, this area was called forbidden, but the ancient myths were forgotten, although they originated from the same source as the predictions about a “year of chaos”). The Bohrok and knowledge of the forbidden zone were only a few of the things Palpatine had erased from the memory of the public, by making it illegal to discuss them. The Titan’s creator used an ancient technology, older than the Mumifar, to send his inventions to the outskirts of the Matrix and to give them enormous powers. But the same technology also bound him to the planet, it was impossible for him to leave!

The Titan was given orders to check out rumours that had been spreading about the Empire. He could use his technology to create transwarp engines under his feet.

But the Council didn’t know of the Imperial Titan, #02, made by the same mysterious person…

Part 4: The Fall of Amagosa III

The U.L.F.’s fear that the 2 fallen Jedi would reveal their secret base had come true. Sensors had picked up a small unknown ship, probably a kind of scout, on a direct course for the planet, it would be there before a successful evacuation, so they would have to destroy the ship and then evacuate. But it wasn’t a ship that came, it was the Imperial Titan, which was completely red, to honour the Emperor’s personal guards.

It came out of hyperspace and seemed to crash on the planet. Because of the strange nature of this intruder, Erick Johanson, an Ice High Officer and leader of this colony, send two M-Tron agents to investigate the crash site. They found a small crater with a dark grey substance. It looked oily, yet grained, but with a metallic shine; it was unlike anything they’d seen before. One of the agents thought he saw the substance move, the other one hadn’t seen it, but couldn’t deny he felt a strange presence. When the pool started to rise, they couldn’t deny it, the stuff was alive. They both fired at the growing thing and blasted two holes in it, scattering a bit of the substance, but the holes simply closed, and the spread substance moved back to the blob, which was starting to take a humanoid form, with a reddish shine. After a minute, the Titan had taken its form and pronounced that the U.L.F. would be punished for their intrusion of Imperial space. The M-Trons fired some more blasts, this time it threw the droid backward and revealed wires and technology inside, but the broken hardware turned liquid again and healed the wound, growing more quickly than the first time. The agents kept firing in the hope it would completely destroy the monster, but each time the Titan repaired itself faster, after a while he even opened holes in his body to avoid the shots. He then very easily killed the overwhelmed M-Trons.

At the same time, the Federation forces were fleeing the system, but not all of them escaped the planet when the Titan transformed his arms into quantum phazers, destroying most of the base, and again, himself. This time it took him more time to reform himself, because of the huge amount of energy he had used, depleting his reserves, this was also the case when he crashed on the planet, he had used a lot of energy for his hyperspace drive. But he would never run out, because of the subatomic nature of the nano probes themselves, using a form of vacuum energy.

The surviving ships created a vortex to the U.L.F. before the Titan could follow them, they were safe, but the catastrophe was clear: 600 people were killed, who could be reanimated because the Matrix was still present. But the important base was destroyed, a lot of research was gone and they had lost their permanent presence in the Valcro Zone.

They had to find something new, if they wanted to keep their link with the Valcro Zone, after the destruction of the Matrix!

Part 5: Colliding Powers

In another part of that galaxy, the Smallbot War was still raging on and on his way to investigate strange rumours about the Empire, the Valcronian Titan decided to help out in a specific battle. The Smallbot fleet was up against no less than five star destroyers, with a large array of weapons capable to destroy all Smallbots before they could adapt. The middle ship, best shielded from the attacks of the bots, was Thrawn’s ship. He was attacking a planet he still ruled a while ago. The ships were full of Clone troopers, invading planet after planet, making rapid progress and assuring Thrawn’s promotion to Grand Admiral, one of only seven ever appointed: himself, Niccolo Machiavelli, Kaine Ceva, Walter Cauchy, Katsuhiro Otomo, Karl Weierstrass and Bernard Bolzano.

After the destruction of the Smallbots, the troops were beamed to the surface, where they started detaining the civilians and killing Valcronian forces, but Thrawn was surprised when the commander gave the message that they were being slaughtered by an invincible droid. He didn’t want to lose too many troops and ordered them to retreat. When he beamed them back to the ship, no clones, but two droids appeared: the Titan and a droid to host Jonathan’s soul.

Thrawn drew his sabre before he saw the projection of his former master. He sliced through the Titan, who quickly reattached his two parts. Thrawn was surprised, this was the same technology as their new weapon, it would have been an exact replica, if it hadn’t been for the colour. He then noticed the other droid had taken the appearance of Jonathan.

-So, Johnny, you’ve got a Titan, made by a strange scientist from the Forbidden Zone? Let me guess, his name is #03?

-How do you know about this, traitor, it’s impossible your Imperial spies could have gotten this information, only the Council and I know of the Titan.

-We’ve got one too: #02. It seems this mysterious inventor is working for both sides.

-I hope he’s not helping the U.L.F., they’ve become a threat too great to ignore anymore! We must destroy them before they do even more harm.

-Are you suggesting we work together and end our war?

-Perhaps, or at least a truce until we have dealt with them.

-I see, this is just a means to give you some time to strengthen your armies to better defend yourself against us. We effortlessly destroyed the U.L.F.’s secret base in the Amagosa sector less than a week ago! They’re no threat, Luke was, perhaps, but he has joined us again, he’s Vader once more.

-Luke was Vader when the U.L.F. defeated the Death Star and now they’ve got one man fighters that are more powerful than Star Destroyers! And by the way, we don’t need to defend ourselves from you, you won’t be able to penetrate the Badlands and you can’t come around the core because you’d violate Neutral space.

-Perhaps we don’t need to conquer you. The Matrix is fading, Johnny, and you’ll die, you can’t hold your spirit in these droids for long, I can feel this one breaking up from the inside as we speak. And when you’re gone, the remaining warlords will fight each other. Chaos will engulf Valcron, it will be ripped apart and the Empire will take over without many problems.

-You assume too much. My scientists are working out a means for me to enter a biological body again, one that will live forever. No Thrawn, it’s the Empire that will fall. Without the Matrix, Palpatine will not be able to get another body every time he’s about to die. Sooner or later his age will catch up with him before he can transfer his soul. With him death, I am the only true successor to his throne.

-We will not tolerate a foreign leader, son or not. Vader would become Emperor, but he’s crippled, I could defeat him and then I would be heir.

-No, if they wouldn’t allow me to take the Emperorship, they wouldn’t allow you either. That’s the reason I created Valcron in the first place, to make sure Valcros would rule the cluster, not some admiral what’s-his-name.

-I never really ruled anything, we were all deceived, our suits contained mind controlling drugs, you’re the only real master, and that is why your system will fail, it has no structure. You may be powerful, but you’re an idiot! After the Empire has regained its former glory, we shall take care of the U.L.F. and annex it as our rightful property.

After his last insults, Thrawn cut off the droid’s head without problem, it was already malfunctioning because it had hosted Jonathan’s soul for too long. During their conversation, Thrawn had pressed a few buttons to summon the Imperial Titan, he would arrive within minutes. Meanwhile, he had to hold off the Valcronian Titan. He knew nothing could harm the nano technology, except croniton explosions or an energy beam, produced by the Force. Being a Sith, Thrawn could use several techniques, including beams and balls of energy, but those would damage the ship, Force lightening would be more suitable. It was designed to inflict pain rather than direct physical damage, but the nano-probes would be destroyed by it.

The Titan could be seen breaking up as the attack hit him. The outer parts of his body were crumbling like a piece of old bread, but he was regenerating faster than the lightening was destroying him. Thrawn was almost exhausted, but he only meant to hold him of until help arrived. A few seconds later, it did, the red droid entered the control room and Thrawn fled. The black droid approached his “brother”. The Titans knew they were meant to fight each other; it had been the purpose of their creator: to see which design was better. They chose to go outside the ship, to have the space for their battle.

Imperial and Valcronian ships all left the sector, to let the Titans clash without getting damaged themselves.

Although being hit by a beam would destroy them, these droids were able to create them. Their fight started with an array of these powers, beams and blasts and rapid fire of many energy balls were fired at each other, but they were fast enough to avoid it, or were healed almost instantly. They continued by turning to martial arts, they hit each other so hard, limbs started flying around. When severed, they could still control those body parts and soon the fight turned to a bizarre level with different parts hitting each other, sometimes they would fire another Force-beam and soon they were reduced to cloud-like bubbles, not really liquid, but not a gas either. Little particles were seen colliding, at some places, a hand would form to hit another forming blob. It is almost too strange to describe, but the fight continued this way, until the two clouds were shrinking: in the vacuum of space, they had no matter around them to recreate the destroyed nanotechnology, as the subatomic particles from the destroyed probes dispersed into different directions. They had grown thin and realised neither could win this way; they fled into different directions, hoping they would have a rematch. History teaches they would meat again, in a way nobody would have guessed, but that will not happen in this chapter, or the next.

Part 6: A New Enemy

In the north of the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone, at the fading border of the matrix, in the space in command of Sharkthoot’s second hand man Clovis Fett (who had been the first worker/fighter clone of Jango, the same man who had now given his genes to an Imperial army), Valcron had a new foe. A swarm of spheres, equipped with simple warp technology and the ability to use the Force to create beams, had attacked the planet Seranlia, which was populated by millions of civilians and even not many Valcronian officials. They had first destroyed the satellites and then pointed their weapon on the planet itself; hundreds of them scorched the surface, made the seas boil. All the steam and the smoke and ashes from burning forests created a thick cloud that swallowed the entire sky of Seranlia. Then they landed, looking like burning asteroids, falling from the sky. From their round bodies, they sprouted two arms and two legs, in front of the centre was a clear window, giving sight to a brain like entity, controlling this machine; this top could be move forward to deliver a strong punch. Both arms had weapons on them and they destroyed all that was left on the surface, killing all life without any clear motive other than plain destruction, just as they had done with the three galaxies of the U.L.F. thousands of years ago, those galaxies had been empty until the refugees who created the Federation arrived, all life had been destroyed by these creatures: the Bohrok had awakened! The brains inside them were called “Krana”, a race from the second galaxy of the U.L.F., very stupid and dumb on their own, but with the ability to communicate with every other Krana, using only their small mind. Yet someone must have given them the first intelligent thoughts for their collective mind, the same person who had given them the means to create the Bohrok. It is impossible to think there is someone so evil, who would destroy all without making difference between anybody or anything, but clearly, he must exist. Later efforts in this second Krana War would be towards finding this person, but yet again, we are slipping from the story at hand.

Part 7: John’s redemption

3 months after the destruction of the Hypno-crystal, the south west of the Empire was now also under attack by the Bohrok, this fleet had been trapped into another pocket of space bounded by the Matrix. They clearly had another look: the ones attacking Valcron were all rather brown, while these were black, except for their weapons, their shape was completely different. Other pockets of Bohrok had been released too, but were still to far away from habited parts to be noticed.

The black fleet would soon be under siege of an Imperial fleet, under the command of Darth Cold. Some Bohrok scouts had landed on a planet and Ice had gone down to destroy them as a warning for the fleet not to intervene with the Empire. John attacked the three Bohrok and avoided their fire. His sabre met much resistance when he cut through the monsters, but he managed to destroy them. To assure any new scouts would be dealt with, he sent down a legion of clones. This was the first time he directly talked to any of the clones, he hadn’t known who the donor was until this moment. He recognised the voice of Jango, ex bodyguard of Sharkthoot, when he had taken over the U.L.F. all those years ago. Jango had killed John’s father Frank, and now he knew these troops were all equal to that murderer, something snapped inside of him, he despised the clones now, but couldn’t really hate them, for they were not Jango, only a replica. But if he were a real Sith, if he had really gone to the dark side, he should have hated them, it would have been in his nature. At that moment John again realised why he had joined the dark side: to destroy it from within, but it had taken hold of him, he had even told the Empire about Amagosa. But now he became himself again, almost, one final thing pushed him to light again: the commander of his ship told him it would be a waist of troops, if the Bohrok wanted to destroy this insignificant little planet, they should let them do it: it would drain their power and it would be easier to destroy them. The commander didn’t care if billions would be killed, but John did. He rejected his Sith name, but only for himself, he would command his ship to send all available clones to destroy as many Bohrok as they could, so the fleet would have fewer problems with the remaining Bohrok in space. He also said he would go on a personal mission; John knew the commander wouldn’t refuse any orders from his superior: a Sith lord.

When he was out of sensor range, John opened a vortex to the U.L.F., hoping Jack and everybody else would forgive him. To his surprise, they immediately offered him his old jobs as minister of defence and junior vice president of Ice back, because of the tactical information he had gathered at the top of the Empire.

John’s greatest information was that the Emperor had begun creating a new Hypno-crystal, a process that could not be stopped and would be complete in one year, minus the 3 months it had been active. But John had studied this ancient technology and had discovered this crystal wouldn’t mean the resurrection of the Matrix, or evil powers, specific ceremonies had to be performed at the time it would be whole. If serene meditation of people with kind souls would be performed around the crystal, it would become an artefact of good, a beacon of hope. They had to capture the incomplete crystal, or else the Black star would still have an active weapon and the Matrix would continue to exist.

They came up with a rather simple plan: nobody knew John had gone back to the light, so he would visit the sacred Sith temple in which the crystal was guarded, taking a cloaked Jack with him. They could simply take the crystal without any suspicion!

Part 8: Vader & Luke

To get to the Sith temple would be more difficult than the actual stealing of the crystal, because it was located in a small satellite-galaxy, located above the south east of the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone, very close to the Galactic plain, near the hidden construction site of the Black Star. It contained only a few thousands stars, mostly old ones without planets, except for the BC-12031 system. It was such an insignificant star, it didn’t even get a real name, only an index number, but that made it perfect for hiding things. The Red Nebula’s (similar to the ones of the Smallbot Badlands) gave it its name: the Blood Cloud. These gasses would make it difficult for Jack to keep his personal body cloak up, but he wouldn’t have problems with it on the planet. The only way to get to the Blood Cloud was via a wormhole near the centre of the first Galaxy of the Valcro Zone.

Using the same vortex John had used to return to the U.L.F., they now went back to the Empire. With the technology of his shuttle, it would take them only 5 days to get to the wormhole. They hoped John wouldn’t be called for any mission.

Luck ran out: “Darth Cold” was summoned to meet with Vader. This was very unfortunate: he would be able to sense Jack’s presence. They both wanted Luke to return to the light, but the Emperor’s grip was very tight: he had trapped Luke into his former half-cyborg body and used this technology in similar way as the suits of the Valcros, keeping him under control. Sooner than expected, Vader met with John’s shuttle and beamed aboard. Jack deactivated his cloak because he knew it was useless to hide. They explained Luke how he was tricked, he had never wanted to rejoin the dark side. But Vader wouldn’t listen, knowing his friends could never kill him, he took them prisoner and flew the shuttle in the direction of the wormhole. “The Emperor sensed your plot to steal the crystal, he is waiting for us in the temple”.

Three days later, they arrived at the planet. It was almost completely twisted on its side, one half burning in eternal day, the other freezing in eternal night. A small strip around the equator had some habitable ground, but the temple was built on the pole of the night, at the “dark side”.

They landed and walked to the main hall, at the centre was a high altar on which the new Hypno-crystal stood. Its form was already complete, but its powers were still forming from within. A ceremony in about 8 months was the only extra thing needed to complete it.

Emperor Palpatine sat in a chair, Jack noticed he was clearly weaker than the last time he had seen him. “So you have chosen to betray me, my new apprentice. So be it. Vader, kill these conspirators!”

A lightsabre battle started, Vader was strong enough to handle both of them, but after a few minutes they had him cornered. “If you intervene again”, warned Jack, “the exact same scene will repeat itself as in the second Death Star”. “I’m afraid there’s one small difference”, smiled Palpatine, and from behind the altar, stepped the Imperial Titan. John and Jack started cutting the droid, without much effect. Vader’s heart was again torn between saving his friends and the loyalty towards Palpatine, even above the drugs. But before he could help them, the Titan changed his arms into swords and killed his adversaries.

Vader was struck by grief and anger. His powers rose and he got an aura around him. A red aura that was turning yellow, but before this power boost could complete itself, he collapsed on the floor. Vader had almost turned into something only Palpatine had achieved, 5000 years ago, but it was impossible to transform with the Matrix still active.

Then something strange happened. When Vader stood up, there seemed to be two of him, two shallow images of him, not synchronised. They began to split up, one image turned to a solid Darth Vader again, and the other turned into Luke!

Luke jumped on the altar and took the crystal, he than ran out of the temple and flew the shuttle out of the system, the others were too surprised to do anything, they couldn’t understand what had just happened, apparently Vader’s inner struggle had separated his good side from his evil side. Palpatine was actually happy, the remaining Vader was now completely loyal to him. But his crystal was gone.

Luke contacted the Neutrals for passage through an artificial wormhole and sent a message to the U.L.F., for his two friends, who would be reanimated by then:

“Meet me, in the Forbidden Zone…”

Chapter5: The Year of Chaos2:

Dark Powers

Part 1: Old Anakin Valcro

W

hen Sofie Ice heard the message from Luke, she was overcome by joy. Her husband would return to her and they would be together when Anakin would be born. But she sensed something strange (she has Force abilities too), somehow this new mission, for which he had called upon John and Jack, had direct relevance to her son. She discarded it as being overprotective.

When the 3 amigos joined again, in the Forbidden Zone, Luke explained what had happened after they had been killed. He sent the crystal through the vortex John and Jack had come from, it would be safe at the U.L.F. until the time was ripe.

Now he wanted to track the maker of the Titans. He had found residual radiation from both droids leading to one planet. They landed in a grass field, surrounded by some hills. It was raining and there was quite a wind. Soon it would storm. Their sensors hadn’t worked very well, due to the electrical activity in the clouds, but now they saw a door sticking out the side of a hill. It was unlocked and led them inside an elevator, which automatically started to descend.

The elevator stopped and opened. They were greeted by an old man with a white beard and brown robes. “Have people forgotten what the word forbidden means? I came to this area of space, looking for a peaceful spot, outside the Empire, and for 3000 years I had peace. But you’re the 3rd visitors I had in a month. The other two were a black and a red droid of some sort. Luckily there wasn’t a storm then, and my cloaked door was working. Now that you’ve let yourself in, have a seat, I’ll make some tea.”

The 3 amigos were sad that they hadn’t found the inventor of the Titans, but were anxious to know who this man was and how he had lived for 3 thousand years. Right before they sat down they felt something and jumped up, just in time, because dozens of spikes would have penetrated them. The old man returned from the next room and spoke directly to Luke:

-I should have known you’d survive, but you can’t blame me for trying. Although you weren’t able to do it to me.

-What are you talking about?

-You thought hiding the dark side from me would keep me from suffering the same fate as you. You lied to me, you never told me of Vader or my relatives. The same way you didn’t know you are a Valcro. And then you did something that made me transform: you killed the one who showed me the strength of the dark side, my love: Mara. It sent me over the edge, but you were more powerful. You couldn’t kill me, you knew the only place I would not be able to transform, was the Matrix, so you sent me here, imprisoned me on this planet, until you could think of a way to control me, bring me back. But clearly you’ve forgotten about me, because it have been 3000 long and lonely years, which have driven me even closer to insanity than before. But I knew you’d sense me sooner or later. Your powers keep growing rapidly, you must realise it by now.

-I hadn’t sensed you, I picked up the trail of those two droids that are rampaging in the Valcro Zone.

-There must many of those tracks if they travel that much, and out of all of them, you chose these. Perhaps it’s subconscious.

-I still can’t follow old man.

-I should be calling you that;

-What?

-Wake up and look through your eyes. You’ve locked me up here, or rather you will, father.

-Anakin?

-Finally you see the truth.

-It can’t be, it must be some kind of trick… yet, I do sense it now. You are my son, but now that I know what I’ve done wrong, I’ll make sure this never happens.

-I’ll make sure I never have a father around to do this to me.

They started a fight. For a 3000 year old man, Anakin could fight rather well, he was definitely stronger than Luke, but John and Jack helped. The old man proved to be almost as powerful as the Titans, but he quickly got tired. He had used too much energy and collapsed. Luke’s fatherly instincts made him run at Anakin, but he was all right. They found his bedroom and led him there.

As the three amigos left the planet and the strange encounter, Luke made a promise to himself: he wouldn’t let it happen and he would return here to prove it had worked.

But when the ships were gone, Anakin stood up from his bed, “those fools really believed I got tired”. He went down into a laboratory and told his computer to look up the plans for #04 to #20 and for the masterpiece: Cell. “Soon my Titans and my other droids will make sure I rule the cluster!”

Part 2: Saragossa V

Special M-Tron agent Jim Johnson was still held at the prison planet. He was now a miner for croniton crystals, from which weapons could be made. He had been questioned for many months, but his will hadn’t been broken yet. As a Force-potent, he knew of a technique to shield him from much pain, but not all.

But he wasn’t allowed to sleep much and they never let him meditate or do any other kind of exercise. He wouldn’t hold out much longer and he would be vulnerable to the physical and mental tortures, performed by the sadistic Bully Junior himself. Because he also had Force powers, he sensed Jim was almost ready to snap, so he ordered to put him in an isolation cell.

Elsewhere on the planet, a riot broke loose among the prisoners; several random but very gruesome executions over the last week had driven them almost mad. They had put explosives in the mineshafts of the volcano on which the main control building was located, including the isolation cells. The blasts didn’t do much damage, except for a few holes in the walls, fortunately, it also freed Jim. While the uprising was dealt with, Jim hid in some abandoned tunnels. There he met the man who had started the little insurrection: a bounty hunter who was put here after he had refused to turn in his brother, Obi-Wan Kenobi. Kin-Do Kenobi was the only one who had ever survived one of the executions by lava; when he was dropped in the stream, a small rock broke loose and captured his fall, only a small amount of lava had splashed onto one side of his body. He had a mechanical arm, leg and some mechanics hiding a small part of his face.

They fled deeper into the tunnels when they heard a patrol nearby. Kin-Do wanted to show Jim the real reason there was a prison mining facility on this planet. They walked until they came to a wall, it was clearly artificial and had a few writings on it, but neither could read it. Kenobi explained what he had found: “The mine is just a cover-up, they are looking for something underground. They stopped mining in these tunnels because they believed it wasn’t here, but I’ve found a secret passage to an underground room, filled with scrolls in our language, talking about the use of the Hypno-Crystal, it seems it was never meant for the Matrix, but as a power source for an ancient device, made up by four rings, which have to be created by an equal amount of blue diamonds and sacred texts. All of them are hidden separately, this room holds one of the diamonds, the diamond of time.”

Suddenly, a nearby rock started to turn to a silver grey liquid and then transformed into the Imperial Titan. He found the diamond and transported it to the surface, where a ship stood ready to collect it and bring it to the Emperor.

Trying to escape from the red droid, Jim and Kin-Do fled deeper and deeper into the tunnels, into a hall, filled with crystalline cronitons. All of a sudden, the ground started to shake and Jim and Kin-Do were beamed away, when orbital fire came down on the planet, making the crystals explode. The Titan tried to fly away, but he got surrounded by the enormous energy which started to break him apart. There was no place for him to let at least one nano probe escape to recreate him, the Imperial Titan was completely destroyed. Together with the remaining imperial officers and Bully junior, they were the first to die without returning to the computer of the Empire. It had been 4 and a half months since the destruction of the Hypno-Crystal, and by the end of the Year of Chaos, this condition would have spread over the entire ex-Matrix. The prisoners were all beamed aboard a Star Destroyer, operated by rebelling Storm troopers, who didn’t like the idea of being replaced by clones. They had taken over the ship and decided to free everybody from the most important prison of the Empire.

The explosions on the planet started to get out of control, all the underground croniton crystals were now releasing their enormous energy. It was so intense, the entire surface came loose and was propelled into outer space, the Star Destroyer was lucky it could avoid the large rocks. Saragossa V was reduced to a small planet, almost completely out of lava, with only its deep iron core still solid. 

When the ship had arrived at a secret location, Jim and Kin-do were given transports. Kin-Do headed for Valcronian territory and Jim for the Federation; the two new friends said goodbye and hoped to see each other again sometime.

Back in the capital, Jim was received as a hero, he was given a special medal by King Oz himself. The government held a special session to discuss the implications of the destruction of one of the Titans. Of course it was another major blow to the Empire, but they were afraid it would shift the balance towards Valcron. They also heard the news of the first “real” deaths; for now it was only located around the Saragossa system, but it would spread. Scientists were already calculating every possible speed and form of travel the borders of what they called the “death bubble” would make, which was difficult, because they didn’t know how large the actual space between them and the Valcro Zone was. One thing was certain: Jonathan Valcro wouldn’t survive much longer.

Part 3: The Body

The Valcronian scientists were desperate to find a solution for Jonathan. They had tried extreme magnetic and gravitational fields to keep his soul inside a biological body. They had tried to make a body that used the crystalline structures of the special droids they had created for him. Then they came up with an idea: the reason his soul had left his body was because the Matrix wouldn’t allow such great energy within a life form. Luke was able to get back into his because he had powered down and because his body was pure, but now they believed that even his body would not be able to contain Jonathan’s soul. But without the matrix, it would be possible to enter a body, the only thing they had to find, was a species that could handle the stress of his energy and then take it to the border of the “death bubble”, Jonathan could feel were it was, because he ceased to exist at its borders, and then enter it. After a lot of genetic engineering, they created a young male body, which could host Jonathan, outside the Matrix.

On his personal request, it looked nothing like his former self, there wasn’t even anything Valcronian about it. The genetics were concealed, so that a generic DNA test would show it to be human. He was planning to infiltrate the U.L.F. and get close to his son. He would pose as a Jedi and take over the Federation from within. He didn’t mind if they would conquer Valcron or the Empire, he would reveal himself after the deciding battle he been planning for years. The battle the U.L.F. had lost and which Luke was sent back for.

If the Valcronian fleet would be more powerful, he would join his family and destroy the U.L.F., if the federation’s ships would have more power, his brothers deserved to loose and he would take control of those ships and use them to destroy them. Either way, he would get control.

Jonathan always had a black and white mind, he didn’t think of the many resistance groups and still believed the U.L.F. was weak at hearth. It was because of his son, a Valcro, that they had gained so much strength. He still believed in Valcronian superiority, they would rule all who were weaker and destroy all who opposed him. He would make everybody believe he was a god, so none questioned him. He would rather rule a universe that was empty, except for himself, than to rule over an empire with rebels.

Valcronian ships secretly travelled to the Empire, to get to the border of the bubble; the lifeless body was placed on a table, Jonathan had to enter the body at the exact moment the border would come over the ship.

It was a success; they had moved the ship, so that the bubble would pass only slowly over it. Unfortunately, their transwarp trails had been spotted by a local Imperial ship. They couldn’t escape the Star Destroyer and after a small fight, the troopers boarded the ship.

Darth Bully himself came aboard. Seeing Jonathan in his Jedi outfit, he thought that they were rebels and blamed them for the loss of the Titan. This was a perfect moment for Valcro to test his powers in his new body, the only problem was that he didn’t have a lightsabre. He avoided the strikes of Bully, who had already killed the scientists. Jonathan feared for his life: the ship had stopped and the bubble could pass any moment, he couldn’t win, but had to be killed before it would be permanent. He quickly asked the computer to self destruct and threw himself on Bully’s sabre, before the ship blew up.

Jonathan’s soul, with the code for his new body imprinted, was transferred to the computer of Empty-head’s resistance, but Bully was truly killed, the bubble had passed the ship at the moment it exploded.

Empty-head’s men weren’t surprised to see this Jedi, when they reanimated him. The last years they had been transferring many souls to their computer, so any killed rebel would not be kept in the computers of the enemy.

The unknown teenage knight introduced himself as Johnny Orclav and requested to join the Jedi of the U.L.F. to learn how they had kept the Jedi principles in their millennium of isolation from the other Jedi, who had struggled for their survival in the Valcro-Zone. He met with the 3 amigos and Obi-Wan and asked if the Federation’s knights were more powerful, because they could train and meditate without the fear of being caught, or less powerful, because until recently they didn’t have the goal to defeat evil. They answered those two probably evened each other out, they had the same kind of powers.

For the first time ever, Jonathan stood inside the shields of the Capital Asteroid. He had lead many attacks on it, to test the U.L.F. and faked his defeat each time.

He explained to the other Jedi how he was killed, without telling them his real purpose of course.

They congratulated him for “defeating” Bully and then said goodbye, Johnny would join Obi-Wan in his travels around the peaceful colonies of the U.L.F. and the 3 amigos, who were the ministers of defence, were summoned for the debriefing of a special M-Tron agent.

Part 4: Meetings

Special M-Tron agent Sam Darkner had scouted the UFO-province of Valcron and had discovered the location of the new Valcronian mother planet. It was still under construction, but the planet itself was ready, only the many buildings and the artificial rings hadn’t been built yet. The 3 amigos would travel to it and find out when it would be ready and if possible, learn if the fleet Luke had warned them about would still be formed.

At the same time, the Valcronian High Council had a meeting; they believed Jonathan had been permanently killed. They now had no one to answer to and were the highest power in Valcron. They had to rule it together without arguing and keep the death of their master a secret, because it would tear Valcron apart. Until they decided who would be Jonathan’s successor, they would have to act like they always had, all plans continued: the construction of New Valcro Prime and bringing together a fleet, to attack the U.L.F. around September. To get the ships needed for this assault, they would have to fall back behind the Badlands, in the Smallbot war. Two thirds of all bots in the first galaxy would come together at the wormhole that connected the two galaxies, at the other side, half of all the Smallbots in the second galaxy would wait for them and together they would proceed to the east, to the gathering of the capital ships, south of New Valcro Prime. From the north, a joined group of clone and normal fighters (men recruited by the Computer virus) would come from Sharkthoot’s province and through another wormhole that connected it with the Virus’ province in the first galaxy. This group would first rendezvous with the Smallbots at New Valcro Prime and together they would go south to the capital ships, who would be gathered sooner. Because Thrawn had collaborated and Erick, who was the new fleet-admiral, was called to join the fleet, the remaining fleet of the Smallbot war was now left under direct control of the Beta Droid, who was ordered to start the retreat.

When this news reached the Smallbot Queen, she was very displeased, Smallbots are no AI! She had invented the bots as a means for battling without actually getting killed, your soul would directly be transferred back into the computer and then into your body, but Valcron had used the souls of deceased citizens and demoted officers (they start at the highest level and when they fail a task, get transferred in a droid and eventually in a Smartbot or even a Smallbot, but those were normally reserved for civilians and killed prisoners). Those souls had lost all forms of awareness and were just used to give the bots some sense and creativity. The queen had no choice but to obey the Valcros, but now the souls of the destroyed Smallbots would be lost forever. She herself had died a long time ago; she now lived inside a an android, which projected a hologram of her former self, a very beautiful woman, earning her the nickname of “Femme Fatale”, combined with her “teasing” way of talking to her adversaries. In the end, all Smallbots would listen to her, not to the other Warlords, not even to the Council members; with such a large group of bots, the largest ever, meeting up with all the most important Valcros, she thought she could kill the leaders of Valcron and convince other non-organic warriors or rather slaves, like the androids and the Agents to join her in her cause to overthrow Valcron and rule it together.

She called a meeting with the two droid leaders and Red Sincam, leader of the Valcronian Agents. They were not ready to betray the Valcros but wouldn’t tell them about her plans. If she would attack the capital ships and clones and others, the droids and Agents would neither help nor attack the Smallbots, in return she promised she wouldn’t attack them either. In fact they created a peace treaty before the civil war began.

The Beta Droid didn’t want to attack Valcron, but was not happy with giving up his territory to the Empire; in fact he wasn’t sure what he would order his droids if the Smallbots decided to betray the fleet…

Part 5: New Valcro Prime

The 3 amigos still had weeks of travelling to do before they reached the artificial planet, because Sam had created his vortex outside the province. They had to pass a planet of the Toa, a planet with one climate, representing the powers of the Toa that controlled it. They had to go past the planet of Tahu, Toa of fire, and decided to pay him a visit.

When they landed, Tahu was just about to leave, he told them he had no time to waist, Lewa, Toa of air, had been attacked by Bohrok. He had just battled some in the very south of the second galaxy and had found out they could throw their Krana to attach themselves to and probably take over a body.

He also told them they should go to that uninhabited area and find a forest planet, to look for the last of the Éoleff, Yoda, an ancient Jedi master who had been hiding there since the beginning of the Matrix. After these strange directions, Tahu said goodbye and used his powers to instantly go to Lewa’s planet. The 3 amigos actually wanted to ask the Toa to join them when they would attack Valcron, but they agreed that they were probably better of with them as “guardians”, who were stopping the Bohrok.

As they continued their journey to New Valcro Prime, John and Jack told Luke all the legends
 they had heard about the Éoleff. These days, they are thought to exist only in myths, they are always described as elves or faeries; some stories go as far as saying they created the Jedi. Nobody believed in those legends anymore, Luke still wanted to check it out, but only after the birth of his son, which was only one and a half month away.

When they passed the south of the planet’s location, they noticed a large number of shuttles and cargo ships with fuel docked at a small platform. They wanted to check it out, when a mother ship, together with 5 brand new warships, which looked smaller but more powerful, came out of warp. A few of the shuttles left the docking platform and picked up the pilots of the 6 ships. None other than Jonathan’s brother Ufon had flown the mother ship. Some droids parked the ships at the platform and refuelled them, the shuttle warped away.

When the amigos left too, they just noticed some one man fighters entering the scene too. They realised the fleet was indeed being formed and this would be the gathering point. This key information was transmitted to the U.L.F.; they now knew where to strike.

A few hours later, they arrived at New Valcro Prime. Unlike its predecessor, this was a blue and green planet, no electric atmosphere and only 3 metallic rings, with only one complete. Scans indicated that a massive subway system and an enormous, incomplete tower were the only signs of technology on the surface. When they flew to this tower, they were amazed how real the landscape looked; they would never have guessed it was made out of asteroids. The tower was build against the side of a mountain, with an exit on the valley and one on the plateau of the hill. Near the unfinished top, there was a landing platform, but they didn’t need one; they could put their ships in a transporter loop, inside a special chip they carried, the same chip that gave them a personal (weak) body shield and a personal cloak. They landed and “looped” their ships. Cloaked, they entered the building.

The battle with the fleet would happen in this sector of space, so if they secured this planet afterwards, it would be the perfect spot for a permanent wormhole. The amigos gathered as much information as they could: the location of droid patrols, which corridors had shields, security systems, rooms with weapons, etc.

After some research, they arrived at the top exit, on the plateau. The exit was very large: it had a row of 15 pillars, each of them going up for at least 30 meters. The plateau itself was covered with grass and a few shrubs, in the distance, they could see some trees. The surface must have been taken from other planets, because the vegetation could not have gotten this large for the time the planet had existed; they could even hear birds. If this was going to be the centre of free space in the Valcro-zone, the tower could become a great Jedi temple. They walked across the grassland and almost had to laugh when they noticed the shrubs were decorated as the Valcronian “V”.

They got passed the trees and sensed another presence. They entered a forest and saw Ufon, meditating, without his armour. It was the first time they saw the Valcro without it and could now see his face: greenish yellow, rather transparent, with technology attached too and inside it. But Luke could still see it was his family, they had the same nose.

The 3 amigos made no sound, but Ufon had sensed them; he knew he had no chance against three powerful Jedi, especially without his armour, so he pressed a few buttons and was beamed away.

From above came a Force attack, decloaking John, Jack and Luke. It was the Valcronian Titan!

Part 6: The End of #03

Luke fired lightening at the droid, but he deflected it, without causing much damage to himself. He shot a ball off energy at John, but he could Force-push it back at the Titan. Distracted by avoiding his own blast, he was sliced into two pieces by Jack’s lightsabre, which he had thrown into the air. The 3 amigos did not (yet) have the ability to fly, Palpatine and the Titans were the only ones they knew who knew the technique. Instead Luke used the Force to jump into the droid, while it was putting itself back together, he could now successfully use the lightening, which started destroying the droid, but he could escape to space. The 3 friends got into their ships and fired a few croniton torpedoes at him, but a few Smallbots took the blasts for him. The Titan warped out of the system and John, Jack and Luke had to dispose of the bots. They decided not to pursue him, nor to stay, because the construction ships and other Smallbots had been alerted to their presence. They cloaked their ships and decided to head back to a spot where they could open a vortex; they had gathered enough information.

The Titan had repaired himself and was flying to a neutral base, to view some technology he could copy. He decided to visit the HQ, east of the galactic centre, but when he was near it, he noticed an Imperial cargo ship, with black metal. Following it, he found the construction site of the Black Star. He transformed himself into particles of the surrounding nebula, to stay unnoticed. Unfortunately for him, the advanced sensors of the Black Star had already seen him. The imperial commanders decided it was time to test one of the beams that would later join with others to create the main, planet destroying weapon. This beam was croniton based and was now fired at the nebula. In a great green flash, the nebula imploded and the surrounding ships fled from the shockwave. The star destroyer noticed some residual individual nano probes. They couldn’t do any harm on their own, except if they came in contact with matter, then they’d be able to replicate. To be on the safe side, the ships fired some croniton blasts at them. In the opposite direction, however, one probe still existed. The Titan was neither death nor alive, his soul was now trapped inside a single subatomic particle, which would be useless, unless it came into contact with a substance. It would be almost impossible for the little probe to come in touch with anything in the void of space, but the remains of #03 was headed in the direction of… #01!

Part 7: Birth

When the amigos were back at Capital Asteroid, it would only take 2 more weeks until the birth of Anakin. Luke and Sofie had decided to a quiet retreat on Colony 5, also dubbed “the forest colony”, which was located in the same system. Luke never had a childhood; because Anakin was a Valcro and the Matrix was still active, he knew his son’s would be very short. He still remembered the encounter with the twisted version of Anakin, he wouldn’t let that happen, he would make the best of the time they had, but already begin to instruct Jedi lessons, without lying to him.

Luke and Sofie were happier than ever. They had been married a bit more than a year now and still remember it vividly: members of Ice, Tron and Space Police had been there. She had worn a special ceremonial version of her uniform, so had he; they’d walked a red carpet, on both sides, M-Trons and Space Police officers held up a bayonet, under which they walked to the royal castle. King Alex Oz had performed the ceremony himself. “Who gives this woman?”, he had asked, and Timothy had replied, it was the only time he had cried, besides at the times when his wife and his brother Frank, John’s father, had died, but now it had been tears of joy. “Who gives this man?”, this time, Robotica Valcro, Luke’s uncle had replied. They then exchanged vows:

-My wonderful Sofie, other Valcros have many stars and planets, my father has got 2 galaxies, but not even a million galaxies compare to what I’ve got: your love. Sofie Ice, I want you as my wife, may I be your husband?

-My wonderful Luke, I have power in the U.L.F., I’m its president and chief of its Space Police. Wars can be started or stopped with my command, but not even divine powers compare with what I’ve got: your love. Luke Valcro, I want you as my husband, may I be your wife?

After their vows, they had put rings around each others finger and King Oz said: “I now pronounce you husband and wife, may the Force be with you and bless this marriage.”

Now, a year and a few weeks later, a token over their never-ending love would be born.

Luke and Sofie were watching fireworks, in celebration of the 950th anniversary of the U.L.F. and the fifth year since the awakening (although it had been 4 months since New Year). Suddenly Sofie’s contractions started, her water broke. She couldn’t be beamed in her condition, so an ambulance ship came to pick them up. In the Colony 5 Zoblue Memorial Hospital, Sofie gave birth to Anakin.

Chapter6: The Year of Chaos3:

Destiny

Part 1: Young Anakin Valcro

T

hey decided not to introduce him to the public immediately, only family and friends were allowed to visit. Sofie’s sister Sarah would be Anakin’s godmother and because Luke couldn’t choose between his two best friends, he chose Robotica to be godfather. His full name would be Anakin Sarah Robotica Ice Valcro. They had chosen Valcro over Ice to be his last name, even though it had a negative connotation, while the Ice family was much respected.

It would take only two months for Anakin to reach the looks of a teenager, so Luke and Sofie stayed with him during that time. Luke explained to him the dangers of the dark side, and how he had been lured to it and how his evil side Darth Vader was still out there, causing havoc. They called for Obi-Wan to teach Anakin the basic Jedi lessons and to train him. Because he grew so fast, Anakin remembered every lesson and was very perceptive of the Force. Anakin showed to favour mathematics and physics over other sciences or languages; it seemed he had inherited his mother’s intelligence and his father’s strength.

Johnny Orclav had been training with Anakin, because he wanted to see his first grandson. He pretended to develop a friendship with him, or at least pretended in his mind, because Jonathan Valcro really enjoyed their time together and even felt sorry he couldn’t tell Anakin that he was his grandfather.

After two months, Sofie and Luke introduced the public to Anakin, who looked like a 12 year old Human or Calamarian with dark blond, light brown hair, blue eyes and yellow skin. He wore a dark brown Jedi uniform and was appointed as Obi-Wan’s student. They would travel to a few safe places in the Valcro-Zone. First they would visit Coruscant, the Jedi hiding there and of course, his aunt Anita Ice. They would then visit Jaridia and Jolia. Jaridia had an important resistance cell, which would help the U.L.F. in their most important battle in September. Jolia was also controlled by Jaridians, yellow humanoids with long necks, but it was a holiday resort, which offered a beautiful night view of nearby nebulas; on this planet they could meditate and relax. Last on their list was Tatooine, a desert planet, where they would hold survival training, together with another Jedi pair: Master Dooku and his pupil Jade. They didn’t know Jade’s first name, was Mara…

Part 2: The Flagship

The U.L.F. hadn’t been still during that time, far from it even: the construction of the Ice mother ship, the flagship of the Federation: the ULS Spirit, was complete.

With 14 antimatter torpedo turrets, 4 croniton torpedo turrets, 6 quantum phazers, 4 rapid laser antennas, 2 normal laser antennas, a cloaking device with two backups, 12 antimatter mines, the newest shields, a tractor beam that could be used to scrape enemy shields and a crew of 18, this ship was the most powerful ship in the known universe, although its size and crew were still microscopically small compared to an Imperial Star Destroyer. The crew consisted of 14 members of Ice: Captain (and vice-president of Ice) Timothy Ice, first commander (and high officer of Ice) Erick Johanson, chief science (and high officer of Ice Energy) Piper Ice, an Ice Energy officer, Doctor Jerry Perk and nine Ice officers; 2 Blacktrons: chief engineer (and Blacktron high engineer) Bob Neil (Jack’s older brother) and a regular engineer; 1 M-Tron: second commander (and special M-Tron agent) Jim Johnson; 1 Space police officer: chief security Femke Darkner.

Together with several new one-man fighters, the Spirit was now located at a three border point: just outside the UFO province, south of New Valcro Prime (which was located in Thorn Valcro’s space) and north-east of Abbat Valcro’s space. They had set up a base from where they could attack the fleet and which could serve as an emergency location for the wormhole, if they would be defeated.

More fighters were joining the U.L.F. fleet, including a few resistance ships, mostly Jaridian. Luke had also gone to this place, because he would take Tahu’s advice and search for the mysterious Yoda; he would travel south until he would find him. But to avoid the area of space contaminated by #01, he would have to fly through space of the ruthless Lord Abbat.

Part 3: Importance of the Smallbots

Valcron was also gathering its fleet: all Valcronian forces below the Badlands had to draw back. The Empire could expand its territory with what had been Thrawn’s and the Beta Droid’s space. Ironically, it was now under Thrawn’s control again.

In exchange for these territories, the Empire and Valcron signed a new peace treaty: the Empire would not try to attack Valcron beyond the badlands, which would form a neutral border between the two Empires. The Smallbot War was over

Thrawn was promoted with the extra titles Consul and Grand Moff, putting all the gained space under his command. He was now third in command in the entire Empire: only Vader and Palpatine were above him, much to the dismay of other Grand Admirals, Grand Moffs and Consuls, who had been in the Empire for many more years than Thrawn.

Some disgruntled officers even joined the rebellion of storm troopers who secretly rebelled against the clones who where replacing them. Commander Andrew Jerjerrod was the highest officer who joined them; being the right-hand man of Grand-Moff Tarkin, he could make the sabotage of several missions possible and even let several Valcronian refugees escape, among them a few droids, who would not forget his help. Jerjerrod dismissed major evidence of the forming fleet of Smallbots heading for the wormhole and indirectly decided the outcome of the upcoming battle between the U.L.F. and Valcron, because the bots would be a major factor.

Unfortunately, he also allowed the escape of a Smallbot carrying information about the gathering Federation fleet and their flagship, it even contained scans of the cloaking device.

Because the Empire had a much tighter grip on its systems, the U.L.F. scouts had to evacuate the area. Ace Erdam was one of them; he was testing the new Space Police fighter. After safely getting to the other side of the badlands, he ran into the Smallbot carrying the important data. They where both travelling at maximum transwarp, so he couldn’t catch or destroy it; instead he decided to follow it. After a few hours it appeared Ace’s speed was just a bit larger, he was catching up with the bot; he only hoped he’d be able to destroy it before it would reach its destination. Ace found it very peculiar that the Smallbot hadn’t gone to the nearest Valcronian outpost, it also wasn’t headed for the area’s capital planet, but towards a small ship located in open space. Ace could attack the bot just in time and thought he had prevented the leak of important information, but he was wrong: the Smallbot had transmitted its data to the ship, which was under command of the Beta Droid. This Lord had just lost all his remaining territory to the Empire. He decided to keep the information to himself and contacted the Smallbot Queen to inform that he would join her plan.

Part 4: Lord Abbat Valcro

The Capital Planet of Abbat’s territory was dubbed “Tower Planet” because it had a massive structure reaching all the way into space. The planet itself was inhabited by humans who were made to forget their history in space and who were forbidden the use of automated machines. The people worshipped Abbat as their one and only God and were forced to give him half of all they produced. Those humans didn’t know anything about what was going on in the rest of the universe, but everybody in the Valcro Zone knew about the famous “Tower Wine”. In fact Obi-Wan and Anakin were drinking it on Jolia!

All those who showed Force potential where taken to the tower as “chosen ones” and transformed into officers, but none where taken to serve the other Valcros, these officers were only used as servants for Abbat: in his tower, or on his space yacht, which he used to gather taxes on other planets under his command. Illegal trespassers were destroyed without questions, making this area of space rather empty of fly-routes, except for certain trade routes to the Tower Planet. This strange phenomenon was seen by Luke, who decided to visit the planet. When he investigated the Tower, he noticed the great amount of weapons the structure had and of course he couldn’t help himself from finding out a way to disarm them. Unfortunately for him, an alarm went of when he was mingling with the wires of the planetary weapons. A sensor beam in the hallways deactivated his body cloak and Luke had to slice his way through droids and officers until he reached the central chamber of the Tower. There was no way out: the room was a Holo-chamber and could produce the illusion of an endless landscape. Luke found himself in a great desert, even when he fired Force-lightening the walls weren’t visible. The temperature was rising quickly now and Luke thought this was a trap he could not escape, until he remembered he had his ship with him, it was “looped”. With one push of a button, the ship was rematerialised with Luke beamed inside it, immediately turning on the air-co. From his speakers he warned that he would use his powerful weapons, against which the chamber couldn’t defend itself. The holograms where turned of and using the sensors of his ship, he directly beamed himself into the control room of the building, looping his ship. There he killed the officers and proceeded through the main corridor, towards a large balcony from where Abbat was speaking to the people. The people requested more rain for there crops and with a push on a button, clouds where released from the Tower, which also served as a weather controlling device. It immediately started raining, but the men who had yelled at Abbat, demanding the weather, were struck down by lightening. “Let that be a lesson to you”, Abbat spoke, “I am a wise God, but not a forgiving one”. “You’re nothing more than a hypocrite!”, shouted the son of one of the killed farmers. The crowd was amazed by the boy’s courage, but stepped aside not to be hit by lightening themselves. But the kid stuck his hand into the sky and made the lightening beam miss his body. The kid clearly had Force powers. Abbat laughed as he pushed another button; the boy was beamed into the Tower. “He will be the next chosen one”, proclaimed Abbat and told the people to return to their homes as the storm became heavier. Luke had gone back to the control room, where he could see on a monitor that the boy had been taken to a room next to his: a transformation room. A large flash was visible through the cracks of the door and Luke could hear screams of pain.

The large door opened and a new officer stepped outside. Even his mother wouldn’t recognise him after these changes. He attacked Luke, who was forced to kill the poor boy, but not without pain in his heart. Behind him Abbat was laughing, but Luke kept cool, because he had been split from his evil side, although he could still feel the dark side in him. He now realised Darth Vader should still feel the light side too.

Abbat and his three best officers attacked Luke with lightsabres. Luke’s skill was now so great, he could easily defend himself from all of them. He killed the officers and cut off Abbat’s right arm, which he had used to handle his lightsabre. Luke proclaimed his victory but Abbat’s suit was already reforming his arm when he beamed himself to his yacht and escaped. The Tower was set to self destruct and all the officers, droids, agents and intergalactic merchants where fleeing as the computer voice started the ten minute count down. Luke decided to stay because the people below had no way of escaping the explosion of the enormous building, which would leave debris over the entire continent! After looking through some buttons, he found a way to transport the local settlements to the other side of the planet, which had a similar climate. After saving the people, he contacted the fleeing merchants, who were rather neutral, to explain the truth to the exploited civilisation. Luke then continued on his journey, he had now cleared the UFO-province and was on his way to the fading border of the Matrix.

It is said that Tower Wine of late 5005 tasted better than the rest of the stock, because it had a first taste of freedom in it.

Abbat realised the real threat of the U.L.F. and didn’t feel like dieing, so to escape from having to join the fleet, he faked his own death the next day.

Part 5: A Greater Evil

Luke felt that he was near Yoda’s planet, but didn’t sense Yoda himself. His sensors could now penetrate the borders of the Matrix and an enormous amount of information of the trillions of galaxies that were behind it was gathered in his computer. He also noticed a second border behind the first one, which used to be a chamber to hold the Bohrok. The ship’s sensors noticed a fleet of tens of thousands Bohrok lying still, with a few hundreds travelling at normal warp speeds towards the 3 nearby systems (he was now near the border of the galaxy, so star-systems were sparse there). He could get to any of those systems faster than the Bohrok, but then the two other groups would reach their locations. Luke tried to meditate: he sensed one system had no life; another system had a planet with a civilisation that was near an industrial revolution; the third system had a planet with no intelligent life, but with a thick jungle, where he sensed his target: Yoda.

Luke made the decision to help the planet with the intelligent civilisation. He had heard a single Jedi could defend himself against about a hundred Bohrok, so the greatest of all Jedi should be able to destroy the fleet that was heading towards his planet.

When Luke attacked the Bohrok, they proved to be excellent warriors: they could avoid many blasts and could defend themselves against quantum phazers. Anti matter and cronitons were too powerful for them, but their great numbers worked in their advantage: they had surrounded Luke’s ship. He quickly came up with a strategy: he fired a croniton blast and made it stand still using the Force, next he transwarped for the shortest amount possible, letting the croniton blast explode with tachyon particles, transforming them into cronotons, which formed a deadly vortex from which the remaining Bohrok could not escape. Luke’s engines where just powerful enough to get away, but he did get caught in a temporal distortion, which worked in his advantage: he arrived at the system of Yoda’s planet before the Bohrok did and repeated his strategy, only this time he decided to reverse the polarity of the croniton blast, so the two temporal distortions would lift each other up.

He now flew to Yoda’s planet and checked the planet’s conditions: high amount of vegetation: high humidity, nitrogen and oxygen atmosphere and a gravitational force of about 1 g: a perfectly normal planet…

Part 6: Yoda

When Luke beamed down, he felt very heavy and had trouble breathing, which was abnormal, because of the standard gravity. When he walked through the thick jungle, he tried to move some of the vegetation away with the Force, but it didn’t work! Now Luke started to panic, he couldn’t use the Force: he didn’t sense anything anymore and apparently he had been unconsciously using the Force with every move, it had become second nature to him.

In an effort to reach out to the Force, he sat down and started to meditate. He thought back to the time he did this with John and Jack and remembered how he felt the Force back then. After a few minutes, he started to feel it again, being attracted by the life around him. He figured that, although he still couldn’t use it, he would be able to sense the Force attracted by the powerful Yoda. Then the realisation came that, if he could learn how to use the Force on a planet that repelled it, he would be dramatically stronger in the rest of the universe!

Luke suddenly sensed a great power and turned around to see an old little green man with pointy ears.


-I sense that you have found out the secrets of my planet.

-How could you have gotten behind me so fast, I only sensed you a moment ago?

-I come from a time when the Jedi were much more powerful and even though both the Matrix and this planet make it a lot harder to use the Force, I still know all the techniques from the ancient days. Now tell me, young man, why are you here?

-Master Yoda, we are on the verge of destroying Valcron and retaking much of the Valcro Zone, there are already hundreds of Jedi, including many of the U.L.F., a free state in another part of this Matrix, which will fade in a month. I am here to ask for your guidance to recreate a republic and to bring strength into the new Jedi order. I’ve brought a device with me, which can instantly transfer information into souls, but after its initial use, we found out it can only be applied once for each soul.

Luke gave the device to Yoda, who learned what had transpired during the last years. Yoda agreed to join Luke and train him and other Jedi, but had to disappoint Luke in one thing: he was now more powerful than anyone in the Matrix, but because of his age, powering up would mean his death. During their travel to the fleet, Luke told Yoda some more personal things and their secret plans about attacking the Valcronian fleet, which hadn’t been stored in the device for security reasons and Yoda told Luke about some forgotten techniques, such as actual flight, moving faster than the eye can see and many ways to use the Force for the creation of beams and blasts, he also explained that without the Matrix, Luke would be able to transform, like his grandfather had told him. He sensed Luke was already very powerful in the Force, but he hadn’t achieved his greatest triumph yet.

They stopped at the Tower Planet, to see if the relocation of the farmers (including their fields) had gone without too much trouble. He also gave them the device, to let them understand what was going on in the Valcro Zone.

When the two Jedi arrived at the fleet, they were welcomed by Obi-Wan and Anakin, who looked a few years older. They had been through some adventures of there own…

Part 7: Training in the Desert

Obi-Wan and Anakin had gone to Tatooine, where they met Master Dooku and his apprentice Mara Jade. During their training in the desert, the two Jedi knights had taught their students how to slow down their metabolism through meditation, so they had a lesser need for food and water. They used the Force to search and dig for the water they did need.

Anakin wasn’t always focused on his training; he was rapidly going through puberty and had developed an attraction for Mara, a 19-year-old human, who was still too old for him, but he would be an adult in no time. Mara was flattered when she sensed the emotions of the young half-human, but was still shy, because he was a Valcro, part of the family they were trying to defeat.

After a week, the Jedi pupils got used to the harsh environment, but their training got cut short, because they received reports that Darth Seth was there, a Sith Lord who had been set free
 by Sharkthoot, when the U.L.F. was in his control, it had assured his place in the High Council and Seth too became much respected in Valcron.

Like many Valcronian delegates, the Sith Lord was on his way to the main base of the province, to witness the live holographic recordings of the fleet. When travelling past the desert planet, he had sensed the presence of the 4 Jedi and decided to pay them a visit, but luckily the pilot of Seth’s shuttle was a member of the resistance and warned them for the coming Sith. They received the exact location of where he would beam down and planted several mines. The group cloaked themselves a few hundred meters further to watch. But Seth had sensed the trap and while he was still rematerialising, he used the Force to hurl the mines into the Jedi’s direction, disabling their cloak. In a fraction of a second, a lightsabre battle began. Even though he was up against four enemies, the Sith Lord could deflect all of their swings; he kicked Anakin in his stomach, but the Valcro had learned Force lightening from his father and had combined it with a Force grip to develop a new technique, which surprised the stunned Darth Seth, who was knocked unconscious by the attack. The other Jedi congratulated Anakin for taking out one of the most powerful Sith ever; Anakin had truly inherited Luke’s strength.

Dooku and Jade put Seth in a special holding cell, from which he could not escape (or so they thought) and beamed to the shuttle to take him to a resistance base.

Anakin and Obi-Wan continued their training and went to a populated area to learn how to blend in. Later, in a reversal of teacher and student, Anakin taught his master the technique he had used on Seth. After the training, they had returned to the Federation’s fleet, where they waited for the return of Luke, who brought Yoda with him.

When they had told their story, Anakin received congratulations again; Yoda had known Seth more than 5000 years ago and remembered it had been a great loss when the powerful Jedi Master had left them to join the Sith. Seth had been killed by Palpatine before the creation of the Matrix, but he had bound his life to a mystical tablet, which Sharkthoot had used to resurrect him. Strangely, nobody of the U.L.F. or the Resistance had heard the news of his capture; the shuttle had never reached its destination!

But that was not of their concern right now; the last capital ships had joined the Valcronian ships, and the fleet of smaller ships and the armada of thousands of Smallbots would arrive in less than a day. The fleet of the United Lego Federation was making its final preparations too. The time had arrived…

Part 8: The Battle of the Great Fleet

The Federation’s strategy was clear: they would attack with four groups: the first group would decloak the Valcronian fleet head on and start the battle, they would knock out several holes. The second group would then decloak at the other side of the fleet, so they could surround the islands of ships they had created. The 3rd group was the surprise group: the Spirit and some powerful Resistance warships would deliver the last blow to the confused fleet. The last group would directly proceed to New Valcro Prime to destroy the ground troops. Afterwards the different groups would orbit the planet to await the arrival of the other fleets so they could use possible orbital weapons in the artificial rings.  During that time, other resistance cells would conquer strategic bases and their home planets, which were left relatively unguarded because most ships were fighting in the great fleet.

The Valcronian capital ships were preparing to travel to the planet for their rendezvous with the two other fleets, when they were surprised by the decloaking first wave, but because they felt superior to the U.L.F. fleet (compared to the first group, they really were), they attacked the ships at point-blanc range. The Federation’s fleet however, was equipped with the latest automatic avoidance software, making it possible not to get hit too much. The first wave divided itself into two groups, both destroying several ships and creating three islands of Valcronian cruisers, but the enemy still had the upper hand: the Federation’s ships were getting destroyed. At that point the second wave decloaked and together surrounded the divided fleet, which then used their secret weapon: a croniton phazer! It quickly knocked out several important ships. The remaining ships all targeted the vessel that had been surrounded by the most protection: the mother ship of Ufon and Insectoz. The ship could not stand the massive blows and exploded before the Valcros could beam out. The senior members of the High Council were now irreversibly dead, along with several others of their family.

The fleets were now about equal in power, the Valcronian forces continued fighting even after the loss of their leaders.

The Spirit was coordinating the attack while cloaked, they decided this was a good time to participate in the battle and end it. The third wave swept through the remaining enemy ships and destroyed what was left of them.

At the same time, the 4th group was having a ground battle on New Valcro Prime. The Valcronian ground crew was relatively small, because the planet was not yet officially in use. The tower’s automatic defence capabilities were a bigger threat, but they were also quickly destroyed. A few warships had escaped the fleet and had gone to the planet, but were unpleasantly surprised to find the 4th wave of ships waiting for them.

The resistance cells on Egyptsei (the planet of the Mumifar), Jaridia, Jolia, Appallonnnia, Conia, Witeling Prime, Paragall, Universia planet and many more planets, had also overthrown the regime and were ready to take the power void the Valcros who had died in the fleet had left for them. Other Valcros were now very concerned: they had witnessed the battle that had destroyed their leaders and while some declared themselves sovereign leaders of their territories, others just started to panic and simply didn’t know what to do. But all was not lost: the Smallbots and small fighters still had to arrive; the U.L.F. would be no match for them.

The Federation’s fleet was now gathered at the planet, tomorrow it would be the 14th September 5005 ACM. They had to secure this planet to create a lasting vortex.

After an hour, the Smallbots and the small fighters arrived simultaneously. The U.L.F. had expected several thousands of bots, but they were shocked to see it were actually millions of them. They couldn’t handle this. From the other side about a hundred thousand one man fighters carrying droids, clones, Agents and mercenaries were also a menacing threat. Now the Federation’s fleet was surrounded and it didn’t look good; but they were completely stunned when the Smallbots completely ignored them and engaged the one man fighters, the droids were helping the bots and the Agents just watched the battle and flew away. This was the start of the Valcronian Civil War.

An officer droid transmitted something to the Spirit: it was a hologram of the Smallbot Queen. The image appeared on the bridge, before Timothy Ice. She said: “Take this planet and the areas your resistance groups have conquered, we will not engage you, but if you come near the territories we proclaim as our own, we will consider you our enemy. Greetings from Femme Fatal and the Beta Droid. Tell Luke I still owe him a drink.”

The droids and Smallbots destroyed the fighters in less than half an hour. At other places in the Valcro Zone they transmitted the same message; they didn’t attack their ships and went to fight their own battle for freedom.

Part 9: The End of the Matrix

From the main base of the Sharkthoot province, Red Sincam, Jonas Valcro and Sharkthoot himself had witnessed the destruction of their fleet and the betrayal of the droids and Smallbots. Jonas was furious that the Agents had fled instead of helping the clones and mercenaries. He drew his lightsabre and was about to attack Red, when Sharkthoot used an ordinary sword to chop of the Valcro’s head. “Finally the reign of those idiotic Valcros is over”, he said. Red Sincam wanted to shake Sharkthoot’s hand but he had a grin on his face, he chopped off the Agent’s right arm and leg and fled the space station. Being an Agent, Red had no organs or blood, but he was still mortally wounded; blue and green energy was coming out of the cuts. He believed that because the Matrix had been created by the death of millions of Agents and the Valcronian suits were made to cooperate with the Matrix, the armour should work with the agents too, even if the Matrix was as good as gone. He took the heavy suit of the death Valcro’s shoulders and put it on. In an instant it created a mechanical arm and leg for him and gave his silver hair, which all agents possess, to a shade of brown. Red had never felt better. The armour made him able to use all his hidden powers, without the side effects of the drugs, because they had no effect on his body. He decided to travel to the field of debris where the battle had taken place, and collect the remaining suits for his officers. He knew the Valcronian armour would not have been destroyed, because it was made out of black metal. Because it was so difficult to work with the material, there was only one suit for every Valcro under Jonathan’s command. He contacted the Beta Droid and the Smallbot Queen and offered them Valcronian armour in exchange for an alliance: they created the Non-Organic Companionship (the N-O.C.).

The U.L.F. had won the “battle of the great fleet”. They opened a Vortex outside the orbit of New Valcro Prime around its sun and went through to celebrate on the Capital Asteroid.

Yoda, Luke, Obi-Wan, Anakin, Johnny Orclav, John Ice and Jack Neil gathered on the planet, together with the Hypno Crystal. They sat around it, on the grass of the plateau, and started their combined meditation. They chanted a mantra together and their energy flowed to the Crystal, giving it an inner light, instead of the darkness that was visible in the original one. The air started to turn green, but the colour faded, except around the Crystal, where it got more intense until it was visible from space. The crystal levitated and suddenly the green flare was gone, but the light inside of it was still there. The Hypno Crystal was now an instrument of good and the Matrix was completely gone. The open Vortex had transformed into a wormhole and across the former Matrix the remaining Valcros felt their power drop, while the Jedi could feel their power increase. The Year of Chaos had ended and 5 millennia of darkness were now over, but the known universe had not yet seen it darkest days or its greatest chaos…

Chapter7: Change of Powers

Part 1: The Aftermath

A

fter the smashing victory of the U.L.F. and their allies; the remaining Valcros, the Computer Virus (who was now only an android), Sharkthoot and the N-O.C. all announced either their independence or proclaimed that they were now the rightful leader of Valcron. Ufon, Insectoz, Jonas and Erick Valcro had been killed during the battle; Thorn got killed a few days later by the rebelling Smallbot fleet; Jonathan and Abbat were also presumed death. The Alpha droid was killed by an agent after he proclaimed his never ending allegiance to the Valcros.

The Empire declared war against all non-Valcronian nations, but battles only took place in the narrow passage way of the Badlands, there was no successful invasion, because of the secret trooper rebellion.

The regions south of the core of the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone and several systems spread over the rest of the zone were now under U.L.F. and Resistance control, together they formed an area as big as the Federation. They agreed to form a mutual government after things cooled down, because there were still several battles going on; for now they would keep control over the systems they conquered. Existing trade routes were kept and new ones were invented, going through the stable wormhole, finally putting the original U.L.F. on the map. The massive traffic around New Valcro Prime and its central place in the freed space made it indeed the best location for a new Jedi temple and a local administration; it would also serve as a centre for refugees: the almost empty planet could be filled with buildings. Soon construction workers from all over the former Matrix (which should be called “the cluster”, according to Yoda) came to continue where Valcronian workers had stopped. The new regime had already boosted the employment rates and introducing many freedoms, resulting in large celebrations that lasted a week.

About ten days after the battle of the great fleet, 3 minutes of silence were observed for the men and woman who gave their lives. A shrine was erected on top of the tower, engraved with the names of the heroes that had died, including largely known people like Tina Thomson. After reading the 205 names, Luke said that the planet should keep its name, because he was a Valcro, as was his son and his uncle; New Valcro Prime should stand for the new, kind Valcros, in contrast to the old, evil ones and it should remind us of the bitter days of the past, so it would never be allowed again. Luke also stated that the fallen Valcronian forces should have been on the shrine, because any death is one too much and most of them were only tricked in participating in the battle.

The following days a poll was held in the free systems and the outcome concurred with Luke’s request for the planet’s name.

When all ceremonies had ended, the Jedi who had gathered on New Valcro Prime received lessons from Yoda, who also told historians the tales of ancient times, before the Matrix, of the creation of the Jedi, the fall of his race, the wars with the Sith and the following Golden Years; and from his lifetime, although 7500 years earlier: the Sirian Wars, which almost destroyed the Jedi, leaving the cluster vulnerable for the invasion of the Bohrok. He told stories about how he fought together with Palpatine, a “Saiyan” from another galaxy, who betrayed them after he created the Matrix
. This was the first time the Valcro’s race was mentioned, because Palpatine had never told it to his sons and had only told it a few times to the Jedi, when they worked together against the Bohrok. The truth was that Palpatine despised the name of his race, because their king had betrayed him
.

The Jedi learned to use the three elemental “forgotten powers”: a Force beam, a Force blast and flying. The most powerful among them also learned how to move extremely fast and how to boost or lower their energy output. Anakin, Johnny Orclav and the 3 amigos seemed to be the most skilled, except Yoda himself of course.

These Jedi were ready to teach what they had learned to their own apprentices and so began a new era…

Part 2: Evil Plans

Luke and his new student Johnny Orclav were travelling to New Valcro Prime aboard the Spirit, after they had delivered the Federation ambassador to Egyptsei.

The Valcro in disguise started to notice he was getting older more rapidly than he was meant to. It seemed this body would not be able to hold his soul even without the Matrix. The only thing he could still try was hijacking the Spirit, defeating Luke and taking his body to Valcronian scientists, to transfer his soul into his son’s body. After that he would be able to take over the U.L.F. as Luke and reform Valcron.

He waited until night, when most of the crew was sleeping, including Luke. Only four people were operating the Spirit now: Ice officers Katja Sterling and Kris Coolsaet, Ice Energy officer Ramon Barns and Blacktron Rick Faultrer. Valcro used the Force to silently kill them one by one; the others didn’t notice it, because they were out of each others line of sight. He then set the ship on a locked course to an uninhabited desert planet and waited for the main crew to wake up. He put the bodies of the dead officers into their beds, to keep his plan hidden for just a little while.

When the day shift took their stations, they noticed the controls were all locked and couldn’t deviate from their changed route. Valcro then killed the people in the back of the ship, which was noticed by Luke, who tried to stop Johnny, but the hallway was too small for them to fight and Valcro Force-pushed Luke and the crew to the front of the ship, rendering all of them, except Luke, unconscious. Jonathan killed the remaining conscious crew with lightening. He planned to go to the bridge next, but Timothy had managed to shield the passage, though he could not avert their present course and their best computer expert, Kris, had already been killed. The ship was now in the atmosphere and Luke was standing up, still a bit confused by hitting a wall of the ship. He had now figured out that Orclav was Valcro, spelled backwards and that he was dealing with his father. He told the survivors and Timothy was shocked to find out his son-in-law’s father was killing his crew. The former president and creator of Ice cursed Valcro, who did not take it lightly and was able to generate such a massive Force blast, that it destroyed the shields and killed the bridge personnel. It also overloaded the computer panels, sending the Spirit spiralling towards the surface, without the artificial gravity, making the two Valcros and the dead bodies fall to the nose of the ship. Luke used his power of flight to get to a row of computer panels, halfway in the ship, to stabilize it, while Jonathan opened the exit ramp in the middle of the ship and flew down to the surface. The resulting decompression made it difficult for Luke to operate the computers, but he managed to control the ship and land it. He beamed out to search his father while thinking of his next move. “I’m tired”, he said to himself, “of all these revelations”.

Jonathan was now meditating, to prepare himself for the fight with his son, but found himself somewhat conflicted, he had started to like the peaceful life, but these thoughts quickly withered away and were replaced with his ever-present hunger for power…

Part 3: The Return of a Titan

Meanwhile, on New Valcro Prime, the new spaceport had noticed the Spirit was no longer on course and not answering any hails. Sensing something was wrong, Sofie Ice took a ship to check on her father and husband.

When travelling at super luminal speed, she was surprised to see a humanoid figure outside her shuttle! The thing sabotaged her engines, putting the ship out of transwarp and making it crash on a small asteroid with an atmosphere. The strange being greeted her. It seemed human, but its face reminded her of both her son as her father, with the same white moustache and it was wearing a red hat, in the same shape as Valcro’s black cap used to be. It introduced itself as the reformed #03, which had been sent back to its creator by #01.

Sofie knew from reports that the Titans were vulnerable to Force blasts, so she fired at the android with everything she got, but her powers were nothing compared to that of the Valcronian Titan. The droid captured her and transmitted a signal, after which a strange beam, the same as the one that #01 had used to send Luke to his father, transported them to Old Anakin’s planet, where her son from an alternative timeline revealed his identity to her.

She had known about him through Luke, but was shocked to learn he was behind the Titans. Anakin had always admired his mother for her intelligence and had never blamed her for his banishment. In his lonely years he had idolised her, envisioning her as perfection. Now the strange affection for her had resulted in her abduction, he requested her help to escape the planet. In the future, the U.L.F. would find the secret scrolls and diamonds, like the one on the prison planet and make the four circles, which had mystical powers: they could make its users travel through space, time and between life and death, using the powers of the Hypno Crystal. The fourth ring was used to transmit the powers through the other circles.

His father had used them to get him to the past and imprison him on the planet, because the 4 circles combined held the power to grant any request. But because the time he went to contained a different Hypno Crystal, a malfunction made a temporary copy of the circles behind, to stay there until he would be visited again, which never happened. Anakin had used them to get his droids around the cluster. He could not undo his father’s request, because he didn’t have the Crystal near the circles.

The Old Anakin now had to get of the planet, before the invading Bohrok fleet would attack it, being afraid he was too old to stand up to them.

Sofie knew this version of her son was evil, but couldn’t refuse him, he was still her son.

As they walked to the circles, they were halted by Tahu, Toa of Fire, but his mask was gone, instead sprouting a Krana, he was now under the Bohrok’s control…

Part 4: Rematch

On the desert planet, Luke had found Jonathan. They were both powering up for battle, this time there was no Matrix to hold them back, this time there was no Matrix to revive them, this time it would be to the death.

They both quickly flew into the air, giving each other a massive blow, flinging them backwards, the second time they hit each other, they held on, kicking and punching and applying their martial arts in an all new way. Using all kinds of Force blasts, they delivered enormous blows to one another, sometimes even throwing each other into the rocks and sand below. Jonathan seemed more powerful until he made a few threats: he said he’d kill Sofie and make Anakin his new apprentice. He would take over Luke’s body and make the cluster his slave under Luke’s name.

Something snapped in Luke, like it happened before, but this time his anger and rage was not intervened by the Matrix, it focused his latent energies and created an exploding golden aura around him. His cap flew of and his hair turned upwards and was now blond instead of black.

The ground was shaking and several stones began to levitate because of the Force powers that grew inside Luke. Even the clouds seemed affected. The shaking stopped, the rocks fell back to the ground and his aura had stabilised.

Luke seemed taller and his muscles bigger. A turquoise glow appeared in his former brown eyes as he adjusted the red head band he had been wearing since his arrival.

Jonathan knew what had happened because it had been described to him by his father. Luke had transformed into a Super-Saiyan! Palpatine had achieved the same thing before he travelled to the cluster; he had used his powers to defeat the Bohrok and the Jedi, to create the Empire. But with the active Matrix, it was impossible to transform, because souls would just get out of their bodies, like it happened during their last fight. Jonathan knew that he was also powerful enough to transform, but he didn’t have any Saiyan DNA in his new body and it also required an emotional trigger.

The fight continued and Luke seemed to be winning. He was afraid to fall to the dark side, but he had complete control, he had truly achieved a balance in the form of this transformation. But while Luke was now the strongest, Jonathan had much more experience. Johnny used the Force to grab two large pieces of stone from the ground and smashed them together, with Luke in the middle, but even his aura was so powerful that it pulverized the rocks like they were just sand.

Luke’s strength was the most important factor now, because it was so much greater than Johnny’s, but Valcro drew his sabre and managed to give Luke a deep cut in his arm, but the wound seemed to be heeling rather quickly. At the same time, Vader was watching the battle in his meditation, he now knew he was betrayed; Darth Vader realised his suit was still only there to make sure he didn’t grow stronger than Palpatine. Saiyans have the ability to heal wounds, the Valcronian suits were meant to enhance and aid this power. While Luke was using his anger for his power, his counterpart used reason.

Father and son kept fighting in mid-air. With an enormous punch, Valcro was sent spiralling to the ground, from this height, it would surely mean his death. Luke hated his father, but it was still family, he followed Jonathan down and when he wanted to catch him, Valcro made his final plea: “don’t save me, let me die with my pride intact, I must admit, the time spent with my family was not unpleasant”. Luke still wanted to catch him, but Jonathan used his last powers to produce a flash of light, blinding Luke.

Jonathan fell to his death and the former ruler of Valcron was no more. Luke cried as he transformed back into his normal self. “Father!”, he finally yelled, completely devastated, both emotionally and physically.
When the drained Luke returned to the ship, he found the message “the President of the United Lego Federation has been abducted, sensors indicate that there was a strange energy surge pointing in the direction of the Forbidden Zone”.

Luke sent a message to New Valcro Prime, explaining what had happened and after freshening up, took his own ship and set course to the Forbidden Zone, to the planet of his son.

Part 5: Trouble on Coruscant

One of the few liberties that were granted to Coruscant was the free election of a governor for the planet. There were two leading candidates: Ken Lorren and Maixi To Badong. Both of them had a rather secret history as resistance leaders; when they had first decided to join a larger Resistance, they had decided to create an important position for each of the joining races: a General of the Resistance.

Ken and Maixi To had been important commanders of their unit, working directly under its leader Carn Follon. They both wanted the job as General of the Human faction and Ken had won. More recently, the inner council of generals later decided to choose a leader for the entire resistance out of themselves: again, General Lorren won.
Maixi To had been rather bitter since his defeat, and this important new title of his rival had made him even angrier. When making plans for the “Battle of the Great Fleet”, he had suggested attacking Valcronian factories, operated by civilians. The Generals reasoned that those innocent people were the ones they were trying to free, Badong became enraged after his idea was so quickly wiped of the table and left the resistance. The election on Coruscant would be his chance to take revenge.
During his campaign, Maixi was surprisingly supportive to the Imperial military, but less to its Sith leaders; he almost revealed his support for the rebelling troopers and officers, who had not joined Lorren’s and Empty-Head’s resistance, because the troopers still believed in the Imperial ideals, instead of democracy. Badong supported the idea of attacking the remains of Valcron, before they could pull themselves together.

Ken Lorren supported the idea of waiting until things cooled down, to get a clear look at the situation, because if the Empire would conquer the weakened leftovers of Valcronian forces, they would usurp the freed territories too; if the imperial military was left sleeping, they would be much easier to defeat.

Of course these standpoints were rather void, because the leader of Coruscant had no influence in internal Imperial affairs, but the people of the planet always chose someone who had the same ideas as themselves, even if those thoughts couldn’t be put into executable plans.
Maixi knew there were many influential people on Coruscant who were supportive of Ken, or who were key figures in the Resistance, he needed something to create sympathy for himself, and disgust for Lorren. He hired someone to shoot, but not kill him during a speech, and then he could blame it all on Ken.

The plan worked, but fortunately one of Ken’s close election advisors was a fellow resistance member: Anita Ice! She had seen quite similar techniques when her ex-husband grabbed power over the U.L.F. more than eleven years ago. Before Anita could gather the evidence against Badong, luck ran out.

An extreme follower of Maixi wanted to revenge the (fake) attempt on his life, jumped in an open air-speeder, in which Ken was making a parade, and blew himself up, killing everybody in the vehicle. Maixi To Badong was now the principal candidate and won the election a few days later. But the men in the car weren’t Ken and his close associates, it were doubles, to protect the real Ken. General Lorren now had to pretend he was dead, except to the people of his resistance.

He called for a meeting, to discuss the progress that had been made after one and a half months since the battle, but the meeting was called off, until the rescue of the President of the U.L.F., who was also the niece of his associate Anita…
Part 6: Sofie’s Rescue

Luke had been flying for over two weeks, when he arrived at the planet of the old version of his son. He realised that this Anakin must have had developed a mother complex.

He had also followed the news and personally insured Ken Lorren and his aunt (in law) Anita, that he would save his wife.
He landed his ship at the exact same spot as the last time. The door wasn’t cloaked, even though there were no storms. Luke searched through the home, but it was completely in ruins, in one room, a great fear was realised: he found plans of the Titans and other androids; it had been his son all along. But before he could examine them properly, he was attacked by a Bohrok! He quickly destroyed the machine and the Krana and went back outside. He could now sense many Bohrok on the planet, but also noticed three strange energies, which felt familiar, yet very alien. As he was contemplating his next move, a Toa materialised next to him: Pohatu, Toa of Speed and Sand. He explained to Luke that Lewa, Kopaka and Tahu had been taken over by Krana, and were leading the attack on this planet. Pohatu looked very different from what he remembered: his mask had changed, his arms seemed fuller, and he wore silvery armour. Pohatu now explained his appearance: all Toa were changed when the Matrix ceased to exist: they were no longer viruses, they were now real bionic beings, with true control over the elements; they were in fact much more powerful than before. But only three of the six Toa had undergone this transformation, the other three were on this planet, and had to bee freed. Shooting the Krana of their faces would be too dangerous, so Kopaka gave Luke a special silver mask, shaped like Tahu’s old one. It could be put over the Krana; it would absorb them and then fall off, to let the transformation take place…
At the other side of the planet, Anakin and Sofie where fleeing from the Bohrok and their unusual leaders. Sofie couldn’t fly as fast as Anakin, and they had to stop. She had mentioned that the Matrix had been destroyed, and Anakin now realised he could transform into a Super Saiyan again. He told his mother to take shelter.
Just like when Luke had transformed, the ground began to shake and a golden glow appeared around the old man, his white beard and eyebrows turned blond, and his eyes turned to a greenish blue, but Anakin’s transformation was much more violent than Luke’s: a large crater began to form beneath his feet, large thunder clouds appeared above them and when the transformation was complete, a wind blew all the debris into the air. Anakin destroyed all the Bohrok with only one blow, only the Toa were still standing. Luke had sensed that his son was now much more powerful than himself and wondered why. Pohatu reasoned that it was because Luke was incomplete, because he was split from Vader. If he would ever dare to challenge the emperor, he would have to fuse with Vader again, because Palpatine would be even stronger than the old Anakin.
Although those powers were indeed incredible, he was still no match for the three Toa. Lewa changed the weather and made it snow, Kopaka created Ice pins to attack Anakin, who easily vaporised the ice. Tahu then made the damp boil, burning Anakin, who sent energy through his aura, to make the steam go away. The awesome powers of the Toa made a strong impression on Anakin, who realised he couldn’t win. Unfortunately, he didn’t know the Toa could survive in space, because Anakin pointed his next attack directly to the planet, saying the cryptic words “it was my great-grandfather’s demise, and it will be yours”. Pohatu felt the planet breaking up, and tried to create sand to fill the cracks, but it didn’t work, he then summoned Onua, to create stone, but it was no use and Gali’s water powers would do no good either. They advised Luke to get off the planet before it was too late, but he insisted to save his wife and the other Toa.
He was racing towards the scene, where Anakin was still defending himself from the attacks of the Toa. Lewa had created several twisters and Tahu summoned Lava from the cracks that were forming in the ground; together they created fiery tornadoes. Anakin had created a shield bubble with the Force, but his old age made him exhausted very quickly. The last thing he could do, was trying to reach the circles.
He used his last powers to get past the Toa. Kopaka tried to stop him by creating a wall of ice, but he flew right through it. He managed to get to the circles and used them to get #03 to the planet. The Titan immediately attacked the Toa and his body could recover from the damage done by fire, weather and ice. He even absorbed the ice to create new nano-bots and splashed Kopaka’s face with them. The particles didn’t kill the Krana, but absorbed it into #03, in a similar way that #01 could. The knowledge of all the Krana that it was linked to was now his, this way he could predict any attack by the other Toa that were still under their control.
Kopaka now transformed into a more powerful being, he was now able to materialise ice out of nothing, instead of just controlling it. He created a cave around Tahu and Lewa, keeping them away from the elements they could control, but not yet create. It held them back long enough for Luke to arrive and use the mask on them. The Toa were freed and transported Luke and Sofie of the planet, leaving Anakin and the Titan to their fate.
The planet crumbled in a not so violent explosion and Anakin could hold on to a large rock that still had some atmosphere, but he was heavily injured. #03 decided to transform into a ship, to get Anakin to another planet. Now that his planet was gone, he could finally leave.
The energy of the explosion had made the circles use its powers on themselves, scattering them through the former Valcro Zone…

Part 7: The Afterlife

The members of the meeting had gathered and were already discussing certain items. The General of the Cerijin faction, son of a former leader of it and close friend of Ken, Dor Follon, was arguing that the destruction of the Matrix might have been a bad idea: they had lost many people and the Valcronian warlords were beginning to regain their strength, none of the victims could be revived without the Matrix. “That might not be true”, Luke and Sofie had arrived at the meeting. Luke explained the situation of the four circles, which were scattered. Several calculations should reveal the most likely courses. It was now imperative they found the circles before the enemy did, even though they had the crystal. If the circle of life (pun not intended) was found, they would be able to bring back people from the afterlife…
It was in this afterlife, where Jonathan now was. He had gone through a dark tunnel, with a light at the end. Two large doors opened and he landed on a curved, orange landscape. He felt very healthy and awake, although he was dead. Voices told him that he would have to pay or every evil deed he had ever done, until he showed real remorse. He would feel every pain, both physical and emotional, that he had ever caused on others. Jonathan started to reason with the voices:
-Every pain I ever caused was justified because I am the rightful ruler of the former Matrix and my victims defied me.

-They defied you because of your evil actions, your exploitation of innocents!

-Who are you anyway?

-We are all souls who have ever lived and who ever will live. You will join us when you are cleansed from your evil within.

-My activities would not be considered evil, if the cluster was populated with people who fully agree with my decisions. The civilians must be made to understand and believe that I am superior, and so is the rest of my family. We were destined to rule, and embraced that destiny, how can you judge us for it, for following our instincts. It’s all just a point of view and if you don’t take time to try and see things from my side, than you’re just acting hypocritical.

-We shall give you your dream: a universe under your reign, only with people that completely agree with you.
-Can you make me a full Saiyan too? Without the beard, and some younger looks?

-Whatever you want.

Jonathan now sat on a throne in a large room. Flags with the Valcronian symbol covered the walls. He called for a butler, but nobody came. He searched for food and eventually found some, but he didn’t know how to cook it. He decided to take some travel pills (full meals in a single pill that is completely absorbed, without any “waste”; they are taken by everyone who travels in a small ship, like Luke during his explorations in the Valcro Zone).
Valcro had a large royal yacht at his disposal, but there was no crew to operate it, so he took a personal ship and flew to Coruscant to give a speech. The ship arrived in only a few minutes, but when he approaches the city planet, he noticed something wrong: there was no traffic, and the lights of the large buildings were all out. Coruscant was empty. Johnny turned on a holographic television, but there were no transmissions.
After travelling to many planets, he realised that he was alone and started to cry. The voices shouted: “This is what you truly wanted, this is where you will stay!”.

Part 8: The Fate of Lassal Valcro

Lassal Valcro was in control of the north of the UFO province, at the border with the Sharkthoot province, with Red Sincam’s territory. His droids and Agents had betrayed him and joined the fleet of the Companionship, who were now attacking what was left of Lassal’s forces. The Valcronian Warlord had to evacuate his space station and was hiding in a secret base on an uninhabitable world. Lassal had to leave his armour behind and relied on a special machine to give him the drug. This chamber was crude and required the user to sleep. It made him even more reliant; he now spent entire days in it. The only other person in this base was his most trusted officer: Brent Golian, who had to operate the machine.
Karim Jafar, an important Agent Lord, had conquered Lassal’s space station. He now wore the Valcronian armour and had found out where the secret base was located. Karim was rather overconfident and beamed down alone. His non-organic physiology was not harmed by the toxic atmosphere, but the base’s self-defence mechanisms shot him down. The armour quickly healed him and he beamed back to his ship. Brent was alerted to his presence and started the wake-up procedures for Lassal, which would take a few minutes. The companionship’s fleet began bombarding the base from orbit, using croniton torpedoes to penetrate the shields. The large electric charges hit the machine before it was deactivated, causing it to malfunction. The electricity was sent through the Valcro’s body as the chamber sucked all the drugs out of him. His translucent orange skin turned yellow and some of his technological implants fell of his face. Explosions destroyed the machine and the base, Golian was killed, but Lassal survived. He could pass for a human now, although with a very distorted face. He removed every Valcronian sign of his body and placed some rags over anything that might reveal his true identity. He realised he had been drugged all his life, but didn’t really care. He found some computer data about the machine, which could also be used to heal anyone. When he was sure the fleet had left, he took a shuttle from an undamaged hangar and set course for a hospital of the Neutrals. He offered the hospital the plans for the healing device in exchange for plastic surgery, he wanted to look a bit like Jonathan, not exactly, but enough to remind people of him.
Lassal wanted to reunite Valcron under his rule and believed that Johnny’s looks would make him seem stricter. The first Valcro he contacted and convinced was his older brother Elias and their pact gave birth to the N.V.A., the New Valcronian Alliance.
Part 9: Return to Tatooine

It was calculated that the circle of life should be in an area of about 20 stars, 9 of them had planets and three of them could sustain life. These were the first locations that would be searched, so three Jedi were dispatched: Calamarian Jedi Mandy Jornan was sent to the forests of planet 1V335928725, Cerijin Jedi Ian Follon (a far relative of Dor Follon) was sent to the icy waters of the habitable moon Durtonia III that rotated around a gas giant with the same name (but without the numeral) and Half-Saiyan, Half-Human Jedi Anakin Valcro was sent to the deserts of planet Tatooine, because he was familiar with the terrain. They were all given advanced sensors to detect the black metal from which the circles were made and the U.L.F. had provided them with body cloaks, to stay hidden from possible enemies.
Mandy was the first to detect something, but she only found a primitive tribe dancing around a large rock, made of the substance. The clan worshipped it, because it was the only thing they couldn’t melt, break or burn and they believed it to be divine. After some more research, Mandy Jornan couldn’t detect any other trace of black metal on the planet.

Ian was on a moon in an ice age and travelled in a small submarine, under the large icecaps. He had also detected the metal, but after travelling deeper, the sensors indicated that the moon had a black metal core, which would explain the gravity on the small moon.
Tatooine was much larger than the other two bodies and the many spaceships visiting it made things even more complicated. Merchants in the streets tried to sell small pieces of black metal as good luck charms and a local museum also had some brocks. But Tatooine did not have any native black metal, so a source that Anakin had detected in the desert would have to be either a meteorite or the circle.

He flew his ship to the place and found a crater of glass. Something very hot had made an impact here and had melted the sand. Anakin saw that the thing that had hit the ground here, had gone even further down, but the glass tunnel it had created had collapsed under the weight of the sand. The piece of black metal had stopped in a layer of rock. A part of these rocks stuck out as a nearby hill and Anakin detected several tunnels, made eons ago by water, when Tatooine was still a green planet. But once every 1 million years, the planet is in one straight line with its two suns, which changes the planet’s orbit and caused the drastic climate change. His sensors reported that the black metal was at least shaped as a disc or a circle.
The repaired ULS Spirit stood still in the middle of the three observed systems. Onboard was Yoda, who guarded the Hypno Crystal, which was needed to activate the circle. When they received Anakin’s transmission about the black metal on Tatooine, they set course to the planet. Anakin’s computer had mapped out the caves and tunnels, he was now standing in front of a layer of rock. He only needed to blast it away to get to the circle, but that would be too dangerous, so he slowly started to cut through the rock with his sabre. Yoda beamed down to assist him.

Suddenly, Mara Jade came out of a tunnel, completely panicked, she explained that after entering orbit, Seth had escaped from his special holding cell and had engaged Dooku in battle; their fight had damaged the ship, and she had to make an emergency landing. Dooku and Seth had been killed, but she had survived the crash and had taken shelter in these caves.

Mara still had her sabre and decided to assist the two other Jedi. Very soon a large piece of rock fell and behind it was the circle of life, firmly stuck in the rock.
In the afterlife, Jonathan had been broken, he was beginning to see his errors and why his deeds were evil. He had been put in the situation of Luke, when it was revealed that he was his father. Jonathan could feel Luke’s disgust and fear and other negative emotions, but also the spark of hope Luke had felt for his family, before the program to increase his negative emotion started to work. Valcro was made to feel everything he had released on the Valcro-Zone and although nothing could destroy his arrogance, a character trait that defined him, Valcro felt remorse and requested to see Timothy, the other grandfather of his grandchild, to ask for forgiveness. He met him on the orange plains of the Limbo and asked why they hadn’t joined the voices yet. The voices replied that their destiny was not over, neither was Jonathan’s, which was why they had granted him his request.

In the caves on Tatooine, Yoda used the Force to levitate the crystal to the middle of the circle. “We wish to bring back the people of the Federation and the Resistance that have been killed in the battle of the great fleet and also those killed by Jonathan by his attack on the Spirit.” Nothing happened… Anakin thought the circle needed extra energy to activate it and fired a beam at it. The circle absorbed it all and a green light started to appear inside of it. Yoda and Mara joined Anakin and the green light now turned into a strange tunnel, the inside looked like a spiral of black and white, the three Jedi could not keep their eyes on it.

In the Limbo, the entrance of the tunnel appeared and one by one, the people Yoda had referred to were sucked through it. They came out alive at the other side and were transported to the Spirit, which had deployed several shuttles, because there would be no room for all of them. Yoda had also beamed back and Anakin and Mara were now welcoming the revived people.
Now the former crew of the Spirit was coming through the circle, the last one was Timothy; but the tunnel stayed open. The voices told Jonathan that he would have to save Anakin from Mara and to stop her from taking the crystal, because she had turned to the dark side. The two Jedi were still standing in front of the circle and wondered why it didn’t close. The voices told them that it had in fact been Jonathan’s own choice to terminate his life, and so he would be resurrected too; he had been punished in Hell and his power and knowledge would be great assets to the Federation. Anakin and Mara were surprised, but she attacked Anakin and said she would take the crystal before Valcro could get through. She explained that she hadn’t crashed here, but that Seth had turned her and Dooku to the dark side of the Force. Mara Jade was determined to prevent one of the Sith’s greatest fighters to join the Jedi; but Johnny came through the tunnel, in his new looks and killed Mara before she could even react.
She arrived in Limbo and tried to race towards the tunnel, which was still open, but it quickly vanished.

The crystal fell on the ground and the cave was shaken by the energy released by the circle. Anakin and Jonathan took the crystal and beamed to the Spirit before the caves collapsed. The ship had detected a fleet of the Computer Virus coming from one side and a Smallbot fleet from the other. The Spirit and the shuttles cloaked themselves and went into transwarp, it would be too dangerous to retrieve the circle while there was a battle going on (Mandy and Ian were already onboard). The fate of Anakin had now truly changed. The existence of the circles from the future made it impossible for Anakin to be seduced by Mara; he would not turn evil like his alternate self.
Luke welcomed his father with open arms and forgave him everything, knowing that he had made much fun with his family when he was posing as Orclav. The governments of the U.L.F. and the resistance felt less sorry and put up a large, but secret tribunal, because they didn’t want any word getting out that Jonathan had been brought back to live. The judge decided that his punishment was served in the afterlife and that he was freed of all charges, but he was forbidden to run for any leading political position for at least a century, after that time, another tribunal would take place and observe any evolutions. Johnny was also convicted to continue the Jedi lessons he had had followed during his time as Orclav (although adapted to match his knowledge of the Force), to guide him in the ways of the light side, until the Jedi saw fit, he was allowed to teach other students, if the Jedi agreed and he had to share everything he knew (locations of secret bases, technology, etc).
Jonathan Valcro, one of the most evil men in the known universe, ruler of Valcron, self proclaimed Prince-Regent of the Empire, had joined the United Lego Federation…

Part 10: #01’s New Body

During its life as exotic virus of the Matrix, #01 had absorbed a number of people, mostly Valcronian droids and Agents, but also a few Imperial scouts from the secret construction area. It hadn’t absorbed Luke because it knew that he was Anakin’s father and changing his place in history would mean that his creator would never be born.
The collapse of the Matrix forced him to choose a physical form, so he combined the body of an Agent with a blue droid head and fake Valcronian armour. #01’s purpose was to gain as much knowledge as possible, he did this by absorbing people, a power he hadn’t lost.
The true intentions of the Titans had also been the gathering of information, old Anakin wanted to take over the remains of Valcron and of the Empire, because he knew that both would fall. Valcron was already torn into civil war and the Empire would soon follow. Old Anakin had experienced the events personally and had thousands of years to prepare his scheme. Missing parts had to be filled in by his Androids, who would be his seconds in command after his takeover. #01 had the order to infiltrate the Non-Organic Companionship, which made him choose his body.
When he revealed himself to the leaders of the organisation, he told them he was a secret experiment of Valcron and that he had enormous strength. The Smallbot Queen put him in charge of the defence against the Bohrok that were attacking the north west borders in the first galaxy of the former Valcro Zone. Lord Barren of the Computer Virus had retreated because he had almost no men to fight them; his forces had been largely destroyed by the betrayal of the Smallbots at New Valcro Prime during the battle of the great fleet.
#01’s power was very clear: he could destroy many Bohrok personally. It was now almost the end of November, when they thought they had defeated the lion's share of the local Bohrok, which had white bodies and light blue Krana. But when #01 was enjoying some time-off, training in the grass fields of a nearby planet, he was visited by the largest Bohrok army he had ever faced. Instead of simply destroying the machines, he decided to try another approach. Nobody was around and #01 wanted to absorb the things. He could still create some crystals and after a battle, he made a cage around the army. Every time one of the Bohrok blew a hole through the thick wall, the cage got smaller. Next he divided the cage into individual chambers and they all changed into flashing lights of energy. #01’s own purple aura became visible as he changed into a crystal again, making himself part of the cage. The large prison shrunk and the combining lights became more intense. The visible energy made it impossible to see that the crystalline structure was taking a humanoid form. The light became purple and faded until #01 was visible again. His body parts seemed to be lighter because of the white Bohrok. He now possessed much of their knowledge, more than #03, who had only absorbed one Krana.
He wanted to travel to Anakin to share the information he had gained, when Kopaka appeared on the planet. Kopaka had followed the large Bohrok fleet and wanted to help him destroy them, but was surprised to see they had all vanished with only small traces of a battle. He asked for an explanation of the miraculous victory. #01 only said that Kopaka would understand soon. He started the same process that had absorbed the Bohrok, but Kopaka’s mystic powers made him more resilient than the Krana. He encased Zero-One in Ice, but he quickly melted it. He changed the entire landscape into ice, but it didn’t harm the Android. Kopaka pierced him with many sharp ice pins, but his nature made him able to heal quickly; because he had absorbed several Agents, he still had control over the powers he had during the times of the Matrix. Kopaka now fired many blasts at #01, those seemed to have more effect and eventually they were using martial arts. The Android used his powers to make himself as large as the Toa, who was much bigger than ordinary beings. Kopaka’s powers were much larger than #01’s, but they weren’t inexhaustible like his enemy, neither could he heal as easily. Kopaka was getting tired and failed to notice that the Android had trapped him. Anakin’s first experiment could now absorb Kopaka and increase his powers exponentially. He chose the white chest plate of an imperial trooper, which would suit his new abilities over the ice. He also had all of Kopaka’s knowledge, so he knew what had happened with the planet of his architect. His divine powers had gotten to his head, he didn’t care what happened to his inventor; if he had been killed, he was now free.
Instead #01 travelled to Cameron Valcro, who was leading an attack against Docen Valcro, who had joined the New Valcronian Alliance. Lord Cameron had refused. It hadn’t been a wise decision, because he hadn’t gotten much recourses since the destruction of Insectoid 1st, which had been located in his area. Lord Docen’s area however, held Insectoid 2nd and the traffic that first went to the original capital world of the former province now went to city domes of the desert planet.
Cameron was no match for #01, who absorbed him without much trouble, turning his fake Valcronian armour into a real one. The Android thought he was doing it for his own good, but it was all part of the old Anakin’s plan, who had programmed him to absorb the Valcros when he was powerful enough. He wanted to get Docen too, but couldn’t find him. This was because Lord Docen was on his way to a peace conference with the powers of the former Valcron, in an attempt to reform the broken state…

Part 11: Cancelled Peace Talks

Jonathan Valcro had just shared his knowledge of several important technologies, like the healing chamber and also a way to reverse the transformation of people into officers. He was now very close to Robotica’s apartment and decided to visit his older brother and ask for his forgiveness. He picked up all his courage and knocked on the door.


-Come in.


-Hi Rob.

-Johnny… I expected you’d come visit me one day. It has been weeks since you were brought back to life, why did you wait?

-Well, I thought, after thousands of years, what are a couple of weeks? To be honest, I was afraid of your reaction, afraid you would be angry, because of all I had done.

-I have been very angry; I’ve felt I’ve been betrayed, used… and then you banished me. But I know you always stood up for me against our father. You, Toz and Fon
 are still my brothers. I’ve always hoped that you’d turn to the light side and I still hope the twins will turn in the afterlife and that Chailey hasn’t turned too bitter after all those years. I forgive you Johnny. So, eh, do you have a place to stay yet? I’ve heard an apartment’s coming free in this block, perhaps you can…
-No, I can’t. I’m staying in the tower on New Valcro Prime. Strange, that planet is named after me, I ordered its construction; now it has been taken by my former enemies, and I still go to live on it. Not that I don’t want to live near you, it’s just that I have to stay close to the new Jedi temple, to teach new generations, but also to keep an eye on me. We can always visit each other, the wormhole is very close, it would only take an hour to travel from one to the other. Oh, and Chailey never stopped defending you.
-Can you at least stay for dinner, I’ll have to order some food anyway, it wouldn’t be any problem.

-Sure, but I can’t stay long afterwards. I’ve gotten permission to travel. I still feel like I need some closure, like I need to resign as leader of Valcron. Don’t tell anyone I said this; I’ve heard there are going to be peace talks between the warlords and new factions of the broken Valcron, to try and reunite it. Such an alliance would be very dangerous for the Federation and the resistance. I’m planning to drop by and use my “authority” to finally disband Valcron, with force if I have to. I know some secrets of the technology in the tower, so I figured out where it’s taking place.
-I don’t really agree with your plans, it could be very dangerous, but if you feel it’s something you have to do, for yourself, I won’t stop you. You’ve been given a second chance, Johnny, don’t waste it, use it well!

The two brothers had a meal and shared some laughs. Luke’s dream of a “good” Valcro family was becoming a reality.

Meanwhile, the participants of the peace conference were gathering in a space station of the Neutrals in the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone. Sharkthoot, the Computer Virus, Femme Fatale, Red Sincam, the Beta Droid and the surviving Valcros all transmitted their holograms, but sent a representative too, but only one per new organisation. The Non-Organic Companionship sent Agent Lord Benjamin Turner; the New Valcronian Alliance (now consisting of Lassal, Elias and Docen) sent Officer Bill Tarisman; Jonathan Junior Valcro sent the former head of Officers Qui-Gon Jinn; Jake Valcro (who had an area northwest of the badlands) sent Officer Michael Corussi; Spiden Valcro (who was Warlord overseer of the Computer Virus province and had managed to escape) sent Officer Ludovic Pladjov. Sharkthoot and the Virus seemed to have formed their own coalition and sent only one representative: Warlord Barren Von Strüberg. Three Officers and one droid also claimed their own territory and represented themselves: James Valson, Nadine Van Goranionburg, Zhang Mawashoro and P2-A2-L01-NR093
 (who was referred to as “Pete”).
The conference started calmly with discussions about a possible new Valcron, under combined rule of Valcros and the new powers, recapturing the Federation territories and the planets of the Resistance. Soon, however, the members of the meeting started disputing. Johnny Junior accused the N.V.A. of sending bounty hunters and assassins after him, the alliance moved the blame on the Companionship.

They couldn’t agree with re-evaluations of the non-organics and their use in battle, or about the slaves the Valcros were now using in stead of them. “Nameless men, dieing for an enemy that’s trying to free them”, protested Sincam. Standpoints on the Empire were even more diverse: the N-O.C. wanted to attack them, aided by the storm trooper rebellion. Jake wanted the exact opposite: form an alliance with the Empire to destroy the U.L.F. and any rebelling factions. Everybody was getting angry with each other, except Spiden, who agreed with the N.V.A. and decided to join it. They realised they had to calm down if anything were to come from the meeting.
Suddenly Jonathan walked into the room, but wasn’t recognised. He explained who he was and what had happened (without details like the circle) and the members of the conference realised he was telling the truth. He started his speech:
-I am still the leader of Valcron and I decide to disband it. Go your own way and make sure the rights of all intelligent life are preserved. I hereby demolish the ideology of Valcronian supremacy over all other races, which I created. The old borders are void and the provinces stop existing. All titles and authorities, including my own, are now annulled. Valcron is gone.
The three independent Officers and the droid attacked Valcro, but he showed off his impressive Force powers and vaporised them. The extreme energy that was released also broke the fragile transmitters, which made the holograms disappear. The representatives all decided that if Valcron could never exist anymore, their own organizations would take over the others and form a new regime, stronger than its predecessor, which proved to be very weak in the end. A fight broke out between them, in which Johnny didn’t participate. Qui-Gon and Barren got away; Benjamin was now the only living person in the room, except for Valcro. Lord Turner wanted to kill him, “you’re dead and you’ll stay dead!”, but Johnny said he had come only to say what he had to say, not to fight with anyone. The Agent remarked that he had truly changed, thanked him for his new visions, but warned him not to interfere with anything the N-O.C. did.
The Neutrals kicked them both out, for fighting on their property and they parted, each going to their homes.

Valcron was now officially no more.

Part 12: Vader’s Light Side

Imperial spies had found out what had transpired at the meeting, which had been dubbed “the disbanding of Valcron”. Palpatine was very pleased, after millennia, his son’s insurrection had ended. The only nation that had any rights to claim the shattered Valcron, was the Empire. Officially, the Empire had never even recognised the state, it was just Imperial territory under guerrilla command. He had allowed his son to go on with his ideas of a regime controlled by Valcros and few others. When Palpatine had enough of his experiment, he attacked Valcron with the Death Star and the resulting Smallbot War, to prove that even thousands of years wouldn’t let him create a stable government. It was quite similar to what Jonathan did with the U.L.F., like father, like son. In the end it were the Federation and the resistance that proved Palpatine’s point.
The Emperor always looked at everything as a game, if he lost a life, he could simply create another one, but now that the Matrix had been destroyed, he had gotten much more careful. Anyone he didn’t trust was executed, including Pro-consuls Proust and Nernst, important Grand-Moffs, like Putzer, Raabe and Riemann, Consuls like Dirichlet and even Grand Admiral Weierstrass. The only one he really trusted was Vader, he still had drugs controlling him, but the Sith Lord had overcome them and said his dark side goodbye, leaving the inner evil of Luke completely defeated.
Palpatine had summoned his grandson to give him details about his plans of attacking the second galaxy of the former Valcro Zone. The boundaries of the Matrix were gone, which made it very simple for fleets to get there, because the two galaxies were colliding and would eventually merge after billions of years. There was still some space between the Imperial borders and those of the ex-Valcron, but it could be done.

Palpatine’s plans would never be carried out, because Darth Vader confronted the Emperor with the truth he had discovered: the suit was completely unnecessary. Before the eyes of Palpatine, Vader ripped the mask of his face and revealed his healing face; he had shut down the devices that kept him subdued and attacked Palpatine with all his strength, but in response he transformed and knocked Vader down a shaft of the ship they were on, in the same way he had been killed by his pupil years ago…
Luke woke up from his nightmare, Sofie asked him to go back to sleep, but it hadn’t been a dream, Vader had come back to the light side and became Luke again, during his sleep they had connected. Luke believed it was time to become complete again, he would have to find his counterpart’s body and defeat Palpatine, then his destiny would be complete. He hoped Vader’s death wouldn’t harm his own powers, because it might be difficult to retrieve his corpse.

Luke wanted to go in secret, but his two best friends had sensed his plans. Surprisingly, Tina Thomson had also sensed it; she had received training in the afterlife, with great results. They insisted they would face the Emperor together, to the death.

When sneaking to their ships, they were halted by Yoda, he had seen premonitions in his meditation, visions of death, but it was very uncertain on which side. He warned that Palpatine would still be a part of a great pain that would be unleashed upon the cluster, but he didn’t now what he meant with “a part”. His visions were very vague, he couldn’t form a real view. But the old master understood they had to do it, he had fought with the Emperor 5000 years ago and nearly lost his life, but he never regretted it. He had to try it.

He wished the group success and asked Luke to say “hi” to Palpatine, to remind him his old enemy was still alive. The four boarded their ships and set course for Imperial Space.

Part 13: The Ultimate Price

Because Luke could still feel his connection with the death Vader, it took them only a week to track the Emperor’s ship, orbiting a planet. The year 5005 was coming to an end; it seemed poetic justice that Palpatine’s live would end with it.
He had sensed the Jedi and welcomed them inside; he hoped to end his grandson’s life completely.

The four stood before the Emperor. Luke stepped forward and threatened Palpatine:

-I am more powerful than Vader, I can use your technique, I am a super-Saiyan. If you fight me, you will die.

-I have no doubts that you are stronger than my last apprentice, but remember that you are only half a man; you can never be as strong as I.

-My friends will compensate.

-So you lead your friends into death. At least you will not be alone in the afterlife.

-They chose to join me here. Your betrayal of the cluster, after you defeated the Bohrok, will end now, justice will prevail!

-Betrayal and justice? You use those words like you know what they are. My Empire is justice. I was always meant to be a king, albeit not from this cluster. My great-grandmother Maggie Valcro was married to Julian Vegeta, Prince of the Saiyans. He lead his troop of mercenaries against the forces of Bebi Tuffel, leader of the Tsufuru-jin, a race of purists that believed they had to clean the universe and destroy all other life. But because Bebi had escaped, he was stripped from his title and his name, he was truly betrayed. I am the one who would bring justice. Our king betrayed my brother Lucian and me. I turned super-Saiyan after he killed my brother. Then I killed the king: justice. Now I was the rightful king of the Saiyans, but they put a bounty on my head.
I found a way to leave my galaxy and come to this cluster, when a group of Mumifar asked my help. I used their special ship to travel to the old republic. I was defeating the Bohrok and discovered they had been created by Bebi who had found a way to live forever by selling his soul. He had planted himself in the cluster and was using the Bohrok to continue his plans of cleaning the universe. I foiled his plans and did what I was destined to do: get justice for Julian. I deserve my title. This cluster is mine to rule, the people even wanted me to be their emperor.

-The Bohrok are back, you have no claim to your empire, but that is not the reason it must end. You reign with fear. True justice, and you’ll find many to agree with me, can only be achieved with real peace and freedom.
-We will have peace: when you are dead and everything in the cluster is under my command!

Palpatine fired a blast of energy at Tina, who died instantly. Luke transformed and attacked him. Palpatine also became a super-Saiyan and seemed more powerful he gave Luke a hard punch, which gave him some time to push some buttons. The three amigos were beamed into space! Luckily, there clothes activated an emergency shield. They flew into their ships and attacked the Emperor’s craft. The cruiser was near explosion, when they picked up an energy signal; Palpatine had beamed himself to the planet below. To their surprise, Luke was beamed back into the ship; it seemed the emperor had somehow kept the computer locked on him.
On the dieing ship, Luke found a way to send a message to his friends: they needed to get down and kill the Emperor, he would follow soon.

But when he wanted to beam back to his own ship, he felt a call, through the Force. Luke flew down a shaft and found Vader, he was still alive! They knew that they could defeat the Emperor if they merged. They were thinking exactly the same thing and their split was undone. Luke was whole again. His powers had grown exponentially and realised he couldn’t have defeated the Emperor before, even with his friends. He realised they were in great danger and beamed down, right before the ship exploded.

But Luke was too late: John and Jack had both been killed. Luke’s rage was directly fed to his super-Saiyan powers and a great fight began, much greater than the one with his father. It seemed they were equal in strength. Suddenly Palpatine had a vision: he knew he would die in this fight. If he had to go, he would take Luke with him. Palpatine directed all his power on the planet, firing a massive blast to the core. With his last strength he destroyed John and Jack’s ships. Luke caught up with him and easily killed the weakened Palpatine. At last the Emperor was truly dead.
Luke was now trapped on the planet, his own ship had been destroyed when Palpatine’s cruiser had exploded. Instead of panicking, he mentally prepared himself to die. He felt his destiny was complete: he had destroyed the Matrix had defeated the leaders of Valcron and the Empire. The U.L.F. had won the battle that he had warned them for and was winning territory in the Valcro Zone. He believed peace would return.
But things would not turn out that way. Soon a great evil would reveal itself and Luke would find out his destiny was far greater than he could ever imagine…

Chapter8: Cell

Part 1: Bitter Victory
N

ew Year 5006 was a large celebration because of the defeat of Emperor Palpatine, but at the same time, the cluster had lost its greatest heroes. Tatooine had fallen into the hands of Sharkthoot’s and the Virus’ Coalition, so it was too dangerous for trying to revive them.
The Empire was already regrouping; its military and political structure was much more advanced than anything Valcron had ever achieved. Unfortunately the only function that could create a power void was that of Emperor, and he was now dead. This was also the only thing Valcron had been better at: after Jonathan disappeared, the Valcronian Council took over.

Darth Bully and Darth Vader, Palpatine’s seconds, where both gone. The Consuls, Grand Admirals and Grand Moffs disputed their rights to the throne, but there was only one who had the appropriate titles to stand above all of them: Thrawn. He kept the title Grand Admiral, but in fact became the new Emperor, it was legally correct.
Although the original regimes in the Valcro Zone had been broken, the new factions of course blamed their instability to the U.L.F. and the resistance groups. The dictators had been replaced by war. Several Valcronian supporters had been committing terrorist acts against the new free worlds, even though many of them knew peace. Survivors described some of the same figures at each of the attacks: there seemed to be 5 persons behind the assaults: two pairs and one individual. These three groups had never been seen together, but their strategy seemed the same: they used their superior Force powers to destroy buildings. Any Jedi who had faced them had died. These attacks caused great chaos: many Jedi (new and old), resistance members, Federation personnel and civilians fled to New Valcro Prime. They joined the already large group of refugees. But the planet was big enough for all of them, and if it ever got full, they could always travel to the original U.L.F. and its three, almost empty, galaxies.
The terrorists were an enigma: were they Sith, just some disgruntled but powerful Force users, successors to the Titans or perhaps even a humanoid Bohrok? Action needed to be taken, so the council of U.L.F. and resistance leaders decided to send one of the most powerful users they knew: Jonathan Valcro. They believed him to be second only to Yoda, especially after the loss of the three amigos, Tina and the death of the Emperor, the old Anakin and his titans.
But nothing could be farther from the truth…

Part 2: The New Super Saiyan

Jonathan had just questioned several witnesses and found it very peculiar that one of the described persons reminded him of the Valcronian Titan, at least, in his new form; they described him in the same way as Luke and Sofie had. To clear things up, he decided to travel to the shattered planet where the evil version of Anakin had created his androids.

He cloaked his ship when he entered a region under N-O.C. control. He had to be careful, the cease-fire with the Non-Organics was but a fragile peace; one of the terms was no passage for anyone linked to the opposing government, only civilians could pass the border. Another danger were the Bohrok. The fact that they explored every planet made them extremely slow, but their risk should not be underestimated, they had already “cleansed” 3 galaxies of all life.
Jonathan was headed for a wormhole to speed up his journey a bit, but a fleet of Smallbots had the same idea and came out of transwarp in his flight path, some bots crashed into his shield and exploded, pulling his cloak down. His ship had only very light defensive capabilities, so he headed for a nearby dark planet, orbiting the wormhole. Johnny was taking heavy fire, so his landing was not very smooth. In fact, he barely beamed out before his ship exploded. The surface had a mild temperature, caused by the volcanic activity. Light was only provided by lava streams, stars and the Smallbots in orbit, searching for him; the wormhole wasn’t visible when closed.
Suddenly, a bright light appeared by the horizon: the wormhole had been opened. He saw hundreds of lights coming out and engaging the Smallbots before clouds obscured his vision.

As Jonathan stood there on a lone rock, cool rain started to fall from the sky, splashing on his forehead, while he tried to get a glimpse of the fight above. For some reason, he was at peace, he could feel the Force flowing through him, and for the first time, he really listened. He had used the Force to sense the future before, but not like this. He closed his eyes and saw the battle in space: hundreds of Smallbots against even more Bohrok. He could feel the battle slipping into the Bohrok’s favour. Within ten minutes the bots were slaughtered and the vicious machines began coming down to inspect the planet. Jonathan’s strengthened connection to the Force gave him confidence and he flew to meet the Bohrok. They had noticed him too, and now the entire fleet was spiralling down to attack him, but just as they were about to strike, Valcro produced an energy beam, emitting intense blue light, incinerating the Bohrok. But the fleet was too large for him too hold on, so he dug deeper into the Force, into the very powers keeping him alive. His heart was beating at an insane rate, and his life flashed before his eyes, with the realisation that he was happier now, about to die, than he ever was, when ruling Valcron. But he didn’t give up yet, he felt that it was not his life that he had to save, but the lives of innocent people who could be killed by these Bohrok. He had to hang on, somehow, he just had to hang on.
And as an explosion of all his emotions and his stamina, Jonathan Valcro transformed into a Super Saiyan, his power increased and his beam dealt with the fleet in no time. His aura made the lava flows twirling outwards, the rain clouds were swept away and the light of the stars was shining on the surface, but it was blinded out by Johnny’s golden aura. He felt as if the Force had forgiven him.
With his personal communicator and the debris of the Bohrok, he was able to send out a distress signal, all that was left, was waiting…
Part 3: The Androids

Jonathan’s transmission was coded, so only the Neutrals, the Resistance or the Federation would be able to understand it.

The closest U.L.F. official was Ace Erdam; after the death of the 3 amigos he was appointed acting minister of defence, on Jack’s behalf. He had just brought a Federation ambassador to Universia Planet in the minister class ship. At the same time he had escorted a shuttle of scientists to the same planet. Universia had planet wide universities and after its liberation there had been numerous intellectual summits. It was also the lead planet of the Calamarian part of the resistance, its General was Anna Kovitch; Aïsha Hollings had lived there a large part of her life too, until she moved back to her birth planet of Appallonnnia during the Year of Chaos, to help prepare the uprising. Anna had been a great mentor to her, as was Rick Chom, General of the Mumifar resistance cell. The union of these two cells had been her first great achievement. She had joined Ace to Universia to talk with Anna, but would return to her new home on New Valcro Prime afterwards.
They were just in the middle of a diplomatic discussion together, when Ace received Jonathan’s message. He knew he was the nearest to him, because Universia Planet was very close next to the border with the Non-Organic Companionship. Ace apologised to General Kovitch and Aïsha and hurried to his ship.

Before he could get there he was ambushed by two very bizarre men: one of them was a Mumifar, but without the standard hat, one of his hands was completely red and transparent; his eyes had a purple glow and on his bare chest there were visible tubes and wires that entered his flesh. His belt also had a couple of buttons on it. The other was a Calamarian, with the same kind of hand, purple eyes and a similar chest. They both wore blue trousers and Ace now noticed that the back of their skull was replaced with a transparent orange window from which he could directly look into their brains, which also contained several wires and pieces of technology.
The duo produced a purple aura and started to levitate. It was very obvious they planned to kill him; when Ace fired a blast with his pistol, the laser was simply absorbed by the Mumifar’s red hand, which then created a completely similar blast and shot the weapon out of Ace’s hand.

Help arrived just in time: the Federation’s ambassador was Angela Mothma, the second in command of M-Tron and a skilled Force-user, although not a Jedi. She wanted to say goodbye to Ace before he left and landed into the scene. Her blasts were all absorbed by the two figures and she sensed that her energy had been added to theirs. The duo then introduced themselves: they were Androids #19 and #20, made by the late Anakin’s plans. There function was to collect as much energy as possible and use it to wreck havoc on the chaotic Valcro Zone, to insure peace could not return. They thanked Ace and Angela for the energy but had to say fare-well, because they had to meet with their “highest”, #21, who was an upgraded organic like themselves, on Nar Shadaa, the small city planet in the space of the Non-Organics which was the meeting place of scum, fugitives and pirates.
Angela and Ace where happy they were still alive, but shocked to find out Anakin had build androids up to number 21 instead of the three they had heard of. The M-Tron escorted Ace to his ship, where they said goodbye.
Cloaked, the ship set course to the dark planet. In orbit he found the debris of many Smallbots and Bohrok. He beamed Valcro onboard, who told the complete story of what had happened two days earlier. After Ace told Johnny about his encounter with the androids, he was convinced these where two of the mysterious terrorists he was looking for. They decided to head for Nar Shadaa to investigate. With Jonathan’s newfound powers, the Androids would be no match for him; at least that was what they thought. 3 days later they arrived at the planet.
While entering Nar Shadaa’s atmosphere, they received a distress call from a district that was mostly inhabited by Valcronian Agents: they were under attack by two weird beings. Realising it were the Androids, Ace and Jonathan rushed to the Agent Quarter. When they arrived they found #19 and #20 destroying buildings, killing thousands of innocents. When they noticed the Space Police Agent and the former dictator, they reverted their attention to them, but Jonathan was powerful enough to deflect all their blasts. He was careful not to fire anything himself, because it would only be absorbed. The two Androids were equally powerful however and showed no signs of being depleted from their energy. They paused the fight and asked to wait, so they could introduce their leader #21.
From an unharmed building an ancient looking man with a long white beard, the same visible brain and red hand as the other two, but with a scorched brown robe and several completely artificial limbs showed himself. Jonathan immediately sensed that this was the evil Anakin, who had somehow survived the explosion of his planet and had received similar upgrades as his androids, probably for staying alive after being heavily injured.

Jonathan forgot about the absorbing powers and fired a large beam at Anakin, but #19 stepped in between and absorbed all of it. But Jonathan kept firing his beam and to the surprise of the androids, he transformed into a Super-Saiyan. The increase of energy added to the beam was too quick for #19 to compensate and the hand exploded. A second blast killed the machine. Ace and Johnny were glad to see it didn’t reform; these new Androids were clearly not made out of nano-probes. Cryptic as always, Anakin made the threat “the power of Cell will be inevitable” and the two remaining androids fled into space.
Looking through the room in which Anakin had hid, they found a pleasant surprise: one of the Hypno-circles: this one would connect the different circles with each other, this meant that they could keep this circle with the Hypno Crystal and didn’t need to take it to another Circle to use it, they only had to activate both with the Force.
They beamed the artefact to their ship before N.O-C. officials became rushing in. they promised no military actions for the illegal intrusion of their space because they stopped the androids from doing even more damage and because they had found out Jonathan had destroyed a Bohrok fleet; but further violations of the peace treaty would not be accepted. The ship was escorted to the nearest border, from which they set a course to New Valcro Prime for a debriefing. They had a lot to talk about…
Anakin and #20 had arrived at a secret hideout, where the android was accused of failure. Anakin brought him into a room where #03 was waiting. #20 was “fed” to the Titan, who now had his first major absorption. He got the assignment to find #17 and #18, who had rebelled against them.
Part 4: Destiny Incomplete

When Tina and the three amigos had been killed, they arrived in Limbo. Luke had the strange feeling he had been there before. Suddenly the divine voices spoke to him:
-Though many choose reincarnation, none of them remember anything until they actually join us again. You, however, are special.

-I know, I’m not a soul of this timeline, I came from a future that’s now erased, existing only in an alternate reality. I don’t exist in this universe.

-All unborn souls are part of us too, if you existed in a former version of this reality, you exist here as well. From the moment you became a permanent resident of this universe, you united with the soul that would become Luke Valcro. But that’s not the reason you’re special.

-Than I don’t understand why all of this seems so familiar.

-Are you familiar with the Great Premonition?
-I know that it predicted the Year of Chaos, but I don’t know the complete text.

-“Thousands of years of peace

A Great War

Thousands of years of decay

A Plague will strike all that lives

Five millennia of darkness will come

A messenger of darkness

But much more of light

He will create a Year of Chaos

He will bring back the Plague

He will destroy the Plague

He will save that which is beyond

Peace will reign once more”

You are that Messenger, Luke. You believed it was your destiny to defeat your father and grandfather, to save the U.L.F. from destruction. You were wrong, you are meant for much more.

-A plague… the Bohrok! Five millennia of… that’s the Matrix!

But the Year of Chaos, I didn’t create that, I didn’t destroy the Hypno Crystal?

-Indeed, but without you, the Federation would never have been successful against Medusa, so in a way you were responsible. But that victory will seem almost futile…

Battles are coming, like nothing you’ve seen before, each one more spectacular than the previous. But we can’t reveal much more about the fate of the Messenger; you must find out in your own time, we can’t intervene unless something from our side does something forbidden. I suggest you ask Yoda about Corna’El and her predictions. Now the time has come for you to receive training from us, all of you, because the Messenger is not alone, all forces of good are on his side.
Tina has already received some training, but yours will include many other trials, your first one will be getting to the highest point of Limbo, there you will start practising the actual martial arts.

-But that still doesn’t explain why I’m familiar with this place.

-Ask the last of the Éoleff…

Still stunned from the fantastic revelations, the 4 friends walked their way to a mountain they saw ahead. They had been stripped from their powers, or so it seemed. Luke quickly realised that this dimension had the same aspects as Yoda’s planet. The Force was suppressed but not gone. Because he had already experienced such a situation, Luke was the first to hear the Force again, and he taught his friends to really listen to it again. Tina explained that she had been transported to the training grounds immediately, where there was no suppression of the Force, only a much greater gravity. Even if they would receive no training at all, they would still be more powerful because of these circumstances.
Flying was still too difficult, but they could move with a lot more speed than before. Around them they saw old and sick people, soldiers, even Krana, all who had recently died. Most of them quickly went on to the afterlife, but then they saw a small group of people just sitting on the ground. When they stopped they could see who it where: the Valcros who had been killed during and after the Battle of the Great Fleet!

Ufon cynically approached Luke:


-So the great and magnificent Luke is not immortal after all.


-Nice to see you too, uncle Fon.
-Don’t call me that. I know now that Jonathan controlled us all, except his first son, with his chemicals and drugs. But that doesn’t mean we don’t hold you responsible for our deaths. We can’t move on either, except Palpatine, because for some reason “our destinies aren’t complete” or something. Neither is yours, apparently. If we had known about the drugs before and would been able to kick off, we would have followed Thrawn’s path. I expect the remaining Valcros will indeed join the remainder of the Empire and overthrow the U.L.F. and any rebelling droids or Agents. And if they don’t destroy you, the Bohrok will.
-The Non-Organics have teamed up against the remnants of the evil organisations, and we have a fragile peace treaty with them, I’m sure we will see that working together is beneficial for both of us. And the Bohrok? We will be resurrected as the strongest living beings of the cluster, and by the way, I have become a Super-Saiyan, after my training I will be even more powerful than Palpatine ever was, so I think we can handle the Bohrok.

My father has seen the errors of his ways here and joined us, if he can change, I’m sure you can too. One day you’ll join us.

-Don’t be so sure about that, we will never join you and your useless ideals.

Suddenly, one of the Valcros said “I will join you”. It was Erick, who was already not that evil to begin with. Luke and his friends accepted him in their group. Hesitatingly, Insectoz, Erick’s father spoke to them:

-I guess no one knows what the future will bring, you should do what you feel you must, son, but never forget your heritage. I have one question for you Luke, it has laid on my mind since we died: what ever happened to Abbat? Didn’t you kill him?
-No, he escaped, didn’t he join you for the Battle of the Great Fleet?

-I suppose the coward made everyone believe he was dead. I’m not my twin brother, if we ever meet again, you can call me uncle Toz if you like, but I’m afraid Ufon is right, most of us, including myself, would join the Empire. Minds can obviously change, but I don’t know what it will take too change all of ours.
-I believe in the good of every form of intelligence, and I also believe that it can come to the surface. We must continue our travels, what I’ve seen here gives me much optimism and I hope we will see each other again, until then…

The group of five now went back on their journey to the mountain. They had much to say and it turned out Erick had the right interests and the expertise to become part of Ice someday. After what seemed like a day (they didn’t require any sleep) they arrived at the foot of the mountain. The voices then spoke of a new challenge; out of a crack in the floor, the Imperial Titan rose, with all his powers still active. The group had to work together, because they couldn’t reach deep into the Force. They managed to throw #02 back into the chasm, to his personal Hell, where he’d pay for his deeds until he showed resentment for his actions.

The 5 friends had passed each test and after climbing the mountain, they received an intensive training to prepare them for the struggles ahead.

These events happened simultaneously with the adventures of Jonathan, who had already been back to New Valcro Prime to deliver the Hypno-circle to the Jedi. The U.L.F. decided to start a search for the other Androids and sent many Jedi to seek them. Jonathan and Anakin were given the mission to retrieve the Circle of Life, despite the danger of going to Tatooine, and first of all revive the 3 amigos and Tina. But Luke made a spiritual appearance before the Jedi Council and told them to only get them back in three weeks, so that they could complete their training, and that they should also revive Erick Valcro, who had joined them.
Because the trip to Tatooine would take only 2 weeks, Johnny decided to pay a visit to his firstborn son, Jonathan Junior…
Part 5: The True Leader

Unlike the original Valcro Prime, Valcro Second was a planet with fauna, flora and oceans. It was no artificial planet, but it did feature the rotating rings in orbit, which also provided synthetic light, because these circles blocked most of the sunlight. Although it was located in the former territory of the Alpha Droid, the planet’s rule had been given to Jonathan Junior. It was situated near the former passage between the two galaxies, between the two pockets of the Matrix that held the Valcro Zone and served as a first defence against an assault by the Empire, because the other end of the tunnel came out in Imperial space. The passageway was too small though to send a fleet through, but now that the Matrix was gone the Empire had attacked the Remnants of Valcron several times, until the recent death of Palpatine, when Grand Admiral Thrawn took over.
This planet was also the home of the Sith who hadn’t been turned into obedient officers; including Darth Seth, who had joined them after he had been resurrected by Sharkthoot. During the days of Jonathan’s insurrection against his father’s Empire, several Sith clans had joined him. Johnny himself became part of the Clan of the Bat (because his Valcronian V resembled their sign) and while the other Valcros had been Sith outside any clan, Abbat was the only other to join this particular clan.
The most important clan was the Clan of the Spider, which had been started by Seth, before the creation of the Matrix. He had been chosen as the Supreme Lord of the Sith, until he was killed by Palpatine, who took his place. During Palpatine’s reign, many Sith had been hunted down, but the Spider Clan remained the most prominent one. To ensure good relations between the Spider and Bat Sith, Jonathan agreed to marry a descendant of Seth Oz: Shana Oz. From this short marriage (she disappeared with all evidence leading to Valcro), Jonathan Junior was born (ironically, this linked the Valcronian royal family with the royal family of the Federation, because their Oz family can also be traced back to Seth, who started out as a good Jedi).
When Seth returned, he reclaimed his title as leader of the Spider Clan. The most important members today were: the Human man Seth Oz, the Human woman Vera Oz (Sister of Shana), the Human man Dooku Tyrannus, the Cerijin man Conan Sar and the Trenebulan man Bart Xillen, who were all present on the planet when Valcro arrived to “greet” his son.
Johnny’s ship was cloaked, but his son had foreseen his coming during meditation and now sensed his father’s arrival. But instead of heightening security, he had sent all forces away, assuming Valcro had gone soft and wouldn’t be able to kill his son. After his landing, Jonathan made no effort to hide his presence; he simply walked towards the courtyard near the Sith temple where Junior was waiting for him.
-So, father, is this just an impromptu visit, or are you here to show me the errors of my ways and convince me to surrender and join the Federation?
-Do I need a reason to visit my son, other than just the need to see you.

-So it is true, you’ve gone soft; where’s the Jonathan Valcro who controlled the Valcro Zone, who decided who lived and who died, the Jonathan Valcro who never had any time for his son, because he was to busy dominating galaxies; so sure he’d live forever in the Matrix that he never felt the need to assign me as his heir. If you had done that simple act, Valcron wouldn’t have fallen!
-Keep yourself together, I’m not here to ask for forgiveness or anything; perhaps I’ve made a mistake in coming here. It’s just that, when I had the chance to visit you, I never did, but now that we’re part of rivalling states, I find myself missing you. I’m not letting dark emotions control my actions anymore, but it’s harder than you can imagine; all the repressed tensions and feelings that have build up over the centuries all come out at once. And when I became a super-Saiyan, it felt great, but it also made those emotions explode, combined with guilt for what I’ve done to the universe. I don’t know what to feel anymore.

You don’t know what it’s like, all those people being friendly to you, but in the mean time looking at you with disgust. Don’t come crying about how I wasn’t there for you; from where I’m standing it looks your doing pretty well for yourself.
-Spare me your petty emotions, I’m Sith and like you said, I’m doing pretty well. I’ve come to a treaty with the Imperial Remnant and the N.V.A. to attack the rebelling states first: the Non-Organics, the Federation and the Resistance. Our combined strength shall destroy all forms of freedom, and when you’re dealt with, we’ll conquer The Coalition of Sharkthoot and the Virus and attack the Neutrals too. Already, our new Androids are attacking key planets.
-Anakin and his Androids are working for you?

-Idiot, we are working for Anakin. He promised that the leaders of our three groups would become the council members of his regime. Soon a new dominion will rise out of the ashes of the old, reborn like a phoenix.

-The power has affected your mind, you’ll never be free as long as there’s a dictator above you, and I hope one day you’ll see that. Now I’ve got to go, it seems you’ve revealed so much of your plans that it can be used to stop them.

-I’m sorry father, but this information stays here.
-You don’t believe anyone here can defeat me right, I’m a super-Saiyan!

-I don’t need to fight you to win…

Junior pressed a button on his belt and in the atmosphere the orbital rings started spinning around their axis and also around the planet. Valcro knew that it would be impossible to leave while the transport system was active.

The circles started spinning faster and faster, the ground was shaking and in the sky erratic auroras were forming because of the radiation produced by the enormous engines. Then suddenly the planet and its rings went into hyperspace, travelling to a yet unknown destination. This surprised Jonathan, because Valcron never possessed such technology, only transwarp. It seemed the cooperation between the factions of evil had gone farther then he realised…
Part 6: The New Valcronian Empire

Junior told his father that he knew they had stolen the Circle of Union, so for compensation, the planet was heading to Tatooine, to retrieve the Circle of Life.
The trip would take a couple of days, but it wasn’t like Jonathan could go away; at least, that’s what Junior thought. In truth, Valcro’s transformation had given him a much greater control over the Force, so he used these powers to grab one of the rings around the planet and made it collide with another one, which was rather simple, because the rings were rotating very close to each other. The speed at which they were revolving made them break instantly; the planet came out of hyperspace in the small void between the two galaxies and parts of the rings came crashing down on the planet. Completely out of balance, the ground ruptured, mountains split and oceans moved. The planet would probably not survive.
Johnny, Junior, Seth, several Sith and officers managed to get into ships and escape. Dooku, Conan and Vera were all killed when a piece of a ring crashed on the Sith Temple. The planet was still moving at a great speed, and now that the enormous circles were not positioned symmetrically anymore, the gravity of the planet was completely out of balance too and most of its crust broke of. Magma was now flung into space, cooling down into asteroids almost instantly. The red hot core was exposed, but the planet was now slowing down, surround by debris and rocks, with a visible trail to where the planet had exited hyperspace. Some of the wreckage started orbiting the new planet, while other parts crashed down again (mostly on the still rather habitable parts, which were being shattered). Without a star, the new planet was doomed to become a world of darkness and ice.
Jonathan now headed for Tatooine himself, he would arrive just at the time that Luke had specified. The others set a course to Imperial space, to a wormhole that led to the nebula where the Black Star was still under construction and where the final treaties would be signed to form their new alliance. They would unite and become the New Valcronian Empire (but they would drop the “new” very soon).
Anakin explained to the fusing factions that eventually, it wouldn’t be him that would rule this new Empire, it would be Cell, a “perfect” Android that hadn’t been created yet, but that would have infinite powers, would be invincible, immortal, but above all unstoppable and inevitable. He would make the Bohrok look like a group of bugs on a picnic.
Cell’s Valcronian Empire would rule the cluster forever…
Part 7: The Creation of Cell

Jonathan arrived at Tatooine. When he came into orbit, he saw several ships of the Coalition fleeing the planet. His sensors indicated two persons, part organic and part robot, were destroying their buildings. It were other Androids than the ones he had fought before, because his sensors also indicated that it were a boy and a girl.
Still cloaked, he moved his vessel towards the place they were destroying. The two Androids looked nothing like the others, from the outside they looked completely Human, with no visible circuitry whatsoever. There clothes were a clear abomination to fashion, with colours that shouldn’t be matched. They were however two beautiful young people. The boy had long black hair and a smooth face with sensual eyes. The girl had blonde hair of about the same length and a similar face. It seemed like they were related, or at least formed from a similar design. The two androids started a conversation with a scared citizen, from what his computer picked up, it appeared they were looking for the circle too, but if they were under the command of the united factions, they should’ve known about its location from Seth, who survived the death of Valcro Second, who must have given the assignment after they failed to get to Tatooine.
It became clear to Jonathan that these two had revolted against Anakin; this could become very useful, perhaps he could convince them to join the Federation. But for now, he headed for the site of the circle.
Without any incidents he was able to revive Luke, John, Jack, Tina and Erick. Valcro was very pleased to see his son again and told the group everything that had happened the last two and a half months. They then carved the circle out of the rocks, but there was one problem, Jonathan hadn’t anticipated he’d go directly from Valcro Second to Tatooine, so he was in a one-man ship; they had to find a shuttle in one of the cities in the desert. Flying would attract the attention of the Androids, so Tina decided to take the ship to the nearest town, because she had the least recognisable face…

At the same time, #03 reported back to Anakin that he had found out the location of #17 and #18, they were on Tatooine. But instead of sending him there, he gave him a new assignment: he had to absorb #01, so he would become more powerful than any being in the cluster. Afterwards, he could absorb other creatures, to grow even more. The Titan gladly accepted this task and went to the location Anakin had given him.
#01 had also been sent there, but he had received the exact same order and although he wasn’t keen on following Anakin’s commands, especially after the time of freedom, when he thought Anakin had been killed; but this mission was something he’d do with joy, because his hunger for power through absorption hadn’t become smaller. The two Androids met and started a fight with each other. They used every power from those they had taken inside them: Kopaka’s powers of ice, #20’s Force absorption, etc.
The fight seemed to be evenly matched, but then #01 started to grow an energy cage around them, an advanced form of his crystalline powers. At the same time the Titan used his own nano-technology to assimilate the other. The two Androids started absorbing each other, and eventually neither one won, they had in fact fused together, which had been Anakin’s plan all along. This was the menace he had been talking about. Cell was born…

The creature looked like a combination of both androids: he had a blue droid face, like #01, and also his Valcronian Armour; one arm was red and the other blue, the general colour scheme of Anakin’s Androids, it seemed; its torso was black and red, its legs a shade of grey with buttons on its belt.

He now knew that he would only be complete if he absorbed #17, #18, but also the Imperial Titan, the only way to accomplish that, was to bring him back with the circles and the Hypno-crystal. So Cell went to Tatooine, using Kopaka’s divine powers to move anywhere almost instantly…
Part 8: It Grows

The creation of Cell was felt by the most powerful users of the Force. On New Valcro Prime, the light in the Hypno crystal was slightly dimmed because of the concentrated evil that had formed.

On Tatooine, Tina just came back to the group with a shuttle, when they felt the great disturbance. It was even heightened when they sensed its arrival on the planet. They had to try and stop it while they could, and flew the shuttle to the place they had sensed the monster. They found Cell fighting with #17 and #18 and overheard him talk about absorbing the pair. Luke knew that this was exactly what he had been training for and attacked Cell after transforming. With an enormous blast he seemed to vaporise Cell, but he quickly saw that its nanotechnology was already regrouping, so he grabbed the two Androids and put them into the shuttle before they fled from Tatooine. They were reluctant to join the Federation, but their gratefulness was stronger and they agreed not to attack civilians anymore in exchange for sanctuary from Cell.
Recent events made the U.L.F. call back all its people to New Valcro Prime for a crisis meeting and for safe shelter. The only exceptions were a part of the fleet, led by Ace Erdam, who were fighting against Valcronian Imperial ships, attacking the western borders, as a fast retaliation against Johnny’s action on Valcro 2nd; and the crew of the Spirit, which was on its way to retrieve Amelia Simmons, Jorren Finning, Jernam Fharad and Ian Parg; respectively the ambassadors of Jaridia (and the Jaridian Network), Jolia, Egyptsei and Witeling Prime (and the Witeling Free State, the tall Witeling always wear a protective suit and helmet, because oxygen is poisonous to them, they breath chloride gas). Also, Yoda got the approval to take a team of Resistance members and U.L.F. scientists to Amagosa III, which he believed was the planet that Palpatine had arrived on with a ship build by the Mumifar, that had artificial wormhole technology and which had been sent to Palpatine’s galaxy to search for help against the Bohrok. The ship should still be there, because the only inhabitants in the past 5000 years had been the Federation; many parts of the base, including living quarters, should still be there, because the Imperial Titan had only destroyed the control and research centres. Yoda would wait until the 3 amigos and their group came back, because he wanted to ask Johnny to join him later, so he could use the knowledge of his father’s tales to find the ship.

While the U.L.F. was contemplating their next move while fighting off the aggressors in the west, Cell had come up with a better plan to get to the afterlife: he would absorb the Toa and combine their divine powers to transport himself there.

First he attacked Gali, destroying her ocean planet and absorbing her after a tense struggle. Tahu was next, the Toa of fire was the most powerful of his race, but Cell’s strength was more than he could take and was absorbed too, his planet destroyed. Lewa, Toa of air and weather, lived on a planet with jungles, filled with life, he sensed the coming of this monster and before he could attack offered himself freely to him, if he would leave his planet alone. Cell agreed and took Lewa in him. He was about to destroy the planet anyway, but Lewa’s influence made him spare the green world, it seemed that his personality had a greater control inside of him, because he had given himself freely, also, Cell’s arms had turned green, Lewa’s colour. The mindless violence came to a halt because of this influence and Cell felt he had to do something about the Bohrok, so he transported himself to the nearest swarm and absorbed many of them before communicating with them through the taken Krana. He had shown his invincibility to them and came to a treaty, the Bohrok wouldn’t attack the Valcro Zone as long as he lived and he wouldn’t kill any of them anymore. From within the Bohrok, but from far away a voice gave an answer, it said his name was Bebi, creator of the Bohrok, and that he agreed with the ultimatum.
Cell went on to absorb the last two Toa: Onua and Pohatu. He now had full control over the elements and felt like a God. His plan was a success; he could transport himself beyond the borders of this universe and first of all visit Limbo, where he absorbed the remaining Valcros, gaining all of their knowledge. This had been anticipated by the combined souls, but what they didn’t expect was that Cell could go even further into the afterlife. While the “Heaven”, where the souls were, could never be reached by any evil, Hell could, and Cell managed to absorb the Imperial Titan and while he was there, also took Palpatine, Dooku and #19. He went back to the dimension of the living, but with an altered look: he had taken the face of Palpatine in his younger days, with waving red hair, a stern look and a three day beard. The rest of his body looked more organic too; his sleeves were still green, but his torso and legs were now a completely black robe, while the buttons on his belt remained, to accompany the Valcronian Armour he still wore. He had also given himself a thin black staff, with a silver handle at the top and a red diamond. Cell had created it, because he found it to be a sign of power, like in the myths of Corna’El’s staff, although the stories did report of a much bulkier thing.
He felt he was powerful enough to defeat anyone, but felt he needed to absorb the Androids, he would not only take #17 and #18, but also the only other operational android created by Anakin: #08. The only Android left after that would be #21, Anakin himself. Cell’s divine powers had gotten to his head, he felt he didn’t need to listen to the crippled old man, in time he would absorb him too. First he’d go after #08, an Android that resembled #19 and #20, but without the “red hand”. Before the upgrades, #08 had been a Twi’lek, a dieing race that had been almost extirpated by the Bohrok more than 5 millennia earlier. He knew from Anakin that he was sent to Egyptsei, to attack the large Resistance groups…
Part 9: Hello and Farewell
When Luke had returned to New Valcro Prime, he flew into the arms of his wife, but their happiness would be short, because they had both felt the danger of the evil Cell.

The Jedi had sensed his absorption of the Toa and every other creature. He shouldn’t be allowed to take the two androids that had taken refuge with them: a sparring match had proven that #17 and #18 were more powerful than Jonathan in his Super-Saiyan state, but that Luke was still stronger, because of his intense training.
Legends had told them that the Super-Saiyans would be unbeatable, so Johnny started to believe that there had to be an even higher form; Luke agreed with his father. They understood that they needed to cut the amount of energy lost by transforming and by their auras. They needed to be calm while becoming a Super-Saiyan, so that their emotions and energy could be used to reach the next level.

They didn’t want to jeopardise the planet, because it was rather fragile due to its artificial creation, also the great amount of construction sites could be harmed by the tremors. Instead they would go to Amagosa III, where Jonathan was planning to go anyway, Yoda had left only a few days earlier. That world had a very stable core and the only buildings that had been left standing by the Imperial Titan were just one story high. They would leave when the Spirit returned in 5 days with the ambassadors. During that time, several Jedi and M-Tron would be selected to join Luke’s team to train on Amagosa III, among them the two officers who had died first.

Because of her function as U.L.F. president, Sofie couldn’t join them. Her administrational and military duties didn’t allow it; she was still very busy coordinating the defence against the attacks at the borders in the west. Although they were winning the battle, they had lost several good men, and Sofie didn’t hide her opinion of Johnny’s actions. She still hadn’t really forgiven him for killing his father, but she could still stay rather cool.

Luke’s fame because he had killed Palpatine made him the new unofficial pr-president of the U.L.F. and the Resistance. In a few months, there would be a vote to decide if he would become the real president of a combined government. For his new function, he wore a new suit: completely black with a white belt and epaulette. He didn’t abandon the M-Tron style of clothes completely, because the black shirt was actually the kind of blouse worn by special agents, beneath their sleeveless red pullover; normal agents had a white shirt, Luke had been the only special M-Tron agent who wore one and was unique because of his grey trousers. Luke’s new clothes looked like a combination of a black Jedi-styled robe and a more formal military suit, albeit without any insignia.
When the Spirit returned, Luke greeted the ambassadors before stepping aboard himself, together with his son Anakin, his father Jonathan, his cousin Erick, the two Androids, John Ice, Jack Neil, the two regular M-Tron agents that had been victims of the Titan: Ronny Angillis and Kevin Vandewelt, Special Agents Tina Thomson and Sam Darkner, Jedi Masters Obi Wan Kenobi and Cho-Adi Mundi, Jedi Knights Jordan Umberto, Lien Haven and their apprentices Yoshio Ballard (son of Anton Ballard, General of the Jaridian Faction of the Resistance) and Beatrice Leonard-Connors.
The bold assembly aboard Timothy’s ship now parted the safety of New Valcro Prime, as some of the few Federation and Resistance members allowed off-world during the Cell crisis.

But the safety of the planet would soon seem very relative…
While the Spirit was on its week long journey to the Amagosa system, Cell had found #08 on Egyptsei. He had sensed Cell’s creation and hadn’t started any large attack, because he knew it would draw attention, but he had been discovered nonetheless.

A Battle during the Sith Wars, more than 120.000 years earlier, had transformed the large megalopolis into a dry desert with only several metropolitan cities and some ancient pyramids. During Jonathan’s reign, Pharaohs Mentuhotep I and II had reigned, put there by Valcro. During this time they had enslaved the Witeling from the nearby planet, but he had been killed during the battle of the great fleet, and now Amenemhat the first was the new Pharaoh, chosen to be a spiritual leader only.

He had almost been assassinated by #08 , but was stopped by Cell, who wanted to absorb him. In the royal castle a fight broke out between them, the android tried to hide from the superior creature in the maze of the catacombs, but Cell simply bashed through the walls to find him. #08 flew right through the ceiling of the palace, into the sky, trying to escape into outer space and Cell followed him. The events were noticed by the militia of Rick Chom, General of the Mumifar Faction of the Resistance, but they realised they couldn’t attack such powerful invaders, since most Jedi had been called to New Valcro, or were on their way to Amagosa III to join Luke’s training and Yoda’s search for the historical Mumifar ship.

The capital’s defence canons were fired, but the androids easily avoided the blasts. They were now fighting in the cloudless night sky, but suddenly a large amount of thunder clouds obscured the firmament, this was Cell’s doing. #08 avoided the lightening blasts, but suddenly, the clouds changed into fire; surprised by the sudden inferno, Cell could grab the android and absorbed him. His appearance hadn’t changed, but he had gained more insight on Anakin’s plans and he felt it was time to pay him another visit, his final one…

But before that, he wanted to have some fun and he spread the blazing sky over the entire planet and scorched the surface into glass. With his powers over the elements, he transformed every bit of matter on the planet into glass, and smashed the globe into countless little bits, killing billions for his own amusement. The shock this created through the Force made everybody realise the very real threat of Cell. This murderous villain could not be reasoned with. Before visiting his creator, he wanted to absorb Seth Oz, for his knowledge…

Part 10: Defeat and Exile

The Federation troops had won the battle of the western borders, but somehow the victory seemed strange. The Valcronian forces had suddenly retreated, and their attack had never appeared very serious. Ace started to fear it had all just been a diversion and warned New Valcro Prime, which put more power into their long range sensors. It seemed Ace had been right, a large group of ships was in hyperspace, the amount could not be calculated, but they were headed to the planet, coming from the direction of the nebula where Jack and Obi Wan had found the construction site of the Black Star. It had been assumed that the manufacturing of the dreaded super-weapon had been stopped after the destruction of Medusa and the Hypno-crystal, which would have become its core; it would at least seem obsolete next to the Titans and other Androids, who could do as much damage, or even more.
Ace and his fleet would take at least a full day to travel to New Valcro, while the Imperial fleet would be there in less than half a day. Calling back the spirit was completely useless, because they had almost arrived at Amagosa III. The remaining ships had to do the best they could until Ace’s fleet arrived. Several ships were sent through the wormhole, but there had been few battleships left in their home galaxy. Sofie and Sarah were at the head of the small group in the minister class vessel, their second most powerful ship. Ace had been ordered to stay behind in case this fleet was the actual diversion and there would be another ambush at the borders.
It was the incomplete Black Star under Thrawn’s command that was on its way to New Valcro Prime, together with three quarters of what was left of the Imperial Star Destroyer fleet, 160 massive ships, lead by Grand Moff Tarkin and his right hand (former Commander) Moff Jerjerrod. They were also accompanied by some Valcronian mother ships and warships. Jerjerrod had been glad when Palpatine had been killed, and thought of giving up his rebellion if the military leaders would take over all political powers and destroy the clones, but instead they joined with even more Valcros and the Black Star contained several million clone troopers in stasis. He also realised that the U.L.F. would perhaps be the only ones capable of disabling the current command structures, so that the Imperial military could cut loose from any Force-users. He knew this would be his only chance, and he revealed himself as the leader of the storm trooper rebellion to his mentor Tarkin and asked him to join their cause. He was surprised, but in his cold, militaristic persona, he simply shot Andrew Jerjerrod, after which hundreds of troopers and officers took over several Star Destroyers, including Tarkin’s. They overpowered him and agreed with the others to set a kamikaze course to take out as many ships as they could. The mammoth ships collided with each other, spreading there matter over a large area, because they were still travelling through hyperspace, and the matter only escaped when it hit the sides of the tunnel through which they moved. They managed to take half of the fleet and damage the other ships. Many engines were affected and couldn’t maintain a stable field for hyperspace travel, so the entire fleet, including the Black Star had to stop for repairs. But some ships that had been taken over had survived too, they now activated their self destruct, which was linked to powerful explosives, more than were needed to blow up the ship, it was designed to take out the enemy too. Another 20 ships were destroyed, and the others even more damaged when 5 ships among them exploded. Thrawn was furious; he swore that when he obtained the circles, he would resurrect the traitors only to kill them again.
The repairs gave the U.L.F. fleet time to reach New Valcro Prime. Long range sensors indicated a large fleet of Destroyers, together with the Black Star, so they called back Ace Erdam too, but he’d probably arrive too late…

The spirit was unpacking their supplies on Amagosa III, while the three amigos, together with Anakin, Obi Wan and Johnny were scouting for a good location for their training. After the destruction of Egyptsei, the importance of defeating Cell had become very obvious. They stopped when Luke received an urgent message from his wife: a large fleet was on its way to attack them, and they weren’t sure if they would survive. The group stopped on top of a hill to meditate and try to sense the battle.
Before Ace could return to the planet, the Imperial fleet arrived. The U.L.F. was able to destroy many Star Destroyers, especially those whose weapons and shields hadn’t been completely fixed yet. The attacking ships targeted many escape ships that were leaving the planet, killing the refugees. At a great cost, the U.L.F. managed to destroy all the Star Destroyers, but because the new Death Star was made of black metal, their weapons had little effect on it.

A large amount of Tie fighters, operated by clones, were released by the Black Star. These completely replaceable ships had no shields at all, to increase speed and fire power. The Federation destroyed several waves until being overpowered. Sensors showed that the super weapon was loading its beam. Sofie and Sarah’s ship was the only undamaged ship left and it flew into the atmosphere of New Valcro Prime; they used the Force to enhance the shields and diverted all power to it, even life support. They knew they could never stop the beam, but maybe they could give others more time to escape. It worked for about 3 seconds, before their ship was vaporised. The beam hit the planet and this perfected technology didn’t just made the planet explode, it made the elements itself split, so New Valcro Prime and its rings were destroyed in an colossal nuclear flash, leaving nothing except the rings and the Hypno-crystal, which were quickly beamed to Thrawn’s control chamber.

Anakin had sensed the death of his mother and while still in trance, his anger exploded, he knew it was an evil version of himself that had ordered the attack and his emotions were channelled through his power. The hill they were on cracked into many bits that started levitating around him. In a great golden burst, Anakin transformed into a Super-Saiyan, while crying over the loss of Sofie. Luke’s frustration made him transform involuntary too and he joined his son in their grief. Jonathan’s last conversation with her hadn’t been very friendly, but he was sad too and transformed, just out of sympathy and together, the trio of Super Saiyans formed an awesome sight of yellow light in the evening of an autumn day on the part of Amagosa III. But they feared it wasn’t over yet, and their fears were realised, because the Black Star entered the wormhole to the Federation’s capital. The super weapon destroyed the mother asteroid and its orbiting rocks, including the Capital Asteroid. King Oz, Blake and Emmett Tron, the entire Federation government, except Luke and those that had followed him, Rob Valcro, and many other key figures of the U.L.F. were instantly killed. With its hyperdrive and several wormholes, the Black Star could attack the most important Federation colonies over a couple of days. The U.L.F. had already covered a large part of their galaxy, but most of their fleet had been in the Valcro Zone, decimated by Star Destroyers and Tie fighters. Thrawn “only” wanted to kill every leader or fighter in the U.L.F.; the rest would be his (and old Anakin’s) to rule.
Ace had arrived at the location of New Valcro, but only some radiation and a lot of helium and hydrogen was left, except for the debris from the fleets. In a desperate move, he made sure the Black Star couldn’t come back to the more populated areas of the cluster: the Valcro Zone; he flew towards the wormhole and released several anti-matter mines into it, sealing its opening forever. The passage between the U.L.F. and the Valcro zone had been destroyed, the United Lego Federation was completely wiped out, and the only ones left were now in exile on Amagosa III.

Ace knew that they needed all the help they could get, now that all he cared for, his entire world and home had been destroyed, almost all his family, friends and loved-ones were gone, but he had to help what was left and set a course for Coruscant, to pick up Anita, whose knowledge would come to good use.

On Amagosa III, the researchers and Jedi were shocked when they learned of the Federation’s demise. Struck with grief, they fell on their knees and hoped they could overcome this great tragedy. The auras of the three Super Saiyans exploded into even greater flames and it was now visible from outer space. Cell was an even greater threat than the Black Star, so they had to train harder than ever, and use their grief to make themselves stronger and to prepare for the battle ahead…
Part 11: Anakin’s Plan

Thrawn had destroyed most of the U.L.F. but was angered when he found out that the wormhole had been shut.

Using their hyperdrive to travel back to their galaxies would take at least 5 years, but they could use the mystical powers of the ring and crystal (which had now almost completely lost its inner glow) to cut it to about 3 years. Reluctantly, they started on the long voyage home. Thrawn decided to use the circles to resurrect Mara Jade and train her, if only to pass the time.

In the mean time, Cell was disappointed he never had the chance to destroy the U.L.F. and decided not to help Thrawn. With his divine powers, he would be able to transport them back, but he feared the Black Star could still destroy him while he hadn’t absorbed #17 and #18. He had recently absorbed Darth Seth and Lassal Valcro too and was on his way to meet Anakin when he was confronted by the Collector: Andrew Maul. He should remain neutral, but the destruction of the U.L.F. and the danger of Cell were something he couldn’t deny any longer. With his technology, the collector had been able to built up a lot of power and he was able to hit Cell into the face and cut him into several pieces with the lightsabre he hadn’t used in several millennia, it actually had a double blade, something that had been a little more common before the Matrix. He had used up all his energy already and Cell reformed almost instantly and Andrew’s next slices just went through him, Cell became liquid at the points were the blade touched him, but instantly repaired himself. He was about to absorb his foe, but Andrew realised he carried to much knowledge and made his suit explode before Cell could continue. “Rather dead than a part of me”, thought Cell, “that’s quite an insult”.
Cell transported himself to the Sith temple in the Blood Cloud, where he found Anakin meditating. Without moving, Anakin talked to him


-You’ve progressed greatly, especially since you’ve absorbed the Toa

-You are now not needed anymore, old man. I, Cell, shall rule the cluster; Seth and Lassal are absorbed and after you I’ll take Jonathan Junior too and there’ll be no one to question my reign!
-I have indeed reached my final hours, but I’m afraid you’re wrong about one assumption: you are not Cell.

-When I absorb #17 and #18 I will be complete, but that won’t take long.

-Wrong again, you would still be incomplete and still not Cell.
-This is just a trick to make me keep you alive, or perhaps you’ve just gone mad, but I don’t mind, it’s your Super-Saiyan capabilities I’m most interested in, Palpatine’s are nice, but I need more.

-Go ahead then, absorb me…

Without any struggle, Anakin let himself be absorbed. Suddenly, Cell gained the calm that his creator just showed. His wild red hair turned into a shade of orange, and into a nice comb, a coup young Anakin had, his small beard disappeared too, and in young Anakin’s voice he said:

“My creator was right, I wasn’t Cell yet, but now I am!”
Part 12: Discovery & Training

After a couple of days of mourning, the crew on Amagosa III started their training. Numerous Mumifar, including several Jedi arrived at the planet; since their home planet had been destroyed. Others soon came too, because Federation members that were still offworld were being targeted by the troops of the New Valcronian Empire; scattered Resistance groups were under constant attack too, many Faction Generals had been assassinated and most planets had been retaken by the growing dominion of Cell. They were now fighting all the different groups in the Valcro Zone: the N-O.C., the Coalition, the last remnants of the Resistance and even the Neutrals (though their advanced technology made them quite a formidable foe), but the only ones that were holding their grounds were the Non-Organics, who had found a way to retrieve the souls of lost Smallbots, first as a way to give them a body again, afterwards as a way to perform more daring attacks with their large fleet. This was not, however, the technology Femme Fatale had been secretly working on years before, because it had relied on the Matrix.
Coruscant still got away with their supposed neutrality, the planet was now under the command of Maixi, who had expanded his powers to dictator-like levels, winning people with his anti-Force propaganda. Anita had gone into hiding, because she feared people knew her Federation origin and Resistance membership; there were many Imperial spies on the planet. She was glad when Ace found her to bring her to Amagosa III. Before they went she had to perform a final act, several members of the Calamarian space troops, who had aligned themselves under General Kovitch, had fled to Coruscant and they had discovered that Cell had put a depository of his nano-probes in the destroyed Sith temple on this planet, in case he was destroyed, he could simply reform here. They had managed to create a crude, but powerful croniton bomb, which should be able to destroy the inactive probes. They succeeded in placing the bomb, and a timer was activated, so they would be far away when the explosion took place.
Together with the Calamarian troops and Anita Ice, Ace arrived on Amagosa III. The military leaders held a meeting: the Empire was taking over the Valcro Zone, but most of their fleet had been destroyed at New Valcro Prime, and the Black Star was stuck in another galaxy, they only had about 50 Star Destroyers left, so the one thing that made the Empire successful, was Cell, it was the only real threat standing in the way of a large victory, but to defeat him they had to train harder than ever before.

Anita had put on her old Ice uniform, which se had taken with her to Coruscant, and she was re-established as a Vice President of Ice. After a couple of weeks, Anakin, Jonathan and Luke had mastered their Super-Saiyan technique, they could be in the transformed state without loosing any power and without an aura. The other Jedi and M-Trons mastered several techniques like flight.
The first of May 5006, the anniversary of the U.L.F., was a day of mourning, a day on which they remembered the countless victims; tomorrow it would be Anakin’s first birthday, but of course he didn’t feel like celebrating. Finally there was some good news: Yoda’s team, now under command of Anita, had found the ancient Mumifar ship, buried under a beach. The lake next to the beach was actually formed because of the impact crater of the ship.  The ship had only one deck that looked like a great hall; in the middle there was a large inactive holographic projector, which had probably served to display their position and heading. Yoda was familiar with the technology, because he lived in the era it had been build. After a few hours, they managed to reactivate the fusion reactor and the hall was lit. The Mumifar on the team quickly deciphered several symbols on the walls, they pressed a hidden button, and a wall went up, revealing a hallway leading to the front of the ship. Several warning signs made it clear this area was the most dangerous part of the ship, because it held the wormhole technology. The team had activated the holographic projector, which also showed several log entries about the Bohrok invasion and the trip to the galaxy Palpatine came from. It could be used to travel anywhere they wanted, but the Mumifar representatives already said they couldn’t expose the valuable historical artefact to great risks; they also prohibited taking anything apart, because of the damage they could inflict. The ship had to be studied as a whole. The remaining leaders on Amagosa III decided that they could use the ship as a last way of escape, so the means to activate the wormhole technology was the first priority of the researchers.
Half-way June… Training had been going on for months, when suddenly they picked up a signal that didn’t have a U.L.F. or Resistance signature; they feared they had been discovered, but to their surprise, a ship from the N-O.C. arrived. It had transmitted the message that they meant no harm, and the ship was allowed to land, with several standing ready to defend themselves. Two standard droids walked out and behind them came Red Sincam himself. He offered peace between their nations, to battle their common enemy: Cell. Red wanted to train with them, because he was the most powerful of the former Valcronian Agents, which he had given their original name: the Spirion. Because he wore Valcronian armour, he could control his powers better than others.

They wondered how he had been able to get to the Amagosa system undetected, but Red replied he had simply morphed into an Imperial officer and said he had captured the ship to anyone asking questions.
To prove that he meant well, he gave the exiles a gift: the Circle of Space, which could be used to travel anywhere, if they had the crystal. Red explained that they had found the Circle of Time too, but it had been taken by the Empire, days before their attack on New Valcro Prime, so it was probably on board the Black star, with the other two.
All had been found now; this gave the survivors some hope: if they managed to defeat Cell and the Black Star, they could combine the 4 circles and the crystal, to restore the damage done by Anakin’s androids and the Valcronian Empire.

In a sparring match, Red showed of the Spirion techniques, which Cell possessed too: creating a shield, healing, morphing, turning into a spirit-like cloud and creating a field around themselves and their enemy, which resembled the Matrix: it made it harder for the opponent to use the Force. When Red was fighting Erick Valcro, he had a surprise: Erick pushed a button on his belt, and Red fell down under the weight of his armour. Ironically, Red wore Erick’s old armour, and he still had some control over it, because of his suit and technology in his body.
Sincam realised that the officers wearing the armour, including the two leading Spirion under him, Karim Jafar and Benjamin Turner, could be defeated easily if Cell used the influence from the dead Valcros he had absorbed.

Together they trained, and Red started a friendship with his former enemies, even with Jonathan Valcro, the man he had despised for such a long time. He promised that if they would ever be successful, the N-O.C. would help them with building up a new government, and that their nations would cooperate in relative peace. He also promised Luke would still get the drink Femme Fatale had promised him years ago.
They formed a loose agreement for what would later become the Freedom Pact. In exchange for all their cooperation, the Spirion were allowed access into their galaxy, to search for their lost home planet Brasalia. This was very similar to the pact they had made with Sharkthoot ten years earlier, with one big difference: neither side was fooling the other.
Training continued for another month, Red would regularly give them updates of what was happening in the Valcro Zone. The N-O.C. had expanded its territory to the few remaining planets under Resistance control, with the promise they could keep their sovereignty and that they would do anything to protect them. They had lost more terrain than they had won, because Cell was present at most of the battles. They had also discovered a second depository of Cell’s nano-probes, made after the destruction of the one on Coruscant. The location of the planet was still not completely known, but they knew it was somewhere between the former location of Valcro Second and the locations of Jaridia and Treneb. (A planet with several seasons and climate zones, which had many weapons factories and research centres for technology of war, and some of most important shipyards in orbit. The planet was formerly controlled by Valcron and the N.V.A., and now it was almost certainly the new home of Jonathan Junior and one of the leading planets of the New Valcronian Empire.)
This was still a quite large triangle, but N-O.C. scouts would find it soon, and then they would bombard the location with croniton torpedoes until it would be destroyed.

The leaders on Amagosa III thought it might be better for the Spirit to search for it, because of its cloak; they could stay undetected, and the ship had a secret croniton weapon, powerful enough to destroy Cell’s probes. The weapon had been tested successfully, but it would take a lot of energy, so they only had one shot, but if the scouts would attack, Cell would have a chance to sense it. Jonathan Valcro agreed to join the crew, because he knew a lot about the local planets; Red would go too, because parts of the space were under his command, and he needed to contact his troops. The Spirit left the safety of Amagosa III, but was arguably better of in space, cloaked. Their mission was important, but the battle with Cell could not be averted…
Part 13: Cell is Complete

After a week, the Spirit arrived at a meeting place with several scouts of the N-O.C. in the region they had to explore. The scouts had reduced the number of systems they had to inspect to a dozen. After another week, they had found the planet they were looking for.
The Spirit’s sensors found a small temple in the middle of a forest, with definite signs of Cell’s probes and no civilizations nearby. The ship prepared to fire its secret weapon and had to decloak. Several scouts were also at the location, they would bombard the target too, to deliver an extra blow, in fact many ships of the N-O.C. were on route to the planet to aide the Spirit, in case their blast wouldn’t suffice.

When the last cruisers were in place, several hidden cannons on the surface exposed themselves and started firing at the Spirit. The scouts caught the projectiles and sacrificed themselves so that the Federation ship could carry out its mission. A hatch of the Spirit opened and a blinding flash hit the temple, followed by many shots from the surviving ships. The cannons on the surface were annihilated along with Cell’s shrine. Inside the Spirit, consoles were exploding and systems were going down because of the huge energy loss. The other cruisers were moving towards it to give it some of their energy, but they exploded before they could get into the right spot. Cell had arrived at the scene and was attacking them. The N-O.C. ships fired at the monster, but his different forms of morphing and control over the elements made him able to transform into solid black metal, impervious for the croniton assault.
The cruisers were quickly destroyed, but he didn’t touch the Spirit, because he wanted to find out where the remnants of the U.L.F. were hiding. Cell entered the ship, only to find out it was empty and had set a self destruct, triggered by Cell’s intrusion. The crew had beamed down to the planet and saw the destruction of their flagship. They had prepared themselves for this possibility and had packed the ship with crystalline cronitons, but it wasn’t enough to finish of Cell. He came down to the planet, but was clearly tired from the immense energy he had to spend for his more extreme actions. Jonathan started mocking him:
-I thought that the all-powerful Cell had an endless supply of energy. I suppose you can be beaten or even killed without being fully destroyed.
-The Titans had a seemingly endless supply, but my actions are far greater than theirs. If they could’ve done any of my acts, they would have depleted all their reserves. However, there are two beings that do have an endless supply, although they’re not that strong: the two androids that you keep from my perfection. My only motif for absorbing them is stamina; their power is nothing compared to my strength, but together we’ll be truly invincible.
-But not yet, apparently.

-Make no mistake, I could still kill you instantly. You’re just one Super Saiyan and one Agent, the rest isn’t even worth mentioning, whilst I have absorbed two Super Saiyans and many more Agents. I’ll quickly dispose of you, so I can absorb your first born son and truly usurp the position of Emperor.
-We’ll see…

Jonathan fired an enormous blast at Cell, while transforming at the same time. Red joined him and fired too. Cell was impressed that they had such strength, he had noticeably misjudged his foes; the training had paid of. While he was holding back the attack with his hands, he fired at Johnny with his eyes, hitting his shoulder, commenting that their “decaying husks” were no match for his body. Red made a fatal mistake: he created a matrix field around him and Cell, but this allowed him to look inside Sincam’s mind, learning of the Federation’s sanctuary. Cell took control of the field and expanded it around the others. Suddenly they were all on Amagosa III. He started killing everyone in sight. The Jedi fired at him, but with little effect. The more powerful heroes like the three amigos and Anakin quickly arrived to help. Together they could keep Cell at his place. Cell used his divine powers to cause floods, knocking them of their feet. In this small moment of confusion, he managed to grab #17 and absorb him. This assimilation was destined in his design and Cell changed again, this time much more violently. Beneath his armour he now had a black cape, his hair had also turned black and his sleeves were now red. “Almost!”, he yelled, “Almost complete! Almost perfect!” With much more focused and controlled beams, he killed Tina and Red. It seemed the fusion with #17 was such an integral part of his design, that it not only gave him a better source of energy, it also gave him a form of control over his powers. #18 followed quickly after her brother. Cell now changed for a last time: the cape and armour disappeared, and his belt with buttons along with it. He looked less bulky, more lenient, physically; if you didn’t know who he was, you’d think he was just an ordinary young man. But there was nothing ordinary about this monster, Cell was now complete, designed to be unstoppable, the perfect android…
Part 14: The Clash of Superlatives
Cell swept through the Jedi and the M-Tron like they were butter. Yoda stepped in and managed to hold him back, he used his vast amount of energy, but knew he couldn’t hold on much longer. He probably had enough force to defeat Cell, but his age didn’t allow it, no one’s body could manage the stress, or so he thought. Yoda knew he couldn’t help anymore and stepped back. John and Jack started fighting hand to hand with Cell and they showed much finesse, but they also knew that they had to let the Super Saiyans handle it, because they were far ahead of them. Johnny, Luke and Anakin fired a beam at Cell, which he countered with his own ray. They hadn’t been able to transform beyond this level, but had managed to push it to its limits. Luke knew that an extreme emotional reaction was needed for such a transformation. Cell’s beam was becoming stronger than theirs and he was also coming closer himself. He swiftly moved behind Jonathan and managed to morph his hand into a lightsabre, stabbing Valcro through his heart, before he could react. The death of his grandfather struck Luke and Anakin hard and Luke sensed it was almost enough for his son to transform, he had to mould the iron while it was hot and made a decision: he told his son to resurrect them and everybody else with the circles; he would try to take out Cell by killing himself, using every bit of his energy to destroy him. Anakin yelled no, but John and Jack took him and flew away, together with the other survivors.
Luke grabbed Cell and flew with him into the atmosphere, to a safer distance from the surface. Cell created thunder to stop him, but Luke had built up all his remaining powers and brought them out, sacrificing himself again for the greater good, of course he trusted his friends and family to make sure he was revived, which made it a little easier, tough not much. The flash of energy was blinding and all around the planet clouds were twirling out of control and the oceans were in turmoil, but not as turbulent as Anakin’s feelings, just having lost his grandfather, and now also his father, and as he felt that Cell was already reforming, his emotions took over, his powers exploded and a second transformation took place, his blond Super Saiyan hair even brighter and pointing upward, his muscles seemed larger and his eyes more determined. His golden aura was violent and accompanied by fierce blue lightening. Cell fired a beam at him, but he fired one in return, which engulfed Cell’s and which he couldn’t stop. His hands started to disintegrate, and soon his body followed. Anakin had done it; he had destroyed Cell in an instant with his incredible powers. He was exhausted and fell to the ground, turning back into his normal self.
At the location where Cell’s last probe had been destroyed, a large sparkle occurred. A large crowd appeared in front of him, apparently some sort a fail-safe device that had been built into Cell’s design. Everyone he had absorbed was now returned to their normal state, including the Toa, the Androids and old Anakin, who sat down on his knees, crying about what he had done. He had been struck by Luke’s death too and saw how much he meant for his other self, he finally saw what he could have become. Around the old man a new battle occurred between the survivors and the evil parts of Cell, killing the androids except old Anakin, #17 and #18. The Valcros were captured while Seth could escape during the confusion.  After a few minutes the battle ended. All evil parts had been killed, except the Valcros. There were no Bohrok, because only the Krana came out, and they were also easily defeated.

Old Anakin was still crying in the middle of the field. Smoke was clearing up, and just as the young version was stepping toward him, four circles appeared between them. Luke flew from the middle, at least he looked like Luke, but his clothes were different, he still had an M-Tron uniform, but with black arms and legs, a black cape and red epaulette. He explained he was the Luke Valcro from the timeline in which Anakin had become evil. He had sent his son to the past but because of a glitch a double of the circles had stayed behind, he could only come back to a time after the end of the Matrix, but when he saw what Anakin had set in motion, he had to wait even more. Now Anakin had finally learned his lesson, and saw that with the right education and the right influences, he could’ve turned out just fine, it was never his destiny to turn to the dark side. Luke used the power of his circles to give his son a second chance, he made him young again, and revived his lost limbs.
Before they left for their own timeline, the alternative Luke explained that the circles of this timeline would disappear after they would be used for something as large as restoring the entire U.L.F., so they had to formulate their request very clear, to include everything they had to revive. He predicted they had to reform the circles one day, and that those four would stay, but scatter through an area larger than their cluster of galaxies if they made a large request. Luke and Anakin said goodbye and stepped inside their four circles and disappeared.

By leaving his son in the past, Luke had given the cluster the greatest enemy they had ever seen, but it had changed the timeline enough so that Jonathan and Erick had become good and so that Anakin never turned evil in the first place. And with Anakin’s new power they were more than ready for the Bohrok, which would surely start attacking again now that Cell was dead. The Toa also departed and were sorry they couldn’t use their powers to transport a mortal being, but they could reveal the location of the Black Star.

The surviving crew now worked harder than ever on the ancient Mumifar ship, they didn’t have to reactivate their sub light engines, only the wormhole technology and life-support. They also fitted it with a cloaking device. They received a lot of help from the Non-Organics, which could apparently move much more easily through Imperial space. After a month the ship was restored, dug out and brought into orbit with several rockets.
They were now ready to reclaim the Circles and the Hypno Crystal and confront Grand Admiral Thrawn and the Black Star to restore what had been lost…

Chapter9: The Krana War

Part 1: The Black Star’s Demise
W

hen the ancient ship travelled almost instantly to the location of the Black Star; John, Jack and Anakin beamed themselves directly into Thrawn’s meditation chamber, where they were greeted by Mara Jade. Thrawn had resurrected her with the circles and trained her during the last months. But she knew she couldn’t handle the party and surrendered. She led them to the weapon control room where the circles and the crystal had been installed. The Grand Admiral was still nowhere in sight, Mara claimed that he was sleeping. They couldn’t remove the artefacts from the black metal centre they had been placed on and beamed the fourth circle to the room. A second transporting beam attached it to the pole, with the others, and the weapon started to power up. The party was transported to the disc of the Black Star, where Thrawn was suspended, right in the path the beam would take. There was a shallow atmosphere outside the base, so they didn’t suffocate. He explained the Death Star program wasn’t started to destroy planets, but to design a concentrated beam of pure energy, to eventually be harvested in a being.
The greenish beam that had destroyed New Valcro Prime and U.L.F. and which was now powered with the Hypno-crystal, as was intended, and also focused with the circles, now hit Thrawn. His black hair turned blond and a golden aura with blue sparks appeared around him. He had achieved the second level of the Super Saiyan without effort.

Anakin transformed too and defeated him quite quickly, because Thrawn lacked the natural insight, he didn’t know how to control it. The Mumifar ship now managed to beam the circles and the crystal aboard, which also took away Thrawn’s powers. He collapsed due to the stress on his body and was taken aboard too. There where no officers or anybody else left on the Black Star, only clones in an incomplete faze; so they decided to leave it adrift in space and use its final energy to power up their wormhole generator, travelling to the former location of Egyptsei. The Damage of Cell and the Valcronian Empire was undone in a second; everything and everybody were restored. The ship would be left on Egyptsei for further studies. By now it was September again, a month that always seemed to have a great climax. The Resistance, the U.L.F. and the N-O.C. rejoiced on New Valcro Prime. They signed the freedom pact, they would work together in their battles against the Valcronian Empire (now under control of Jonathan Junior), the Sharkthoot-Virus Coalition and the Bohrok, against whom they had to find a real solution: they had to find the planet or place where they were constructed, where the Krana originated from and from where Bebi was staging his attacks, if the creature was still alive, because his existence had only been rumoured.
However, on a planet between the nebulas of the Federation’s second galaxy, from where the Bohrok had first attacked, machines were creating several new bodies. A voice spoke out to the collective mind of the Krana: “They may have found new powers, and they may be enough for you, but I’ve made a new deal with Makuta. Your original, independent forms, the Kraata, will harvest powers from beyond this plane of existence!” All of the planets in the system where now spawning Bohrok, as were the newly conquered planets, which had been infested with Krana, after reforming it in their image. The voice was laughing and said one more thing before returning to one of his long sleeps: “The purity of the Tsufuru-jin shall engulf the universe, and I will get my revenge on the Saiyans!”
Part 2: Find the Force
The Federation was now viewed as the saviour of the cluster, they had defeated Cell. But many that had died and had been resurrected were afraid their link to the rebelling groups had been the fault of their death and didn’t want to die again. The U.L.F. and the Resistance knew they had to show they could handle the new threads and demonstrate their stability, especially on economic field, because many contractors and labourers refused to return to New Valcro Prime to continue their work on the new cities.
To convince several groups who wanted to leave the Resistance, the members of the Freedom Pact wanted to show they could cooperate: they modified several battle-spacesuits of the Calamarian Space Troops to perform harmless transwarp speeds. To prove their confidence, Luke and John would perform a test flight between the Paragan planets Paragall and Quruvall; a trip of about a day, depending on the effectiveness of the transwarp-field, which had to be adjusted not to harm biological beings.
Unfortunately, the experiment went completely wrong; the scientists hadn’t taken the proximity of two altered transwarp-fields into their calculations, John and Luke were of course for at least 5%, which made the search area quite large, possibly even including Coalition space. And they only had enough fuel for the experimental trip.
After 23 hours, the duo came out of hyperspace way too close to a planet, they immediately knew something was wrong and tried to use the Force to escape the planet’s gravity, which failed. Luke realised the planet had a similar effect as Limbo and Yoda’s refuge. He remembered several things he had said about such planets “They deflect the Force, some more than others... Planets such as this one are scarce, but they do exist… Once you are used to the effect, you are immune for it and can use the Force on that planet, but every Force-repelling world has a unique signature, so the immunity only works on the planet you had to relearn your abilities, but each time it’ll come quicker of course, because you know how to deal with it…”
Wise advise and Luke and John had both trained in such environments, but useless in such a short time. They transferred all power left over in their suits to the shields and engines, to survive a plunge into the atmosphere and to land on the surface unharmed.

They crashed far away from each other, Luke in a desert, John in a meadow; both unconscious, scarred and bruised, but without any broken bones or internal injuries. They lay in a crater, surrounded by the burning rubble of their suit and clothes. Luke was taken to a small desert village near an oasis and his wounds were treated by local inhabitants, Humans, who had been kept dumb by the Valcros, like the Humans on Tower Planet. After waking up, he started meditating and training to regain his powers, but this planet seemed to be rather extreme in its repelling of the Force, because he only succeeded in moving some dirt.
Luke asked the inhabitants if there was a place from which they were ruled. They replied their benevolent god lived on the clouds around “Mount Dei”, from which he had recently banished the former Gods. Luke realised the planet had to be in the territory of the Coalition, or perhaps another warlord who had stayed in the background during the intergalactic conflicts. They showed Luke the way and offered him a car, but this journey reminded him of his voyage to the mountain of Limbo, and he knew he had to do it without help, to regain his control over the Force. After travelling a week through the desert and a large forest, he reached a highland with fields of grass, close to the mountain; in the distance he spotted a crater, like the one he had created when falling from the sky. Luke searched for the nearest village and found John meditating. The villagers had seen him falling and believed him to be an angel. By now John could move several pebbles, which fuelled the inhabitants’ believes. He now had even more control than Luke, because his powers hadn’t been as big as Luke’s, which meant he had to put a larger effort in using them, so he had less difficulty in recovering them.
They both reached the mountain after another three days. And started to climb…
Part 3: Grand Admiral Ceva

It took them yet another 5 days to reach a small plateau, still far from the top, but they where above a particularly low cloud, which seemed to stay illogically still. When Luke threw a stone at it, it disappeared. The cloud and much of the surrounding air was a projection! After carefully waving a foot through the shield, they stepped onto the “cloud”. In reality they were now standing on a large floating platform which was protected from the weather to create a liveable area. Several mercenaries, wearing the insignias of groups that had joined Valcron and later the Coalition, quickly captured the unarmed duo. To their surprise the ruler of the planet wore an Imperial uniform, white with a yellow epaulette: it was a Grand Admiral!
He introduced himself as Kaine Ceva, appointed Grand Admiral by Emperor Palpatine; one of the last three left, after the execution of Weierstrass and the capture of Thrawn. The other two were Machiavelli and Bolzano. He had overlooked the construction of the first (prototype) Death Star, but was discredited after his plan to destroy the Smallbot Badlands had failed. His reputation was really harmed after the first Death Star was destroyed by the U.L.F. and had left when Thrawn got his title, because he felt no one deserved to rise so quickly, not even a Valcro; the reason the Empire didn’t control the entire Valcro Zone was because of a war on the subject. He had defected to Valcron, to the province of the Computer Virus, who already had plans to throw out the Valcros, but it was all speeded up because of the start of the Valcronian Civil War at the Battle of the Great Fleet. He was now investigating the effects of Force-repelling planets, especially this one, “Experiment Planet”, which deflected the Force the most. He had discovered that the Bohrok also use the Force for their immense powers. If he could lure the armies to planets like these, their primary weapons would be useless and they could be destroyed with ease.
But first he had to settle a personal vendetta; when Luke was Darth Vader, he had discovered that the three amigos had been responsible for the failure of his plans to destroy the Badlands, and now he wanted to kill two of them. He also revealed that the great tactical knowledge of every Grand Admiral was caused by the Force, and that they had received training from Darth Bully. Ceva’s powers weren’t that large, so he had grown immune for the planet rather quickly. He drew his red lightsabre and attacked John and Luke, who still had much of their dexterity. Climbing the mountain had also brought back some of their own powers and Luke reached out for the sabre, but Kaine was still stronger. John started pulling too, but neither was willing to let go. After a minute, they started to get into a trance, reaching deeper and deeper into the Force, regaining more of their powers. The red sabre was now floating between them; but suddenly, in their trance, John and Luke connected through the Force and together they were able to reach deeper than before, coming back to full power. The sudden burst made Luke transform into a Super Saiyan and he destroyed the sabre. Grand Admiral Ceva was quickly captured and his minions defeated. 
A ship arrived at Experiment Planet with a warning to evacuate all Coalition personnel, a Resistance fleet was coming, and their ships couldn’t reach the planet in time. When they didn’t receive an answer, Warlord Simon Bicky transported himself to the platform. Bicky was an ex-Federation citizen and ICT specialist, who had conspired against the U.L.F. with the Computer Virus, during the Sharkthoot crisis over a decade ago. He was also a great cook, known for his burgers, which were still popular. He had left the U.L.F. together with the other conspirators and had become a warlord. He had never felt a grudge against the Federation and wasn’t keen on the war between them. He told Luke and John they could go and even take the Grand Admiral, for whom he had little respect, and conquer the planet, if he could take the rest of the personnel with him. Luke’s position as President of the new government made him able to officially make it a deal. A small Resistance fleet arrived and allowed Bicky’s ship to leave the system. After many calculations they had found the planet they had arrived on. A small taskforce was left behind to take command of Experiment Planet and Luke and John returned to New Valcro Prime.
New prototypes of the suits were developed and successfully tested, but they didn’t need to prove themselves anymore after the peaceful solution at Experiment Planet.

Luke and John were stronger than ever after their ordeal, but while John had no problems adjusting to his great new powers, becoming the most powerful human in the cluster (if he hadn’t been before), Luke couldn’t. He hadn’t transformed into the second level of the Super Saiyan and his power was too large to control, even his transformation into a “normal” Super Saiyan was now extremely violent. Powering up without transforming was equally damaging, destroying the surrounding landscape. Luke was now almost as powerful as a Super Saiyan 2 without transforming to the first level, so he decided to retire from battles and to meditate until he could control his powers. On a deserted planet he transformed and tried to control his violent golden aura, pointing it upward, so he could sit down while meditating…
Part 4: The Krana War

In the mean time the Bohrok were attacking again, but their invasion of planets was met by a group of Jedi, M-Tron and Spirion. The end of the Matrix had made them more powerful than Jedi from before the beginning of the Matrix, thanks to a similar effect as Force-repelling planets. Bohrok were now also invading the first galaxy of the Federation; every M-Tron and Jedi were needed to avert the many attacks, even the royal family of the U.L.F.

King Alex Oz and his father Blake, who had stepped down during the Sharkthoot crisis, were fighting Bohrok, together with Emmett Tron, founder of the M-Tron. Emmett had such a close bound with Blake, that he still called him king.
About a thousand Bohrok against a hundred Jedi and M-Tron, their lightsabres cutting through the powerful machines. Some Krana tried to attach themselves to the heads of the Jedi, to take over their bodies, but the well trained warriors cut them down before they could perform their plan. The Jedi from this era weren’t that much stronger then those of 5 millennia ago; it was the sheer number of Bohrok that was destroying them. One Super Saiyan was able to defeat them, temporarily, so 3 of them, including one who transformed into the next level, were sure to crush them once and for all.
Except for Luke, who still couldn’t control his new powers, these Super Saiyans performed in the simultaneous battles across the cluster, which had to send a message to Bebi: they could handle any Bohrok he dispatched.

But at the same time, they had to handle the war with the New Valcronian Empire, which had taken a major blow, but wasn’t defeated yet; they also had to manage the political difficulties with the N-O.C.

But the Krana War came first now for the Force-users, other factions were already planning attacks on the Empire, and the Non-Organics were helping them with their mutual enemies. The battles with the Bohrok were going in the right direction, losses were minimal, but several of them teamed up against Blake Oz, Sam Darkner and Sam’s wife Lois Faultrer, while holding back the others. Emmett and Alex were the first to reach him, but it was too late, both Lois and Blake, the former king of the U.L.F., were dead, while Sam was severely injured. They were overcome by grief and anger, but managed to control their emotions because of their Jedi training. Emmett Tron kneeled before Alex, who had been the official king for over 10 years now, and said: “The King is dead, long live the King”.
On the way to the field hospital Sam kept asking his great-grandfather Emmett about his wife, but he was unable to answer, using the Force to keep Sam alive until he could be helped.
Part 5: The Rahkshi

The battles were all won, but not without a heavy prize. Several Jedi, including Blake Oz, were killed, this time there was no way to revive them, unless they found the ancient scrolls and diamonds and reformed the circles.
The message came through to Bebi however; he decided it was time to send out his most powerful creations: the Rahkshi. The ancient Tsufuru-jin leader had made a pact with Makuta, an evil spirit that ruled the underworld. He had once tried to take over the afterlife, but failed. His body was taken away from him and he was locked in a tower in Hell, but he was not the ultimate evil, the true Master of Evil, whose essence had given Makuta a new strength (this Master had been locked in Hell since before time began, his essence captured in the Staff, mentioned as the inspiration for the Hypno-crystal). Bebi had fled to the cluster and sold his soul to Makuta for eternal life, now he had made a new deal: he’d create a new body for Makuta and his henchmen, if he was given powers that went beyond the mortal plane: powers over emotions. Bebi had been given six powers, as much as the different kinds of Bohrok, and also the amount of Toa. He implemented them in his new creatures, which were even larger than the Toa, and much more grotesque. They were operated by Kraata, a kind of longer shaped Krana, which didn’t have a hive mind, but they were more intelligent on their own than single Krana were. Krana were in fact an altered form of the Kraata, modified by Bebi for his Bohrok, but the Kraata were perfect for his new creations: the Rahkshi.
The first one he dispatched was Turahk, the Rahkshi of fear.
The old Cerijin Jedi Master Cho-Adi Mundi and the Calamarian Jedi knight from the Federation, Lien Haven, were searching for possible Bohrok scouts, to destroy them, before they could sent any data to their fleet. The Jedi duo sensed something strange, Krana-like on a planet, and Lien beamed down to check it out. She found a horrific monster towering over her, and when she looked into its eyes, she was struck by a great fear, larger than anything she’d felt before. Her Jedi techniques couldn’t control the fear and she fell to the ground. Cho-Adi felt something was wrong and beamed her back up, before the Rahkshi could harm her. They bombarded the planet, but this creature was much sturdier than any Bohrok and was unharmed. From the surface, he fired a beam that they could just barely dodge. This new creature was comparable to one of the Androids, but with a psychic power. They knew they weren’t powerful enough to defeat it, so they sent a message to Jonathan and Anakin, who happened to be only a few systems away, training together. They arrived on the planet a few hours later. Turahk had sensed they would come and waited for them, to test his strength. Johnny attacked first, with his lightsabre, but the Rahkshi seemed to be shielded against it, he was also a great martial artist, though it was a strange sight, since the monster was more than 5 times larger than Valcro.
A blast from Turahk’s large staff pushed Johnny into a rock. He transformed and returned the attack, but made the mistake of looking into his eyes. He immediately returned to his normal state, hit by fear, something he didn’t often feel. But as a Saiyan, he was able to feed this raw emotion to his powers and fired a strong blast at the creature’s head, unlocking their eye-contact. Johnny was alright again, transformed and fired a continuous volley of blasts at the giant, but he seemed indestructible. Anakin transformed too, but only to the first level, because the second required a lot of energy. He joined his grandfather’s assault, but Turahk managed to fight back and fired a strange beam from his staff. The light surrounded Anakin and Jonathan, leaving them motionless. “Your greatest fears come from yourselves”, said Turahk. Anakin saw that he was no longer on the planet, but on New Valcro Prime. He saw another version of himself walking towards him, only this Anakin had longer hair and wore a darker suit. “I am your destiny”, it told him, “I will create Cell and wreak havoc on the cluster, I am evil, we are evil!”
Anakin was confronted by his fear for the dark side, for what he could have become.

Jonathan had a similar experience, he saw the horrors he had conflicted when he was a dictator, confronted by his very real past and the fear that he could be turned again.

Anakin escaped from the vision by transforming into the next level, but Johnny started a fight with his, and stabbed the spectre with his lightsabre, but by doing so, he actually stabbed himself and fell down to the ground. Anakin fired his most powerful beam at Turahk, damaging the machine, and it decided to leave the planet. Johnny was rushed to a healing chamber, which was present on the orbiting ship. After a few hours, he was back on his feet, but the experience had exhausted both of them, they were still quite tired from the recent battle with the Bohrok. Had they been more rested, they would’ve been able to destroy the Rahkshi. It was time to get away from all of it…
Part 6: A Troubled Holiday

Timothy Ice, his two daughters Sofie and Sarah; Luke, Anakin, John and Jack all went on a holiday to Jolia together. They hadn’t taken any vacation in a very long time; the last one was when Anakin had been born. The recent stressful events had tired them, so this time off was well deserved.
Not only the battles had exhausted them, the political situation was quite fatiguing too: they had to form press freedom, deal with economic instability, because the new border was cutting right through the Circle of Five, the former most active economic region of Valcron, and they were opting for more democracy in the N-O.C., all while trying not to seem like they felt better than the rest of the cluster. The political relations with Coruscant were very bad, since Badong’s rule and the area was very unstable, because the local Pro-Consul Gibbs was having his opponents assassinated, having already killed Pro-Consul Hess and Moffs Boltzmann and Clapeyron; in another part of the Empire, in the former district of killed Consul Bully Junior (and Grand Moff Riemann, who had been eliminated by the Emperor), Grand Admiral Machiavelli had gotten rid the three Pro-Consuls Kirchhoff, Meissner and Ochsenfeld. While the Valcronian Empire, under the command of Jonathan Valcro Junior, was the official government, there were several de facto governments, which were accepted by the official rulers, as long as they supported the Valcronian Empire militarily. There was still much to be done for freedom in the former Valcro Zone. Meanwhile the wars against the Bohrok, the Coalition and the Valcronian Empire were still raging; an attack on Treneb would come soon. But not now, now they would enjoy a flawless holiday on the Jolian beaches.
John and Jack were enjoying a few cocktails and started talking:


-I thought Commandant Erdam would join us?

-No, Ace is investigating an explosion on Fubon, together with M-Tron Riana Covelante.

-Riana, Jim Johnson’s ex-wife? Doesn’t she usually handle paperwork?

-Yeah, it is mostly paperwork, someone was stupid enough to use antimatter weapons in the atmosphere; they immediately react with the air and destroy your own ship and leave some radioactive waste. I don’t know the full details of the mission, you should ask Sofie.
-Are the people from Fubon those really small beings?

-No, the Fuboni are exceptionally large, you’re thinking of the Wullians.

-Right… Are you sure Ace isn’t just cheating on you, Jack?

-No, he’s not! By the way, I don’t think he’s in to girls.

-Just joking, Jack. It seems really serious between you two; I thought it was just a fling, on Amagosa III, because we had all lost so much?

-No, it’s getting somewhere, he’s thinking of moving in with me.

-Sure it will work? You would be on separate missions a lot.

-It works for Luke and Sofie; they’re still very much in love.

-You know what you mean to me as a friend, I just don’t want you to get hurt.

-Thanks John, I really appreciate it.
In reality Jack was in love with someone else, this secret would colour the fate of the universe, but not now.
Sarah was swimming together with her nephew Anakin, when they noticed the water was rapidly cooling down; they were both Jedi and sensed something was wrong. They flew out of the water and warned other tourists to do the same. The water froze and the people on the beach panicked and ran away. From over the frozen sea, Kopaka, Toa of Ice, flew to Sarah and Anakin. Instead of his mask, his face was covered with a worm-like parasite: a Kraata! The Toa’s new forms were immune for the Krana, but apparently not for their predecessors. He identified Anakin as the attacker of one of his brothers. He had operated Lerahk, Rahkshi of poison; he had weakened the Toa with a disease and taken over his body. by now, the others had sensed the trouble and arrived at the scene. Luke still lacked control over his powers and would probably destroy the Toa and half the planet if he tried something. He tried to use the Force to enter the mind of the Kraata to confuse it. His mind was set on destroying the thing however, and it splat apart on Kopaka’s face, who regained control over his body. Luke was amazed at the extent of his new powers, so was the rest.
They discovered another difference with the Krana: the Kraata was reforming itself; it was the first time they saw a biological creature being able to do this. The green Kraata jumped on Anakin’s face and spread over his skin, completely entering him. His hair changed to the hue of the creature and started attacking the group. He quickly fell to his knees and Anakin transformed; his aura exposed of the Kraata by vaporizing it.

Realising the threat of the Rahkshi and their operators, the holiday was cut short.

While expanding his mind to attack the Kraata, Luke had sensed something else: a terror from the past would try to return…
Part 7: The Foiled Plan

Without much explanation, Luke took his ship and flew to a nearby, unnamed planet. The Kraata and Rahkshi had been given powers from beyond the plane of the living and in the moment his mind had connected with the Kraata, he knew a breach had been made by the Rahkshi into Hell, to free their former ally: Cell. If they could control him, they could use his almost unlimited powers to destroy all life in the cluster in no time.

Makuta was busy taking over the underworld, so the punishment and cleansing of evil had come to a stop, this had allowed Cell to finish the plans for other Androids, who had never been made, including upgrading the Alpha Droid as #06 and Warlord Barren as #14.
The planet where the breach had been made was in disputed territory of the Freedom Pact and the Coalition, so Luke couldn’t just destroy the world, it would spark new conflicts in the region; he had to destroy the portal to Hell. Two Rahkshi and a fleet of Bohrok were guarding the rift. Luke had to be careful with his powers and tried to push them only slightly with the Force, knowing even that would result into a powerful blast. Indeed, the Bohrok were all destroyed, but the Rahkshi were still standing, they introduced themselves as Turahk and Panrahk: Rahkshi of fear and obliteration. Panrahk’s powers were holding the rift open, and Turahk started battling Luke, but the monster’s blasts were all deflected. Luke made the mistake to look in the creatures eyes. He experienced a similar episode as his father and son: he saw an evil version of himself: Darth Vader. “No”, said Luke, “I have defeated my inner demons and accepted them, you are me, I am Vader, you cannot harm me.” The vision held out his lightsabre, but unlike his son and father, Luke didn’t fight the image of his alternative self. When the vision stabbed him, it simply disappeared, and Luke was unharmed. He had defeated Turahk’s power. The Rahkshi was now afraid himself and flew away, Panrahk quickly followed him, but the rift was already opened and he saw the silhouette of a person coming near. It was Barren Von Strüberg who came out first. Luke wanted to attack him, but Android #06 said to him that he didn’t fancy the return of Cell either and knew how to close the breach. They had to be quick, because they saw that Cell was almost out too. After performing some strange gestures and reciting words, the hole started to close, sucking in everything around it. Luke helped Barren, so he wouldn’t be sucked back into Hell.
They had helped each other and decided they were even. Barren would wait for a ship of the Coalition to pick him up, and Luke would simply fly away.
Part 8: Captains of the Bohrok

The Bohrok had suffered a defeat, but they would continue with their plans.

There had been six different kinds of Bohrok, by the time Palpatine created the Matrix, only two had been left: the black armoured Nuhvok and the brown armoured Pahrak. They appeared first of course, after the Matrix’ destruction. By now, the other four: the red armoured Tahnok, the green armoured Lehvak, the white armoured Kohrak and the blue armoured Gahlok had all been recreated; but these enormous fleets were still being decimated by the powerful Jedi. The Rahkshi were a perfect addition to the armada, but their individuality and abstract powers wouldn’t help the Bohrok fleet directly; they needed leaders, captains: the Bohrok Kal. One for each sort, acting like a Smartbot did for ordinary Smallbots: creating order, tactics. They would be made stronger and more resilient than the others and would receive specially bred Krana, which would interact with the Bohrok’s hive mind, but they would be able to command it.
Voil Börn, Jedi father of the Apallian ambassador Prae Börn, was the first to encounter one of them, Lehvak Kal, on Quruvall. His team of Jedi struggled against the much more organised Bohrok. Jonathan arrived at the battle, and the fight was turned around in no time. They realised Bebi was desperate, inventing more different things to counter the hazard of the Super-Saiyans. They realised the only way to defeat the Bohrok, would be to find Bebi, the home planet of the Krana and the factories of the Bohrok.
Lehvak Kal put up a great fight against Jonathan and the Jedi, this sparked an idea: if they could capture the modified Krana, they might be able to locate the origin of its orders. They had tried it before with regular Krana, but their hive mind didn’t allow it, but this one was probably connected directly to Bebi. He had made a mistake by introducing the Bohrok Kal. The Krana was captured and put into a transporter loop, like they did with ships and cargo. But although their research facilities were advanced enough for the task, all attention was now directed towards an attack against Treneb. Jonathan was called back to New Valcro Prime for questioning about the planet, while the combined fleets of the Federation, Non-Organics and Resistance were gathering near Jolia (which was why it was chosen as the location of that holiday, so they wouldn’t have to cross half a galaxy to coordinate their fleet. The U.L.F. had recently won the battle of Goranionburg, winning back the planet from which they originated a thousand years ago. The only real planet of interest now, was their command centre: Treneb. If they would be able to defeat the great fleet there, they’d most likely have no problems with taking over this galaxy, with the exception of the space where the Black Star had been constructed, which was theoretically still Imperial space.
The Krana war would have to wait a while, probably until after New Year 5007.
Part 9: Changes of the Valcros

Thrawn’s birthday on the sixth of December was not a pleasant one: he was questioned about the Valcronian Empire daily and was forced to take lessons to turn him from Sith to Jedi. He felt his superior tactical skills were being wasted. The other Valcros were treated the same. Insectoz and Ufon were the firsts to effectively turn to the light side, with the help of their brother Robotica. Erick helped the others on their way to turn too, but Thrawn was the most resilient. They realised that if they could make him feel useful, they could reach to him. Because Thrawn probably had the most information about the Valcronian Empire anyway, they asked him if he would help them with their attack on Treneb. Thrawn had to think about it first.
The only Valcros that hadn’t been killed, captured by the Federation or turned to the light side were Abbat, Spiden and Jonathan Junior. Abbat had disappeared, reports indicated he had become a bounty hunter; Jonathan Junior was head of the Valcronian Empire, and Spiden also had a high place in the Imperial hierarchy. Without them, the officers of the former Valcron, the former Empire, and the Sith lords would battle for the position of Emperor. One of the objectives of the battle of Treneb would be the capture of Jonathan Junior, and Spiden, if he was present.

But Darth Seth had a sinister plan: he knew that under the right conditions, Anakin would have turned to the dark side, so he had cloned him and used the technology of the Imperial clone army, to bring him to maturity, because without the Matrix, a newborn Saiyan would have a normal childhood length. Seth started training this new Valcro, which he also gave the name Anakin, to be his successor and the heir to the throne of the Valcronian Empire, to make sure the Valcros would keep control. He wasn’t a Valcro, but believed to public of the cluster were already familiar with the concept of divine Valcronism: the indoctrinated belief that the Valcros were Gods (the original Imperial Valcronism depicted Palpatine as the only God). Seth hoped Clone Anakin would eventually turn into a Super-Saiyan, when he would reveal the truth of his origins.

Thrawn had advised the fleets of the Freedom Pact to attack the nearby systems first, to destroy possible back-up arriving from them, and to divide the Imperial fleet present at Treneb. Cloaked ships of the U.L.F. arrived at Treneb, while the other ships, which didn’t have cloaking capabilities, started their attack of the nearby systems, like Thrawn had suggested. It worked, ships from Treneb were dispatched to the systems under attack. At that moment, the Federation’s fleet decloaked and attacked the shipyards: the Battle of Treneb had begun.
Part 10: The Battle of Treneb

The battle in space didn’t last very long, the diversion had been extremely effective, there had been only one Star Destroyer at Treneb, because of their rarity, and it had been quickly destroyed by the Spirit, while the Smallbot armada decimated the fleet of Tie fighters. Older Valcronian designs and some experimental ships were no match for the firepower of the Freedom pact and the orbital shipyards were swiftly taken over.

The ground battle was much harder, the Imperial army had many machines for such fights, as opposed to their adversaries, but when Jack Neil arrived, events started to turn in the Pact’s favour, using his large powers, he disposed of the ground defences with ease and flew his way over the grasslands that were being ripped apart and to the planet’s main power plants in the north. Luke led a team of M-Trons behind the enemy line, into the hearth of the capital city. They used personal cloaking devises to stay undetected. The Trenebulan Sith Bart Xillen (who had miraculously survived the destruction of Valcro 2nd) had sensed the group and destroyed their cloaks with an unexpected array of lightening. Luke killed the Sith effortlessly, but their guise had been wrecked. Many clones surrounded the group, but the M-Tron’s skills, especially Luke’s still untamed powers, led waste to the Clone army. Before they could continue their quest for Jonathan Junior’s office, a transporter beam had managed to get a lock on them and they were beamed into a shielded room, in front of the man they had been looking for.

-I can’t win this battle, I know that, but if I have to die, I’ll take you with me, brother.


-We only wish to capture you, your death is unnecessary.

-Spare me your compassion, you’re a Valcro, and I know that deep down, In every Valcro, in every Saiyan, there is the will to fight, conquer and rule, or die trying.

-I would only give my life for a good cause; I have done it several times.

-That’s exactly what I was talking about, you gave your life against Palpatine and Cell, both the ultimate rulers, and why? Not for freedom, but only for the hate you felt because they were in power and you weren’t. It’s in your blood, you can’t deny it.
-It’s in the blood of the Sith, not the Valcros, if even our father can change, than so can you.

-Don’t try to swindle me into such a meaningless life as that of father, he’s but the shadow of the man he used to be; when he came to me, I could see him as he was now: a broken man, with a shattered pride and restless emotions, he’s a wreck and it’s your fault.

-I sense pride in the way you talk about his old life, yet he told me that you always despised him for not giving you enough attention. I’ve seen him grow from that state into a steady man, proud of his family, of his grandson; a man that has finally come to terms with his horrendous past; he’s walking a new path, and you could be part of it.

-It’s like talking to a wall, isn’t it. I don’t need to be saved, I’m perfectly happy as the ruler of an Empire.
-An Empire, whose Admirals are fighting for control and which looses every battle, including this vital one.

-You can have Treneb and our space in this galaxy, Luke. Its massive shipyards, its beautiful countryside, the factories, the most powerful deep space sensors and the almost infinite amount of Bohrok it has located, heading towards this galaxy.

At that point, Jack destroyed the power plants, which used geothermal activity. The shields around Luke and his team were deactivated and Jonathan Junior disappeared into thin air, apparently, it had only been an isomeric projection (Luke would have sensed if it had only been a hologram).

The last ships fled and the ground troops surrendered, Treneb had been annexed, and probably the galaxy too; the capital of the Valcronian Empire would probably move to Jonola (near Universia) or Oscion (south of the Badlands, in the western corner of the galaxy). Although this was a great victory, the sensors confirmed Junior’s words: a Bohrok fleet, larger than anything they had ever faced was crossing the void between the second galaxy of the Federation and this one (the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone) at an impossible speed. Within two months, this armada would enter the space of the Coalition between Sharkthoot and the Computer Virus and lay waste to every planet in its way.
Part 11: The Journey

It is said that the worst thing that ever happened the galaxy where Palpatine and Bebi originate from, were the Tsufuru-jin. Yet somehow a galaxy of races that was in constant war with each other managed to completely destroy them. Even a seed of this race, their ruler Bebi, could still destroy life in three galaxies before the Matrix was created. How did the Saiyans and probably many other evenly chaotic races ever defeat such an immensely powerful foe?

It was this question and simple curiosity that made a new project possible. With the technology found on Treneb and the joined knowledge of the U.L.F., N-O.C. and the Resistance, a powerful new engine was build, combining transwarp, hyperspace and croniton technologies. The ship made for it had little weapons, to compensate for the huge power drain the engine created. This was nothing for widespread use, it had only one function: travelling to the “Saiyan Galaxy”, leaving several subspace radio transmitters along the way to ensure at least some communication. John Ice, Erick Valcro and a Droid officer who used the name of his former organic self, Hugo Forrings, volunteered for the mission. They would share much of the technology of Treneb with the Neutrals, and in return they would use their wormhole technology to put the ship as far on path as possible. After quick goodbyes, the ambassadors and their ship was catapulted over about a fifth of their journey, with still at least one and a half years of travel ahead.
They were about 2000 light-years beyond the border of the former Matrix. They knew that if they would look back, they would be the firsts to see what it looked like from outside, from the inside it had seemed like a green haze of computer code, whose power ripped apart anything that came to close. From this side it had a silvery glow, the sight of 5 millennia of dispersed starlight, a beautiful, yet ghostly image.
The void between galaxies was filled with satellite galaxies. The radiation of gasses in them made life virtually impossible. The many satellites of the Cluster had only rare accounts of races, all of them shattered by the Bohrok; only one race had survived, by relocating to the planet Kennlansor, east of Jaridia, before the drama. The Usferran, they were called, an elegant race of butterfly like creatures, whose planet was destroyed during the Sirian Wars.

Between the galaxies of the cluster, which laid rather close to each other, and the far more distant Saiyan galaxy, there were far less satellites, promising a journey through darkness, with only three people.
John was the most powerful of the three and probably one of the most powerful beings of the Cluster; in the void he could feel very little of the Force, only that which flowed through him, his companions and the ship. From behind he could still feel a glow of the Force from the Cluster, but it quickly faded. Without the background noise of life, John could feel the history of the Force and sensed a great wound, an enormous unbalance that had left a scar, a disturbance. He felt what the Tsufuru-jin and Bohrok had done to the cluster and its neighbouring galaxy; he could feel the fall of the Éoleff and even felt the distant rumbling of the obscure past of the Spirion. They had all been touched by the Staff of Evil, from which the Hypno-Crystal was designed. He felt that many battles had been fought over the artefact, causing an uncountable amount of people to die, he could feel the essence of the dark side of the Force and realised what he had always known: the light side was the natural way of the universe.
Their journey into the unknown continued, and they wondered what strange and exotic races they would encounter, and if they too would look exactly like Humans, Saiyans, Spirion and Calamarians…
Part 12: End of the Plague?
After examining the flight path of the impending Bohrok attack and their older invasions, combined with the data from the captured Krana, researchers came up with an area of space that was most likely to host the Krana home world.

From Braal V, the most important mining colony of the Federation, and also its only outpost in their second galaxy, cloaked scouts were sent to investigate and search for the planet, while most of the Pact’s fleet would gather there. This galaxy had never been fully populated before the first Krana War, not even completely explored, because of the many dangerous gasses, similar to those of the Smallbot Badlands; by the time they reached the location, the assault was very imminent and voices started to rise to pull back their fleet and instead focus on the Bohrok invasion, instead of on a possible home planet; although everybody agreed that their fleet wouldn’t be enough to stop the enormous armada.
When the scouts reported back, the news was good: they had found a system in which every planet, moon and their orbital space was filled with Bohrok factories, which weren’t producing any at the moment, because all energy had been put into the large assault; one of the planets was clearly the home of the Krana and Kraata. The military leaders gave green light for the operation against the home planet; many ships, including new ones, built at the Trenebulan shipyards, cloaked and raced to the planet Bebi had been hiding on for all this time.
When the fleet arrived, the factories started producing Bohrok again, for their defence, but the fleet, which was larger than at the Battle of Treneb and even larger than at the Battle of the Great Fleet, ripped apart the facilities. Unexpected help arrived in the form of Lewa, Toa of air and weather, who changed the climate on the planets to kill the Krana on the surface.

In the years leading to his first attack, Bebi had not only received a means to build the Bohrok factories by selling his soul, he had also been able to recreate his ancient capital of Tsufuru; an entire city for himself, packed with its own defensive capabilities and massive shields. When the orbital facilities had been destroyed, the fleet started bombarding this city.
While they were apparently almost victorious, the Bohrok armada had begun their invasion, attacking the rather weak Coalition. There seemed to be no end to what the city’s shield could take, so the massive amount of Jedi that had joined them decided to fly above the shield and fire their own blasts, but they were stopped by Luke, who wanted to turn into a Super Saiyan, although he didn’t control his powers completely yet. Above the city, Luke appeared as a small dot, but it soon turned into a massive explosion of light and a crater was forming around the city, whose shield was rapidly failing.
The damage could be seen from space: an enormous gap was now the most important feature of the planet. At the bottom, the city was still intact, but its shields and weapons had been destroyed. Commander Bart Zimmer led his Calamarian Space Troopers into the building, followed by Jedi, M-Tron, Spirion and Droids. Luke had managed to control his destructive aura, but couldn’t master his Super Saiyan state yet and transformed back into his normal self. Inside the city, every wall was covered with glass covered alcoves. In each of them a Human looking organism was apparently suspended in a liquid. The droids’ sensors indicated that they were cloned beings, all of the same, unknown race. It was soon realised they all had silvery grey hair, except for their eyebrows and any hair below them. There were practically thousands of men, women and children; created, but not yet awakened.

Bebi’s plot became clear, they must be Tsufuru-jin; after the Krana had “cleansed” the cluster, he would recreate his extinct race and repopulate the galaxies with what he considered pure beings. If he truly believed in his racial superiority, he would probably even destroy all the Krana after their job was done, if it were so, there would have to be some kind of device to allow a self destruct message to enter the Krana’s telepathic network. Before they could search for it, or Bebi, the team was confronted by three Rahkshi: Kurahk, who had the power of anger, to turn his enemies against each other, Vorahk, who had the power to drain his enemy’s energy, and Guurahk, who could instantly detect his enemy’s greatest weakness.
Before they had the chance to use their powers, the large amount of Force users concentrated their fire on them, while the transformed Anakin and Jonathan destroyed them.

Luke had sensed Bebi’s whereabouts and waited before a door leading to his chamber, until his friends and the soldiers arrived.

They blew away the door and walked into a giant laboratory; in the middle stood a glass cylinder, attached to machines at the top and bottom. Sensors indicated a near vacuum inside, except for a being with an apparent mix of Kraata, Tsufuru and unknown DNA. When Luke approached it, the being turned to face them; it looked humanoid, but its colour was entirely grey: its hair, its skin, its cape even. It looked like the other Tsufuru-jin they had seen in the alcoves, but looked like they had forgotten to colour it. Without a twitch on the blank face a voice spoke to them:

-Welcome to my throne room, I am Bebi Tuffel, king of the Tsufuru, Krana and Kraata and the cleanser of the universe. This appearance has made me immortal: a Tsufuru-jin, with all the advantages of the Krana and an ancient race from our galaxy, of which you needn’t know anything about. (it was later revealed that this was the unnamed race of Kordul and Gabal, the “Gabuchi Brothers”, the most feared duo of assassins in the Saiyan Galaxy, who apparently were immortal, but who aren’t relevant to the story at this point)

It amazes me that filthy impure beings like yourselves could ever reach this planet, of course you haven’t met to much resistance, as my armies are tearing apart your homes as I speak, and you have walked mindlessly into a city you know nothing about.
Suddenly holes in the walls started blowing out a paralyzing gas. Bebi said that while had slept for 5000 years, they would never wake up from their sleep. At that moment, the space troops entered the room, protected by their suits. Bart Zimmer shot a hole in Bebi’s tank and the powerful vacuum sucked all the gas inside, while fresh air rushed in through the door. Bebi’s tank broke completely and triggered an alarm that caused water to pour down, completely neutralizing the gas. Jonathan took a look into the ruptured container, Bebi had disappeared; his figure could only be maintained under extremely low pressures, without his vacuum, the body had imploded, normally killing Bebi. But Luke still felt a strange presence.
After searching the room and the rest of the city, they were able to locate the destruction signal for the Bohrok, Bohrok-Kal and Rahkshi. Sam Darkner, who had recovered from his injuries and had been in charge of the M-Tron here, was offered to push the button, since the Bohrok had killed his wife; but he refused. He found it more symbolic and fitting if Luke himself would do it.

A signal was transmitted through telepathic network connecting the Krana and Kraata, killing them all. The plague had ended; Bebi and the Bohrok were defeated at last, seemingly with the push on a single button.

The armada that was attacking the Coalition blew up, displaying a great amount of fireworks. The new Krana and Kraata that where developing on conquered planets splat apart, without the protection of a Bohrok or the telepathic guidance of Bebi. They had achieved a victory Palpatine could never have achieved and for the first time, Jonathan felt like a true Saiyan, finishing what his father and great-great-grandfather had started.

The Krana destruction code also had a side effect: it woke the Tsufuru-jin population all over the city. They were told what had happened and decided that their race wasn’t inheritably evil, but that they simply weren’t ready to deal with other intelligent life yet.
The fleet transported their city to a more favourable part of the planet and Lewa arranged a temperate climate. The Tsufuru-jin thanked them for stopping Bebi and awakening them and said that they would join their community when their race was prepared for them and willing to live in harmony. The fleet left beacons around the systems, warning ships not to interfere with the affairs of the new Tsufuru-jin population, who named their planet Krikkit.
The Pact’s forces returned to their homes and were welcomed as heroes, a great celebration took place and the leaders decided that because the race that had destroyed the Republic had now been destroyed themselves, it was nearly time to create a new Republic.
While falling into his chair, relieved that their greatest crisis had been resolved, Jonathan started getting an itching feeling in his hair; when he looked into a mirror, he saw that it had turned grey…

Part 13: Identities Revealed

Johnny dyed his hair black again and travelled to Coruscant, because for some reason he knew that the answer to his strange confliction was there. Anita Ice had returned there too, to find a way to bring down Maixi To Badong. It was this former Resistance General that Jonathan had to meet.

Anita convinced some undercover agents to arrange a meeting. Jonathan wore a holographic transmitter, which changed his appearance and walked into Maixi’s room, which had guards in every corner. Without knowing why, Johnny suddenly said to Badong that he knew who he was. Maixi sent his guards outside and greeted Jonathan and revealed that he knew that his image was only a hologram. At that point Jonathan completely lost control over his body and his hair turned grey again. He ripped the holographic device of his clothes and said that he wasn’t Jonathan at all, he was in fact Bebi, whose new body could take over others. Bebi/Jonathan kicked Maixi in the head and his black wig fell of, revealing electronic enhancements at the back of his skull.
Maixi developed a purple aura around himself, exactly like all other Androids of Anakin. Maixi had in fact been turned into Android #10. he had gone to the Forbidden Zone after he had been rejected as leader of his Resistance cell, where he had met the newly created Titans, who had introduced him to the old Anakin, who had made him an offer he couldn’t refuse: he was turned into an Android, so he could spy on the Resistance and the Federation, but instead he went back to Coruscant and entered the election years later. Cell had chosen not to absorb the traitor. Bebi reminded Maixi that he had an agreement with Cell and that he was prepared to renew that agreement and bring it to a new height. His race had awoken sooner than he had planned and would never agree with his plans to wipe out all other life in the universe. If he killed #10, the only living Android left, he would create a link to Cell in the afterlife, who he could bring back trough the powers he had gotten from Makuta. Of course Maixi didn’t agree, triggering a battle between them, Bebi fed on Jonathan’s super Saiyan powers and blew Maixi out of his window. Thousands of people in the sky streets watched the battle between the Coruscian leader, who had said he was against Force users, but who was now using it himself, and what appeared to be someone looking like a grey-haired Jonathan Valcro.

#10 was no match for Bebi and was obliterated. At the exact moment of Badong’s death, Jonathan turned to normal. He had seen, heard and felt everything Bebi had done to his body, a horrible experience. Realising the people of Coruscant deserved an explanation he said that their leader had been just a pawn of Cell, and wanted to turn them all against both Jedi and Sith. The public cheered and welcomed their heroes, but Jonathan and Anita had to flee before the Empire came to investigate the strange events. In Hell, Cell and his new Androids were still trying to come up with a new plan to escape, now that the Rahkshi had been destroyed.
Suddenly, a grey haired Maixi arrived to greet Cell and said that the only way out was a piece of “life”, namely, himself.
Part 14: Demonic Bebi
Cell absorbed Maixi, to become alive again, but when he wanted to escape from Hell, his black hair turned grey, Bebi had easily taken over his body, through the connections he could make with the many Krana Cell had absorbed. Bebi realised Cell’s full potential and wondered how he had been defeated, because he could have easily destroyed the planet his foes were on, or at least destroy its atmosphere. A certain amount of pride had made Cell careless and also blind for the full extent of his powers; mistakes Bebi wouldn’t make.
He wanted to create a portal, so he and Cell’s new Androids could return to the living world, but he was stopped by Makuta. The lord of the underworld needed Bebi and Cell for his henchmen; because after creating a body for Makuta, Bebi had also promised to create them for his closest allies. Cell possessed the powers of the Toa, so through the combined power of Bebi and the Android, they would be able the change six of Makuta’s demons into counterparts for the Toa: the Anti-Toa.

Only when Bebi would complete this task, would he be allowed to leave Hell, and as an extra gift, he could absorb the destroyed Rahkshi, together with their demonic powers…

Before he could start, however, he was allowed to return to the land of the living briefly, to select a single person to watch over his affairs and keep him up to date. From Hell, Bebi/Cell could quickly find a willing person: Conrad Sadist, a former Admiral of the Empire, who had gone into exile when the Imperial Remnant fused with the New Valcronian Alliance, to his great dismay. He was a tall human, with a thick black moustache and long hair, braided into an impressive tail. Bebi now had control over the elements and convinced Sadist to become the 22nd android, one of his own design (the others were all adapted from Anakin’s original plans). With his powers, he enhanced the former Admiral and gave him control over the Force, a mechanical interior and metallic hair, making his braid a formidable weapon.
#22 had to follow the most important Jedi, especially Jonathan and Luke Valcro.

While the new Android did Bebi’s bidding, his master completed his own task: the Anti-Toa had been created, soon Makuta’s victory would be complete, if he had truly taken over Hell and Limbo, he could eventually attack “Them”, the “Good”, all souls that had ever lived and would ever live. When one of those souls is born, they are stripped from the infinite knowledge and power that they had as part of Them. Makuta was one of many who had rejected this idea and had joined the like-minded to escape to the world of the living, taking a form of their own liking as Avatar, keeping most of their knowledge and powers intact. In a catastrophic series of events, that has no place in this part of the story
, Makuta ended up in Limbo, after an unsuccessful attempt of taking over the afterlife. Now he was stronger than ever, and his new attempt was getting close to success.
Bebi had fulfilled his duties and absorbed the Rahkshi and their powers. He returned to the living world and gave the other Androids similar assignments as #22. The resurrected Cell was now possibly the most powerful being in the cluster, with the exception of Luke.

Part 15: Divine Toa
Luke had been meditating to control his powers and had managed to reabsorb most of his destructive Super-Saiyan aura. In the clearness of his mind, he felt the tremor through the Force when Cell returned from Hell. He knew that the Android was possessed by Bebi and fell that all life in the cluster was in danger, yet he knew that nobody would be harmed yet, Bebi would need time to fulfil his new plan, but eventually Luke would be able to stop and defeat him, that would be his task as “Messenger”. Through this personal awakening, Luke came in full control of his new powers and transformed into the next level of the Super-Saiyan, the second person to do so, after his son.
The good in the afterlife also knew of Makuta’s and Bebi’s threat and decided to extent the Toa’s powers beyond the plain of the living, making their control over the elements godlike. They would be able to truly watch over their elements and join the battle in the afterlife. They would be a good match for the anti-Toa, who would probably visit them soon. Although Luke was destined to overthrow Makuta’s attempt at a coup, he had still only mortal powers, his true awakening hadn’t happened yet. Makuta knew this and would do anything to stop him, which is why he had given Bebi so much power, but if that would fail, he would send his demons after him. The Toa had to prevent that, they had to protect Luke until he was ready to find his own divine strength. When, or better, if Makuta would be defeated, the Toa would stay in the afterlife to look over their elements from there, their immense powers would have no more place in the living world, the reason that the Avatars’ ideals had failed in the past.
For now, the Toa would effectively be Gods.
Part 16: The Black Avenger

Now that Luke had felt the power of the second stage of the Super-Saiyan himself, he could relate better with his son.

Anakin felt that the Pact had become too passive after Treneb’s fall and found that they had to attack the Empire while they were still recovering, or the Coalition, while they were weakened by the final Bohrok attack. The Valcronian Empire had set up their new HQ on Jonola, because the ocean planet of Oscion had been involved in the Empire’s civil war and had been under siege by Grand Admiral Machiavelli, who was quickly becoming the most powerful officer of the post-Thrawn era. The U.L.F. and most of the Resistance agreed that they should wait how these internal struggles would end, because when they destroyed each other, the remains should be easier to defeat; if instead they attacked now, they would give the rivalling Consuls, Moffs and Admirals a common enemy and gather behind Jonathan Junior. The N-O.C. and large parts of Empty-Head’s part of the Resistance wanted to attack Jonola, because it was considered as an important industrial planet, which held several Smallbot factories and also many souls still locked in its computers. The N-O.C. had already managed to conquer nearby Wullioh, the third most important planet on the field of computers (after Lifrinall and Coruscant), but had lacked the power afterwards, to continue the success to the new capital of the Valcronian Empire.
Universia, Nar Shadaa, Jonola, Wullioh and the more agricultural Lavora, were all part of a traffic intense area known as the circle of five. Together they offered as much as Coruscant did, with the exception that the latter had it all on one planet. Because Coruscant had been part of the Empire, after Jonathan created Valcron, these planets had become its economical capital. They had also held the seat of power of Docen, Erick and Jake (on Jonola, Lavora and Wullioh, respectively). After Cell’s demise, the new border cut right through this circle, making the local economics rather difficult, especially since many planets’ food supply depended on the crops of Lavora; another argument to attack this planet and the new Imperial capital, which were the two planets of the Circle that were on the Imperial side of the border.
Anakin was moving to the area, because he was going to study physics on Universia Planet. He knew, as a Jedi, that he had to let go of his hostile feelings towards the Federation’s (and thus, his family’s) politics of waiting and that he should have patience and feel what the future would bring through the Force. He also realised that he needed an outlet for these feelings, because he had seen what an evil version of himself was capable of. He was interested in music, but had no qualities. His academic skills would be interesting, but wouldn’t let his steam out. The only thing he was good at, except for science, was fighting. His family had advised him to keep a low profile, because as family of the most politically powerful persons, son of the most powerful being in the cluster (himself being the second most powerful), grandson of the former dictator and defeater of Cell, he would be overwhelmed by the public, so under an alias of “Anakin Grant”, using a last name Luke had used many years earlier, he would have to refrain from using his immense powers. Studying under this alias gave him an idea for a great outlet: he would fight in disguise.
He made a completely black suit, completed by a light replica of Valcronian armour; his head would seem completely black via an isomeric projector, which would also serve as helmet if he had to go into outer space. His name would be the “Black Avenger”!

Reports and rumours quickly travelled around about a man in black defending the public of Universia from thieves and criminals. Luke didn’t need his new powers to realise that it was his son, but didn’t intervene, as long as it didn’t harm his studies of course. But the Black Avenger soon started attacking Imperial scout ships too, who came too near to the border, according to him and Luke decided Anakin needed a lesson.
He travelled to the area with the announcement that he wanted to challenge the Avenger for a fight on one of the unpopulated moons of Wullioh. Luke didn’t reveal that he knew it was his son. They both transformed into the second level of the Super-Saiyan and began to fight. Luke clearly had the upper hand, his control was amazing. When Anakin had been defeated, he finally said to his son:

-I hope this little contest has been a right outlet, son.


-You knew who I was the whole time?

-Of course son, I wouldn’t be a good father if I didn’t. We can always spar if you want to, when I’m in the neighbourhood.

-Thanks dad.

-Just remember to stay out of galactic affairs, unless you have the proper authority.

-Yes, father.

-I see that you are ready for it, so I have convinced your aunt Sarah to make you a beginning member of Ice, if you want to, of course.

-Are you kidding, tell her she can count on me.

-When your studies are complete, you’ll become an official member, but only if you study hard, and don’t go fighting on your own.
-I promise to do my best.

Father and son were planning to return to Universia, when they sensed a disproportionate amount of good nearby, followed by an equally large amount of evil. Luke felt that it were Tahu, Toa of fire, and its counterpart. Tahu had come to ask Luke and Anakin for help, because the Anti-Toa had been more powerful than they had imagined, together they would defeat him. The demon introduced himself as Vakama, Anti-Toa of fire. Apparently, he was designed to also absorb any assault made by the power of his element, which made most of Tahu’s attacks useless. Luke easily defeated him, without even sweating and wondered if he had overestimated the new danger. Back in Hell, Vakama laughed, because he knew that he would be more powerful once they would meet on his own ground… Tahu thanked Luke and vanished.

Back on Universia, Anakin put his new costume away, only keeping it to remind him of an important lesson, he shouldn’t mingle with difficult situations, until he was truly ready to face them, and when the time came, he wouldn’t have to do it on his own. Now, he had to concentrate on his lessons.
Part 17: Saving Qui-Gon

4 months had passed since Bebi had returned in the form of Cell, who had announced that he would be the official ruler of the entire cluster, he had been spotted on many planets, creating storms to frighten people, but had caused not a single casualty or accident. Leaders of every side were wondered by the strange behaviour and wondered if he had simply gone insane after losing his army of Bohrok. They knew he was still very dangerous and powerful, all Force users were put on full alert; the Valcronian Empire even went as far as declaring Bebi/Cell as the official Emperor.

In mean time, Anakin’s studies were going great; he had entered very late in the academic year, but managed to catch up very quickly. He passed all his exams and finished his first year in record time. He was in the spotlight and hadn’t been able to keep up his alias, but the public respected his privacy. The next month would be one of relaxation on the planet he now loved, Universia. After this vacation he would work a month at Ice. But before he could rest, Obi-Wan arrived to tell him that the Non-Organic fleet was gathering at Wullioh and that he expected an attack on Jonola soon, without the approval of the Pact. He needed to save his former Master and other ill-fated Force users.
During the times of Valcron, Jedi and other Force-sensitive beings were either hunted down and killed, or transformed into an officer. The head of them, Qui-Gon Jinn, had been Kenobi’s Master, when he was still training to become a Jedi. The information of the captured Valcros, especially Jonathan, had made it possible to reverse the process; it had been successfully performed on several officers already, but most of them were now on Jonola, including Qui-Gon.
Anakin had promised his father he wouldn’t mingle in such affairs, but Obi-Wan was a wise man; he knew what he was doing and assured Anakin that he was supported by many others.
Infiltration expert Jim Johnson had been on Jonola and had given enough information on Qui-Gon’s daily schedule for Obi-Wan and Anakin to start their rescue mission.

On their way, a cloaked ship with Jedi joined them; to Anakin’s surprise, his father was one of them. They understood that if the N-O.C. would attack, they would not save any officers, so they needed to “cure” them. The lack of their command would make the capture of Jonola easier too. They met with Jim in the main building, who led them to Qui-Gon. When he was alone, they attacked him and quickly overpowered him. An alarm went of, but it wasn’t because of their attack, but because the Non-Organics had started their assault much sooner than expected. The shields of the Imperial capital were being bombarded, but the planet had many defensive weapons, the many arms industries made it more powerful than Treneb, which had deliberately been lost to the Freedom Pact, because of the impending Bohrok attack (which didn’t make it a less important victory, the Imperials had left Treneb with much regret). The attack put the city on full alert for intruders. The Jedi had to fight there way out, but Luke’s powers made it very easy. In orbit the fleet of the N-O.C. was loosing. The wide variety of weapons had destroyed much of their Smallbots and their outdated Valcronian warships were no match for the constantly updated Jonolan artillery. Several cloaked Jedi had managed to put small beacons on as much officers as they could, before they joined up with Jim, Obi-Wan, Luke and Anakin. Their ships were hidden on the far side of the planet and had not been detected, but they still needed a way through the shields. They had managed to get into the hangar bay. When the Imperial ships came back after their victory, the separate shields of the bay were deactivated, this was their window, they beamed out, together with their important prisoner, who would give the needed information to defeat Jonola.
Qui-Gon was transformed back into his Jedi self. He was glad to see Obi-Wan again and to be released of the brain wash he had endured for many years. He offered them the frequency of the shields, needed to beam the officers out. One of the Jedi said that he had a special surprise.

When they beamed the officers on board, they had also captured Spiden, the last Valcro of the Empire, except Jonathan Junior. They transformed the officers back into Jedi and Force users. The capital of Jonola was now in full alert again, they had lost their leader and most of their Valcronian officers. Jonathan Junior had travelled to the underwater cities of Oscion to negotiate with Machiavelli, so the former Valcronian base was now under complete Imperial control. The few Imperial officers didn’t know how to fully control the capital, their loss was imminent.
At Wullioh, the defeated Non-Organic fleet was surprised to meet the fleets of the Resistance and the Federation; together they went back to Jonola and quickly conquered it. Together with the Jedi’s ships, half the fleet also went to attack Lavora. With the knowledge Erick had provided them, before he had gone on his journey with John and Hugo, the planet was also easily captured.
The following couple of weeks, the space above the Smallbot badlands was easily won and the Valcronian Empire fell back to its new capital Oscion, which was known for its beautiful underwater cities and its large shipyards. During this time, Bebi had still acted in the same strange way. It seemed he had now visited almost every inhabited planet, the authorities presumed he had used his powers to make many versions of himself to visit them all and bring fear into the peoples’ hearts.
Bebi’s mysterious behaviour hadn’t stopped the Pact’s progress however. Consul Fuller, who controlled the area around the Amagosa system, had already promised to surrender if they would attack, because the area’s fleet and most of its military had been destroyed when the Black Star had invaded New Valcro Prime.

The Pact had decided to officially create the New Republic in September, because it had become a symbolic month in their victories. It was only one month away and all paper work to create the new nation had been done, this month would be one of celebrations, starting with a tournament among the Jedi, Force users and in fact anyone who wanted to enter.
Part 18: The Tournament

One of the largest stadiums in the cluster was the one on the asteroid Colony 8, also known as the Holiday Colony, and was located near the Federation’s capital. The tournament would take place here, because the U.L.F. was considered the safest place, because the only way of entering their galaxy was through the heavily guarded wormhole near New Valcro Prime. Many officials came to watch, including new representatives, like the Paragan ambassador Om’Pu Tal and the Cerijin ambassador Jimmey Darrel; rather unknown but important Resistance members, like Apallian General Ronovald Yervianso and even the unofficial Geonosian ambassador Krieg Poggle (unofficial, because Geonosis was inside Coalition space) and Laanah Ward, Queen of the Witeling.
The contest quickly showed that the cluster’s famous heroes were indeed the most powerful, the more exciting qualifying-rounds were the fights between Cho-Adi Mundi and #18, between Jack Neill and Red Sincam and between #17 and Obi-Wan Kenobi (the winners are the first mentioned)

But one unknown man managed to proceed into the quarter finals; it was #22, and he was set against #17. It was clear that their aura had the same purple glow, like all the other Androids had. #17 realised that it was no coincidence and wanted to warn the others, but he was knocked unconscious by Conrad’s braid while flying.
Yoda won against Jack, Luke won against Cho-Adi and Anakin won against Jonathan. After Yoda’s unexpected defeat against the mysterious braided man, the spectators got the fight the wanted to see: Luke versus Anakin. Anakin had trained a lot, and Luke didn’t want to waist his energy, because he felt something strange was about to happen, so the fight took on more than half an hour. Luke’s control over his immense strength proved to be the winning factor again, and he won from his son in the greatest spectacle the audience had ever seen, reminiscing about the horror Cell had been if it had taken such power to defeat the monster.
It was now time for the finale: Luke against the mystery man, the audience expected that the best fight had already been over, but wondered how long the braided man could hold out against the likely winner.

But before the fight could start, #22 announced his master would fight in his place. The rules for the tournament had been written down rather hastily and didn’t forbid it. A man flew inside the stadium and replaced the Android. His armour was white, with dark blue spandex sleeves, and his shoulder piece resembled Valcronian armour. His hair was black and his eyebrows a dark shade of brown; he looked somewhat like Luke, Jonathan, Anakin or Robotica. Johnny recognised the image from a hologram Palpatine had once shown him. The man looked exactly like his forefather Julian Vegeta, he knew it had to be Bebi, using Cell’s morphing capabilities to look like the man that had almost defeated him thousands of years ago and whose failure had cost him his name and royal title. Jonathan telepathically warned Luke, but he had already sensed it was Cell’s body. in turn Bebi sensed that his identity had been discovered and he turned into his standard form (with grey hair, of course). Luke warned Bebi:
-My powers are more than enough to defeat the original Cell, perhaps even this version, enhanced by your Rahkshi. Even if I’m not strong enough, the most powerful beings of the cluster are here, and together we can surely stop you.

-You assume they would join you, but here’s where my master plan comes into action:

PEOPLES OF THE CLUSTER GIVE ME YOUR ENERGY!
Suddenly everybody in the stadium stood up and put their arms into the air, Jonathan and Anakin transformed and the Force users all powered up. Everywhere in the cluster, people were doing the same. Even those who had no control over the Force started to show a small aura around them. In a bright flash, not seen since the destruction of the Matrix, the galaxies of the cluster were illuminated. A second later, that light was centred around Bebi, and every being in the cluster (except a select few) died, having given up their energy to Bebi, who had put a small part of himself into them by visiting every single planet during the last months. Luke was the only one left standing in the stadium and he fell to his knees, sensing the death of all life. His thoughts were with his friends and he sensed their souls travelling towards Limbo, arriving at a dark portal, but it was closed, the souls couldn’t even enter Limbo, because it had been taken over by Makuta. The peoples of the cluster and infinite other recently deceased from around the entire universe were trapped in the void, unable to move on. It was this thought that made a connection to the other plane and transformed him beyond any level of Super-Saiyan. His hair turned completely white and his aura was evenly pure.
-You might have stolen the energy of every living being in the cluster, Bebi, but I have their trust, and that will be your undoing.
Luke had become the messenger of the Gods and he destroyed Cell by merely looking at him, but the grey figure they had seen in the vacuum chamber on Krikkit now stood before him.

-I don’t need Cell’s body anymore, I have absorbed all his powers, together with those of everybody, I am now strong enough to use this body.

Luke fired a blast at him, strong enough to destroy everything within light years, but perfectly directed at Bebi. It seemed like he had won, but the creature reappeared unharmed and reminded him that he was immortal, by selling his soul to Makuta. Bebi decided to have some fun and said Luke to follow him.

Bebi disappeared, instantly travelling to a battered planet in the Saiyan galaxy. Luke used his divine powers to follow him there.


-Welcome to your home, Luke


-Where have you led me to?

-This is the planet of the Saiyans, destroyed during my war with all life of this galaxy, soon I shall do the same here as in your cluster. the Saiyans were a proud race, but they are thin spread, nothing but mercenaries and idiots.
-Idiots that destroyed your entire Empire as revenge.

-The Saiyans weren’t the leading force behind my fall; I could even say the opposite was true: it was your forefather’s incompetence that allowed me to escape.

-I am well trained; your words don’t anger me. I will defeat you Bebi, even if it destroys me.

-Your self-sacrifice can’t kill me, it would only bring me a step closer to killing everybody, and don’t forget, this time you won’t be resurrected, like all those times before; when your final selfless act was never truly final.

The conversation had given Luke time to prepare a desperate attempt that would kill them both, he realised Bebi’s words were true, this time he would not come back to life, although the crystals and scrolls to recreate the circles had been found by either the Empire, the Coalition or the Pact, there was no one left to use them.
Luke concentrated al his energy to his hands and grabbed Bebi. The enormous amounts of energy destroyed the ancient Saiyan planet and himself, but through his divine powers, he could still hold on to Bebi as his spirit left this plane of existence.

Together they went through the tunnel towards the closed portal, Luke’s position as the Messenger allowed him to pass and he gave his wife and son a final glance, before he entered Limbo with Bebi, but without the crowd still outside the yet again closed portal.
Part 19: The Circles

With all his wisdom, Bebi had forgotten to control the souls of Smallbots that hadn’t received an official body and were stored in computers, he had also forgotten about the three travellers, on their way to the Saiyan galaxy.

An automatic program of the computers was to give any robotic body to the most important soul in its databank, if life on its station was suddenly destroyed, which was the case (Femme Fatale’s new soul retrieving system had only worked for Smallbots, other souls would require something as powerful as the Matrix). One of the “death” droids in one of the corridors of the base suddenly jumped back to life, having a soul inserted by the computers. Through several sensors, the droid managed to find out he was the only one active, there were no droids or Smallbots alive anymore. After seeing there weren’t any Spirion in the station either, he accessed the security holograms. He saw that the droids had simply fallen to the ground and that the Spirion had given up all the energy their bodies had been made from, leaving nothing behind.
The droid took a shuttle to the nearest planet and found only corpses. He returned and through a communication network he tried to contact anybody, but there were no answers at all. The droid used the bodies of his fallen comrades for other souls still in the databank.

There were now a dozen of them, all trying to contact the survivors of whatever had happened, several similar stations came into contact to inform that they were doing the same thing. Eventually they found a single answer of survivors that weren’t revived Smallbots: the travellers!

The mission was clear now: the droids had to collect the crystals and data to reform the Hypno-circles while John, Erick and Hugo had to turn back to a point where the Neutral’s technology could bring them back. The mentioned technology had been updated and within a week the trio had returned. The crystals and scrolls had been found and after a quick brainstorm they realised that the only place where they could easily find enough black metal was the abandoned Black Star, drifting in the void between the Federation’s first galaxy and the Valcro Zone. Using the Neutral’s technology they transported to the location.
John used his large powers to cut the necessary black metal out of the hull. After reciting from the scrolls, putting a crystal in each of the rings they had formed and holding up the Hypno-crystal they had picked up from New Valcro Prime, they felt the circles had received their powers. As a test, they used them to transport them to the stadium, where Erick and John almost had to throw up, after seeing the decaying bodies of their friends and family. They gave the Circles careful instructions: it had to revive everybody that had died because of Bebi’s energy-absorbing attack, restore any damage the aftermath had brought, like crashed vehicles, wipe the peoples mind from what had happened, excluding themselves and the holders of the highest positions in the cluster (so that the rulers of the Empire realised who had saved them)

The Circles had to effectively turn back time a week, except for themselves and Bebi, who had been killed. The Droids had already returned to their stations and had transferred their souls back into the computer database. The Circles gave the message that it would be unable to bring back Luke, because it was unable to penetrate the portal. The volume of the wish would also scatter the Circles through the entire universe, possibly lost for ever.
John, Hugo and Erick activated the circles and time turned back around them. The audience in the stadium was surprised that Luke and Bebi/Cell had disappeared and had been replaced by the trio.

They explained what had happened and were attacked by #22 and the other revived androids, which had been hiding among the spectators, but they were quickly destroyed. The viewers rejoiced over the fact that Bebi had finally been killed, but were saddened that their saviour had to give up his life for it. Especially Sofie was struck with grief of her husband’s irreversible death.
On the 14th September 5007, the birthday of the destruction of the Matrix, all members of the Pact signed the treaty of the New Republic; it was the beginning of a new age…

Chapter10: Beyond

Part 1: The Fight Continues
L

uke had dragged Bebi into the afterlife, into Limbo, but this was not the place he remembered, instead of the orange-coloured field, huge chunks of orange rocks were floating in the blue “air”. Apparently it had been destroyed from below, from Hell. Luke and Bebi crashed onto one of the pieces. Bebi had lost his strange body and his soul looked like his true self, the way he had looked when he had been king of the Tsufuru-jin: he had a grey suit with blue sleeves, a grey cape and a large sword. His hair was grey, except for his eyebrows, sideburns and thin moustache, which were black. Luke realised that his powers were completely gone in this realm; because it had been connected to Hell, where evil-doers were of course prohibited into using the Force.
Although he had regained his old body, Bebi was still alive. Luke realised that Bebi shouldn’t be immortal anymore in this plane and even without powers, his knowledge of martial arts made it easy to overpower Bebi and kill him with his sword. Bebi’s image faded immediately and his soul was rejoined with Makuta, who sat on the throne of his tower, thinking of ways to invade Heaven. The demon lord thanked Bebi again for helping to create the anti-Toa, who had managed to defeat all the Toa, except for Tahu, who had managed to escape because of Luke. Bebi said that his soul was now his own again, because his immortality had ended, but Makuta replied that such power only worked in the living world and that he wasn’t to blame.
Luke, the messenger, knew that he had to destroy Makuta, but didn’t know how, without his powers and decided to explore his surroundings and make his way down.
In the living world, most of the Coalition had surrendered to the New Republic, especially after the disappearance of the Computer Virus, who had allegedly gone into hiding. The only part of the Coalition was now centred around Hafk, Barren’s home planet in the former Province of the Computer Virus. This planet had now become Sharkthoot’s seat of command over his area, finally ruling alone, as he always wanted, but the de facto rulers in most of his nation had already sworn allegiance to the New Republic, because they knew they couldn’t be stopped now.
The Valcronian Empire was ruled by Jonathan Junior, from Oscion, but the spaces around Amagosa and Coruscant had been made part of the New Republic in a recent change of powers, putting the economy of the Empire at great risk, it would only take time before the New Republic would control the entire cluster…
Part 2: Limbo

Luke couldn’t use his powers, but soon discovered that the area made him much more impervious to damage, since he had to make some large falls, from one rock to the other. As he was moving down, he encountered several beings, probably the last ones that had entered Limbo before the portal closed, but also unable to move on; some of them were still in a condition from right before they died, and didn’t realise they had. One man sat in crashed ship, trying to repair an engine, Luke tried to talk with him, but all he said is that he had to fix the ship, so he could return to battle. The man kept doing the same thing over and over again.
Luke met similar cases, including an entire city in which the inhabitants were trying to find shelter because a bomb from the opposing country was on its way to their city.

Luke climbed and jumped further down and he met less people. The rocks where starting to have a more earthly colour and had trees on them. The air surrounding the brocks had large clouds in them. Below the last piece of rock, he could only see only a thick layer of clouds, as far in every direction as he could see, to a far away horizon. The only thing he could do was drop through them. As he fell, the air became clear again and he could see the ground, not of a single piece of rock, put apparently the surface of a planet, though he knew that it couldn’t be one.
He fell hard to the ground, inside some kind of jungle. He wasn’t hurt in any way; he was of course already dead. Many animals populated the odd rain forest, but he didn’t need his Force powers to now this was not a place of life, the area had something sinister, dark and evil. He pushed aside the plant life and tried to find a reason the place existed; perhaps he had gone through Limbo and had entered someone’s personal punishment, but then he still had to find the place from which Makuta had attacked. When he had been in free fall, he had spotted a dark tower near the horizon and he tried to walk in its general direction. After several hours, Luke found an open spot from where he could see the menacing structure in the far distance, put in the middle of this opening he saw a strange rounded dark green hatch, stuck into the ground. As he approached, the hatch turned out to be as high as himself. When he touched it, he was swung back by air, as a tall being, in the same colour as the hatch, appeared before him. Its shape resembled that of Vakama and Luke realised that this was one of the anti-Toa.
It introduced himself as Matau, anti-Toa of weather and attacked Luke.
He knew that he couldn’t be destroyed, but that he was no match for the fierce demon, he had to be smarter; he was the messenger, there had to be way to defeat the monster.

Luke realised that he was still wearing his black outfit, with al its technological enhancements, including short-range beaming technology. Matau had fired a lightening beam at him, which followed him everywhere, so he used the beaming technology to transport himself behind the anti-Toa, who was struck down by his own attack. It fell down and the hatch opened, revealing a short tunnel with water at the bottom.
Luke jumped in and found himself inside a giant ocean, he didn’t have to breath, being death, and knew he had to do a similar thing as with Matau, each anti-Toa probably had its own layer of Hell, through which he had to travel.
Part 3: Sofie’s Grief

Sofie was in denial about Luke’s death, she believed Luke still lived and had simply used his new powers to drag Bebi to the afterlife and was fighting Makuta there. She was convinced he would return after his success. In the mean time, she had retired from her political career and also as head of Space Police, giving the function to Jack instead, who had also been elected Vice President of the Federation, with John as its new President. Together with Ken Lorren and Ace Erdam, John formed a triumvirate to rule the New Republic, until general elections.
Ace was now second in command of Space Police, directly under Jack; it wasn’t easy, because their relationship had ended abruptly after Jack found out he was having an affair (not with Riana Covelante, but with Aïsha Hollings, whose ship he had escorted several times. The affair had ended too, because she didn’t know his relationship with Jack hadn’t been over).
Sofie now concentrated fully on her training as a Jedi, feeling she had to replace Luke somehow until his return. She felt she had to experience some of the same things as her husband and secretly travelled into imperial space, hoping to find Darth Seth, because she wanted to understand the training of the Sith, her grief would convince Seth she had fallen.

She had hired bounty hunters Jango Fett and Kin-Do Kenobi to find him, and after a week she had success, Seth was on Insectoid 4th, in the south of the Empire.

The planet was volcanic, but like the other planets in the series, it had several domes, in which habitable cities were located.

One of them contained only an ancient Sith temple, where Seth was training Clone Anakin. The cloning technology he had used had some side-effects on the half-Saiyan: the human genes had started dominating his pigment. Humans and Saiyans have the same yellow skin tone, but in ancient times, they had many more tones: from a dark brown to a light pink. After the many millennia in space, they had evolved into yellow beings with much longer lives, like many other races; apparently the colour was an affect of a better defence system against the radiation in space. But Clone Anakin started to turn into a shade of pink, and his light brown hair had turned darker too.
The clone sensed someone approaching and felt somehow delighted by it, as if the person was someone he knew well, which was impossible, because the only people he knew were Seth, a few other Sith, a few former Imperial guards and some officers. The only person he knew well was with him in the room.

Seth realised that it was Sofie Ice, the boy’s biological mother, who was approaching, and sent Clone Anakin away on an errant.
Sofie arrived and explained she wanted to be trained. Seth refused, he only wanted to train her if she could put up a good fight. She fired several blasts at him, which he easily averted. Her knowledge of martial arts was also not even enough to impress Seth. She became angry and almost hit him.

-That’s it; you must use these feelings if you want to be trained by me, that’s what Modern Sithism is about. Use your grief from loosing your husband and realise that I’m glad that he’s dead, hate me for it and attack me!
Sofie gave in to her emotions and activated her lightsabre. While duelling, she managed to kick him right in the groin. Seth was impressed and decided to train her. In the following weeks Sofie learned to use her negative emotions. Clone Anakin had been given a task from which he would only return on Seth’s order, but he felt he was being betrayed somehow and secretly returned.
Sofie held on to the good inside her, pulling hope from the fact many of the Valcros and also her cousin John had been able to return from the dark side. She learned exactly what she wanted to, to use her emotions in her strength, without being controlled by them. Clone Anakin had observed Sofie’s training from the shadows. A week after her arrival she thanked Seth for his training, managed to knock him unconscious and left.

When he came by he cursed the woman, but was surprised to see Anakin’s clone standing above him, he had listened to their conversations and had found out who he truly was, Seth admitted that he had lied and this caused the clone to transform. Seth stood up and congratulating him, telling him this had been his plan all along. The clone reached out with the Force, taking Seth’s lightsabre and easily killed his surprised former master.
Back on New Valcro Prime, nobody had been surprised by Sofie’s month long absence, she had told everyone she needed some vacation and that she would go to a non-disclosed location. The only one to whom she revealed what she had been doing all that time, was Jonathan, of whom she asked to continue her training, to which he agreed.

Eventually, Sofie learned to live without the love of her life and became a great Jedi.

Part 4: The Six Layers of Hell

Tahu had been the only Toa that hadn’t been defeated and captured by Makuta’s minions and he had managed to enter his tower, but Makuta had quickly sensed his presence and used his many powers to transform Tahu into a powerless, humanoid-sized being. To make sure he didn’t find a way to use his powers, he was thrown into the ocean layer of Hell. Minutes later, Matau informed his lord that the Messenger had defeated him and had found a way into the exact same layer.
Luke had been swimming for days, there was still no sign of the bottom, but he encountered a strange being, it said it had been watching over Limbo, when it was destroyed. He had been caught in this layer, but could still access some of his powers, he gave Luke his ability to reach into his strength in the form of a sword. Only that sword would be able to be filled with Luke’s power. It was the being’s last strength and it drifted away in the underwater streams.
He pointed the sword above him and concentrated, a beam fired out of the blade, shooting him towards the bottom. Finally reaching it, he found another strange being, it had the form of a droid or Human, and was coloured red and orange. The proportions reminded him of Tahu and as he approached, he saw its face also looked exactly like Tahu’s mask, now he was sure it was him and yelled out for him (which felt rather strange, underwater).
The humanised Toa was glad to see Luke and explained what had happened, Luke asked if he had seen a hatch on the ocean floor and Tahu showed him.

They touched the dark blue dome and Nokama, anti-Toa of water appeared in front of them. Together, and with the help of Luke’s sword, they defeated him rather quickly and jumped through the hatch (through which no water fell, peculiarly). They fell through clouds, before falling on the sands of a desert. The trees, water and sands hadn’t hurt much, but soon they would have to fall on rocks and fire, he hoped the layer of the anti-Toa of ice would feature snow, and not solid ice.
Luke and Tahu defeated Onewa, anti-Toa of speed and sand; they went on to also defeat Nuju, anti-Toa of ice (luckily in a harsh but snowy world) and Whenua, anti-Toa of stone. They only had to defeat Vakama, but his fiery layer had no sign of a hatch, so after a long travel, they arrived at the tower instead. The ground formed cliffs around the building; from the abyss, a whirlwind of fire formed around the base of the tower. They saw several windows, but there was no way to go over the chasm. After some thinking, Luke pointed his sword to a pool of lava and fired. He used the beam to direct the molten rock towards the tower in an attempt to create a bridge.
The plan worked and they entered the dark tower through a window.
Part 5: Makuta’s Tower

Inside the tower, Tahu was surprised that he had transformed back into his original body. Greater was his surprise when he looked at Luke: he had also transformed into a Toa! Tahu recognised the body, the Slizer had made it for himself before he left but had never used it; without a soul it had destabilized and disappeared when the Matrix had been destroyed. It looked updated in the same way the other Toa had during the year of chaos, the name of the body was “Taka”. Luke’s sword was now a staff with a large blade at one end. Luke felt he was again in touch with his divine powers and together they went up the stairs. Simple demons blocked their path, but they were easily defeated, unlike the anti-Toa, which had all gathered to keep them from reaching Makuta’s throne, including Vakama. Luke was almost overwhelmed by the demons, while Tahu had gone mysteriously missing. Suddenly, Vakama was struck by a beam of ice. Tahu had managed to find and free the other Toa! Together they easily overpowered the anti-Toa, throwing them outside a window, into the ice layer.
It took them a while to get to the top, but when they got there, they noticed Makuta’s throne wasn’t there! The tower had an open roof, leading them straight back into Limbo. Looking around, they saw it had been the tower which had destroyed the orange plains. They also noticed that it was slowly rising, towards “Them”, or at least, to a place above Limbo, from where he could attack Them.
The seven Toa decided that the best plan of action was to destroy the tower, now that they had their powers back. They all fired, but only Luke’s beam was able to melt it away. He flew right above it and fired at its centre, flying down as the tower incinerated below him. He quickly flew through all layers of hell. After going past Vakama’s layer, the space around the tower became harder to comprehend, as many souls were being cleansed of their evil in their own personal Hell; only the tower could guide him now. He broke through another surface, entering a black, barren landscape, with fierce winds of fire blowing over it, quite different than the pools of lava in Vakama’s layer. The bottom of the tower was a large castle, from which four paths reached out to the north, east, south and west, hovering over the winds of fire below.
Luke noticed he had transformed back into his normal self and landed on one of the paths, leading up to a gate of the castle. Before he could enter, he was stopped by a man in a black uniform, with red sleeves and a red belt. He had long, dark red hair and wore sunglasses.
-The fires below were created by Nergal, when Makuta defeated him and took his powers, to control the underworld.
-Who are you, a tourist guide?

-Don’t patronize me, Messenger, I am the Horseman of War, I don’t care about your dispute with Makuta, he is nothing, as are his plans of taking over the afterlife, I have much greater things to do.

-Yet here you are, talking to me.

-I’m here to warn you. Kill Makuta, see if I care, but if you ever stand in the way of me and my brothers or our quest to find the Staff of Evil and resurrect the Master, we will defeat you.

In a flash the Horseman was gone. Luke didn’t understand his name, he didn’t have a horse and wondered who Nergal was; but he had heard of the Staff by Yoda, who had told him the story of Corna’El, the first Jedi, who had found the Staff, was corrupted by it and also created the Sith
. She had predicted the coming of the Messenger in what was later known as the “great premonition”.

Luke entered the castle and made his way to Makuta’s throne room.
Part 6: The Messenger

The lord of the underworld sat on a large black throne, surrounded by his minions, including Bebi. When Luke entered the room, he sent them away.


-The Messenger of the Gods, we meet at last.

-Makuta, I presume…

-I know you believe it’s your destiny to defeat me, but premonitions and fate are all overrated, they only show the general direction the universe is about to take. The truth is much more complex. For example: if you feel something terrible is about to happen you can still succeed in preventing it; the same is possible with so-called destinies, they’re nothing more than probabilities.

-Destiny or not, it’s my intention to defeat you.

-Because I’m evil? I’m only called evil because those in power don’t agree with me. I used to be an Avatar, I believe in choice; if someone wants to kill millions of people, he doesn’t need to be punished or have to repent; I believe the afterlife and the plain of the living should be more greatly intertwined, until they become one, where death is never final: an eternal battlefield. For me, that’s the destiny of the universe. Those who don’t agree, can stay in heaven if they want, but many up there are also in an eternal battlefield, as their personal heaven; I only plan to make it real and rule it, until my incarnation is defeated, and then I can try to win back my throne. It’s all part of the game.
Now tell me, does that idea make me evil?

-My father and grandfather used to think the universe was a game, when they were still immortal, but they changed those ideas. You plan to create a world of suffering, filled with injustice. You only care about your right to choose your path. In your world, people have no choice but to fight; that is what makes you evil.

-I suppose it’s all about power in the end, we all crave it, power to change what we don’t like about the universe, it makes us both the same, accept it.

-No, You want power to deprive people of their choices; if I have power, I use it to give more choices to the people and create equality.

-Don’t get political with me, boy, you’ll soon feel what power truly means to me!

The massive demon attacked Luke, hitting him with a strong blow. Luke fired several beams at Makuta, but they didn’t seem to hurt him. Makuta looked Luke straight in the eyes and entered his mind.


-I know all your fears, doubts and regrets, boy.

-One of the Rahkshi tried the same thing, but you should know tat I have accepted my dark side as part of me, I have defeated my fears.
-There’s much more in your subconscious mind, than you might realise. The fact that your son from an alternative timeline was extremely evil, which was your fault. The inheritance of your many evil family members, your father, your grandfather.

And I seem to have found your greatest regret: you never had a childhood, which you tried to compensate with your son, whose childhood was very short. I can make you feel what you’ve missed, the love of your parents, the carelessness as a child, things you’ll never experience.

-If you truly are as smart as they claim, you would know such emotions directly fuel my powers

-The emotions I am about to release on you will only get you down and give me enough time to imprison your mind completely.

Tears rolled down Luke’s eyes as Makuta increased his feelings of regret. While Makuta had been busy, the Toa had been busy destroying his demons and reclaiming Limbo. Makuta’s strength was now wavering because of the sudden loss of control. His attention slipped for a moment and gave Luke enough time to break from his spell and fire all the power of his mind at Makuta, breaking apart his body. his spirit-form was small and humanoid; it was locked in the underworld, together with his minions. He had defeated Makuta and foiled his plans.
The victory almost seemed too easy. When Luke was accepted in the eternal light of heaven, he knew why, he still hadn’t faced his greatest challenge, his ultimate destiny. Everything until now was only to prepare him.
Part 7: Celebrations

In August of the year 5031 ACM, the New Republic was celebrating the 25th anniversary of Cell’s defeat. From the 14th September of the same year, until a year later, there would be many more celebrations, because it would be the New Republic’s 25th year, this would also include the anniversary of the Bohrok’s destruction.

By now, the Neutrals had started building a network of artificial wormholes, only connected to each other, to minimize the power needed. The Valcronian Empire had fallen back to Insectoid 4th, after the fall of Oscion and was getting smaller all the time. The Coalition was facing imminent defeat and the Spirion had finally found their ancient home planet Brasalia in the Federation’s first galaxy.
The cities on New Valcro were growing exponentially and on the tower’s elevated courtyard, a statue of Luke was about to be unveiled before a massive audience. It was the “summer of the capes”; many had followed a recent fashion craze and wore several capes over their clothes or uniforms. It had taken a lot of time to create the statue, because it had been made from black metal, a substance that was very difficult to work with. An applause roared through the audience and among viewers watching at home as the large statue was unveiled. In the hand of the representation of Luke were several rings, representing the rings around the planet and the Hypno-Circles. In the middle of the rings was the Hypno Crystal itself.

Before the eyes of millions, a bright light appeared in front of the statue. It transformed into a person in white robes. When the blinding light had lessened to a glow, the viewers were amazed that it was in fact Luke Valcro himself. He said that he had been given permission to visit the lower plains for this special occasion.
Sofie ran up to him kissed him. His son soon followed to hug him. Sofie explained that Jonathan was on a mission, because he believed he had found the location of one of the Hypno-Circles. Luke said he already knew it, because he was now part of “Them” and he shared the knowledge of the universe with Them. His father’s quest was also one of the reasons of his return, but he wasn’t allowed to talk about it much more.

In the outskirts of the garbage galaxy, the Federation’s third galaxy, Jonathan was tracking down what he believed was a Hypno-Circle. The circles had been examined greatly and the combination of black metal and several dimensional abnormalities his sensors had picked up made it almost certainly the Circle of space, allowing him to travel anywhere, with the help of the Hypno Crystal. The rings of Luke’s statue had been designed so that they could be replaced by the real circles, if they would be found.
Between the debris of former space stations, orbiting around a planet, Johnny soon found an ancient Mumifar base, he had been wrong; the anomalies he had detected came from one of the destroyed artificial wormholes from the Old republic, which had formed a large network that was now being rebuilt with the Neutrals’ similar technology. The only active old stations were the ones connecting the first galaxy of the Federation to the second and the second to the third.

Jonathan’s ship was rather new and featured croniton enhanced engines, with multiple exhausts. The warp field created by the ship interfered with the unstable wormhole, when Jonathan wanted to travel back. The ship was propelled outside the cluster, into the Saiyan Galaxy…
Part 8: The Other Galaxy

Jonathan didn’t know where he was, because his ship had crashed on a planet. He had been able to beam himself out at the last moment. The ship exploded in a blaze, impossible to repair. Johnny was now flying over white cliffs, next to a sea. The top of the cliffs were covered with short grass (and scorch marks from his crashed ship). He flew a bit higher, to look for signs of civilisation; if he didn’t find any, he could be stranded for a long time. It reminded him of an event that happened before he had rebelled against his father; Palpatine had sent him on an errant, but he had crashed on an uninhabited planet. He had to survive for three weeks before he was rescued; only to find out it had been a test by his father.
Luckily, Johnny spotted a small city and saw several ships going into orbit, without the need of rockets. This planet obviously had a space-faring population.

Jonathan still had a personal cloaking device and walked invisibly into the city. Most houses were two or three story stone buildings, filthy and decaying. Only two structures stood out: a lone skyscraper and the spaceport. The city was filled with beings he had never seen before, human-like races, with just a small detail that made them alien. In a market place food he had never heard of was being sold. Jonathan knew he was far from home; he needed to find out where he was, before travelling into space. Suddenly 3 warriors entered the market. They looked like mercenaries and started kicking over the stands and taking food. The official looking thugs all wore armour similar to what Bebi had shown to be that of Julian Vegeta. Jonathan realised he had to be in the Saiyan galaxy, but non of the three brutes was from his race: one of them had wild green hair, another was a dark grey alien and the third one had a long forehead with two large protruding lobes at the back of his head. He had seen more of these kinds of aliens in the streets. If he wanted to show himself, he would fit in, because there had been enough races that looked exactly like him, but he needed to find new clothes; his outfit showed a version of the Valcronian sign, which looked like the sign on the armour he had seen and he hadn’t followed the trend to wear several capes. It occurred to him that he couldn’t possibly have any money that would be accepted, so the only thing left for him to do, was to find a friendly official, and explain his situation. If it would come to a fight, he would probably win, because Palpatine had explained to him that the level of Super-Saiyan was mythical, feared and unsurpassable by any race in his galaxy.
He flew to the top of the skyscraper, which served as a restaurant. The people there seemed to be far less scruffy than those in the streets, probably nobility or officials. Using a hand held device, he was able to translate signs next to the stairs and elevators. The office of “the Governor of Vaask’s Empire” was located 5 stories below him. he “borrowed” a large coat from the restaurant’s entrance and headed for the office. On the way there, he deactivated his cloaking device. He entered a small, empty waiting room and was greeted by a man with wild purple hair in a colourful uniform, with a narrow cape over his right shoulder.

-Are you the Governor?

-No, I am Marshal Tony Quinn, military commander of Vaask’s forces in this part of his empire and advisor of the Governor.
-I am an… ambassador from far away and don’t know anything about this place, its leaders or even its races, could you give me a short history?

-You should ask Governor Waland, I shall let you enter, but must ask you to give me any kind of weapon you’re carrying and a name to introduce you to him.

Jonathan gave him his lightsabre and told him his name. a few moments later, he was led through a door into an office. Behind a desk a normal looking man was seated, he wore a white and red uniform and a round helmet with a strange ornament on it, looking like a beaker. Strangely, Jonathan sensed two persons sitting there at the same time.
-Welcome to my district, Mr Valcro. I am Nad Waland, Governor of the empire of Jordan Vaask. I am a Bisolan, a race of people with two souls and personalities. A new device has suppressed my softer personality and made it able for me to get this function. Our current emperor is a Manatoian, a race with powerful mental abilities, which go beyond the use of the Force. And Marshal Quinn is a Tarren, a race that looks like you and me, but they all have extreme hair in vivid colours.
It is our function to suppress the inhabitants of newly conquered planets and maintain order. This galaxy is in constant war and always has been, only the different sides of the conflict often change. Vaask has united several smaller groups under his command and now rules the greatest empire of this galaxy, since the Tsufuru-jin kingdom.
Currently, our largest war is with the Tarren.

-I thought you said the Marshal was a Tarren?

-The eternal war of our galaxy has dispersed many races, our war is with warriors led by a group of Tarren, like we are led by a group of Manatoian. I am intrigued; internal sensors have identified you as a Saiyan, a dying race, yet you know nothing of our history.

-My father had turned into a Super Saiyan after he had been betrayed by his king and subsequently became an outlaw and left this galaxy over 5000 years ago, aided by beings who had come here in search for help against a plague of mechanical monsters, the Bohrok, which had already destroyed all life in 3 of the five galaxies of their massive Republic.

He managed to defeat the plague by shielding the cluster with a Matrix computer program, which also gave him control over the former Republic and a way to extend his life. He named himself Emperor and eradicated those who wanted to use the Force benevolently, the Jedi. He didn’t want to give me and my brothers direct military control, so we revolted. I became dictator over most of my father’s former territory, while he still ruled a part of it. As an experiment, I allowed several Jedi to form their own community in one of the abandoned galaxies. My personal assistant betrayed me and helped them see the truth of the Matrix, eventually my son arrived from the future and decided to help them too. A lot of complex events led to the defeat of my and my father’s Empire and the destruction of the Matrix. I had a change of hearts and joined them in their war against the remnants of the Empires and the renewed Bohrok threat. It turned out Bebi Tuffel, former king of the Tsufuru-jin had found a way to become immortal and was behind the plague. We managed to find his base of operations and shut down all Bohrok. Ultimately my son defeated Bebi by giving his own life, which is almost 25 years ago. The remnants of the dictatorial realms are still not completely defeated, but our New Republic is stable, peaceful and growing. A strange accident with ancient technology sent me to this galaxy, to this planet, and now I’m standing before you.
-An intergalactic peaceful republic, surviving Tsufuru-jin, time travel and a 5000-year-old Super Saiyan. That’s the most ridiculous story I’ve ever heard. Do you think I’m an idiot? You’re nothing more than a spy for the Tarren!

Nad’s eyes opened wide, when Jonathan turned into a Super-Saiyan before him.
-I guess I was wrong, but I must admit, you even look like a Tarren now. I’m not as powerful as our warriors and mercenaries and can’t even begin to understand your might, but if you truly are on the side of peace and democracy, you are not welcome here.

Suddenly, a shield was projected around the Governor and gas started pouring into the chamber.

-A trick the Tsufuru-jin used a lot, and I am a bit of an historian. Sleep tight, Mr Valcro, we shan’t meet again.

Jonathan woke up in the middle of a desert. He immediately saw he was on a different planet, because the colour of the sky was different. The fact that half of it was filled with the image of a ringed gas giant around which the satellite was moving was also a large clue. Johnny saw several skeletons of different humanoids around him and thought he had been left there to die of thirst, but he soon saw two men approaching him. they had a different figure and height and the colour of their hands was also different; yet their faces were completely the same, wrapped in organic looking rags with dark spots as eyes and tattered around the mouth.
Jonathan recognised them from stories his father had told him; these were the feared Gabuchi brothers, the last of a mysterious race which had been defeated in the ancient times of this galaxy. They said they had been dumped on the planet through a trick several years ago and since then enemies of the current leaders had been brought there to fight with them to the death. The battle would be recorded and transmitted for the amusement of troops and officers. Either the feared Gabuchi brothers or their current enemy would be killed, a win-win situation.
Jonathan knew he wouldn’t be able to reason with them and fired a powerful blast through the chest of Kordul Gabuchi. The rags fell of the body, revealing an alien face. The rags swiftly moved into a hole in the ground. Gabal attacked him and even managed to hit him several times. Millennia of experience and the battle knowledge of all his former hosts made him a strong force, but Jonathan had much might through the force and killed Gabal’s host body too. The rags then attached themselves to Johnny’s face, trying to take over his body, but he transformed into a Super Saiyan and used his aura to burn the Gabuchi’s true body. It fell to the ground, stunned; several blasts were necessary to finally destroy it. Jonathan was the first to ever kill on of the Gabuchi brothers (and the first to kill one of their race in a long time).
All he could do now was waiting for a new opponent…
Part 9: Finding Love

Several strong prisoners were sent down during the following few days; Jonathan was forced to kill them all, there was no reasoning with them. Each time he killed an opponent, he received some food and water. The officers in charge of the project decided that if Jonathan was strong enough to kill at least one of the Gabuchi brothers, he also was far more dangerous to be kept alive, so the next day, a battalion of the strongest Tophatanian mercenaries was sent down to kill him. they were a race with enormous brains and were brilliant strategists and Force users (one of the thugs at the market was of this race). Jonathan had been weakened from fighting and little food or water, but something suddenly caught his eye: a moving spark of light was visible in the sky, the ship that had brought the warriors. Instead of attacking them, he flew high into the sky, until he was able to aim and fire several blasts at the ship. The Tophatanians were following him upwards, but stopped when they saw their ship crashing down.
It had been able to relatively stay in one piece, but was badly damaged nonetheless. The warriors rushed to aid their superiors and the mechanics on board. Jonathan used the confusion to defeat them. He conquered the ship and locked everyone into a shielded cargo hold. He helped the mechanics repair the ship and freed a prisoner, who was wearing the same uniform as other soldiers of Vaask. It was a bald man with a red moustache and beard, who introduced himself as Rick Sol, a Saiyan.
He pleaded with Jonathan to save his daughter Jane, who had been captured by the Prillians on the planet Narm. They first had to travel to the capital of the region, to get help from Governor Waland. Valcro said it had been the same person that had dumped him on the planet in the first place. Rick explained Johnny had met Nad Waland, the evil part of the particular Bisolan; he had befriended the kind part: Dan Waland. He had found out how to reverse the device that suppressed Dan, but had been captured before he could do it.

After several hours of travel, they arrived at the planet. They fought their way into the building and quickly overpowered the Governor. Jonathan felt something was wrong, it had been too easy and he also felt only one presence in the body. Rick couldn’t find the device on the Governor’s body and realised it wasn’t Dan/Nad, this was Marshal Xander Waland, his identical twin brother; if a Bisolan identical twin is born, one of them will have only a single soul. Nad had found out about Jonathan’s escape and knew that if he helped Rick, they would be able to get to him, so he had asked his brother to act as a decoy. He hadn’t thought of the fact that they now had a powerful hostage. They demanded Nad to destroy his device, or his brother would die. The other officers obliged the Governor to cooperate; they would make another, hopefully before his other personality gained control. Nad detached the device from his body and smashed it on the ground. Jonathan had been able to transfer his personal transporter and cloak to the ship and they beamed away, without their hostage (both technologies were unknown in this galaxy).
On Narm they negotiated with the Prillians, a literal armless race that used the Force for every task, including conversations, but were mostly merchants instead of fighters. They offered the matter-energy transporter to them, in exchange for Jane. This new technology would make them vastly superior to other dealers and freed Rick’s daughter. She also wore the Vaask Imperial uniform and had short, military styled black hair. Jonathan quickly fell in love with her, but hid his feelings.

A large ship landed on Narm and a large delegation of officers, including several Marshals exited. At the centre was Governor Waland. They walked towards Jane, Rick and Johnny; the Governor walked up to meet them. He strangely smiled at Rick; Jonathan was ready to attack, but Rick smiled back and they hugged.

-It’s good to see you again, Rick


-Dan? But how?

-I quickly gained control after the device was destroyed, but managed to hide it. After they installed a new one, I revealed the truth. I told them they would probably be executed if they tried to attack a higher officer, since I am still the official Governor. I have all memories of Nad and he has mine, so I knew were you’d go. I gathered every like-minded officer I could find and rushed here. I have received a communiqué from several high-ranking Tarren; they explained they would help us overthrow both governments, to create a peaceful new union. Nad was of course not interested, even after several spies informed the validity of the claim. My other half is quite fond of this everlasting war, but I believe that we can eventually create peace.

-I believe it too now, I know I’ve always been sceptical about the possibility of peace, but this man here, Jonathan, has told me the complete known history of his cluster, and apparently, before the creation of the Jedi, the situation was quite similar to our galaxy. If they managed to create relative peace in an entire cluster, it must be possible to achieve in just one galaxy. If we don’t find a way to return him home, he promised to help us; he even gave us an idea: he has given the Prillians his beaming technology and suggested asking Vaask to pay the planet a visit to witness the use of this radical new machinery. I’ve been told he’s already on his way and will arrive here in two days. Jonathan is one of the most powerful people in his cluster, he was able to kill one of the Gabuchi brothers and I’m certain he’ll be able to defeat Jordan.
Emperor Vaask had been informed that many officers from surrounding systems had come to the planet to insure his safety, but they were in fact Dan’s trusted men.
When Vaask came to Narm, everybody held up the façade. The Prillians demonstrated the beaming technology and invited the Emperor to try it himself. Instead of beaming Vaask to a nearby platform, they beamed him into space, killing him. Dan’s trustees opened fire on the Emperor’s personal sentries, slaying the surprised men; but the head of the guard pushed a button on his costume, revealing himself as the true Jordan Vaask. Both parties ceased fire, when he began to speak to Dan.
-I shouldn’t have put a Bisolan in such a high position, but at least it made me discover this plot to assassinate me!
-If you’re Jordan, who did we beam into space?

-My decoy, Frank Gido. His fate will seem pleasant, after what I’ll do with you, Governor Waland.

Vaask’s featureless grey face started to glow and fired a kind of beam at Dan. Valcro transformed and blocked the path of Vaask’s attack, but when it hit him, he fell to the ground, just as the Emperor. The amazed crowd gathered around the collapsed pair and checked if they were still alive.
Jordan’s attack had made them unconscious, putting both their minds inside Vaask’s head, where he would be able to kill Jonathan, by attacking his soul. The ground beneath their feet was dark grey and the sky was a lighter grey. Johnny fired a blast at the ground, with no effect, he fired at the image of the Emperor, with he wasn’t harmed either. He also noticed that he was no Super Saiyan anymore and that he couldn’t transform. Vaask punched him in the face, but was surprised he survived the blow.

-You’re stronger than I thought, Saiyan.


-I don’t need to be transformed to be powerful.

-Here you’ll never be as strong as outside, in your body; we are used to working with our soul alone, you can never get accustomed to the situation before I kill you.

-That’s where you’re wrong; I was once without a body, my soul dispersed through the Matrix, a computer program that controlled my cluster. I am already more accustomed than you realise.
Jonathan gathered all the strength he could gather and fired at the ground again. A large crack appeared as Vaask screamed, spikes started to grow out of the ground and the room around them was beginning to fill with them. Jordan’s image disappeared and he woke up, screaming and with his hands on his head. Without his attention and control, Jonathan’s mind was transferred back into his body and he woke too. Vaask was preoccupied with his pain and didn’t see Valcro’s attack coming. The Emperor was dead, his sentries surrendered and the people rejoiced; Jane flew into Jonathan’s arms to congratulate him and they kissed.

Dan realised this was only the beginning of their struggle for peace and that he would have to work hard if he wanted to give freedom to the peoples of his galaxy, but he promised he would do anything to help Jonathan return home.
Part 10: Reincarnation

Luke stayed with his family for some time and said he’d stay until the official start of the year long celebrations on the 14th September. Luke had convinced the government of the New Republic not to worry about Jonathan’s disappearance and ensured everybody he’d turn up in time for the celebrations.
Many young Jedi students asked for Luke’s guidance, because he had become one with the Force, but Luke replied he was forbidden to interfere or use his knowledge and power, except to undo damage by those who had broken the rule, like Makuta. He had been given a few extra exceptions because the cluster had been hit the most by violations from beyond this plane, which allowed his visit, but he couldn’t share the knowledge he had gained after defeating Makuta. He could, however, instruct these scholars, who had only known about him from history lessons, about anything he had learned during his life.

Tuesday, 13th September, people started to come to New Valcro Prime for tomorrow’s official start and Luke gathered his family, who started to wonder how Jonathan would be able to get there in time. Luke explained he was allowed to use his powers one time: to return his father home. He travelled there and asked his father to say goodbye to his new friends. Dan thanked Jonathan for all his help and expressed the hope they would meet again, if technology allowed it. Valcro was ready to return, but there were two people who’d join him: Jane Sol and her father Rick.
They returned to New Valcro Prime, where their family was waiting. They had many questions about the two Saiyans who had joined them and were startled by the announcement that Johnny would marry Jane. Their amazement was even larger when they announced Jane was pregnant. A baby would be born in the second half of May. This would be the first Valcro born since the end of the Matrix; he or she would have a childhood of a typical length.
The next day, Luke gave his farewell speech to everybody in the cluster.

-You may feel that I am leaving you again and that you’ll need me and my powers in the future. You can handle anything this universe throws at you; I know it through my connection with the afterlife and the Force.
There are, however, events you couldn’t possibly stop, involving incursions from beyond this plane. Instead of risking the balance of the universe by stepping in with our infinite power and knowledge, I shall return with only enough to stop this peril. I can only do this as a mortal being, which is why I’ll reincarnate as myself in about 8 months.
His family realised Jane and Johnny’s baby would be Luke himself.

-I shall have the childhood I never experienced and grow up to become the person I was. Do not worry that I’ll become someone else, my soul will gradually understand its origin and on my 18th birthday, I’ll become fully aware of my past and become who I am at the end of the next sentence. Until then.

Luke vanished in a small flash and on the 15th May 5032, a little bit early, Luke Richard Robotica Sol Valcro was born.

Luke’s childhood saw an even greater rise of freedom and democracy in the cluster, all but defeating the Coalition and the Empire, many of its high positioned officers surrendered after hearing Luke would return, even more powerful than before. Luke joined both the Jedi and M-Tron and was in every aspect starting to look like he did when he first arrived from the future. On his 18th birthday in 5050, almost fifty years after that moment, the young Luke was afraid he would cease to be and be replaced by the Luke they all knew. His family and friends replied that he was the Luke they knew; his new life had already been longer than that of the “original” Luke. Before their eyes, several scars and a few years changed Luke’s face a bit as he transformed into the man he was.
-I understand know, I’m not really changed, I am and always have been Luke Valcro, the Messenger. My youth and my former life form one whole. Neither personality is subdued, like in Cell’s fusions, nor am I both of them, because they are the same. It is difficult to explain it, but you can view it as if I suffered from memory loss, which is now solved.

He stepped up from his chair and kissed Sofie. Their relation had been strange; the young Luke had always had a special interest in her, never being able to enter a relationship with another woman or man. Now that the two parts of his life had been combined, their love could be expressed fully again. The day after his birthday, Luke regained the titles he had before his death, including a high position at M-Tron and large political powers. The word spread fast that Luke Valcro had now truly returned.
Luke, John and Jack came together to discuss what Luke’s plan was. He said to them they had to find and stop Sharkthoot, it would all start and hopefully end with him.
Chapter11: Resurrection1: Ultimate Redemption
Part 1: Hiding in Plain Sight
R

epublic spies and Jedi had searched through the space controlled by the Coalition, but no one seemed to know where Jean-Luc Sharkthoot was hiding, nobody seemed to have heard from him the last 5 months and he seemed to have disappeared like the Computer Virus many years before. When they put together the information they had gathered about his last activities, it seemed he was trying to find a way to secretly return to the Federation.

With Sharkthoot missing, the Coalition was lead by Simon Bicky and Barren Von Strüberg and his mercenaries. Simon didn’t share Sharkthoot’s hate against the Federation and Barren was only loyal to those who paid him. After several weeks of talking, the leaders of the Coalition and the New Republic accepted the surrender of the Coalition, on the condition of full amnesty, but with the loss of political rights (the right to vote or enter elections). The amnesty only included those leaders who registered themselves to Republic officials, so Sharkthoot was still a wanted villain.
The three amigos travelled to Hafk, the former Coalition capital, because they expected Sharkthoot would show himself after others had surrender his nation, but there were still no signs of his whereabouts. Realising finding Sharkthoot had something to do with Luke’s greatest mission ever, even greater than the defeat of Bebi, who had managed to kill nearly all life in the cluster, many Jedi travelled to the newly acquired systems to search for him.
Luke realised he had been long gone already, and they should be searching for ways to enter the Federation, other than through the wormhole near New Valcro Prime. Eventually Simon approached them with crucial information: before the capture of Grand Admiral Ceva, they had been working on finding a way to tap into the Force, without a Force-use, because there were non aligned to the Coalition, except the Grand Admiral. They were thinking of building some kind of device, when it came to them that the Hypno-circles worked in a similar way as what they were thinking of. Without any of the scrolls or diamonds to study, they speculated about the interaction between the circles and the Hypno-Crystal; the crystal attracted the Force and acted as a power source for the circles, but they still needed to be activated by someone using the Force. They hypothesized that anything attracting or channelling the Force could be used instead of the Crystal, which is why they started studying Force repelling planets, in order to find a way to do the opposite. After the capture of Experiment Planet and Ceva, the research had been put on hold, but Sharkthoot had supposedly continued it, together with his personal guard Clovis Fett. He had travelled to the Forbidden Zone, in search for a “disturbance” in the Force.
The Jedi knew from Yoda that the Forbidden Zone had not been named by Palpatine, because of the proof of the Spirion Holocaust, but had been forbidden for eons, because it had been the last known location of Corna’El and the Staff. Luke knew the Staff would be pivotal in his quest, so he realised this was the direction in which he had to search.

While looking for any disturbance in the Force, the Jedi scouting the Forbidden Zone found three possible locations: the destroyed planet of old Anakin, a Sith temple from where the Matrix was possible created and an empty spot in space, which nevertheless had a massive gravitational pull, comparable to a medium star with an orbiting system of planets. Again, Sharkthoot wasn’t at any of the locations, but on the planet with the Sith Temple, they found something interesting. Apparently, something had crashed into the planet at high speed; studying the impact crater had led to only one conclusion: one of the Circles!
The three amigos travelled to the planet, which they had named “Matrix Planet”, to join the diggers, but when Luke arrived, he sensed the circle had already been taken away. Using his advanced senses, he realised it was the Circle of Space. If Sharkthoot had been able to activate it without the Hypno-Crystal, he could be anywhere.
Luke had acquired divine powers, but was only allowed to use them to a certain extent, as not to harm the balance of the universe, but he managed to track where the circle had brought Sharkthoot and his scientists. He grabbed John and Jack’s sleeves and instantly transported them along the trail the Circle had left.

To their surprise, they landed in the middle of a Federation city, on Colony 12, near the capital. Underneath the asteroid, between the large gravity domes keeping the asteroid stable was an old research station, which had been Sharkthoot’s before his coup. Nobody had checked his old possessions, like his many houses and research stations, but apparently he had been hiding under everyone’s noses. When the three amigos entered the station, they found Sharkthoot, but he was very different from what they remembered: he had only one head, covered with a helmet, and a completely robotic body. They were able to arrest him rather quickly and brought him down to the Space Police station of Colony 12.
Part 2: The New Circle

Sharkthoot didn’t seem to care he had been captured and didn’t answer any questions. Most of the time he even seemed to be asleep with his eyes open, in some kind of trance, making it difficult for the three Jedi to enter his mind. Though Sharkthoot was a direct descendant of Wizard Oz, he wasn’t Force potent like most of his mother’s family, so he couldn’t be using the Force, but if he still had the abilities from his enlarged brain, which required the additional heads, he could still use them to block the attempts at reading his mind.
Luke used his powers to dig deeper and discovered a connection to three other beings, which all sensed like Sharkthoot! When they threatened to sever the connection, they finally got his attention. He said that he had removed his 3 extra heads and had given each of them a body, so he could be at different places at the same time. Severing the connection would kill this head and harm his abilities to use the other two, because he needed the full concentration from his 4 brains in order for it to work.
The three amigos sedated this “part” of Sharkthoot and used the connection to track down the others, who were somewhere on the colony together. They discovered a hidden base inside the asteroid where Sharkthoot, his two extra bodies, and Clovis were overlooking a project. The scientists had already evacuated the base when they had heard about the Coalition’s capitulation. Sharkthoot and Clovis wanted to leave too, correctly assuming they had been discovered, but the three amigos were fast enough to stop them. Sharkthoot pushed a button, which caused a bizarre device in the centre of the room to open. John and Jack suddenly felt their ability to use the Force dropping; Luke’s divine powers were unaffected. Powering up, they saw their aura’s being sucked into the machine. When the device had completely opened, their abilities returned to normal. Inside the machine was a circle, not made out of black metal, but of more convenient metals. This circle was also much bulkier than a Hypno-Circle and sprouted many tubes and wires connected to device that had encased it. Sharkthoot smiled as he addressed Luke:

-Behold: the 5th Hypno-Circle!

-I doubt this thing works, but even if it does, how will you use it, there is no disturbance in the Force, no Hypno-Crystal.

-The Crystal was designed to draw its powers from the Staff, to imitate it. I have recently met someone who gets his powers in quite a similar way; I believe you have already met each other.

Inside the darkest corner of the base, a shadow was transforming into a person with a black uniform, red sleeves and a red belt. The figure had long dark red hair and whore sunglasses, it was the Horseman of War.
Part 3: The Horsemen

Many ancient stories of many species predict the end of their world. None of them predicted the Bohrok, which actually destroyed most of these races and their planets, but rather they described 4 beings, representing war, plague, famine and death, who would be the prelude to the apocalypse. The story of several old Human religions was the most famous, because of its references in other aspects of their culture, like music and movies. They had been named the four Horsemen of the Apocalypse.

These 4 actually existed; they had been created by the Master of Evil to find his Staff. After a battle between good and evil, before time began, the Staff had captured all his powers and his essence, which had actually created the universe itself. Every user had become insane or suicidal and every time control over the Staff had been lost, it had scorched the planet’s surface and had transported itself to another part of the universe. Each time it had caused terrible evils and to provoke the Staff’s arrival, to attract it, the Horsemen had to inspire evil and terror. They had fuelled anger to cause war, made it possible for Bebi to contact Makuta and create the plague of the Bohrok. But their powers of influence could only do so much; they hadn’t found the Staff yet. They did, however, track where it had been: the wars in the ancient past of the Spirion, the creation of the Sith (which happened before their own creation). It seemed they were getting ever closer. But they realised the Staff might not be enough to resurrect their Master, who had been imprisoned in the very centre of Hell, beyond the flames of Nergal. Something else was indirectly using the powers of the Staff; for a long time only for evil, until it was destroyed and reformed as an artefact of the light side: the Hypno-Crystal.
Only after it was used together with the circles, did the horsemen realise the potential and necessity of both the Crystal and the circles. The Crystal was needed to complete the powers of the Staff and the circles could be used to find it and even resurrect the Master. This was the purpose of the new circle, it was meant to copy the effects of the Circle of Union, which could be used to locate the other circles. Normally this wouldn’t work, but the horsemen would be able to follow the trail between them through the force, like Luke had been able to track the Circle of Space.
Part 4: Origin of the Hypno-Crystal

A long time before the creation of the Jedi and the Sith, the Spirion had ruled the first galaxy of the Federation, as only intelligent species of the time. They had found the Staff and it caused one of the greatest wars of their nation, even without someone touching it. After three Spirion grabbed it together, they were able to use it without going insane immediately, like every other user before and after them, with the exception of Corna’El. The new war was even greater than the former one and a plan was constructed to capture the Staff. Both sides desperately wanted it for their own good. After a long war, the triumvirate was defeated, but the Staff had been lost. Addicted to the idea of unlimited power, the three kings of the Spirion created 3 crystals. They also invented the idea of the Circles, combined with the crystals, they would be able to recreate the powers of the Staff and rebuild their Realm. But the crystals, which tapped into the powers of the Staff, could only do one thing: destroy. The kingdoms of Minolus and Amonas fell; the peoples battled to posses the crystals themselves or protested against its use. When King Sincam saw the crystals had destroyed the other two kingdoms, he ordered the crystals destroyed and the plans for the circles hidden. The Spirion Realm had fallen and their race had been isolated on their planet until they were discovered by Palpatine.
After Palpatine’s Hypno-Crystal had been destroyed, a good version had been created, a perversion in the eyes of the Horsemen. They would first try and find the circles, before stealing the Crystal.
Sharkthoot activated his artificial circle and the Horseman of War projected his powers onto it. The Circle of Space was put in the middle of the larger one and before Luke could attack them, the whole room was transported to another galaxy, to a desolate planet of ice. Luke was quicker than the Horseman and used his powers to transport himself, John and Jack to the location of the circle. Luke sensed this was the circle of Life, but before he was able to grab it, he was knocked down by another Horseman. This one had green sleeves, a green belt and light brown hair, it was the Horseman of Plague. He transported Luke and himself away but fired a large blast at the circle first. “Something to keep you two busy”, he said.
Part 5: Young Palpatine and Lucian
A vortex had been opened inside the circle and two figures appeared: a young version of Palpatine, and his brother Lucian. Palpatine wore grey armour with a black cape; he had wild red hair and a five-o-clock shadow. Lucian had a lighter version of the armour, with a green hue; his hair was brownish red and he had an arrogant smirk. Palpatine transformed into a super Saiyan and attacked the surprised John and Jack. Lucian didn’t know the two Jedi and started looking where he was. The circle behind him had disappeared, taken away by the Horseman. Near the horizon he spotted Sharkthoot’s base, to where he flew to get shelter from the harsh environment. He advised Palpatine and the two men he was fighting to do the same.

John and Jack were as powerful as the Super Saiyan and the three of them decided Lucian’s plan was probably the smartest. Inside the base, Sharkthoot and Clovis cursed the Horseman of War for leaving them there. Apparently the short activation of his artificial circle had been enough to track all others; he had taken the Circle of Space and left them behind.
Lucian explained to the others he had already been reborn and died 3 times since his life as Lucian; he had turned to evil again the third time around and had been in Hell for it, which was why he had been able to have been resurrected; a soul that has moved on can’t be pulled out. Being resurrected as Lucian Valcro had given him the memories of all his previous lifetimes until then, possibly making him the smartest person in the room. He helped Sharkthoot adjust the artificial circle to imitate the Circle of Space and used the afterimage of the two horsemen’s presence to activate it, transporting the room back to Colony 12. Before the Valcro brothers could discuss the weird situation, they disappeared.

Sharkthoot explained to John and Jack how the Horseman had contacted him when he was investigating a way the find the circles or duplicate their effects. He planned on using them to change history and make him king of the U.L.F. instead of Blake or Alex. The Horseman had promised his assistance if he could use the circles after Sharkthoot. Realising he had been betrayed, he wanted to destroy his artificial circle, but John and Jack convinced him it could still be used to find either Luke or the other circles to attempt to stop the Horsemen’s plans. Sharkthoot’s multiple bodies and Clovis started working on the circle again, when John and Jack disappeared in a similar way as the Valcro brothers.
They now found themselves on New Valcro Prime, together with Luke, Lucian and Palpatine. They were standing near Luke’s statue, which still had the Hypno Crystal inside it. Next to it were two of the circles. Confused by what they saw, Luke started explaining what had happened; apparently the Horseman had no real power in this plane of existence; using their powers to transport both the circles and Luke had allowed him to use his powers too. He was in fact much more powerful than them and intercepted their transportation, getting the circles himself. He realised the Horsemen would need living beings to do their bidding for them, which is why he also transported John, Jack, Palpatine and his brother to him. Luke expected the Horsemen to pick the most powerful beings that would help them, so he could use all the help he could get. The Master of evil wouldn’t want to rule the universe, only destroy it. The defeat of his evil had created the universe, so its destruction would mean his victory over good. The Valcro brothers understood this and offered Luke their provisional assistance.
By now the Horsemen would probably have gathered the other two circles: union and time. The group of fighters was confronted by only four warriors: an apparent Sith, who wielded a red lightsabre, a Manatoian in typical armour from the Saiyan galaxy, a bulky soldier of an unknown race and someone infected by a member of the race of the Gabuchi brothers. They introduced themselves as Darth Thanatoi, Bailan Woun, Gill Xeric and… Gabal Gabuchi.
Luke was confused, Johnny had told him Gabal had died and Kordul had survived, not the other way around. Behind the four fighters, the Horseman of Death appeared, he had temporarily resurrected them to do their will. This Horseman was taller than the others, had completely black clothes, hair and also large black wings. In his arms was the circle of time, which fired a blast at Lucian and Palpatine, undoing their resurrection. The undead fighters attacked the three amigos and the Jedi who had arrived at the scene. Though much weaker than the Jedi, the resurrected warriors stayed alive through the powers of the Horseman. The other Horsemen used the confusion to steal the remaining circles and the Crystal. Luke sensed it and attacked the Horsemen themselves. His blasts disintegrated the three who were trying to steal the circles and the Crystal. Death however used his own powers to overwhelm Luke with entire armies of undead warriors. Unable to hold them all back, the Horseman was able to grab the circles and the Crystal.
Part 6: The Master

Death’s departure made the undead disappear, seemingly dissolving as a flash of fire. Luke tapped completely into his powers and transported john, Jack and himself to the location of the Staff itself.

Using the massive trail this left through the Force, Sharkthoot used his artificial circle to transport himself to the same place. Meanwhile, the Horseman of Death had used the combined circles and the Hypno Crystal to get there too; he had already used them to resurrect his three brothers. He placed the circles over the Staff and the Crystal and the four started chanting. Sharkthoot wanted to stop them and attacked. The massive amounts of power emanating from the circles instantly killed him. He had sacrificed himself for the greater good.

The staff had already tainted the planet they were on, but now all life on it started rotting, except for the three amigos, who were being protected by Luke’s powers. He had been unable to stop the resurrection of the Master, but knew it was his destiny to defeat him. the circles started to melt and the Hypno Crystal was absorbed by the Staff. The light of the sun was obscured by the shadows that surrounded it. This dark soul had not turned to evil, its very existence had been the cause of evil (or the other way around, since existed outside space and time). The ensuing battle would be the pivotal event in the entire history of the whole universe and beyond. The Horsemen had apparently disappeared into the underworld. When the Master had fully appeared, looking like a large fiery shadow, with a three-pointed crown, it addressed Luke.
-You are the one who has imprisoned me, the Messenger of the Gods, now I shall have my revenge on you and on this universe, which is an insult to my existence. Life exists only because of my defeat, now that I’m finally free, you will all be erased from history and time itself will cease to be. Evil will be the natural state of souls and good will be banished.
Before he could finish his speech, the three amigos attacked with all of their strength.
Almost instinctively, Luke grabbed the Staff and pointed it at the Master, in order to capture its essence once again, but he had failed to realise the Master had not yet taken his powers out of it. Luke fell down; the figure of shadows and fire could nearly control him through the artefact. He knew throwing it down would kill only himself and his friends, so he tried to use the Staff’s powers against the Master, but he only absorbed its blasts. Luke tapped into all of his divine powers, used all the strength of his soul, and smashed the Staff against the Master, destroying it completely.
The Master laughed, Luke had just released all his essence and omnipotence, but the Messenger now emitted a light strong enough to cast away the shadows of the Master. As long as the staff existed, the Master would have an influence in the universe, without it, he could finally be locked away for eternity and beyond. Cracks started to appear in the ground from which fire was erupting, engulfing the Master and Luke, whose light now completely overwhelmed the devil, dragging them both into hell. With his final strength, he transported John and Jack home, just before the planet exploded. Luke had apparently fulfilled his destiny…
In the innards of the underworld, the Master started laughing again. He explained that he needed another soul to use his powers, since the Force emanated from “Them” and since he was the only one who had originated from them, he couldn’t use it.

His essence filled Luke, making him feel everything evil had ever done, all physical and emotional pain at once, eternity within a moment. It was too much for Luke to take; it began to tear him apart, made him empty inside, empty enough for the Master to take full control over him and his ultimate powers. Even when “They” cut those powers off, he could still use them through the connection of the Force.

Before destroying the universe, he wanted to see the extent of the damage the Staff had caused. He wanted to find out if the universe hadn’t turned evil, something he’d enjoy for a while, before he’d erase it all.
He recreated the planet he had been on and materialised a ship for himself, ironically using black and red, the colours of himself and the M-Tron. In fact, the sign of the M-Tron upside down resembled his crown. Perhaps it was destiny rather than irony, but more importantly: Luke, the Messenger, had failed, the Master had taken control of him and would fool the rest of the universe.
Part 7: Saviour of the Universe

Luke’s new ship had a very sleek design. It was the longest in its height, making Luke seem upright in his cockpit, but artificial gravity kept him lying down. The long backside was covered with engines, yet only as fast as the technology of the New Republic, he could use his powers to make it travel wherever he wanted. He travelled back to New Valcro Prime and was received as a hero, the saviour of the universe itself.
The next weeks he travelled around the cluster, gaining such an immense popularity that they offered him the function of president of both the U.L.F. and the New Republic, which he gladly accepted. This was all orchestrated by the Master’s powers, even though the public would have been evenly overjoyed if it had been the real Luke.
At the same time the Jedi council (minus Luke) was gathering because Wizard Oz felt his end coming near. He had been born in the year 4024, so by now he was probably the oldest human alive; he had used the Force to stay alive long enough to witness the defeat of the Master, but now his time had ended. He was meditating to prepare himself for the end as the rest of the council sat around him. They had not sensed any tremor in the Force, because the Master hided himself behind Luke’s aura. But when Wizard became one with the Force, he was suddenly overcome by intense panic, shouting out “It is a lie!”, before dieing. Yoda was the only one who finally understood what had happened, but before he could inform the others, he vanished.

Inside a void between this level and the afterlife, Luke had summoned Yoda for a fight. He assured him he could use all his powers without dieing. Yoda powered up and appeared even more powerful than Luke had been before becoming the Messenger. Putting all his power in a single blast, he appeared to have annihilated the Master, but was left alone in the nothingness.

In truth, Luke had just left him in the void for his own amusement and returned to New Valcro Prime, beginning to enjoy his deceptions, delaying his plans to destroy the universe; instead he chose to rule it.
Part 8: Lord of the Universe

Returning at the same point in time as he had left, he avoided suspicion and even offered to use his divine powers to help find Yoda. He took John and Jack with him around the cluster, but in the split second it took to transport them, they noticed something strange: when Luke had transported them before his fight with the Master, the instant transportation always seemed bathed in light, now they seemed to travel through darkness. Luke explained to them it was because this was where he had locked the Master away, outside the living universe, yet not in the afterlife or between it. His image would be seen however, when travelling through it.

Luke had taken his friends to Insectoid 4th, the official capital of what was left of the Valcronian Empire, though the New Republic was already the de facto leader of most territories. They had agreed with the local warlords that they would enjoy special treatment and ceremonial leadership over their regions, while the Republic would have all political influence, bringing social security and democratic freedoms with it. The existing troops would still have power, but under the jurisdiction of the Republic military. Jonathan Junior and Grand Admiral Machiavelli had not intervened because they feared a final uprising that would strip them of their last remaining powers, and because they basically wanted to be left alone. There was also the fact that several areas in the east, which were completely surrounded by Republic territory were under direct control of Grand Admiral Bolzano, who would certainly mind if Jonathan Junior were to do anything else but ask symbolic taxes.

Jack wanted to know what they were doing there, to which Luke replied that he wanted to end the war with the Valcronian Empire once and for all, to bring forth the “eternal peace” he was destined to achieve. John and Jack protested, they believed the de facto peace they had with most territories would spread and leave all imperials powerless, especially since two new political parties had gained some influence, one that looked out for the rights and needs of Fett’s clones (former Valcronian workers and Imperial clone troopers) and another to make sure former imperial troops and low placed officers could be reassigned without prejudice. Open hostilities would unite their politically scattered enemy against the Republic. Luke refused to listen and used his powers to make several walls disappear, until they had a clear path to Machiavelli’s office. The fire from his guards quickly stopped as Luke made their weapons explode in their hands. The Grand Admiral wanted to negotiate but before he could say anything, Luke had already snapped his neck.
John and Jack knew something was terribly wrong, this wasn’t how Luke behaved, even his dark alter ego Darth Vader had never killed in such a no-nonsense way. He was now using his powers to create some kind of communications device and stood in the middle of a platform that would broadcast his hologram all over the cluster.

-Peoples of the known universe: the New Republic, the Valcronian Empire, Krikkit and the nations in the galaxy of my grandfather: I am Luke Valcro, your saviour. Without me, the universe would have been destroyed, without even a clear fate for your very souls. I believe it is only naturally that you have a debt that can’t be repaid. Therefore I will rule you absolutely and without any question to my might. My powers are beyond the Force itself, I can bend time and space as I like, which means I simply have absolute control, whether you or I like it or not; there is simply no denying it. Soon I shall begin to explore the other clusters of the universe and end their wars, so they might enjoy the life I permit them to have.
I am now the Overlord of the entire universe. If anybody disagrees, confront me know and I shall show you my strength. Just say the words and I’ll transport you to my throne room.

John and Jack were horrified at what they heard, but before they could react, they were back on New Valcro Prime, where the Jedi had started a crisis meeting.
Part 9: United in War

The Jedi knew they couldn’t possibly win against Luke, unless perhaps if they all attacked together. John wanted to turn him back, knowing he had refused to kill his friends before, he believed his good part could be touched, but first they had to find out why he was causing his “evil” behaviour. They could never understand what horrors the Master had probably put him through, but they suddenly remembered the Wizard’s last words “it is a lie!”. They had no time to contemplate what had been lied about, because without warning, several Imperial ships were spotted on the long range sensors as heading their way. They expected some kind of retribution for killing Machiavelli, but they sent a message of peace instead: if he New Republic agreed to extend their agreement with the warlords to them, leaving them with ceremonial powers only, they (Jonathan Junior and his trustees) would agree to formally surrender and officially disband the New Valcronian Empire; but only if they’d fight against the power of Luke together.
It took many weeks, but eventually all Jedi, all warriors from the Saiyans’ galaxy, all M-Tron and many Republic and former Imperial troops were gathered together to confront Luke, even Abbat Valcro had come out of hiding. The Overlord appeared in space above them and they all fired on him with all the strength they had. From orbit, the most powerful ships of the cluster fired their entire arsenal at him.
But volley after volley, Luke was kept unharmed. The amount of energy they had fired upon him had been enough to destroy several entire solar systems, but still it hadn’t been enough. The firing stopped and Sofie, John, Jack, Anakin, Jonathan, Jane and Rick stepped in a small ship to personally confront Luke, hoping to turn him back to the light side, but before they could say anything, the Overlord sent their ship spiralling down to the planet below, after which he started killing his other opponents.

John was near death and found himself in a tunnel towards the gate of Limbo. Like the Wizard, he now realised what had happened: Luke had failed; the Master had taken control of him. before John would pass the gate he started a plea to those in the afterlife:

-Stop! I need to go back.


-You cannot stop him, no one can, we have failed.


-Give me the powers from beyond, make me as powerful as him, and I’ll defeat him.

-We cannot risk it, it would put the universe out of balance, only the Messenger can have powers from beyond the plain of the living.

-Simple, make me the new messenger.

-It is not your destiny.

-It was the destiny of Luke to destroy the Master, yet that didn’t work out, so his destiny wasn’t absolute.

-We cannot change what is supposed to happen, we cannot intervene, even if it means an eternity of darkness.

-Time has been changed on numerous occasions, Luke wouldn’t even be here and Valcron or the Empire would have been in control; the Matrix would still exist, entrapping every soul that would enter it. You fear for the balance of the universe, but if the Master wins, even if he now merely wants to rule instead of destroy, there is no balance any more. Give me the powers and I’ll only use them against other powers from beyond, to preserve your precious balance.

-We agree. Your destiny isn’t written. You are now also the Messenger, along with Luke.
Part 10: The Good Within
John woke up in the debris of the ship, not really knowing if it had been real or just a dream. Next to him he saw the bodies of his friends, Luke’s family, and as he looked out over the fields, he saw that all warriors had been slain by Luke. He was now about to kill his half-brother Jonathan Junior with a sword he had conjured up.
John tested if he really had new powers and was pleasantly surprised he could conjure up a sword too. With divine speed he put his sword between Luke’s and Junior. The overlord fired a blast at John and was surprised when he managed to deflect it. They continued to battle, as john finally managed to speak to him:

-Now I can finally say what I wanted to say to you, Luke.

-I am not your Luke; I am the Master of all evil. This body is just a way for me to be in your reality. His soul is my way of channelling my powers, to use the strength of the afterlife and the Force, because I can’t do that on my own, I have no connection to Them.

-I don’t believe you. If you were simply the Master, you would have destroyed the universe by now, instead you decided to rule it, to let us live. You are now under Luke’s influence, his desire for justice, twisted and perverted through you.

-My control is absolute, your friend is dead, you have no alternative but to kill his body and if that happens, I simply take another, preferably yours. The souls of the afterlife must be getting anxious if they’ve given you these powers you weren’t meant to have.

-I’ll happily kill you if it means liberating my friend’s soul. You must feel its torments after you slaughtered his friends and family, the ones he loved so much. If you channel your strength through him, you must feel what he feels feel the love and compassion he finds so important.

-Chemical reactions in the brain, my friend.

-Yet kept in the soul after we die.

-Your words mean nothing to me, Luke is lost.

-At least look at the bodies of your friends, your wife, your son, your parents and tell me you feel nothing.

-Even if a part of me cares about them, they now live happily in the afterlife, and…
-So I was right, Luke is alive. Remember how you didn’t want to kill us before, how it turned you back from the dark side that first time; remember it to get rid of this parasite. Remember the love for those people you have just killed, the line you have crossed.

-You will stop confusing me.
-Remember! See what you have caused!

-No, it’s too hard to face!

-Look at them.

-I can’t, I wouldn’t be able to forgive myself for what I let him do.

-If you speak of the Master as “Him”, it means he no longer has control. Now focus Luke, exorcise him out of your body.

Like in their former battle, Luke started emitting a light. It spread across the planet and beyond; reviving everybody the Master had killed since he had taken over Luke’s body, even Machiavelli. The Jedi and their allies and former enemies looked on as a shadow seemed to flow of Luke. Jack hurried to the two Messengers who used their combined strength to trap the Messenger. The Three amigos now transported themselves to the centre of Hell, beyond the fires of Nergal, where he had been trapped before. He still had his powers, but without a connection to a soul in the plain of the living, through the Staff, he wouldn’t be able to use them in his exile.
Part 11: The Odd One Out

The three amigos left the fiery core of the underworld and returned to the planet were everybody rejoiced over the defeat of the Messenger. Luke explained he had been taken over by the Master, but had been able to defeat him by thinking of the love he feels for his friends and family and for the universe in general.

Luke and John were greeted as heroes, while Jack felt a bit left out, as he was now the only one of the Three Amigos without powers “from beyond” and the only one who hadn’t fallen to and come back from the dark side. Love had saved the universe, but he was in love with John, and he’d never know it.

The next month the Valcronian Empire surrendered officially to the New Republic and offered their help at defeating the forces still loyal to Bolzano. The Grand Admiral himself had disappeared and without his tactical leadership, his troops were quickly defeated. Machiavelli refused to surrender and was relieved of command and arrested by Jonathan Junior himself, as his last act before signing away all his powers. Not counting Krikkit, this was the first time the cluster had been under one united government since the Éoleff Empire nearly 120.000 years earlier until the First Sith War. During the times of the Old Republic, there had always been the remnant of the Sith Empire and Palpatine’s Empire hadn’t technically controlled the three galaxies of the Federation.
The U.L.F. gave Jean-Luc Sharkthoot a royal state cremation with military honours, because although they had been their first real opponent, and a long lasting enemy, he had redeemed himself with his final act and had been a great statesman, before his lust for power; royal, because he was the direct descendant of King Leo Oz II, who had only gotten children after the end of his term, this had been an important element in Sharkthoot’s complexes: as the first son of the first daughter of the former king, he believed himself to be the rightful king
.

July 5050 seemed to be the beginning of the “Eternal Peace”, The Republic believed that every basic conflict had been solved, but in the north of the first galaxy of the Valcro Zone, Anakin’s clone had studied the “empty spot” that was one of the three disturbances of the Force there and had found out why that region of space had been named “the Forbidden Zone”…
Chapter 12: Resurrection2: The Last Uprising 

Part 1: The Return of Darth Seth
F

or 3 months now, the New Republic was at peace, remaining Valcronian officers had been transformed back, Bolzano had been killed in a battle, imperials resisting the surrender had been arrested or had agreed to share all information in exchange for keeping some of their powers (though fitting with the ideology of the New Republic) and the (former) Neutral’s artificial wormhole generators had finally created a useable way to travel to the Saiyans’ Galaxy, where they would probably have new crises to solve. From communications they had found out Dan Waland had managed to organize free elections in the areas that had been under control of the Tarren and the Manatoian, and that he had been elected Prime Chairman of the temporary government, which had to reorganise the existing political structures, to create a democratic republic.
The New Republic would send several ambassadors who would use their experiences of helping to create the cluster’s republic from what was left of the former autocracies. First they needed to test the bridge that had been made between the cluster and the Saiyans’ Galaxy. Knowing there were many mercenary Force users in the lone system, a ship had been constructed under the command of M-Tron. Its experimental engine had been enhanced with croniton particles, which would, theoretically, eliminate the need to stop at each station the Neutrals had built in the void. There were 32 large space stations in total, each one operated by a crew of about 400. If they had to stop at each of them, it would take 2 weeks to get to the other galaxy, now they’d get there in less than 5 days. The inventors of the engine, the Blacktron engineer Lesley Ice and the Ice officer Johan Erickson (who, ironically, held the same rank as Erick Johanson), were onboard for the ship’s test flight, under the command of Tina Thomson. They were approaching a Neutral station, when their sensors picked up a distress call from a nearby planet. Having the most qualified crew for such an event, the M-Tron’s ship (the ULS Emmett, named after the creator and leader of the M-Tron) went to investigate.
The ship went in orbit around the unnamed planet, when Tina sensed it was a trap; a split second later, sensors picked up weapons platforms on the surface. It had been enough to jump to transwarp, before they’d come under fire.

On the surface, two Imperial officers were worried what their leader would say if he found out they had failed; their questions were soon answered when Darth Seth came in the control room. Apparently, he had been able to return from the afterlife once again. He had done it before, through a deal he had made with Makuta, over 5000 years earlier. Makuta had been defeated half a century ago, but it seemed the scriptures to revive Seth still worked.

-You’ve failed at your job, lieutenants.


-A powerful M-Tron was aboard, she sensed our trap.


-We’ve made you able to sense the Force too; you should’ve been able to foresee it.


-We haven’t had any training, sir. We don’t know how to use our new powers.

-The Empire is gone; we need that ship to contact our allies, if we are to conquer the cluster once again.

-Can’t you get allies the same way you got us?

-Few would agree to work with us; they’ve all been turned. Those that would join us are probably used to be in control, they wouldn’t respect my authority. We need Bane Hurst; we can give him exactly what he wants and can control it, he will be our key to success. To get him, we first need to get that ship.
Start the evacuation and begin the countdown for the base’s self destruct.

-But we have valuable technology here.

-Due to your failure, we have been discovered, we can’t risk them finding out about our plans. I’ll personally train you both when we get back to our headquarters.

From just outside the planet’s solar system, far out of weapon’s range, the ULS Emmett tried to get a sensor reading of the planet’s surface, but all they registered was its destruction. Strangely enough, they hadn’t noticed any ships leaving the system, and the sensors picked up no life signs at all. Tina sensed something very strange was going on, but knew she didn’t have time to investigate it and travelled back to the Neutral’s wormhole station, after contacting her fellow M-Tron with the request to examine what had happened.
Part 2: Jack’s Feelings

The New Republic, including the new territories, had re-elected Ken Lorren as their President, with John Ice as Vice-President, because he had succeeded in turning Luke from the dark side. Luke was now a senator for the Jedi Council, for the moment the people didn’t trust him enough to give him a function as minister, but his jobs would be demanding enough: Senator, Jedi council member and a high position with the M-Tron. He was still trying to remember what he had done while under the Master’s control, so he could find Yoda.
Jack was still head of the Space Police, minister of defence of the U.L.F. and a senator of the New Republic.

The three amigos were asked to investigate what had had happened on the planet near the Neutral facility, because the M-Tron and Jedi that had examined the destroyed base had sensed something peculiar, but weren’t powerful enough to fully see what had happened. While there probably other people who could solve the mystery, the three amigos had become famous for dealing with disturbances in the Force. During Luke’s childhood, John and Jack had often cleansed planets that had been tainted by the dark side, saved souls that had been trapped and solved riddles of discovered ancient Jedi or Sith temples. Jack’s love for John had only grown during this time, to near intolerable levels. While they were investigating the ruins, voices started to talk in Jack’s head: “He’ll never feel for you what you feel for him” “He and Luke now both have the power of the Messenger, they’ll work together and you’ll be useless”. Jack quickly shook those stray thoughts away and continued with the investigation.
It seemed there had been people there, yet they seemed distant, like there had only been a part of them here. Jack suggested they had used isomeric projections, to fool sensors, while having good remote access to everything. John and Luke disagreed; this was a disturbance in the Force, not caused by technology. “They don’t need you, you and John will grow apart”, said a voice in Jack’s thoughts, “They’ll solve this mystery without you, unless you come up with something great, find a link between this disturbance and another”. Jack suggested looking for a different disturbance, to see if they could sense a connection. The other two agreed and they started meditating; all Jack could concentrate on however, was how to make John fall in love with him.
The ULS Emmett was now nearing the edge of the first galaxy of the Valcro zone, gaining speed exponentially, but they ran into a problem while crossing the Forbidden Zone and were thrown out of the wormhole passage and into a planetary system that was on no charts. Except for the system’s star there were no stars around them, only blackness. Calculating where they had left the wormhole, they found out they had travelled precisely through the empty spot that had been discovered several months earlier.

At the precise moment of the ship’s accident, John and Luke sensed a dark presence, linked to the strange activities on the planet. The three amigos took their ships out of the transporter loop and with much haste, travelled towards the Forbidden Zone.
Part 3: The Resurrected

In the hallways of what was left of the Black Star, Darth Seth and the two officers stepped towards a large bay, filled with small cylinders.

-This is our army, men.


-What is this?


-These are 3 million clone troopers in stasis.

-If we can give them the same power as us, why do we need Bane? Why did you even need to bring us back?

-We need you because you are good officers. We need Bane, because he is one of the only ones who can fight Luke, Jonathan, Anakin, John and Jack.

-Your former student seems powerful enough.

-He is alone, he simply can’t take them by himself. By the way, we won’t give the clones any Force powers, only you and the special troopers we bring back. Clones with Force powers are too unpredictable, it is said they would go insane.
Come, it is time now to bring back some more loyal troops.

Seth and his officers walked to the room that operated the super weapon. The walls of the chamber had been thorn of, wires had been linked to numerous new devices, and in the middle was a platform that looked like an altar. Seth pressed several buttons and started chanting a Sith mantra. The officers set the platform on fire and within the blaze a figure started to become visible. He wore the distinct white uniform of a Grand Admiral and had a thin black moustache that had been his personal trademark. Seth addressed the man:


-Welcome back among the living, Grand Admiral Bolzano.


-What happened, where am I?


-You’ve been killed 6 weeks ago, and apparently weren’t ready for the afterlife yet.


-But I was aboard my ship moments ago; my men kept rebelling against me.

-I’m afraid that was your personal Hell. But you’re alive again now, welcome to the Black Star.
-Alive, but how? This station wasn’t built for that, it was constructed to destroy planets, or give people Force powers.

-We found a disturbance in the Force, much more powerful than the Hypno Crystal; with some adjustments, it has made us able to resurrect people in Hell or in Limbo and give them Force powers at the same time. I am afraid however, that you won’t be able to procreate, since you are actually more undead than alive, you’re only a projection of your soul, if you are killed, you go back to Hell immediately, so we’ll just have to make sure you don’t die, right?

-How did you get here anyway?

-The Neutrals have built a path of stations, to travel to the Saiyans’ galaxy; they are close enough to travel here.

After resurrecting several special troops, Seth explained they needed to capture an M-Tron ship, but that it was recently become much simpler, because it had flown right to there main base.
Part 4: The Forbidden Zone

The three amigos came to the empty spot in the forbidden Zone and though they had been forbidden from using their powers from beyond, they fell this was a situation were it was allowed. In a flash they found themselves on a planet around a lone star. In some way the system had been isolated in a pocket of space, away from the rest of the universe, in dimensions at right angles with our three, invisible and untouchable, leaving only an imprint of gravity, much like dark matter. Somewhere on the planet they had to find the reason this system existed outside the normal space-time continuum, but they could feel an enormous presence of the dark side, the only time they had felt anything larger than this, was when they had confronted the Master himself. Their sensors noticed that at some point in time, the planet’s surface had been scorched completely, they first thought about the Bohrok, but it seemed this had been much older, dating back to the Second Sith War. Luke now realised what had happened here: the Staff; this had to be the planet where Corna’El had died. She had created the Jedi and the Sith, under the influence of the Staff. She led the Sith against the Jedi in the First Sith War and against the Old Republic in the Second Sith War, using the Staff to make her troops nearly invincible, but in some way she disappeared, the Staff was lost and the Jedi won the war. This planet would finally explain what had happened. Before they could contemplate on it any further, they saw a ship landing; it was the ULS Emmett! Tina told them they had noticed several structures with rather strange life-readings several kilometres further, but had landed here, because they had picked up the signals of the three amigos’ ships. Lesley was put in charge of the ship (Johan was looped in the computer, because of space constrictions), while the others all flew towards the buildings they had picked up on their sensors. Cloaked, they got close to what appeared to be an Imperial base, because they saw several men in uniforms. To their surprise they were all able to use the Force and were using it to dig up great amounts of soil, seemingly looking for something buried there. Another ship came out of the sky and the shields around the building were being lifted to let the ship land inside. The cloaked group used this opportunity to enter the structure to find out what was going on.
Inside they saw several officers and Sith, of whom they were sure had been killed in the past. When they reached the hangar bay, they couldn’t believe what they saw: Seth Oz and Bernard Bolzano. Jack had witnessed the destruction of Bolzano’s flagship, because he had led the fleet to battle himself. “You are now completely useless, the enemies you kill don’t even stay dead”, said the voice in Jack’s head, “Kill him now, before he becomes proof of your incompetence”.

Jack deactivated his cloak and charged at the surprised Grand Admiral, who blocked his attack and fired a blast at Jack, who was now utterly confused. It had been commonly accepted that the Grand Admirals had achieved their tactical insight because of some potency in the Force, but except for Thrawn and Kaine Ceva, none of them could even move a piece of paper, let alone fire energy blasts. Jack had now blown their cover and the group’s cloak was deactivated by a special beam. Tina was furious.

-What were you thinking?

-He’s supposed to be dead; I was just trying to get our reports to correspond with reality.

-That’s not funny Neil; we have to get out of here fast.

-We can take them, we’re much more powerful than them.

-I thought you were smart, they can activate something in these corridors that we can’t protect ourselves from: gas, transporters that beam us into space.

Tina contacted the ship, to beam them there, but there was no reply, instead, she blasted a way outside, where a strangely familiar face was waiting for them: Anakin’s. But he was very different from Luke’s son: his hair was darker, his skin had a pink hue and his face was hardened with several scars.

-So you are my father.

-Another relative of mine reveals himself to be behind an evil plot, this is getting tiresome. You’re not my son, it can’t be.

-I’m a clone of Anakin, which makes me your biological son. Seth has trained me well; I’ve even become a Super-Saiyan.

-And Seth’s other henchmen, also clones?

-No he managed to resurrect them with he dark taint of this planet, look at this…

Anakin fired at blast at one of the officers nearby, killing him. His body disappeared, turning in a flash of fire.
-Our friends are probably resurrecting him again at this very moment and giving him Force powers again; as you can see, we have become invincible.

-Once we find out how you do it, we can put a stop at it and beat you.

-You first need a way of this planet; your new ship has already been taken over, which reminds me, I have a flight to catch. Good luck fighting our newest member…

Anakin’s clone flew away before they could reply and behind them another resurrected fighter appeared; one of whom they weren’t sure they could win: Cell! 
Part 5: The Master’s Control
Cell was in control of his own body, but still had the powers of the Rahkshi. His left eye seemed to twitch every few seconds and he looked tired, something they didn’t expect from someone with infinite power. He did still seem very powerful and very dangerous; he looked like he could explode any minute. Instead of fighting Luke and his group, he fired on himself, leaving only his head. He was already starting to reform his body, when he asked to be destroyed, to be killed. Knowing he couldn’t use his divine powers, Luke transformed into the second form of the Super Saiyan and fired a concentrated beam at Cell, which he directed of the planet, which was shaking nonetheless. The Android offered no resistance and was obliterated. It seemed Cell had gotten severe emotional problems after having spent his former life under Bebi’s control.

Jack flew back inside the building to find Seth and Bolzano, despite Tina’s protest. She insisted to go back to recapture the ship, but it seemed they were too late, because they saw the ship leave in the orange sky of the sunset. Without a moon or any stars, the night would be extremely dark, so they followed Jack inside. Special storm troopers blocked their path, but before Jack could attack them, Dooku appeared and killed them; all of them vanished in a puff of fire and smoke. Dooku explained he had already been cleansed from evil and was at the verge of entering the afterlife, when he was resurrected. He knew that one way or another, Jedi would discover the plot, at which time he would join them. The group welcomed him back to the light side as he led them towards the main chamber. Moments later, they were standing before the entrance to Seth’s throne room, guarded by red Imperial Guards, yet they had white armour, Luke recognised them from his father’s descriptions as the elite guards that had protected Palpatine during his war with Jonathan. They were ready to attack Jack, but he got a read glow in his eyes and the two guards died instantly and vanished like the other resurrected. Jack said he had twisted their neck, but Luke, John and Tina were starting to get suspicious.
Inside the room, Seth and Bolzano were discussing plans of how to deploy the clone troopers effectively. As Vice President, John took the word.

-Your insurrection ends here, Seth.


-I see Cell hasn’t been able to hold you back for long.


-Cell was feeling a little suicidal.


-I’ve heard from my officers that he has been resurrected again; he’ll play his part yet.

-You can resurrect as much people as you want, the Jedi have returned and are more powerful than in your days. The Sith are gone, you and your student are all that are left.

-We can give Force powers to anyone; soon we’ll have a legion of loyal Sith Lords, led by me and Clone Anakin.

-And what place will Bolzano have?

-He’ll be in complete command of our “normal” troopers, who don’t need Force potential.

-Were will you find enough troops to take over the cluster, unless… of course, the Black Star; you’re using whatever taint is present here to resurrect people and give them power.
-I must give you credit, “Darth Cold”, I didn’t think you’d figure it out so quickly.

-I have a doctorate in physics; I’m quite good at figuring things out.

-Yet you don’t have a clue who’s behind this plot, do you?

-Eh, are you saying you’re willingly following someone else?
-Not many of us are alive, so I chose to be second in rank instead of death.

-Aren’t you resurrected through the ancient scrolls?

-Those don’t work since your friend over there killed Makuta; no, I’m not in control of the technology, there’s only one with the right aura to rule the cluster…

Before he could finish his sentence, Jack had killed Seth and Bolzano with the same ease as the guards. Just like Seth had predicted, they both turned into fire.

-He was going to say who’s in command, why did you kill them?

-It’s obvious he was preparing a trap for us; if you’d continued your conversation, he would’ve captured or killed us. I think it’s rather obvious who’s behind all this: the clone of Anakin. He seems to be the only one alive.

-What makes you think that?

-He made it clear he had become a Super Saiyan through his own efforts, not because of the Black Star, he had a certain amount of pride about it.

-I think you’re right.

-You see, I’m also good at figuring things out, I’m not useless.

-When did we ever say you were useless?
-You didn’t have to say it; I could read it of your faces.

-We only wonder why you take decisions without thinking about them first.

-I’ve relied purely on my feelings and instincts, I’ve let reason behind and it has led us to this point; by attacking without questions we are almost near our victory.

-Watch out for the dark side, Jack, it creeps up on you faster than you might realise.

-Of course, you and Luke know everything about the dark side, you fall and get pulled back and get rewarded with powers from beyond this plain; I keep struggling to stay on the light side, and what do I get? I become the sidekick.
-Were do these feelings of anger come from, you were never a sidekick, we’re the three amigos, equals; if I had known how you felt…

-You’ve never known how I felt about you either John. They say there’s a thin line between love and hate, and I think I’ve just crossed it.

Jack started getting a red aura and fired a blast at John, which he deflected, but not so easily. Jack seemed to have gotten a lot more powerful suddenly and Luke, John and Tina together had to put much effort in defending themselves from Jack’s irrational attacks. All of a sudden, Jack opened some kind of vortex, which sucked John, Luke, Dooku, Tina and the two M-Tron inside.


-I won’t kill you yet, you may join Yoda, in the void…

Part 6: Super Saiyan Without Effort

Anakin and his troops had forced Lesley to operate the engine and speed it up to above safety limits. Three days later, they arrived in the Saiyans’ galaxy. After arriving at the agreed rendezvous point, Anakin send out a coded transmission. Bane’s response came immediately and Anakin beamed down to the nameless planet below. Lesley saw this as the perfect opportunity to free Johan from the transporter loop. Using a complex combination of functions, she managed to take out a cloaked ship as well and put her fellow scientist in it. She included a message to the Ice officer:
-Find help, powerful Force users aboard, including a clone of Anakin Valcro, the rest of the crew is absent. Good luck, Lesley Ice.
Johan didn’t have much information about his whereabouts, but after checking free transmissions, he managed to pick up a star chart from an information network and flew to the nearest planet that was allied with Waland.

At the same moment, Anakin returned to the ship with Bane Hurst, a pure blooded Saiyan. He had worked for Vaask and gone into hiding after Waland took over; when he heard stories about the Jedi and Sith from a distant cluster of galaxies, he became intrigued. He had been contacted by Anakin, who had promised to turn him into a Super Saiyan.

The Imperials asked Lesley to take the ship to the Black Star, but she lied that the engines had overheated because they had been pushed beyond the safety limits and that they had to wait another few hours before they could leave.

In the mean time, Johan had landed on a Tarren planet, where by chance or by destiny Dan Waland was on a state visit. After a short explanation, Dan and Johan stepped aboard a transporter ship, carrying the Tarren’s weapon of choice: manned fighter robots (since they had few Force users). Arriving back at the rendezvous point, they attacked the stolen M-Tron ship, but their weapons had little effect on the most modern shields. Only two minutes after the battle had started, the ship escaped. Johan suggested he’d follow the ship, but Dan invited him aboard his personal ship, which was docked in the carrier’s bay; he wanted to visit the cluster.
Three days later, the M-Tron ship arrived at the Black Star, where “Darth Bane”, as he had been named by Anakin, stepped on the platform. He charged himself up to full power, while several beams emitted by the machines around him were pointed at his centre. His white aura quickly became golden, as his black hair and moustache; his dark eyes glowed turquoise and his muscles expanded. Bane was now a Super Saiyan.
When Thrawn had used the Black Star for its intended purpose, he had achieved the second level of the Super Saiyan, but it had vanished when the Hypno-Crystal had been removed. Bane’s transformation was only to the “normal” level, but because its source was that much stronger, he would be able to control it and transform at will.

The ancient unbalance in the Force, the taint that powered the dark station felt the abuse he was under, because it was alive, somewhere on the planet where Corna’El had lost the Staff
Part 7: The Horseman of Chaos

John, Luke, Dooku, Tina and the two M-Tron had survived in a strange desert for several days now, though they didn’t have any food. The sky above was light, blue and cloudless, though there was no sun. It was hot, but none of them had become thirsty or hungry. Luke or john probably had the power to get them back, but Luke knew they had to find Yoda. After searching for a week, they sensed his presence; the old Éoleff was delighted to see them and cried. He had nearly given up after all those months. Luke had never seen Yoda in such an emotional state before. While he had spent the largest part of his life in exile, alone on a distant forest planet where the Force was difficult to sense, this unexpected banishment in an endless, lifeless desert had been worse.

After some effort, Luke and John managed to create a portal back to the mysterious planet, where several Imperials were still digging for whatever they were looking for; the possessed Jack was nowhere to be seen. They attacked, but Yoda wiped them out with a single blow. Luke sensed the source of the disturbance inside to hole that had been dug and lifted it up with his mind.
It was a glass sphere, surrounded by three bows of black metal, which were painted with the colours and symbol of the ancient Sith Empire. When Luke threw of the dirt, they could see the shape of a person inside, seemingly trapped in time. They couldn’t see his face, because light stayed trapped inside the ball. They didn’t want to open it, because they felt a great evil inside it, for a moment, they thought it could be Corna’El herself, but Yoda believed her to have returned to the light side before she died, which was why the planet had been scorched by the staff. It had been Corna’El who had declared this region of space as “forbidden” right before the defeat of the Sith because the effects of the Staff to make their fleet invincible had ended. She was fighting “a greater evil than herself; Yoda believed it to be the one who was trapped inside the sphere.
Before they could discuss it further, a long white ship landed in front of them: it were Dan Waland and Johan Erickson. A split second later, the M-Tron ship also appeared in the sky. From an open hatch, Clone Anakin, Darth Bane, Darth Seth and Cell flew down. The two Super Saiyans congratulated them for finding the source of their powers and used the Force to open the ball, despite the protests of Yoda. A flash of trapped light blinded them for a moment and when their vision returned they saw a man in a black uniform with an orange belt and sleeves. His hair had the same hue and his eyes were hidden behind what looked like sunglasses. They immediately recognised him as a Horseman, but how was this possible? They had seen the four Horsemen, they were the ones behind the resurrection of the Master and none of them had this colour scheme. Was it really possible that a fifth Horseman existed, even though no mythology had ever mentioned such a creature, not did Corna’El’s predictions. The mystery man thanked the Sith for freeing him and then noticed Luke, seemingly recognising him.

-Messenger, you have returned. Has the Master of Evil been destroyed?


-Who are you?

-I am his first and most powerful son: the Horseman of Chaos. Has my father and his staff been defeated?

-The Staff has been destroyed and we thought we had defeated the Master, but it seems he has taken over our friend.

-If the Staff is gone, I’ll have to kill the Master himself.

-Could you explain why?

-My father created me to retrieve the Staff, in which you had captured his essence at the beginning of time, but he made me too powerful. I craved power myself and betrayed him, which is why he created my four brothers. I fought Corna’El for the Staff, but we drew our power from the same source and the battle ended in a draw. The next time we fought, she was beginning to turn back to the light side of the Force and used its power instead of the Staff. I thought this would be my chance to get to the Staff, but instead she overpowered me and managed to trap me inside this sphere she had built in case I’d return. I’ve been stuck in time ever since. If the staff has been destroyed, I’ll have to find my father and his essence from him.

I see the Sith, the Jedi and the Éoleff still exist, but tell me Messenger, how much time has passed since I was incarcerated?
-I don’t know the exact time, but I believe it was about one hundred and fifteen thousand years ago.
-And you’re still fighting each other; I see the Staff really did its work.

-What are you planning to do with the Master’s essence? Rule the universe? Attack the afterlife?

-If you’d have paid attention, you’d know that they call me the Horseman of Chaos. All I want is the continuation of these wars. Confusion and madness are my powers, pandemonium my goal.
-But why? The staff is gone, the Master can be defeated, you could be free of his heritage, I am free of mine; you could do good and be revered for it.
-I am the dark side, chaos, it is my destiny to create an unbalance; besides, what’s the fun in doing good?

The Horseman disappeared into the early night sky; stars were becoming visible as the system had been returned to normal space.

-Fun? This Horseman of Chaos must be stopped at all costs, he could be potentially more dangerous than the Master, he still needs another soul to access the Force, this twisted being was probably a soul that was being tormented in Hell, chosen by the Master to be his instrument; he doesn’t have to possess someone to use his powers. If he is searching for his “father”, we should follow him.
The clone of Anakin landed and grudgingly agreed with his biological father. They stepped aboard Dan’s yacht while Luke used his powers to track the Horseman and John used his to boost the engines.
Part 8: The Battle of Evil

(incomplete)

Part 9: Scattered

(incomplete)

Part 10: Royal Love

(incomplete)

Part 11: Leaders of the Republic

(incomplete)

Part 12: The Impossible Decision

(incomplete)

Part 13: Unexpected Allies

(incomplete)

Part 14: The Universe Erased

(incomplete)

Part 15: Victory of Love

(incomplete)

With the shields down, Jack could now erase the last live in the universe. The resurrected Cell went first, next were the Computer Virus and Clone Anakin and then the ship itself disappeared. Luke and John made a final plea at Jack; they tried to remind him of their friendship, how they were now alike, except on one point: they had all been taken by darkness and had overcome it, now Jack had to do the same. But he replied it wasn’t about that; he loved John and knew that love could never be returned.

Luke, the messenger, had failed and was erased from history. Now John started to fade. He looked Jack right into his eyes and said: “You were wrong. I do love you; I always have and always will. Goodbye.”

John was now gone too. Jack fell on his knees, crying. He was splitting from the master and started an inner dialogue with him;


-You lied to me.


-He never existed, neither did his love.


-Get out.


-We rule the universe!


-GET OUT!!!

Jack defeated the master and cleansed the essence still inside with his love for John. He now had powers like his two friends. The three amigos were the messenger together.

The powerless soul of the master was not thrown back into Hell, but was pulled into heaven to witness the joy of souls in peace and forever be disgusted, or be reverted if evil would ever cease to be. The universe was now restored.

Later in the same year, John and Jack married and a few decades later got a son, which they named Luke Neil Ice. The Resurrected went back to Hell, willingly; Clone Anakin joined the Jedi and became part of Luke’s family, finally fulfilling his dream of a “good” Valcro family. Dooku survived because he had already been turned and was the only one of the resurrected who was truly “alive”. The Black Star was finally fully dismantled.

The Super Saiyan Bane escaped and to prevent civil wars among themselves, he invented the rule that only two Sith could exist at the same time: a master and an apprentice. But the New Republic wouldn’t hear much of them again. Bane’s student killed him and defied the rule; his two students killed him and then killed each other. The Sith were extinct. They were made by the Staff, so they had destroyed themselves. The only conflicts left to resolve, were in the Saiyan Galaxy.

Peace would reign once more…
Plot to-do list:

Crash on unknown planet

Jack confronts horseman, battle on innocent planet

The resurrected are hunted down, Cell goes insane

John and Luke win the confidence of the local population and its queen

Queen and Waland fall in love

John goes on a mission to free captured leaders of the republic

Anakin and the resurrected have Ken’s personal ship

Luke decides to help the master to defeat the chaos, to make the master weaker, but he absorbs the horseman and his knowledge, he becomes unstoppable

Jack erases all life from present, past and future; Luke and John survive because they are beings of light, Cell and Clone Anakin also survive because of special shields aboard the M-Tron ship; they decide to work together

The computer virus reappears and joins the survivors

They try to capture the master two times, but fail and destroy their shields.

The master erases the survivors and beats John and Luke

Before disappearing, John tells Jack that he loves him.

Jack frees himself from the master and restores all life, love destroys the essence of the master, his powerless soul is not thrown into hell, but taken to the heavens where he can watch the glory of happiness in disgust.
John and Jack get married, the effects of the staff will remain, but it will gradually disappear.

Bane invents the rule of two, but when his apprentice is master, he takes two students, who betray him and kill each other, the Sith gone

Peace will reign once more
THE END

Epilogue

800 years later, on an afternoon, the retired Luke and Sofie went back to their house on the Capital Asteroid, they had just visited their family on New Valcro Prime. Luke decided to visit the museum that was set up at the place where he came out of the time portal. He looked at his old ship and thought of the ancient days, centuries ago, when he first met his wife. He felt a warmth in his old hearth and sensed the same in Sofie. They had gone through wars that influenced the entire universe, he was the messenger of prophecy and had brought peace.

The couple was at a considerable age, for a Human and a Saiyan and they knew they were going to a place of eternal rest, this time without returning to the land of the living.

That night, they both went through the portal they had seen before, a giant door from which Luke had kept monsters and demons from getting through, but this would be the last time he ever saw the outside. Now they could rest and rejoice with older friends and relatives, the 3 amigos were back together, Frank and Timothy Ice and even Sharkthoot, who had shown remorse. Luke’s spirit sometimes appeared to guide Jedi who were tempted by the dark side and the universe was told the story of Luke’s ultimate redemption.

And the peace would last until all the stars had dimmed and the universe returned to its state of timeless nothing from which it was created. In the eternal rest, all souls were eventually redeemed and so the essence of the defeated Master of evil simply ceased to exist.

Luke’s destiny was at last complete.

Prequels & Other Stories
It should be noted that any story from before the beginning of the Matrix (the Sirian Wars and older) are not objective, because they have been told from the eyes of the winners. The accuracy can also be debated, especially of the Fall of the Éoleff and the history of the Spirion, because they are so old. They might include parts of urban legends and mythology. There has been very little archaeological evidence to confirm the Spirion Realm was as powerful as suggested, but recent findings do favour many parts of their ancient history. Research on the matter is difficult, because the Bohrok have destroyed much possible evidence. The Spirion have told the story from generation to generation, so after the unimaginable amount of time since their Realm’s demise, certain facts have certainly been altered, which is also true for the Fall of the Éoleff, but Republic records have made it easier to keep fact and myth separated.
The Fall of the Éoleff

Part 1: Creation

B

efore the beginning of time, there were only the good and the evil, consisting of all souls that would ever live. The good, the Gods were selfless, without one mind to control the others, but the evil was egoistic, it created one soul of pure malevolence: the Master.
In an attempt to destroy the Master of Evil, the Gods sent out a messenger and in their struggle, the messenger locked the soul of evil into the underworld it had created and he put all his essence, all the power of evil, in a staff. This long pole was black with four wings near the top and all the way above it stood a red ball of fire and blood with twisting clouds of evil circling in it, never to be released.

The good had won, but the balance was lost and from a great explosion, all time and matter was created and the universe was born.

The next eons, stars and galaxies were born and massive clusters formed even larger clusters until they created three walls. The oldest wall was the first to sprout intelligent life, which lived in peace, without disease or pain and in constant bliss. The youngest wall was yet to create life, and the middle wall was also beginning to show signs of intelligent life, although they did not yet have the ways to communicate with other races.

The staff had been in the centre of the Big Bang and was now set in this wall. It poisoned the souls and brought war and hunger and all things evil to the people in the centre of the middle wall and awakened the Master who was still locked in his cage.

It was around this time that the Gods decided to sent another messenger, she would look at the universe to see how it was evolving and saw the happiness and beauty that was all-present. But she was disgusted when she saw what was happening in the centre: people were fighting over possessions, over each other and their beliefs. Even good emotions like love were used for evil. Thus this messenger became the First, Éorer, the mother of the chosen ones: the Éoleff. The Gods sent her a husband, Fas, to begin the race of watchers, who would guard the evil place in the universe to make sure it didn’t spread, because the Gods were afraid. They feared the evil would get hold of the entire cosmos and destroy it, freeing the master and making him win.

Éorer and Fas placed themselves in the void between the infected galaxies and created a system with a habitable planet for their race. Éorer was completely white and Fas completely black and their offspring were divided in 5 distinct groups, with each another colour: orange, yellow, green, blue and purple, but no red, because it was the colour of their blood and it reminded them of the staff. The Éoleff were blessed with long lives up till ten millennia: sufficient to watch the evolution of other races.

But in their happiness they forgot about their mission and lost the power to see outside. Even they weren’t immune for the powers of the staff. They were still magnificent, but only thought of themselves. The gleaming towers of their planet only honoured their own sun, because the light of the galaxies around them could never be as bright. Their whole world was now forever enlightened and they could not tell night from day. Because they lived so long, their knowledge grew to great heights and they possessed the technology to travel in space, even faster than light, but they always came back to their planet, because they feared the darkness that surrounded them and it would take them more than a generation to reach the distant clusters.

Each millennium the Éoleff chose a leader: the Éolegg. Each time from another colour, but mostly of the same family as the one 4000 years earlier.

It was around the time of Éolegg Cardon the Green that their culture had its peak: the most beautiful of music, the most divine fashion and the greatest sculptures. But they were given a sign from the Gods. The star of their system, Éorer, was fading, their world, Éoleffas, was going to end. The five groups of the Éoleff travelled into different directions. Because of their long lives, it took them only a few generations to reach the habited clusters.

The first group, the Éoréoleff, came to a cluster in which all life had destroyed itself, because they had found the staff. A race of elegant giants had fought over it and the winner, Javier, had proclaimed himself ruler of the known universe. All other races of the cluster had battled him and all were defeated. In the end only Javier stayed behind. He had gotten schizophrenic and paranoiac, he thought he was his own enemy and that he was trying to steal the staff from himself. His mad mind escaped the body and the last soul of the cluster went back to where it had come from, beyond space and time, to be healed of the evil. The Staff was then propelled to another cluster, incinerating the planet it was last on, only leaving the sign of the Messenger. When the first group of Éoleff arrived, they settled themselves on the empty planets and made the cluster join the union of peace. They also made wonderful poetry about the beauty of the stars they saw at night.

The second group, the Boréoleff, entered a lonely galaxy filled with a terrible war and their attempts to create peace were not welcomed with open arms. Before destroying each other, they killed all the Éoleff.

The fourth and fifth groups, the Quenyéoleff and Miréoleff, came to clusters in which the people had yet to create interstellar travel and they decided to wait until the first races would greet them, and then lecture them about peace, preventing great wars.

The third group, the Valinéoleff, had entered a cluster that was beginning its steps into interstellar and intergalactic travels. They went to a sub cluster that had the first travellers: the Mumifar. They hadn’t made contact with other races yet and had developed a technology of artificial wormholes to make direct travel to other planets. When they met the Éoleff, Éolegg Cardal the Green (granddaughter of Cardon) and Pharaoh Khafra the Old of the Mumifar decided to cooperate and form the basis of a republic. Together they set up a system of wormhole bases, which other races could use too. After a few thousand years, several races had joined their federation, but it wouldn’t take long before many conflicts would start, because this was in fact the cluster where the staff had nested itself…

Part 2: Evolution

The federation was largely made up by Rodians, Dos Calamarians, Mon Calamarians, Cerijin, Éoleff, Tarisians and Jaridians, which all had their own majestic planets (the Éoleff had chosen a planet and named it Valinéoleffas), but together they had chosen Coruscant as the planet for future governments. But it never came to one, because troubles soon started to rise. Each race wanted to rule a great province around their planet, which soon led to a great war between every race, except the Éoleff, who now kept themselves isolated on their planet, mourning because they had failed their task to ensure peace in the universe. But there were some who ventured outside, trying to resolve the conflicts. Many races didn’t care about the territory feuds and worked as mercenaries. It was also during this war that the Humans joined the races that had achieved superluminal speeds. They had worked long and hard for peace on Earth, but were immediately caught in the conflict between the two Calamarian races that fought over the nebula between their planets. Many individuals of every race now discovered their latent powers: they could use a mystical Force to perceive things before they happened, move things with their mind and even fly and create fiery balls of pure energy. When the Éoleff learned about this and studied it, they came to the conclusion that their race was the most receptive of the Force. They tried to use their powers to get peace, but failed again.

Then something strange happened: Cardal and her husband Orin got a daughter: Corna. There’s nothing strange about getting a daughter, but this child was red! It was the only time there ever was or ever would be a red Éoleff. She was the most powerful in the Force and became Éolegg at a very young age. She was Corna the Red, or in their language: Corna’El, the name she used from then until the time she died.

Corna’El used the Force to meditate and developed a technique to make sure emotions wouldn’t take control of oneself when using great power. All Éoleff became her students, as did many others who could control the Force. This was the first peaceful inter-species organisation and Corna’El called it the “Jedi”, which is the Éoleff word for peace. She inspired the governments of every race and a century later, after 6722 years of war, there was true peace in the cluster. On Coruscant a charter was signed to create the Republic (it is later referred to as the Ancient Republic) and Corna’El was chosen to be its leader for an undetermined time. The first thousand years of the republic were called the “peace of the alliance” and Corna’El became a spiritual guide and left the important decisions to the senate.

But something happened that was the beginning of the fall of the great race of watchers, the Éoleff. During one of her trips to different planets, she found the staff of evil.

The former holders had all gone insane and killed themselves, but when Corna the Red took the artefact, which somehow felt like it belonged to her, because of her colour, she could see what she could become and what to do to insure peace would last forever: she needed to pull all power to herself and rule without question. She kept these plans to herself and decided to use the next millennium to perform them. She was still young for an Éoleff and a millennium was not much for her, but this way she could move slowly enough for other races, so she wouldn’t be detected.

She used the staff during meditation and saw the past, present and future and decided to write it down in a great book: the book of Corna’El. In it she described the second coming of the original messenger, who defeated the Master of Evil. The passage was called the “Great Premonition” and was probably the most famous one:

Thousands of years of peace

A Great War

Thousands of years of decay

A Plague will strike all that lives

Five millennia of darkness will come

A messenger of darkness

But much more of light

He will create a Year of Chaos

He will bring back the Plague

He will destroy the Plague

He will save that which is beyond

Peace will reign once more

She saw herself as the reborn messenger, although the text referred to a man. While her premonitions where very correct, she began to have illusions of grandeur about herself; she didn’t want to get power for peace, but only to rule.

Corna’El was now the first victim of the Dark Side of the Force, created by the staff.

Part 3: Fall

After a thousand years she was ready to transform the Ancient Republic into the Éoleff Empire. They were now no longer the chosen ones from the gods, but they had not yet fallen.

She selected six planets from which to rule the cluster: the biggest in each galaxy: Earth, Ceronia, Coruscant, Egyptsei and Taris and of course her home planet Valinéoleffas.

The people still loved Corna’El and rejoiced over her decision to take control, believing that it would indeed mean eternal peace, but the Jedi started to notice Corna’El’s addiction to the power of the staff and openly questioned her motives. The red Éoleff then spoke a curse over all who opposed her. This started a new civil war, with half the cluster joining Corna’El and the other half joining the Jedi who stayed at the light side. The Éoleff were also divided over the subject and Corna’El realised she could not keep the title “Éoleff Empire” and changed it to the “Sith Empire”, Sith is the word for power.

When the Éoleff started killing each other, they had truly fallen, because they were meant as a race of peace and justice, made to watch over the violent races, but now they had become one themselves. Suddenly it seemed that they weren’t as gracious as they had looked before, even the wisdom that could be seen in their eyes had faded. And now that the fall of the Éoleff had started, the first Sith War had begun.

It took many years for both sides to build their battle fleet, because long during peace had left them unprepared for war; it was around this time that the Jedi invented the lightsabre: a weapon of attack, but more of defence. It was a sword of light, its colour based on the crystal inside. The Sith would steal the design and vowed to always use red, as a sign of allegiance to Corna’El and to represent the redness of her staff, but there’s another nuance to its meaning…
The technology was brought to the enemy by the Éoleff Vanion. During the peace of the alliance, before Corna had found the staff, he had fallen in love with her, but she had refused him, explaining that she could not focus her affection on only one, when she had so many to love. It took him a century to create, but Vanion managed to create a ring from pure black metal (the strongest substance in the universe), with a jewel that represented her colour, red, which he saw as a colour of love.

He approached Corna’El again and gave her the present. She knew his feelings were genuine and felt something for him too. She accepted the gift and promised him she’d be with him after her rule had ended. Vanion accepted the offer and went back to meditating and waiting. But Corna would not end her rule, she increased it after finding the staff.
Vanion saw her fall as a betrayal to their love and was able to get past the shipyards of the Sith, because many Jedi were now joining their ranks. Corna’El had sensed his presence and ordered his arrest, to be brought before her. Vanion ordered his ring back but claimed he still loved her. The dark side’s grip had now enclosed Corna so much, that she couldn’t reach her old feelings towards him. Her guards brought her his lightsabre, which she inspected and quickly figured out. She took of her ring and used her power to melt the black metal, something that was impossible. She left the red gem intact and replaced the green crystal of Vanion’s lightsabre with it. Corna’El now had the first Sith lightsabre. Vanion reminded her of their agreement and stormed at the Red Éoleff “to end her rule”. The great Jedi was killed by his own sabre and there was still some pain visible in Corna’s eyes, because she did still love him. Her feelings were repressed by the staff and used against her, making her even colder than before. To those who know the tale, a red sabre will always remind them of the love that was betrayed.
The fleets were now ready, and what had been a ground war between users of the Force now engulfed the cluster in a gruesome conflict.

After a century of war, the Jedi Éoleff Yorfas, son of Yorfold (who had been Éolegg before Corna) and his three daughters Yordal, Yorna and Findal were leading the fleet against the Sith. The fame of their names made the opposing ships flee in terror. Corna’El had set a throne for herself on the planet of Ceronia and Yorfas’ ship had now landed there. The four Masters and their army of Jedi fought the guardians of the red Éoleff and were winning. But Yorfas shouted out: “Let Corna, daughter of Cardal and Orin come out of her castle and see how her people suffer! You have undone the peace that you have created. I call you Darth, bringer of darkness and henceforth all who see you as their leader will carry the same cursed title!”. Corna’El now came out of her fortress and though her staff produced a great red light, it seemed as if the sky had darkened and she replied: “Yorfas, I am your Éolegg and you are among those that I have cursed, you are nothing more than an usurper, a traitor of our race. We accept your title of ‘Darth’ and will use it with pride, knowing that it refers to me. We had peace, it were the Jedi who opposed me and started this war, you use the name of Jedi without honour or dignity. You are all hypocrites!”.

And though the Jedi of course didn’t agree, they bowed down in front of her and cried, for she was such a powerful sight, beautiful yet horrible, with powers unlike anything they had felt before. But Yorfas and his daughters were not impressed. While Corna’El’s staff destroyed all on the battlefield, including her own men, these four Jedi still stood unharmed. Corna approached her opponents and created a lightsabre out of thin air (keeping Vanion’s sabre hidden, it is still not found today) and they started a fight. It is said this fight lasted a whole year, without interruption, but while the Jedi were getting very tired, Corna’El could still use the unlimited powers of her Staff and managed to kill Yorfas and it seemed that he suffered much pain in his demise. The three daughters had their strength now enlarged; it was even greater than before their battle. For a moment it looked like they would win, but the Jedi forces had presumed them to be dead and had gathered their fleet to Ceronia, bombarding the surface and destroying the marvellous cities. The empty desert, where Corna’El had set her citadel, was now being bombarded too. The four women went inside and in the confusion after the Jedi had landed, Corna’El abducted Findal and escaped, using her staff to transport her to another part of the cluster. Yorna and Yordal were rescued by the other Jedi, but were now very angered, they took an oath to revenge the death of their father and the kidnapping of their sister, the other Jedi were afraid that their long presence with the staff had awakened their own dark side and banished the two Éoleff and had forbidden them to take part in battle.

After another two hundred years, the Jedi Éoleff Geldorfin, youngest son of Gerdon, was leading the attack on the city planet Egyptsei, home of the Mumifar, who had sided with the Sith. The once beautiful planet was now almost deserted since the start of the long war; but millions of Mumifar still inhabited it. Jedi and Republic forces searched the large buildings, capturing everyone they found.
Because of the strange orbit of Egyptsei around its sun, it was needed to contain all the water behind a giant barrier, to prevent floods in the summer, when the planet was very close to the star. This water was heated during the summer and served as a source of warmth during the harsh winters. This complicated system made the planet comfortable during every season, which, combined with the fact they had invented the artificial wormholes used for travel and that they were a central point for these vortexes, allowed many migrants to make it their home and form the giant megalopolis.

Geldorfin’s troops had no problems conquering the planet. It had gone too easy…
The Pharaoh Menrenre Antyemsaf the Second would not tolerate a defeat and opened the dams. Enormous waves struck the buildings, laying them in ruins. Menrenre wanted to destroy the entire city and used the wormhole technology to make the water come around the planet and hit the structures time after time until there was nothing left except a few strong pyramids. Geldorfin had managed to survive, aided by some Mon Calamarian Jedi, who were able to breathe under water and shared their air with him. Their home planet of Mon Calamaria had been brutally ravaged by a Sith fleet, which vaporized many of the beautiful oceans on the water planet. The Pharaoh was watching on top of the great walls that he had opened, where he was confronted by the son of Gerdon and his Mon Calamarian friends. Antyemsaf had no Force powers and jumped to his death, in the water below. In an act of revenge, the Mon Calamarians changed the parameters of the loop the Pharaoh had created for the water and successfully transformed the planet in a desert. Egyptsei had been conquered.
The next 3 centuries the Sith War continued without any view to an end and Yordal and Yorna were forever saddened by their banishment, but they did not fall and after more than half a millennium of preparation, they secretly searched for Corna and were able to track her down and confront her again. The Red Éoleff didn’t even care to fight them herself, but instead sent out her most powerful bodyguard. The guard was extremely skilled, but still no match for the two sisters and Yorna gave the final blow, when the guard’s disguise fell of and it was revealed that she had killed Findal, and overpowered by her own sorrow and despair, she put her lightsabre through her own chest, ending her life too. Yordal now felt the anger of the Éoleff flow through her, but instead of falling to the dark side, she used it to enlarge her powers of light. Corna’El laughed with the situation but was caught by surprise when Yordal chopped of her left hand. The dark energies now flowed from her body, as she tried to use the staff to heal herself, but that was even more painful than the cut itself and all Sith and Jedi heard her cries of pain and the fleets lost control over their ships, which crashed into each other. Corna disappeared with her staff and while there was no real victor, the people of the destroyed ancient republic called out the Jedi as winners, because they hated the dark deeds of the Sith. The Jedi apologised to Yordal and elected her as new Éolegg. They banished the Sith out of the newly formed Republic (later referred to as the Old Republic) and a new time of peace started, which would last for three thousand years, beside the occasional clash with Sith who tried to infiltrate the Republic, unsuccessfully. But because of the great use of the staff, the caged Master of Evil became more and more powerful, and started to plan his release…

Part 4: Death

During the three thousand years of peace, Corna’El sat in her meditation chamber; she had asked not to be disturbed and the generations of Sith that trained in her temple had remembered her legend, but thought of it to be a myth. They had never seen her leave the room and they weren’t allowed to enter. Even the people of the old republic started to see her as a story and warning for the dark side, a personification of the terrible war that they hadn’t witnessed in their lifetime. Of course many of the Éoleff had seen these times, yet they weren’t eager to tell the tales of their fall, because they still felt a great shame of what had happened. Some of the older Mumifar also knew the stories were true, but didn’t speak of them, for they had helped the Sith and lost the war. They were now busy rebuilding their once great planet, which would never regain its former glory.
But Corna’El did exist and was still alive. She was now completely mad because of the staff. She was beaten by the anger of her race and had absorbed all the pain and sadness of the Éoleff. She cried silently in her dark room and almost forgot she existed herself. The staff increased her pain and suffering, but she was unable to part with it. But she had not lost all sanity and what was left now gained the upper hand, because the Master of Evil was preparing his uprising. He could not use his essence himself, but instead created a soul in his likeness, the horseman of the apocalypse, from the essence he had been refused. But he made his horseman of chaos too powerful, he refused to serve his master and plotted to find the staff and use it himself to rule the universe. The Master cursed the horseman and banished him out of Hell. The Master now decided to create four other horsemen, with much less powers, to find the staff and release him. The essence of the staff had flickered by these events and Corna’El was awake again and ready to face the republic once more. She didn’t want to die in exile and only now fully realised the infinite potential of the staff.

She opened the rusted doors of her room and the Sith were amazed to see her splendour, the Lady of the Sith had returned. She immediately showed her unlimited powers by transporting herself to the city planet of Taris, which was second only to Coruscant. In an instant the entire planet was reduced to a desert of ashes. The once so beautiful buildings were all destroyed, the trillions of innocent civilians were all killed. The Second Sith War had begun.

The Republic had learned from its mistakes and still had a rather impressive fleet, which was now sent to Sith space, where it met the mediocre Sith fleet; but Corna revealed a ruthless new power of her staff: any damage done to the Sith fleet was immediately restored and the dead were revived. In the mean time, the ships of the republic started firing at each other, resulting in an striking victory for the Sith, only one republic ship was allowed to escape the massacre to scare the rest of the fleet.

One system after another were conquered by the invincible Sith. Planets quickly surrendered because they knew what had happened with Taris, the gleaming gem of the wild galaxy.

An advisor helped Corna’El with strategy, but she didn’t trust him and when she tried to kill him in his sleep, he revealed himself to be the horseman of chaos and the two had an enormous fight, but because they both drew their powers from the same source, neither could win. The battle ended in a draw and the horseman fled. Corna’El feared his return and ordered her servants to begin construction of a cage, which would make it possible to make time stand still, keeping the horseman forever trapped.

The Sith were winning the war; they had already conquered two of the five galaxies and started their invasion of the two galaxies that were colliding. But Corna’El couldn’t always keep her attention with the fights, making them lose certain battles. Corna now felt empty inside, because of the long use of the staff. She craved power, but wasn’t satisfied by it. The council of elder Sith Lords now contemplated a plot to murder her and use the staff themselves. The all seeing Red Éoleff knew of this plot and destroyed her council without hesitating. Her fear of dieing without glory was now joined by an extreme paranoia, trusting no one anymore; she ordered the construction of android fighting machines, which would always stay loyal to her. Eventually she was killing more Sith than Jedi and the self-destructing nature of the Staff of Evil was revealed, it had created the Sith, and now it would destroy the Sith, but then the horseman returned. Corna knew if she was able to trap the demon, that the planet she was on should never be explored again, so sent out a message to all Sith and republic ships: the entire region would now be a forbidden zone, never to be entered again, because a far more greater evil than herself would soon be imprisoned there.

The fight was now very different, Corna’El had a great confidence in her victory, she knew that much was at stake and reached into her hearth to get the power needed for defeating the horseman. She tapped into the faint light that was still inside of her and which was still inside every Éoleff, because they had been the chosen ones of the Gods, this was the kind of evil they were eventually meant to fight. And when Corna used these powers of light, she felt warm again. She defeated the horseman and trapped him inside the eternal prison of time and put the cage underground. She realised that she hadn’t used the staff and understood that the evil had only given her a small amount of direct power, while the power of the Light Side of the Force would grow forever. She now felt remorse for the sins of the Sith and was prepared to face any punishment.

When she stopped using the staff, her droid fighters were all deactivated and her fleet was not unbeatable anymore, making the Jedi win very quickly. Corna’El had undone the Fall of the Éoleff, but her race had failed the promise of peace and would slowly become smaller over the next eons. Corna’El threw away the staff, and accepted the fires to cleanse her soul, as the staff was flung outside the cluster, burning the surface of the planet in the Forbidden Zone. Her rule had ended, and because she had shown such remorse, she was allowed to join Vanion in the afterlife.

It would not be the last time the staff would be brought to these galaxies, the final showdown of good and evil would be fought there more than a hundred thousand years later. The Second Sith War had ended, Corna’El was dead, the last few remaining Sith banished again; the Golden Years had begun.

This was the story of the Fall of the Éoleff, a legend that would live on until the eternal peace after the defeat of the Master of Evil, because he would escape sooner or later and the golden years would end even sooner, but Corna’El’s predictions were right: the messenger would return and peace would reign once more…

The Secret Past of the Spirion

Part 1: About the Staff & the Spirion
B

efore the Éoleff arrived in the cluster and the times of Corna’El’s adventures with the staff, but after the events of the giants and their ruler Javier, who had found it, it had been in another cluster, where it put an end to a race of space nomads.

Then it travelled to a lonely galaxy, where it was found by a man, who wanted to stop time at will, but he didn’t have enough control over the staff and lost it, doomed to spend the rest of his life with time stopped, unable to move anything. Eventually he went insane and killed himself.

It then got flung into a black hole, but didn’t get destroyed; instead it made the singularity sentient, causing the local species, which possessed faster than light technology, to create massive anti-matter weapons to “kill” the black hole. Their plan succeeded, but they started a war among themselves and used the terrible weapons on each other, making all the involved species extinct.

Fate would lead the staff to our cluster, in the time of the messenger, for its final demise; before that, in the time of Corna’El, who created the Jedi and the Sith, but also once before that too.

It was a time when Humans didn’t exist yet and the Mumifar hadn’t even invented the wheel. But one species did travel the stars. They lived for about two centuries and after three thousand years they had expanded their realm to half of the galaxy that would later spawn Humans, Calamarians and Rodians. But as said before, fate lead the staff back there.

This species was called the Spirion. They would later be tricked into the creation of the Matrix and Palpatine’s rise to power, but that was still eons away.

In these times, they didn’t posses the power to morph; they hadn’t evolved beyond their organic bodies yet, but did have a large control over the Force and an enormous knowledge of science and an instinct to explore. But all of that would change, because they found the staff!

Unlike other individuals, who directly took hold of it, the scientists who found it were more careful. They hadn’t encountered any intelligent life and the planet they were on had no signs of it either and the staff was clearly crafted.

Scans showed that the artefact had strange emissions and they decided never to touch it. Further studies showed that it could be used to create energy or even wormholes, its possibilities seemed endless, they would just have to type a command in the computer and the staff magically followed every order.

The scientists realised the dangers of the thing, if it would fall into the wrong hands, or any hands, because they had noticed that when they worked close to the object, they got mad more easily and stress levels rose very quickly. The staff clearly had an effect on their emotions, but it also enlarged their control over the Force. None of it scared the scientists, it made them even more curious. But to be on the safe side, they told no one of it, because the one thing they did fear, was to loose it. Even their ruler, the great Sincam, an enlightened despot, knew nothing of the staff.

The staff started to take over its observers and the lies and deceit would eventually be the end of the Spirion Realm.

The Spirion were already a unisexual race, but in those days there always had to be exactly two people to reproduce. Any two persons could reproduce, but they were fertile only once every year, which kept the population from becoming too big.

Never the less, there cities across the Realm were very large. Their home planet Xarnia was renamed to Brasalia, which means “beautiful jewel”, because of the enormous cityscape that reflected much sunlight, making it appear very bright from outer space.

The ruler of the Spirion Realm was a king with absolute powers, but if that king would use them in something other than the good of the people, they had the right to relieve the king from command. This had never happened and the ruling family had always been the Sincams. The current king was Derdian Sincam the twelfth, son of Thalas the fourth. They had come to power after a great war before they started exploring space. The only fights that had happened in the last three thousand years had been with space pirates and other bandits, but never a war. But that would soon change and not just because of the staff.

The Spirion loved exploring, many of them set out on personal quests and adventures to seek out new planets with beautiful landscapes or luxurious gems. Many of them were also scientists, like the ones that had found the staff.
The scientists’ knowledge of the staff was becoming very large. With several dating techniques they had found out it was older than the universe itself, which perplexed them. They vaguely believed in reincarnation and thought the staff would have some part in it, because it was from before the birth of everything.

They now believed they could control there own destiny and live forever, but these simple thoughts had been abused by the staff and enlarged to megalomaniacal emotions. Three scientists started fighting with each other, because they thought only one could wield the staff and use it for eternal life. They killed the others, so no one could reveal information of the artefact. The staff also wanted someone to get hold of it and granted the wish of the three scientists. But its power also made them equals, so they kept on fighting without any visible end, until someone would come in between…
Part 2: About Jorgen Amonas

Jorgen and Connor Amonas were the sons of Dagon Amonas, who was the son of Karim Amonas, who was the son of Elmer Amonas. Elmer had lived at the time the scientists had found the staff; he was a miner of diamonds on the planet Nalraros II and was killed by pirates when they attacked their mines. His husband was killed too, but his son Karim lived with other students at a college on another planet. He became an explorer and founded a colony on a planet he had discovered and named after his father: Elmeria. The sign of this planet would always be a diamond and the large red one he had received when going to the college was now kept in the building where the city councils took place, under Karim’s rule. Ruby City, as it was called (although the gemstone was not a ruby, but it resembled one), became one of the most beautiful ones in the Spirion Realm, except for the cities of Brasalia.

One day, when Karim’s son Dagon was the new ruler, Elmeria was attacked, by the same group of thugs that had killed Karim’s parents. They killed Karim and Dagon, took his son Jorgen captive and stole the diamond of the city. Jorgen’s older brother Connor began a quest to find his brother and bring back the jewel.

Jorgen was still very young and the pirates decided to teach him their ways. He grew up with them and loved them. But when he heard the truth of his past, he said goodbye to his days of raiding ships and planets, or at least, he intended to; he wanted to find his old planet and return to his real family. He made a sword and put the diamond in the pommel of the dark steel hilt; which was covered with red leather on the grip itself. The sharp edges of the blade were made from a red alloy, while the inner part was made of silver and steel, in which he carved its name: “Crimson Sword”.

Violence had been a part of his life for so long; he couldn’t give it up straight away. He became known as the Pirate with the Crimson Sword and was feared in the eastern parts of the realm.

Connor was still looking for him and when he heard of the description of the sword, he knew it had to be one of the pirates that had attacked his planet. After following every lead, he had finally made contact with him in a dark bar on a rusty space station. He challenged him to a duel, to pay for killing his father and grandfather and for taking the diamond, but the pirate dropped the sword and hugged Connor, he explained who he was and told he wanted to return home. He swore he’d stop his evil ways and together the brothers returned to Elmeria, where they were welcomed as heroes.

Jorgen kept the sword and it became the new symbol of the city. But people were afraid of him and stopped business relations with the city, because they feared they would be robbed and killed. The once so beautiful city was now in decay and Jorgen got bitter. Connor was travelling to various systems and told them there was nothing to fear. His brother had gotten back to their side.
The great Sincam (by now Thalas the sixth) heard about Connor’s attempts and wanted to help him and his planet, so he sent a royal delegate to show his trust and hopefully renew trade relationships between the planet and its neighbours. But Jorgen thought the king wanted to usurp the city, because he was jealous of its former beauty and didn’t want it to return. Jorgen killed the representative with his sword and told no one was welcome anymore on his planet. In response, the police of the Spirion imprisoned Connor and attacked Elmeria. Jorgen escaped and the king banished him; if he was ever spotted again, he would be killed, and so would his brother.

Together with a few loyalists that had escaped with him, he set up a new home on a planet outside the Realm. The decision of Thalas VI to attack Elmeria hadn’t been really popular, because many remembered its former glory and those billions that opposed to it, joined Jorgen on his planet and also settled in the neighbouring systems. They created a small new state: the Republic of the Crimson Sword. Many more unrests started after Thalas ordered the death of Connor, who was innocent.
Within a year, a war broke out, the first in thousands of years. Many joined Jorgen’s side and the old Spirion Realm was now cut in two. After six years of war, the great Sincam died and his son Derdian XIV started peace talks. They created the Amonas Kingdom and the Sincam Kingdom, with both exactly the same amount of space. The inhabitants of the two realms lived separated; there were no trade routs between them and for many years, no communication. There was still a lot of hostility between the nations, but they both agreed peace was better for the people. Things cooled down and during the reign of Jorgen’s great- grandson Brian Amonas, and Derdian’s grandson Devon II, traffic started between the states returned.

Part 3: About Ashgar Sagre
After about another century, historians from the Sincam Kingdom were trying to figure out what had happened with a science colony from which they hadn’t heard anything since the days of the founding of Elmeria. They dispatched a team to the planet, but it never returned. They asked the hero Ashgar Sagre to solve the mystery.

Ashgar was the great-grandson of Javon Sagre, who had fought in the war. Pirates had profited from the horrible battles, scavenging the debris and the lost ships. They didn’t like it when the war ended and their attacks had become very brutal, but the Sagre family had hunted them down and had brought them to justice. In these days, Ashgar was the greatest among them, he had killed the leaders of the three most feared gangs, and like many of the Spirion, he also went on explorations and adventures. This adventure would end very different than he expected….
Nothing seemed to be wrong when he landed on the planet, but he quickly found the bodies of the team, heavily burned. Inside the complex he found 3 skeletons. They had been from the scientists that would fight forever. Their bodies had now died, but their spirits still fought with each other: three green ghosts (but unlike the later appearance of their race) were still struggling with each other, using the Force.

They wanted to kill Ashgar, like they had done with any intruder, but he also had much knowledge of the Force and hit their blasts back at them, setting two of the ghosts free. After several centuries there finally was a winner: Logan Oman, but his body was gone, he couldn’t wield the staff, so he would have to use it through Ashgar. He couldn’t allow him to touch it, because he knew he wouldn’t be able to control him. He explained everything about the staff and offered to be his guide, but he should never touch it, because it could destroy his mind, which was actually not far from the truth. They levitated the staff into a special chamber and used Ashgar’s ship as a power supply for the devices on the planet. They encased the staff in a monolith of black metal, melted through the powers of the artefact.
Logan wanted to use it to kill the great Sincam or however was in control of the Realm, but Ashgar hadn’t been affected by the staff yet and destroyed the ghost. He threw the untouched staff in to a crack in the surface, where the monolith would stay: inside the centre of the planet.
But Logan’s spirit wouldn’t give up that quick, when travelling to the afterlife, he stopped and went back to the land of the living, to find the staff. He found it and tried to use it, but he was but a ghost. His endurance and control over the Force eventually made him able to reach out to its powers, only briefly, which vaporised the planet and killed Ashgar. Nothing was left and the staff was drifting in space. Before Logan could try to reach it again, Ashgar Sagre’s spirit took his arm and dragged him along to the afterlife.
Part 4: About Declan Minolus
Declan Minolus was the son of Mirgon Minolus, who was the son of Myron Minolus and Kieran Envart, two senators of the Sincam Kingdom. While the King had the sovereign authority, an elected government made the laws and executed them; but the Great Sincam could always annul laws or make them as he saw fit. The Senate voted on many laws, but only those that got a majority are sent to the King for approval. There were six hundred Senators: 300 from a nationally elected party, including its leader, who had the title of Viceroy (comparable with a prime minister), who had two votes and the right to veto against a law if it was passed with a majority less than two thirds. 202 Senator-Governors, elected locally in each of the 100 provinces plus the Prime of Brasalia (a major for the entire planet) and an equal amount of personal advisors. 70 were appointed directly by the King. 25 Judges of the Royal Court of Law and at last, since the relations between the two kingdoms had become friendly, 3 Senator-Ambassadors from the Amonas Kingdom.
The Senator-Governors were not allowed to fraternise, because they were supposed to represent the ideas of their province without influence. But Kieran and Myron couldn’t help but fall in love. Together they got a son: Mirgon, named after Myron’s family, because it had a better social status. When their affair and their son were discovered, they were relieved from their positions as Senator-Governors.
After paying an enormous fine, they had nothing left. They moved to the slums of Brasalia, in the lower levels that didn’t reflect any sunlight, because light never touched it. His fathers died when he was fifteen, because they gave up their last money for his food and education. Mirgon wanted justice and revenge; he blamed the government for his fathers’ death and he was right. To change certain laws, he entered politics himself. After twenty years, he even became a Senator, as advisor of the Prime of Brasalia. When he explained his situation, the other Senators were outraged that a child born out of broken promises of loyalty now held this rank. The King decided that Mirgon could keep his title, because he was afraid of the public’s reaction. His fear of an uprising, caused by Minolus’ stories, grew stronger and he ordered the secret assassination of the Senator. Mirgon was a strong Force user and had sensed the attempt on his life. He overpowered the killer and revealed the plot in the Senate the next day. The Senate proposed a Motion of No Confidence against King Sameer Sincam VIII. The citizens of the Kingdom voted, but chose to keep the King, who fired all the senators. Mirgon Minolus was charged with treason and executed; many of his supporters fled to the growing Amonas Kingdom.
But Mirgon had a son: Declan, who had followed his father’s supporters to the Kingdom of the Crimson Sword. Their King had to choose new ambassadors for the Senate of Sincam and when he heard the reason was a forbidden love, he had much compassion for the refugees and welcomed them in his kingdom. The King also found out Mirgon’s son was one of them and ordered him to appear before him. He offered him a place in his court as a royal advisor, which he accepted.
For many years Declan was happy. He married Kane Amonas, the youngest son of the King, but the marriage remained childless, because underneath his veil of happiness, Declan wanted revenge for his father. Kane loved him so much, that he stole the Crimson Sword, the sign of his country. On the pummel, around the diamond, a Spirion saying had been carved: “the taste of blood in peace is sour”. The colour of the leather around the hilt had changed to a shade of brown and the red edges of the blade had clearly been affected by corrosion, but the red gem still shone brilliantly.

Kane told Declan that it was the destiny of the sword to taste the blood of a Sincam, so they could have their revenge too. According to him, the only reasons the war had stopped centuries ago had been purely economic.
They travelled back to the Sincam Kingdom, pursued by the army of Kane’s father, who thought Declan had stolen the sword himself and kidnapped his son. The couple could shake them off and after two years they finally managed to get to Brasalia. Fate turned against them again and the sword was stolen by a gang. These criminals used it to throw the city planet into chaos and the high society feared the attacks of the ruthless mob. Kane and Declan followed them and when the gang managed to enter the Senate and held them hostage, Declan surprised them, recaptured the sword and killed them with it.

Sameer’s son King Derdian XXI congratulated them and he recognised the weapon as the legendary Crimson Sword. The King asked him to give it to him, so he could destroy it and end the buried feud once and for all. But Declan stabbed the King through his heart and spoke: “The destiny of the sword was to revenge Connor and Elmeria, but now I take revenge for my father and grandfathers. I am Declan Minolus and have succeeded where my father failed!”
Derdian was dead and the couple fled the Senate building. Declan escaped, but Kane was killed by guards. Declan was now so angered that he returned, his rage fuelled his Force powers and he avoided all the shots the guards fired. They took out their swords and Declan showed off formidable skill. He killed the guards and used the technology in the senate to transmit a message: all his followers should revolt against the Sincam Kingdom to create his own state.
The Sincam Kingdom was thrown into another civil war. The Amonas kingdom remained neutral, because they didn’t know what had exactly happened to Prince Kane.

In the aftermath of the short war, Declan created the Minolus Kingdom, which had about the same size as the current Amonas Kingdom. The remaining (and decaying) Sincam Kingdom was now about as large two thirds of either state. Declan found new love and a new line of kings was created in the resulting peace.
The Spirion Realm was now split in three kingdoms.
Part 5: About Piranos the Pirate
The borders of the Amonas and the Sincam Kingdom and the borders of the Minolus and the Sincam Kingdom met at one point, which was also the only point where the Amonas and Minolus Kingdom met. This was known as the Three-Border Point.
The real reason their borders met there, was because of an agreement; the war had never reached those parts. It was infested with pirates and nobody had the courage to go there. Their clans had grown greatly since the death of Ashgar Sagre.

But a far relative was brave enough to travel to the Three-Border point to confront the ruthless outlaws: Alwyn Dorian Sagre (AD for friends). But before he reached any of their hide outs, he was confronted with the spirit of Ashgar. He warned him to go back, or face certain death. AD didn’t mind getting killed for a good cause, but Ashgar revealed he would reincarnate as Alwyn’s son, who had already been conceived and that he needed his knowledge and wisdom in his education, to become the man he was meant to be.
Alwyn ignored the advice and continued to travel towards the Three-Border Point. It was a long journey and AD regularly visited Spirion cities or other habitable planets. On one of those, the one where the Staff had landed, he met an old man who got stranded there. The man was under the influence of the staff, without ever having seen the object. He predicted Alwyn would betray the Spirion Realm three times before his death.
AD thought the man had gone crazy in his lonely years on the planet. He sent a message, asking for a ship to pick the man up, and continued his voyage. It is not known if he ever reached the Three-Border Point, because he was never heard of again.

The pirates had never been more powerful, they now planned a full scale attack at all the borders: surprising the Amonas Kingdom and overwhelming the still recovering Sincam and Minolus Kingdoms. The Three-Border Point ceased to exist when they proclaimed their independence, putting the other two kingdoms that had split from the Spirion Realm wide apart. The three (relatively) democratic regimes put their issues aside and cooperated to defeat their common foe.
But the pirates had a formidable fleet and split the collaborating kingdoms, fighting on three fronts at the same time. This was too much even for them, but a leader emerged from the scum of bandits: Piranos, the most malevolent villain the Milky-Way Galaxy had ever seen until then. He showed no mercy to anyone, destroying the cities alongside the former borders without any remorse, murdering trillions along the way. He even went as far as killing the entire crew of a ship, robbing it and then sending it back to where it came from, filled with the mutilated corpses. He also took many prisoners and made them slaves, to work in his diamond mines.
His Empire could still be called a Three-Border Point, because it was formed along the old borders of the three kingdoms and bordered each of them. The Kingdoms now only bordered with Piranos’ Empire.
Piranos wanted to destroy the Spirion Realm and started with the Sincam Kingdom. But the war had been raging on for twenty years and the reborn Ashgar Sagre was now an adult; he was a wonderful man, even without Alwyn’s teachings. He knew the weak point of the Pirates was the unity between clans, so if he could split their empire, the one without Piranos would die out because of internal struggle for command. He could then do the same with the remaining part over and over again, until Piranos stood alone. He was put at the head of Sincam’s royal army and was able to conquer the original Three-Border point, dividing the empire in two, as he planned. The part that was left without the control of Piranos was still a fearsome enemy, but an attack from the Minolus Kingdom, which corresponded with one of the Sincam Kingdom, was the end of it; the remaining pirates scattered, some joined the other part.
There was now quite an amount of space between the borders of those two kingdoms, and they started to alienate from each other. Because the Minolus Kingdom was now the only nation with peace, they began to expand to the north (the original realm was located south of the core, and the Minolus Kingdom was now positioned southeast of it) and saw a golden age.

The Sincam royal army had retaken the space around the nebulas known as Wild Space, west of Brasalia and was preparing to bring a final blow to the main fleet of Piranos. The Pirates wanted to destroy the cities on the beautiful planet Dinesh. But Ashgar had found out about it and had lured the enemy into a trap. Somehow he knew he had to face Piranos alone. He asked his best friend Azad Turner to look after his son, Ashgar Junior, should he not return, because the baby’s other father had been killed a few weeks before.
The Pirates’ fleet was decimated and Piranos was captured, questioned and locked away, but at the expense of Ashgar’s life. Turner raised the boy as his own son and had never lied about his real father, but he concealed a far greater secret, that hadn’t been revealed to many people…
Azad knew the truth about Piranos’ true identity.
But before he could be sentenced, the fallen leader escaped; he could use the Force as a weapon. In the future this would seem as a very natural act, but these techniques were forbidden among the Spirion, because they required a great mental stability. It were powers of the Force that had started the great war before the Sincams came to command. Now the Force could only be used for meditation and for simple things, like levitating objects, but never as a weapon, that was preserved for guns, or more preferable: swords, with which they could still use the Force to enhance their strength.

It seemed Piranos had learned the ancient forms and had used them blow a hole in the roof of his prison and fly away. Ashgar Junior was eager to track down the murderer of his father. He took 5 friends with him, those that he trusted the most. Before they left, Azad Turner told him the truth, but Ashgar Junior didn’t believe it and didn’t reveal it to his friends.

They travelled several years before finally discovering the villain. He was hiding on the destroyed surface of the planet Etosia, between the Sincam and the Amonas Kingdom, which had also alienated after the war. They bombarded his lair from space, but it seemed to have an impenetrable shield. Ashgar Junior’s stepbrother Vock Turner, who was also his best friend, took a shuttle to the surface, without telling anyone. He travelled at a low enough speed to penetrate the shield and confronted Piranos. He was mad with power and had an aura of green lightening, sometimes with a blue flash in between. History had told them that all visible Force powers of the Spirion had a green glow, but that blue was the colour their true inner life energy, which could only be drawn from the deepest places of their mind and body. Using too much would be fatal.

If Piranos had reached the limit of his powers, he would perhaps be easy to defeat, but Vock’s idea was wrong; the blue energy was a result of power being given to him from a source beneath the surface of the twisted planet, where the cries of the innocents Piranos had killed could still be heard in the wind.
Vock attacked the pirate with all his strength, and to his surprise, he used the Force like he knew everything about it. His rage and fury fuelled it even more and he understood why the techniques were outlawed. One could lose himself in it. He tried to clear his mind, but was buried with raw emotion and lost control. Turner’s youth turned out to be the largest factor in the battle, and he defeated Piranos.

He regained command over his feelings and calmed down; Piranos told Vock something that he needed to say to Ashgar Junior, only to Ashgar Junior. With his last strength he levitated a large clump of rock from the surface into space, propelling it towards the Amonas Kingdom.

Then Piranos, leader of the pirates of the Three-Border Point died, on Etosia, an empty planet, his soul would be tortured by his own victims, until they could all pass into the great Beyond.

Vock returned to the ship and told everybody what had happened, except Piranos’ final speech. Back on Brasalia, the six friends, especially Turner, were welcomed as heroes; they had put a final stop to the horrors of the pirates. But Vock wasn’t sure about it and told Ashgar’s son the last words of the villain:
“I have betrayed the Spirion Realm three times: I have caused a terrible war upon its people, I’ve killed my own son, its biggest hero, and now I will unleash the ultimate evil upon it: the staff, which is buried on this planet, and which fuels our powers and emotions.”

Ashgar now knew what Azad had said, had been the truth, and he never spoke of it again.
Part 6: About the Power of the Staff
After several years, the Staff entered the Amonas Kingdom. If it had feelings, it would’ve been very frustrated. Many had used its powers, but no one had touched it. It urged for action, chaos, death. Still inside a rock, it planned to fall on a city and turn it into ashes, but planets had a defence ship against asteroids and it pulverized it. The three men aboard towed in the Staff and placed in quarantine, to avoid coming in contacts with toxics or radiation; but its powers penetrated into their minds. Instead of making them turn on each other, the Staff made them cooperate, as a means of spreading his dark powers and starting a war in which it would be actively used.
The first man, the captain of the ship, was named Ronan Gorth; he was heavily built, he had fought in the war against Piranos as a soldier, but had been crippled. He was the only survivor of his battalion, because he was very strong with the Force. After the war he was offered the job as captain of the defence ship of Dolchram III, a rather important planet of the Amonas Kingdom.
The second man, the navigator of the ship, was named Torrin Zall; a former pirate who betrayed his crewmates at the battle of Dinesh, when he saw Piranos’ fleet was lost. He had fled to New Elmeria, the capital of the Amonas Kingdom, before settling on Dolchram III, were he used his knowledge of navigation to get the job onboard the defence ship.

The last man, who operated the weapons of the ship, was named Semler Langing; a former hit man, who was tricked into killing his own brother, Jolan. He killed the people who had hired him and said goodbye to his dishonourable profession. He searched for a new life, working in the gemstone mines of Dolchram VI. When he heard of the open spot in the defence ship of the planet’s bigger brother, he took the opportunity, so he could work with weapons again, the great passion of his life.
These three men had all experienced a traumatizing past, but were very different. Now they were under the influence of the Staff, which resided in their ship’s quarantine. It spoke to each of the men separately. Ronan saw one of the fallen members of his battalion, Torrin saw one of the crewmembers he betrayed and Semler saw his brother. Each provoked them to take the Staff, at the same time as the other two; alone, it would be impossible to wield, but if they used it together, they’d be strong enough to use its powers and begin the last great war of their time to end the suffering like they’d experienced in their past.
Together they took hold of the Staff and became the first true users since many generations. They started to make propaganda and quickly gathered a loyal following. The main doctrine the three rulers had spread was the freedom to use the Force at will, without any rules or boundaries. They circulated the idea, which they probably believed themselves, that holding those powers inside would only harm you and others around you; it had caused the secession wars of both Amonas and Minolus, and more importantly, the recent war with Piranos.
The belief started to gain strength in the south of the Amonas Kingdom, even among high officials and soon many planets declared themselves independent from the government on New Elmeria. Instead they aligned themselves with the three great leaders, who had made Dolchram III the capital of the Empire of the Staff, renaming it Trionos, after their triumvirate.
The entire southern half of the Amonas Kingdom had fallen into the hands of the Empire; even New Elmeria had easily fallen. The kingdom had moved north so much, it now had made a new border with the Minolus Kingdom. The Staff’s Empire had clearly beaten the better half of the Amonas Kingdom and had now declared war on their neighbour: the Sincam Kingdom…
Part 7: About the Fall of Brasalia
A key figure in the takeover of New Elmeria had been Ethan Kale, who had now been promoted to Supreme Commander of the fleet of the Staff.

His armada was heading for Brasalia, decimating any army and conquering every planet in their way. King Latarion V knew his kingdom would fall, so he ordered his most trusted warrior: the veteran Ashgar Sagre Junior, to take Prince Sameer (who would’ve become Sameer IX), his only son, to the Minolus Kingdom, which was still in its golden age.
The attack on Brasalia was brutal and fierce. Commander Kale met more resistance than he’d anticipated, because Vock Turner, who was now in command of Sincam’s fleet, had called every ship capable of battle to the capital. The Staff’s armada was simply too big and too powerful to withstand, and Vock was killed and his fleet annihilated. The population of Brasalia quickly surrendered after the loss of their fleet, because they feared their beautiful planet-wide city would be devastated. Trained in the Force, and fuelled by the Staff, Ethan quickly found the hiding place of the King and his Prince Consort.
Kale executed them publicly and declared all royalists traitors to the Empire of the Staff. He abolished the senate, killed the senators appointed by the King and declared all others as outlaws. Content with his achievements, the triumvirate gave Kale Brasalia as his personal property, except for its economy, which had to fuel the Empire’s war machine. Ethan tore down many buildings to build factories, to construct weapons and ship parts. Brasalia, which cities once made it appear as a shining gem, was now blackened by industrial fumes. Soon, the Sincam Kingdom was no more.
At his personal request, Ethan led the Staff’s fleet again to invade the Minolus Kingdom. After only 3 weeks, however, he was killed in battle. His ship had exploded when its shields failed while under attack. This malfunction was mysterious, but no one asked questions about it, since they all felt what had happened: Ethan had become to powerful and had been eliminated by the triumvirate.
Evan without Kale’s leadership, the Staff’s Armada ended the golden age of Minolus and conquered the south of the kingdom, but their efforts were less successful than before. Feeling they were starting a period of stagnation, the Empire stopped its invasion to review its strategy and to give their enemy a false feeling of safety and peace. Waiting for a better moment to continue their quest for domination and attacking their enemy when they least expected it, was considered the best strategy for now.
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The Sirian Wars

Part 1: The Times of Peace

F

or 108.200 years peace reigned in the republic. Any conflict was quickly resolved by the vast amount of Jedi. This had been the way of things for eons. The republic was spread over a local cluster of 5 galaxies: two colliding galaxies (later known as the Valcro-zone), which was home to many cultures and civilisations, a galaxy with a great amount of space stations and technologic wonders (later known as “the junkyard”), a heavy populated galaxy, from which some of the most common races, like Humans and Calamarians, originated (later known as the first U.L.F. galaxy), and a galaxy with a low population, because of great areas of star formations, which caused much deadly radiation; this galaxy was also the least explored.

The first space faring race was the Éoleff, who were small green elflike beings. Because of their long lives (up to ten thousand years), they could explore the cluster with simple warp technology. This way they encountered the Mumifar, another long living race, but they only lived about a quarter of the life of an Éoleffan. The Mumifar had a few colonies on very remote planets, they hadn’t travelled the cluster like the Éoleff, they had directly gone to a few planets, using their wormhole technology. Together they could explore the known universe at a tremendous rate and soon after, the republic was born. When the Humans entered, they only lived for about 160 years and they had many different skin tones, but not the more common yellow skin tone, that most humanoid races had. After thousands of years they evolved: they lived an entire millennium, their skin was yellow, and many of the Jedi were of their race. The humans were a very common race, but some of them were rather xenophobic: a small group, which populated Siria, the fourth planet in the Sirius system, had not evolved; they were exactly the same as the original Humans: short lives, different skin tones, and quickly annoyed. They didn’t even consider themselves “Human” anymore, but Sirians. The strangest thing about them was the fact that only three or four of them were Jedi, the rest of the population showed absolutely no Force-potential. The Sirians always cooperated with the republic; every member of the republic was sovereign, but they always were more apart. Many years passed and the only full scale wars the republic had known: the Sith wars, had ended tens of thousands of years ago and while the republic had enjoyed their Golden Years, Sirius became more and more extreme, almost fascist, but the surrounding civilisations made sure peace and justice was conserved on the troublesome planet. Many eons had passed and the republic forgot what a real war meant. But the Sirians always kept pride in the great wars that had engulfed their native Earth and later the ancient republic. They hated democracy, they hated peace. But most of all, they hated the Jedi, who always made sure peace was maintained. In secret, the Sirian government began planning… for war. 

Part 2: Sovereignty
Yoda, son of current Éolegg Yarded the Green, was on his way to Denhetus to meet the recently elected president of Siria and the space under Sirian command: Sean Taghon.

Even though Earth and Siria were separated by only 8.6 light-years and dots on starcharts to indicate their position always overlapped each other, they were each the capital of a province: Earth’s in the west and the Sirian province in the east. Numerous threats of secession and the fact that the Sirian military was responsible for keeping the peace in the sector had gained them this important position. Consequently, manufacturers of starcharts also had to deal with the border running between the overlapping dots on their maps.
Denhetus was a planet right in the middle of the province, which had originally been colonized by Mumifar, but which was now inhabited mostly by Sirians and Usferran. Its importance was derived from their artificial wormhole generator in orbit; the only one with a connection to the Small Magellanic Cloud, a close, small and irregular satellite galaxy, popular for its beautiful nebulas and the fact that it had a system with a habitable planet (Lepidop) and an intelligent race (the Usferran): the only one found in any of the satellites that had been explored, and thus the only one in which a wormhole generator had been built.
Denhetus was not unpopular itself. Tourists on their way to Lepidop were often pleasantly surprised by the beautiful pyramids built in red stone and the ruins of an ancient space-faring race that had disappeared long before the Éoleff and the Mumifar had come here. Artefacts of the mysterious race (which was later discovered to be the Spirion) had been found on several worlds in this galaxy, many of which had been claimed by the Sith.

Sean’s youngest daughter, 5-year old Kylie (five Sirians years, about six standard years), was watching the yellow sun turn orange while it was setting in the sea. It was the first time she had left Siria and had never seen a sunset in this colour, or of a singular star, since her home planet revolved around a bright bluish-white star with a white dwarf accompanying it. The beach of red sand and the red cliffs also fascinated her; beaches on Siria were mostly yellowish. The light, the beach and the cliffs painted the whole scene red, her favourite colour, before the sun would disappear behind the horizon and the dark, moonless night of Denhetus would envelop the island, her father’s island, she realised. The isle and its large estate were an official holiday-home for the Sirian President and a favoured location for negotiations. Her father had told her he would meet with Yoda, an Éoleff Jedi. Most Éoleff were Jedi and since Sean didn’t like Jedi, he didn’t like the Éoleff. He had told her Jedi were dangerous witches and sorcerers and thought they were better than everybody else. Sirians were never allowed to learn their secrets, but daddy would talk to them and make sure they would never hurt her.
Sean called his daughter inside, it was getting dark. The strange alien held on to the time of a certain location Coruscant, which would make it just after noon. Denhetus, however, had much shorter, sixteen-hour days. If Yoda would have had more patience, they could have waited two more standard days, so their noons would lie closest to each other and neither of them would suffer space-lag.
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The Beginning of the Matrix

Part 1: The Bohrok

E

ven after two millennia, the republic hadn’t come to its old glory. The number of Jedi had become larger again, but was still only a fraction of the days before the Sirian Wars. The republic had been in decay, like the ancient predictions of the first Jedi, which were lost to time. The low populated galaxy was still mostly unexplored, but reports came in of attacks by strange machines, and communication with most of the few, but important planets, like Arkalon and Braal, was completely lost! The Jedi sent a team to investigate, but they never returned. The galaxy had been lost and was declared of limits to any ship, not that they could travel there anyway, because most of the wormhole generators had been destroyed.

Fear spread around the republic and the Jedi worried it would make some of their knights go to the dark side of the Force, to become new Sith. In the outskirts of known space these Sith gathered, under the rule of the once great Jedi master Seth, a middle aged human. Unfortunately for them, they were the first (after the lost galaxy) to be attacked by the Bohrok. They were larger than any man and entered the atmosphere as spheres, once landed, they deployed their arms and legs, to reveal their robotic body, controlled by a large brain, a Krana. They could produce an energy beam, as powerful as the largest weapon the republic had ever created. In five hundred years they destroyed countless civilisations, they had destroyed the surface of every habitable planet in three galaxies, entire races got extinct. The Jedi were able to destroy many of them, but got overwhelmed by their large numbers. For every Bohrok they killed, a hundred more came in its place. This great plague was now ready to attack the core of the republic: the two colliding galaxies. They thought they were doomed and sent out a Mumifar ship to find help in another galaxy, much further away than anywhere they had ever gone, far outside the republic…

Part 2: The Super Saiyan

In that galaxy, evil, corrupt emperors fought over domination, each of them had a large army of force sensitive beings, all able to produce energy beams, similar to those of the Bohrok, and they had such control, they could even fly.

One of those warrior races were the Saiyans, they had no real allegiance and most of them were mercenaries, working for rivalling states, sometimes even for more at the same time. Two of the most powerful Saiyans were the Valcro brothers: Lucian and Palpatine; they were also fighting for two sides at the same time, but when those empires started to work together, the truth was revealed. The newfound state had sent out some bounty hunters to kill the brothers, but they weren’t strong enough. The rulers put a price on heads of the Valcros and they realised they wouldn’t be safe anywhere. They found themselves stronger than any fighter in their galaxy, but wouldn’t be able to handle them all at the same time.

The brothers were asked for a secret meeting with the king of the Saiyans, but it was a trap: the most dangerous warriors were all gathered to kill the two traitors. They knew it would be futile, but they started a fight. They were actually winning, but Lucian got surprised: the king had stabbed him in the back. Great emotions took control of Palpatine, all his rage, anger and hate suddenly exploded, Palpatine was transforming! His strength increased exponentially, his red hair and red aura turned gold, his black eyes greenish blue. He had become a legend he never believed, a mythical person: the Super Saiyan.

With his new powers, he easily killed his opponents, and his own king, who had killed his brother.

Knowing he wouldn’t be safe anywhere in his galaxy, he started on a journey out of it. After five years he came to a satellite mini-galaxy, and decided to land on a planet, which his sensors indicated to be heavily populated. Perhaps he could fulfil his lifelong dreams to rule the galaxy, in a mini version. After landing he found no real intelligent life, only Bohrok! As a Super Saiyan, he easily destroyed them. Out of a cave, a few Mumifar came to congratulate him. They explained the situation of their republic and asked Palpatine’s help. Palpatine agreed and saw his chance to rule more than he ever dreamed possible.

After 2 months of travelling, the ship crashed on the third planet of the Amagosa system. Palpatine had killed the crew, but forgot to ask how to land the ship. The ship remained in one piece, but the power was lost. Luckily for him, the planet had some cities, and a team was sent to investigate. Palpatine declared himself the only survivor of the crash and said he was brought to their galaxies as a potential saviour. The senate gave Palpatine complete freedom to do whatever he wanted to destroy the Bohrok thread. Éolegg Yoda the Green, one of the last surviving Éoleff and hero of the Sirian Wars had a bad feeling of this plan, but the Jedi had lost the respect of the senate, because they were losing the war and were ordered to help Palpatine in any way possible. As acts of diversion, Palpatine sacrificed many innocent lives, including Jedi, to catch the plague by surprise. Although many people disliked his ways, they agreed it might be the only solution for survival.

The Super Saiyan disposed of the armies like they were nothing and gained much respect. He was winning the war, but the republic couldn’t have guessed they were actually losing it.

Part 3: The Spirion

After two years, the Bohrok were almost defeated, but like many times before, a vast renewed army seemed to show up out of nowhere.

Palpatine and his crew of Jedi had ventured into a region, known as Sith space: a few unexplored places outside the republic, claimed by the dark Jedi, who had left the order. Most worlds had already been destroyed centuries ago, as they had chased the Bohrok into one of the destroyed galaxies. One planet had a large population of highly evolved people, who were also powerful enough to repel any Bohrok attack, because every member of this species was Force potent. They had never made contact with alien civilisations and had no faster than light technology, at least, not anymore. They were in fact the Spirion (later known as Valcronian Agents) whose Realm had fallen because of the Staff, long before the coming of the Éoleff. Their evolution had made them able to transform for short periods of time, or to change themselves into a ghostlike cloud, apparently with computer-like abilities, able to control space itself.

At this point an idea came to Palpatine’s mind: he could create something to isolate the Bohrok, a computer program to control space and disable them. This was of course not his main idea: he planned to use this race to gain control over the republic, sacrificing billions of Spirion for the creation of a Matrix, in which he would be the ruler!

In the following months, this mysterious species joined the Jedi everywhere in the republic, destroying Bohrok. Palpatine had carefully planned the creation of his Matrix, but needed something to make sure it didn’t vanish after a year and to stabilise it. His research led him to a hidden Sith temple near the core of the first galaxy.

Part 4: Creation of the Hypno-crystal

On a planet that seemed to be largely destroyed by Bohrok, he landed (alone) on a small habitable piece, near one of the poles. Some dormant Bohrok didn’t even pay attention to him, as he entered the temple he was greeted by the Sith Lord Darth Seth, and his two pupils: Darth Bully and Darth Maul, who had devilish faces. Seth explained he had sold his soul to the lord of the underworld, Makuta, in the afterlife. His wish was that it would be impossible for him to be destroyed by Bohrok. Therefore he was made a leader of their armies, answering only to their creator: Lord Bebi. Palpatine was shocked to hear that name, Bebi was the king of a race the Saiyans had destroyed centuries ago and had taken over their planet. He was the only one who escaped; his great-grandfather had been held responsible and had been stripped of his royal title; if Bebi had been destroyed he would’ve been king.

Their dangerous race, the Tsufuru, had the idea that everything different than them should be destroyed. Seth told Palpatine the rest of Bebi’s history: after they got wiped out, he sold his soul in exchange for eternal life, and decided to carry out his fascist plans in this group of galaxies, aided by the devil’s horsemen, who provided him with an infinite army of robots: the Bohrok, which were perfect hosts to Krana, simplistic brains, found on a planet of the unexplored galaxy, which had the ability to use their minds to communicate.

Palpatine didn’t explain his plans but attacked Seth, who ignited his light sabre. The super Saiyan didn’t have one, but used the Force to shield his hand. He grabbed the sabre by its red energy beam and made the hilt explode. After a short battle, Seth was killed. His two pupils declared Palpatine the new lord of the Sith and swore their allegiance to him. They showed him the ancient scrolls for the creation of a crystal, with mind affecting powers, he would be able to use it to make the Spirion commit a mass suicide to create the matrix, as a sort of giant Jedi mind trick. The pupils told Palpatine of other scrolls, from before the Sith Wars, hundreds of thousands of years ago, from before any know form of civilisation in the cluster. They spoke of 4 rings to control space-time itself, by using the evil crystal, which they called the Hypno-crystal, because of its mind controlling powers. This was the technology created by the Spirion; their fate seemed to have been tied to it, because of their addiction to the Staff and their attempts to imitate it.
The Matrix would have many of the abilities of the circles, like time-travelling and resurrection of the death (but only inside the Matrix itself, the circles would be much more powerful), so for now it was enough to create the Crystal itself, so they activated a machine, which drew power from the dark side and formed a small yellow crystal, which would leave an impact on the known universe for millennia to come, Palpatine’s presence had made this crystal much more powerful than those created by the Spirion eons ago. This creation had so much energy, that it would take a year before it would be truly complete. Bully and Maul were to stay in the temple and use the crystal at the right time and sing the necessary mantras for its final completion, in the mean time Palpatine set up the events that would lead to the destruction of the republic and the creation of the Matrix…

Part 5: The Great Deception
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The Jonathan Insurrection

Part 1: The Creation of Empty-Head

T

he Slizer came out of the temporal vortex and went to the second galaxy of the U.L.F., which didn’t exist yet. He wondered what to do with his time and how to stay out of the way of history. His pondering came to a quick halt, because he got captured by a ship that looked as an ancestor to the Imperial Star Destroyer, only much smaller, with only a few decks. He was held unconscious in a transporter loop. A young man, Jonathan Valcro, second son of the Emperor, pressed a few buttons. The Slizer’s soul got transformed: his memory was erased and the evil Hypno-crystal made him completely obedient. Jonathan gave his creation the name Empty-Head, because he completely erased the past of this strange computer virus. Jonathan stepped to a computer screen and spoke to his father:

-I captured a computer virus that could’ve harmed the Matrix.

-Is that a reason to disturb me? I was just on my way to get a new young body; this one is getting old even faster!

-You might want to know I was successful in transferring its soul into an android, with complete obedience to me.

-Ah, that’s more interesting, with this act you have proven yourself worthy to the title of Sith Lord. Next week there will be a celebration in your honour. Your invention will let us turn Jedi, who always seem to come back after every purge, into slaves.

-I couldn’t have done it without Robotica’s soul transferring technology, though I believe we can let our next victims keep their own body. This virus was just to grotesque to try that.

-I’m sure you’ll figure that out, but don’t thank that lousy brother of yours, his inventions are the only things that keep me from banishing him out of my Empire. End transmission!

Jonathan walked to the motionless Empty-Head, “his Empire”, he mumbled. “Your first order”, he said to the droid, “is to calculate any weakness, existing or potential, in the structure of the Empire: stations, vulnerable for attacks; potential rebellious actions; spots in the military with low or tired crew; and so on”. “To destroy those things and better the Empire?”, Empty-Head asked. “No, to destroy those things and conquer the Empire…”

Part 2: Seeds of War

After years of research by Empty-Head, the Valcro brothers (“Rob”, “Johnny”, “Toz” and “Fon”), Insectoz’ daughter Jayna and Robotica’s girlfriend Chailey, they had found a number of ways to get control over the Empire: first they would spread the rumour that the Emperor was unable to create a new body for himself, he would die and the Empire would be thrown into chaos and civil war, unless everybody swore allegiance to the sons of Palpatine, who would live forever, because they were born in the Matrix and they would stay young forever, as long as it existed. Secondly, when this rumour would be common knowledge, they would let the Mumifar believe Palpatine wished to destroy them, because he was jealous of their long lives, just like he caused genocide among the Spirion, to create the Matrix, and among the Zybrac, for their natural Force potency and fearsome appearance. They would convince this race to dismantle the remaining stations that created artificial wormholes, except for a few devices for direct one-time access to Jonathan’s personal planet (a planet created out of asteroids and gravity devices, it would later be destroyed by Luke). This would mean the Emperor could not deploy his fleet as he wanted and Jonathan’s insurrection could convince local resistance groups, or even Imperial officers to join him and overpower the confused military. They would attack stations that weren’t large or important, but with enormous strategic value.

These plans would keep the Empire busy and the effects of one rumour would add to the other. At the same time, the Valcros would start to cause all kinds of accidents and blame them on the Empire; they would also try to dismantle the military from within. For now, it were only plans, but they would soon start to execute them.

(incomplete)
Part 3:
The Betrayal of Sharkthoot

Part 1: Red Sincam

I

t had been 4990 years since the Holocaust of the Spirion and their numbers were larger than ever. The Genocide Palpatine had caused to create the Matrix, was long forgotten, along with the name of their race, they were Valcronian Agents, linked to the fabric of the Matrix, and followers of Jonathan Valcro. They were a rather respected race and used their Force sensitivity to keep order, together with the droids. Perhaps not mentioned before: they all had grey hair and a blue body suit, adapted for their power to transform. They didn’t have men and women, but were androgynous, looking like the male population from other species. There don’t have to be two of them to breed, one of them can create a replica from itself, but entire groups can create on offspring together by morphing to an energy form, not the green form they normally take, but blue, the colour of there life force (and of their suits).

The Spirion home planet had been abandoned millennia ago, because it was located in one of the galaxies purged by the Bohrok. They didn’t feel at home on any planet but still had some far away memory of it, because parents always give a part of what they know directly on to their children.

Red Sincam was part of a family that believed in direct replication: creating offspring on your own, which is also the reason he has a single last name, others have lists of hundreds of last names. Because of his family’s habit, he had the clearest recollection of  ‘home’ and after a lot of research he discovered some facts about the Matrix: everybody knew there were 2 pockets of space: one for each galaxy, they were connected by a small opening and by many wormholes, of course; but Red found out there were more of them, completely isolated from the Valcro Zone: some contained the leftovers of the unspoken threat (the Bohrok), but another one contained three more galaxies, with much more space in between them, they were controlled by the U.L.F., Valcro’s experiment. Red also learned that the home of his people was somewhere in the vast amount space of those 3 galaxies. All other information was classified. He knew their race was linked to the Matrix, so their must be a way for them to travel to this U.L.F., which he considered an unworthy occupier of their land.

The next 3 years he trained with several teams to better their transforming techniques, to last longer, to look more perfect and to try to transform the Matrix itself. He hoped to someday overthrow Jonathan and to rule himself; he was already a self-proclaimed leader, which hadn’t gone unnoticed by the Valcronian warlords, who made his leadership over his people official.

Red understood The Hypno-Crystal had some link to the Matrix too, he was able to steal it, using his trained ability to look like anyone he wanted, and tried to use it to get to the other pockets of the Matrix, but it failed.

He succeeded in convincing Jonathan it was time to experiment with attacks on the U.L.F. and that he needed inside information on their strength. The Valcronian agents were to go undercover for this reason and perhaps even find allies within.

Jonathan didn’t pay much further attention to it at that moment, he was too worried about the disappearance of the Hypno-Crystal.

The Agents weren’t discovered by the U.L.F. and created a secret base inside the Mother Asteroid: the largest asteroid of the Spacelands, around which many habited asteroids rotated.

They observed and infiltrated close to important people of the Federation, but were wondered by an event that didn’t take place in the dictatorial lands of the Valcro Zone: an election. The great election of July 4994 came closer every day and everybody wondered if there would be a great shift in power from the progressive coalitions to the conservatists, who opposed further exploration of space because of several accidents that had happened the last decennium. The leader of this group was called Jean-Luc Sharkthoot.

Part 2: The Powers of the Crystal

The Agents knew if the Federation’s explorations would come to a halt, they could search through space unhindered, so they set up a plan to use the mind controlling powers of the Hypno-Crystal to make certain people support Sharkthoot, including King Blake Oz. The people of the U.L.F. all liked their king and would follow him because they believed he was very wise. Blake had been king for a long time now, in 61 years he would give his place to his son Alex. He was known for his friendship with Emmett Tron: the prime minister, a socialist, a great Jedi, and leader of the M-Trons. It was quite a shock when King Blake announced he wanted a change in leadership, to go back to old values. But the people didn’t get suspicious, they thought friendship and politics should be kept apart; Sharkthoot himself was married to a very progressive woman: Anita Ice, Vice president of Ice, inc.: the greatest company in charge of research and exploration. That relationship was on the verge of a divorce, because if Sharkthoot was to become prime minister, Anita’s company would have to fire a lot of employees.

One night, some undercover Agents were carrying the crystal to the house of Emmett Tron, to make him step back in the elections, but when they saw Sharkthoot, they got a better idea: they would use it to get Sharkthoot to join him; they stepped up to him and started to talk, but he seemed rather resilient to the effects and called the Space Police. The two Agents fled the scene by transforming into their green energy forms, the people on the street believed them to be some kind of ghosts and went into shock. Sharkthoot was drawn to the power of the Hypno Crystal, which lay in front of him and picked it up before anyone noticed it and took it back to his mansion.

That evening, he made a speech on Holo-television about how they would be invaded by some alien race that wouldn’t have come after them if they hadn’t explored so much space, and so on. But he was growing more and more evil, because of the influence of the crystal. He got the brilliant idea to cause a large accident on an Ice mining colony in a remote sector of space, which would win him a lot of votes.

Part 3: The Accident

Near the exit of the wormhole to the second galaxy of the U.L.F., there was planet rich in energy crystals, called “Braal V” and dubbed “the breathless planet”, because of the poisonous gasses on the surface, but there was breathable air in the many underground tunnels, kept there by a force field that also stabilized some of the rock structures and lava flows. The miners were a part of the energy department of Ice, they called themselves the “Rock Raiders”. They processed the crystals on the planet itself and then shipped them to energy factories in the Spacelands, where they used the unique magnetic properties for an advanced form of nuclear fusion, creating large amounts of clean energy.

Sharkthoot was thinking of several ways to sabotage the safety systems. His personal researchers informed him about some strange patterns inside the Crystal he had found, so he thought he could hide it on the planet, alert the strange aliens to its presence and blame the accident on them. He would then make it a point if he got elected, to stop the pointless exploration of space and concentrate resources on better technology for defence: like shielding and weapons.

Everything was set in motion, he only had to find a way to contact the aliens. He let his personal bodyguard and close friend Jango Fett search for them. The Agents had infiltrated the U.L.F. for over a year now, so Jango had no problems finding enough strange stories about green ghosts, stories that nobody had believed. They all pointed him to the mother asteroid. Some more research revealed energy signals from beneath the surface. Sharkthoot and Jango made contact with the Valcronian Agents and promised them complete access to all U.L.F. data, if they’d help him become the next prime minister. He also told them the location of their lost crystal: Braal V. They were so hasty to retrieve the Hypno Crystal that they didn’t see it was a trap. The Agents beamed it of the planet, but it was linked to the shields. A large portion of underground tunnels quickly decompressed and collapsed. Rocks and deadly lava came over hundreds of miners. In the largest accident ever in the history of the U.L.F., 1283 Rock Raiders died in what was basically an election stunt. A lot of people listened to Sharkthoot’s speech that evening and it seemed he was going to win.

Part 4: The Elections

Sharkthoot made sure all stories about these “evil spirits”, true or false, made it to the news, reassuring his lead on Emmett Tron. But there were rumours about corruption, people being bribed and even hypnotised to publicly announce their trust in Sharkthoot. These tales were brought to the daylight by Tron’s campaign leader: Frank Ice, brother of Anita and Timothy and father of John. Anita’s wedding with Sharkthoot suffered much stress under her brother’s leadership of the Tron campaign. But only a week before the elections, Frank disappeared. It was now uncertain which party would gain the most votes because many people accused Sharkthoot of the abduction, yet others believed he would help them against the strange aliens.

Every adult of the U.L.F. was required to vote, to make the parliament truly representative of the public. All quadrillions of votes were counted automatically. For the first time something statistically almost impossible happened: a perfect tie, they both had the exact amount of votes. Ancient laws dictated the king now had to decide the final outcome. A referendum showed the people’s trust in their king, but he was of course under the influence of the Hypno Crystal, so he chose Sharkthoot as the next prime minister.

In the next week, all further plans to explore space were halted and the otherwise lost jobs were now used to develop weapons and shields. Jean-Luc gave the Agents the information they wanted, but he wanted more in return, he wanted the Crystal again, he was getting addicted to its power. Sharkthoot wanted ultimate control over his land and got to an agreement with the Agents, they would let him use the crystal, if they could be the enforcers of his dictatorship. In exchange for his cooperation with Jonathan’s experiments, they would enlist him as an officer of Valcron. After he made sure he got full control, they would introduce him as the man who found the Hypno Crystal.

Sharkthoot announced that the U.L.F. would now work together with the aliens they first feared, to fight against the ancient threat they escaped so many centuries ago: Valcro. Therefore he would take the ultimate leadership over all military forces. In the streets, Valcronian Agents could be seen directing people to their homes after curfew. The Hypno Crystal was used to make the people believe it was for their own good, but some resisted to its power…

Part 5: The Truth

An underground resistance group, lead by Emmett Tron, sent out a duo of strong Jedi: several Jedi Masters had foreseen a powerful yet mysterious future; this assignment would be their trails to become full Jedi knights. They were John Ice and the one armed Jack Neil. They were to enter Sharkthoot’s mansion and find John’s father Frank and film everything for proof with a micro camera.

They couldn’t beam into the house because of the shielding, so they had to find another way to get inside. Sharkthoot was a conservative and wanted to stop the exploration of space, but he wasn’t against technological research. His house was located at the edge of the Capital Asteroid, where it was only 300 metres thick, his mansion actually curved around the edge for a part and his basement stuck out beneath. The house was like an underground apartment building, which was filled with labs, studying weapon and defence technology, replicators, new uses for energy crystals, genetic enhancements, and so on.

The Jedi got the idea to enter from beneath, but it would be difficult, because the huge gravity domes would constantly alter their perceptions of below and above. The domes are installed on every asteroid to make them orbit the Mother asteroid at the same rate as its own revolution, without it falling to the surface and to make sure the gravity on the habited upper side of the rotating asteroids stayed the same, the effect of a changing gravity field was now very clear around these domes, which was the cause of the difficulties. But John and Jack made it inside, their Jedi senses had helped them, and now they used it to get passed the many guards. They overpowered a Valcronian Agent that was watching security monitors and noticed that two screens were black. They decided to check these rooms.

The first of the two rooms had a lot of documents regarding some genetic tests. It seemed Sharkthoot was planning to enhance his own body. They could study them later, because everything was still being filmed. In the second room they found a secret tunnel, leading further into the asteroid, there they discovered several chambers. They could hear a discussion going on in on of them.

-It has worked Lord Sharkthoot, the extra heads are in place, but I’m afraid we’ll have to amputate a leg and a hand, so your enlarged brain gets enough blood.

-What? You told me there were races with two heads and the same size heart as us!

-Yes, but you’ve now got four heads, that’s a big difference, sir.

-I guess you’re right, but at least give me some stylish replacements and make sure you add something in my hook so I can directly link my super brain to my experimental computer. I can already feel my enhanced senses… wait a minute, there are people in the hallway, capture them immediately.

5 Agents and Jango quickly apprehended John and Jack and they were escorted deeper into the tunnel, to a holding cell. When Fett opened the door, they saw Frank, beat up and half unconscious. Frank saw his son and foolishly decided to attack Jango, who shot the man. John got angry about this and used the Force to knock his oppressors against the walls and to get his lightsabre back. He freed himself and Jack and used a special transporter device, which was made to escape once they’d found Frank. When they were on the surface again, Jack took the recorded data with him and showed it to his Space Police superiors.

The next day Sharkthoot held a speech to explain his new appearance, but about a hundred police officers were ready to arrest him for first degree murder and election fraud. But then a vortex opened in the sky and three ships came through: two saucers and a longer ship. They all sprouted the same symbol: the Valcronian “V”.

The ships had loud speakers and a voice shouted that the U.L.F. was now part of Valcron, under the rule of the great Jonathan Valcro. The vessels started their bombardment, but the shields of the Capital Asteroid deflected all of it. Then the large defence towers fired at the ships and they fled back through the vortex. The people in the streets sheered and Sharkthoot explained that this attack was repelled because he had ordered the research into shielding and weapons. The Space Police officers couldn’t arrest Sharkthoot now, because he had too much support.

That night, Sharkthoot sent a message to Valcro, thanking him for the fake attack. Jonathan reminded him that he could destroy them very easily, but he found it more fun to give them false hope, before delivering a hard and final blow. Jonathan would send several android spies, made to look completely Human or Calamarian.

Over the next month Sharkthoot enlarged his military grip on the Federation, all who dared to question his commands were thrown in jail, and even people who expressed concerns about his rule suddenly disappeared.

Part 6: The Computer Virus

Sharkthoot was using the Hypno Crystal and his own mind to create a complex computer program. But the crystal made it connect with the Matrix! The whole thing overloaded and the malfunction created a virus in the Matrix, an intelligent virus. It looked like a bald human in white clothes, with the computer’s control panel in his chest. On his face he had a small microphone and ear set. It attacked the Agents and disabled them because he could feel their connection to the Matrix, like his own. It quickly escaped the mansion and flew above the main streets of the capital. In a loud voice, even louder than the speakers of the Valcronian ships that had attacked them, it started a speech:

-I am the Computer Virus; I was made through a malfunction of one of Sharkthoot’s secret experiments and know everything he knows. He fooled you all: he’s using a special hypnotic crystal to keep you under control, he used it to win the elections and he’s actually a pawn of Valcro, so are these Agents.

Sharkthoot just left his mansion when he was met by an angry mob. The organisations who worked with the resistance knew this was their time; they overpowered Sharkthoot and Jango. The Valcronian Agents had already fled after the virus’s speech.

The Computer Virus now proclaimed himself as ruler of the Lego Federation, but then King Oz came out of the Royal Castle and offered a man to man fight.

The two were powerful in the Force and their battle was hard. In the end King Oz won and the Virus was led away together with Sharkthoot and Jango. The people shouted “long live King Blake Oz”, but the King stepped forward and said he would step aside as King, in favour of his son Alex. As a Jedi he should have been more resilient to the Crystal and he thought it was his fault all of this had happened and felt he couldn’t keep his title of monarch. He stated a last request: that the future kings have absolutely no more political powers and that a function of president should be created to make sure the premier wouldn’t have too much power.

Then Sharkthoot held a plea to the people in general and mainly to Anita:

-I am still your elected Prime Minister, you are all guilty of treason, my wife will fight to get me free.

-No Jean-Luc, I’m divorcing you. You killed my brother and betrayed the Federation, how could you ever think I’d still love you after all you’ve done? I know your ship has a device to travel to that Valcro Zone you’ve been talking about, I’m taking it and I’ll go to Coruscant. The eldest members of our nation told me it was a beautiful planet and you told me it was still free, I’m taking our dog, Blacky, with me.

-If that is your reply, I’ll say “Long live Valcron, may it destroy the U.L.F.”.

After his speech, Sharkthoot, Jango and the Virus were taken to a Space Police prison. Anita was given permission to travel to the Valcro Zone and was asked to search for any resistance cell against the reigning dictators.

The Virus had a trick up his sleeve: he could transport himself with his mind! He escaped to the cave where the Agents were hiding and offered his help to them. The Valcronian Agents called the virus an idiot for being so direct and ruining their plans, but accepted the Virus’s help, because they had to either get Jango and Sharkthoot out of jail, or kill them, because they knew too much about Valcron.

Part 7: Trial & Punishment

A temporary government would rule the U.L.F. until after Sharkthoot’s and Jango’s trial. After about three months, they would have to appear in the supreme court before Judge Paige Zoblue, who planned on making this her last trial before running for Minister of Science and Environment, a post once held by both her father Rick and her grandfather Anton; a line only interrupted by members of the Ice family and her cousin Bert as Minister of Environment, when she decided not to go into politics directly.

The reason it would take so long for the trial to start, was because the jury had been selected out of people from all over the quite large Federation. During this time, the Virus and the Valcronian Agents came up with a plan to set Jango and Jean-Luc free: Simon Bicky: one of Sharkthoot’s former allies who had fled together with the virus, would infiltrate the courthouse as the local chef. Bicky had officially been Sharkthoot’s private cook, but while his cuisine was quite refined he also was an expert at technology, secretly supervising may of the experiments in Sharkthoot’s mansion.
Simon would be able to put a microscopic transmitter inside Jean-Luc’s and Jango’s food, which would automatically settle itself in their appendix, after which a switch could be activated to beam them out at an appropriate time.
(incomplete)
The Conspiracy of False War
This story could be considered part of the Story of Luke, but isn’t added to it because it would be an anti-climax after the battle with the Master. It will also contain several back stories and as a result will not be chronological. It might not all seem to fit together; in fact this chapter can be seen as a collection of short stories, only held together by the plot of the conspiracy of false war and the return of Nergal. It can also be viewed as a prelude to the Return of Chaos, because several important plotlines and themes are introduced here.
Part 1: Eternal Peace Interrupted
T

his story takes place only a few years after the defeat of the Master of Evil. The New Republic was expanding into the Saiyan Galaxy and issues were resolved quickly. Luke represented the Jedi in the Senate, John was serving his third term as Vice President of the New Republic, under Ken Lorren and Jack represented the Space Police in the Senate. Everything was going very well, the Eternal Peace was beginning to take shape. There was one more bump in the road however, because some were beginning to get bored, fearing that they would loose their jobs if there was peace…
It was September 5059 ACM and the three amigos were on route from Coruscant to New Valcro Prime to celebrate the national holiday with their family, but they were halted by a distress signal; but when they came to its origin, there was nothing. Suddenly a vortex opened in front of them and a ship came out, they put its transmission on their view screens and the pilot, who looked like a cross between Jonathan Valcro and John’s late father Frank, appeared.
He said that he was from twenty thousand years into the future and that the universe was coming to an end, unless Luke would come to help them.

He told them his name was John Valcro, the last of the Jedi, the last relative of the Valcro family and the last with any Saiyan genes. In fact he was also one of the last people with human genes. The entire population of the universe had been reduced to a few thousand, divided into two groups: those that wanted to keep the universe and pirates that didn’t care that the cosmos was collapsing.
The reason for this apocalypse had started in these times, when some displeased members of different kinds of military and similar organisations found ancient weapons that could create super-massive black-holes with the Hypno Crystal. After the permanent death of the 3 amigos, the energy of the messenger, and also of the Master was dispersed through the universe. This gave a special boost to the Hypno Crystal, and the weapons were activated, but its consequences were greater than anyone could have ever predicted.

John Valcro wanted Luke to come restore order in his timeline, he would be brought back at the exact same time as they would leave, then they would all search for the black hole generators of this changed timeline and disable them; John’s shields would make it possible for him to return to his own dimension, while the amigo’s future would be changed.
John Valcro explained that in the future, everybody could sense the Force, because it was like a fire in a dark night. Stars were very rare, planets even more; life: plants, animals, intelligent people; all of it was a rare sight. The species that was still around the most were the Spirion, because of their special abilities.

John Valcro’s plea was very convincing and Luke decided to join him in his struggle. He said goodbye and went through the temporal vortex. When it closed, John and Jack expected it to open again, they waited for ten minutes, then an hour, and after half a day they knew that something was terribly wrong…

Travelling to the future was impossible with current technology; it could only be done when the Matrix was still active. The circles had been destroyed forever and the knowledge of their creation was removed too, to avoid any kind of malpractice. A temporal vortex was possible, but it would be completely unstable.

A recent symposium of the progress of the study of the ancient Mumifar technology of Palpatine’s ship suggested that modern knowledge of temporal phenomenon combined with the ancient technology could result in controlled time-travel.
John and Jack decided to pay a visit to the ship, and do anything they could to help.

Luke arrived with his descendant in the future, in their base inside an inhabitable asteroid (there was nothing habitable left in the universe) but John Valcro couldn’t give him a tour yet, because they had found the site of the last, inactive black hole generator, which could help them stop the current ones. He asked Luke to help retrieve it, in case any pirates would show up. Luke was filled with sadness when their ship went into space; he could count three stars, nothing more…
Part 2: History of the Avatars

In the time before time there was only good and evil. The Master of Evil was defeated by the Messenger and the Universe was created. The Master’s essence was trapped in a staff which brought evil into the young universe. This created a great unbalance, culminating in the return of the Master. In the end the Messenger returned also and defeated the Master, creating the eternal peace.

This is the story of good and evil; Ashgar and Piranos; Jedi and Sith; the Messenger and the Master; black and white. But such short summary leaves out the many shades of grey. The staff was not the true source of evil, it merely drew out all that was bad in every form of life, it created the dark side of the Force. The origin of good and evil can be found in every being, every soul, in free will itself. Choice is what creates good and evil. The goal of evil is to destroy that choice, to turn free will into blind fate, into hate and pure obedience. That is why evil destroys what it creates and why the Master was ultimately destroyed.

Intelligent life was created through choice. Good held all souls beyond space and time; eternal, yet timeless. Many of them, if not all, chose to live several lives during the many eras of the universe. Each time starting with no recollection of their other experiences, only a subconscious feeling, until they rejoined what was soon known as the afterlife. Many fell to the dark side in one life or another, but were cleansed of their evil. There were some however whose urges for the darker parts of live made them choose hiding in the underworld, where souls were send to be cleansed. This group had no leader, but they worked together to try and resurrect the Messenger. Eventually the wars of the living world and the use of the Staff by mortals awakened him from his slumber and he created the horseman of chaos, who defied him and tried to obtain the Staff for his own use. He was captured in a device in which time was stopped, trapping him forever, only to be released near the new battle of the Master and the Messenger. This horseman was forgotten, but soon 4 new, less powerful ones were created, send out to enhance evil and lure out the powers of the Staff.

Before the creation of any horseman, the Good of the afterlife created the Éoleff to watch over the evolution of evil, and although it was one of them who stopped Chaos, ultimately they failed.

All souls lived beyond time and had foreseen it, though the ultimate outcome was still unclear, because the timeline itself was changeable, through choice. Good refused to intervene directly. Those who gained access to divine powers beyond their plane, were given the status of deity, to watch over certain aspects of the living world. The only known examples from recent history are the Toa, who watched over the elements; but they too were not immortal, they had been born, like any other soul in this plane, except those send out by evil. And although they interacted with the afterlife, eventually they would die and return to them.

And it was on this matter that some disagreed. Within the union of Good, several voices wanted to travel to the world of the living intact. They wished for their unlimited powers, and unlimited knowledge, so they could stop evil from doing harm, to stop the Master from creating his horsemen, and to stop the Fall of the Éoleff before I even began. They were forbidden such actions, but proceeded anyway, because they had the choice…

Their story takes place after the Spirion turn their back to space travel and also after the creation of the Éoleff, which happens around the same time, though the dates of these events are disputable.

Many souls came to the land of the living, but they had to take the form of mortal beings to interact with it. These incarnations are known as the Avatars of the Gods. The name God and Avatar became interchangeable later. To differentiate them from the “legal” deities, the name Avatar will be used, yet God will be used when describing their internal hierarchy.

Once they adapted themselves to this world, they came in contact with emotions they hadn’t felt before. Of course they had feelings in the afterlife, but none of them had experienced life yet, and they were overcome by the sheer volume of emotion. They were also quickly influenced by the Staff. Soon they tried to gain power by revealing themselves to the countless civilizations inhabiting the universe. The people revered the Avatars and they quickly became part of the mythology from various races, who saw the Avatars as their creators.

They saw themselves as Ultimate Gods, almost forgetting about their mission to stop evil. Almost, but not completely. They always had a longing to find the Staff; but the desire to destroy it had turned into another yearning for power, wanting it for themselves.

The Avatars started a massive war, searching for the Staff, each wanting it exclusively. They had no means of re-entering the afterlife, but since Limbo and the underworld were not considered part of the Heavens, defeated Avatars where cast into Hell, where they were stripped from their powers and cleansed, like any other soul. Though some souls chose to join those who were hoping to resurrect the Master.

From the hundreds of Avatars that had come to the land of the living, only 19 survived the war, each of them obtaining the functions and physical powers of those they had defeated.

These Avatars realised they could only find the Staff if they worked together, only in the end would they fight over who would wield it. Ninkasi had the power to satisfy desire, while Nusku was a god of fire and light, if they combined these strengths, together with those of the others, it would lead them to the Staff.

It took them eons, but eventually they located the evil artefact on a desolate world, where a new struggle occurred. The sinister Avatar Nergal defeated Ereshkigal, who had powers over the underworld and Nusku, who had power over fire. Combined with his own powers of darkness, Nergal became the most powerful among the remaining 5 Avatars, and the others realised that one would have too much power, and combined with the Staff, it could mean the end of the universe. They realised they had made horrible mistakes, but were afraid to ask the souls of the Heavens to forgive them. Nergal stood by the rules and wouldn’t take the Staff before killing his brothers and sisters, so the other Avatars fled. They tried to lend in with several civilisations, but their immortality made it impossible.

After several millennia, some of them fell in love with each other and created divine offspring. These new Avatars had the unlimited powers of their parents, but not their ultimate knowledge, because they were souls from the Heavens, stripped from their former knowledge. These lesser Gods would certainly be no match for Nergal, so Asaruludu used his powers of protection to shield their existence from their enemy, but using his powers put him in the open and he was discovered.

Their fight would be more intense than the mortal plane could handle, and Nergal used his powers to bring them to the underworld, which would also make it easier for him to cast Asaruludu down into Hell. But by this time the avatars that had remained there, had united the worshippers of the Master. Although they couldn’t return to the land of the living, they were still very powerful in the underworld. These fallen Avatars killed Asaruludu, but couldn’t harm Nergal, because he had powers over this realm. Instead, with the powers gained from the defeated god, who was now in Limbo, rather than the underworld, they could protect themselves from the demon Avatar and locked him away in the final circle before Hell’s centre, where the soul of the Master was captured. With his last strength, Nergal set fire to Hell, forever linking the element to the underworld. Makuta, leader of the underworld hadn’t obtained Nergal’s powers, but could “borrow” them to escape to the mortal plane, where he wanted to take the Staff to take over the Heavens. The last Avatars awaited them and battled Makuta. He defeated Ninkasi, obtaining the power to satisfy desires and also Ningal, who possessed an even greater power of knowledge. Combining these powers, he sensed that by now the remaining gods only wanted to live out a normal life. Makuta granted that wish and turned them into mortal beings, erasing their memory and their powers.

Before he could grab the Staff, he was greeted by the numerous children of the Avatars, reminding him of the rules that he had to defeat all of them. Makuta rejecting their claims of being Avatars, because they had not chosen to leave the Heavens with their knowledge intact. Their powers were merely inherited from their parents and they would be easily defeated. He released the former Avatars from Hell, together with their new allies. The children of the avatars were overwhelmed and destroyed. Makuta took the Staff and created a tower to reach the portals of the Heavens.

But Éorer, mother of the Éoleff, the watchers of the Universe, returned to the heavens to throw Makuta back into Hell, the Staff flying back into the living world. The sun of the Éoleff, which could be considered her Avatar, blew up, sending her race to their destiny.

Makuta’s body was taken from him, ending his function as Avatar, but is powers made him able to lure people into selling their souls to him, in return for their greatest desire.

This way he and his allies, who had been stripped from their bodies and Avatar status, regained physical form through Bebi, who constructed bodies for them as part of his Faustian deal. They were no Avatars now, but Demons; their new attempt at taking over the afterlife was almost successful, but the messenger had already awoken again and defeated Makuta and his Anti-Toa. Eventually he defeated the Horsemen and together with his friends, the Master of Evil.

But the Eternal Peace, predicted in ancient texts does not account for actions of the Avatars, because there is still one of them, only one: Nergal, who’s still captured in Hell, but if released, there would be no evil left to challenge his rule…

Part 3: Similarities
John and Jack arrived at Universia, where the ship had been brought for study by the many scientists of the universities. Blacktron and Ice energy officers were carefully investigating power couplings, together with several Calamarian scientists, while guards were watching the entrances. As a former Blacktron and a leader of Ice, Jack and John could converse on the team’s research; but the two Jedi sensed something was wrong. They noticed that the guards and Calamarian scientists had a symbol on their uniforms that looked exactly like one on John Valcro’s clothes. When a Calamarian girl said she would bring data and pieces of the hull to Jonola for further analysis, John and Jack decided to follow her, cloaked of course.
She didn’t head for Jonola at all; her course would lead her straight to Nar Shadaa!

Luke and his descendant arrived at their location, another asteroid. Inside was a temple with high pillars, and in the middle stood three Spirion investigating what looked like a vault. The black hole technology was of Spirion origin, but they had changed too much for the vault to recognise them as such. The only way to open it was by force and although they could all use the Force, Luke was the only one who’d be able to do it. Right before he was about to fire a precise blast at the lock, he sensed strange emotions from his heir and the Spirion. An obscure pleasure, as if they had tricked someone. Luke realised he didn’t know if he could trust them, perhaps they were the ones responsible for the massive destructions. Before he could give it any further consideration, they were attacked by a group of pirates. They demanded that Luke continued opening the vault, so they could use the weapon themselves; their ship would blow up the asteroid if Luke would try to attack them. Luke started firing at the lock, which was made from some kind of black metal alloy, making it more resilient against Force attacks. The lock started to melt, but Luke felt the exact same emotions emanating from the pirates as the Spirion and John Valcro; he was now sure they were all deceiving him, but decided to play along for now.
The girl landed on Nar Shadaa, dropped of her cargo, loaded on a new shipment and left again. John decided to stay on Nar Shadaa to investigate the area, while Jack would keep following the girl. John was walking in the middle of the Spirion quarter and noticed the cargo being hauled into a local museum. He accessed some data via his ship, which said this was “the Spirion Historical Archive, a government-funded museum in the cleaner parts of Nar Shadaa, which is visited by thousands every day”. The description didn’t really match what he was seeing, this was clearly a more decaying neighbourhood and the museum had a large sign that said “permanently closed”. John was still cloaked and decided to break into the museum, which unfortunately triggered an alarm. He was immediately surrounded by several layers of shields; such strong shielding was actually forbidden for private use, as was technology to detect cloaking devices. Several Spirion walked towards him and opened the cargo that was standing next to him. inside was what looked like a giant crown. They explained to John that it was the crown of Javier, a former user of the Staff. John was put in the middle of the crown, while the Spirion fired energy at its points. John tried to blast his way out of it, but the crown only absorbed his energy; in fact he could even feel the rest of his energy being drained by the relic. The Spirion put John, who seemed to have lost his ability to use the Force, inside a shielded cage. He’d still be able to access the powers he had received from the afterlife, but he was forbidden to use them.
Jack was still following the girl, who landed on asteroid. He observed as someone dressed in a similar uniform as John Valcro came out of a hidden entrance. The man opened the cargo and Jack could scan what was inside: mostly food and weapons. It was all beamed inside the asteroid and the girl wanted to leave again, when Jack decloaked his ship and demanded an explanation. A moment later, however, two stronger M-Tron ships decloaked next to him and told him to surrender. Jack knew he couldn’t defeat them and was captured by the two M-Tron Agents and the mysterious Calamarians. Jack explained to the agents that what they were doing was treason, but without speaking, they put him in the holding cell in one of their ships, transporting him back to Nar Shadaa, where the same thing happened to him as John. He was put in a cage next to his husband.
Luke had now almost completely melted the lock of the vault and used the Force to try and create cracks in the vault’s door. The entrance started to fall apart and Luke guided the dropping parts into everybody around him, knocking them unconscious. The vault was now open, but instead of looking inside, he was watching the pirates and his descendant transform into Spirion! This wasn’t the future at all, they had simply used him to get inside the vault, but when he walked inside, a trap door shut behind him. The walls of the vault were apparently only a projection as he found himself inside a shielded cage, with several automatic weapons pointed at him. A friend of Luke walked towards him and told him they only needed to wait for the freighter with the crown…
Part 4: The Shades of Grey

In the 423rd year of Éolegg Mavius the Green, when both Jedi and Sith still held on to their own dogmatic views of the Force, there was a Human Lady of the Sith, named Darth Mirna. She had been given the title after killing her master, who had conspired against the leaders of the exiled Sith.
Hunted by her former master’s allies, she concealed anything that would reveal herself as a Sith and fled to Earth. Her longing to use the Force would quickly expose her and she was arrested by a Human Jedi, named Torus Nelt, for trying to kill several senators.

-Where are you taking me, Jedi?


-Back to the temple, we’ll question you and deprogram you from your Sith ideology.


-You think I was brainwashed into using the dark side?

-No, but you will soon realise our way is better. Your life has been on of treachery, of looking only after yourself by exploiting others.

-You know nothing of our ways. We may have some flawed ideas, but what makes you think you are any better?

-I’ve devoted my life to serving the Force, to making life better for everyone.

-Then we aren’t so different. We enforce the will of the Force unto the people, for their own good. Those who oppose that are a threat to the balance of the Force, and should be killed, like my former master, who conspired against the Supreme Lords. Now I’m hiding from his allies.
-So the Force guided you to kill your master?

-I used the Force to kill him and succeeded, even though he was much more powerful than me, clearly the Force was at my side that day.

-By your seasoning, if I would kill you, you would accept your fate, because the force would agree with me?

-Of course not, you’re a Jedi; you listen to the Force and use the Force, but you refuse to make others listen to it. You could never have the Force at your side. If you’d manage to kill me, it would only be because you are stronger than me.

-Has it never occurred to you that you might have been more powerful than your master, but that he wanted you to think you were weak, because he feared you? The Sith rule through fear, but at the same time also fear that they might loose their power. Their constant paranoia and other emotions cloud them from the true will of the Force.
-If you’re so sure what the true will of the Force is, why don’t you enforce it?

-That would make us no better than you. We believe in free will, instead of blind obedience, we don’t kill those with different views, like you were planning to kill those senators.

-I’ve read there minds, they’re involved in several frauds, keeping back important food transports to a primitive planet that has suffered an ecological disaster.

-So now you suddenly care about such people?

-Of course, such people have to fight to stay alive and to keep their group save. It’s the most primitive form of following the will of the Force.

-I think your masters would enjoy seeing those people suffer, that’s what the dark side is all about.

-I’m sorry that you’re so blind that you can’t see beyond our past sins.

-And I’m sorry you can’t see what monsters your masters really are; that ecological disaster was caused by the Sith. There was an incident at the border. Sith fighters shot down a capital ship in orbit, its crash poisoned the atmosphere.
-So a Republic ship ventured too close to our border and poisoned the planet’s atmosphere, how is that our fault? I’m sure if the planet had been on our side of the border, we would have instantly helped those people, without the long time it takes for amendments to get through your senate.

-It is pointless to keep up this debate; we’ve arrived at the temple.

Though Earth was a city-planet, it had not drained or built over its oceans, because they had called their world “the blue planet” since the ancient times when Humans first started exploring space. The Jedi temple was overlooking one of these oceans; it had been built on the most western point of a continent named Africa.
(incomplete)
Mirna talked to the Jedi: “There’s a fable we Sith tell to our children: There once was a young boy who found out he could use the Force. He addressed a Jedi he saw on the street and asked him the way to the temple. The Jedi master asked the boy why he wanted to go there and the child eagerly replied that he wanted to become a Jedi. In a swift move the Jedi took out his lightsabre and cut the boy across the chest. “Why do you kill me?”, asked the boy, “I was so enthusiastic to become like you”. “That’s the problem”, replied the Jedi, “Your emotions would’ve led to the dark side, so its better to kill you now, before you hurt someone”.”
(incomplete)
Part 5: The Return of Nergal
John and Jack were still caged on Nar Shadaa, unable to use the Force. Jack would also be able to access his powers from beyond, which he had gotten from the Master, but had to obey the same rules as John. They suddenly got a brilliant idea: they could make someone else use their powers for them. Jack’s powers were still linked to the Horsemen, who were now in the underworld, powerless. Jack could summon them and force them to open their cages.

The Horsemen felt Jack calling out to them, but Chaos managed to keep them there. They had received some of Jack’s power and started planning a way to return to the world of the living. They figured that without the knowledge of Them, they couldn’t do anything, they needed someone like Makuta to guide them, a fallen angel, an Avatar. They realised that because Makuta had been defeated by someone who wasn’t an Avatar, his powers would have to go back to those from who had received them. The only one who’d be powerful enough to become a leader of evil was obviously Nergal, who was still imprisoned near the centre of Hell. technically, Makuta had only been able to tap into Nergal’s powers, who hadn’t been killed, but only defeated. A true Avatar would be more powerful than the Master or Makuta had ever been, because he was in direct contact with the afterlife. The Horsemen knew they couldn’t predict what would happen, but that was exactly what Chaos wanted. They travelled around the inner circle of Hell; at one point, where the four paths crossed each other, stood the ruins of Makuta’s castle. At the other side of the sea of fire, the paths crossed each other too, where there was a small altar between four large obelisks. The five horsemen stood around the altar, chanting the scriptures written on the obelisks. They lit a small fire on the altar, which quickly turned into a large pillar of light. The flames below started to gather underneath them, fuelling the fiery pillar, until only a scorched wasteland remained. The four paths started to crumble and fall into the desert below as the fire started to form a humanoid body: Nergal was free! His avatar had a black costume with a shiny metallic shield on his chest, red gloves and a black cape. His face was human-like, with strong locks, sideburns and a moustache of flaming red hair. The Horsemen asked Nergal to lead them, but he explained that since the Staff had been destroyed, it had no power over him anymore; he would not help them and left them in the wasteland, unable to do anything, while Nergal travelled back to the living world.

Jonathan Valcro was training together with Insectoz on New Valcro Prime, trying to achieve the higher Super Saiyan level through deep meditation, when he sensed something was very wrong. He went to the tower to check if the three amigos had already arrived. When he was told nobody knew where they were exactly, Johnny took his own ship to search for them.
Part 6: The Dark and Easy Path
There once was a young Rodian Jedi student, eager to learn all there is to know about the Force, both light and dark. He wanted to know how the dark side worked, so he could avoid it, but his masters forbade him access to those secret techniques, because the lure of the dark side was strong, especially to those who still had much to learn. One of the masters saw that the student was very frustrated and approached him, he would teach him the forbidden techniques, but only after the young Jedi had finished three tasks. He had to bring 3 items to prove he had completed them. First, he had to destroy the crime syndicate near the southern coffee fields on Lavora and bring back a sack of coffee beans. Secondly, he had to track down and arrest or kill a Sith spy on Cersei and take his red lightsabre. Thirdly, he had to visit the current Éolegg, Tolfas the Green, on Valinéoleffas, ask him where he had gotten his unique lightsabre crystals and find one himself, the same way the Éolegg had.
He immediately set of to Lavora and started spying on the criminals, to find a way to bring their business to an end, but he soon realised they were too numerous to defeat and decided to infiltrate the group. After a few days he had gained some prestige among the gangsters by using his Force powers. They trusted him enough to let him handle the shipping of coffee on his own. The young Jedi realised he didn’t have to dismantle the crime organization, he could simply take a sack of beans. Above the planet, he beamed himself and one of the sacks from his cargo ship onto his personal ship, which was parked in orbit. He destroyed the ship and with it the proof of his theft.
He then flew to Cersei and asked the local Jedi for their notes of the search for the Sith spy. After some extensive studying he managed to find him and wondered why the others had never come this close, but his realisation came too late, because he had walked into a trap and was captured by the Sith. The student made a deal with the spy: in exchange for his lightsabre, he would say he had killed and vaporized him. the Sith agreed to the deal, gave the young Jedi the weapon and let him go.
There was only one task left and the student could feel his hopes rising to learn the dark techniques. Tolfas told him that he once was on a planet near Sith space, when he was attacked by several vicious beasts, evolved through the ancient dark taint that was present on the planet. He had to kill the monsters and found a crystal in the belly of each beast, which he could use in his lightsabre; it resulted in a unique silver colour of the beam. He kept the one which produced the best beam in his own sabre and the others were on display in the museum of the planet’s Jedi temple. Tolfas gave the student the coordinates for the planet and returned to his office. The Rodian never even considered fighting the dangerous animals; instead he broke into the museum during the night and through the Force, avoided being discovered. He stole one of the silver crystals and replaced it with a synthetic replica.
He returned to Rodia and showed his master the beans, the sabre and the crystal and asked to be instructed on the forbidden techniques. The master had replied he had not much more to learn: the young Jedi had worked with criminals, let a dangerous murderer escape, had stolen a priceless artefact, all by using the Force, its dark side, to be exact. He had chosen the quick and easy path: the dark path.

The student realised his mistakes and the lure of the dark side. He apologized to the master and continued with his training.
Part 7: Conspiracy Revealed

Jonathan arrived on Universia, the last known location of John and Jack. The scientists working on the ancient ship explained they had been looking for a way to travel to the future, where allegedly Luke had gone to save to universe again. They had left abruptly.
Johnny knew only official New Republic ships were allowed to use transwarp engines, which meant he could trace the unique ion trail of their exhaust. This track would almost have been faded completely, so he had to work fast. The local scientists helped him calibrate his ship’s tracking sensors to follow the trail, but it appeared it would fade quicker than Jonathan’s ship could fly. He wasted no time and took his ship into orbit.
Jonathan diverted almost all of his ship’s energy to the engines, putting them under far greater stress than had ever been intended. It is quite possible this overdrive resulted into a record speed for his type of engine. He managed to keep track of the ion trace, but unfortunately his engines burned out completely, limiting him to sub-light speeds. Because he had used up nearly all of his ship’s energy, he couldn’t send out a distress call. He managed to manoeuvre himself to a nearby asteroid, but by the time the auto-repair systems were finished with his engines, the trail would have vanished completely…
Luke had been captured and was now placed inside the crown. The device didn’t seem to have any effect on Luke, but his attacks didn’t harm the artefact either. Luke transformed into the second stage of the Super Saiyan; the rays of blue electricity hit the crown’s force field like a plasma lamp. He soon realised he couldn’t escape and started yelling to his former friend:
-This is treason! You will loose your job and good reputation. How can betray the Republic like this?

-I’m not betraying the Republic, I’m saving it! Millions of people will loose their job if I don’t risk mine.

-What the Sith are you talking about?

-We won the war, we’re at peace. What do you think will happen when Ice inc. goes back to simple research? When most of the Space Police becomes obsolete. When all those shipyards and weapons factories become useless. When all those Resistance members realise there’s nothing to resist against.

-When the M-Tron become unnecessary because of the many Jedi.
-Exactly, our jobs are endangered too! All those people will become unemployed. The Republic will crumble. Even if we manage to overcome that crisis, what do you think will happen when we encounter new enemies, new threats? We won’t be able to cope with them. History had proven time and again that a nation at peace, without a clear need for military forces cannot survive when it is attacked.

-But why capture me, what part do I play I your scheme?

-You and your friends will disappear, the first act of aggression by an unknown force. we will have a false war, people will stay employed and the economy will remain stable.

-The people aren’t dumb, when they realise there’s nobody to fight, they’ll discover your little conspiracy.

-This conspiracy isn’t as little as you might think, several important people are involved, as well as many others; we’ll be able to maintain the illusion.

-People will die for nothing if you continue this charade!

-People will die for the stability of the Republic.

-I understand your motives, but do you realise what will happen if this gets out, if the people ever discover the truth; then you’ll have your crisis. People will loose their trust and respect for the government, and with good reasons.
-Jedi like you always want to follow your non-aggressive path of the light side.

-If that’s what you think about Jedi, I understand why you never became one, despite having the strength.

-Insulting me won’t get you out of here, so you better get comfortable, you’re going to be here for a long time!

-How do I know it’s really you; you could be another Spirion.

-I think you have sensed enough of them here to know I’m not.

Jonathan’s luck seemed to have returned; a cargo ship had noticed him and landed on the asteroid. A girl walked to him, but Jonathan suddenly attacked her.

-I’ve worked with enough Spirion to sense one.

The unconscious girl transformed back into his original form and was captured. Valcro used the Spirion’s ship to contact the Space police on Universia, which was still the nearest planet. About half an hour later, officer Femke Darkner appeared. Jonathan explained to her what had happened and told her he sensed this Spirion had something to do with the disappearance of the three amigos. Femke took Jonathan and the captured Spirion aboard her ship and they travelled to Femke’s father Sam, an important M-Tron and great-grandson of Emmett Tron. He’d be able to put several M-Tron on the case and properly question the Spirion. The trip would be short, because he was investigating a newly discovered abandoned asteroid base near Nar Shadaa.
After arriving, Sam Darkner promised his full cooperation and took the Spirion to another room. Femke left, but Jonathan decided to stay behind, cloaked, because he felt something was out of place.

While taking an elevator, Sam released him from his cuffs.

-Thank you sir; Neil and Ice are safely in our custody.


-Good, I’ve got Luke Valcro downstairs…
Part 8: The Wizard’s Teachings

After the Sirian Wars, the Bohrok’s invasion and the Empire’s purges, the orthodox Jedi view of the light and dark sides of the Force had completely changed, proven by this conversation of Wizard Oz and his pupils James Tron and Lady Ice:

Oz: “You must trust your feelings.”

Tron: “But Jedi should let go of their emotions, they cloud our vision.”

Oz: “Sometimes emotions can make us stronger, give us focus, like anger or fear.”

Ice: “Anger and fear are paths to the dark side; fear can paralyze us during battle or make us do irrational acts.”

Oz: “Yet it is fear that warns us from danger and irrational acts. You must learn to use emotions; if they are kept inside, they shall poison you.”

Tron: “What is the difference then, between how Sith draw their strength and how Jedi do it?”

Oz: “There is no difference, only the Force. You must control your emotions, yet let them guide you, the same applies to the Force, they are interconnected.”

Tron: “Then I can’t see a difference between the dark side and the light.”

Oz: “The Force can give life or end it, bring hope or take it away. The difference lies not in where we draw our strength from, but how we use it, what our goals are. The dark side is a quick and easy path; it will give you great satisfaction for a very short time, at the expense of others; soon the hunger for more will come. This is the addictive part of the dark side, it works as a drug.

The light side’s ways might be slower, but give long lasting satisfaction, call it karma if you like. Attributing light and dark sides to the Force itself seems perverse to me.”

Ice: “I think I understand.”

Tron: “I must meditate on this.”

Oz: “I don’t have all the answers, I’m only 5 years older than you, but I believe the earliest Jedi couldn’t cope with the Sith using the Force for evil, which is why they considered them to be under the “spell” of the dark side of the Force. These Jedi ignored their emotions, which lead to more Sith.

In the end, you must take control of your own destiny, if there is such a thing.”
This conversation perfectly illustrates the many visions on the Force. Such modern visions resemble those of Grey Jedi, but differ greatly and remain of the light.
Part 9: The New Master
Darth Bane was the self proclaimed “last Sith”, though he had never studied what it meant to be a Sith; he had only received his title because he agreed to work for Clone Anakin. Coming from a galaxy that had never heard of Jedi or Sith, he believed he could give the Sith a fresh start, but also knew he had to learn about everything they had achieved in their long history.
Because his former master and the other Valcros were now working with the New Republic, who controlled nearly every system, the Jedi had access to all Sith artefacts that hadn’t been destroyed by war or Bohrok. Simply finding ancient relics that hadn’t been discovered yet would be impossible, but then again, one of the important things he had learned from the other Sith, was that the Force could not only be used to increase strength and instinct, but could also give you very clear visions and guide you towards your goal.
Bane still felt a bit uneasy when he meditated, but sat down on a pillow in his small apartment on New Fhalion, an insignificant Arkaloni planet near Kennlansor. Visions of faces started to come to him: many Tarren he had killed while working for Vaask’s empire, uncountable other races, of which he didn’t even know the names. The faces of those he had killed faded; now those of fallen comrades came and at last the one who had taught him everything he knew: his own father Arvid Hurst. He used to say to his son: “Remember to thank those you kill, because you wouldn’t have a job without them”. He didn’t know if his father was still alive. Arvid hadn’t agreed with Bane working for Vaask and hadn’t seen him sine he’d left his home. The image of his former mentor now faded too and a new face appeared before him, one of whom he was sure he hadn’t seen before. Suddenly he found himself in a desert, staring at the unknown man. Sure he wasn’t meditating anymore, he spoke to him:

-Who are you? Where am I? How and why did you bring me here?


-One question at a time please.

-Ok, let’s start with who you are.

-My name is Nergal, Avatar of the Force.

-An Avatar? You mean you’re some kind of personification created by the Force?

-No, no. I was a soul in the afterlife, or in my case, the “beforelife”. I didn’t want to be born without my knowledge and powers, so many of us travelled here to enjoy life. We were soon corrupted by a quest for the Staff and battled each other. I had won, but was defeated by Makuta in the underworld. Now that the Staff has been destroyed and I have been freed, I can finally do what I want.

-Kidnapping meditating Sith.

-I didn’t kidnap you, I merely answered your request for someone to instruct you; who better than a personification of the Force, as you put it.
-Why would you want to help me? If you’ve turned away from you past, searching for the Staff, you’ve probably turned away from the dark side of the Force too.

-I consider myself neutral. I realise too much meddling could result in an unbalance that would destroy the entire universe, etc., but I can also see the most probable future my actions cause; I don’t see any great changes in the future if I teach you, you would’ve found books and ruins sooner or later.

-I might not be skilled in the psychological effects of the Force, but I know when someone’s lying to me.

-I have my reasons for wanting to train you, but revealing them would bring an end to my plans, but believe me, they are in your best interests.
-All right, let’s start my training then.

-We’ll test your strength first…

In a flash Nergal transported them to a Jedi temple in the past.

-Welcome to Earth, the home planet of the Humans, about seven thousand five hundred years ago. In a few minutes this planet will be attacked by the Sirians, none of them will survive, try to kill as many Jedi as you can, it would make no difference.

Bane transformed into a Super Saiyan and killed nearly all the Jedi instantly. Two masters had managed to shield themselves and attacked Bane with all their strength, but he easily killed them too. An alarm was sounded, but not because of him; the Sirian fleet had arrived and was ready to attack Earth. A blinding flash of light was visible through the large windows of the temple and Bane could see the city around him evaporate by a horizontal wave of energy. They were back in the desert.
-It seemed I underestimated your strength. Your powers have been enlarged by something from beyond this plane of existence.

-What kind of weapon destroyed that city?

-It was a Sirian scorch bomb. A very powerful antimatter explosive, even by today’s standards, designed to focus all its energy in a horizontal wave, intended for surface attacks. Bombs like that one destroyed all life on Earth within a few minutes; its air remained radioactive for nearly 500 years afterwards. Many planets were struck like this during the Sirian Wars. It left the Old Republic crippled. By the time the Bohrok attacked, they still hadn’t overcome the results of the wars. Palpatine’s strong figure and his defeat of the Bohrok made him able to create his Empire. You are stronger than the Emperor was then, and at least as smart, but you wouldn’t be able to do now, what he did then. Conditions are very important. What you must learn is how to use the Force to turn every condition, every situation into something you can use. You must realise that despite every tale of destiny, the future isn’t set; every action changes the future. And even if you do nothing, it still isn’t set; it has to do with quantum mechanics, but I’ll spare you the details. There is however a probable future and many iterations with only minor differences. If you learn to predict and see this future, you can turn it to your hand. Don’t rely on pure strength and attack, but plant seeds, conduct small actions, which together will prevent your enemies from succeeding. That is how a Sith must act: creeping in the shadows, only attacking when the time is ripe.
-So was the time right for the Sirians to attack Earth?

-The Sirians didn’t use the Force, they did only rely on brute strength and it only left them with burned planets to conquer. Their strategy worked however, it created fear in their enemies, so they surrendered. But although you’ll find that Sith also ruled through fear, you’ll realise that it was their undoing. Seeds of rebellion are easily formed. The Sirians were eventually defeated; so were Valcron and the Empire; but notice that after the defeat of the Old Republic, there was little to none resistance to the Empire; the conditions were on Palpatine’s side and his Empire stood for 5 millennia.

-But Palpatine ruled with fear too, he tried to exterminate several species and he created the Death Star program.

-Indeed, and when he did, resistance against his rule started to grow.

-So you’re saying a true Sith wouldn’t rule with fear and destruction?

-Quite the opposite, Corna’El, creator of the Sith, started the Second Sith War by completely devastating the city planet Taris.

-Then I don’t understand what you’re trying to teach me.

-I’m trying to make you understand you can start a new order, free from the curse of the Staff, dooming everything it created to destruction. You shall rule because it’s your right as a user of the Force, because you know what’s best for them, you will guide them. That will be the Sith order. But you must also realise that when someone more powerful than you defeats you, he can claim your throne. Former Sith fell because they were unwilling to give up power, because they couldn’t let go. Some say the dark side of the Force is merely a perverse view, I think the perversion is only the death and destruction that followed Sith who couldn’t let go. When I craved the power of the Staff, I fell too, but now I’m free again, unbounded by such desires, only the desire to guide.
-That almost sounds like Jedi ideology!

-The Jedi have always won, there must be something they’re doing right.

-What is the difference then, between the Jedi and how you view the future of the Sith?

-Jedi don’t rule, they only serve; intricate plotting is not their way. They’re being guided instead of guiding others. But recent Jedi also understand they have to use their emotions; in a way they’ve come closer to the Sith’s view of the Force and become more powerful than ever. In a similar way, you have to grow closer to the Jedi’s view.
-Those are some very hefty theories; I think I need to contemplate about them during meditation.
-I’ll return you to your apartment; I’ll contact you at the same time tomorrow.

Bane had a lot to think about, but realised if Nergal had “reasons” for training him, he might also be creating the right conditions for whatever he was planning, somehow, he had to find out…
Part 10: Anna’s Last Contract, Part A

The year is 4670; Anna Kovitch, who’d become an important general of the Resistance is still an assassin on Nar Shadaa. This part tells the story of her last contract kill.

Somewhere below a large entertainment district, Anna is having a meeting with a shadowy figure…


-Who’s my target?

-A Valcronian officer who’ll visit the planet next month, not long after new year’s day.


-There are thousands of officers, why this particular one?

-He is the most powerful Jedi they ever managed to capture and convert; he’s also very loyal to the Valcros, he’s making the life of my superior rather miserable.

-So you’re not my actual contractor?

-My superior is of some importance, if they were to found out she was behind the attempt, she’d be killed.

-I’ll gladly kill this or any officer, but don’t the Valcros have ways to revive the death?

-They revive themselves, yes, but subordinates always come back as something “lower”, like a droid.

-I understand, give me the details of his visit.

-On the fifth of January, Lord Abbat will secretly visit this planet; he’s put up a lucrative business in selling Tower Wine to distributors here, behind the other Valcros’ backs. Two officers and a droid will join him, one of them is your target.

-That doesn’t make any sense, Abbat could get anything he want, why would he have to sell wine on the black market, and if this officer is so loyal to the Valcros, why would he help one do illegal activities behind the other’s backs?

-Abbat simply likes the thrill, and the officer obeys any Valcro as a god, so he’d gladly assist this one.

-Alright, I’ll do it, where will he land?

-I’m transferring the information to your data pad now. Be careful, he can sense much through his powers, and so can Abbat. This officer has already survived 3 other attempts, I want this one to be successful, understand.

-I won’t fail.

-If you do, there will be others to kill him; you’re not the only one I contacted. I’ll know who’ll be the one that has finished him, only that one will get the money.

-That one will be me.

-I hope it for you. We will not meet again, miss Kovitch.

Part 11: The Great Escape
Luke felt the presence of his father near, but knew that contacting him through the Force would be either held back by the crown or sensed by Sam. Jonathan was still several rooms away and his chamber was probably well hidden and shielded so that no sound would penetrate it. The two Valcros both knew they would have to wait until Sam left before they could do anything. Fortunately he departed to Nar Shadaa, together with the Spirion Jonathan had captured. When Johnny continued his search, he had unknowingly triggered a silent alarm and automatic defence mechanisms, which distributed a very powerful gas that would leave him nearly comatose for a long while.
Jack tried calling out to the Horsemen again, but to no avail. He had tried it every day since they had been captured three weeks ago. They had been given food at regular intervals, but hadn’t been questioned or tortured or anything else. Whoever was behind their capture either didn’t know what to do with them or simply wanted them imprisoned so they wouldn’t interfere with their plans. By now, the entire New Republic was probably looking for them, which was possibly another way to keep them from discovering whatever scheme they were implementing. On the other hand, Jack had been apprehended by M-Tron; if this treachery ran deep, they might keep up the illusion that they hadn’t disappeared at all, unless the officers had been Spirion in disguise. For now they should concentrate their energy on escape instead of speculation.
Jonathan woke up in his bed on New Valcro Prime, surrounded by his brothers, his wife, his father-in-law, Empty-Head and a doctor.


-What happened, where am I?

He asked the doctor.


-You’re save now, on New Valcro Prime.


-What happened to me?


-You’ve been in a coma for a month.


-A month?

-Stay calm, mister Valcro, you’re still weak from asphyxiation. It’s a miracle you didn’t suffer any permanent brain-damage, I believe you’ve got your Saiyan physiology to thank for that.

-Darkner! Sam Darkner is behind this!

-I’m not going to tell you again: calm down! You would be dead, if it hadn’t been for mister Darkner, he found you drifting in space.
-In space, but I hadn’t left his base yet.

-I see your memory hasn’t returned yet: after you turned the Spirion over to him, you returned to your ship to try and fix it. Your eagerness to find Vice President Ice and Senators Valcro and Neil had clearly made you overlook several important faults. Soon after lift-off, your life-support failed. Sam intercepted an automatic SOS and saved you.

Jonathan now turned to Empty-Head.

-Have the three amigos been found yet?

-I’m afraid not, but the Jedi, M-Tron, Space Police and former Resistance troops are all looking for them. We haven’t alerted anyone else of their disappearance, it might cause chaos.

-Has Nar Shadaa been searched yet?

-Sam Darkner and a team of hand picked units have looked over the entire planet.

-I bet they have. As soon as I have my strength back, I’m going there myself…

With his last words, Valcro fell back to sleep.

John and Jack were surprised when they saw the crown again, with Luke inside of it. Two Ice officers had delivered it next to their cage. John speculated hat they were also Spirion, but Luke quickly informed them that Sam Darkner had been behind the plot, to make sure the war economy would be kept stable. He had never been to the future, though John and Jack had already figured that out. Luke also explained that the crown hadn’t worked on him, but was also impervious to his attacks. Jack suddenly realised that because the crown had been powered by the staff, he might be able to neutralize it. Luke fired a beam to activate the crown’s energy field, when Jack was able absorb its power. The artefact was now showing its true age and started to crumble, eventually leaving only dust. Luke was free, and John and Jack felt they could properly use the Force again. Now they needed to escape from the building and alert the Republic.
Jonathan was training on New Valcro, when he saw his wife flying towards him, accompanied by 2 M-Tron agents. he felt there was something not quite right about her, but couldn’t sense a Spirion.

-Do you have news of our son?

-I’m afraid not, but there have been rumours of Abbat gathering equipment and troops to organize some sort of attack, it’s possible he’s behind Luke’s disappearance.

-I know Abbat, he likes doing things in secrecy, but for now I believe he just wants to stay out of sight. These rumours are spread by those who are truly behind the kidnapping.

-These M-Tron are asking your help to search for…

Jonathan suddenly hit her on the shoulder, and the image of his wife disappeared, it had been an isomeric projection, it was in fact one of the droids designed for him to use when his soul had been scattered over the Valcro Zone. The two M-Tron pointed their blasters at it, but Johnny sensed they were part of the plot. He knocked all three unconscious and wanted to alert the local security, but realised he didn’t know who he could trust. Instead, he contacted Jane to take a freighter in her name and bring it to the meadow where he was training.
An alarm was already ringing in the Spirion museum on Nar Shadaa, when the three amigos were confronted by Spirion, droids, M-Tron, Ice and Space police officers. Jack said that they were all under arrest and tried to use the Force to knock them of their feet. Unfortunately, the Spirion’s combined shields had protected them from his attack. They knew they couldn’t use powerful blasts in such a crowded building, surrounded by large amounts of traffic. John tried to sense who else was in the building. He felt that in the main room of the empty museum, illegal drugs were being unloaded. He made one of the criminals think he had seen a Space police officer in one of the hallways. The dealer sent two henchmen to look for the agent and John used the Force to lure them to their room. The traitors were surprised when they were taken under fire by the criminals. In all the confusion, Jack managed to finally knock them of their feet and the three amigos managed to escape from the building and fly to an administrational sector. A freighter suddenly stopped in their flight path and opened its cargo doors, inside stood Jonathan Valcro. They flew back to New Valcro Prime and Johnny felt a sense of pride when the three amigos announced that Sam was behind a conspiracy to create a false war.
Part 12: Anna’s Last Contract, Part B

Anna saw Abbat’s ship parked near several electrical cables and a kilometre long exhaust grid, which provided oxygen to this part of the city planet. No one ever came close to such a grid, because at regular intervals it blew out super heated gas (20% oxygen, 80% nitrogen) at very large speeds. If you’d be close, it would kill you. A Valcro would know the venting schedule, which would make it perfect for a secret meeting.
The back of the ship was open and people were unloading several crates filled with wine; Abbat, his two officers and his droid were overseeing them, when suddenly a shot was fired at them. Anna used the confusion to get closer to the group and saw the other contract killer: Gorwin Khaland, a Witeling, standing behind a shielded entrance to the oxygen plant. The shield allowed one way travel through it, preventing anything from entering, but allowing exit, like the shield bubbles around warships. This allowed Gorwin to shoot at Abbat’s group, but protected him from their fire. The officers managed to deactivate the shield however and chased the Witeling into the plant, while Abbat ordered the other men to continue unloading the rest of the wine. Anna had to find a way in, so she could kill the officers before Gorwin would. She cut through the wall of the building with her phazer gun and went inside just in time to see Gorwin being killed with a lightsabre by one of the officers, cutting of his chloride tanks, suffocating the Witeling. He couldn’t see her, but suddenly looked in her general direction, sensing her presence. Knowing she’d been discovered, she shot at a pipeline above the two officers, spraying liquid nitrogen onto them. The weaker officer was killed instantly, but the other used his lightsabre to evaporate the nitrogen and close the gap in the pipeline. The officer ran back outside and this gave Anna a great idea: if she could activate the vents, everybody standing on the grid would be killed.
While she was looking for some kind of control panel, she was shot at, not by Abbat’s men, but by another assassin, an Oscian, a member of the amphibious race from Oscion, known for its beautiful underwater cities. In general Oscians were peaceful and calm, but this one was clearly an exception. The other thing Oscians were known for was their ease of thinking in three dimensions, because of living mostly under water. This clearly gave him some advantages when shooting at her. That was about were her knowledge of Oscians ended, but she reasoned that because they built those cities on the bottom of their oceans, they were probably more used to high pressures than low ones. If she could make a hole through a window, or at least a wall, next to a large relative height (meaning a deep fall to the first roof or pathway below), a lot of air would be sucked out of the room, depressurising it.
She found shelter from the fire behind a wall and luck seemed to be in her favour, because there was a control panel on her side. First she looked for a way to activate the vents and saw that the next release was over an hour away; she set the timer on five minutes and next looked for a way to open a hatch on the high side of the plant. She strapped herself to a chain near her and pressed the button. The winds were stronger than se expected and sucked the Oscian outside. Unfortunately, the chain broke of and sucked her outside too.

Anna grabbed on to a ridge and could see the Oscian falling through the traffic below. Carefully making her way to a ladder a few metres next to her, she could see a plume of evaporated wine rising. Thinking she succeeded, she made her way up the ladder, but on top of the plant, she saw a smaller ship, apparently Abbat hadn’t flown in the wine transport. She hadn’t pulled herself up onto the roof yet, when from behind the ship she saw Abbat and the officer running towards her. The officer took out his lightsabre, but before he could strike at her, he was shot in the back by Abbat! The Valcro took of his helmet to reveal he wasn’t Abbat at all; it was another contract killer, a female Mumifar, without the standard hat. Anna had failed her assignment; expecting at least some sympathy from her colleague, she reached out her hand to be pulled up unto the roof. The Mumifar grabbed her hand, but instead of helping her, threw her of the roof, into the traffic below. She was hit by several vehicles on her way down and smacked onto a skyway somewhere in the lower districts of Nar Shadaa. Amazingly, she survived. Being hit by the vehicles had apparently slowed her fall.
The next twelve years she spent in a coma and it took her another two years to learn how to walk again, during which she read many books about weapons technology, which she would put to good use in her future as freedom fighter. After another four years, she could finally leave the hospital and she left Nar Shadaa and her terrible life there behind.
Part 13: The New Apprentice
Nergal had been training Bane for over a month now, showing him the history of the universe and the Force, and it was clear he hadn’t much to teach him anymore. Although Nergal agreed Bane was probably the last real Sith, there were still many ex-Sith and others who used the dark side of the Force. The Avatar thought it was time Bane took on an apprentice of his own, choosing from those who already had some experience. Darth Bane, the new Lord of the Sith, decided he’d only take one student, because he knew that when the Sith Empire had been in exile during the Golden Years of the Old Republic, the Sith had fought amongst themselves. His rule: “one master, one apprentice” would stop that; Nergal could only agree.
After visiting several candidates, it became clear people weren’t exactly prepared to counter the Republic; but during their travels around the cluster, Bane started to notice that this was exactly what Nergal wanted, so while they were on their way to visit Abbat Valcro, their most promising candidate yet, he confronted his master:

-Abbat won’t want to become my apprentice either.


-You already sense that from here? Impressive.

-You know what I mean; we only visit those of whom you know they wouldn’t join us.

-I’ve taught you well, I see. There is one I want you to teach, one who is so powerful with the Force, it has made him immortal.

-Immortal? That’s impossible!

-Yet it’s true. He was on Valcro 2nd when Jonathan Valcro caused its destruction; he survived it purely true his emotions and his connection with the Force, or better: his lack of connection. In a way he is like me, but at the same time he’s my opposite. He has a bond with the afterlife, which makes it possible for him stay alive after being killed. He has all the knowledge to use the Force, but remembers nothing of worldly things, not even his life before his current undead state.

-I’ve never heard of him, yet you make it sound like he’s the most powerful being in the universe.

-He’s not so powerful in the sense of energy, but he can’t be killed, which makes him win against even an endless number of Super Saiyans.
-So after teaching I need to let go, you want to introduce me to someone who clings to his life even after death. By the way, what van I teach someone who can’t be defeated.

-This being’s mind is empty; you can form him to your own liking. What you teach him will be accepted as the ultimate truth. He’s the perfect apprentice. Now come with me, I know where he is…

Bane felt that Nergal had avoided his first question, and that he was still hiding something, but his curiosity for such an “undead” being was greater than that for Nergal’s motives.

Drifting somewhere between the stars was a coffin, a sarcophagus of some sort, containing the body of Darth Draugr, the immortal. Nergal used his powers to move it to Bane’s apartment on New Fhalion.

-If he can’t be defeated, how come he’s locked up in this?

-Remember, his mind is empty; he nearly acts on instinct alone. He attacked some people who managed to put him into this stasis chamber, controlled with the Force. It can only be opened with fire. Remind me sometime to teach you how to create fire with the Force, for now, you better stand back.

Nergal used his elemental powers on the coffin, which was quickly opened. A tall man stepped out of it, wearing a black robe, similar to Bane’s, with a burned and ripped grey cape, marked with the sign of the bat clan of the Sith and also wearing a metallic black helmet with stylized bat wings on both sides. Through the helmet’s eyeholes, they could only see darkness, and looking at his neck, they could see the helmet had melted to his face. He introduced himself as Darth Draugr, the black spot of the universe. Bane was actually surprised he was able to make such statement, since his mind was supposedly blank; then again, the destruction of Valcro 2nd had happened many years earlier.
Draugr agreed to be trained by Bane and Nergal, so he could have his revenge against those who had caused his permanent suffering, though he couldn’t remember who they were.

Nergal wanted to transport them to a training location, when the door of the apartment was blasted away by Cho-Adi Mundi, who had been tracking Bane. He fired a beam directly at the Sith lord, but it was intercepted by Draugr, whose arm had been blown of by the blast. Before Cho-Adi’s eyes the undead regenerated his arm. Fearing he had encountered a droid with nanotechnology, possibly another leftover of old Anakin’s experiments, he contacted the Jedi Council on New Valcro, who informed him he had to come home to help investigating a conspiracy against the Republic. Mundi wanted to counter their arguments, but noticed the three inhabitants of the apartment had simply vanished.
Part 14: The Scar of Valinéoleffas

(incomplete)
Part 15: Fraud After Fraud
President Lorren wanted to spread images of Darkner throughout the cluster, but John advised to keep news of the conspiracy a secret, to keep the government stable and to avoid panic and paranoia, though it was too late to stop senators from suspecting each other. The truth was that they couldn’t really know who was part of the plot and who wasn’t; but they all agreed that Sam played a large part and had to be captured as soon as possible. Investigations of Sam’s bank accounts revealed he had received large sums of money, officially intended for the M-Tron. Further analysis revealed multiple sources that had “donated to the M-Tron”, including the museum on Nar Shadaa, which had received government funding while it was being used for illegal activities. It also exposed several bribed officials working at the ministries of defence, finance and budget who had silently transferred money from a fraud involving mining contracts on Egyptsei. After questioning, they revealed they had received money from Rick Chom, the Resistance General of the Mumifar. Coming full circle, Rick was closely involved with the research on the ancient Mumifar ship, which made it sure he had regular contact with Sam’s underlings working there.
All information of the conspiracy was now only shared between those investigating it, which meant Chom’s treason had not been revealed to the senate. The General wouldn’t know he had been revealed, so he could be arrested before he’d try to escape.
Unfortunately, as part of the senate, he had heard that the conspiracy was under investigation and was now trying to flee New Valcro Prime. He was confronted by a Jedi and several Space Police officers on his landing platform, right before he wanted to board his private ship. One of the officers in the back now pointed his weapon on his fellow agents and advised Chom to leave quickly. The officer was arrested, but the General managed to escape. Using a self invented faster-than-light drive, he was able to leave no trails behind; only the vector at which he had activated his engines could be used to calculate his possible trajectory, but he certainly knew that himself and had probably already changed his course.

They hadn’t run completely out of luck, however, and an M-Tron conspirator with a guilty conscience turned himself in and revealed where Sam might be hiding: Valinéoleffas, where the wounds of the Force might hide his presence from the Jedi; what he hadn’t brought into consideration was that he was the only living being on the planet and his life signs would show up on sensors. It was Anakin who found him eventually; he had taken the Spirit, which still had the best scanning equipment, together with a crew of the best scanners of Ice and several Jedi to apprehend him. after only a day in orbit, they had already found him and two days later he had been arrested. After a week of questioning, he still refused to give answers, so the Republic decided they needed to capture more of his accomplices or get an undercover agent. They decided to do both at the same time…
Sam was being transferred to another planet onboard a special ship, guarded by his own daughter Femke, Ace Erdam and Cameron Valcro (who had become a Space Police officer in the years after Cell’s defeat). The transport was being attacked while it was half-way and forced to land on an asteroid. The attacking ship fired several strange beams and left again, without inflicting any serious damage; they had in fact beamed out their leader Sam and replaced him with a disguised Spirion. The ship arrived on Coruscant and the false Sam was being brought to his cell, to the surprise of the impostor the man already in the cell was Sam Darkner himself. Knowing the conspirators would try to free him, they had used a Spirion double themselves.
The other fake Sam was now being brought to the base Luke had been when he still believed he was in the future. There he met with several other Spirion, droids, Ice and Space Police officers, M-Tron and Resistance agents and many others. They welcomed him, when he revealed his true face: Benjamin Turner, one of the right hands of Red Sincam himself. By now the base was surrounded by Republic ships and all the conspirators were arrested; all but two Ice officers, who were hiding in a hidden part of the base, ready to set the timer of the base’s self destruct: an ancient Sirian scorch bomb, which would destroy all useful information the Republic would be able to gather from the base. They realised they didn’t want to kill anyone and were trying to figure out how they would warn the others on the asteroid without being caught, and without dying in the explosion themselves. During that time Timothy Ice had travelled to the base to confront any Ice officer they had arrested. While he had mostly an advisory role in the organisation he had defined and given his name to, he still had a large personal bond with it and was struck deeply when he heard “his” officers had committed treason, which is why he wanted to fire them personally.
Only moments after Timothy arrived, speakers inside the base warned them that the base would self destruct within five minutes. Everybody started evacuating, but Timothy noticed the two Ice officers using the confusion to get out of the secret chamber. He lost them in the crowd that was trying to get out and decided to go into the secret room himself. He saw the bomb and tried to dismantle it himself. Over his comlink, he was being advised to get out as fast as he could, but he refused even to be beamed out; he had to stop the self destruct, because the base might hold the key to identifying the other conspirators, including members of Ice. Unfortunately, he didn’t know that the Sirians had filled their bombs with booby traps and the asteroid exploded.

On the 12th December 5059 ACM, Timothy Ice, father of Sofie and Sarah, grandfather of Anakin and his clone, was killed as the first victim of the False War.
Mark Ice, Timothy’s father, together with his granddaughters Sofie and Sarah, all three Jedi Masters, confronted Sam with the news that he had indirectly killed Timothy. Shocked by the death of someone with whom he had had a long friendship, Darkner decided he would fully cooperate with the investigation and explain everything he knew of the conspiracy. The first surprise was that he wasn’t the one who was leading it, there were several high placed members, and each one only knew two others, to make sure they wouldn’t all be exposed if one of them got caught. He revealed that the two members he knew were Rick Chom, who was already being looked for, and Roger Cristel, head of the Ice Energy department and also the one who had been able to convince so many Ice officers to join their cause, mainly because Ice’s interests were turning back to mainly research of sciences and exploration, instead of weapons development, security and forensics.
For the first time since they had discovered the conspiracy, the Republic believed they had really started to expose its inner structure.
Part 16: The Story of Janos Audron

During the war between Jonathan Valcro and his father’s Empire, a pregnant woman was killed. She carried a child that would have been powerful in the Force. She was pregnant long enough for it to have a soul already. Mother and child ended up in Valcro’s part of the Matrix’ soul database, but because the child had no memories yet, had experienced no emotions, the soul kept a special connection with the afterlife, that couldn’t be reached because of the Matrix. When many random souls were chosen to make Smallbots, this child came to the attention of the Valcros, also because of a special genetic code they discovered. They decided to revive him and let it be “born”.
The child was named Janos Audron and was raised by the Sith on Valcro Second. His natural talents made him complete his training sooner than al his peers, yet he hadn’t received a Sith name and title, even though he was a personal favourite of Jonathan Valcro.
Years went by and Janos completed task after task successfully. Eventually Jonathan promised to finally give him a name and a leading place in the Smallbot War after one final task: finding and destroying the Empire’s cloning facilities.
After tracking false evidence leading to the planet Mikritvan, Janos was killed for the first time since his birth. Clearly disappointed, Jonathan (by this time as an apparition of his soul inside a robot), refused to give him another assignment until the cloning facilities had been disposed of, but Janos didn’t care anymore. When he had died he had experienced something, he had “seen” his connection to the Force, to the afterlife, hiding behind the veil of the Matrix. He spent the rest of his time meditating inside the Sith temple on Valcro Second; he even predicted the end of the Matrix and the disappearance of Jonathan, though nobody believed him.
Then came the time that Jonathan Valcro returned to the planet. Suddenly a rage swell up inside him, the man who had refused to give him credit for all his hard work was here, he could kill him…

before he could do anything at all, the planet started moving and suddenly Johnny grabbed one of the rotating rings that allowed faster than light travel. The planet would not survive, he was certain. All vessels had been taken; they had left him behind to die.

“No”. that was all that came to mind, he wouldn’t die, he refused to. As the leather of his robes burned into his skin and his metal helmet melted onto his face, he refused the pain, he denied the fact that his body was dieing. Again he saw his own connection to the Force, leading him to the afterlife. What happened next was impossible; in order to stay alive, to stay behind, he severed his connection to the Force.
On the debris and asteroids now orbiting the remains of Valcro Second, in the void between the two colliding galaxies, Janos awoke; unable to remember who he was or what had happened. All he knew was his name: Darth Draugr: the undead.
Part 17: Nergal’s Motives
Nergal was teaching Bane and Draugr how to make fire with the Force, without firing a blast. Because heat is movement, they’d only have to use the Force to move air back and forth, in an increasingly smaller area, essentially vibrating it. They needed to make the oxygen in the air so hot, that it would be put ablaze. Bane was the first to succeed, on the third day they were trying, Draugr achieved it on the next.

Nergal stopped time to talk to Bane privately, he explained that now he knew how to make molecules and atoms vibrate faster, he would be able to do the opposite too. Nergal didn’t want to tell Draugr, because he felt if Bane acted like he had come up with the idea, Draugr would accept him as his master more easily after Nergal had left. Bane asked him how long he would keep instructing them before going away, and what his plans were for the future. The Avatar started time again and said to both of them that tomorrow he would bring them to an undiscovered Sith temple they could use as their base of operations and as a place to study the ancient Sith. Now he had to go for a while, to prepare his own future, without them.
Rick Chom was hiding on Jaridia, ironically in a local museum, a real one, when he was visited by Nergal. Startled by the visitor he nervously asked who he was.

-Who are you?


-My name is not of significance. What’s important is that you help me.

-You have the power to appear out of nowhere without a cloak and you need my help?

-I could do it myself, but the higher powers won’t allow it, I would be pulled from this plane of existence. I need your help because the Force itself is at danger.

-I have no Force potency; you should talk with Jedi about this problem.

-It’s because you can’t control it that it is of your importance. A being, a monster rather, has the ability to create a void in the Force, he feeds on it, to fill his own emptiness. Jedi can still make the Force flow through them, they can heal themselves, but you can’t.

-I don’t use the Force, why should I be worried.

Suddenly Rick was struck by a great feeling of emptiness and anxiety. He felt like dying; he could breath but he felt like he was suffocating. He could barely move, felt like he hadn’t slept in days, but couldn’t close his eyes. An intense horror, like all happiness and hope had been sucked out of him. And as sudden as it had started, it was now over, and not a moment too soon.

-What did you do to me? That was painless, yet worse than the greatest pain I’ve ever felt.

-That’s what it feels like to live without the Force.

-But how.

-The Force is part of your soul, of all souls; it is your connection to the afterlife. It is what makes you happy, gives you the will to live.
-I had no idea.

-This monster I told you about feels this all the time, but because of this emptiness he can control the Force around him. It is pulled toward the vacuum that he is and he directs its path. Therefore he can’t die, he’s already dead. His hate keeps him together and the Force that is pulled towards him keeps him undead. He can’t let go of his life, he is an enigma: his connection to the Force and the afterlife seems severed, yet he has a stronger connection than all of you because he has died.

-What is your connection? Who are you really?

-I’m an Avatar. I’m a soul from the afterlife who came to your plane of existence without being born, with my knowledge and power intact.

-If you can do that, why isn’t universe populated by beings like you, and why don’t you deal with these enigmas yourselves?

-Becoming an Avatar was quite forbidden, like any other interference; I now understand why, but if I keep my interference to mere guidance, they allow me to exist here. Most of us were killed when we fought over the Staff, I eventually won, but was trapped by Makuta. Now that I’m free and the Staff is destroyed, I can finally be neutral and enjoy this life; but not before I’m sure that Draugr is destroyed.
-Draugr, is that the name of the undead monster?

-Yes, but his birth name was Janos Audron, before he transformed.
-I Still don’t understand what you want me to do, I can’t possibly defeat him, as you clearly made me realise, I’d be helpless around him.

-Your new propulsion system can help: the ripple it causes for the catapult effect also has an influence in the Force.

-Of course, it will create a concentrated front, but Jedi can form energy blasts that are much more powerful; even the simplest conventional weapon, like a blaster, would create more damage.
-This ripple would not originate from a person, it would be the only kind of Force attack that would hurt him; you have to build a weapon based on this principle. I know you’re busy with your conspiracy, but I can see all possible futures, this will have no effect on the plot’s outcome.

Rick wanted to ask much more questions, but the Avatar had disappeared again. Rick alerted his trustees to prepare for his arrival, while he got ready to leave Jaridia.
The next day, Bane and Draugr were brought to the Sith temple, were Bane showed how to make things freeze and break apart, after which Nergal stopped time again. He finally explained his motives to Bane and told him what a danger Draugr really was. He said that if he’d train on freezing things more, he’d be able to slow down Draugr long enough for an effective attack by a weapon that would soon be made. Nergal would leave them now, but would regularly talk to Bane in this way, to prepare him for his ultimate encounter with his apprentice. Bane asked why he had instructed him for this task, while saving the universe was something Jedi would do. Nergal replied that the Jedi wouldn’t be able to kill him; they’d try to turn him, especially after finding out who he really was…
Part 18: Carl’s Tour Around the Cluster, Part A
The U.L.F. was spread over an enormous amount of space, but many colonies were mere outposts, truck stops and lonely stations. The inhabitants of such settlements noticed little of Sharkthoot’s coup and even less of the great wars that resulted into the founding of the New Republic, the biggest change it brought was the inclusion of a new name and symbol on official papers and a wider range of elections, and like many other facilities deemed insignificant, the Black Star hadn’t destroyed it.

It wasn’t until many friends and relatives moved to the Valcro Zone, to help rebuild the war-struck area, and when all kinds of aliens came to the Federation’s galaxy, that those people got interested in intergalactic affairs.

One of them was Carl Arrenbich, a Human male of about 60 years old (still very young for a Human). He operated a warp fuel station and a trucker restaurant, which was owned by his great-grandfather, who was 300 years old (still not old). The stations had the official name “Colony 548”, but only consisted of the Arrenbich family, their spouses and some truckers that seemed to spend more time in their truck stop, than in space.

When the Neutrals decided to expand their network of artificial wormholes into the Federation, owners of facilities like Carl’s became worried for their job, but the Neutrals had used small but widespread stations themselves and understood their needs. They made sure to build the wormhole generators in the vicinity of truck stops and fuel stations, the generators only provided travel between two stations, so ordinary warp was still needed.

Creatures from many worlds told amazing story of the much more densely populated Valcro Zone, but Carl was unimpressed, until a young Mumifar told him that his truck stop looked like one orbiting Lavora, which was one of the few non-high class restaurants around the planet. It was the only time someone had told Carl there were similarities between the U.L.F. and the exotic new world. A strange sense of excitement came over him, he had to see it himself so he could compare. He hitched a ride to the asteroid belt that contained the capital, among dozens of other large cities, and even in his own nation, he experienced a culture shock, the high buildings, the large amount of people and the ships moving from and to the nearby wormhole to the New Valcro Prime system. Transwarp drive was unavailable for ordinary citizens, except with a rare special permit, and regular warp would take a lot of time to explore the two “new” galaxies. The wormhole network would transport him rather fast to wherever he wanted to go, but then he wouldn’t see what he wanted to see. Using all the charm he had, he convinced Ice researcher Cindy Brel to take him along on her exploring journey to Amagosa III, with stops at every place worth checking out.

(incomplete)
Part 19: The Pursuit of Abbat
Luke and his father travelled to Urgorr, a planet north of where Insectoid 1st used to be. They’d gotten reports that Abbat had travelled there. The Valcro had disappeared again after the fight with Luke, when he was under the Master’s control, but was still wanted by the Republic. Luke had sensed that Abbat had something to do with the conspiracy, so he wanted to search for him personally. Their ship was in orbit and they scanned the single city and its few villages around it for signs of Saiyan DNA. When they found nothing, they searched the rest of the planet, but still nothing turned up. Jonathan suggested landing near a rock formation in the savannah. Its magnetic properties might shield Abbat from their sensor scans. They came down on the purplish grassland under the hot blue sun and Luke looped the ship and activated his personal cloak. Jonathan did the same and hey flew toward the strange grey rocks coming out of the ground like needles. The only one who seemed to notice they were there was a large feline animal, lying in the shadow of a tree, but it quickly closed its eyes again and drifted to sleep. Unfortunately, their cloaking shield malfunctioned when they passed between the magnetic rocks and they could hear an alarm nearby. Suddenly the ground underneath them started opening up, like a giant door and they could see a platform coming up from beneath. On the lift stood a monstrous spider-like machine, operated by Urgorr’s native species: the Yu’ug, a race comparable to the Krana: they were simple brains, smart, but inefficient. The Valcros had made android bodies (yet distinctly different from the other androids), so they could be used as slave labourers.
On top of the machine stood a sort of throne, and in it sat Abbat.


-Hello Jonathan, hello Luke. How nice of you to visit me here.


-We still have an arrest warrant with your name on it.

-I’m just minding my own business, just like the other Valcros and many of the Imperials. I just assumed I could do the same.
-We have an agreement with them; they work for us now and aren’t creating giant spider robots.

-Spider robot? Oh you mean this mining machine? The Yu’ug helped me design it, so they could continue their mining operations.

-I’m surprised they wanted to help you, the Valcros stripped this planet clean from its only valuable resource: the magnetic rock which contains a crystalline oxide of black metal, which was used for the rings around Valcro Prime, Valcro Second and New Valcro Prime. And you used the Yu’ug as slaves to get it.

-Cameron exploited them, not me. This new mining machine will make it unnecessary for them to work as hard as they did in the past, they’ll be able to make their own profits now.

-For some reason I don’t believe you’ve become so compassionate.
-Of course, as designer for this apparatus, I’m entitled to a certain percentage of those profits.

Jonathan sensed that he was lying, so he interrupted Luke’s questioning.

-Ah, of course; and I assume those profits are funds for the conspiracy?

-Conspiracy? Now I really don’t know what you’re talking about. I haven’t had much contact with the rest of the cluster for months now, except…

-Except for what?

-I was contacted by an individual who appeared out of nowhere who called himself Nergal, asking me if I’d like to be trained further as a Sith.

-So what did you reply?

-I told him to get out and that I’d had enough training. He then challenged me to a duel and I told him to go screw himself. He angrily turned around and disappeared into thin air.

Luke recognised the name from when he had encountered the Horseman of War in hell, before his fight with Makuta. He had told him that “the fires below were created by Nergal, when Makuta defeated him and took his powers”. Luke knew that Abbat spoke of the very same being that had apparently set the underworld on fire. He discussed this with his father, but Abbat was starting to loose his patience.

-Look, we all know this will end with a fight, so I’ll start first, ok?

The head of the spider fired a red beam at them, which was easily deflected by Luke, who had transformed into the second level of the Super Saiyan. The blue sparks of electricity around his aura were now being conducted by the spiky rocks around them, generating enough static electricity to disable the mining spider. It also revealed that Abbat’s image had just been an isomeric projection. Luke took his ship out of the transporter loop and tried to track the signal; to his surprise it came from the other side of the two galaxies: from Jaridia.

Knowing that anybody could be part of the conspiracy, and that they also had to keep it a secret, they contacted the only one close enough to the planet of whom they knew that he couldn’t be part of it: Android #17.
After Cell’s destruction, #17 and #18 wanted to stay out of intergalactic affairs as much as possible, which is why they believed he could be trusted. Convincing him would be a problem though. Luke took out their ship and transmitted a signal directly to #17’s circuitry. The android had left Jaridia about an hour earlier when he received the transmission.

-This is Jedi Master Luke Valcro calling Android Number 17, I repeat, this is…


-I hear you, Luke, why are you calling me?


-We’re trying to capture Abbat and believe he’s somewhere on Jaridia.

-Why are you bothering me with that, there are thousands of New Republic officials on the planet. Unless this mission is of the records.
-It’s an official mission, but we have reasons to believe that some high-placed officials are involved in a plot together with Abbat, that’s all I can say about it.

-And I’m the only one you can trust? This must be serious. Can’t you come here yourselves?

-No, We were on Urgorr a few minutes ago, we traced Abbat there originally, but it turned out to be a projection, coming from Jaridia, that’s why we need you to search for him as soon as possible.

-Wait a minute, who said I agreed? What’s in it for me?

-What do you want?

-The penthouse of the newest skyscraper on New Valcro Prime.

-What? I didn’t know you were so material. I’ll try to arrange it, but only if you find Abbat.
-It’s a deal.

Luke conveyed the coordinates of Abbat’s transmission, coming from somewhere in the capital Jaro City. #17 was able to pinpoint a more exact location: the Jaridian Museum of Abstract Pre-Imperial Art. The museum was guarded by long-necked Jaridians, but his guide was a Valcronian worker clone, who explained that a number of black spheres spread out over the floor expressed the fear for the Bohrok in the last years of the Old Republic, a shattered lightsabre was supposed to represent the chaos the Jedi order was in after the Sirian Wars. Several other pieces had no specific interpretation, and #17 couldn’t make one up either. One thing he did recognise was a ship hanging from the ceiling, with a small cockpit just large enough for one person like himself, but not for a Jaridian. When he asked about it he could sense a heightened sense of alertness from the guards and his guide. The transmission didn’t originate from the ship, but its subspace transmitter was used to convey it to Urgorr. When he asked for a look inside, the guards pointed their weapons at him, but he managed to disable them before they could fire and used his internal transporter to beam himself directly into the cockpit. Before he could check from where the broadcast had come, the ship took of into an apparently predetermined course. Next to the small cockpit was a long arm that made up the rest of the ship, which now started spinning around him, activating an unknown form of superluminal drive.
The guards and the clone were staring at the open roof of the museum, when General Chom appeared next to them.
-You idiots; that ship will bring him directly to my base and my research, it was one of only two working prototypes of my new drive, and that one works better.

Jonathan and Luke, on their way back to New Valcro Prime, noticed that they had lost contact with #17.


-I agreed to his ridiculous offer, and he still leaves Jaridia, I don’t understand that guy.


-There is another way to find Abbat.


-What do you mean?

-I’ll explain when we get back to New Valcro Prime, but I’ll have to get my old gang back together: Rob, Fon, Toz, Empty-Head, Femme Fatale and myself. I’ll also need a large amount of Urgorr’s mineral.

When they got back Jonathan was given permission to search for Abbat, while the three amigos were called on for another mission. They had been personally asked for by Admiral Massi, one of many former imperials that had agreed to work for the New Republic if they got to keep some of their functions.
Part 20: Carl’s Tour Around the Cluster, Part B

(incomplete)
Part 21: The Last Imperials

Luke, John and Jack were well under way, when several people entered Sam’s private cell: Jedi Masters Cho-Adi Mundi and Gerald Hunin, the Spirion officer Benjamin Turner, a Tophatanian he didn’t know and his daughter Femke. She said she knew there were things he still wasn’t telling them, so the Jedi council had given permission to try and read his thoughts. Sam himself was probably on a par with many Jedi Masters on their abilities to use the Force, but against these four he could only shield his inner thoughts. All they got out of him was “Danger… Imperial trap… Never should’ve worked with them”.
Femke wanted to send them a message, but it was too late, any transmission could be picked up by the Imperials.

The three amigos arrived at Zilcat IV, in the middle of what used to be the Empire. When they came down from their shuttle’s ramp, they were greeted by an Imperial officer, flanked by several Stormtroopers, who introduced himself as Colonel Hawley, head of Massi’s ground forces. He lead them to the admiral’s office in a building twice as high as the others in the tightly packed, yet suburban looking city. Admiral Massi explained to them that he had reasons to believe Moff Von Guericke was still alive and planning a terrorist attack on Coruscant. He was using the Moff’s former office and had picked up several messages that had been transmitted to his office automatically.
-We all believed Otto Von Guericke had been killed along with Grand Admiral Bolzano; before the whole resurrection thing, I mean. Now it appears he managed to flee that Star Destroyer before it exploded and has been planning his revenge all this time. Our latest intelligence report suggests he is currently on the planet Mikritvan, searching for the rumoured cloning facility. We have scanned the planet many times before, but have found no evidence for any Imperial base, only ancient ruins, lost in the lava flows that dominate the entire surface.
The three amigos now knew that the Admiral was lying, because a team of Ice archaeologists and researchers from Ice Energy Dep. were studying the ruins and the energetic qualities of the molten rock. They would’ve known if there had been other people on the planet. It was obvious these Imperials were part of the conspiracy; the plot of the Moff was another false risk to make sure the New Republic stayed on high alert. The amigos wanted to get to the bottom of this and decided to play along.
-My ship is ready to transport all of us there and confront Moff Von Guericke himself. I suggest we grab something to eat first, after all, Zilcat IV I known for its exceptionally large fruit.

The people in the streets, mostly Human, but also some Paragan, all greeted the Imperial officers as a sign of respect, not of fear. Before the reached the restaurant, however, John received a transmission. It was a message from Piper Ice, who was leading the energy research on Mikritvan; apparently her sensors had detected intelligent life signs on the planet, but she lacked the crew to investigate. The amigos didn’t know what to think of it; either the Admiral was right, or Piper was involved with the conspiracy. They thanked for the dinner and suggested leaving for Mikritvan immediately.

Officer Piper Ice was looking at the flow of lava behind the wall-to-wall protective windows. Suddenly, a battalion of clone troopers entered the observation room, all pointing their weapons at Piper and her assistant. She wasn’t afraid at all, the only thing she said was: “You’re early”.
Part 22: The Other Conspiracy

A rave party was taking place on Coruscant. It had spontaneously started after the reports that Bolzano had been killed. The beats felt like hammers pressing against Patrick Massi’s head. He was lying against a cold wall, a bottle of Vodka in his hand; the buttons of his Imperial uniform were loose and his shirt beneath stuck out of his pants. Scorch marks were visible al over the olive-grey uniform, including the rank insignia, which identified him as an admiral. His moustache, usually neatly trimmed and curled at the ends, was now just thick bush, barely distinct from his stubble.

A strong looking man appeared out of the shadows, putting a blanket over former admiral Massi. He instantly threw it of.


-I don’t need your pity.

-It’s not pity, Admiral. There’s a party going on to celebrate the defeat of the Empire, what do you think they’d do to you if they found a high-ranking Imperial officer. Why the hell are you wearing your uniform?
-Does, does it look like I care anymore?

The man looked away. He had respected Admiral Massi; to see him like this was terrible.

-Look at me, boy. If you still care, you’ll look at me and see that you never end up this way!

-You didn’t have to end up this way either. I was there when the fleet lost against the New Republic; I saw Bolzano and Von Guericke’s Star Destroyer explode. Just like you I managed to escape, but unlike you, I didn’t start drinking. I started thinking about our options.
-What options?

-The New Republic doesn’t have a real military and the areas they liberated are very unstable. Believe it or not, there are still a lot of people who support the Imperial cause.

-Get to the point, or I’m gonna buy another bottle of my favourite tranquilizer.

-Several of my contacts got in touch with me. Apparently New Republic officials are planning to use the existing troops to keep the order. If you recognise their authority, they are willing to give complete amnesty to those who “just followed orders”. They believe our expertise could still be useful. Of course we wouldn’t be able to do whatever we want, and our command decisions will be under constant scrutiny, yet I believe a viable way of living has been offered to us.

-What would they have us do, help old ladies across the street, solving quarrels between groups of non-Humans? The only thing the New Republic wants with us is to publicly embarrass us, to eliminate all remaining Imperial support. Go away Colonel Hawley, leave me be.
-So you do recognise me?

-Of course; it’s not because I’m drunk that I wouldn’t recognise one of my finest officers.

-Admiral Massi, what would you say if I told you Sam Darkner of the M-Tron and General Chom of the former Resistance have personally contacted me for a job. They also asked specifically for you.

-What’s the catch?

-Apparently they are planning an event to keep the war economy up. It won’t happen until several years, but the plan is to convince everybody that there are still hostile imperial cells active. If we would help “eradicate” these imaginary cells, we might get higher positions in what will eventually become an official Republic military.
Massi jumped up and almost fell down again, due to his spinning head. He had no interest in becoming the New Republic’s lackey, nor did he care for this secret plot. But if he had the funds and information to create a fake Imperial cell, he might just turn it into a real threat; he might be able to inflict some damage to the New Republic and its credibility…
Part 23: The Plot Thickens

During the initial years of the New Republic, the rings around New Valcro Prime that had been under construction when the planet had been conquered had been completed and were since being used a an orbital spaceport. Jonathan and his gang had now managed to fill them up with Urgorr’s mineral. Still baffled about what the point was, Ufon, Insectoz, Robotica, Femme and Empty Head followed Johnny out of mere curiosity. But now that he was talking about replacing some of the hardware of the tower’s main computer server and creating a short power blackout from within the underground tunnels that led the massive power lines from the tower to the city, the others demanded an explanation.
Jonathan said that the most powerful sensors weren’t present in the Treneb system, but on New Valcro Prime. Several designs, including a secret chamber in the core, had been kept secret from the Valcronian High Council and had only been included at the start of the Year of Chaos. Jonathan knew the Matrix would be destroyed, which would also limit the control he had over the other Valcros; therefore he ordered the construction of a massive, single purpose sensor only he would be able to operate through the Force, a sensor designed only to find and track the other Valcros. If it worked, Jonathan would be able to “see” were Abbat was, but first he had to beam himself down into the chamber during the few seconds of the power blackout.

The team worked hard to make sure the planetary sensor would function; keeping everything secret in case someone sided with the plot found out. Quicker than expected, Jonathan found himself in the underground tunnel. Below him he heard enormous amounts of water rushing to and from the tower and next to him was a cable, larger than himself. He put a small device on top of it and pressed down a timer. Power inside the tower and much of the city was out for about one and a half second, but it had been enough, Johnny was floating in the planet’s centre of gravity, starting his trance. He sensed the life all around him in the cluster; the sensor started to focus these feelings to his relatives; his brothers were the closest, several others were also on the planet.
Before his thoughts could linger on to Abbat’s whereabouts, he saw something unexpected: an unknown Valcro. Could he be mistaken? It wasn’t Anakin’s clone, he was on Universia. No one was pregnant, it was clearly an adult. Who could it possibly be? Suddenly he noticed something odd: this individual didn’t emit a signature in the Force, instead he absorbed all energy around him, like a black hole. Jonathan started to focus completely on this person; the other Valcros were no longer visible. A vision hit him: he was back on Valcro Second, moments before its destruction; this time he wasn’t himself however, he was inside the Sith temple, he was looking though the eyes of the secret Valcro. Impossible, this Valcro, of whom nobody knew who he was, had died there; he couldn’t have been among the survivors. To his own shame, he had to admit he had never figured out who this Valcro was, it was just an empty soul that had popped up in the Matrix, they had managed to “give birth” to him, had even given him a name, but why he was a Valcro, and where his soul had come from, he didn’t know. Somehow he had survived, somehow Janos Audron was still alive and somehow he had just shown up on Mikritvan.
Still baffled by his discovery, he contacted the Jedi and asked to send someone there. Apparently, Sofie Ice was already under way since she had heard her husband was in danger, with the Spirit right behind her. Unfortunately, Johnny’s short power blackout has caused Roger Cristel to disappear, right after they had managed to catch him.
Her engines were moments away from exploding, but Sofie had reached Mikritvan even before Admiral Massi’s ship and the three amigos. Cloaked, she landed just outside the research station and looked through the observation windows: Imperial Clone troopers held the staff under shot. Using her personal cloak she managed to slip in and overheard a conversation between the leading trooper and Piper Ice:


-You’re early…


-No, I believe we came just on time.

-You weren’t supposed to attack us until after the three amigos were here; then when you saw them, you’d shoot your way out and be beamed to Moff Von Guericke’s supposed ship.
-Shut your mouth, Republic filth. I am an Imperial Clone Trooper, I obey the Empire.

-You can quit the act; my staff and I are in on the conspiracy of false war.

Sofie sensed that the trooper was about to fire, deactivated her cloak, activated her lightsabre and jumped in between them, redirecting his shot.

A few seconds later, Massi’s ship, carrying Colonel Hawley and the three amigos, entered the system and started an orbit of the planet. Luke immediately sensed his wife below and ordered to be beamed down first. Entering the chamber, she saw the troopers and the staff both on the floor, with their hands behind their heads.


-Sofie, you’re alright.

-Of course I am. If I can handle a Super Saiyan at home; I can easily handle a few clones and some conspirators.
After they hugged and kissed, she explained how the staff was involved with the plot, and how the troopers had betrayed them.

Suddenly, Admiral Massi was being beamed down from his ship, completely tied up. They pulled a piece of cloth out of his mouth and explained that the Spirit had just entered the system. Roger Cristel and Rick Chom had boarded their ship and together with Colonel Hawley, they’d commandeered his cruiser. The Colonel didn’t really like how he had betrayed the plot for his own mission of revenge.

A flash of light from outside surprised them and the three amigos and Sofie sensed the empty Spirit, the pride of the U.L.F., had been destroyed and the cruiser had left. Sofie’s ship had no engines anymore and other vessels had been damaged by the troopers. She looked out the window to the shooting stars of falling debris, all that was left of the ship that had won them the Battle of the Great Fleet. She sighed.

-We’re stuck.

Out of nowhere a man appeared, wearing black clothes, shining armour, a black cape and red gloves. His orange-red hair and sideburns fitted perfectly with the scenery. They all stared at him as he said:


-Not necessarily…
Part 24: The Beacons of the Citadel
The first artificial wormhole opened by the Mumifar, eons ago, ended up near the centre of their neighbouring galaxy. The power of this tear trough subspace was so strong, that the tunnel remained somewhat in place, long after the destruction of the portals. Eventually the Neutrals would use these remains to create their own artificial wormhole technology.

The Mumifar colony there and the planet itself were named Qasbah. After the Peace of the Alliance and the creation of the Ancient Republic, a great Jedi Temple was built there; only the ones on Coruscant and Valinéoleffas were greater. During the First Sith War, the Mumifar remained loyal to Corna’El and the wormhole became an important route for the Sith Fleet. When the Éoleff of Valinéoleffas rebelled against Corna’El, she moved her throne to Qasbah and renamed it Citadel.
Against all odds, with the Force at their side, the Jedi moved against Citadel and destroyed the wormhole generator in orbit and many of the structures on the surface. The Sith capital moved to Ceronia, abandoning Citadel as a planet tainted by the deaths of Sith and Jedi.

Thousands of years later, near the end of the Second Sith War, Corna’El died and the Staff of Evil was lost. The Sith were destined to lose without the powers of the Staff, but the Dark Lords didn’t surrender. Four of them: the Human Darth Vatra, the Mumifar Darth Ugnis, the Cerijin Darth Focu and the Éoleff Darth Guafi met on Citadel, hoping to use the dark taint to replace the Staff. The dark side powers there wouldn’t be enough, they’d something more. After meditation and calculations, they discovered that Citadel was the orthocentre of three planets still in the hands of the Sith: Nar Shadaa, Mikritvan and an unnamed habitable world near Quruvall, where they had hidden parts of their fleet. If they could lure Jedi there and brutally kill them, they might redirect the resulting taint toward Citadel and use its power to gather the warships guarding those disposable planets; instantly transporting them here, to defeat the Republic fleet they’d trap.
The plan was formed and Lady Vatra, Lord Ugnis and Lord Focu travelled to Nar Shadaa, Mikritvan and the unnamed world, respectively, to prepare the Beacons, while Lord Guafi remained on Citadel and meditated, guiding their enemies to the right locations. A large Republic fleet appeared in orbit, while three Jedi task forces attacked the three Sith Lords. The plan worked brilliantly, Vatra, Ugnis and Focu sacrificed their lives to kill the Jedi, transporting their ships in orbit to Citadel, to engage the Republic fleet, while the beacons transferred the taint through Guafi, into the planet.
What happened next is unknown, no one ever saw if the Sith’s fleet destroyed the Republic’s; no one who travelled to the lost world of Citadel ever returned. In a matter of weeks, the remaining Sith were driven into exile, where they would remain until after the Sirian Wars.

The beacons were forgotten, tainted each planet in its own way: The unnamed world was known as the Experiment Planet, where the Force repelling nature of the world was studied. Before its fall, the Coalition found and removed the Beacon to an unknown location. Nar Shadaa became a magnet for pirates, privateers, smugglers, drug dealers and other scum. In 5023 ACM, the Jedi would finally discover and destroy the Beacon, starting a slow healing process. Mikritvan became uninhabitable due to volcanic activity; the Beacon remains in place, somewhere under the surface…
Part 25: Immortality

(incomplete)
Part 26:

(incomplete)
Part 27: Numquam Soli, Semper Tres

(incomplete)
The Return of Chaos

Prologue

In the year 5206 of the old Matrix Calendar (146 of the New Republic Calendar), Aïsha Hollings became president of the New Republic for the second time; the first time was from 5126 until 5146, during which Anakin Valcro and Mara Jade had a daughter: Lisa; after her presidency, she lead the discussions to letting the nations of the Waland Galaxy into the New Republic and 5205 saw the death of Red Sincam. During her new period of presidency, in 5210, the government of the U.L.F. was officially disbanded, its name only used to describe organisations like Ice and Blacktron. This was the end of an age, symbolically amplified by the death of Emmett Tron, who had once been Prime Minister of the Federation for decades.

Emmett was given a state funeral with military honours. Jedi, M-Tron and sympathisers from around the cluster came to pay their last respects. A notable exception was Sam Darkner, his great-grandchild. After the events of his conspiracy of false war, he had been jailed and dishonourably discharged from M-Tron. After his time in prison, Emmett had forgiven Sam, which eventually led to his re-entry in M-Tron a century later. Presumably out of grief, Sam left known space and wasn’t heard of again by this or the next few generations…

Luke became the new president of M-Tron until his retirement. The New Republic enjoyed the golden age of the “eternal” peace and one by one, the old heroes who had made it all possible died of old age: Luke Valcro, Sofie Ice, John Ice, Jack Neil, Anakin Valcro, Ken Lorren,…

A new age had started, for the first time since the Old Republic’s golden years many millennia earlier, there were no generations alive in the cluster who had witnessed a serious war. The same mistake of the past wasn’t repeated, Sam’s conspiracy had warned them for it, the military infrastructure was largely kept intact. When the New Republic started exploring more distant galaxies, with new enemies, this infrastructure proved itself useful, though peaceful solutions were rather the rule than the exception. The peace was preserved, but inequality started to rise.
“And the peace would last until all the stars had dimmed…”

Words from the final part of the historic text now known as the Story of Luke. Words based on prophecies and faith; or rather: interpretations of a vague vision from Corna’El, under the influence of the most evil artefact the universe had ever seen: the Staff.

“Destiny”, another frequent word, yet the existence of the Avatars cannot be explained by it, nor are they mentioned anywhere in Corna’El’s visions. Jedi and other scholars have long since debunked old ideas about destiny, instead defining it as the “path taken in life”, implying an uncertain future with endless possibilities.

Yet, The Messenger’s victory over the Master of Evil was still a popular story, which made people believe in the eternal peace. Their naivety would have a dire price…
Chapter 1: Visitor of the Past

Part 1: The Republic
T

he year is 17275 ACM, or better: 12215 YEP. The New Republic has renamed itself to simply “the Republic”. 4 new galaxies have been explored and most of its nations have joined the Republic. A fifth galaxy is being explored, but seems to be empty. Evidence suggests the Staff eradicated all life through war. The only nations not part of the Republic are the Tsufuru-jin, who have colonized most of the Wild Galaxy (after terraforming the planets destroyed by the Bohrok as a form of penitence), but who have great economic relations with the Republic, the secluded Theocracy of the Staff in the Darelian Galaxy, a group of systems that survived contact with the Staff eons ago and still worship it, they deny any access to their space but pose no threat, and the Federation of Sovereign States (or FSS) in the Starbirth Galaxy, a loose alliance of independent sectors and planets that have only just begun the exploration and colonization of space; they believe they aren’t ready for contact with the rest of the universe, though a few native merchants sometimes visit Republic planets. Citizens of the Republic are forbidden to visit their space, unless formally invited, according to the so-called FSS Protocol.
The U.L.F. and its organizations have been completely absorbed by the Republic, but M-Tron still exists and is increasingly popular because of new races with varying degrees of sensitivity to the Force. Its current president was Vera DeTaris, a descendant of Lisa Valcro.
The “Eternal Peace” was all but stable; terrorist cells were active everywhere, fighting the law and each other, mercenary gangs and organised crime were among the richest, yet above the surface all seemed well, and the government seemed satisfied with that.

The social equality that had been the Republic’s greatest achievement had been hollowed out completely and many citizens had to fight to stay alive, another thing that went unnoticed by the state; of course they were part of the high society. Jedi still had a good reputation, but due to financial cuts and the popularity of the M-Tron, their numbers were running low. Instead of guardians of peace they had become like clergy, merely meditating on religious issues of the Force, rarely leaving their temples, except for going on spiritual quests or collecting money for charity.

Vera had promised to look out for all these problems and had started financing the Jedi again, putting them on assignments again, working with the M-Tron and the local and Republic Police. Her concentration on law and order, instead of dealing with economics first, made the Republic look like a police state, which had not been her intention. Frequently protests turned into riots, often with casualties. This was one of the greatest crises the New Republic had faced since the Master had tried to destroy the universe. Vera’s efforts to strengthen the Jedi would be appreciated by the public in the long run, but her successors would probably take credit for it. After a year of continuous strikes and protests against her, she decided to resign from her presidency, a mere 3 months before the elections. On the night she wanted to sign the documents to end her term in favour of her Vice-President, someone unexpected entered her office: Sam Darkner.
Part 2: Time is Relative

5 months earlier…

Richard Ice and his wife Joanne Dawkins were having sex aboard their cruiser, when their crew interrupted them. Apparently, they had picked up a strange distorted signal, transmitted by an object moving near the speed of light. After analysis, they found out it was a ship. To travel at such sublight speeds is very unpractical: it’d require tremendous amounts of energy, personal time would be far shorter than the rest of the universe, both because of relativity, and stability would be a major problem.
After projecting a subspace field around the mysterious ship, they managed to slow it down and eventually stop it completely. They pulled the small craft into their shuttle bay, a rather tight fit, and when they noticed the M on the hull, security personnel surrounded it, their blasters pointed at the badly damaged ship. They blew open an emergency hatch and inside they found a man dressed in a variation of the M-Tron uniform they hadn’t seen before. He was rushed to the sickbay were he was put on life support. Richard’s team had figured out from the ship’s log that it had suffered a malfunction while inside an artificial wormhole, they had been flung out and left flying near the speed of light, unable to stop because of inertia. The computer showed that this had happened only 5 days earlier, but when they calculated the actual time that had passed outside, they discovered the ship had been travelling for more than ten millennia. Its pilot had been from another era.
As Luke had been a visitor from the future, whose actions had shaped the universe completely, this man, Sam Darkner, was a visitor from the past, who’d have a similar impact.

Part 3: Culture Shock

Sam woke up in a sickbay. He remembered the accident and expected that while he had experienced several days aboard his ship, several weeks could have past in the rest of the cluster. Nothing could prepare him for what he was about to experience. A young man entered the room, probably under a hundred years old. He had a thin black beard, slightly thicker than his own and several small scars on his cheeks. His mouth seemed locked in a smirk and his dark eyes were filled with questions. He now noticed that the emblem on his uniform was that of Ice and that the medical staff all had the symbol on their white coats. Though he had never seen this style of the uniform, Sam was relieved he was in friendly hands. The man took a deep breath and introduced himself.
-I’m Richard Ice, I’m the captain of this cruiser, we managed to stop your ship, but apparently your body wasn’t ready for the shock.

-How long was I unconscious?

-Only 16 hours, but I’m afraid some time has passed since your initial accident.

-I expected that much; I suppose you can bring me up to date when you transport me back to the nearest M-Tron base.

-I don’t think you understand how much time has passed. You see, you weren’t travelling at 99.9 % of the speed of light; we measured eight more nines after the comma.
-I can’t calculate that from my head, but that would mean millennia have passed.

-About twelve thousand years.

-That would mean not a single person from my time is still alive, except perhaps androids.

-They decided to die when there systems started to decay after about three thousand years.

-Not even androids… No wonder your uniforms seemed strange to me. It’s good to see Ice still exists after all this time.

A woman with an Ice uniform completely out of leather walked into the sickbay and kissed Richard in the neck.

-This is my lovely wife Joanne Dawkins, Vice President of Ice, I’m its president. Joanne, this is eh… I believe I don’t know your name yet.
-I’m Sam Darkner, Junior Vice President of M-Tron. Well, I was twelve thousand years ago; I don’t even know the M-Tron still exists.
-Well mister Darkner, Ice still exists, the Republic still exists, the Jedi still exist and the M-Tron are more popular than ever.

-Call me Sam.

-Ok, Sam, than you can call me Dick.

-I can’t help but notice some sarcasm in your voice when you talk about the Republic, the Jedi and the M-Tron, Dick.

-The way these divisions are funded and maintained has made the past governments rather unpopular.

-What happened to the Space Police?

-I only know the Republic Police.

-Than it’s nice to know the U.L.F. has made a lasting effect on the Republic.
-Excuse me, the U.L.F.?

-The United Lego Federation, the most important founder of the New Republic.

-Of course, the old history lessons are coming back to me now. I must say, Sam, you’re taking this shock better than I expected.

-I think the real culture shock will come when I try to use your technology or walk in your cities. But since I was trying to get away from my life, this could be the opportunity I’ve been waiting for. The errors of my past can’t haunt me here and if the M-Tron are as popular as you claim, I can rebuild my career in no time. First I’d like to go to New Valcro Prime, to meet members of the government and the senate.

-I’m afraid that won’t be possible.

-Isn’t New Valcro Prime the political capital of the Republic anymore?

-It is; that’s why we can’t go there.

-I don’t think I understand…
-In the expansion stages of the Republic, Ice proved to be very useful for combining research, exploration and security, but with the addition of several nations with races that lived for exploration, and further development of the Republic military, Ice was completely privatised, because it had become unnecessary as part of the state.

-Cut the story short, Dick.

-Ice is now an illegal paramilitary organisation for mercenaries, bounty hunters and contract killers. M-Tron are our biggest adversaries, but since you’re from another era, we’ve given you the benefit of the doubt.

-You’re a mafia.

-No, we don’t exploit people and don’t deal with forms of organised crimes; we work for anybody with money.

-Why didn’t Ice just merge with the new organisations?
-We wanted to keep the uniqueness of Ice, inc.

-I can understand that. What are you planning to do with me?
-If you’ve held such a high position as an M-Tron, you’ve probably got quite large Force powers. In that case you would make a great asset to our organisation. We can understand if you’d want to leave us, but of course we can’t allow you to join the M-Tron again, because you’ve seen too much of us. Believe me, you wouldn’t want to join them again, they’re as corrupt as we are illegal.

Joanne clearly didn’t agree with her husband and whispered something in his ear. Sam used his powers to find out what it was; apparently she simply wanted to kill him.


-I’ll leave you to rest, so you can think about what you want to do with your new life.

All Ice personnel left the sickbay as Sam tried to sense the general state the universe was in through the Force. The reality started to sink into his mind and he realised that he’d never see his daughter Femke again.
Part 4: Ice is cool, M-Tron are Hot

The next day, Richard introduced Sam to the crew of his ship. His wife was the first officer, and a Human; third in command (of the ship, not of Ice) was the Calamarian Dr. Adolph Joffe, who was the ship’s chief medical officer and had two Human assistants; next in command was the tactical officer Akia Lorness, who was simply known as “Twoface”, because she was a Bisolan, her more gentle half, Aika Lorness, was head of hydroponics. Because her two halves cooperated better than some more extreme cases like Dan/Nad Waland, she could switch between her personalities at will and keep her other half as a conscious observer. The next staff officer was the five-eyed Darelian pilot Oldan Qim, who was the ships helmsman and navigator. At the same place in the line of command was the ship’s engineer Alif Hamza, a Cerijin whose large brain was probably half destroyed because he was drunk more often than he was sober. Below them was a crew of about twenty people: four Humans, three Paragans (allowing them to carry many weapons), two young Mumifar, two Calamarians, two Darelians, an Arkaloni, a Riggva, an Oscian, a Tarren, a Linksan, a Witeling and a hybrid, who was mostly Human, but had some Saiyan DNA, probably a descendant of Luke.
Dick explained that though Ice was illegal, local authorities often asked to help their local police to apprehend criminals. The M-Tron hunted them down and were also rivals of their business, but they had worked together on several occasions. Sam could prove his worth soon, since they had made a deal with local M-Tron to end a drugs transaction.
Dick, Joanne, Twoface and Sam beamed into an abandoned space station where they had agreed to meet the M-Tron they’d be working with. Their uniforms still had the same big M on them, but the rest of their clothes were completely different. One of them, apparently the leader, had another uniform altogether: red undergarments with dark grey metal coverings and black Valcronian armour. After Richard had introduced himself, the leading M-Tron said his name was Gary Valcro, a vice president of M-Tron. The introduction seemed only formal; as soon as they had said their names to each other, a smile appeared on their face and they shook each others hands as good friends, they had known each other for years apparently. The antagonism between Ice and M-Tron he had been told about seemed far away.
-Dick, if I had known you’d be my contact, I would’ve brought a bottle of Lavoran Rice Wine.

-Gary, if I’d known, I would’ve brought some polish for that large thing you carry on your shoulders. How is the M-Tron I hate the least?
-I’ve been fine, arresting criminals like you, or just killing them. What have you been doing lately?

-Running away from people like you, or killing them. How long has it been since our last time?

-12 years. Your wedding with Joanne, remember. Still together I see.

-Indeed. Are you still dating Yamia Lorren?

-Dating her? I’ve got two sons from her: Sorollio and Mark.

-We should get together more often, Gary.

-I’d like to, but you know as good as I do that too much fraternisation between Ice and M-Tron wouldn’t be accepted.

-You’re right, as always; let’s get to business then. Where are the drug dealers meeting, at what time and with how many?

-They’re coming together on a moon of Wullioh, tomorrow at noon, standard Coruscant time. We’re looking at about 12 crime syndicate members, 20 henchmen and about a hundred mercenaries.

-Do we use our regular tactic?

-Sounds good to me: you pretend to do business with them and make sure they don’t notice the M-Tron approaching. We meet again tomorrow morning, 3 parsec south of Wullioh.
-And the drugs?

-You take a third as evidence and we split the rest in two.

-Alright, see you tomorrow.

Sam was surprised that M-Tron, as part of the government, would sell drugs. Later that night he talked to Richard to get some answers about the unusual friendship between him and the Valcro.


-Are you addicted to Lavoran Rice Wine?


-No, it’s an inside joke of ours.

-Tell me about it, I’d love to know how the vice president of M-Tron and the president of Ice became friends.

-Alright… 25 years ago the M-Tron first requested our help on a case; large amounts of rice wine were illegally being produced on Lavora, meant for the black market. At first Gary and I were highly suspicious of each other, but our work together went very smoothly, until we were discovered. As a last resort, I decloaked my hidden ship and with remote controls I fired on the large storage compartments. I didn’t know Lavoran rice wine has little to do with actual wine and has in fact a very high alcohol percentage. The liquor was put on fire and spread over the rice fields, setting it ablaze. At least five square kilometres were completely destroyed. Though he’d get in trouble for the burned fields, Gary started to laugh uncontrollably and I soon followed his example. There was only one bottle left and we decided to get drunk while the others were arresting the criminals; a few hours later, the bottle was empty and we had become close friends.
-Where did the armour polish joke come from then?

-Gary’s father was an M-Tron too, and it was him who found us, drunk as hell. Gary wasn’t reprimanded for letting those fields burn, or for being drunk. Instead, his father was angry for getting the Valcronian armour dirty, apparently it’s been in the family for quite some time.

-If you two can get along so good, why can’t you convince your men to give up the antagonism?
-It doesn’t matter if we are friends, they remain rivals, without mentioning they are part of the government and we are illegal. Normally we shoot at each other first and ask questions later.

-Something else now, are you really going to sell the drugs?

-Yeah, why not, it’s worth a lot.

-But the government has cracked down the drugs dealers; wouldn’t that put you in their positions?
-No, The M-Tron will have as much as we do, that assures there will be no open hostilities between us.

-Even so, I can’t believe the M-Tron would sell drugs anyway; they’re still a part of the government.

-Listen, I know that you were a very important member in your time, but they’ve changed as much as Ice has, it’s not your organisation anymore. By the way, the M-Tron are popular because of the job security, not because of the wages.

Sam now realised the M-Tron as he had known them were gone; transformed into an organisation without discipline, where any Force potent being could enter without selection, loyal only to themselves, instead of the greater good. If he had the chance to get in control again, he would reform them in his own image. For now he had to cooperate with Ice. They were outlaws, but he couldn’t deny that they had their charm.
Part 5: The Lone Knight
Ronald “Ronny” Lovarno was a Tophatanian Jedi Master whose student, a Jaridian girl named Sandra Tallan, had been killed by Ice mercenaries twenty years ago. Since then he had lived an isolated life on Oronox, a planet in the Rymnian province, one of the former protectorates of the Darelian Hegemony, before all states of the Darelian Galaxy (except the Theocracy of the Staff) joined the Republic. He spent his life meditating and begging, after taking a self-imposed vow of poverty. The Oronoci, Rymnians and Darelians on the planet had little respect for him, but gave him money and food because they knew he was a powerful user of the Force. A young Rymnian girl named Marisa Jo-Fay did admire him, because he had saved her father’s life. She could move things with her mind and wanted to be trained in the ways of the Jedi. Instead of contacting Republic officials, who’d probably just advice her to join the M-Tron, she went on a search for Ronny. It took her two weeks to track him down and all she got from him was a refusal. The stubborn girl decided to stay around him to take over his mannerisms and to learn what she could. When the Jedi Master went to a nearby town to meditate in the streets, in the hope some people would leave money for him, Marisa went along and sat beside him. This continued for three weeks until Ronny started to worry about her health.

-Isn’t it time you return to your family, they must be extremely worried by now.


-I told them I was leaving to become a Jedi and they were very proud.

-But you’re loosing too much weight; I don’t have enough food to keep feeding us both.


-You don’t need to feed me, just train me.


-And if I don’t?


-Then I’ll keep waiting until you do.

-I don’t know if you’re just stubborn or patient, but you sure remind me of my former student.
-Your former student?

-Sandra; she was killed because of my carelessness many years ago, since then I’ve lived here and I promised myself never to take another student.

-I understand, but that was so long ago, you need to forgive yourself and let go of those negative emotions, you’re still a Jedi.

-I see you are wise beyond your years, my young… apprentice.

-Thank you, Master Lovarno. When do we start?

-Let’s get something to eat first; you need to be at full strength for your training…

After a week of training, Marisa had already learned to fly, move faster than the eye and fire blasts of energy. Now he was about to teach her an important lesson that had been passed on from master to student for many years.


-Wake up, Marisa; it’s time to start the training.


-But according to the news it’s going to rain heavily today.


-Exactly!

The sky was already clouded when Ronny and Marisa went outside, but it was still dry.

-I want you to reach out to those clouds above, sense the miniscule ice particles clinging together, falling and melting, forming drops of rain. And then I want you to avoid all of them, stay dry as long as you can. This will combine speed and senses.

Marisa managed to avoid the first drops, when it started to rain more, she could still use her speed to evade them, but she quickly flew into other drops and she got wet rather quickly.


-We will do this every day, until we get results.

Each day she tried again, and every day she failed. One day she was fed up with the seemingly pointless exercise and used the Force as an umbrella. Ronny walked over to her, but instead of reprimanding her for cheating as she expected, he congratulated her. This was exactly the result he wanted.

-You must avoid trouble as much as you can, but sometimes you will have to fight, now all you have to do to solve this problem, is removing the cause.

Marisa thought for a while and then focused her energy towards the clouds and created a hole in them, stopping the rain.

-This is one of the most valuable lessons to teach you about being a Jedi, pass it on to your student, once you are a Knight.
The next day the two Jedi left Oronox and travelled to the more urban Rymnia…
Part 6: Double Cross
Oldan and Sam were in the ship’s canteen, trying to get to know each other.

-Stop me if you heard this one before: A Lirshan and a Fenian walk into a bar; the strong bulky Lirshan looks intimidating towards the frail Fenian, but then the Fenian says without any intonation: “I’ll have a glass of Zarsanian lemon juice, give my Lirshan friend over there the same”. Hahaha, get it?

-Actually I’ve never heard of Lirshans, Fenians or Zarsanian lemon juice.
-Right, I’ve forgot you’re from before the time our galaxy made contact with your Republic. You see, Lirshans are big and muscular and Fenians are tall but very thin. But Lirshans have a rather extreme allergy for any citrus fruit.

-Then why did the Fenian have to say it without any intonation?

-Fenian say everything without intonation, they can’t.
-If I had known all those things before you said the joke, I probably would’ve laughed. I suppose I should start to study about what has happened in the universe since I was gone and familiarise myself with the new races we’ve encountered and their history.
-Hey man, I didn’t want to humiliate you or something.

-I know, but it’s true, I know nothing of this time. Just one more thing: Zarsanian lemon juice, is that important to the joke?
-Not really, it’s more a cultural reference; Lirsh and Fenius were the capitals of two protectorates of the Darelian Hegemony, which was at war with the Zarsanian Republic, before your Republic ended it.

-You keep mentioning the Republic as being mine, how long ago did your galaxy become part of my Republic?

-You made official first contact 520 years ago, the war ended 6 years later and 500 years ago our nations became part of the Republic. Half a millennium is a long time, but both my parents fought in the war, so they weren’t too happy to become allies of the Zarsanians. By the way, what might also add to the joke is the fact that Zarsanian lemon juice is in fact a strong lemon liqueur, referred to as juice, because of the strict alcohol ban on Zarsania, before they joined.
-I’m beginning to think everybody on this ship has an unhealthy interest for liquor or drugs, if I were captain, I would see to it that no one of my crew…
They were interrupted by Dick, who said they had arrived at the meeting point. The only communication between the M-Tron and them were a set of authentication codes, confirming their plans. Making their way to Wullioh, Sam started feeling the presence of strong Force users, but Richard said these were the drug dealers’ mercenaries and undercover M-Tron and assured him there was nothing to worry about.
Joanne, Twoface, Sam and the three heavily armed Paragans beamed into an abandoned research station on the surface of the moon to meet the main dealer, a not so elegant looking Usferran, whose butterfly-like wings were severely cracked at several places. Four large Fuboni bodyguards flanked him and Sam sensed many snipers hidden in the complex. Joanne easily made a deal and the Usferran pressed a button, after which a large container was beamed into the room. “Six of these”, said the dealer and Joanne nodded heavily, until many M-Tron suddenly decloaked, their weapons pointing at the dealers and towards the snipers. Gary arrested the Usferran and ordered his men to find the other five containers. They refused the order and proceeded to arrest Gary as well. Three Republic Police officers decloaked next to them and ordered the M-Tron to arrest the Ice officers too. Gary demanded an explanation:

-What is this? I am a Vice President of the M-Tron, you can’t just arrest me!

-I’m afraid I can, Mr. Valcro. I’m Inspector Cerridwyn Ellis and these are Lieutenants Cadfael Markman and Simon Wise. We’re from a new department created by President DeTaris herself, to crack down any form of illegal activities and corruption within the police force, the M-Tron and the Jedi. The President thinks it is time we deal with criminals efficiently, instead of making deals with them.
-You have no proof against me and even if you did, I outrank you, I can pull the necessary strings to get free.

-We have recorded your conversation with Richard Ice yesterday; have had several confessions from criminals you’ve worked with in the past, found proof of government funding going to an account on your name, instead of to the M-Tron. The list goes on, but I’m sure you get the point.
-These men here are loyal to me, not to the Republic Police; they will free me if I order them to.

-Your men are loyal to themselves first, your egoism has taught them that. In exchange for cooperation, we are willing to merely reprimand them and pull them out of active duty for a month; if they help you, they face court-martial and years of prison.

-I see you have lost all sense of romanticism. Men, attack… I said: Attack!
-I’m a realist, Mr. Valcro, you should…

Before she could finish her sentence, alarms went of in the building; it seemed as if Richard’s ship was attacking them. The police’s ships decloaked to counterattack, but the cruiser turned out to be but a projection. Gary and the Ice officers used the confusion to escape and beam aboard the real ship. They made a hasty retreat and managed to go to warp before their transporter beam could be traced.
While Joanne mumbled something about being stuck with two M-Tron now, Gary wondered why he hadn’t noticed how his men had double-crossed him. While the entire crew was worrying, Dick walked in with (according to him) good news: they had managed to beam aboard three of the containers filled with drugs, more than what their deal would have brought up. Though he was opposed to selling drugs, Sam proposed going to Nar Shadaa to get rid of the shipment as soon as possible. Twoface explained to him that Nar Shadaa had been cleaned up centuries ago. The best place to sell it was Jolia, the holiday planet for the rich and the corrupt, the perfect market for the classy drugs, named “Tropalk”, they had stolen. The fact that an illegal cocktail containing Lavoran rice wine, Zarsanian lemon juice and Tropalk was popular among the crew came as no surprise to Sam.
A day later, they decided to halt their trip to Jolia because they had heard reports of a massive wave of arrests that had swept the planet; it seemed the Republic was serious about its reforms. The Tropalk was way too valuable to simply leave behind, but it was also too much to consume themselves. Richard enjoyed a line once and a while, but twenty ton was more than he could use in several lifetimes.

The bad news didn’t end there, the same day they got a message from one of their sister-ships, controlled by Vice-President Toby Qim, Oldan’s younger brother. They were having problems getting work; it seemed the seriousness of the Republic had scared their normal associates from doing business with an illegal organisation. They had also received rumours that another ship of Ice had been captured. Richard sealed himself in his room, but his curses could be heard even on the bridge. Knowing this could be a crisis Ice would never be able to overcome, he pulled out his last resort: a beacon signal, alerting all cruisers and other ships of Ice to retreat to their main hidden base for an emergency meeting. Richard set the coordinates himself and the ship was on its way to Amagosa III, where the Federation once had its own secret base…
Sam felt as if the universe had been turned inside out; a Republic filled with corruption and substance-abuse and a cleaned up Nar Shadaa. It seemed that the three amigos fixed any problem they came across in their days, including himself, ironically. Of course the naïve idealism of the early New Republic had already begun to disappear, but he had never expected it to become so rotten. Then again, the only people he had met were a group of outlaws and a fraudulent Vice-President of his beloved M-Tron, who was nearly arrested. Perhaps he had just gotten a bad first impression and needed to view more of the Republic, including its new parts. The first thing he needed to do, was escaping from his hosts; still, they had rescued him and had offered a place to stay, food and a job. Sam couldn’t make up his mind; he’d wait until after the Ice summit and then make a decision.
Part 7: Melted Ice
Helen Oswin, a female Cerijin and President DeTaris’ most appreciated personal advisor, informed her that all members of Ice would be gathering in one spot. Her personal inside source had yet to reveal the exact location, but she knew it was in a region bordering the Coruscian district. Vera knew this was her chance to rid herself from the mercenaries once and for all. With the recently captured Ice cruiser, they would be able to approach the rendezvous without suspicion. Though her other advisors opted for using the M-Tron, Helen suggested this was the perfect opportunity to give the Jedi another serious assignment. Their mental training would help conceal them even longer, while some M-Tron might not want to attack, in case Gary Valcro was there too.
A group of twelve masters and twenty knights, together with a battalion of Republic Troopers under the command of Colonel Albert Fawksley, an Arkaloni with rather sharp teeth, were all cramped into the cruiser, which was actually far too small for so many people. For the short journey they had to take however, the ship would do. Helen gave them the coordinates for the meeting and then contacted her source again:

-Thank you again for the information.

-If you weren’t the number one presidential advisor before, you surely are now. Do they know about me?

-No, they think you are onboard one of the Ice ships.
-So they have no suspicion at all about how you keep getting sources everywhere?

-No, I just say I use my female charms and blush a bit.

-Good, it’s important that my identity remains a secret for now.

-Does that still include me?

-For the time being, yes. You must trust me, I’ve always been a reliable source and my information is putting the Republic back on its feet, the Force back into balance. I must continue my meditations, see what is shown to me and find out what is important to save the Republic.

-May the Force be with you.

-It hasn’t failed me yet, may it be with you too.
The mysterious man walked into a small room with mirrors on each wall and small lights in the eight corners. He sat down on a small pillow and meditated, viewing all possible outcomes for the meeting. It seemed the two probable results were evenly possible, it al depended on the decisions of one wildcard: Sam Darkner.

Sam felt a tremor in the Force, an anxiety he had felt before the transaction on Wullioh’s moon too, but stronger. He sensed the summit would end in disaster for Ice, he had to warn Dick, but did he want to? He started to doubt, if he revolted against his hosts, he could join the M-Tron again, but if Ice did win, he might be executed on the spot. Sam realised that if he played it right, he would be the victor in any case and he didn’t have to decide yet which side he was on.

Sam went to Richard’s room and explained he sensed danger on Amagosa III, but remained vague about it. Joanne suggested he stayed in his quarters, since the meeting was for Ice personnel only. If they didn’t involve him or take his warning seriously, he wouldn’t find it difficult to choose a side. Sam felt insulted and went back to his own room.


-Joanne, that was unnecessary.


-I still don’t trust him; he used to be at the head of the M-Tron.


-Gary was an important M-Tron too, you trust him.


-He was just one of many Vice-Presidents; Sam was second or third in command.

-He’s from another time; in his days Ice was still legal and they worked closely together with the M-Tron. Remember the tale of the three amigos that saved the universe, they were an M-Tron, an Ice officer and a Police officer.
-I thought you were bad at history?

-I looked up some things about his era; what an amazing time. It seemed as if there was something threatening the universe every other day, not just evil empires, but actual demons from another plain of existence.

-Yes, incredible, but that doesn’t make me trust Sam more. He was a key figure of authority, he helped to create the Republic, while we’re outlaws; if he could he’d arrest all of us.

-Then why would he warn us for the dangers he has sensed?
-If you ask me, he’s the threat.

-Joanne…

-If he senses danger, why don’t you try to feel it? You always say you have Force potential.

-I have, I just don’t know how to use them.

-Of course honey.

-I’m an Ice, if they marry someone without Force potential, it skips a generation. My grandfather had it, my grandmother didn’t and my parents neither, so I should be able to control the Force, but I can’t even lift a rock.
-Maybe those two M-Tron onboard are of use after all.

-What do you mean?

-They’re both experienced users, right?

-You think they could teach me how to reach my potential.

-At least it will keep them busy, when they train you, they can’t plot against us.

-I’ll ask Sam to think about it, but first I’ll apologize on your behalf.
-It’s these mood swings I’m having lately; you know I can’t help it.

-I know, honey.

Dick explained his intentions to Sam and he agreed to train him, if he would become a full member of Ice, instead of provisional, and would be allowed to be at the summit, because he was a great tactician and also knew a thing or two about doing things behind the back of the Republic
. Richard agreed with Sam’s conditions and asked him about the threat he had sensed. Sam intentionally stayed vague again, but did explain to him that they would become trapped somehow, because something or someone will not be what it seems to be. In reality, Sam had already sensed that one of the ships on its way to Amagosa III was filled with Jedi, together with several cloaked devices in tow. For enough money, the captain of the captured ship had probably told them how to decipher Dick’s emergency transmission; on the other hand, he felt a powerful mind looking towards them and the system. This person felt like a beacon in the Force because there weren’t any extremely powerful Jedi anymore like the three amigos and others who had fought in the days of the Bohrok and Cell. This man wasn’t nearly as powerful as they had been, but he was clearly stronger than the Jedi Masters he had sensed on board the ships, even he could probably face them, but was still unsure if he would.
Dick’s ship was waiting on the far side of Amagosa VI, a gas giant with a strong magnetic field that would make sure their cloaked cruiser would remain invisible even for the sensors of friendly ships. The arriving vessels were all met by an automatic message and a scan that would verify if the crew was the same as the one on file. It would also see if any cloaking fields were active within the ship. Sam was ordered to use the Force to determine any threats. Three cruisers and about ten smaller ships of various sizes had arrived and landed without any trouble. Sam now sensed the cruiser filled with Jedi and apparently soldiers approaching the planet; the devices, however, were no longer in tow. This was the moment Sam had to decide. He told Dick that he sensed something strange about the ship, but wasn’t sure. Suddenly, someone spoke to him in his mind, it were the masters.

-I know you can hear us Sam Darkner.


-How do you know that I’m here or who I am?


-Our source told us about you, a man from the past and prominent M-Tron.


-What do you want from me?

-If you work with us, the Republic is willing to make you senior vice-president of the M-Tron.

-An become part of your police state?

-Police state? I think you’ve gotten a wrong perspective from that Ice scum. We know from our files that you went to great lengths to maintain a strong military in your time.

-A military that included Ice. If you make them part of the government again, they’d be a powerful asset to hunt down criminals.

-But they are criminals.

-If you’ve been reading historical files, you’d know that we dealt with the last remains of the Empire by incorporating them into our own armed forces.

-They were trained soldiers and officers, Ice are drug dealers and mercenaries. They would increase the level of corruption, not solve it.

-I’m not saying it would be easy, but I’m sure their connections and the trust they’ve created over the years would benefit the Republic greatly during this crisis.

-I suppose you won’t take our offer then.

-Wait, I didn’t say…

It was too late; the masters had severed their mental link. The cruiser was let through by the sensors, fooled by the Jedi. Sam now turned to Richard and said that it was filled with Jedi and soldiers. From the ground several particle cannons were fired and the ship was easily destroyed, but its passengers had already beamed down. Dick’s cruiser now rushed to the scene and beamed down as soon as they could. The Ice personnel and the Republic soldiers were already fighting each other on the ground; while the Jedi were firing on them from the sky. Sam fired his own blast at the Jedi and incinerated one of the masters. Impressed by his power, they now charged at him. He managed to avoid their blasts and hurt or kill half of them. The members of Ice were already evacuating to their respective ships to get out of the system as soon as possible, before more Republic ships would arrive and to warn any other Ice craft under way. The soldiers and Jedi now focused all their fire at Richard’s crew. Oldan and Twoface had been hit and were beamed on board by Adolph. The rest of the crew that had beamed down were already dead or mortally wounded, only Dick, Joanne, Gary and Sam were left standing. Alif contacted them to get away as soon as they could, because he had managed to set the base’s timer for self-destruction. They beamed aboard, together with their fallen comrades, but just before they were immaterialized, Joanne was hit in her neck by a blaster. Adolph was standing by, but there was nothing he could do for her. From a window, Sam could see the enormous nuclear explosion on the surface of Amagosa III. Joanne used some of her last strength to apologize for not trusting Sam, she would die, but he had saved them from a much greater disaster. With her last breath, she kissed Richard for the last time and died in his arms. Joffe told him that Oldan would survive, but that Twoface had been killed. Richard said nothing and walked back to his room.
Then they received messages from the other ships that had managed to escape: half of them had been captured by Republic cruisers waiting outside the system. Apparently they had created a sort of bubble around the entire Amagosa system that twisted subspace and hyperspace together, making it impossible to escape with faster than light technology, because those engines would be fried when passing the invisible border, then the Republic could just pick them up. Sam remarked that when subspace and hyperspace were pinched together, they could be used as a catapult effect. The technology had been tested in his time, but it was deemed too unstable and too unpredictable. Alif countered that the effect only happened when subspace and hyperspace returned back to normal; something was holding them together. Sam realised that it were the devices he had sensed; if they could find and destroy just one of them, the bubble would collapse and they’d be free. With the sensors of all the ships and Sam’s senses, they should be able to find out the most probable location for the devices. After an hour of processing, the computer came up with several thick spots on the bubble; Sam focused on them and quickly sensed something. Toby Qim’s cruiser fired a long distance missile at the machine and destroyed it, which apparently overloaded the other devices and made them explode too. The crews of the seven ships still inside were cheering, but then their sensors noticed a shockwave from the bubble approaching them from all directions and all the Ice vessels were disabled.
Part 8: The History of Darelia

Jedi Master Lovarno and his new pupil Marisa were leaving Rymnia and stepped on board a transport to Haros, a former independent planet that had stayed neutral in the conflict between the Darelian Hegemony and the Zarsanian Republic, together with the Independent Planets of Isa and Carrans. During the war many people had fled to the three planets, which had transformed them into busy, yet comfortable city-planets. From Haros they would go to Daroter and from there to the capital Darelia, where they would travel through the intergalactic wormhole generator that had been placed there (there were two others at Zarsania and at New Darelia). Marisa had mentioned that the generator of New Darelia was closer to Oronox than the one at Darelia, but Ronny found it important that she saw something of her galaxy first and learned its history, before leaving it. Marisa admitted that the only thing she knew about galactic history came from her grandmother’s stories about the war between the Darelian Hegemony and the Zarsanian Republic.


-Tell me what you know.

-My grandmother told me the Darelians and the Zarsanians were once part of one big republic, but the racist Zarsanians wouldn’t let the Fenians join their alliance and attacked the Hegemony and its protectorates.

-Did she also explain why the Zarsanians were against the Fenians’ membership?

-She said that their brain wouldn’t function under the weight of the horn on their head.

-And that’s not racist?

-I suppose it is.
-If you want to become a Jedi, you’ll have to look at history objectively and see both sides of the story.

-How will I know the truth then?

-There will never be one simple truth, but the Force will guide you to the answers you seek.

-How do you know the history of my galaxy? You were born before the first contact between us and your republic.

-I was one of the Republic mediators sent by President Vermillion to solve the Darelian-Zarsanian conflict. I rigorously studied your history; written by Darelians, Zarsanians, Fenians, Lirshans, etc.

-Can you give me an overview of what has shaped my galaxy?

-The oldest records I read spoke of 4 nations, about twenty thousand years ago:

The Theocracy of the Staff, which was expanding; the Zarsanian Republic, which was neutral and isolated itself; the Darelian Federation, which spread from Fenius in the west, to Moleth in the east and the Lirshan Empire, which covered a large part of the east of the galaxy.
The Theocracy was asking the peoples of Darelian and Lirshan worlds to join them in their admiration of the Staff and to “get rid of their oppressors”. The Federation and the Empire then formed an alliance and attacked the Theocracy, until only their core worlds remained under their influence. The Theocracy’s size has remained the same since then and no new conflict or even contact has ever been recorded between them and the rest of the galaxy until even today. The Lirshan Empire and the Darelian Federation split up again, as much larger entities as before.  About seventeen thousand years ago, the Darelians and Lirshans of the planet Moleth started to ask for more regional powers, because it was located near the border and had influence on both Darelian and Lirshan worlds. The request was refused and the area around the planet declared its independence, taking a large part of both nations, but mostly of the Empire. During the long war that followed, the borders changed daily and what was left of the Lirshan Empire became part of the Darelian sphere of influence that was soon named the Darelian Hegemony. The Hegemony was split in two parts, cut off from each other, on its knees, and the absolute state of Moleth attacked the neutral Zarsanian Republic. To everybody’s surprise, the Zarsanians started with immense retaliations and eventually took over the entire state of Moleth. Their victory was so great that most protectorates of Darelia joined the Zarsanian Republic, making the Hegemony smaller than the Federation had been before the war with the Theocracy. Fenius was now a border planet and after several thousand years, fascists came into power and attacked the Hegemony and the Republic. The Fenian Supreme Empire grew until the Republic and the Hegemony combined their strength and formed an alliance that would soon become the Darelian-Zarsanian Republic. After a long war and difficult talks, a peace treaty was signed that gave the Fenians their own small region to rule. The Republic kept a trade embargo against the Fenian State, which was still ruled by a fascist tyranny. When the Fenian dictator died, a civil war broke out in the State, eventually resulting in a fairly democratic system, but with considerable powers for the King, the grandson of the former dictator. When that king died four centuries later, his son tried to usurp all power by closing down the parliament. After massive protests, which almost resulted in a new war, several rebels managed to overthrow the king and restore democracy.
That was about three thousand years ago, which is when the Darelian and Zarsanian history records start to get different.

The Darelian side of the story is that they wanted to repeal the trade embargo, to which the Zarsanians agreed. When the Fenian State applied to join the Republic however, the Zarsanians heavily opposed. Signing the agreement to repeal the embargo had only been a gesture; the wounds of the ancient war would never be forgiven. the government fell and after new elections the Darelians and their supporters gained a majority. Before they could vote to make the Fenians part of the Republic, the Zarsanians attacked Rymnia, Oronox and Daroquad.
The Zarsanians say that the Fenian State first applied to join the Republic, but that they only wanted to lift the trade embargo, to which the Darelians first agreed. They both decided that it was too soon for Fenius to join them; they first had to see if their democracy would stay stable. The Darelians kept putting the Fenian membership on the table however, and the government fell. The Darelians had placed several platoons on planets that held important votes in the parliament. After they rigged the elections, they tried to make Fenius part of the Republic, but the Zarsanians sent their own military to investigate the involvement of Darelian troops and redo the elections. After slaughtering the Zarsanian peace mission, the Darelians then invaded the Zarsanian worlds.
After this, the two histories run parallel again.

After fifty years of civil war, both sides agreed that they were now in fact two nations fighting each other: the Hegemony of Darelia and its supporters, including Fenius, and the Zarsanian Republic. The war continued until about five hundred years ago, when our Republic stepped in between and got the two parties talking again.

-You call that an overview?

-I can’t make it shorter; I’ve already left out the intricate spheres of influence and their importance in the different wars; the politics behind the three independent planets; or how, in sharp contrast to our history, different views of the Force were never a factor in your history.

-I’m interested to hear about the history of your cluster.

-I’ll keep that for another day. I might know twenty thousand years of history of your galaxy, but our records go back more than one hundred and fifty thousand years, not even including the histories of more recent members and the stories of the most ancient races, like the Spirion, which are still important to understand the dark times of the Matrix, let alone the tales about the creation of the universe and the Force itself, leading to the ultimate battle between good and evil, which decided the fate of the entire universe, which happened about ten thousand years ago.
-I see…

-You should understand that in those days there were people with enough power to destroy a hundred planets in one blow, and…

-What’s going on, I suddenly feel as if my stomachs imploded.

-Many Jedi masters have just died together. Such horror sends a shockwave through the Force, a disturbance.
-I can see it, how we are all connected, who has more control over the Force and who has less.

-You are indeed powerful, I’m sorry that such a wonderful revelation must come out of such tragedy.

-Wait; there is one who is different, one who shines out above all others.

-I have felt that person too, he or she is an enigma, I can feel the presence, but can’t determine where he or she is. 

-No, I can trace it; I see it before me now.

-Don’t try to force it, let it come naturally.

-I can’t stop, the power is like a drug, or hypnotics, I can feel it reaching out to me, over the void. It can give me powers beyond my wildest dreams.

Marisa was now completely in trance, floating with an intense grey aura around her. The veins over her bald head became visible, but she snapped out of the spell and realised the temptation of the dark side.
-This was an important lesson for you, if you only crave power; you’ll become lost to the dark side. Getting rid of the addiction is very difficult.

-I know I didn’t locate the source, but I don’t think the power comes from a mortal man or woman.

-There are those among us that have received powers from beyond and those who have defied the laws of the afterlife to live here, but they wouldn’t use their power in such an obvious way.

-I mean, I do think there’s a mortal person using the power, but its source is something illusive, something on the border of this life and the next.

-You are the first to see it so clearly, I predict a great future for you. If someone is using some bump in the Force, we should find out more about it as soon as possible. Throughout the years of the Jedi order, we have “cleaned up” several worlds that have been tainted by the dark side; where terrible things have happened, where souls were trapped. This power could mean the greatest threat to the balance of the universe since the Master of Evil, and in a smaller extent, Darth Draugr, one of the last Sith. We must meditate on our trip to New Valcro Prime. I’m afraid I can’t show you the different worlds of your galaxy yet; the Jedi council and the President of the Republic must be alerted to what you have found out.
The transport had landed on Haros and the two Jedi directly stepped aboard a new ship, headed for Darelia.
Part 9: Reunion
Sam woke up in a cell without windows or a visible door. If he’d fire a blast at one of the walls, he could end up in space, so he just waited to see where he was. After about an hour, trying to sense what was outside his walls, one of them went up in the ceiling, revealing a long narrow hallway. Sam walked through the corridor, frequently having to lean against the sides to stop him from falling; whether they had drugged him or if it was fatigue, he didn’t know. At the end of the passage he saw someone approaching, when he focussed his eyes, he saw that it was his daughter Femke. Forgetting all about his weakened state, he ran to hug her. It must have been a terrible dream, all of it. Of course it then struck him that this was probably the dream; using the Force he tried to sense what was really happening and felt others probing his mind, intending to use an illusion to get information out of him; this hadn’t been the first time someone had tried to read his mind. He woke up because he had seen through the fantasy and looked at the Jedi standing outside the shields of his real cell: a Manatoian, a Spirion and a species he didn’t recognise had worked together to create the fiction inside his mind. A familiar person now walked towards him: Inspector Ellis.
-I didn’t think you’d manage to figure out our mind probe so quickly, I guess you really are a powerful user of the Force.

-You don’t know anything about me…

-Samuel Jonas Keynes Darkner; born August 26th 4842 ACM; son of Herbert Darkner and Melissa Keynes, brother of Jennifer Darkner and Emma Darkner, great-grandson of Emmett Tron and former Vice-President of the M-Tron. You married Lois Faultrer in 4922 and had a daughter together, Femke, in 4950. Your wife was a Jedi Knight and was killed while fighting Bohrok in 5006. Fearing an economic crash if the military would disappear, you became one of the leading elements of a conspiracy in 5059. After several years in prison you became an integral part of the M-Tron again until you retired after Emmett’s mysterious death in 5210. You disappeared the same year, apparently because of relativity. You were rescued by the flagship of the Ice mercenaries, to whom you felt sympathy, because the Ice of your time were noble and these people seemed underdogs in a corrupt society.
-I also owe them my life, which you just summed up quite nicely. At least I won’t have to prove to you who I am.

-Indeed, but you’re not of the hook. As I understand it, you had the chance to cooperate with the Jedi and become part of the M-Tron yet again; instead you killed them all.

-They wouldn’t listen to my suggestions, I tried to reason with them, but when they just cut off our mental connection, I had no alternative to defend myself and the people who gave me shelter, food and hospitality, while they could have thrown me out of an airlock.
-I understand your motives, but the Jedi’s pride was rather low, because of the M-Tron’s popularity. Now some of their strongest masters have been easily slain by such an agent.

-I’m as powerful as some of the strongest Jedi of my time, most special agents were. We received Jedi training to control our emotions, like pride, so they wouldn’t cloud our vision. It seems your Jedi would be better of as M-Tron themselves.

-If you play it right and combine self-defence with the accusation that those Jedi were leaning further away from the light side than is allowed, you won’t get any penalty at all.

-Are you siding with me now?

-Why wouldn’t I?

-When we first met it seemed you didn’t really like M-Tron.

-I’ve got nothing against you, what I don’t like is corruption.

-You do know that I also diverted government resources to fund my conspiracy, together with numerous other frauds.
-Indeed, but you didn’t do it to get rich, it all went to your project. That makes you very different from Gary Valcro, for example.

-I guess you’re right.

-There is only one thing we ask of you…

-Here it comes…

-We want you to witness against the surviving members of Ice and tell us everything you’ve found out about their organisation. There are still many members of Ice out there; we could sure use that information.

-These people were willing to make me one of their own, and now you want me to betray them.

-I can understand that you want what’s best for them, but we can’t let them go, they’ll just continue with their criminal activities.

-Do you know how we finally beat the Empire?

-Tell me.

-We didn’t just arrest every officer; that would require an infinite numbers of trials while those that were still free would appoint others to guide the troops that were still loyal. Instead we let them keep their job, but in a context that fitted with the New Republic. Their expertise was used for our own military, while others handled local security. It wasn’t always easy for them to accept our ways, or for us to accept members of a former dictatorship, but we made it work. Eventually the old Imperial structures became vague and transformed into our own.
-You’re suggesting we make Ice a part of the Republic again?

-Not without massive reforms of course. Their purely illegal activities, like dealing drugs can’t continue, but other things can be reshaped into a legal frame.

-Although I don’t like the thought of working together with Ice, I think your idea has massive potential. Making Ice legal could help us track down other forms of corruption in the Republic too. There is still a task you should do, however.

-Please tell me.

-Convince Richard and his officers…
Sam was taken to a luxurious room to work out his new plans. Guards were positioned at his door and on the balcony; he could overpower them very easily, but knew they were there as a test of his loyalty, since Inspector Ellis knew how strong he was. While he started to think about how to persuade the captured members of Ice, he wondered where they were and what they were thinking about their imprisonment.
Part 10: Inmates
Dick walked from one wall of his small cell to the other and back again. He tried to use the Force on the door, but as always, not even the dust moved. Angrily he kicked the base of his toilet 3 times and was surprised to hear an answer: 3 kicks from somewhere else. To make sure it wasn’t just an echo, he tapped the beginning of a tune and was glad to hear his fellow prisoner finish it. Richard was even happier to find out his new friend understood an old binary code that used short and long pauses between each sound. He learned that as a safety measure, the wall between their cells would open up if liquid was detected all over it. The wall’s sensors would interpret it as if the room had filled up with a fluid and would try to drain it through the next cell. To make sure the entire wall was wet, he had to hold in his urine the entire day, because there were no means to keep a liquid anywhere in his cell. The other inmate couldn’t do it, because he had a very different excretion system.
A few minutes before the lights would be turned off, he started urinating against the wall, until it was completely covered. For a few seconds nothing happened, but then the wall disappeared into the ceiling and the two cells became one.
The lights went out before he could see the other prisoner, but when his eyes started to adjust to the darkness, he could distinguish the obvious features of an Usferran, which explained the “different excretion system”.
Now they could finally introduce themselves:


-I’m Miles.


-I’m Dick.


-Have we met before? Your voice sounds familiar.

-I wanted to say the same thing. Are you a member of Ice?


-No, but I was doing business with them when I got arrested.

-Ah, you’re the Usferran drug dealer Miles Turaco, from whom we bought the Tropalk; I’m Richard Ice, the President of Ice.
-You mean: the Usferran drug dealer who you double crossed.
-The M-Tron double crossed us too, We barely escaped that ordeal.

-At least you got away; I don’t know how long it’s been since they stuck me in this cell.

-Our transaction was nearly two months ago, depending on how long I’ve been unconscious.

-That would make it May… I think we might get saved soon.

-What makes you think that?
-I’m part of an organisation that has planned a synchronized attack on the large state prisons on the 19th. You can come with us, but you’ll have to keep an open mind.
-That might be difficult, there’s only one terrorist group I can think of, capable of such a large action against the Republic, and it’s not like they’re the best of friends with my organisation.

-The Anarchist League is not a terrorist group! We are freedom fighters.

-I’m not going to discuss definitions and classifications now, I’d be very happy if you’d help me escape and avenge my wife.

-I’m sorry; I didn’t know she was killed by the followers of the regime.

-It’s okay; we now have several similar goals.

While Ice and the League had a very troublesome history, Richard was prepared to set those feelings aside for the much stronger emotions against those who had murdered Joanne.
Part 11: The Exile of Ice

Sam hadn’t completely figured out how to convince Richard yet, but he was already aboard a ship heading towards the state detention centre orbiting Paragall. Cerridwyn had told him they had to go now, because there were reasons to believe terrorists would attack the prison soon. Further inquiries to where the information came from had led to learning the truth about how Ice had become an illegal organisation…

-Where did you get the info about these… terrorists?
-From the same source that told us about the Ice summit: Helen Oswin. She used to be the top advisor for President DeTaris, but after the capture of Richard and a sex-scandal involving former Vice-President Conaro, she took his position. She’s already Vera’s official running mate in her re-election campaign for the Presidential vote in November.

-She’s confident enough to run for re-election? I thought the people were protesting against her because she promised to close the gap between rich and poor, but feel like she’s turning the Republic into a police state, no offence.

-None taken. Ice is already as good as dead, when we deal with the Anarchist League, the people will see that a stable nation without large scale criminals is a much better place to create social equality.
-The Anarchist League? Is that the name of the terrorists who are going to attack the prison?

-I thought Richard Ice told you the recent history of his organisation?

-He didn’t mention any anarchists; he just said they “wanted to keep the uniqueness of Ice, inc.”, that the Republic didn’t want to use the name anymore, which is why they started their own paramilitary group.

-And you believed them apparently.

-I sensed there was truth in his story, but knew he wasn’t telling everything.

-I’ll give you the long version:
About five hundred and forty years ago, the socialist president Rose Persimmon wanted to start the exploration of another galaxy. A group of Jedi and researchers, led by Ice, travelled to what we now call the Darelian Galaxy. Her Vice-President Scarlet Carmine then became President herself and was succeeded by fellow socialist Alizarin Vermillion. During his term, official first contact with the Darelian and Zarsanian governments was established and peace talks between the two nations began, mediated by us.
After almost four years of negotiations, the two sides hadn’t gotten closer to each other; in fact the war had never been bloodier. Alizarin lost the next elections to right-winged economic libertarian Bole Zinnwaldite, whose Vice-president was Allan Ice, Richard’s great-grandfather. Their ideas were that while the government should keep a strong military and police, they ought to privatize most other sectors and allow economic competition by paramilitary organisations, a category Ice would probably fall into. They cancelled the peace talks and started sending troops, M-Tron, Police and Ice to the Darelian Galaxy. The violent interference with the conflict drew out massive protests and the government fell less than a year later. Another socialist became President, Gules Amaranth, and he resumed the peace talks. This time they were successful, though long.
After two terms, the increased taxes put in place to include the new galaxy in the Republic’s social policies, while it hadn’t become part of the Republic yet, made the socialists loose the next elections to Harold Gamboge, a member of the same party as Zinnwaldite. Afraid for Bole’s and Allan’s bad image, they were cast out of the party before Harold’s campaign begun. The Right Libertarian Party didn’t have a majority in the senate however and against all odds formed a coalition, not with the liberals, but with their biggest source of criticism: the Red Anarchist Movement, who had never been part of the government before. They did have several similar libertarian ideas and agreed to minimalise the state’s presence in the private life and businesses, while keeping a strong welfare program for those who wanted it. In exchange for helping the right-winged party, the anarchists wanted to arrest Zinnwaldite and Ice for their “atrocities in the Darelian galaxy” and to show that government interference on such level would never be accepted anymore. The name Ice was then removed from any official organisation, while Allan’s son Scott, a former Jedi, started a private Ice business that offered research as well as security and paramilitary troops. The promised tax cut didn’t come however, and the anarchists were soon kicked out of the government. The libertarians formed a new coalition with the Republic Nationalist Party and much of the welfare program was cut, which would eventually lead to the social inequalities of today. With the nationalists as part of the government, the Republic soon made all external military organisations illegal, expanding its own military force enormously, which gave jobs to many of the unemployed. Ice was pushed into a corner, but agreed to only go as far as security and weapons research. The nationalists won the next elections and Tristan White became President. One of his first acts was to make the Darelian Galaxy part of the Republic. With the socialists as part of the government coalition, the state formed a rather large part of the private and economic life, while being unable to undo the neoliberal reforms of the former government. White was re-elected and the nationalists gained an absolute majority in the senate, which also meant there was a large opposition in place. Almost all parties, except for the liberals and the conservatives called out to make Ice completely illegal, especially since Allan had been released from jail and had become their de facto leader. Ironically the opposition had no problems with allowing Zinnwaldite to become part of the Red Anarchist Movement. According to the party, he had “seen the light” and realised he had been under “Allan Ice’s influence” all along.
The Darelian and Zarsanian support allowed White to become President a third and an amazing fourth time, but he realised he should make several concessions to the opposition, especially after Zinnwaldite and the anarchists had organized numerous anti-Ice protests, at which several activists and policemen had died.

When the Ice corporation was banned, they attacked the anarchist’s party headquarters and killed Zinnwaldite as revenge. The following battles between the anarchists’ militants and Ice eventually led the government to also forbid the Red Anarchist Movement from taking part of the political life, sending home their senators. They then renamed themselves to the “Anarchist League” and have performed terrorist acts since then. There were now two large and dangerous criminal organisations at large throughout the Republic and the people blamed the nationalists. White didn’t get a fifth turn and the first liberal president in centuries was elected, which was also the first Darelian president ever: Fynn Greggors. The situation got a little better over the centuries, until it escaladed again during the presidency of Vera’s predecessor Amber Chartreuse, but which had already started when Eric Malachite had been President before her. Vera won the elections nearly four years ago with the promise to increase social equality and clean up the streets at the same time.
-When you say long, you really mean long. I never would have thought Ice could simply attack the innocent people working at the party headquarters.

-You must have come to the realisation by now, that this is not the Republic you knew.

-I have indeed…

Sam was told more complex political stories during the trip to Paragall and tried to clear his head during the few minutes left before arrival.

Part 12: Choices

The Republic ship arrived at the same time as the Anarchists’ cruisers and a battle started. Sam and several troopers beamed into the facility and found militants opening the doors of the cells. When he saw Dr. Joffe exiting one of the rooms, Sam yelled that it were Anarchists that were trying to free them. Adolph grabbed a gun from one of the militants, shot him and joined Sam’s group. Using the Force, the former M-Tron found Richard, two levels down and managed to fight his way to the elevator, leaving his troops behind. Dick and Miles were helping other inmates escape when Sam saw them.

-I don’t believe it: the president of Ice, working together with the League.


-And I can’t believe my newest member working with the Republic.

-Dick, these people have killed many of your family members, they’re the reason Ice became exiled. I have convinced the top of the Republic to legalise Ice, to make it an integral part of the establishment again. It will only happen if you come with me now and fight against the Anarchists.

-And then what? Work with Jedi, let them train me?

-If you’d want to.

-The Jedi have killed my wife! I will never forgive them for what they’ve done and I’ll never work with them!

-Richard, calm down, try to think rationally.

-She was pregnant…

-What do you mean?

-Joanne was expecting our son. We only found out several weeks ago, but I already felt like a father. I understand why you’ve joined the Republic and I’m not mad at you for it, but they’ve taken away everything I held dear: my wife, my son and my future.

-How do you think I feel, I’ve woken up in a strange place, everybody I ever knew is dead, including my daughter. We all have to carry on with our lives; you can still have your company. Help us hunt down the Anarchists; if they hadn’t caused Ice’s exile, the Jedi didn’t have to attack you.

-The Anarchists aren’t the reason for Joanne’s death and you know it. If they can get me revenge, I’ll gladly forgive them for their past mistakes.
-What about your company?

-Screw the company; I loved my wife and son more than I ever cared about Ice.

-So you just exchange one feud for another. I know you haven’t reached whatever latent Force potency that’s hidden inside you, but the way you’re acting right now is the essence of the dark side.

-Spare me your lectures Sam and hope we don’t meet again.

Richard, Miles and several freed prisoners stepped inside the opened hatch of one of the cruisers, which had broken through the wall of the prison and escaped. The troops arrived together with Ellis and couldn’t believe what they saw.

-You let them escape, you could’ve stopped them with a blow of pure energy, but instead you just talked to them and let them go.

-Richard Ice has joined them.
-What? Our enemy has just gotten a lot stronger and you just let it happen?

-The man just lost his wife, his pregnant wife. I absolutely don’t agree with his choices, but I respect them. When his mind is clear, he will realize we are the best option for his future.

-He won’t have that option, Darkner, the deal is off. You’re free to go, but will never be part of any Republic organisation again.

-You’re making a great mistake, I’ve got centuries of experience to share with this generation of M-Tron.

-You know nothing of this time, you are completely useless. Someone will beam you down to the planet in a few minutes, don’t try to contact us, and hope we don’t meet again.

-You’re not the first to say that to me today.

Sam was beamed down to Paragall, together with an official passport and fifty Republic credits, barely enough to buy him food. Dumped or not, he was still one of the most powerful Force users of this time and would easily find a job…
Part 13: Revealing the Scheme

Two months later, after working in a Paragan spaceport, lifting ships and containers with the Force, flying to inaccessible places to fix things and making enough money, Sam had moved to New Valcro, because he felt something important was about to happen. While the planet kept reminding him of Coruscant, the distinctively more modern style had made him realise the differences. He now worked for a security company that checked incoming transport and trading ships, a job that suited him much more. He used the Force to check the pilot’s intentions and used his power to stop them from fleeing, when necessary. His colleagues were much younger than him; from what he had heard, they were mostly delinquents who had failed the M-Tron training program and also didn’t feel like joining the serene looking Jedi. These kids saw the Force as a toy, used it to impress their peers, trick store keepers and of course the police, and to convince others that they were right. Such decadent use of the Force was never good and without control they could easily fall prey to the lure of the dark side. Then again, there had never been a light or dark side among the Force users of the Darelian galaxy. Questions about the nature of their power could never be answered with a simple reply, but it was clear to Sam that these youngsters were in need of guidance.
They were impressed with Sam’s might and the stories from his time; they gained respect for him much quicker than he had expected and all fifteen of them agreed to be trained by him after their hours. The only problem was: what were they going to do when the training was complete? They still wouldn’t want to join the M-Tron or the Jedi and Sam had no intention of forming his own militia of heroes. If they realised they’d still be stuck in their job, they might feel as if they had been let down, or even betrayed. After a meditation session of a mere ten minutes, he realised he actually still was a Jedi Master. His M-Tron position had been reassigned after his disappearance, and they had refused to let him rejoin, so he wasn’t one of them anymore, but he had never been kicked out of the Jedi order. If he’d train his new pupils, he could teach them what it really meant to be a Jedi and an M-Tron, and officially make them knights; if the kids wanted to think of it as a separate order, led by Sam, they could, it wouldn’t make a difference.
Two weeks after starting the secret trainings at night, the seven students were already good at martial arts, able to fly, fire small blasts and beams from their hands and understood the discretion with which to use the Force, especially on other people. The only thing he hadn’t started to teach them was swordfight, because he had never mastered it himself. With a loud bang, a door to the abandoned warehouse they were training was blasted open, they all sensed it came from a Force user and when they saw two Jedi enter, they feared they had been discovered.


-You are Sam Darkner, right?

-I am, and as a Jedi, I have the right to train these people, to protect them from the dark side.

-Of course, Master Darkner, I’m not accusing you of anything, in fact I’m here to ask your help, and the help of your students, if they’re ready and willing.
-I admit, I sense no hostility from you, but the Republic made it very clear I should stay out of their way.

-I know, but I also realise you’re one of the most powerful people alive. You must have sensed it by now.

-The feeling that something’s about to happen.

-The great power that’s behind it all.

-Indeed, it feels so out of reach, yet so close, like a thought you just can’t remember anymore.

-The person behind this power is actively blocking our attempts at finding him, but my apprentice has broken trough this shield. As soon as I realised this, we travelled back here to inform the Jedi council, but they refused to act or stir up the unstable political situation even more. We decided to investigate on our own and found out a direct link between this mysterious person and Vice-President Oswin. This is how she knew about the Ice summit and the attack by the Anarchist League.
-No person can predict the future so perfectly or see into the minds of those involved from so far away. Unless he had access to a power from beyond this life, but then the souls of the afterlife would’ve intervened.

-Is it becoming obvious why we need you?

-I’ll have to discuss it with my students, but if it’s up to me, I’d gladly help you.

-I’m afraid there’s no time; I’ve heard from a reliable source that President DeTaris is about to announce her resignation because of the recent protests. If that happens, Helen Oswin will become President.

-What do you suggest?
-We storm into her office and tell her the truth.

-I guess there’s no other way, I’m in, eh, what was your name again?

-I’m Ronny Lovarno and this is my apprentice Marisa Jo-Fay.

-Nice to meet you both.

Sam’s students immediately decided to join the fight and they flew up to the old tower, looming over the great city together with the mountain next to it. They met no resistance, until they were actually in the hallway of the president’s office. The two Jedi and the students fought of the guards, while Sam managed to slip through and entered Vera DeTaris’ room, where she was on the verge of ending her term.
The President looked up in surprise and pressed a button under her desk, calling for help.

-Your guards are busy with my men, miss President, but we are not here to harm you. We came to warn you not to make Helen Oswin President. She is the pawn of a powerful mysterious person, who hides from the rest of the universe. The Jedi council has refused to listen to the evidence, but I’m sure they all feel it.

-You barge in hear and expect me to believe you? I don’t even know who you are.
-My apologies: I am Sam Darkner, Jedi Master and former Vice-President of the M-Tron. My great-grandfather was Emmett Tron, the founder of the M-Tron and I have witnessed the end of the Matrix, Valcron, the Empire and the Bohrok and I’ve helped create the New Republic. I was stuck in time, until I was rescued about five months ago by several members of Ice. After failing to bring their leader into the legal activities of the Republic, I was left behind with a warning not to interfere with the Republic again, but when a fellow Jedi warned me of the threats at hand, I could not just stand by.

-Sam Darkner, I’ve heard of you, the “visitor of the past”.

-Until now that’s exactly how I’ve felt: as a visitor, someone who doesn’t belong here, who intrudes; especially when I see what has happened with the ideals we had when we reformed the Republic. But If you’d let me, I’ll gladly become a permanent denizen and share my knowledge to bring this nation back into shape and put my mark on this time
-You put me in a difficult position, Darkner. The people demand I give up my powers to Helen, If I tell them what you’ve just told me, they wouldn’t believe me, they’d think I’d just want to save my term.

-The important thing now, is that you believe me, do you?

-Yes; I’ve got Force powers too and now I realise the strange anxiety I felt lately wasn’t only because of the protests, but that it comes from a focused source, trying to influence me, bring me down. Even now there’s a voice in my head saying I shouldn’t believe you and should sign the documents, but I understand that this is not me talking, it’s the unknown person you, I mean we are looking for.

-If he or she is able enter your mind so subtly, he or she poses an even greater risk than I had thought.
Vera called of her guards and Sam’s crew entered the office. Many people everywhere in the Republic watched or listen to the President’s speech, each of them expecting her to resign. Instead she openly revealed the plot and told them Helen Oswin would be placed under arrest, until she revealed what she knew about the person that had been toying with the head of the Republic. They would no longer be influenced by this person and listen to the people instead. The elections would go on as planned and she would still be candidate, with Sam Darkner as her running mate. He was someone who had faced many crises, but had managed to turn a young Republic into a place where all people were could be happy and any threat against the peace dealt with in a civilized way.
Sam couldn’t deny he was surprised to hear his name, but was glad that Vera didn’t tell the public about his conspiracy; of course he wasn’t sure she knew and it wasn’t the time to inform her. He would work together with Ronny, Marisa and his students to find the person behind all of it. In Sam’s days it had been the three amigos and their close relatives who’d deal with nearly every great menace and always seemed to be in the spotlights. Now he found himself in a position he once envied, but the responsibility that rested on his shoulders was heavier than he had imagined…

Chapter 2: The New Elite

Part 1: Questions and Answers
P

resident DeTaris achieved a massive victory at the elections, despite her unpopularity only a few months earlier. The opposition accused her of populism and giving the public a non-existing scapegoat to blame the transformation of the Republic into a police state on. If they had known the truth about Sam’s past, his conspiracy to assure militarization in times of peace, they would’ve had something to work with, but for now Sam Darkner was immensely popular for “saving the president” and revealing Oswin’s plot.
Before travelling to the place Marisa had found through her visions, Sam decided to question Helen personally. While he was walking to the cells, he could already sense something was wrong, he was proven right when he found neither Oswin nor her guards. The police officer responsible for the cells was baffled; he hadn’t seen anyone leave and hadn’t heard anything that might suggest a break-out. Sam sent two of his students, Alric Sudhir and his sister Kirsa, to investigate, while he flew back to the tower to check out a premonition.
He entered several names into the Republic Police mainframe: Richard A. Ice, arrested, escaped, possibly allied with the Anarchist League. Adolph Joffe, arrested, freed due to assistance to the Republic. Helen Oswin… nothing, just as he had expected, someone had deleted her name from every database connected with the mainframe, confirming that she had gotten help from other high placed individuals. Sam entered one more name, someone he hadn’t heard about since he had been arrested: Gary Valcro. Again, the computer came up with no results; Gary had disappeared from the galaxies. Whether he was part of the intriguing plot, or just used for it, was yet unknown to Sam, but he felt the mystery would be resolved before they would find the mastermind behind it all.
Alric and Kirsa came back empty-handed, they had found absolutely no trace of Helen or how she could have escaped. Sam knew that the brains behind the plot had been warned and that they had to move quickly to capture him, so he gave up the useless pursuit of Oswin and prepared his ship and its crew to travel to Marisa’s foreseen location, somewhere in the Ullian-Siwan galaxy. They had already taken the wormhole to Kamaria, the capital planet of what used to be the Siwan Archonate, when Ronny admitted that Marisa had never been able to precisely pinpoint the location, but would sense if they’d get closer. Sam sighed, but wasn’t mad; before he got the chance to comment, they received a transmission from the surface; unexpected, because they were cloaked. A Siwan in heavy, colourful robes appeared on the screen and asked for Sam.

-Vice President Darkner, the Siwan would be honoured if you’d visit our planet.


-How did you know we were here, we’re on a secret mission.

-I am Sibonakaliso, Elder-Archon of the Siwan. We have set up guest rooms for you and your crew.
-You haven’t answered my question yet.

-I know you are from a time before contact between the Republic and us, but sometimes, the Siwan just know.

-I’m afraid I have to decline your offer; our mission has the highest priority.
-I know, but I believe we can assist you. We are transmitting the transport coordinates now and expect you to beam down within the next two hours.

-Elder-Archon, I don’t think…

But it was too late, Sibonakaliso had already closed the channel. Paki Lusala, a Mattanian pupil of Sam, who had lived in this region of space during his childhood, confirmed that the Siwan had a certain mystical quality and that they sometimes just knew things, without explanation.
They beamed down and were immediately welcomed by a pompous ceremony, with military demonstrations, an orchestra and underdressed male and female Siwan dancers. All of this happened in the largest classical styled room he had ever seen. Abstract paintings covered the three hundred metres high walls and the four hundred metres long ceiling. At the end of the room four large shining silver pillars formed the entrance, from which a pink rug was rolled out all the way to them. Together with the colourful parades in front of them, the whole thing looked extremely kitschy. The Elder-Archon and two similar dressed figures, surrounded by three guards, walked over the pink carpet to meet them. Sibonakaliso introduced his second in command: Archon Gamyuka, and his minister of defence: Archon Bhekizitha. After several formalities in front of the local media, Sam, his crew and the Siwan Archons retired in a much more modest chamber, with just a white wall, a large red couch and a wooden table; yet somehow it seemed as kitschy as the former room. A servant gave them all a salty blue tea, which tasted mostly like fish, apparently the main export product of Kamaria.
After finishing his cup, Bhekizitha came to the point: about fifty years ago, the Siwan Jedi Master Samanya predicted the unexplained implosion of several stars very accurately. When he predicted the end of Coruscant’s sun, a massive panic broke out and people tried to leave the planet. The date came and went, but nothing happened. He kept warning that their star would go nova soon, but everybody moved back to Coruscant. Samanya became catatonic after the incident, but started talking again after three years, and was expelled from the Jedi order. Several knights still believed his predictions and unsuccessfully tried to warn the people of Coruscant again; they also got expelled. The council warned that anyone who aligned himself with Samanya would be stripped of his title as Jedi. At that point, he came back to his home galaxy, together with about a hundred followers and was never heard of again. Until today there are still no signs that the Coruscant system is in any danger. If anyone would be able to precisely predict events, it’s Samanya.
Sam took the advice very seriously and together with his pupils, studied everything about this Siwan Jedi; he had already heard about him in passing, Samanya was still infamous half a century after his disappearance. Cassandra Mycen, a female Human, made a startling discovery while reading through Samanya’s old predictions:
“A man from ancient times will appear, but while he tries to better all life, he will bring forth death, because in his wake the shadow of war will engulf the known universe and the struggle for existence will have begun. One could betray him, one could kill him, one could save all, but won’t.”
Cassandra held the information to herself and hoped this Jedi was indeed just insane.
Part 2: The Ending of Lives
The CDR, Citizens for a Democratic Republic, had been protesting against President DeTaris for over two years and its head, the Spirion Naurius Fares, didn’t understand how she had been re-elected, even after the Oswin debacle.

After extensive research, including bribing officials, he finally found what he was looking for: proof that Sam Darkner had rigged the elections. Unfortunately for him, nobody believed his story. One day, when he came home after protesting in the upper levels of New Valcro Prime, he found that someone had slipped a note in a pocket of his coat, which fell out quickly, since his clothes had only been morphed and he always returned to his neutral humanoid state at home (the shapeshifting Spirion had worn their blue stretch suits/armour for millennia, but the general public often associated it with the Valcronian regime, which is why since the early days of the New Republic the Spirion often create clothes around them when outside. This transformation uses little enough energy to be preserved throughout the day. Ordinary clothing nearly always irritates them). Naurius was surprised someone had been able to get into what was essentially a part of his body, without him noticing. The handwritten letter itself was even more intriguing:
-I have a way to bring your proof to the public, but there are those who would try to stop you in any way possible. A trip to Brasalia has been arranged for you under the alias “Nathan Feltz” and leaves tomorrow at nine in the morning; you should arrive there the next day. Disguise yourself as a Mumifar tourist and wear a red and golden coloured headcloth. We will meet near the holographic statue of Ashgar Sagre at noon, local time. It is imperative that we meet in order to save democracy.
The letter failed to mention how he’d recognise this strange benefactor or which hologram of the mythical hero Sagre he meant, there were five in the capital alone. Nevertheless he took the offer, travelled to the home of the Spirion and disguised himself among his own people. It took him four hours to visit each of the statues, but no one contacted him; after each visit he thoroughly checked his pockets to see if he had received new instructions, but none were there. Naurius returned to his hotel room and wondered what had gotten in to him to accept the mysterious offer, while he had a lot of work to do for the CDR. When he turned on the news, however, he received the biggest shock of the day, as the journalist read her story:
-A demonstration of the CDR turned violent today when several of the protesters started throwing explosives at the police, after which they opened fire. According to the organizers of the manifestation, members of the Anarchist League joined the protest rally against their wishes, only with the intent of causing trouble. Three policemen and ten protesters were killed in the pandemonium that followed, including the founder of the CDR, Naurius Fares. This footage shows the renowned pacifist trying to calm down both the police and the protesters, when a small explosive is dropped next to him. Like all Spirion, his body dissolved into blue energy when he was killed. Republic officials express their condolences to the families of all those who died yesterday and promised to look into the incident; though this has not been the only time victims have fallen during protest rallies against President DeTaris.
Naurius looked at the images over and over again; his look-a-like had all the details right, even his body language. The first thing he wanted to do now was tell everybody he was still alive, but quickly realised this was the reason he had been sent to Brasalia; someone had gone through much trouble to fake his death, but why? To protect the evidence, or to make sure it never reached the daylight? Was someone actually ready to sacrifice himself in his name, or was the footage also false? Naurius, or Nathan as he should call himself now, had many questions, but first he needed to rest, he’d have a clearer look on the situation in the morning…
A small heap of white powder was divided in two lines on a mirror. An improvised straw quickly rushed by them, making sure every particle was sucked up and found itself a way into the nose of Alif Hamza. Normally he’d only drink large quantities of alcohol, but recently he found it just not satisfying enough. The immense euphoria caused by the Tropalk vanished as quickly as it came, the main reason of its addictiveness, but left him with a sense of arrogance and a bloody nose. Like most members of Ice that had been captured at Amagosa III, he had been freed by the Anarchist League, but unlike most of them, had refused to cooperate with the terrorists. The most difficult thing for him to accept was that Richard Ice himself had joined the League, the mortal enemy of Ice. Without a central leader, their organisation was doomed; the feeling of defeat among the remaining members had only sped up the process. Alif’s expertise as an engineer would easily get him a job, but he didn’t look for one because of his low self-esteem and his hate for Dick, who he blamed for everything. He had tried looking for him on several occasions, but his health was quickly deteriorating because of his substance-abuse. The drugs did make him think very logical for a moment and he got an idea: if he couldn’t find Dick, he’d find someone to do it for him.
Alif contacted an old friend who still owed him a huge favour and asked him a simple thing: to find Richard Ice, and kill him!

Part 3: Anticlimax

Sam’s search had brought him and his crew to New Idowu; it was custom for the species of this galaxy to name any newly discovered habitable planet without intelligent life after an already existing planet. In the early days after first contact, many people in the Republic had mockingly called it the “New Galaxy”. The ridicule stopped after the locals pointed out that their own capital was called New Valcro Prime. While the original Idowu was a busy urban metropolis, this backwater planet only had mines for iron, copper and tin, an industry that had completely collapsed because of the remoteness of the planet, the commonness of these metals and the fact that most of the mines had already dried out. The local inhabitants tried to promote tourism by turning the large holes left by the mining into lakes and by calling themselves “the most eastern populated planet of the galaxy”, but this had not attracted many visitors. Many denizens had left the planet and most of those who had stayed behind had become farmers, which was the only way to provide for themselves. This way of life seemed satisfying enough for the current residents and all things considered, New Idowu was not that bad a place to live. Sam Darkner’s first impression of the planet was “comfortable”, but he had no time to contemplate the romanticism of the pastoral communities, after all, they were still searching for Samanya.
Marisa was certain that they’d find something here that would lead them directly to the mysterious power, but for some reason she wasn’t convinced that it would turn out to be Samanya. This belief was tested when out of nowhere a Jaridian woman in green Jedi like robes, wearing her hair to resemble that of the Siwan, showed up behind them. She spoke to all of them but held her eyes firmly on Sam.

-You seek Samanya.


-Yes, are you one of his students?


-Many have tried to find him, many have failed.


-We only want what’s best for the universe and the Force.

-That was true, not long ago, but now you only seek what’s best for the Republic, which isn’t necessarily what’s best for everyone. You feel like it is your child, the only link to your past now that everything else you once cared about is gone.

-How dare you…

-I meant no insult, your goals are noble in your eyes, but if you can’t see beyond them, you shan’t find Samanya.

The woman now shifted her gaze towards Marisa.


-You do not seek Samanya.


-I’m eh, only looking for a power that is threatening to unbalance the Force.

-You do not believe this to be Samanya.


-I will not suspect someone unless I have proof.

-Your intentions are pure, you will find Samanya, together with your group and then you will all be convinced that the master is not a menace.

Sam was becoming impatient and interrupted her.

-Listen, I respect your mystical way of talking, I find myself doing it too, when I teach 
my students about the Force, but frankly, we don’t have time for this. Can you bring us to your master or not?

-I see patience is not your greatest virtue. I can bring you too Samanya, but it will not mean that you’ll have found him.

Puzzled by her last words, they followed her into an abandoned mining shaft. It was clear that it had once served as a makeshift home for the exiled followers of the Siwan master, but now the tunnels were empty. After a descent of half an hour with an old elevator, they came into a great cave, lit by exactly sixty-six candles. In the middle of the room a large stone was carved out of the rock. Sam couldn’t read the engraved text and called Paki Lusala to translate it for him:
Here lies Samanya of Kamaria, former Jedi Master and prophet. May his visions guide you to find him and pass the test.

Sam hadn’t thought of the possibility that Samanya could be dead and asked the Jaridian girl about it. She explained that after coming here, he had prophesised his own death. His disciples were shocked to find that he didn’t try to stop it; he was looking forward to becoming one with the Force and knew that he would live on in his teachings.

-In about one month it will have been six years since one of these tunnels collapsed on top of him. After that we felt we couldn’t stay here and left. I am here now to prepare the pilgrimage that takes place each year in secret.
-And the test that is mentioned on his grave?

-You will find out in due time. Now you should go and not speak of this place and what you have found out. I hope I have convinced you that the master is not behind the plot you are trying to uncover.
-I am glad for you that Samanya is not the one we’re looking for, but our search has to start over again.

-Visit the Duke of Briot; he shall help you on your search.
-Thank you, but before I leave, I’d like to know your name.

-Though it is not the name my parents gave me, I am called Muktika.

-We apologize, Muktika, for believing Samanya to be behind this plot.

-Your Human curiosity is a virtue, there’s no need for an apology.

As they left the mine, Sam felt that they had not seen the last of Samanya’s cult.
Part 4: Riddles With Few Answers
Naurius hadn’t left his hotel room for the following three days, as he somehow expected someone to tell him what to do next. Meanwhile, the weather outside, in the Brasalian capital, did not implore him to go out for a walk anyway; it had been raining for two days on end. The subsequent day, however, was sunny again, but Naurius had no chance of finding out, as he was no longer on the planet.
He woke up with an immense headache; strange, he didn’t remember drinking anything the previous night. When his drowsiness started to wear off, he noticed that he wasn’t lying in his bed; in fact he wasn’t in his hotel room at all. Suddenly wide awake, his hangover forgotten, he started surveying his room; there was no visible door or window, but faint red light did stream in from a crack in the low ceiling, which wasn’t even high enough for him to stand up. Peering through the crack, he saw several wires, illuminated by several warning lights, indicating that these systems could break down any minute now. Naurius morphed into his state of pure energy, to move through the crack, but was surprised to find a shield in place. Before he could blast his way out, the floor sank beneath his feet, elongating his small cell, until a man sized hole appeared in the wall. He quickly walked through the doorway, as the floor started to rise again, and was immediately greeted by several people of various species, but with similar green robes and Siwan hairstyle. They welcomed him in their midst, but Naurius quickly threw of their reception and demanded an explanation.
-I am Kaushitaki, the first disciple of the great Samanya; I sent you the note and arranged the trip to the home of your species.

-Did you also fake my death?

-The one that took your place only had a week left to live; he felt this was a better way to die than to simply scatter into energy out of himself.

-I guess Samanya told you I was going to die and you felt you had to rescue me?
-It is a crude description, but fairly accurate. We did not want the known universe to discover your unique ability just yet.

-What is this supposed ability that apparently requires me to die before I can show it.

-Unfortunately, we cannot tell you.

-Don’t get me wrong, I’m very grateful you saved my life, but why kidnap me like this; why not simply meet me in the hotel?

-We didn’t save your life.

-And you didn’t answer my question. I know the Siwan like to talk in riddles, but I’d like some answers.

A Riggva, who looked out of place, since his reptilian species didn’t have hair and had quite a different facial structure than most races, stepped up and interrupted Naurius.
-How dare you talk to him like that, show a little respect. This is Samanya’s first student and our de facto leader; he took a great personal risk coming here himself to collect you.

-Collect me? What am I, some curious artefact?

Kaushitaki intervened before they could continue.

-Naurius, please forgive Skanda; we do not often get visitors who are unaccustomed to our ways. Skanda, please forgive Naurius; he has no reason to respect me, as he does not yet know me. Earning it will have to be my effort, not his or yours.
Naurius Fares, since you know of Samanya, you also know that we operate in secrecy; which is why we could not just walk into the hotel by day. Our plan was to have Helen Oswin as the next president of the Republic. We pulled the necessary strings, sometimes more morally ambiguous than we like to admit, but always essential. Unfortunately there was one wildcard, someone unpredictable: Sam Darkner. Though we don’t blame him for trying to unravel our plot, we respect his wish for the truth, we are now left without one of our own in any crucial position. Since you are also not satisfied with the current leadership, we thought we could work together to change this mistake.
-I don’t know what to say, but you should know I strive for democracy, I’d never agree to simply make someone president without the consent of the population.

-Samanya has foreseen things that require someone who knows how to deal with it, who knows what is coming and possibly even stop it.

-Like what? The destruction of Coruscant? I was there when they evacuated us because of Samanya’s prophecy and I returned there soon afterwards.

-The fact that Coruscant’s sun didn’t explode is the proof that there was someone intelligent behind it. Something big is going to happen and we have to stop it!

Naurius had never seen a Siwan get angry before and the sight was not pretty. The beautiful features of his face instantly seemed grotesque and his skin turned into a nasty shade of purple.
-You are as crazy as your master. You’ll go insane when this horrible prophecy doesn’t come true.

Skanda started shouting “how dare you” again, but Kaushitaki seemed to have cooled down.

-Apparently I was wrong in thinking you’d help us; we will drop you of at our next stop on the way to New Idowu.

-In your home galaxy? I’d expected you to be on your way to New Valcro Prime to usurp the presidency or something.

-We are starting a yearly pilgrimage. We will only stop at New Advar for fuel; you can get of there, unless you change your mind on the way.

Naurius couldn’t think of any reason he’d stay with these nutters, but then again, they did predict his death and saved his life. He was also curious what “special powers” he was supposed to posses, but it might all have been a ruse to get to the evidence he still had against Sam Darkner. His life as he knew it was over, everybody thought he was dead; when they arrived at New Advar he finally made up his mind: he’d stay with them, but wouldn’t become part of their cult, or help them with their plans. Though they both protested, he now shared a room with Skanda.
Part 5: The Duke of Briot

Bernard Vurran, a Rodian pupil of Sam, walked into his teacher’s room.

-Sir, we’ll be entering the Briot system in less than an hour, shouldn’t we start preparing ourselves?

-I am, Bernard; I’m reading up on Ullian history. It seems the northern part of this galaxy was once one big kingdom, its last monarch, King Desmond Dinan III, had been killed before pointing out his successor. His three children, Vincent, Lloyd and Harrietta, fought a bloody civil war until the Treaty of Nudrev divided the former Ullian Kingdom into three main parts: the Ullian Regency, the Ullian Principality and the East-Ullian Princedom, and several smaller parts, including the Ullian Duchy of Briot, led by Duke William Nugent.
When these parts joined the Republic, the royalty and nobility kept passing on their titles to their children, though they only had ceremonial powers. It seems we have to find the current Duke of Briot…

-I tried to look it up, but the line of dukes doesn’t seem to have been recorded since three thousand years ago.

-Bernard, you should know by now to trust your feelings; The Force will guide us to the right person.

-I didn’t stop looking there sir, it seems the “Duke of Briot” is an eating establishment.
-A restaurant?

-Not really, Ullians don’t have large meals, they just eat small things during the course of the day; it’s more like a café.

-I’ve read their political history, but it seems you can tell me more about the species itself.

-Yes sir, I’ll try. Well, they look quite the same as the Siwan, comparable to how many species resemble Humans, except they have more varied hairstyles, are quicker to let their facial hair grow, have rougher voices and they don’t have a mystical glow around them. Their sense of fashion is equally bad though, most of them wear tabards, which quite resemble two pieces of carpet sewn together. Family history and honour are important to them, but not as much as beer. Besides eating all day, they also drink all day. In the days of the Ullian kingdom, it was not unknown for royal banquets to last weeks on end, while several house guests died of alcohol poisoning. Personally I think most rich or high-placed Ullians are obnoxious and full of themselves. The rest of their species is much more enjoyable and unpretentious, having had a history of slavery to the Dinan Dynasty. Ideological differences have nearly always been the main reason of the many wars they’ve fought out with the Siwan Archonate which occupied the south of this galaxy.
-I can’t see how you ever dropped out of your history studies at university?

-Eh, I got addicted to Tropalk and Ceri-Endorphin, a powerful opiate produced by the brains of Cerijin, as a reaction to their high sensitivity to pain.
-I know the drug; it already existed in my time.

-I’m sorry sir, I was under a lot of stress, and…

-No need to apologise, Bernard, we’ve all done things we’re not proud of, but we can’t change the past. Let’s get ready to visit that restaurant.

-Café, sir.

-Whatever you want to call it.

Sam, his students, Ronny and Marisa entered the “Duke of Briot”, a small, dark and not so clean establishment, where a few Ullians and several other species were eating. It certainly looked like a restaurant to Sam, but then again, there were no large dishes. Unsure what to do next, Sam asked the first waiter he saw if he could see the Duke himself. The waiter laughed, but recognised him as the Vice President and led them to the backroom; he showed them the door of a small office and vanished back into the café. Sam decided to knock, and a voice at the other side implored him to enter. He went in alone as there didn’t seem to be much room. A scruffy looking Ullian with a large auburn moustache sat behind a chaotic desk and was finishing up a conversation with a holographic projection of a man; it could have been a woman too, because the image and voice were both distorted by the old projector. On the desk Sam saw a small plaque that read:

“Lord Viktor Nugent, Ullian Duke of Briot”
Viktor’s conversation had ended (or the holographic projector had stopped working) and turned to Sam.


-I’m not selling the place! Tell those loan sharks they’ll have their money next week!


-I’m not here to buy your restaurant, Mr. Nugent.

-First of all, it’s a café, not a restaurant; secondly, if you’re not here to buy me out, you can call me Viktor!

The Duke hadn’t opened his eyes since he had started speaking to Sam, but now that he knew he wasn’t there to take his establishment away from him, he dared to look at whom he was talking and instantly lowered his voice.


-Mr. Vice President, I’m sorry I yelled at you, what brings you to my humble café?

-Is there a room where my friends could join us, I’d like them to be there when I start discussing why I’m here.
-Of course, sir, please follow me to my adaptation room.

With difficulty, Viktor got up from his chair, greeted his other visitors and led them further down the hallway to an empty black room, where he started to turn a knob in the wall. First the room transformed into a bedroom, then a lavatory and then a large crooked table appeared. He pressed down a few buttons and enough chairs appeared for all of them.

-It’s a cheap adaptation room; the nanotechnology only allows several preset variations, and then still all in the same dark colour.

-It will do, dear Duke.

-Nobody calls me Duke, when my father pointed me out as the heir of his title and his café, my brother was so jealous he left the planet and never came back. If he saw me now, he’d laugh himself into a cramp.

-We were led to you by a mysterious woman…

Marisa knew the man needed something to boost his morale and interrupted Sam.


-We were told only the Duke of Briot could help us on our quest.

-I can’t see what you want from me, you’ve already seen everything I possess, And I don’t think I’ll own it much longer. I guess the prophecy was right.

Ronny stared at him intensely and joined the conversation.


-What prophecy?

-A week before my father died, I was confronted by a follower of Samanya, back in the days before they were exiled. He said if I’d accept the title of Duke, I’d know only misfortune, but if I gave it up, I’d live a happy life. I thought my brother had put him up to it, but it turns out he was right.

-Did he say anything else?

-No, but when I refused the offer, he gave me an amulet, a good luck charm, blessed by Samanya himself. After the incident with his prediction about Coruscant, I threw it in a safe.

-Can we see it?

-You can have it, I tried to sell it a few years ago; it’s worthless.

Viktor left the room and came back three minutes later with a blue gemstone, attached to a metal chain.

-I thought such a stone would still raise you some money?


-I thought so too, but it turns out to be a cheap industrially made crystal.

Sam suddenly had an epiphany.


-Did you ever hold that stone up to the light?


-Yes, why?


-Did you ever see the pattern in which the light scattered?


-I don’t think so; I just looked at the stone itself when I held it up to the light.

Sam took the amulet and held it close to the light in the ceiling. The room was now filled with blue light, but shadows of seemingly random letters appeared also. Sam’s intuition was right and he ran back to Viktor’s office and replaced the holo-projector’s imaging crystal with the amulet and turned it on. Though the old machine’s projection was distorted, he could still read the holographic text:
Visitor from the past, if you seek me,

you must take the test,

go to the place where I rest

and you’ll find me.
-Samanya of Kamaria
Sam swore under his breath, he had just travelled across the galaxy, only to find out he had to go back to New Idowu.

Part 6: The Test

Didn’t she warn him? Hadn’t she told him it was a mistake to return to New Idowu? It was too late now; chaos had erupted around them, there would be no chance to escape, he’d surely die there, in the tunnels below, she couldn’t save him now…

Cassandra woke up from her nightmare and her screams woke the others in her room, Marisa and Kirsa. She explained her dream to them, her vision; and while Marisa kept listening, Kirsa fell back to sleep, dreaming peacefully of an attractive man she had seen in Viktor’s café. Marisa believed Cassandra’s nightmare to be a premonition and they walked through the hallways of the ship, which were empty except for the small crew of the nightshift and several guards. They expected to wake Sam, but were surprised to find them bent over a stack of books. Marisa glanced at the titles, which varied from scientific novels such as “Genetic Links Between the Siwan and the Ullians”, the political like “Archons and Kings: From Dictatorships to Democracy”, to the cultural as “Siwan Sagas & Mythology” and even a modern fictional tale: “The Siwan Spy in the King’s Court”. Cassandra explained her dream to him, but he assured her that if anything was wrong, he’d be able to sense it. He’d investigate every tremor in the Force and notify them immediately if there was any disturbance.
Naurius watched as more people dressed in green walked past the grave of Samanya, some laying flowers at the base of the tomb, others sobbing without control. The last one to approach was a Jaridian woman, who poured a cup of Siwan tea over the letters that had been engraved in the stone. This was apparently a common ritual, since it surprised no one but himself. It hadn’t been the first surprise though, he would never have guessed Samanya had been dead for several years nor would he have thought his followers to be so plentiful. Hundreds were now standing in the crowded cave, singing a song of mourning in a language he didn’t understand. Feeling he should let the followers grieve amongst themselves, he walked out of the mines and sat on the banks of a lake, gazing at several peculiar stork-like birds diving into the water, staying under for half a minute and then returning to the sky with a silvery fish shining in their beak. Behind him he heard the familiar sound of a transporter and as he looked over his shoulder he saw Sam Darkner and several of his students materialize in front of the entrance of the cave. Before realising what he was doing, Naurius ran up to the Vice President and shouted he had evidence of his fraud.

-Calm down, what fraud?


-Your rigging of the elections!


-What are you talking about, who are you?


-You know who I am, you had me killed!


-If you’re dead, how come you’re here?

-Samanya’s cult believed I’d expose some secret powers I don’t even know I posses, so they faked my death and took me here.

-Now I recognise you, you’re Naurius Fares, leader of the CDR.

-I was their leader, now everyone thinks I’m dead.

-I don’t know what evidence you supposedly have, but the elections were honest, there was no fraud.
-Then why were there five percent more votes than there were voters. Did you think nobody would double check the immense number of the electorate?

-Why would anyone increase my number of voters with five percent? We won with a much larger margin.

-I don’t know; maybe you thought you’d lose from the candidates of your coalition partner in the government, that they’d flip the balance.

-The candidates from the Socialist Party didn’t even survive the first round.
-Indeed, but without the extra five percent, they would’ve gone forth along with you and the liberal candidates. Had there been a three way vote in the second round, you might have lost against one of the others.

-How would I have foreseen the voting intentions of countless citizens?

-You’re one of the greatest Force users alive, Mr. Darkner, you tell me.

-No, there’s only one group of people who have managed to predict the future so carefully and… they’re right below us.

Comprehension poured itself into Sam’s mind: if anyone could have rigged the elections: it would be Samanya’s cult, but Naurius didn’t believe him.

-Their plan was to have Helen Oswin as President; they think you’re too 
unpredictable.

-But when we discovered Helen’s plot, they had to change their plans, didn’t they? They had to have someone they knew would try to find them and communicate with them, someone like me.

Naurius contemplated Sam’s reasoning, but before he could make up his mind, Kaushitaki appeared from the mine shaft.


-Sam Darkner, you have returned from Briot.


-Why did I have to go there, to find out I had to come back here?

-During your absence, we have prepared the test and completed our yearly pilgrimage. Come with me if you want to find Samanya.

Though highly suspicious, he followed Kaushitaki into the mines, back to the tomb and through a secret passageway beyond it. He led Sam into a cubical room with mirrors on each wall and lights in the corner. Kaushitaki closed the door and told him to meditate.
After an hour alone in the silent room, he started to feel drowsy and wondered if there was sufficient air circulation. His reflections seemed to be moving differently, yet with the same feeling of lethargy, but then he saw it: the furthest reflection he could see moved first, followed by the ones in front of it and eventually himself. Was he looking into the very near future, or was this just an optical illusion? Testing his reflections, he pulled out a scarf from his pocket, and sure enough, the visions in the mirror had been faster than him. He made several random movements, performing a mad dance, moving nearly without thinking, while still checking the mirrors. Most of the distant reflections had moved in the exact same way, but some of them did a different dance. This confirmed Sam’s idea: the mirrors showed the possible future, what might happen, not what will happen.
He returned to his meditative state and tried to envision other events in the mirror; he saw himself leaving the room, the further he walked, the more blurred he became as the possible versions of his movements overlapped each other. One of the Sams stopped by the tomb of Samanya and rested his hand upon in it, looking worried. Several others turned around and did the same. Eventually nearly all versions of himself were inspecting the tomb, when the ceiling came crashing down on them. Some were killed instantly, others held back the rocks with the Force, until they drowned in the water streaming in from the lake above. The vision cut away to the three Sams that hadn’t returned to the tomb, running away from the advancing water and flying right out of the mineshaft. The movements of people outside were an immense blur as the three versions of himself split again into multiple possible futures. After a few seconds the scene was one grey smudge and he woke up from his trance. The door behind him was open and he strode out, not once looking back at the room of mirrors, speeding past the grave of Samanya, from which he felt a strange disturbance. One moment he thought of going back to find out what was causing this wave in the Force, but remembering his vision, he ran away just in time, as the room behind him collapsed. Water started to fill the tunnel and he flew upward, past the lift, to the exit above.
Kaushitaki wasn’t surprised at all when Sam explained what had happened.

-You have found Samanya: you have saved your life by watching the probable future.


-Why didn’t Samanya do the same to save his?

-You saw several futures; I suppose you survived in some of them?

-Of course, but even if I hadn’t, I would have known, I could have changed it.
-Samanya did not see any future with him alive, he knew it was his destiny, the will of the Force; that is why he let it happen. Changing it would have introduced an element of chaos, a great disturbance. In your time and before it, beings from beyond this plane of existence wanted to use their power and knowledge to transform the universe to their liking. These interventions destabilized the universe and the Force, which is why the Messenger was created and why he could not use his powers except to fight those divine or demonic trespassers. That is why Samanya chose to die.

-And Coruscant?

-That was different. Our leader thought that a demonic being was behind the exploding stars, but knew he would not be able to stop him. Instead, the only thing he could do to minimize the damage to the fabric of space, was to prevent the denizens of Coruscant from dying an untimely death. The unknown demon then aborted his plan altogether. Samanya couldn’t cope with the fact that he had changed what was supposed to happen, he had destabilized the Force, because the demon hadn’t interfered this time.
-Did you ever find out which so-called “demon” caused these attacks?

-No, our leader warned that he might try to do something similar again, but it was too far in the future to see clearly. He did refer to the old Siwan story about the oldest brother amongst five demons. He tried to usurp the throne while the others tried to free their father, who had been imprisoned. It resembles the actual story of the Horsemen, but they have been defeated in your time.

-Indeed. Though I heard they still reside in the underworld, powerless. If they’re planning to return and are already strong enough to cause supernovae, they must be stopped at all costs.
-We cannot act before they do, it is what they expect. We would cause the damage for them.

-I understand your reasoning. That leaves me with just one question: did you rig the elec…

Sam was interrupted from his conversation by a message from the ship. Apparently something had happened back home and they had to return as soon as possible. As Sam and his students bade their farewells to the followers of Samanya, he suddenly realised a flaw in the story: if Samanya only saw the possible futures as they were supposed to happen, how could he have predicted the chaos caused by the Horsemen?
Part 7: Murder and Assassination

Richard Ice sat at a table amongst people he had started to call friends recently. If they would have said to him a year ago that he would be working together with the Anarchist League, he would have thought they were crazy, but he quite enjoyed his new life. Secrecy and adventure had been a part of Ice too, but now he was fighting the Republic, the ones who had killed his wife and unborn child.
Dick had agreed to a task so daring, he would probably die. He didn’t care; he would soon be reunited with Joanne. If his mission succeeded, he would have the ultimate revenge upon the Republic.

Together with several other militants (in case he was killed before his mission had succeeded), they set of from their secret base, hidden beneath the seas of toxic mist on Witeling Prime. Disguised as a cargo vessel, they travelled to New Valcro Prime. Their cover was maintained by several local operatives, allowing them to land unnoticed by Republic Police, M-Tron or Jedi. One man was observing them, though. His smooth skin and long black hair didn’t reveal his true age, but the glint of purple in his eyes gave him an eerie, unnatural look. He kept watching and saw five people leaving the warehouse where the ship had landed. The disappeared in the crowds walking over the bridges connecting the towering buildings of the capital city. The observer kept his eyes on them as they headed towards different skyscrapers around the largest plaza of the metropolis: an elevated park of grass, trees and water; in the centre three large statues had been erected of Luke Valcro, John Ice and Jack Neil, two hundred metres large each. John and Jack were holding hands, while Luke was breaking the Staff of Evil against the ground. A lake seemed to be coming out of the shattered orb of the staff, in front of which stood a podium. An enormous crowd was gathered there to see the first public appearance of the President in some time. Her face would be seen on the giant monitors placed against the surrounding buildings, which usually showed different news channels or commercials. On the rooftops snipers, Jedi, M-Tron and Republic Police were watching around for terrorists, not yet aware of the anarchists below them. The mysterious spectator knew he had to be careful not to be mistaken as a terrorist himself; if someone recognised his face, everyone involved with security would be after him. He had only one mission: killing Richard Ice, as he had promised Alif. He didn’t care what happened to the President, things might even get more interesting if she got snuffed. Stagnation nearly always meant boredom to him. The last time he had actually truly enjoyed himself, was when he had fought as a partisan in the Darelian-Zarsanian war. It had been an adventure to get to that galaxy in the first place, not many “ordinary” Republic citizens had been able to travel there before the peace treaty, let alone fight in the war. With the arrest of Helen Oswin, he had hoped things would stir up again and now he would see if his instincts were right, if the Anarchist League had the guts to kill President DeTaris.
She would start her speech in less than ten minutes and the purple-eyed man rushed into the building where Dick Ice was pointing his gun towards the podium. Then it happened: over his communicator Richard heard that the other members of his team had been found and arrested, it was all up to him now, he only hoped that the other operatives had managed to set the protective shield around the stage to the exact frequency of his weapon. Vera walked up the steps and received a massive applause from the audience, and some boos from several CDR protesters. Richard aimed, but started to get second thoughts; he had killed many people before, but never in cold blood, never if they were unarmed. Then again, this woman had ordered the attack on the Ice summit; she was responsible for her death. With a surge of hate that suddenly filled his stomach, he pulled the trigger. Vera DeTaris was dead.
The hate in his stomach turned into guilt immediately; he saw the people below scrambling away, afraid that they were next; even the demonstrators looked appalled. All sound was somehow lost; he didn’t hear the screams below, or the door opening behind him. he hadn’t looked beyond this moment, he was sure he’d die now. He turned around, expecting to see Jedi, M-Tron or Police officers, but the surprise pulled him back into the scene.


-What are you doing here?


-Alif asked me to kill you because you betrayed Ice.


-Ice died the same day as my wife and child.


-So you joined the people that have killed most of the rest of your family.


-I wanted revenge; you of all people should know that!

-You helped me take revenge for my sister, and I’ve let you have yours. I disabled the people searching the building for you, I let you live to finish your work.

-Finish yours now, and kill me.

-Not yet, I want you to know I always respected you and I expect you to feel the truth of your situation first.

-That my so-called revenge didn’t make me feel better, that it left me feeling empty inside, worse than before?
-You were always quick to figure things out, you remind me of your father at those times. I hope he came to the same conclusion before he died, after he killed those anarchists as revenge for killing his father. You’ll be the first one in a while who’s not been killed by them, yet I can’t stop feeling it’s their fault.

-Just kill me now, before you change your mind.

-I won’t. I’ve lived long enough to understand that some people welcome death. I have one final question: Did you tell Sam Darkner that I’m still alive?
-I never mentioned you; I think he believes no one from his time still lives. I truthfully told him that androids let their systems fail. Of course, you are not a complete android.

-We were called that, even though most of us were largely organic. “Android”, a hash and a number.
-I never called you “Android”, I just used your number, it was the only name you ever told me.

-It has been my name for the largest part of my life. The few friends I had through the ages called me by it. Even the Zarsanians, who believed I was Human, never questioned my name. Of course I was one of the few “Humans” they had ever met at that time.

-Seventeen: the hero from the Republic, the only one to take a side in the war.
-The negotiators sent by the Republic weren’t glad when they heard about me: one of the most powerful beings alive, fighting in a war they were trying to stop. Eventually they even contacted my sister, #18, to plea for my return. When that didn’t work, she didn’t speak to me for years. We only started talking again a few weeks before she was killed by those Jedi, I still don’t understand how they were able to overpower her or even why they did it; it’s my greatest regret after I took revenge. Did you ever find out how they were able to find out about the summit?
-Somehow Helen Oswin was involved. I think Sam is trying to figure it out… I guess he’s President now. Make sure nothing of my body remains; I don’t want him to know it was me.

-Goodbye, Richard Ice.

Android #17 opened the palm of his hand towards Dick and slowly a small ball of purple energy formed before it, increasing not in size, but only in intensity. When the light brightened the entire room, he shot it at its victim.

Part 8: Sad Homecoming

Sam hurried back to the ship to hear the urgent message. The captain said it was private, so Sam hurried to his own room, while the others beamed back from the surface of New Idowu. Together with the crew, they curiously waited outside Sam’s door. He came out only five minutes later, still in shock and told them that President Vera DeTaris had been assassinated.
Several days later, they had arrived back at New Valcro Prime, where Sam was hurried of to a heavily fortified room, where only highly trusted members of the M-Tron and selected members of the press were present. They had explained the procedure to him on his way back, but he still felt like a student on his final examination.

From a door on the opposite side from where he had entered, an old looking Jedi, with nearly white skin and pale blue hair, entered the room, carrying the original manifest of the New Republic, signed by Ken Lorren, Sofie Ice, Femme Fatale, the Beta Droid and Red Sincam, protected by a glass box. She made the ancient parchment float out with the Force, until it hovered in front of Sam.

He laid his left hand on the manifest and his right hand on his heart, as he said:

-I, Samuel Jonas Keynes Darkner, swear to uphold the laws of the New Republic, to serve the people that have elected me, to preserve the Eternal Peace with freedom and democracy as my weapons. May the Force be with us all.
The press started asking questions, but Sam walked back through the door and hurried to his new office, the one he had once broken into. Unable to hold in any longer, he burst into tears; he never wanted this, what should he do, how would he solve the crisis? The events of the last ten months played inside his head. It had not even been a year since Richard Ice had rescued him from being trapped in time, but his former life had never seemed so far away. The recent dealings with Samanya’s cult, his “test”; something wasn’t right about it, the details didn’t add up. The tomb had been destroyed and the followers were probably long gone by now; even if he could track them down again, it wasn’t his place to do it; he’d have to lead the Republic. His students would have to go on without him.
Sam hadn’t even noticed that he had dropped himself in a couch in a corner of the room. After tidying up in his private bathroom, he settled himself behind his desk and opened up his agenda. It was filled with meetings, speeches and other things he wasn’t good at; but the first thing on top of his to-do-list was selecting a vice president. Several names popped up in his head: Cerridwyn Ellis, who had been appointed head of Republic Police, but who hated him; Leander Conaro, a former vice president, whose name had been cleared, but who was still unpopular…
Then it came to him: if he wanted someone to follow in his footsteps, to do as the three amigos once did and solve the mystery, it would be Ronald Lovarno. A wise Jedi Master, someone who had been with Sam on his recent journey, but who wasn’t still a student. He’d ask him tomorrow, as he was expected to give his first speech the day after that, to give a first impression of what he’d do during his legislature.

Ronny hadn’t expected it, he never wanted to engage in politics, but he has said “yes”. He wanted to search for Samanya’s cult again, since he had dealt with them before their exile. He had never told anyone about it, but though Ice was responsible for the death of his former student Sandra, the cult had also played a pivotal role.
Part 9: The New Elite

Naurius had heard the news just a few hours after Sam and his team. Samanya’s followers left the planet, and he managed to get a transport back to New Valcro Prime. This time he only changed his face; heightened security would surely point out he was a Spirion.
When he finally arrived, he walked in to the nearest bar to watch the news on a screen that usually only showed sports. Sam had already started his speech in front of the senate.

-…by the Anarchist League. In the time from which I came, there were three great heroes: Luke Valcro, John Ice and Jack Neil; sometimes known under the whimsical name the “Three Amigos”. Though trouble seemed to find them, they always solved the great threats that endangered the universe. I must admit I once envied their position and the praise they received, but recently I was put in a similar situation; I am now one of the most powerful people alive and I had to search for those behind the plot to make Helen Oswin president of our fine Republic. We found out that Samanya’s followers were behind it, we even discovered their current leaders, since Samanya himself died several years ago. Before we could investigate their motives, we were called back because of the horrible events of last week.
I was not alone in my search though. A wise Jedi Master, Ronald Lovarno, and his pupil Marisa Jo-Fay were responsible for finding the cult. This is why I have appointed Master Lovarno as my Vice President, so he may continue my work and search for the sect again. Great credit must also go to those who have become known as my students. When I first met them, they were disillusioned youngsters; they used the Force for their own progress, but felt that it was wrong. I trained them personally and am extremely proud of what they’ve become. They are like the Jedi and M-Tron of former times. I don’t want to break down those organisations, they do great things, but they have become stagnant in these times of peace. I believe my students, under the guidance of Vice President Lovarno, can become even more. They will follow in the footsteps of the Three Amigos and solve mysteries, stop the dangers that threaten our Republic and make sure peace and freedom are uphold.
It is with great pride that I announce the official formation of this new elite group of Force users, who will answer to this government and to the Senate, and thus the people. Potential new members can apply to join, but only a handpicked few will be selected to join the elite. They will be guardians of both the Force and the Republic, so that will be their name. The Guardians will now split in two groups: one will search for Samanya’s sect, the other for the anarchists behind Vera DeTaris’ death.

With this act I conclude my first speech to the Senate of our fine Republic.

The senators gave Sam a mighty applause, as he left the massive building. Ronny congratulated him; the only negative part was that he might have said “our fine Republic” too many times.
The visitors of the spaceport bar also clapped, but Naurius was offended: Sam had just created an important official organisation with many authorities, without any vote of the Senate. They’d “answer to them, thus to the people”, but he knew their allegiance was to Sam, they’d do anything he said. No, this was not a good turn of events.
Part 10: Objections
Naurius wasn’t the only one who had trouble with the Guardians. The Jedi council had never liked Sam, they still held him responsible for the dead of many masters and knights on Amagosa III, but the creation of a new group of Force users without their consent was a step too far. It’s most senior member, a Refugan named Yuniva Dallanx, arranged a meeting with Sam the very next day by applying several mind-tricks she wasn’t proud of. She entered his office and was taken aback by the changes he had made to it: the walls had been painted red, the white sofas had been changed to black leather ones, the flashy sculpture Vera had received from Elder-Archon Sibonakaliso of the Siwan had been replaced by marble busts of Wizard Oz, James Tron and Lady Ice, the founders of the long-gone United Lego Federation.
A holographic painting that once depicted the landscape of Vera’s birth planet Universia was now one of his daughter Femke, who had died millennia ago.
Yuniva allowed her eyes to wander, before she looked at the President behind his new wooden desk.
-President Darkner, I am Yuniva Dallanx, Grand Master of the Jedi Order, we briefly met at your inauguration.

-I know who you are Master Jedi, I’ve read up on intergalactic history and recent political history; I believe your forefather Firrian Dallanx was called the “first Refugan”.
-It is true that when the leaders of the Ashtor hunted down all users of the Force among their people, he led many refugees to the planet Saalas and eventually became their chief, but it took many years for those people to evolve into a separate species, so the term is not really correct.

-Tell me, Master Dallanx, why is your visit so important that you had to trick my assistants into changing my agenda?

-These Guardians of yours, the council can’t agree with this decision. The creation of a new department of Force users has to be discussed with us. Without our guidance they could fall prey to the dark side, it has happened to several corrupt M-Tron before, who were powerful, but not part of the Jedi.

-I trained these youngsters because I was afraid they might fall. I trained them as a Jedi and an M-Tron. Unless there are still Super-Saiyans, It could be possible I’m the most powerful Force user in the known universe. I know the lure and the fine line that has to be walked sometimes, as you did when you used a mind trick on my assistants. I passed my knowledge and experience on to the Guardians.
-That still doesn’t justify your actions.

-You look at my students too much as competition; try to look at them as elite Jedi instead.

-Jedi that don’t answer to us, but to you.
-Technically, as a Jedi master, I have the right to command Jedi knights without the explicit consent of the council.

-Technically, the council would be able to annul those orders and call you before us.

-I should be in the council! I captured Medusa’s soul, I personally discovered the location of New Valcro Prime, I was part of the last remaining part of the Federation on new Amagosa III, when the Black Star had nearly eradicated us all, I destroyed countless Bohrok, lost my wife to them and was there when Luke Valcro pushed the button to kill them all. I helped to recreate this Republic, putting an end to the darkest period in the history of the cluster.
-when you returned to Amagosa III you killed many Jedi, including more than half of my fellow council members.

-In self defence, I tried to reason with them.

-What about your conspiracy then, in 5059 ACM?

-I quickly saw my faults and helped the Republic in taking down the other plotters.

-You framed the elections.

-There’s no real proof of that. If anything does come out, I have evidence pointing to Samanya’s cult.
-You and I both know it was you.

-If I were to hold a vote now, I’d be re-elected.

-I don’t like you, Samuel J. K. Darkner.

-If I gave you the opportunity to change your mind, would you take it?

-What do you have in mind?

-Master Lovarno and his student will join those searching for Samanya’s cult, I need someone to lead the Guardians that are looking for Vera’s killers; I was thinking you could.

-I don’t think it is wise to send Ronny after the sect; he has a personal history with Samanya and his followers.

-If I make him go after the anarchists instead, and put you in charge of the search for the followers, would you be willing to give me a chance?

-You’re a good negotiator, that part of my respect you’ve already earned. I’ll take the position.
-I hope I will earn the rest of your respect too. If you’ll excuse me now, I have several “cancelled” appointments to reschedule…

Yuniva left the office with mixed feelings, she had demonized Sam in her head, but she might have been wrong. Sam was troubled of course, still haunted by the past, which was visible through the busts and the painting, but he was passionate about doing the right thing, according to himself. He’d need to be watched, but wasn’t evil. If the Guardians did turn out to be respectable Jedi, she’d revise her opinion about them and their creator, who had given her the opportunity to guide them herself.

Despite all of this, she had a bad feeling about it. Her neck was soaking with the sweat produced by the large glands behind her ears, and her multiple stomachs didn’t feel too well either. Whether this was anxiety for her new appointment or because something would go horribly wrong soon, she didn’t really know.
Part 11: The Parting of the Ways
Ronny had wanted to search for Samanya’s disciples himself, but was content with hunting down the anarchists instead. He understood it was important to please Yuniva Dallanx at this point, so he had willingly agreed to the change of plans. Sam’s students, or Guardians, as they were called now, also said their goodbyes to each other. It was the first time since they had met Sam, that they would separate. Eight Guardians went with Yuniva, while the other seven joined Ronny and Marisa.
Several days after departure, Ronny was already following a lead; a Tsufuru-jin trader had told him about an Anarchist who had tried to recruit new members on Krikkit. He had been arrested and banished from their independent nation. If standard procedures had been followed, the recruiter’s ship had been tagged with a tracking device, to make sure it stayed out of their space. Access to this technology had to be negotiated with the Chancellor of the Tsufuru-jin himself. Though the independent nation normally didn’t allow Jedi into their territory, an exception was made for Ronny, Marisa and the Guardians, as not to jeopardise diplomatic relations with the Republic.

Before crossing the border, Marisa left the group. She felt she would be of better use, searching for Samanya’s cult. In her visions she had seen some sort of devise, threatening the balance of the Force; something completely different from the room of mirrors Sam had described to her. She caught up with Yuniva’s group about a week later, who were investigating the ruins of the tunnels on New Idowu. Beneath the caved in tomb they had found no body; either the followers had taken it with them, or they had never recovered the body. It also seemed that the lives of the planet’s farmers had become worse. Samanya’s cult had apparently paid them to keep them quiet about their activities. The head of the farmer’s guild approached Yuniva and told her to fasten up their investigation and leave; it was the Guardians’ fault that they had lost their main source of income. She decided nothing more was to be found on New Idowu and led the group away from the planet. She hoped Ronny’s group had more luck, dealing with the Tsufuru-jin; unfortunately, that wasn’t the case.
Chancellor Aaron Begawan and Master Lovarno were talking in his office. The Jedi was trying to persuade him to allow the Guardians to access their tracking technology. The Chancellor wanted to give them the right, personally, but he had already received much criticism from the council of representatives for allowing Jedi to enter their nation and land on their capital planet Krikkit. If he’d give them even more rights, he’d most certainly receive a motion of no confidence, ending his political career. The only thing he could do was to give them the identity of the Anarchist and the specifications of his ship.
Deciding that it was the most they’d get out of him, Ronny agreed. He assigned Bernard Vurran to work with the Tsufuru-jin authorities and record all available data on their lead…
Yuniva, Marisa and the others were just about to land on New Advar, where they’d contemplate their next move, when Marisa sensed something was wrong: her master was in danger. She started panicking, while Cassandra was trying to calm her. She suggested meditating together to try and see what was going on Krikkit. Their minds reached Ronny’s, who told them everything was fine. They hadn’t been able to get access to the tracking technology, but they’d get other information instead.
Suddenly, Ronny severed the link; something had indeed gone wrong, apparently. Cassandra and Marisa ran to the cockpit, where Yuniva was overlooking the ship’s descent into the atmosphere. She had sensed it too, but there was nothing they could do at the moment. Once they had landed, she would contact President Darkner to check if he knew something more about what had happened on Krikkit.
Part 12: Command Decisions
Sam was also meditating when he sensed something had gone wrong. He went back into his office and asked his secretary to contact Chancellor Begawan. This was apparently unnecessary; the Chancellor of the Tsufuru-jin had already made contact with them.
-Chancellor Begawan, I sense something has happened on Krikkit, I hope you and my Guardians are alright.

-This is Chancellor Melech Adonai. Aaron Begawan, the traitor, has been apprehended, as have your people. The Protectionist Party has taken control of the council of representatives, Krikkit and thus our entire nation. We have instructed all Tsufuru-jin merchants to return to their home and advised all Republic citizens to leave our territory immediately. I suggest you put some authority behind my advice, or your Guardians might not survive their assault on our sovereignty.
As the new chancellor ended his short transmission, several people entered his office: Minister of Defence Arthur Nable, Fleet Admiral Bjorn Rama, Field Marshall Bill Hammack, acting senior member of the Jedi Council Menes Hakor, President of the M-Tron Nora Parker and the Tsufuru-jin ambassador Adira Reut. Apparently the Tsufuru-jin had attacked and destroyed several unmanned sensor stations near the border. Sam replayed the message, which was met with near disbelief.
This unexpected political impasse would be the first test of President Darkner; it took him several seconds to get over the shock, but then his experience got the upper hand.

-Minister Nable, contact Minister of External Affairs Feldgrau and ask him to send a request for negotiations with Chancellor Adonai concerning the release of our people.

Admiral Rama, gather as much ships as can be spared at the moment and station them near the wormhole in the Wild Galaxy, well inside Republic space. Move them closer to the border in case our request for negotiations has been denied; it must be made clear that taking my Vice President and Guardians hostage can not be accepted.
Marshall Hammack, prepare your troops in case this becomes a shooting war, which I sincerely hope not.
Miss Parker, prepare infiltration and extraction teams to travel to Krikkit and get back our people if necessary.

Master Hakor, I want you and the Jedi to focus your thoughts on Master Lovarno and my students, try to sense if they’re okay, if they are still on Krikkit and if possible, even contact them telepathically. I’d also advise you to assign several Jedi to the ships Admiral Rama will be gathering, to work together with Marshall Hammack’s troops and to deal with the diplomatic part of the mission.

Ambassador Reut, I understand you were selected by Chancellor Begawan. If your loyalty lies with him and the freedom of your people, I’d like you to share as much information as you can with our military leaders and to see if you can find out how this could have happened.

Meanwhile, the Guardians under Yuniva’s command will continue their search. Though their help would be useful, I believe their current mission is equally important at least.

I will make a statement to the press and advise, not order, all Republic citizens to leave Tsufuru-jin space for their own security. I want all of you to contact me immediately if something happens, anything at all.

Impressed with his decision making, the delegacy left Sam’s office. He took a deep breath and poured himself a glass of Coruscian Whiskey, which he emptied in one swallow.

Two hours later, he was addressing the press, with live feed being transmitted over the galaxies of the Republic. He was interrupted by Minister Feldgrau’s aide, who informed him that Adonai didn’t want to negotiate…

Part 13: Ruthless Diplomacy
Bernard Vurran woke up beneath rubble. It took him several seconds to remember were he was. Two Tsufuru-jin had been guiding him to the control room for their tracking technology when they had heard several explosions. Each of them sounded closer than the last, until their corridor was struck and he had been knocked out by a piece of the ceiling. The corpses of the two Tsufuru-jin lay next to him. It was only when he tried to stand up that he noticed his left leg had been crushed. If he didn’t feel the pain, it meant several nerves had been hit; a bad sign. With the Force, he lifted the debris from his leg; he wanted to fly away, but his power had been drained severely by the attack. Instead he built crutches out of the materials around him. With much effort he managed to get to a nearby window and saw several plumes of smoke rising up from the city. He could hear the sound of weapons and shouting people. The sky-bridge between this building and the main governmental tower had collapsed; if he wanted to check if Ronny and the other Guardians were alright, he had to get to ground level. Then again, they might not be there anymore, he had no idea how long he had been unconscious. Scratching the back of his head, he felt dried up blood on his scales. He tried to get to the nearest elevator, but got light-headed and collapsed again. Before his eyes felt shut, he could see two bulky Tsufuru-jin running towards him.
In the other building, Ronny and Aaron, the former Chancellor, were still held under shot. About seven hours ago, armed men had stormed the office and explained that a coup had taken place to “finally stop the downfall of the Tsufuru-jin’s sovereignty” and that Aaron Begawan was now under house arrest. Ronny and his Guardians were hostages to insure the cooperation of the Republic. The two of them had been taken to Aaron’s private quarters and were alone now. Ronny immediately saw that these men weren’t simple terrorists; the Tsufuru-jin military (or at least part of it), had backed up this takeover. Though they had taken his lightsabre, he was very able to defeat his captors, but chose not to, for he couldn’t guarantee the safety of the legitimate Chancellor and of the Guardians, wherever they were.

Back in the office, Melech had his feet up on the desk, while viewing a holographic projection of the Wild Galaxy; the Tsufuru-jin nation was coloured yellow, the Republic in blue and the numerous uninhabitable nebulas in red. With a push on a button, the Braal system in the south of the galaxy was zoomed in on. The ancient artificial wormhole of the Mumifar there had since been overhauled to be able to connect to more modern intergalactic wormhole generators. It was represented as a bright red circle on the map. Every few seconds, a blue dot appeared from it: a Republic warship. Except for two ships guarding the generator, every ship soon left the system in another direction, to cover the border. General Rebecca Malka, head of the armed forces that supported Adonai, contacted her subordinates to move their ships closer too, but Melech overruled the order.
-I believe it is still too early, General Malka. There certainly are Jedi aboard their ships, they could sense what’s on board and ruin the surprise.

-Yes, Chancellor, but the Republic must understand that we cannot tolerate this military build-up near our border.
-Of course, I have something special planned. We will contact our friends of the Republic again in an hour, but the message will be pre-recorded. I want you to select four of the strongest people under your command and bring them to the holding cell of the building west of us…

Twenty minutes later, they were recording.

-President Darkner, members of the Republic. We view the build-up of ships near our border as aggressive actions against our nation. You haven’t heeded our warnings, so you are responsible for what you see next.
The camera moved away from Melech and now focussed on Bernard, who was fighting four strong men. The bolts of energy he produced with the Force were weak and didn’t hold them back. One of them hit his face so hard, several green scales got stuck on his hand; grabbing at the wound, Bernard now completely lost his defence and the four beat him to a pulp. Melech walked over to the unconscious Rodian and injected something in his arm, waking him up immediately. He held a blaster at his head…

-You, Sam Darkner, are responsible for this.

…and shot him.

-You have twenty four hours to remove your ships and three days to get them out of this galaxy, which is now ours. We were prepared to honour the current borders, but your aggressive actions have made us reconsider. We will give you one month to evacuate all Republic citizens, after which we will sent you a ship carrying Ronald Lovarno and deactivate and dismantle the wormhole generator. The Guardians will spend the rest of their lives in forced labour. This decision is final and will not be discussed.

Rebecca had watched with sadistic pleasure as the ugly green alien had been executed and ordered her men to remove the corpse and clean up the blood. She did not, however, agree with the destruction of the wormhole. Their race was powerful again; they should continue the work of their forefathers and purge the known universe from all impurities. It didn’t matter anyway what Melech said; he was just a puppet, a political face to please the public. Whether he knew it or not; she would ultimately take control.
Sam watched the transmission with disgust. His stomach turned over as he saw how his student was brutally murdered. Bernard was such a strong and promising young man. He had managed to overcome several drug addictions and was always one of the first to master a new technique taught by Sam. He felt his anger rising and flew out of the window of his office, afraid that it would tap into his Force powers and cause an aura that would damage his office. He was Human, not a Super-Saiyan but felt as if he’d transform into one anyway. His current emotions could lead him down a dark path, but his experience got the upper hand. After blowing of some steam, he returned to the office and sent a message to Fleet Admiral Rama and Field Marshall Hammack, ordering them to fall back to Braal with the warships, but to send every available squadron of one-man fighters to Krikkit, under cloak, together with the M-Tron infiltration and extraction teams and shuttles with ground forces and Jedi. If the Tsufuru-jin wanted a war, they’d get one, but not until his Guardians were save. Once they had been freed, they would lead the troops together with the Jedi and overthrow the new Chancellor. If their warships wouldn’t surrender afterwards, they’d get their war…
Not everybody in the military followed Malka and Adonai; it didn’t take long before several capital ships, loyal to Begawan, surrounded Krikkit and got into a fight with Malka’s ships stationed there. Though the Protectionists were greatly outnumbered by the loyalists, they won the fight with ease because of superior technology: the “surprise” they didn’t want to show the Republic. The loyalists were slaughtered; they would most certainly not reveal the secret. The cloaked Republic shuttle, sent ahead of the fighters to spy on their defence systems before the squadrons arrived, did and was so shocked by what he had seen, that he almost forgot to report back to the fleet. The fighters had to call off the attack, the ground forces had to return. The transmission apparently revealed his location and before it was properly sent, four spherical objects approached the ship and destroyed it.
The squadron leaders and the pilots of the shuttles only got the message to abort and return to the warships; the exact reason was lost. They had their orders; they’d continue no matter what. The Jedi aboard the shuttle felt the disturbance in the Force; this mission would end with their deaths. The lives of many would be sacrificed to save only a few, they couldn’t agree with that, so they took control of every shuttle they were in and advised the fighters to follow their example and flee.

Part 14: Truth

Naurius had never been to Zuberi before; then again, not many people chose to travel there these days. Before the Siwan Archonate had come to power, with the help of the Mattanians, another Siwan culture dominated Kamaria and its region of space: the Druids, Force-using sages who had long been advisors to many of the Siwan leaders, but who had then chosen to take power themselves. After a long war with Mattania and resisting Siwan cultures, oppressed by the fascist Druids, the government fled to Zuberi, where they were eventually defeated. The remains of their culture denounced their former leaders and were forgiven by the Archons, but still chose to move to Zuberi with their people. It was still taboo for most Siwan and Mattanians to travel there, but biologists of other races were rather fond of the diverse life-forms found on the tropical planet. Rumours that the Druids had special powers also lured the occasional visitor, mostly aspirant Jedi who were still learning about the full spectrum of the Force. Some say a Druid could tell you everything you did in your life after looking three seconds in your eyes, others say they could see clearly into the future (a rumour that started only after Samanya became popular), the rumour that had led Naurius here was that they would proclaim several truthful statements that would help the receiver on whatever path they were following. His strange encounter with Samanya’s cult, his staged death, Sam’s creation of the Guardians and the heightened tensions with the Tsufuru-jin were events that had turned his life upside down, something had to be done, and he felt he needed to take action, to a greater extent than a simple protest, but he’d need guidance and hoped that these Druids could help him.

The temple in the middle of the jungle was magnificent, yet not as tasteless as the rest of the Siwan culture. A man dressed in white robes said they had been “expecting him” and would bring him to the main meditation chamber for an audience with the circle of Druids. He was led into a dark, circular room, lit only by a fire on a raised altar in the middle and by countless sticks of incense along the wall. Five ancient looking Siwan men with long beards looked at him when he entered. The eldest of them, or so Naurius presumed, stepped up to him.
-Naurius Fares of the Spirion, you have come here seeking wisdom. What can we tell a member of the oldest race in the known universe, that they themselves have not figured out yet? Who are we to talk to you about the Force, when you are made of pure energy?

-I have come for the truth, for answers. I fear the Force is out of balance. The Jedi remain motionless, they don’t object to these Guardians and now war is coming, I’m certain. What can I do to stop it?

-We do not answer questions that are asked to us now; we only truthfully give answers to questions that will once be asked.

-What do you mean?

-We will give five truths, one by each of us; they may seem meaningless at this time, even trivial, but they will be of the uttermost importance in the near future. They will save the universe and the Force itself from destruction.
-Tell me these truths then…

The five druids looked at each other and into the fiery altar for several minutes, before they each spoke to him:


-A Siwan cigar does not taste like fish.


-You will live on for many years.


-Samanya was a Siwan.


-You will die soon.


-Samanya is not a Siwan.

Before he could point out that half of their truths contradicted themselves and that the other was just pointless, he was guided out of the room. Now he knew why not more people came here, these Druids were just crazy old men, mourning their forefathers’ loss of power by confusing any visitor that came across them.
Within the hour he had left the planet and was on his way back home; he still had to deal with his insurance, his apartment and several other things, now that it turned out he wasn’t dead, even though there had been many witnesses.

Part 15: Search Continued
Yuniva told Marisa and the eight Guardians under her command again: they would continue the search for Samanya’s followers and not go after their captured friends on Krikkit; it had been ordered by Sam Darkner himself.
“A man from ancient times will appear, but while he tries to better all life, he will bring forth death, because in his wake the shadow of war will engulf the known universe and the struggle for existence will have begun. One could betray him, one could kill him, one could save all, but won’t.”

The prediction kept repeating itself in Cassandra’s head. Surely, she wouldn’t kill him, but if she could stop a war by defying his orders, she would. Later that day she was meditating on it, when Marisa entered their room.

-I want to help Ronny and the rest of the Guardians. I just heard our cloaked fighter squadrons were decimated and the Jedi have fled even before the battle, taking the infiltration and extraction teams with them.

-I’ve been thinking about it too. Back on Kamaria, I read a prophecy of Samanya about Sam; he’d bring war and the only way to stop it was to betray him…
-The search for the sect will have to wait; preventing a war is more important than following orders.

During the night, they left the hotel in Prince Lloyd City on New Advar and headed for the nearby spaceport to catch a ride to one of the wormhole generators in this galaxy and from there to the Wild Galaxy. At least, that was the plan. Behind the first corner they ran, Yuniva was waiting for them.

-I didn’t become senior member of the Jedi Council because of my looks, you know.


-We have to go to Krikkit, to prevent war.


-Has the Force told you this?

-The Force confirmed it. A prophecy of Samanya told us we had to defy Sam’s orders to stop a war.

-Samanya was crazy and dangerous, that’s why we expelled him from the order.

-I know that, but I also believe the Force led me to read that particular prophecy, so I could end the conflict.

-Did you ever stop to think it might have been a test of loyalty?

-I thought you didn’t trust Sam?

-I recognise his authority and his command expertise. He listened to my advice and has earned my respect.

-We have both meditated on this the entire day; it is what’s supposed to happen.

-We need both of you in our search for Samanya… but I must admit the Force has given me signs too. There’s more going on than just a coup on Krikkit. The Tsufuru-jin, the sect, the Anarchists; somehow it’s all connected.
-Are you saying we can go?

-No, we will keep searching, but I believe the next step in our quest is a trip to Krikkit. We’ll leave in the morning, when our heads are clear.

Yuniva, Marisa and Cassandra went back to the hotel. They each had a nightmare of the death of Bernard Vurran and woke up feeling more tired than the night before.
A day later they were orbiting Kamaria, in line to travel through the artificial wormhole, when they sensed a familiar presence: Naurius’ shuttle was only two places in front of them. He had spent some time with the followers of Samanya and could be a great asset to their search; on the other hand, he was a great opponent of recent political events.
A light in the cockpit of Naurius’ shuttle was blinking, meaning there was an incoming transmission, “Probably someone to tell me I’ve been put further back in line, again”, Naurius thought, as he pressed the button under the light.

-This is Naurius Fares aboard shuttle CDR-12, I’m receiving your transmission loud and clear, please proceed.
-Good day to you, Mr. Fares, This is Yuniva Dallanx aboard Republic light cruiser Canvasser. The Guardians and I are still investigating Samanya’s cult and their involvement and motives in bringing Helen Oswin close to presidency. Since you spent some time with them, we believe you could help us find some of their members.
-I don’t believe the senate has endorsed your organisation yet, so if you’d just let me be…

-If that is how you feel, then I’m asking you a favour as senior member of the Jedi Council; an organisation you probably do approve of. This sect has faked your death; I can’t begin to imagine the paperwork you must encounter, let alone practical matters, like travelling through this wormhole. I assume you have been delayed several times? As an official Republic cruiser, we are allowed to skip this entire waiting line if our mission demands it; if you go with us, you’d be out of this galaxy in a matter of minutes. If you refuse… let’s just say you might still be here for some time.

-All right, I’ll dock with you…
About twenty minutes later the Canvasser was in the Wild Galaxy, cloaked. Naurius was questioned about how he had perceived the current hierarchy of the cult, specifications about the ship he had travelled in and if he had seen Helen Oswin, Gary Valcro or their family members, who had disappeared as well.
With some reluctance, he also told them about the Druids and their contradicting “truths” about Samanya. Yuniva was quick to dismiss this information …


-The Druids are insane; you shouldn’t believe anything they say.

-You’ve met them too, haven’t you?

-When I was still a student, yes; though I doubt they were the same ones you’ve met. Samanya had just become a Jedi Knight himself, though in record time. His mastery of the Force was amazing; I even had a slight crush on him. This was three hundred years before his first prediction, mind you.

-You went to the Druids because you believed you were falling in love with him, right?

-You have amazing insight for someone who hasn’t trained his Force skills within any organisation. I asked the Druids if I had a future with him, but they refused to give me an answer; instead they gave me five “important” truths: I would lead the Jedi, Samanya would lead the Republic, a Phoenix can live forever, the Messenger will be reborn and something about a Siwan cigar not tasting like fish.
-Well, you do lead the Jedi, a Phoenix is a bird that is reborn from its own ashes and appears in the mythology of several different species, but is purely fictional, It is possible that Luke Valcro’s soul chose or will choose reincarnation at some point and I suppose that those cigars don’t taste like fish, since they said the same thing to me.

-Yes, but Samanya never led the Republic, he was exiled and died.

-I never said I believed them, the statements they made to me made absolutely no sense. But still… I felt as if they could see right through me.

-Yes, I remember that too. I think they just like to toy with their visitors; nothing they said can help us on our current quest.
-Where are we headed anyway?

Yuniva hesitated.

-We are following the Force.

-And where is the Force leading us?

-To the other Guardians…

-What? You mean we’re going to Krikkit? We’re probably the only Republic ship left in this galaxy; the rest of the fleet is waiting on the other ends of the wormhole; for a good reason too! I know we’re probably cloaked, but their warships will see that the wormhole was activated. They’ll know we’re coming
-We fooled them through the Force; we must get to them, Naurius. I was sceptical too, at first, but I feel it is the right thing to do. You’re a Spirion and I know you’re senses are tuned to the Force, try to reach out, you’ll hear the call too.

-I wish I could convince you to turn back, I wish I could deny what you’re saying, but I can’t. I felt we were going the right way since I stepped on board your ship; I just hope we live long enough to reminisce about it afterwards.

Part 16: Alive, Not Well

When #17 had heard about the coup among the Tsufuru-jin, he had thought about joining their resistance, but when he heard about the brutal execution of one of the Guardians, the defeat of Republic fighter squadrons and the retreat of the Jedi and the rest of the fleet in their wake, he had reconsidered. Walking through the lower parts of Coruscant wasn’t really considered safe either, but the cyborg could handle all the scum that lurked here.

The “All Night Bar”, aptly named because sunlight never reached the walkway outside and it was always open, was full of such people. It was the kind of place where you had to ring a bell and hope that the next sound you heard was a beep, unlocking the door, and not a blaster. #17 was no stranger here, but it had been a long time since he had visited the place, now that he though of it, possibly more than a few centuries. Considering the fact that he was ageless and the roughness of the bar, probably none of the personnel he had known would be still alive. After a minute or two, he was let in and to his own surprise saw the same barman as all those years before, though with some grey in his hair and a patch in front of his right eye. Smiling, he made a gesture to come sit at the bar.
-Leroy! I thought you would have been killed by one of your customers by now, or else by all the alcohol you consume. I should have known an Ullian’s liver was up to the task.

-Look who’s talking? You once told me you’d remain young forever, but now I can see it myself. Why did you stop coming here?

-A crime lord put a prize on my head and it felt unfair to keep killing his men. After he had been taken down, I kind of forgot about this place until recently.
-Forgot? How could you forget one of the lowest establishments on Coruscant?

-When you’re older than everybody else in the entire known universe, you tend to see things from another perspective. It seems I’ve also outlived all of the former clientele.

-Most people who come here don’t stay long: they either leave, or get killed.

-Care to fill me in on the new regulars?

-Sure. Those three Witeling in the corner, with the black triangle on their helmet are mercenaries; they’re pretty good, but there used to be five of them.

The posh Spirion over there, snorting the Tropalk, is a prostitute, a very good shape shifter, I’ve been told.
That bulky group on the right: a Nudro, two Lirshan and an Afraiman; they go even deeper into the Coruscant lower city and hunt the predators that eat the smaller animals living of the garbage accumulating there.

The blond woman, either a Human, a Calamarian, a Saiyan or a Bisolan, though I presume one of the first three, is a bounty hunter. She only captures, never kills; a flawed morale, given what usually happens to her prey, but it keeps her from losing sleep at night.

A few M-Tron come here regularly, but not today.
Don’t ask me about the other people here; my policy is not to ask, that’s what makes this bar so popular.

There used to be a lot of Ice mercenaries here too, but only a few have come since that big heist on Amagosa III. Their organization is as good as dead, I believe.

-You have any idea when I could meet some Ice officers here?

-Tuesdays and Thursdays, mostly; usually two of them. The day after the President had been assassinated; they brought a couple of friends along and ruffed up a few Anarchists, asking about Richard Ice, their former leader.
-It’s him I want to talk about. He’s the one that killed President DeTaris. I was asked by an old friend, also former Ice, to kill him, but I let him fire first. Then I fired an intense energy ball at him from point-blank range.

-You killed him.

-Only someone with great Force-powers could have stopped that and as everybody knows, Dick Ice has no Force potency…

I’ll come back tomorrow then. Around what time are they usually here?

-Between noon and midnight, standard time.

#17 finished his drink in one swallow and left the bar. Dick had no Force potency, yet he had deflected much of the energy, terribly wounding, but not killing him. They had been close friends at one time and #17 couldn’t just leave him on the floor, to be found by Republic Police. Instead he had taken him home and had taken care of him. Dick had remained unconscious for over five days, and was still not better after all this time, but it was going better. The android had learned a lot about his own non-organic parts over the years and had managed to create robotic replacements for Richard’s badly hurt left leg, part of his shoulder, his ruptured kidneys and the base of his spine. Now that he thought of it, he had put a lot of work into saving the life of a man he wanted to kill.
Part 17: Blast from the Past

Half of the Guardians on Krikkit had been captured, while the other half helped the armed contra-revolution. Their help was the only thing keeping the resistance alive; most opponents had either surrendered or been slaughtered by Adonai and Malka’s secret weapon. The Republic wasn’t going to help either, their forces had all turned back, save for some lone fighters, which had been easily destroyed. It had given Adonai a perfect reason to destroy the wormhole, without sending back Lovarno. Malka had told him the order had been executed, while in fact she had posted several of her most loyal followers near it, to make sure it was kept operational. Unfortunately for her, Tsufuru-jin have no Force potential at all, leaving their minds vulnerable to a ship filled with strong users, who had no problem tricking them into believing the device hadn’t been activated.
Aboard the Canvasser, Yuniva, Naurius, Marisa and the Guardians were in a joined meditation session, using their combined powers to navigate the countless nebulas of the Wild Galaxy to get to Krikkit, instead of taking the long way around them. It reminded Naurius of “the Story of Luke”, where Luke, John and Jack had to find their way through the Smallbot Badlands, because the save route was too heavily guarded and the cloaking device hadn’t been invented yet. Why this thought came to him while he should be concentrating, he didn’t know. Suddenly he realised that the three amigos had found something unexpected: an Imperial plot. The others in meditation had followed his line of thinking and came to the same conclusion. Yuniva came out of the trance and ordered the pilot to bring their ship to a full stop and told her Guardians to focus their meditations to finding something out of place inside the nebulas, something that shouldn’t be there. It didn’t take long to find it: an abundance of live on an uncharted planetoid, orbiting the remains of a star that had contributed to the surrounding gasses. The immense radiation should have sterilized the asteroid, except perhaps for some extremophile bacteria. The same radiation had rendered the ship’s sensors useless, which was why most people took the long route and why they had to use meditation in the first place. The Force had led them here.
Arriving at the site, they only saw a small Tsufuru-jin corvette, used for escort, orbiting what appeared to be a dead rock, its surface filled with deep craters. Marisa was the first to point out the feeling of life came from within the asteroid. Naurius then took his shuttle inside one of the deeper craters, which gave access to a cavern within; the asteroid was completely hollow, yet that was not the most surprising discovery. Radiation prevented him from transmitting images of his findings to the Canvasser, but his horror came to them through the Force. Had sound been able to travel through space, they probably would have heard his scream too.
A large dome filled part of the cave with oxygen and sulphuric gasses, the perfect atmosphere for the creatures they were breeding. The factory next to the dome used the planetoid’s metals to create pods for the brain-like creatures. In space, these pods would appear round and be able to travel faster than light or attack with a beam, both through the Force. On the ground, they would legs for balance and to arms, which could fire additional rays. Their “heads”, which housed the brain behind a transparent shield, could pull out of the main body and deliver a powerful blow, or even jettison the brain if the pod was about to be destroyed, or to take control of a suitable biological host. After being extinct for more than twelve thousand years, the Krana and their Bohrok bodies had returned.

After the destruction of the Bohrok, by using the technology of Bebi’s citadel on the planet that would eventually be named Krikkit, cloned Tsufuru-jin had awoken all over the city and had promised to redeem their race, which had been wiped out years earlier in a war in their home galaxy (the Waland Galaxy), where they had tried to exterminate all other forms of live, something their only survivor, Bebi had tried to do with the Bohrok, after becoming immortal and fleeing to the Wild Galaxy. Information about Bebi’s creation of the Bohrok and the genetic manipulation used for turning the native slug like Kraata into Krana had apparently never been deleted. For centuries the New Republic’s only demand of the new nation had been not to develop a military; a policy that was abandoned after a group of Arkaloni terrorists had attacked a Tsufuru-jin terraforming ship, which was making their home world Arkalon habitable again. All around the galaxy they were heeling planets, out of remorse for what the Bohrok had done to those worlds, but also for use as colonies by their rapidly expanding race. Arkalon, however, had been devastated during the Sirian Wars, millennia before the Bohrok attacks. The Arkaloni felt insulted and destroyed the ship. The Tsufuru-jin didn’t want Republic warships to guard their planets and instead asked to lift the ban. Apparently it had taken this long for the information about the Bohrok to be used again; and then only by fascist fanatics.
Naurius had hurried to return to the cruiser and explained what he had seen; at first they didn’t believe him until they saw about a hundred of the monstrosities flying out of the crater while two new corvettes came into the system. One of them went into orbit to replace the original one, which had joined the other newcomer. Together with the massive squadron of Bohrok, they jumped out of the system.

The Republic cruiser was more powerful than the corvette and would be able to destroy the factory too, but with two more ships and so many Bohrok nearby, they couldn’t risk it. Reason also suggested this wasn’t the only factory. Freeing Ronny and their fellow Guardians while liberating Krikkit weren’t their only missions now: they had to find out how to stop these Bohrok!

Part 18: A New Search
#17 walked back into the All Night Bar and after looking around he saw two Ice officers sitting in a corner. Though their faces revealed a lack of personal hygiene, their uniforms were as clean as a lightsabre cut. Without hesitation, the android walked over and joined them at their table. They gave him a weird look, until he ordered three beers from a scantly dressed waitress, after which they simply smiled. To oldest of the two officers ended the silence between them:


-To what do we own the pleasure of your company?

-From the look of your uniforms, you take pride in being members of Ice; I appreciate such pride.

-It’s not because we’re privateers, mercenaries and bounty hunters that we can’t be proud of our organization, even though it’s defunct.

-And who would you blame for the downfall of Ice?

-Vera DeTaris ordered our demise, but she’s death. That mysterious woman, Helen Oswin, who had seemingly led the President to her actions, is probably more responsible, but she’s disappeared.

-Helen is apparently part of the cult of Samanya. This sect had given her the location of the Ice summit.
-Then I guess I blame the cult of Samanya.

-Another question: How did Richard’s ship find Sam Darkner?
-They were in the neighbourhood.

-That’s not the full answer.

-They were planning to meet with M-Tron and were waiting for a message to reveal the location of the eventual meeting. Their position at that time was the place at which the divided parts of the M-Tron’s message would be directed. Only a ship at that position would be able to intercept the transmission.

-And who decided that location?

-Gary Valcro.

-Who knew where the Ice summit would be?

-Gary Valcro!

-It has been speculated that he’s also a member of Samanya’s sect.
-Are you suggesting that some of the most important recent events, except this whole conflict with the Tsufuru-jin nation, have been orchestrated by them?

-I’m not, Dick Ice is.

The two men stood up and held their blasters at #17’s head.

-You know where that traitor is?

-I nearly killed him, by request of Alif Hamza.

-Hamza’s still alive?

-I’m not sure, last time I saw him, he was high on Tropalk and his health was deteriorating.

-Who are you anyway?

-I’d been an official member of Ice for centuries, until I resigned in order to involve myself in the last battles of the Darelian-Zarsanian war. It wasn’t long after that, when Ice became outlawed. I still retained a close friendship with Allan Ice, his son Scott, his son David and eventually his son Richard.
-I’m supposed to believe that someone who looks as young as you do is over five hundred?

-Judging by your looks, I’d say you’re related to Amy Langings.

-I’m her grandson, Tony Langings. You knew her?

-She left me for your grandfather; she didn’t want to be with a man who’d outlive her.

-She told me of you. Are you the famous Android?
-Android Number Seventeen.

-What brings you to this slimy café?

-I used to come here a lot, but that was before you were even born. Now I have a job for you.
-We don’t take jobs anymore, we only wallow in self-pity.

-I thought you said you were bounty hunters. The pay is good, but if you don’t want it, I could talk to the blond girl at the bar; I hear she’s pretty good.

-Be my guest…

#17 looked at the beer in Tony’s silent Zarsanian friend’s hand and destroyed it with a beam from his eyes.

-Now you listen to me, and listen good, I want you to find Gary Valcro and bring him to me. I’m giving you a chance to get revenge at Samanya’s sect; a goal I’m after too. After much deliberation, I realised that the Jedi responsible for killing my sister were part of his followers; although I’ve already enacted my personal vengeance upon those members, I want to find out why they killed her and how. This cult has been responsible for much grievance and I want them to pay. The only way we’ll find them is by using Gary. Now get your asses moving, before I blast them off!
Still dripping with beer, Tony and his friend stood up and followed #17, who was already at the door…

Part 19: Sam’s Experience

Sam forgave Yuniva’s violation of his orders when he heard what they had discovered. After viewing the pre-recorded, grainy transmission several times, he came to one conclusion: he had to go to the Wild Galaxy himself. He was the only one who had fought Bohrok, who had the necessary experience to face them; he knew their strength and weaknesses.
As agreed by the Senate, his tasks would be taken over by Prime Minister Delroy Vortigern, a male Mustelinian, a catlike species from the planet Mustelin. They were a race of primitive hunters when discovered by the Ullians and were often used as bodyguards for the King, the royal family and the nobility. It was only after the kingdom had broken up and Mustelin became part of the Ullian Principality, that they received proper rights and access to education and were treated as equals. This caused a schism amongst their people however, between those who wanted to remain primitive warriors and those who wanted to become part of modern civilization; A division that still existed, though friendly meetings between the two groups occasionally take place.
Delroy was actually the offspring of a mixed marriage between a modern Mustelinian and a primitive. His insights into both cultures were what drove him to become a politician. He became Prime minister halfway through President DeTaris’ term. Elections for the Senate and the government formed by the majority always take place halfway through a President’s term and Presidential elections always halfway through a Prime Minister’s term, as a way of adjusting governmental directions, in case of public discontent, without renewing the entire top. It was an unwritten law that when the majority of the government was formed by two large parties, and one of them was the President’s party, a member of the other party would become Prime Minister, which was also the case with Delroy, who was a Socialist, as opposed to Vera, who had been a Nationalist. Sam had once been part of the Socialist Party of the U.L.F., but now he had technically been an independent candidate, supporting Vera DeTaris. Despite the Socialists in the government, they hadn’t increased welfare, as they had promised. The hunt for the anarchists and worshippers of Samanya had dominated the political world, until the Tsufuru-jin crisis, which had put even those goals in the background. But Sam could feel the connection; while travelling through the wormhole alone in his ship (not an experience he enjoyed after the accident which had hurled him into the future), he sensed the Force calling out to him. To find those responsible for Vera’s death, and to discover the secrets of Samanya’s cult, he had to engage the Tsufuru-jin.
Using the route plotted by the Guardians, Sam rendezvoused with the Canvasser only two days later. During that time, they had managed to map five more Bohrok factories inside and along the nebula. Unexpectedly, a Tsufuru-jin warship jumped out of warp, right on top of them, on course for the nearby plant on a small moon. It were loyalists, trying to destroy the factory. The ship launched a squadron of fighters, which attacked the guarding corvette, while it started its barrage of laser fire onto the apparently unshielded installation, delving a new crater into the satellite. From within the ball of fire, a swarm of Bohrok hurled itself at the warship. Appearing almost peaceful and hypnotic, like a flock of birds or a school of fish, Sam stared at the black cloud of dots while beams took out the ship’s shields, after which the Bohrok simply slammed themselves into the hull. The Guardians felt compelled to do something, but new that revealing themselves now would mean their death. While atmosphere was leaking from the many holes in the warship, what was left of its fighter squadron rushed to assist the doomed frigate. When the fighters were close enough, the Bohrok fired at the engines, causing the ship to explode, taking all of the one-manned craft with them, while the enemy swarm didn’t seem to have lost many of its drones. Opening his mind, Sam took a closer look at an individual Bohrok. Its colour scheme matched that of Adonai’s resistance cell: black with yellow highlights; he sensed that the Krana was linked with its brethren, completely similar to the ones he had fought and who had killed his wife. Yuniva sensed anger swelling in Sam, but knew he could control it. Calmness suddenly emanated from him as their cruiser began to tremble. Both hands against the window, Sam was using the Force to push the Bohrok swarm into the moon, but his power alone, though impressive, was not enough to counter the Bohrok’s own propulsion systems. Yuniva and Marisa were the first to join the president, Naurius and the Guardians soon followed. Together, they managed to hold the swarm at the surface, but they weren’t powerful enough to make them actually crash into the moon. Cassandra then came up with the idea to use the same tactic their enemy had used on the fighters. Concentrating together, they managed to produce an intense beam of energy, directed at the moon’s centre.
While the cruiser fled from the resulting explosion and the crew started their recovery from the massive use of the Force, several surviving Bohrok followed them; the energies surrounding the ship had decloaked them. Using the cruiser’s small, but decent arsenal, the minimized threat was quickly obliterated.
Hoping that they hadn’t been discovered by Malka’s forces, they continued their journey to Krikkit through the next nebula. When the Guardians had recuperated, Sam started teaching them about the Bohrok: their strengths and weaknesses, techniques that had worked best for him and those that his long-gone comrades had once told him about, including lightsabre moves, which were taught by Yuniva, since Sam had little experience with the weapon. At first Naurius didn’t want to join the others, but when he saw how passionately Sam talked about his experience with this foe, the lessons that flowed from it and the true sorrow he still felt for the loss of his wife, he felt it to be insulting not to learn from him. Though he still had his doubts about the way Sam had come into power, he now truly believed him to be a competent leader. Cassandra, however, was now completely convinced Sam was leading them to war.
Part 20: Contra Revolution

Before reaching Krikkit, they came across two more factories, destroying both with ever increasing ferocity. Sam drew on the emotions of losing his wife. Lying injured on the battlefield, while the Bohrok overwhelmed his wife Lois and former king Blake Oz, unable to stop them. The events flashed before his eyes as a white aura enveloped him, destroying the third factory with nearly no help from the others. Yuniva was worried Sam might be vulnerable to the dark side, but it seemed he was able to cool down after the fight.
The surviving free Guardians on the planet were invigorated when they sensed the arrival of their brothers in arms. Together with the local resistance they managed to storm the central building of the Krikkit capital Tsufuru, freeing Ronny Lovarno and the remaining Guardians, but coming too late for Chancellor Begawan, who had been publicly executed the day before. Chaos erupted as the Canvasser uncloaked above the city. Fire from the orbiting ships and the city’s defences were deflected by Sam and his team, drawing deeply on the Force. in a nearly dreamlike state, the Guardians managed to take over the enemy’s turrets on the ground, pointing them at the Tsufuru-jin ships. A communiqué from the contra-revolutionists notified their allies, calling allied ships, fighting battles all over the nation to come to Krikkit to help conquering and securing the planet. If the leaders of the insurrection were captured, the rest of the terrorists would quickly loose their support.
While battles were still waging in the street, Sam was reunited with Ronny and the Guardians under his command, three fewer than the last time they had all been together. Setting aside his grief for now, he met with General Dathan Meyer, the leader of the resistance, to plan the attack on Adonai’s stronghold, deep beneath the city. Melech and Rebecca had fled there after realising their revolution had failed. Their troops had defected to Meyer’s side en masse and only a small group of loyal soldiers protected tem from the combined Tsufuru-jin and Republic forces. While they were digging a way to the bunker, the Republic fleet and the Jedi re-entered the galaxy and led waist to the remaining troops of General Malka and used the data giving to them by the defectors to locate and destroy the Bohrok factories.
The tunnel had reached the wall of the stronghold and Sam used the Force to break through. After an easy fight, he entered the office, where Melech Adonai was lying on the floor, a scorch mark near his heart, a fatal blaster wound. Rebecca Malka pointed the weapon at Sam, but with a wave of his hand, he made the weapon fly to the other end of the room.


-You killed you leader?

-He was only a puppet, to appeal to the public. He only wanted to isolate us, I wanted to kill you all, to finish Bebi’s work.
-Let me show you something.

Rebecca gave Sam a confused look, when he took the upper half of his uniform.

-I fought the Bohrok in my days, but I wasn’t strong enough to save my wife. If I had been as powerful as I am today, she might have survived.

-And why are you half naked?

-Several muscles in my right arm, my right lung, right kidney, my liver, pancreas and parts of my intestines are all artificial, nearly destroyed during that battle. The field hospital where I was brought didn’t have any genetic reconstruction pods. That technology was still too new for us then, to have been universally implemented. Instead they gave me these semi-mechanical replicas. A reminder to the day I lost my wife and a reminder to the struggle that caused you to be alive today.

I was there when the button was pushed to destroy all Krana and Bohrok. If we hadn’t defeated Bebi’s forces, you forefathers wouldn’t have awoken that day and your culture wouldn’t have rebuilt itself in this way, their offspring would be different, other relationships would have developed and you would never have been born. And now you wish to destroy us?

Not feeling the need to reply, Rebecca bit open a pill, concealed under her tongue. Two seconds later, she was dead.

General Meyer explained he would lead the Tsufuru-jin nation until order had been restored and new elections could be held, leaving Sam with a wry taste in his mouth. Had they just saved the Tsufuru-jin’s democracy or delivered the final blow?

Yuniva and Naurius watched as the troops emerged from the tunnel, carrying the death terrorists underneath blankets. They both sensed something wrong when the body of one of Malka’s guards past them. Yuniva pulled back the white blanket and Naurius reached into a pocket of the uniform, taking out a holographic emitter, instantly turning the humanoid Tsufuru-jin into a reptilian alien, a Riggva they both knew. He had been a former Jedi, who had once trained under Yuniva; Naurius had shared a room with him during his capture: this was Skanda, a follower of Samanya.
Part 21: Opportunities for Chaos
Sam, Ronny, Yuniva, Marisa and Naurius gathered around the body, while the rest of the Guardians watched. Marisa put her hand into the dead man’s pocket and took out a lightsabre, a peculiar design with bronze highlights and remains of millennia old Tarisian leather.
-This is it! This is the machine that allowed the cult to witness the future. Its aura enhanced their powers of premonition. I never expected it to be a lightsabre.

Marisa felt great; she had found what she had been looking for all this time. There was nothing she wouldn’t be able to do, with the Force at her side. Adrenaline rushed through her veins; she would be unstoppable, her wildest dreams could become reality…

She dropped the weapon. Its aura had begun to affect her; this was a dark relic. Sam looked understandingly at her. He had recognised the lightsabre.
-This is one of the Beacons of the Citadel. Three wounds of the Force, made to enhance a fourth one and defeat a Republic/Jedi fleet at the end of the Second Sith War, eons ago. A war the Sith lost, by the way. We found and destroyed the beacons on Mikritvan and Nar Shadaa, beginning a slow process of healing for those planets. The one on the so-called “Experiment Planet” had been removed when it was still under Valcronian rule and was never found again, until now.

These dark taints could be used for several purposes, each of them harmful to the balance of the Force: instantaneous transportation over large distances, bringing people back from death, or even time travel. It seems this one was used to look into probable futures. This was used to predict where Ice would hold its summit…
Sam suddenly realised something crucial.


-Yuniva, why did the Jedi Council allow so many Masters to go to Amagosa III?

-We found it important that Ice be contained; we sensed that it would lead to a great disturbance in the Force if we didn’t.


-You didn’t sense the danger? The imminent death of those Jedi Masters?

-We didn’t. It was such a shock to us, that it made Master Shinji, the head of the Council, retire. Ironically, it was what made me senior member.
-If Samanya’s sect foresaw the Ice meeting, wouldn’t they have foreseen the massacre as a possible future, perhaps even going as far as to influence the Council’s decisions through the Force? Were the deaths of those Jedi Masters the goal of the cult? Creating another wound in the Force, to extend their powers of premonition? Did this make them see what would happen here, this war? Did Skanda bring the beacon here to influence Adonai and Malka?
-But why? Samanya always tried to save lives; it’s what made him crazy.

-Chaos. Anarchy. To enhance a war that might have been much easier to contain. To take our attention away from the rest of the known universe.

I’ve just received word that Darelian nationalist extremists have used the decreased presence of the military in their region to blow up the Zarsanian embassy on Moleth; twelve people were killed in the blast.
Several members of Ice have managed to reorganise and killed several members of a crime syndicate on Egyptsei.

I’ve also been told that the infamous FSS Protocol has been breached.

I believe that our search for the Anarchist League and Samanya’s sect might not be completely separate.

Shock spread through the Guardians as they realised the truth of Sam’s deduction. Some, if not all members of the cult used their ability to predict the future to make it unpredictable again.
Part 22: Heroes’ Welcome

They returned home several days later. Millions of spectators came to watch their ships landing. Cheering while President Darkner and his companions disembarked and flew into the air, soaring between the buildings of the capital city of New Valcro Prime, toward the Tower. 

The next day, after addressing the Senate, Sam prepared to address the nation. While he knew the severity of what was happening, he had to reassure the people. His Guardians and himself were heroes now, they had stopped the Tsufuru-jin insurrection and succeeded were the Jedi and the military had at first failed. His speech had to leave the impression that he had the situation there and in the Republic completely under control.

-Fellow citizens of the Republic. Some supporters of Melech Adonai and Rebecca Malka still refuse surrender, but the Tsufuru-jin military and our own are certain that they will have defeated any rebel cells before the end of the week. General Meyer advises Republic merchants to stay outside their borders until all conflicts are resolved.
Our victory did not come without a cost. One hundred and twelve Republic soldiers died, protecting our nation. Three of my elite Guardians died, helping the loyalists amid the chaos on Krikkit: Bernard Vurran, Traika Dervalla and Mafalda Bolek.
Leading this group, was the Cerijin Andreas Milli. Before he became my student, he had nearly been knighted as Jedi. He feared he would not pass the tests and fled. His recent actions more than proved his prowess. I’m honoured to tell you that he will be an official Jedi Knight soon and will lead a group of four Guardians to find the terrorists responsible for the deaths on Moleth, as soon as his knighting is over.
Vice President Lovarno, his student Marisa and the Guardian Cassandra Mycen will investigate the violation of the FSS Protocol and are on their way to Gramgue in the Starbirth Galaxy, near the border. There they will join the Cerijin Jedi Master Dirar Masun and his close friend, the Human Jedi Knight Gad Hastiin, who are experts on the FSS, in charge of the small amount of diplomatic ties we have with this federation.
Three Guardians will work with the Republic Police to track down any remaining members of Ice.

Yuniva Dallanx, head of the Jedi Council, will lead the remainder of the Guardians, together with several Knights to continue the search for members of Samanya’s cult and the Anarchist League. Recent findings on Krikkit have led us on the right path.
Our recent successes could not have been possible without the help of Naurius Fares, the former head of the CDR. Realising his potential, he has agreed to become my newest student, both as Jedi apprentice and as a new Guardian. We have also come to an agreement with Prime Minister Vortigern, to give mister Fares a position in his government, to guard and improve the democratic process. The decisions I told you about in my speech were all discussed and approved by the Senate.
My students are the Guardians of the entire Republic, not just the President or the government. They will receive their orders not just from me, but from the Senate, your elected representatives. My students are your Guardians.

Sam’s speech was broadcast on every news channel across the Republic and was applauded by its audience; even the CDR was happy, knowing Naurius’ influence.

Sam Darkner, a hero from mythical battles of the past, had now created a whole new generation of heroes, ready to face the problems of the stagnant Republic…
Miles Turaco turned his holographic screen off. Disgusting, this Sam Darkner, his speech and his Guardians. A central government trying to control something too big to control. The people could work out their own problems; the Republic wasn’t the answer, it was the cause. The sooner people realised this, the sooner they would join the anarchist cause. This was an objective to be obtained at any cost. The other members of the League would surely agree; the Guardians had to be stopped.
Chapter 3: Beyond Good and Evil

Part 1: Tasked with Destiny
F

ifty years ago…
Jedi Knight Ronald Lovarno and his student Sandra Tallan entered the Jedi Temple on New Valcro Prime in a hurry; they were already late for the meeting with the Jedi Council. Ronny suspected that they were planning to officially make him a Master and offer him a seat on their assembly. Several Masters had retired from the Council in the three years since Samanya’s false prediction of the destruction of Coruscant and the wide-spread panic it had caused. After the infamous Siwan had gone catatonic, he had been taken to a hospital on Universia by several of his followers, both Jedi and non-Jedi. Although several of the new masters on the Council had been supporters of Samanya, such as Yuniva Dallanx and Dirar Masun, they had to officially denounce any allegiance to him before they could take their seat. Ronny had helped the false prophet with the impossible task of evacuating Coruscant, but had been appalled by Samanya’s disappointment when the sun didn’t explode. As a former follower he would probably have to do the same.
Exhausted from their run trough the temple, Lovarno and his student used the Force to calm themselves and invigorate their body, before stepping into the meeting room of the Council. Ronny got his hopes up, when he saw an empty chair. The recently elected senior, Master Ferdinand Neil, welcomed them.
-I am pleased to see you both in good health, Jedi Lovarno, student Tallan. We have a very important, very secret task for you.

-Task? I was under the impression that I would be offered a seat on the Council.

-Your insight has always been your greatest strength. We are indeed giving you the title of Master, but you will only earn the seat when you complete this mission.

-Thank you, Master Neil. I apologize for my response.

-There is no need for an apology, my friend; the task we ask of you is not light. Tell me, how close were you to Samanya?

-I joined his group after his first prediction came true. His unique talent for persuasion and leadership impressed me and I did everything to become a personal friend. I think I succeeded, because I was there when he received his vision of Coruscant’s end and he asked me to help him save as much denizens as possible. I left his group as soon as his prediction proved to be false.
If this is a question about allegiance, I can assure you I’m loyal to the Force, the Jedi and the Republic… in that order.

-We know that, Ronald, and even though I’m sure everyone on the council agrees with you, there is one question that has us at a stalemate. Because we are one member short at the moment, we are now an even number and the voting resulted in a tie. As a future member, we have decided that you will cast the deciding vote. It is not a subject to be taken lightly and we understand that you would need time to think it over, you have until the completion of your task, after which you will officially take your seat.
-How much longer will you keep us in suspense?

-Fourteen hours ago, Samanya awoke from his catatonic state. We believe his followers and him are now on their way to Kamaria. Your task is to bring him before the Council.
-And the deadlocked question?

-Whether or not to expel Samanya from the Jedi Order.

-I don’t need time to think about that. Samanya is dangerous and crazy; he was truly saddened that Coruscant wasn’t destroyed. People died, trying to escape the planet; even then he tried to persuade them to leave. Samanya simply cannot remain a Jedi Master.

-Bring him before us and we shall make it official. May the Force be with you.

-Thank you, Master Neil.

Part 2: Approaching Dread
The present…

Gary Valcro walked into the small apartment, located in the lower middle regions of Coruscant. He hadn’t visited the planet since before the disaster in the Amagosa system and took a great risk coming here now. He had left everything behind: his wife, his children, his job. Everybody was looking for him; he couldn’t expose his family to the dangers of his current life; except for this occasion.

-Yamia, are you in there?

-Gary, what the hell are you doing here? M-Tron agents keep a watch on my apartment twenty four hours a day.

-Don’t you mean our apartment?

-No Gary, our apartment was eight hundred meters above this one, in nicer parts of Coruscant. You were our main source of income, the wife of a fugitive doesn’t earn as much.

-I’m sorry for what happened this past year, I really am, but I need you to do something for me.

-You can’t show up after all this time, apologize and then expect me to do you any favours!

-Please Yamia, just listen to me! Pick up Mark and Sorollio from school and leave this planet as quickly as possible.
-What are you talking about? I fled Coruscant in a hurry before, and I won’t do it again unless I’m sure something’s wrong.

-We wouldn’t have met if it wasn’t for that fateful day, when I was aiding the evacuation. Our relationship always was unstable, on and off again for nearly forty years.

-Until you knocked me up.

-Haven’t I been good to you? Haven’t I been a good father?

-You were a corrupt M-Tron agent; you sold drugs and worked together with criminals!

-I never took the darker side of my job home! All I’ve ever done was in the best interest of you and our sons! Stay on Coruscant, see for yourself what’s coming!
-You’re scaring me Gary.

-Good, it might change your mind! Ever since Sam Darkner was rescued, all Force users have felt a certain sense of approaching dread, growing larger each day. First we thought it had to do with the death of those masters on Amagosa III or the infiltration of Samanya’s cult into the government, but the dread is still growing. I’ve been moving around the last year, and whenever I’m close to home, the dread seems larger; Coruscant is the centre from which this feeling is spread. I fear something terrible will happen here, I don’t know what, but I know I want you and our children as far away as possible.
-If we leave, where would we go? I hope you’re not suggesting we join you?
-Of course not. I haven’t told you this, but before this whole situation, a managed to buy a place on Gramgue; it’s beautiful, at night you can see the Eastern Starbirth Nebulas.
-Isn’t that the inhabited planet closest to the border with the Federation of Sovereign States? Don’t tell me you have anything to do with those rumours that the FSS protocol has been breached.
-Just go there, please, and you’ll never have to hear from me again.

-Alright, I’ll do it. I’m going to pick up the boys from school now, see that you’re gone before I return.
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Appendix A 

History
 of the universe

This appendix can be interpreted as a summary of the most important things in the story and the prequels, with some extra information.
1. Origin of the word Lego

The word exists in 3 cultures: Humans (and Sirians
), Calamarians and Saiyans. The strangest fact is that these 3 races not only have a similar word, but also look completely the same, although they originate from different galaxies.

With Humans, the word originates from the ancient language Latin, from before they invented warp technologies, a time when mythical believes were still very common. It was supposed to have meant “I create”. After a period on the human home planet “Earth”, called “the False Armageddon”, a book (“The Third Testament”) was written, using a combination of Latin and the other ancient language Sanskrit, in which the Human race tried to explain their existence by creation of an omnipotent “God” who spoke ‘Lego’ when he created the Humans. In the following era the word was used for life and after some time the meaning got shortened to intelligent life. After proof was found of other intelligent life in the universe, the Humans changed their “Pact of the rights of all Humans” to “Pact of the rights of all Lego”.

In Calamarian history the word has a very different origin; Legoross is a verb in an ancient Calamarian language (still found today in well preserved manuscripts, taken off world not long before the “Great Bohrok Plague”, in which millions of planets were destroyed) which means ‘to think’, the word evolved to two different words: goross, which means dreaming and legoss, which means to ponder or having philosophical thoughts. Like with the Humans, when the Calamarians found proof of alien life, they used Lego to describe intelligent life (life which has philosophical thoughts)

When the Human and Calamarian refugees formed a union, they decided to use the word Lego, which had strangely evolved to the same meaning, and called their new home “Space Lands of the United Free Lego Federation” later shortened to “United Lego Federation” or “U.L.F.”.

The Saiyans also used ‘Lego’ for intelligent life, but it was derived from words for strategy (alleygo), justice (legoram) (and also revenge, legorim, which is similar to justice, for the ancient Saiyans) they considered making strategy and having a form of justice the basis for intelligent life.

There’s proof that the Éoleff also had a similar word, with a different meaning, but with the same principles. The name Éoleff means the “chosen ones” and has an important mythological background. Éolegg was the name for a wise king or leader in the ancient days of the culture. This word transformed into “leggon”, which means wisdom and can be interpreted as something that’s necessary for intelligent life.

2. The time before time and interpretations of the book of Corna’El

“In a time before time, a messenger from the Gods defeated the master of all evil and captured his essence in a staff. In the destruction of the master, evil came to the beginning of time and brought fear and hate in the souls of all life and created the dark side of the Force.”

These are the first lines in the book of Corna’El, the first Jedi, who saw the past, present and future of the universe in her meditations, using the staff. The Great Premonition is the most famous passage from the book, which has many interpretations. The messenger she speaks of is the same in both passages, it is widely accepted that this messenger is Luke Valcro, who was possessed by the staff and its master but who, in the end defeated the evil, doing exactly what is described in the first lines, while somewhere outside our universe and timeline, therefore ‘in a time before time’. Some however believe this interpretation makes the universe self-explaining and think it would create a time-loop. They think Luke is a reincarnation of the original messenger, and this was the second time he defeated the master, therefore fulfilling his destiny.

In the end, the idea of the Messenger could be expanded to include John and Jack, because they had a very active role in the ultimate defeat of evil, perhaps even more active than Luke’s.

Also, Luke was an M-Tron and wore a shirt with an “M”, of course after the organisation, but others see this as an M for Messenger or Master (of evil) or other ancient demonic relations of this letter. Upside down, the letter becomes “W” which can be seen as the three horns of the Master of Evil. The colour of the M-Trons was red, which relates to the staff and all the staff’s other relations with that colour (fire, blood, Corna’El, etc.).
The Great Premonition:

“Thousands of years of peace

A Great War

Thousands of years of decay

A Plague will strike all that lives

Five millennia of darkness will come

A messenger of darkness

But much more of light

He will create a Year of Chaos

He will bring back the Plague

He will destroy the Plague

He will save that which is beyond

Peace will reign once more”

-A Great War: accepted by most people as being the Sirian Wars (has its own paragraph in this appendix)

-A Plague and Five Millennia of darkness: the Bohrok and the 5005 years of the Matrix following in its wake. Luke arrives in the year 5000 of the Matrix

-A messenger of darkness: Luke as Darth Vader and/or when he was controlled by the master. He also brought the ‘dark message’ that a fleet would attack the U.L.F.

-But much more of light: Luke saves the universe on several times.

-The Year of Chaos: The first line from the book of Corna’El to be actually used. It is the year in which the matrix disappeared.

-Depending on which interpretation you follow, the plague can be viewed as the Bohrok plague or as the resurrection of the master of evil in Luke, but that wouldn’t fit with the first part about a plague striking all that lives.

-Some believe the part about saving which is beyond refers to defeating the evil, but others believe it means rescuing the afterlife from Makuta, ruler of the underworld, a servant of the master. Most people think it’s a combination of both, because when he destroyed Makuta, he truly turned out to be the messenger and became a being of light, but it might be odd that the staff would predict its own demise.
-After all these events, a new era of peace began.

The final verses of her book also closely tell about the messenger’s fate and that of his closest friends. This piece describes reality remarkably well, even including the evil version of Anakin that was caused by sending him back in time:

“Trice fold of darkness, but light for eternity,

Inner good overcomes his evil’s trinity.

The messenger will have a trinity of good as well,

Who his friends are, is easy to tell.

The messenger is the One, but the love of two and three

Will cause the final victory.

The One’s love is for another

And his son will be a brother

Against tyranny.

Three times will he appear,

Trice another from, with its own destiny.

The One will love them all and, in the end, set them free.

When Chaos returns he’ll make a mistake

And end it too, for everyone’s sake.

His rest is well earned

And he’s not needed for an encore,

Because his deeds are the reason

That peace reigns once more.”
-Trinity of evil: this refers to being Vader twice and being possessed by the Master.

-Three forms: the evil old Anakin, the normal Anakin and the cloned Anakin.

The rest of the verses are very obvious and need no further explanations.

Many other passages refer to the fate of the five races of the Éoleff, but she fails to see the fall of the Valinéoleff and also says nothing about the Avatars (except perhaps Makuta, but he becomes more famous when he’s no longer one of them).
3. From the beginning of time to the peace of the Alliance

Time and space were created with the Big Bang, only seconds later the universe was already cooled down. Simple atoms were created, they created nebulas and stars and galaxies. Those stars created larger atoms, which formed molecules, which formed planets and proteins and DNA, which formed life…

After 10 billion years, the first intelligent life saw the daylight on many planets and after hundreds of thousands of years, they had formed a peaceful society, eventually (over many millions of years) combining all races of “the outer wall”, one of the three great walls of the universe, each one is made of millions of superclusters, which are all made of millions of clusters, which are made out of smaller clusters of many, many galaxies.

Bur our story concentrates on the “middle wall”. It was in this wall that the Staff, containing the essence of the Master of all evil, had planted itself. The clusters around the object all knew war and decay, most races that obtained the staff ended in self destruction. The local small cluster of 5 galaxies (if you don’t count the one of the Saiyans) was at first very peaceful.

In the Milky Way, there had been war among the Spirion, because of the Staff, making them almost extinct, except on their home planet. Except for the technology for creating the Hypno-Crystal and the circles, nothing of their civilisation remained when other intelligent life started to explore the cluster.

Beings from the afterlife decided to go to this plane with their knowledge and powers intact, against the rules of the others. They incarnated in bodies of their own design and became the Avatars. First they wanted to find the Staff to destroy it, but these desires were soon turned into a longing for power. They eventually destroyed each other in a great war amongst themselves.

After the Éoleff had made contact with the Mumifar and later other civilisations, they decided to form a government. But soon the cluster was filled with war, different factions all fought each other over thousands of years, with Force potent individuals as mercenaries, in a very similar order as the Saiyan galaxy continued until contact with the new republic, years after the destruction of the Matrix.

A female Éoleff, with the name of Corna’El, began talking to those with Force potency, to teach them to control their emotions, and use the power they had for good, for study and for meditation. The different factions of this great war saw the new abilities the persons developed and decided to form a truce and an alliance, with these Jedi as protectors of justice (Jedi is the Éoleff word for peace) in the following thousand years, the republic got its shape and the young Corna’El (2300 years old) remained leader over the Jedi. This millennium was later named “the peace of the alliance”

4. The Éoleff Empire and the First Sith War

Ironically, Corna’El was also the first Sith. She had found the Staff of evil and very slowly slipped to the dark side of the Force (all other users of the staff all went insane and suicidal, even Luke, who tried to destroy the staff). At first she used the artefact to enhance her meditation and wrote the (in)famous “Book of Corna’El” in which she predicted many events of the universe in a cryptic way. But soon she got addicted to the power of the staff and thought of herself as the destined ruler of all life. Because she was part of the race that lived the longest, she had much time to pull power of the republic towards her. When everything was in place, after another millennium, she proclaimed herself Emperor of the Éoleff Empire. Many people were actually glad, because they believed in the good intentions of Corna’El.

She selected six planets from which to rule the cluster: the biggest in each galaxy: Earth, Ceronia, Coruscant, Egyptsei and Taris and of course her home planet Valinéoleffas.

Soon, however, the Jedi started to notice Corna’El’s addiction to power and openly questioned her ability to rule. This resulted into a huge civil war (at that time seen as the war from the prophecy, with Corna’El as messenger) with the Jedi who were loyal to the light side at one side and Jedi, loyal to Corna’El, who had fallen to the dark side at the other side. The sovereign states in the former republic (now known as the ancient republic) had to choose sides: the Mumifar, Cerijin, Rodians, Twi’lek, Paragan and Zybrac chose the side of the Éoleff Empire, the Humans, Dos Calamarians, Mon Calamarians, Apallian, Tarisians and Jaridians sided with the Jedi Union (these are of course only the most important federal states of the ancient republic). The Éoleff were divided on the subject, forcing Corna’El to change the name of her Empire into the “Sith Empire”.

The war lasted for 703 years (sometimes called the 700-Year-War, the Jedi Civil War, but more commonly: the first Sith War), many planets were uninhabitable after this time, including Mon Calamaria, home of two squid like races, also making these races almost extinct. The Human like Dos Calamarians were from then on simply called Calamarians.

Because of the huge amount of casualties, there was no one to claim victory, but the cruelties of the Sith made the people choose the Jedi as winners; the Sith, including Corna’El with her evil staff of power, went into exile.

The different powers that had chosen different sides now worked together again to rebuild the republic (this republic would later be known as the old republic).

This was followed by 3 millennia of relative peace, with only minor conflicts and an occasional clash with Sith who tried to infiltrate the republic.

5. The Second Sith War and the Golden Years

By this time, the trapped master of evil started planning his escape, he knew someone was using his essence, the staff, and was able to use some of his powers to create the first of 5 demons: “the 5 horsemen of the apocalypse” this one was called the horseman of Chaos, but he had made the mistake of making him so powerful, that he would be able to challenge the master himself. It was too late, the horseman escaped to the world of the living and started looking for the staff. It was still the property of Corna’El, who was now 8000 years old, she started her last millennium, because most Éoleff become about 9000 years old and didn’t want to end her life as a banished dictator who some believed, after all this time, to be only a legend. She wasn’t scared for a new war and made a daring attack on the city planet of Taris, laying the once great planet to ashes. The planet was only second to Coruscant and the death toll was of course catastrophic. When a giant republican armada met the rather small Sith fleet, Corna’El revealed new powers of her staff: she was able to turn the republic ships against each other and was able to get warriors back from the death. Ships that had been destroyed were magically restored and the armada pulled back, making it possible for the Sith to conquer a large part of the republic. The overwhelming use of the staff caught the attention the horseman, who liked the chaos Corna’El was inflicting, but still wanted the staff for himself. He disguised himself as an advisor, but soon confronted her and they had a huge fight. They both had a limitless amount of powers and the battle was left undecided. The next years the war developed calmly, the Sith used their recourses to create a cage for the horseman, should he decide to return, which he did. During their second battle, Corna’El’s servants locked him up. This cage was very sophisticated and used several anomalies to slow down time, almost stopping it, forever keeping him in an attacking pose. She had used a lot of energy to keep the horseman in one place and realised that power came from herself, not from the staff. She started to see the evil she had done and let go of the staff. She had come back to the light, but the staff travelled to another place in the universe, scorching the surface of the planet they were on. The cage was forgotten in the underground structures and was never heard of again (until Luke’s time).

Because Corna’el was dead, the Sith fleet was no longer invincible and the old republic banished the Sith again, the only new growth for them would be during the Bohrok crisis. This war had lasted 53 years, only a fragment of the last war, and was called the Second Sith War. The republic had dealt with the Sith threat and was heading into eons of peace and happiness, called the Golden Years. The only nation in the republic that knew decay, were the Sirians. These Golden Years were only slightly haltered by three events: the Tarisian Flu, the betrayal of Éolegg Elroy the Traitor and several following Sith attacks on the Rodians.
Other attacks by the Sith aren’t worth mentioning.

6. The Sirian Wars

(incomplete)
7. Years of decay & the Bohrok
(incomplete)
8. The Matrix

(incomplete)
9. The Return of the Messenger

(incomplete)

10. The Return of Chaos

(incomplete)

11. History of the Waland Galaxy

(incomplete)

12. History of the Darelian Galaxy

(incomplete)

13. Technology & Science

Black Metal (+ mythological stories)
(incomplete)

14. Balance of the Universe

After the first defeat of the master, the universe was created from an unbalance, but in itself there was the balance of good, culminating in the creation of the Éoleff.

But the Staff had created a new unbalance: evil. To recreate the balance, the Éoleff created the Jedi, which was again unbalanced by the creation of the Sith.

The master wants to leave the universe unbalanced to destroy it and restore his own balance. Every unbalance and attempt to counter it required energy from the afterlife (e.g. the Staff, the horsemen, the messenger). This is why Luke was forbidden to use his divine powers, except against henchmen of the master. This is also why the resurrected and their increased powers were an unbalance; they were created through the Horseman of Chaos. This was also the reason “they” didn’t want to give John divine powers. It’s also the reason the Toa got powers: to defeat the Bohrok, because those were created from a pact between Bebi and Makuta. Their largest powers were given when the Anti-Toa were created. After Makuta’s defeat at the hands of the messenger, they were to stay in the afterlife for most of the time, so their powers wouldn’t create an unbalance.
Some also claim the Tsufuru-jin were offspring of Spirion fugitives after the war of the staff and that they were helped by one or more horsemen, but the war predates them, so it’s unlikely, however there were already demons around, with the plans to resurrect the Master, but it is unknown if they had any power without the essence from their Master. Of course, the Tsufuru-jin had two genders, while the Spirion had only one.
If the rumours are true, then the whole cleansing of the Tsufuru-jin was also an attempt to create an unbalance. Other rumours also state They saw the threat of the Tsufuru-jin and created the Super-Saiyan to counter the unbalance, but couldn’t control it, yet in the end chose a Saiyan for the reincarnation of the Messenger, to help him achieve his goal of divine powers through the Super Saiyan levels, but this story has an even more dubious origin and is largely created out of Saiyan mythology and is not to be taken very seriously.

The Avatars also created a great unbalance, something they solved themselves by killing each other. Children of the Avatars are said to still walk among mortals, but if they don’t intervene, their presence doesn’t create a noticeable effect; Nergal’s return had a greater impact, his infinite powers could be fatal for the universe, but he only uses them to avert such incident and has also promised to stay out of history’s path.

Small unbalances will always occur and will express themselves in the fight between good and evil, but the defeat of the Master assured that good will eventually prevail.

(incomplete)
Appendix B

History of places and planets

Note about galactic names:
The galaxies have been given many names, in the main text divided into three groups: the three galaxies of the Federation, the two galaxies of the Valcro-Zone and the “Saiyan” Galaxy. These were never official names.
The first galaxy of the U.L.F. was first called the “Milky Way”, named by the Humans; after Earth became its capital, it was officially named the “Terran Galaxy”. During the times of the matrix, no name was given to this galaxy. After the New Republic was founded, it was deemed appropriate to rename it. A poll resulted in the name “Spirion Galaxy”, for the race that once ruled it, and to give them a new sense of home, after finding the planet they originated from (during the days of the Realm, it was called the Jewel, because of the Spirions’ love for gems).
The second galaxy of the U.L.F. was originally called the “Wild Galaxy”, because of its instability (the Human name was “Andromeda”). It was named “Tarisian Galaxy”, after the capital world, but the name Wild Galaxy still stuck. It was also its new official name in the New Republic, even after the Tsufuru-jin nation dominated nearly the entire system.
The third (and smallest) galaxy of the Federation was originally called the “Magnos Galaxy”, named by the Cerijin (the Human name was “Triangulum”). Their world Ceronia became the capital and the galaxy was renamed “Cerian Galaxy”; the name lasted even after the destruction of the planet during the First Sith War, because the race was still the most important there. Their marvellous technology boded a fair resistance to the invading Bohrok, but they didn’t last against the horrific fleet. The galaxy got filled with leftovers from Republic ships and stations and Bohrok. Names were used for it like “graveyard”, “garbage belt”, junkyard” and “debris cluster”. The New Republic gave it the respectful name the “Silent Galaxy”.
The first galaxy of the Valcro Zone was simply called “Beta” by the Mumifar of the colliding system, the second galaxy of the Valcro Zone, known as “Alpha”. They were respectively named “Coruscian Galaxy” and “Egyptseic Galaxy”, after the capital planets Coruscant and Egyptsei. The name “Valcro Zone” was still used for both systems long after their reign had ended. As with the name “Spirion Galaxy”, a nostalgic name was used for the old Coruscian Galaxy, which was renamed “Éoleffan Galaxy” in memory of the race that had shaped most of the history in the cluster (until the arrival of Palpatine). The name of the second galaxy was debated for a long time, but eventually the (controversial) name “Valcro Galaxy” was chosen.
The “Saiyan” galaxy was never in the hands of the Saiyans; the only name that could be given to it, would be the “Vaask Galaxy”, because emperor Vaask was the only creature that ever controlled (although control might not be the best word) the whole system. The name would of course be unfitting after his defeat and the eventual union with the New Republic. The inhabitants eventually opted for the name “Waland Galaxy”, after the Bisolan man who changed the Empire into a democracy and who brought peace after eons of war. The name is also symbolic as way-land, because it was the most remote galaxy of the cluster at that time. In the years until the return of Sam Darkner, 4 new galaxies joined the Republic. The Three-Armed Galaxy and the Starbirth Galaxy were named for their natural appearance; The Ullian-Siwan Galaxy and the Darelian Galaxy were named for their most dominant species. These names are officials, even though the Zarsanians protested against the naming of the Darelian Galaxy. Another explored galaxy that seemed to be empty of advanced civilizations, due to war, was named the Empty Galaxy.
There are also dozens of satellite galaxies, but they are too small, too insignificant and too numerous too mention here. The stars and their planets in these satellites are mostly too young to spawn intelligent life, or contain too many radiating nebulas; with the notable exception of the Usferran from the Small Magellanic Cloud, which lies very close to the Spirion Galaxy. Colonies were more common, such as the Crepin Kingdom’s single colony world, and the hidden Sith temple on a planet in the Blood Cloud.
1. Earth

Except for the native Humans, Earth once had a Mumifar colony; its pyramids and artefacts would leave a lasing impact on the primitive culture of the time. The colony was abandoned during the Great War preceding the Peace of the Alliance.

In the year 2312 of their old calendar, Earth had colonies on the moon, the planet Mars, which they were terraforming (it would take thousands of years) and on the moon Europa, which they called New Europe, to avoid the obvious confusion. The colonies were small, but all three were as large as a medium nation on Earth.

During the summer of that year, Earth was hit by three devastating quakes with even more terrible consequences. In the west of the United States the “big one” hit California, destroying a large part of the 24th century megalopolis and bringing the land under sea level, culminating in large floods. This first quake was so intense, it triggered the eruption of the super volcano under Yellowstone Park. The deadly cloud of ashes went south, and destroyed the replanted rainforest. The second earthquake hit Iceland a week later, when a tectonic crack split the island in two, creating a large tsunami. This wave struck the east coast of the US (which had been largely spared from the disasters in the west), more intensely struck all of Europe and in lesser matter (but still with ten thousands of deaths) hit the coasts of North Africa. It also washed away the ashes on the islands in the Mexican gulf, people that hadn’t perished from the volcanic cloud that still blocked the sun (and which continue to do so for at least ten years) died when the wave hit them.

But the third and largest quake struck for the coast of Sumatra, where large tsunamis were not uncommon, but this was comparable with an asteroid hitting the ocean. South Asia, Australia and the entire west half of Africa were swept away. The only largely untouched country was Russia, but it was already a wasteland since the third world war, a hundred and twenty years earlier.

The next years, the surviving humans started to rebuild their large cities. In these strange days they wrote the “third testament”, which first introduced the word “Lego” as a quote from a God, when he created mankind. The humans believed the destruction was a kind of apocalypse.

Earth got help from the large stations orbiting the planet, but the colonies remained silent. This caused a great commotion on Earth, and after more investigation, the quakes were proven to be triggered by powerful explosives, planted there by colonial separatist, therefore they named the disaster the “False Armageddon”. With their space fleet intact, the Humans waged a war with the colonies, which lasted 300 years, because of the large distances. In the end the war was more of a symbol, because nobody from the start of it was still alive. New generations saw how pointless it was to fight and rebelled against their superiors. Soon a peace treaty was signed and the colonies were sovereign states in the new and united Earth Alliance. In the next 2000 years, Mars was fully terraformed and the alliance knew peace. They discovered life in other parts of the universe and worked on warp technology to meet those other aliens. After a few decades they succeeded, they could now start to explore outside their solar system and they created a colony on a planet in the Sirian system.

Their first communications with other life forms informed them of the network of artificial wormholes, build by the Mumifar and used for travelling in the cluster of five galaxies. The formation of the Jedi and the Ancient Republic was still more than a thousand years away and many wars were raging. The first one the Humans came in contact with was the Calamarian conflict (explained in the next paragraph), in which they chose the side of the Dos Calamarians, because they looked exactly like humans. They later became an important state in the republic, many humans populated the cluster by the time of the Sith Wars, Earth was even the most important planet of their galaxy, in the wars they chose the side of the Jedi. Earth remained important in the Golden Years and got its own province, the planet grew almost to the size of Coruscant, but it was the first target during the Sirian Wars (see the prequel chapter). The planet and its many trillions of inhabitants were completely devastated, together with the Lunar, Martian and New Europe colonies. Afterwards, the Humans didn’t try to rebuild it, but only constructed a library and a memorial site, which had frequent visitors, including the surviving Sirians, who never wanted the war. The Humans have perhaps the largest numbers in the cluster, so the loss of Earth was never a danger to the species.
Eventually, during the Bohrok invasion, the surface of the planet was destroyed beyond repair and the planet was forgotten in the times of the Matrix, until more than 5000 years later, when a new republic was formed and history was recovered. The planet could have been terraformed again, but they decided to install an orbital memorial station that stayed there until the sun turned into a red giant and ultimately destroyed the planet. A small new memorial satellite was installed in the nebula after the star’s death, saying:

This is the place where the Human race was born 5 billion years ago, they survived their home planet and their strong spirits will survive the universe.

2. The Calamarian Nebula

There were two stars at each side of the nebula, which was only 10 light-years wide. They both had a system of planets and each star had one habitable planet. These two worlds, Dos and Mon, both sprouted intelligent life. Dos had a humanoid species, looking exactly like humans on the outside, the other was also rather humanoid, but with a fish-like head. The two species developed at the same speed, at the same time. They both received each others transmissions from a decade ago, and they soon communicated, although it took 20 years to get an answer. The species then called themselves Dos Calamarians and Mon Calamarians, after they had agreed on a common name for the nebula and also for their planets.

On the path towards inventing warp technology, a subspace radio was developed, making it possible to transmit near-real time messages to each other. Their development and technologies were shared and they invented superluminal ships at the same time. But several Dos Calamarian purists hated the cooperation with the aliens and had infiltrated the warp-research lab and altered dome of the final data that was shared before a working prototype was constructed. The Dos Calamarian warp test was successful, but the Mon Calamarian test was disastrous, the ship exploded, taking the subspace transmitters and many other satellites and numerous lives with it. The real-time contact between them was severed; the Mon Calamarians couldn’t send or receive messages.
The Dos Calamarians built a manned warp ship within 7 years after the incident, still not enough for a normal transmission to have even reached Mon. After a week the ship arrived at the planet. The Mon Calamarians hadn’t rebuilt their subspace satellites and had also stopped research into warp technology, because they believed the Dos Calamarians had purposefully sent false data, in an attempt to kill them (which was partially true). In stead they had build orbital cannons to defend themselves in case the Dos Calamarians came to destroy them. Sensors indicated the ship was unarmed and relations stabilized. The warp technology was shared and together they started exploring space and came in Contact with the Mumifar and the Éoleff and soon also the Jaridians, Apallonians and later many more races.
Racial conflicts started to occur in the cluster and the Dos Calamarian purists gained more voice, saying that they would soon be under attack too. They attacked the Mon Calamarians and their planet, starting a war between their races. The Mon Calamarian ships had much better weapons and devastated the Dos Calamarian fleet. This was at about the time the Humans developed warp technology, coming right into the many wars of the cluster, ending the peacefulness of their Earth Alliance. They helped the Dos Calamarians against the Mon Calamarians. Mon and Dos were ravaged in the long war.
Their conflict was resolved by the coming of the Jedi and the peace of the alliance; their planets healed. Also, in the first Sith War, both species sided with the Jedi against Corna’El. But the Mon Calamarians were all but wiped out in the long terrible war and their home planet was ruined. The Dos Calamarians were now simply called Calamarians and the last survivors were called the “Surviving Mons”. After the second Sith War, there weren’t enough Mons to maintain their species and they died out after about two and a half millennium, during the reign of Éolegg Orovanion the Green. It is possible that some remote colonies still exist, but that they have decided to stay out of the spotlight; this could be true because the cluster is unimaginably large. 

During the Golden Years the other planet became very important in its galaxy and it became the capital of a province.
Dos Calamaria was later attacked by the Sirians, but their heavy attacks were more pointed at Earth’s Province, so the planet could recover, unlike the home of the Humans
When both planets were eventually rendered uninhabitable by the Bohrok, the Calamarians were already so spread through the cluster, that it at no time threatened the survival of the species. The planets had a similar fate as Earth: they were forgotten during the Matrix and both got memorial satellites after the creation of the New Republic.
3. Egyptsei

(incomplete)
4. Coruscant

(incomplete)

5. Taris

(incomplete)

7. The Circle of Five

Wullioh
Wullioh was located in the north of Jake’s district of the Insectoid Province. It was part of the traffic intense area known as the circle of five, together with the planets Jonola, Universia, Nar Shadaa and Lavora. It was particularly known for its development of robotic computer technology (both hardware and software); during the times of the Matrix, it was the third largest deliverer of computer and bionic related technology (after Lifrinall and Coruscant, not counting the droid factories of Geonosis).

Before this industry gained fame, the planet was mostly known for its five large moons and complex tidal system. Because of the frequent and bizarre floods, the native Wullians developed most of their cities in the mountainous regions and interfered little with the oceans. This enabled a high amount of diversity of the nautical life, comparable to ocean dominated planets, like Mon Calamaria and Oscion.

Wullioh had sided with the Sith during the First Sith War and was devastated by a Mon Calamarian fleet out of revenge, because their planet had been ruined and they envied the diversity because they had felt such a bond with the life on their own planet.

The smallest of the five moons was completely destroyed and many pieces fell on Wullioh’s surface. The tidal system was now completely changed and most cities had been destroyed.

The Wullians invented much robotic technology to rebuild their cities. During the Golden Years, they started developing their famed robotic and computer technology. Wullioh is considered as the planet which recovered best after facing complete devastation during the Sith Wars.

Many computer and robotic specialists made it their home, Humans almost outnumbered the natives. Chailey Bienne was born on Wullioh; she also met Robotica there, before they moved to Lifrinall because she was targeted by Palpatine’s troops. During Jonathan’s reign, Jake Valcro made Wullioh the capital of his region, preferring it over the education-oriented Universia and the criminal filled Nar Shadaa.

It became part of the N-O.C. (who killed Jake) and was where the fleets gathered when the N-O.C. and later the rest of the Freedom Pact attacked nearby Jonola.

Wullioh became an important planet of the New Republic.
Lavora
Lavora was located in the north of Erick’s district and also the location of his personal capital city, because Insectoid 3rd was mainly a large factory.

It was part of the circle of five, together with Wullioh, Jonola, Nar Shadaa and Universia. It was colonized mainly by Calamarians, Humans and Apallians during the Golden Years of the Old Republic. Although the main city was very impressive, the rest of the rather large planet was used for agriculture and the general food industry. Lavora also had many restaurants and orbital stations for truckers and tourists. They were meant as an alternative for the decaying and bad named Nar Shadaa, but Lavora developed into a planet for the Cluster’s high society, especially after the Sirian Wars.

After the fall of Jonola, Lavora was quickly captured, especially thanks to the information offered by Erick Valcro, before he went to the Saiyan Galaxy.
Nar Shadaa

Universia

Jonola

Jonola was located in the middle of the Insectoid Province, in Docen’s district, near the three border point with Erick’s and Jake’s districts.

It was part of the traffic intense area known as the circle of five, together with the planets Wullioh, Universia, Nar Shadaa and Lavora. This caused a great amount of urbanisation, comparable to that of Universia; its buildings aren’t as high, but a greater percentage of land is covered.

It was an ordinary planet with temperate climates, ideal for colonisation. Mainly Humans, Calamarians and Paragans lived their, but later many Spirions made it their home.

During the times of the Old Republic, the planet was mostly filled with chemical and manufacturing industries, but it was also the home of several important research centres and worked together with the universities of Universia.

During the times of the Matrix, Jonola’s industries and research centres were used for more military purposes and it became one of the most important weapons construction planets of the Valcro Zone, including many ground-based Smallbot factories, perhaps even greater than Treneb, but Treneb’s importance was elevated by its large orbital shipyards.

Although Insectoid Second was the official capital of Docen’s district, he spent most of his time on Jonola and built his seat of government there, so it became his de facto capital; which is why it was chosen as the new capital of the New Valcronian Empire after the Battle of Treneb. Its proximity to the important free world Universia, made it vulnerable and it fell not long after the Empire made it its seat of power. The N-O.C. attacked it first, without the knowledge of the other members of the Freedom Pact, because they wanted to free the locked souls still present in the Smallbot factories. The first attack failed, but the U.L.F. and Resistance fleets soon came to assist the Non-Organics and Jonola was captured. This was one of the last truly deciding battles in the war against the Empire, because both the Head of Officers Qui-Gon Jinn and Warlord Spiden Valcro were captured.

Qui-Gon’s transformation was undone and rejoined the Jedi, Docen followed mandatory “light side lessons” and eventually joined the Jedi too. Jonola’s industries became very important in the young New Republic and the planet remained flourishing.
6. Planets of the Cerijin

(incomplete)

Ceronia

Conia

Cersei
7. Planets of the Jaridians

(incomplete)

Jaridia

Jolia

Kennlansor

Fubon

New Fhalion
New Fhalion was located in Lassal’s area of the UFO Province and was located between Kennlansor and Jaridia, but almost neighbouring to Kennlansor. It was mostly inhabited by Arkaloni, Jaridians and a few Usferran.
During the siege on Fhalion by the Sirians, many Arkaloni fled to planets of the Jaridian Network, which sided with the Old Republic. They felt they couldn’t go to Arkalon, because they had surrendered to the Sirians. When a Jaridian ship with refugees had an engine failure while travelling to Kennlansor, they landed on a small, habitable planet. The swamps and mountains reminded the Arkaloni of Fhalion and most refugees moved there to start a new life. When their original home was completely devastated by the Sirians, they named the planet New Fhalion. Before the Imperial era, New Fhalion and Kennlansor were often called “the refugee twins”, because of their proximity and because Kennlansor was also the home of refugees from the Sirian Wars, namely the Usferran.
The planet had only one large city, which didn’t grow much, since most funding went to rebuilding after the wars and later to the war with the Bohrok. New Fhalion has been credited however, as saving the Arkaloni from extinction, since most Arkaloni lived in the Wild Galaxy, which was completely overrun by the Bohrok, and can be considered as their new home planet; though many Arkaloni had moved from Arkalon to Coruscant during the Sirian occupation.
During Imperial and later Valcronian times, the planet kept out of history. After the battle of the great fleet, all Valcronians were kicked of Jaridia. The only Valcronian officer put in charge of New Fhalion fled to Treneb and the planet was de facto free, two weeks later it was also claimed by the Resistance. During the times of the New Republic the planet remained low in denizens, but had its importance as home of Darth Bane, during his training by Nergal, the Avatar. His apartment was also the first place a Jedi saw Draugr’s powers and lived to tell it.
8. Planets of the Spirion

(incomplete)

Brasalia (Xarnia)
Elmeria

New Elmeria

Trionos (Dolchram III)
Dolchram VI

Nalraros II

Minolus Prime

Etosia

Dinesh

New Brasalia
9. Planets of the Sirians

(incomplete)

Siria

Denhetus (originally Mumifar colony; connection to Lepidop)
Lepidop (Usferran home world, until conquered by the Sirians)

10. Planets of the Paragan
(incomplete)

Paragall

Quruvall

Lifrinall

11. Planets of the Toa

(incomplete)

Tahu

Lewa

Onua

Gali

Kopaka

Pohatu

12. Other Planets

(incomplete)

Gramgue (Linksan homeworld)
Xiaobrez (Komuno homeworld)
Trotlen (Sosian planet)
Markeng (Sosian homeworld)
Luxlieb (Sosian planet)
Zarok (Otri planet)
Anak (Otri planet)
Lapsi (Lapsian homeworld)
Otrok (Otri homeworld)
Copil (Lapsian planet)
Murrosika (Murran homeworld)
Baligh (Ubalian planet)
Ubalehe (Ubalian homeworld)
Okul (planet where FSS members meet)
Valcro Prime

Valcro Second

New Valcro Prime

Insectoid Prime

Insectoid Second

Insectoid Third (Trinsia)

Insectoid Fourth

The planet was located in the south of the Éoleffan galaxy, in Thrawn’s region.

The planet was actively volcanic and during the times of the first Sith War, a Sith temple was built, but it was soon abandoned when Jedi forces retook the area of space. The firm structure survived the harsh environment and was still standing when the Empire came in control. After Jonathan’s insurrection, and the creation of Valcron, habitable domes were built on the planet, with cities inside, and the planet housed a considerable population. It also became the capital of Thrawn’s region. The ancient temple also received a dome, to protect the structure, and it became a training centre for new Sith. Valcron later claimed they had built the planet themselves.
After Thrawn defected to the Empire, he quickly captured his former home.

After the fall of Oscion, it became the new capital of the Valcronian Empire. The New Republic never captured the planet, because it remained the Empire’s capital until its official capitulation.

The only industry of any importance on the planet was gathering usable construction materials from the lava streams; an industry that only flourished under the New Republic, which could use the materials for its ever growing infrastructure.

Tower Planet

The Smallbot Planet
This planet was located in one of the scarce systems in the void between the Insectoid and Computer Virus provinces. It was small and uninhabitable, but because it was almost consisted of metals, Valcron decided to transform the entire planet into a factory for Smallbots, even hollowing out its core for a command structure. The factory planet was under the command of Thrawn Valcro, when it was discovered by Luke Valcro. A battle caused an enormous subspace explosion in its core, created by the Smallbots’ transwarp engines. The planet was completely obliterated.
Treneb
The planet was located in the general north of the Valcro galaxy, south west of the Jolian nebula, in Lassal’s region. Its star system is usually mistakenly called the “Treneb system”, while it’s actually the “Trenebula system”. It was named by the Jolian Jaridians, who mapped the area around the nebula and named every system with a habitable planet, for possible future use (another example is the Ranebula system and the planet Raneb). The Old republic, the Empire and later Valcron took over this index.
Treneb was a typical planet with several oceans and multiple climate zones: cold and hot deserts, temperate and tropical zones. The most typical feature of the planet was it nightly view of the Jolian nebula. The Jaridians considered to colonize the planet, but eventually didn’t because of the native primitive Trenebulans. When Valcro came to power, the planet was used for secret military research. The natives were enslaved or exiled and the planet became important in Valcron, especially after the construction of its shipyards. After the fall of Valcron and the destruction of Valcro 2nd, Treneb became the capital of the New Valcronian Alliance and later the New Valcronian Empire. Despite its importance, Jonathan Junior allowed its capture, because he believed the impeding Bohrok invasion would be unstoppable (it probably was, if not for the controlling technology on Krikkit).
Under the control of the Freedom Pact and later the New Republic, its research became important in the war against the Empire. The Trenebulans were also free to come and go as they liked.

The Jaridians now took a true interest in the planet and formed many settlements. Treneb became part of the Jaridian Network, and its importance in the New Republic was insured.
Seranlia

Virus Prime

The Experiment Planet

Witeling Prime

Valinéoleffas

Citadel (Qasbah)

Éoleffas

Mikritvan

Urgorr

A planet located in the north of Cameron Valcro’s region. During the planet’s formation, a massive nearby star exploded, sending gaseous black metal through the system. This caused a unique magnetic mineral to form on Urgorr and also created its bizarre needle-like mountains that stayed intact because of the lack of plate tectonics. The planet’s magnetic field lets through much of the blue star’s intense radiation, creating a large frozen lifeless desert of sand at the north pole, gradually turning into tundra at lower longitudes, savannah and eventually forests at the equator. The southern hemisphere is more habitable because of the large ocean that formed inside a crater. The equatorial forests continue around this crater until they reach the southern death zone of radiation, which is kept hot by volcanoes, created by the impact of the massive meteor that had also created the sea.
While the forests and savannah contain all kinds of animals comparable to many worlds, the only intelligent life on the planet, the Yu’ug, evolved in its sea as a brain resembling a jellyfish. It later evolved into a snail-like land creature.
The plant was first discovered by Imperial scouts, who discovered complex forms of art, viewable from the sky that had been created by the Yu’ug by dragging rocks with their tentacles. They also discovered the unique minerals, and made plans to mine the planet. The Imperial civil war broke out, however, and the plans were cancelled. The Valcros later returned to the planet and made android bodies for the intelligent Yu’ug, who were then used as slaves to mine the mineral, which was used mainly for the rings around Valcro Prime, Valcro Second and New Valcro Prime. A single large city and several villages eventually became the home of other people than miners.
During the Valcronian civil war, the planet was conquered by the N-O.C. who freed the population. Abbat Valcro later tried to trick the Yu’ug into using his technology for mining purposes, in exchange for a large percentage of the profits.
Urgorr always stayed out of intergalactic affairs and was an independent member planet of the Republic, not linked to its sector, comparable to Coruscant.

Hafk (Barren’s home planet)

Oscion
Oscion was located in the south west of the Éoleffan galaxy, near its edge, and rather close to the Smallbot Badlands. The system was effectively in a corner of the galaxy, in the area controlled by the Beta-droid. The Oscians evolved on dry land, but were always very close with the massive oceans that covered the planet and were almost amphibious. This evolution took place during a long ice age, when there was much land, but when they entered an industrial revolution, greenhouse gasses speeded up the global warming. For several generations new cities were being built that would be able to withstand the rising water and could survive even underwater. Genetic engineering made the Oscians completely amphibious. The planet’s ice melted completely and every bit of land was covered with many metres of water. The Oscians adapted to their new environment and built their beautiful underwater cities over almost the entire planet. Thermal energy from sea-bottom ruptures in the crust provided for more than enough energy. The planet had only small amounts of metal, not enough for the expansion of their cities. Most of it had come from asteroids, so this was the point when the Oscians started building space stations, to mine their single moon. They entered the intergalactic community at an early stage and Oscion became famous for its underwater cities, a fame that survived the many wars that struck the cluster over the millennia.
Used to a more 3-dimensional environment, Oscion also gained fame for its orbital stations, but they remained rather passive during the Sith Wars, The Sirian Wars and Palpatine’s coup; but when Valcro started his war against the Empire, he established many shipyards around the planet to feed his fleet. The planet became the capital of the region controlled by the Beta-droid, until it was conquered by the Empire during the Smallbot War. In the waning days of the New Valcronian Empire, Oscion was captured by Grand Admiral Machiavelli, during the internal struggles. It even became the Imperial capital, after the fall of Jonola. The planet was taken over by the New Republic several years later, by a group under the Beta-droid’s command, who knew the area and the planet well.
Oscion’s shipyard became an important asset to the New Republic, and its underwater cities kept their glory intact.
Amagosa III

Appallonnnia

Appallonnnia was located in the south of the Valcro Galaxy, near the southern border of the former UFO province, in the area that was controlled by Abbat.

The planet has many forests and jungles, but no real oceans, though many lagoons and several large lakes, fed by enormous rivers. The highlands from where these rivers originate are not as blossoming as the forests, but are largely filled with meadows. It was there that the Apallians, who originated from the jungles below, built their first homes. The highlands reached farther into a great mountain range, which looked like a spine of the planet, reaching from the south pole, over the equator, and half way to the north pole. Large deforestations led to shifting glaciers that destroyed several large cities below. The planet was headed for an ecological disaster. Before the large mountains formed, there had been a large ocean, covering much of the planet, but most water was now packed up into ice on the mountains, or absorbed in clouds and the lush life forms. Many habited areas where threatened to return into an ocean, until first contact with the Éoleff, Mumifar and Jaridians, who helped then restore their ecosystem (before the wars started prior to the creation of the Jedi). The planet became important during the First Sith War because of the surrounding shipyards (the Apallian created many space stations, to avoid more deforestation). When the shipyards were attacked, they fell on the planet, destroying much cities and jungles, but they managed to recover.
No more shipyards were built during the golden years; instead they focused on creating extremely large, yet stable buildings, to compensate for the small space. Their beautiful cities were nearly destroyed by a Sirian fleet, but the attack was diverted by the Mumifar.

The Bohrok were still far away when they were defeated, but it would be the first important planet on their path, when coming from the south. The planet remained standing during the dark ages of the Matrix and remained important even into the days of the New Republic.
Bespin
Durtonia III
Durtonia was a gas giant in Barren’s area of the Computer Virus’ province. The planet had dozens of large and smaller moons, but its third moon, was habitable. The surface was covered by oceans for over 80%.

During the time of Éolegg Seyana the Green’s second term, scientists started to investigate the moon’s unusually strong magnetic field and large gravity pull, but had to leave when the temperature started to drop exponentially due to a shift in its orbit, putting it in an ice age.
The moon’s strange traits were eventually explained during a quest to find the Hypno Circles: it turned out the moon had a core, completely consisting of black metal.
Geonosis

Rodia

Saragossa V
Zilcat IV

Yoda’s Planet
When Yoda went into exile, he knew he had to choose a planet with three characteristics: it had to be on the edge of a galaxy, it should have enough life to hide his own life signs and it should repel the Force, to further hide his presence, and to make him stronger, in the event he had to return to fight one day.

The planet was located in the very south of the Valcro Galaxy, outside of Imperial, and later Valcronian territory. The surrounding space was of little interest, because numerous planets had been attacked by the Bohrok. When the Matrix was destroyed, the Bohrok posed a new threat to the surviving systems. Luke arrived just in time to destroy parts of the fleet, which caused the rest of the local Bohrok to travel to another part of the galaxy instead.
Luke took Yoda away from the jungle planet and it remained unchanged for over 15 years, like it had for 5000 years. The planet wasn’t entirely a jungle; several higher plateaus were rather desert-like. Several Jedi, including Yoda, eventually returned to the planet and renamed it the “Luke Memorial Planet”. They founded a training centre on the largest of the plateaus, to use the Force-repelling nature of the planet for exercise.

When Yoda died, the planet became a pilgrimage for Jedi. Half of Yoda’s ashes were released in the planet’s atmosphere; the other half was placed in an urn and set in the ruins of his home city on Valinéoleffas.

Goranionburg

Tatooine

Braal V
The fifth planet of the Braal system was once a beautiful planet with a rich amount of energy crystals, which is why the planet was colonized: for mining.
The system also became the site for the wormhole generators to the Terran and Cerian Galaxies, which caused even more urbanisation on the planet. After the Sith Wars, many Mon Calamarian and Tarisian refugees came to the planet, after loosing their own.

It was one of the first planets where the Tarisian Flu broke out, killing the remaining Mon Calamarians and Tarisians. The disease quickly spread through the other galaxies, because of the nearby wormholes and intense traffic. Many races were immune, but did carry the virus with them. The disease was the most terrible thing during the Golden Years of the Old Republic.

Braal V recovered because of the traffic and remained one of the most important planets of the Wild Galaxy until the Bohrok attacked and destroyed the surface.

The underground caves survived and were mined by the U.L.F. many years later. Several accidents happened there and the mines were also the site for a terrorist attack orchestrated by Sharkthoot as an election stunt.

There was never an attempt to terraform the planet to its original state, but a shrine was erected to remember those that had died when the Bohrok conquered their first galaxy.

Braal V’s Moon
This moon was a huge swamp, without any vegetation except algae and plankton. There were also several higher, dry plateaus.

The moon was uninhabitable for most races, including Humans, because of the very low oxygen levels, much of it was used by the algae and plankton. Notable exceptions were several powerful Jedi, the elder Mumifar, Tarisians and most Calamarians, though many of them were allergic to the emissions of the exotic algae. When the Bohrok attacked the Braal system, the Mumifar hid the artificial wormhole creator to the Cerian Galaxy on the moon, so that the Bohrok wouldn’t be able to use it. Eventually the Bohrok reached the other galaxies and continued their genocide.

Jim Johnson lived on the planet in exile and discovered the device. He became its operator for several years and gave the function to someone else when he left the moon. He later returned to his home there, but didn’t operate the device. During the Sharkthoot crisis he left the moon for the last time.
During the New Republic, several Mumifar came back to the moon to study their ancient device.
Narm
Lesedi

Zuberi

Kamaria

New Kamaria A

New Kamaria B

Mattania

New Mattania

Briot

Idowu

New Idowu

Ovitan

Afraima

Torua
Mustelin

Karjulan

Haämo

Ullivar

Advar

New Ullivar

New Advar

Nudrev

Ashtor Prime

Ashtor Second

Planet of Meeting (Ashtor Third)

Saalas

Crepin

New Crepin

Darelia (planet in Darelian galaxy)
Darobis

Daroter

Daroquad

New Darelia

Moleth

Rymnia

Oronox

Zarsania

Haros

Isa

Lirsh

Carrans

Fenius

Arkalon (planet in the Wild Galaxy)

Fhalion
Fhalion was located in the Wild Galaxy and was the most important colony of the Arkaloni. The planet was named after the Arkaloni God of the night sky and was located near Arkalon itself, since it had been discovered early in the Arkaloni space age.

The planet was known for its many mountains, caused by a unique form of plate tectonics, and its large swamps. Because of limited space to build, the planet had curiously formed cities, were all buildings eventually became one and traffic was limited to turbolifts and escalators. The roof of the city-building was thus one big landing zone.
While Arkalon surrendered to the Sirians, when they waged war on the Republic, Fhalion decided to fight. Many, if not most civilians fled the planet during the siege and after the planet’s surface was destroyed by the infamous Sirian scorch bombs, the refugees moved to a planet of the Jaridian Network they had called New Fhalion.
Krikkit
The planet was located in the Wild Galaxy, in a part of space, never explored by the Republic.

This is the planet that spawned the Kraata, a life form which may have been created by the Horseman of Plague. Bebi came to this planet after his deal with Makuta, probably guided by demons, in order to find the Kraata. With demonic help, he also created the factories for the Bohrok and genetically engineered the Kraata into Krana, to operate the Bohrok. With his machines, Bebi also created his future capital city, with cloned members of his race to awaken, once his plan of cleansing the cluster had succeeded. Eventually the other planets in the system also had Bohrok plants.

When the Matrix froze all Bohrok operations, it also affected the Kraata, Krana, factories and Bebi’s capital. Bebi and the planet remained in a state of hibernation, until the Matrix destruction, when everything became active again.

Eventually, the factories were destroyed by the Pact’s fleet. Lewa terraformed the planet, killing every Krana and Kraata. When the Bohrok were destroyed through a master control in the city, it awakened the new Tsufuru-jin, who had no plans to continue Bebi’s work. The city was relocated to a more habitable part of the planet and the population named it Krikkit.
Until they are ready and make contact themselves, the population and its planet are to be avoided by all ships.
13. The Smallbot Badlands

(incomplete)
14. The Forbidden Zone

(incomplete)

Anakin’s Planet
This unnamed planet in the Forbidden Zone was rocky, had a slightly lower than medium amount of vegetation, a very low amount of animal life and had only 1 small ocean, but many rivers, originating from the countless mountains, the most striking feature of the planet, next to its wide fields of grass and its savannah. The planet’s large iron core was extremely irregular, as was its magnetic field, which caused a large amount of solar radiation to hit the planet’s southern hemisphere, resulting in large barren areas and wild electrical thunderstorms would sometimes engulf the entire planet.

In spite of this, the planet was mostly habitable and was chosen by Luke Valcro from an alternate timeline as the prison for his son. The Matrix and the presence of a different Hypno Crystal caused a malfunction in Luke’s circles, leaving a copy of them behind, a sort of afterimage, but making it unable for Luke to return. On this planet, Anakin invented all his androids.
When it was attacked by the Bohrok, the planet was destroyed by the old Anakin, but he survived as an android. The planet hadn’t exploded and large parts of the planet still revolve around its former core.
The Horseman’s Planet

Matrix Planet

(incomplete)
15. Other Locations & Special Notes

(incomplete)
The Seven Wonders of the Cluster

During the peace of the alliance, the Humans suggested naming seven constructions that were worthy of the name wonder, like the seven wonders that had once stood on their own planet (the last one standing, a pyramid, was actually built by the Mumifar).

The original seven were:

-The great dikes, dams and other barriers of Egyptsei

-The intergalactic artificial wormhole network
-The Jedi Temple of Valinéoleffas

-The terraforming of Mars

-The shipyards of Appallonnnia

-The underwater cities of Oscion
-The solar energy collecting satellite belt around Taris
Several were destroyed during the Sith Wars, so during the term of Éolegg Harafold the Green, in the middle of the Golden Years, a new list was made:

-The intergalactic artificial wormhole network

-The urbanisation of Coruscant

-The intergalactic vaccination against the Tarisian Flu (though the disease had been eradicated many centuries earlier)
-The terraforming of Mars
-The underwater cities of Oscion
-The stable passage through the Badlands (the future Smallbot Badlands)
-The galactic infrastructure of space stations in the Cerian Galaxy
After the war with the Bohrok and the creation of the Empire, many more were destroyed. After the Imperial civil war and the formation of Valcron, Jonathan suggested renewing the list, under the name the Seven wonders of the Valcro Zone, the subjectively added wonders are justified, except the last one:

-Coruscant
-The Hypno Crystal, by Palpatine
-The Matrix, by Palpatine
-The artificially created planets, by the Valcros
-The transportation rings around several planets, by the Valcros
-The underwater cities of Oscion
-The Godliness of the Valcros
When Valcron and eventually the Empire were defeated, the New Republic deemed it necessary to make a new list of Seven Modern Wonders of the Cluster:

-The new intergalactic artificial wormhole network

-The terraforming, urbanisation, and other modifications of the asteroids of the U.L.F.

-Coruscant

-The reformation of the Jedi Order and final defeat of the Sith
-The underwater cities of Oscion

-The Toa
-The renewed Hypno Crystal
The marvellous cities of Oscion are the only thing that survived these lists.

Afterwards this list was deemed outdated, especially since the Jedi order became common again and the Toa weren’t seen again. Attempts to renew it failed, because of the continuing expansion of the Republic.
(incomplete)
Appendix C

History of races, people and organisations

Numbers of population could lay very far from the truth, these figures are only estimates.
1. The Valcro Family
[Maggie]

     |(+Julian Vegeta)
[Robert,                          Duncan,               Patricia]

     |(+Loryn)


|(+?)

|(+?)
[Kenneth]

          [?]
          [?]
     |(+Amelia)

[Lucian, Palpatine]

                    |(+?)


[Robotica, Jonathan,
                        Ufon, 



Insectoz]

  |(+FF)        |(+Shana Oz/Jane Sol)       |(+?)
       


        |(+?)

[Janos]  [Jonathan Junior, Luke]   [Abbat, Elias, Lassal, Jonas]   [Jayna, Erick, Spiden, Jake]



                    |(+Sofie Ice)
         |(+?)

   |(+?)
              |(+?)



[Anakin, Clone Anakin]
   [Thorn]
  [Cameron]         [Docen, Thrawn]



      |(+Mara Jade)


  [Lisa]

-Maggie: Married the Prince of the Saiyans, but he was stripped of his title and name because he let Bebi escape. Maggie gave her name to their children.

-Robert, Duncan, Patricia: Maggie’s children (nothing is known about Duncan’s or Patricia’s offspring, but there are no more Valcros left in their galaxy by the time Jonathan visits it).

-Kenneth: Robert’s son, father of Lucian and Palpatine.

-Lucian: Palpatine’s older brother, his death triggered Palp’s transformation.

-Palpatine: Former Emperor, creator of the Matrix, death.

-Robotica: Jonathan’s older brother, joined the U.L.F.

-Jonathan: Luke’s father, former ruler of Valcron. (too much to tell here, read the story)

-Ufon: Member of the Valcronian High Council, second in command after Jonathan, Supreme Warlord of the UFO province. Got killed during the “battle of the great fleet”. Was resurrected and absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Insectoz: Ufon’s twin brother, member of the V.H.C. third in command after Jonathan, Supreme Warlord of the Insectoid province. Got killed during the “battle of the great fleet”. Was resurrected and absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Jonathan Junior: First son of Jonathan, sixth in command after Jonathan, ruled the New Valcronian Empire for a short time. Came to the Light Side after peace talks following the defeat of the resurrected evil. 

-Luke: (read the story, extra information below)

-Abbat: Warlord near the south border of the UFO province, faked his death because he didn’t want to die in the “battle of the great fleet”, became a bounty hunter after the fall of Valcron.

-Elias: Warlord of the area around the original Valcro Prime, in the UFO province. Became Warlord in the New Valcronian Alliance and the New Valcronian Empire. Was absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction and became a cook.

-Lassal: Warlord near the north border of the UFO province with the Sharkthoot province. Ruled the New Valcronian Alliance until the merge with the Imperial Remnant. Was absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Jonas: Warlord overseer of the Sharkthoot province. Got killed during the “battle of the great fleet” (but not in the battle itself, was killed by Sharkthoot). Was resurrected and absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Jayna: only female Valcro (in recent history), for some reason, got killed during the Jonathan Insurrection and wasn’t resurrected. Was in the Imperial computer for souls until the destruction of the Matrix, was forgotten by Cell and stayed death.

-Erick: Warlord northeast of the Smallbot badlands. Got killed during the “battle of the great fleet”. Resurrected by and joined the U.L.F. after he turned to the Light Side in the afterlife.

-Spiden: Warlord overseer of the Computer Virus province. Escaped from the Sharkthoot/Computer Virus Coalition, after the fall of Valcron, became a Warlord of the NVA and the NVE and came to the Light Side after being captured at the battle of Jonola.

-Jake: Warlord northwest of the badlands. Got killed in the civil war after the fall of Valcron, by the Non-Organic Companionship. Was resurrected and absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Anakin: Son of Luke, destroyed cell (complicated, read the story)

-Clone Anakin: name says it all. In the end he joined Luke.

-Thorn: Warlord of the area around the new formed Valcro home planet. Got killed shortly after the “battle of the great fleet” by a rebelling Smallbot fleet. Was resurrected and absorbed by Cell, came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.

-Cameron: Warlord around the area of (the destroyed) Insectoid 1st. Was absorbed by #01 (and thus incorporated into Cell), came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction and joined the Space Police.
-Docen: Warlord of an area between Cameron’s, Jake’s and Erick’s. After the fall of Valcron, became a Warlord of the NVA, was absorbed by #01 (and thus incorporated into Cell), came to the Light Side after Cell’s destruction.
-Thrawn: Warlord south of the badlands up to the border with the empire. Joined the Empire… (too complex, read the story).

-Lisa: Anakin’s first child. It is only known that Vera DeTaris was a descendant of her.

-Janos Audron: turned out to be Robotica’s unknown child with Femme Fatale, who she was pregnant with when she died. The child was later discovered in the computer, raised by the Sith and kept a secret from both FF and Rob.

Extra info of Luke:

Full Name: Luke Richard Robotica Sol Valcro

Gender and Race: Male Saiyan

Birthday: 15th May 5032 ACM (day of reincarnation; actual birthday unknown)

Place of Birth: New Valcro Hospital, New Valcro Prime, New Republic

Father: Jonathan Valcro (°2110)

Mother: Jane Sol (°4752)

Siblings: Jonathan Valcro Junior (half brother) (°4150)

Uncles and Aunts: Robotica Valcro (°1856), Insectoz Valcro (°2674), Ufon Valcro (°2674)

Cousins: Abbat Valcro (°2926), Elias Valcro (°2988), Lassal Valcro (°3053), Jonas Valcro (°3101), Jayna Valcro (°2701, + 2918), Erick Valcro (°3009), Spiden Valcro (°3101), Jake Valcro (°3250)
Nephews and nieces: (none)

Life partner: Sofie Ice (°4945)

Parents in Law: Samantha Perkins (°4917, +4958), Timothy Ice (°4917, +5059)

Other in laws: Sarah Ice (°4951)

Children: Anakin Valcro (°5005), Clone Anakin Valcro (°5006)
Pets: (none)

Different names and titles:

-The Messenger (of the Gods)

-Luke

-Special M-Tron agent

-Luke Valcro

-Darth Vader

-Lord of the Sith

-Jedi Knight

-Assistant Minister of Defence

-Vice-Minister of Defence

-Minister of Defence

-Honorary Doctor at Capital University

-Staff Member of M-Tron

-Jedi Master

-President of the Federation’s and the Resistance’s first combined government
-Saviour of the cluster

-Jedi Council Member

-Ambassador of the U.L.F.

-Vice President of M-Tron

-Senator-Governor of the U.L.F. faction of the New Republic

-Master of Evil

-Dark Overlord of the Universe

-Saviour of the Universe

-President of the New Republic

-Director-General of the Republic military

-Senatorial Representative of the Jedi

-Senior Member of the Jedi Council

Some believe the name Valcro is made from the parts “Val” and “Cro” or “Cero”, which in Saiyan language would mean either meat-stick, which makes little sense or meat-turn, which makes no sense at all. In fact the name is a shortened form of Valec’ro, which simply means “sons of Valec”, who was probably a warrior during or before the time the Saiyans started using surnames. The name Valec is derived from the word for meat-gatherer, which later became a common name among warriors.
2. Valcron

Jonathan Valcro was the unquestioned ruler of Valcron, below him was the Valcronian High Council, consisting of Ufon, Insectoz, Sharkthoot and the Computer Virus. They each ruled one of the 4 provinces. The provinces were divided into smaller regions, each controlled by a warlord. In the UFO and Insectoid province, those warlords were mostly Valcros, except for the Smallbot Queen, near the border with the Computer virus Province, the Beta Droid, in the southwest corner of the Insectoid province and the Alfa Droid, northeast of the destroyed Valcro Prime. The Computer Virus and Sharkthoot provinces were each divided into two parts, with a non Valcro warlord. These two provinces also had a Valcronian overseer, to make sure the Valcros kept the upper hand in the area. The family tree gives most warlords, except those of the last mentioned provinces. In the Computer Virus province: near the border with the Insectoid province: warlord Barren, half man, half machine and in the eastern parts: Lord Simon Bicky, a human with great technical skills (and a great cook too). In the Sharkthoot province: near the border with the UFO province: Red Sincam, leader of the Valcronian Agents (the Spirion) and in the northern parts: Clovis Fett, leader of the Clone workers and a clone himself, of course.

Every Warlord had a specific title and rank, officially according to the importance of their territory, but in fact simply given to them by Jonathan, who liked the idea of grand and elusive titles, since Valcron had been created because Palpatine refused to give his offspring direct military positions. His own complete title was in fact “His Imperial Highness Prince-Regent Jonathan Robert Valcro, Duke of Coruscant, Head of the Valcronian High Council and Lord of the Sith”. He only called himself Emperor on rare occasions, because his father was still in control of his own Empire, until his death or demise, he’d referred to himself as Prince-Regent. “Duke of Coruscant”, was a title given to him by Palpatine before his insurrection. The few friends he had during his reign called him Johnny.
Each warlord had a number of officers: Force sensitive persons controlled by Jonathan’s mind domineering technology or Sith but also several partisans without Force powers. Droids, Agents, other partisans and paid mercenaries from the Computer Virus province were under them, they each had different ranks that overlapped each other. Below them were the Clone workers, who were sometimes used as fighters too and slaves (mostly political prisoners). Below them were Smallbots, with completely suppressed souls from disobedient Agents, officers or others, who had first been degraded to a droid.

This rule had been installed since Jonathan’s insurrection.

When the Empire attacked with the Death Star, it started the Smallbot War. During the Year of Chaos, it had already conquered space up to the badlands. At the end of the year came the fall of Valcron, after the battle of the fleet: after the disappearance of Jonathan, the much weakened Valcron still wanted to invade the U.L.F.. They surprised them by attacking the fleet, in combination with the Resistance’s attack on important outposts.

After the fall of Valcron, the local warlords took direct control over their territories and thus a civil war had begun. Several Valcros joined together and formed the New Valcronian Alliance (N.V.A.), ruled by Lassal, which later fused with the Imperial Remnant to form the New Valcronian Empire. The droids, Smallbots and Agents formed the Non-Organic Companionship, ruled by a triumvirate of the Smallbot Queen, Red Sincam and the Beta Droid. They were at peace with the U.L.F. and Resistance, joined them in the Freedom Pact and were one of the founders of the New Republic. Sharkthoot and the Computer Virus formed the unsuccessful Coalition, which dried out eventually and surrendered to the New Republic, though Sharkthoot was the cause of the last great crisis that threatened the entire universe. After the battle of the fleet, many areas were under control of the U.L.F. and the Resistance.
After the rule of Cell and the rule of Bebi, the last remnants of Valcron (and the Empire) were almost gone. When the resurrected evil took control of Luke, they formed an alliance with the New Republic and at last surrendered after peace talks.

Droids were given a number which refers to the place they were originally stationed (it is not changed when they are moved). This number consists of four sub-numbers: e.g. “P4-A2-L02-NR552” means it’s a droid from the fourth province (the Computer Virus province), from the second area (Lord Bicky’s), his level of authority is 2 (with 1 being the highest and 10 the lowest) and he’s the 552nd droid with the same P, A and L numbers.
The two Android Warlords and the Valcronian Titan are the only exceptions on this rule. Although the Alpha and Beta droid never served in the area of Elias Valcro, their numbers are P1-A1-L00-Alpha and P1-A1-L00-Beta. The Valcronian Titan was also assigned a number, according to his first appearance in Lord Bicky’s area: P4-A2-L01-Titan03. Names for Smallbots were formed similar, but used numbers for the fleet they were in and the sort Smallbot they were, e.g. “FL26-L3-NR483” means its from fleet 26, he’s a Shieldbot (L1 is for Smallbots, L2 for Smartbots, L3 for Shieldbots, L4 for Strongbots, L5 for Nanobots and L6 for Blackbots) and he’s the 483rd with the same numbers.
3. The Empire

The Empire had a complex system of military control, greatly simplified in chapter 2, part 3. How they established their reign is explained in “The Beginning of the Matrix” and their first defeat in “The Jonathan Insurrection”. As stated above: they were winning their new war against Valcron, but got somewhat halted by the badlands and signed a peace treaty with Valcron, which had pulled back its troops to attack the U.L.F.; during that time, Luke killed the Emperor permanently (until he was revived along with his brother, by the resurrected evil) and many officers claimed the title of new emperor. Grand Admiral Thrawn’s control of the Black Star made him the new leader, but behind the scenes, the old Anakin controlled both the imperial Remnant and the NVA and made their fusion possible. This New Valcronian Empire was then ruled by Cell. After his defeat and the capture of Thrawn, Jonathan Junior named himself rightful successor of the throne. He stayed in power, even after the defeat of Bebi, but at last surrendered, as said above; in truth, Jonathan Junior had little power left, most areas were under direct control of the remaining high officers or by the New Republic.
The evil clone of Anakin tried to bring back the Empire by resurrecting several important officers and warriors, but they never formed a real organisation.

After all these events, there were still several officers who refused to accept the Empire’s fall, but they were defeated quickly by the vastly superior armies of the New Republic.

To give a more complete vision of the Empire, I give u a better explanation of the high positions:

-Emperor: dictator and unquestioned ruler of the Empire

-Sith Lord: right hand(s) of the Emperor

The next ranks overlap sometimes:

-Consul: political ruler of a Province of the Empire;

-Pro-Consul: political ruler of a Region inside that of a Consul

-Grand Moff: military ruler in the complete Province controlled by a Consul

-Moff: military ruler in the complete Region of a Pro-Consul

-Grand Admiral: special function, given to those in control of a large attacking fleet or a special assignment, can overrule Consuls and Grand Moffs if it suits their assignment, but need the Emperor’s approval.
-Admiral: leaders of the fleets, this rank is usually below that of a Moff or a Pro-Consul.
-General: leaders of ground troops, on par with an admiral.

This is the official rank listing, but Grand Admiral, Grand Moff and Consul overlap each other in the power they hold.
Originally the rank of Pro-Consul was used for former Consuls who would rule a smaller area as a form of retirement, but it became a normal rank after the Empire’s defeat by Jonathan Valcro, when its size was suddenly much smaller.

The Empire was divided in 7 Provinces, each again divided in three Regions. The following information is from the last time the system was used correctly, in the time before Cell.
The first Province was an area around Coruscant, ruled by Consul Dirichlet and Grand Moff Maxwell. The three Pro-Consuls were Euler, Hess and Gibbs; the corresponding Moffs were Koenig, Boltzmann and Clapeyron.

The second Province included the Amagosa system and was the building site of the first Death Star. Jim Johnson had been Pro-Consul of the Region around Amagosa, before he was discovered. It was ruled by Consul Fuller and Grand Moff Tarkin. The three Pro-Consuls were Green, Rydberg and Cavendish; the corresponding Moffs were Jerjerrod, London and Guldin. These Moffs and their fleets were all destroyed when the Black Star attacked New Valcro Prime.
The third Province was ruled by Consul Krönig and Grand Moff Putzer. The three Pro-Consuls were Silsbee, Yerkes and Argand; the corresponding Moffs were Ostrogradski, Loschmidt and Candela.
The fourth Province included the Bespin system and was ruled by Consul Lewis and Grand Moff Clausius. The three Pro-Consuls were Proust, Dalton and Nernst; the corresponding Moffs were Balmer, Lyman and Paschen.

The fifth Province was an area around Saragossa, controlled by Consul Maul (Bully Junior) and Grand Moff Riemann. The three Pro-Consuls were Kirchhoff, Meissner and Ochsenfeld; the corresponding Moffs were Wheatstone, Hall and Langevin.
The sixth Province was ruled by Consul Poggendorff and Grand Moff Raabe. The three Pro-Consuls were Cayley, Leibniz and Wronski; the corresponding Moffs were Rolle, Wallis and Madhava.
The seventh and last Province included the Zilcat system and was controlled by Consul Uhlenbeck and Grand Moff Arrhenius. The three Pro-Consuls were Debye, Frasch and Hasselbach; the corresponding Moffs were Henry, Stregay and Von Guericke.
Among these, Heather Stregay was the only woman. Most of them were either Human or Calamarian, because they looked the most like Palpatine’s race, the Saiyans. Several other races and other woman were part of the Imperial military, but only one among these ranks: Consul Poggendorff, who was a male Fuboni.
Inside the ultimate top of the Empire, several other titles were created to watch over other parts, like the secret police or the intelligence agency, but many of them remained secret and much data was destroyed by the Imperials when they were finally defeated.

4. The U.L.F.

The “Space Lands of the United Free Lego Federation” began as a group of Human and Calamarian refugees from the planet Goranionburg, which was under Valcronian rule. The secret Jedi academy was discovered during the third Jedi Purge of the Matrix, when the young Human Jedi Master Oz and his two apprentices Lady Ice and James Tron found a way into the isolated parts of the Matrix. The large group had stolen a predecessor of a Star Destroyer, which Valcron in his turn, had stolen from the Empire. 18.000 families and a lot of resources were shipped on the star cruiser and they escaped. They then used their technology to make some asteroids habitable. The United Lego Federation was founded when the refugees declared Oz as their king, their social and spiritual leader; he should be the ideological leader, to unite the people with the stable element, but without political power, except in rare occasions. Soon ideas to form a democratic government, to be lead by a chosen Prime Minister and a parliament with representatives for every part of their new state, were created. The new state declared itself free of any higher dictatorial control, they declared themselves independent and a charter was formed, in the form of a national anthem:

For our nation and our Jedi King

This sacred song we sing

Calamarian or Human, together we are strong

Male or female, together we hang on

We all are Lego and all must see

We choose our own path, ‘cause we are free

Old or young, together we are strong

Normal man or Jedi, together we hang on

We all are Lego and all must see

The Force is with us, ‘cause we are free

The U.L.F. was formed on 25th April 4055 ACM with a temporary government; the first elections took place in July 4058, to be taken every 4 years. Early on, the King decided not to rule until his death, but to step down after one century, his oldest child would then become King or Queen (first child in the family, if the first child is adopted, he or she would become monarch, even if he or she is younger than a later adopted child). Each monarch also chooses an animal for his or her royal coat of arms.
List of Kings and direct followers of the U.L.F.:
“Wizard” Oz (4055 – 4155) (animal: dragon)
Rupert Oz (4155 – 4255) (dragon)
Karl Oz (4255 – 4355) (horse)
Brian Oz (4355 – 4455) (dragon)
Dina Oz (4455 – 4555) (horse)
Ronan Oz (4555 – 4655) (lion)
Leo Oz (4655 – 4755) (lion)
Leo Oz II (4755 – 4855) (no child before end of term, had a daughter Janine in 4890) (lion)
Karl Oz II (4855 – 4955) (second son of Leo Oz, brother of Leo II) (dragon)
Blake Oz (4955 – 4994) (denounced his throne before the usual period of a century) (wolf)
King Alex Oz (4994 – present) (current monarch) (lion)
Prince Egbert Oz (has said he’d choose a dragon for his crest)
Princess Dina Oz (will become Queen Dina Oz II)

Prince Karl Oz (will become King Karl Oz III)

Prince Luke Oz (in honour of Luke Valcro)

If Janine Oz would have become Queen after Karl II had resigned, like many people had suggested, Jean-Luc Sharkthoot would have become King in 5055 and would have probably never tried a coup. His feelings that he should have been King were a major factor in his inferiority complex, which made him look for overcompensation in the form of a takeover. A similar motif can be found with Palpatine
.
(A complete list of the 250 Premiers would be too long)
(incomplete)
Internal structures of the state:

The Federation strictly followed the democratic idea of “separation of powers”, which lead to the creation of a parliament to make the laws, a government to apply the laws and courts to correct those who don’ follow the laws. This part will concentrate on the first two powers.

The government is controlled by the prime minister, his/her ministers and their secretaries. After Sharkthoot’s coup, the government changed to a semi-presidential system with shared control between the president and the premier.
The parliament is bicameral, which means there are a senate and a chamber of representatives. Members of the chamber are elected per colony or group of colonies (de facto by each area controlled by a governor). The senate is more complex: 60% of the senators are directly elected by the people, with no different lists per colony. 25% consists of the governors and members of their local governmental branches. The remaining 15% are co-opted (appointed by the parties) + the leaders of state-controlled organizations (Ice, Tron, Space Police, etc.), of worker’s cooperatives and unions and the members of the Jedi council. Aside of these senators, there are several non-elected members: the “senators by law”, namely the king(s), queen(s) and their child(ren); but these are no longer part of the senate after Sharkthoot’s coup.
After the creation of the New Republic, powers are shared and the Federation’s government and parliament became regional, and the New Republic became federal. Eventually the government and parliament of the U.L.F. were completely absorbed by the Republic
(incomplete)
5. The New Republic
When the threat of the Bohrok, which had caused the ultimate fall of the already decaying Old Republic, was destroyed, the three members of the Freedom Pact decided it was time to reform it.
(incomplete)

Internal structure of the state:

This structure was based on the Federation, combined with aspects of the Old Republic, including its unicameralism.
The government lies somewhere between a semi-presidential and a complete presidential system: the president and his vice president (or the two consuls) have more power than the prime minister, but together with his/her ministers, they share about the same amount of power.

The parliament has only one chamber, which is formed as a combination of a senate and a chamber of representatives. This parliament is colloquially addressed as “the Senate”. 80% are elected directly, yet with separate lists: 30% from the Federation, 30% from the Resistance, 19% from the Non-Organics and 1% of independent areas (including Coruscant). It is however not forbidden for 1 person to appear on several lists. This part is nation bound as opposed to area-bound (e.g. many Resistance members are citizens of Coruscant). 10% are representatives of state-organizations, cooperatives, unions and Jedi. 10% are appointed by the regional governments/parliaments of the provinces of the Republic. This is area-bound; the Federation’s representatives are appointed by the chamber, 1 per area controlled by a governor; the other provinces of the Republic have a similar approach.
During the first centuries of the New Republic, there were also several “senators by law”: the triumvirate of the N-O.C. and their leaders, the king, president, premier and their vices of the Federation, the head of the Resistance and its Generals, and every minister of foreign affairs of the Republic’s regional governments. This part disappeared when these regional governments/parliaments were absorbed by the Republic. Until that time, these states had shared powers.

(incomplete)
6. The Ice Family & Corporation

[Lady Ice]

    |(+?)

  …

    |(+?)

[Randy,







       Peter]

    |(+Kelly Angillis)







|(+?)
[Mark,






Eugene, Sarah]     [Ziggy]
    |(+Anna Johanson)




    |(+?)


|(+?)
[Timothy,

    
    Frank, Anita]
[Piper]

      [Patrick]
    |(+Samantha Perkins)   
      |(+Sonja Tron)


       |(+Suzanne Hendrickx)
[Sofie, Sarah]

  
    [John]


            [Lesley]
    |(+Luke Valcro)
     
          |(+Jack Neil)

[Anakin (Valcro), Clone Anakin]   [Luke]

The matriarch of the Ice family was Lady Ice. Her original family name is unknown; she was left behind as a baby, because of her obvious Force powers. She eventually became a Jedi and became one of the closest disciples of Wizard Oz. She’s often referred to as one of the three founders of the Federation.

She carried a strange gene that gave her and many of her descendants completely white hair. It was because of her long white hair that she was given her name. Though she married, they chose to give their children her name, because of her importance.

Many of her descendants also had great Force powers, but whenever a Force-potent Ice married someone without powers, the Force potency seemed to skip their children’s generation, often reappearing in their respective children; this is what happened to the Jedi Mark Ice’s children Timothy, Frank and Anita, who had no powers, while Sofie, Sarah and John did. Sofie and John both had children with Force-users, which is why they do have powers. (Mark’s parents didn’t have powers either)
(incomplete)

Timothy Ice:

Full Name: Timothy Sarah Randy Johanson Ice

Gender and Race: Male Human

Birthday: 8th February 4917 ACM
Place of Birth: Oz Royal Hospital, Capital Asteroid, U.L.F.

Date of death: 12th December 5059 ACM
Father: Mark Ice (°4893)

Mother: Anna Johanson (°4896)

Siblings: Frank Ice (°4932, +4994), Anita Ice (°4944)

Uncles and Aunts: Eugene Ice (°4905), Sarah Ice (°4906, +4950), Clara Johanson (°4892)

Cousins: Tomas Johanson (°4929), Piper Ice (°4952)

Nephews and nieces: John Ice (°4968)

Life partner: Samantha Perkins (°4917, +4958)

Parents in Law: Ronald Perkins (°4720, +5030), Mary-Jane Finning (°4802)

Other in laws: Sonja Tron (°4930), Jean-Luc Sharkthoot (°4920, +5050), Luke Valcro (°5032), Ron Perkins Junior (°4861), Horace Perkins (°4899)

Children: Sofie Ice (°4945), Sarah Ice (°4951)

Grandchildren: Anakin Valcro (°5005)

Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:

-Graduated high school in 4935.

-Studied geology & geography at Capital University, graduated in 4940.

-Met Samantha Perkins and married her in 4943.

-Got his first daughter Sofie Ice in 4945.

-Achieved a doctorate in geology in 4946.

-Joined the U.L.F. Research Department in the same year, under his grandfather Randy Ice.

-Became head of Planetary Surface Research in 4948.

-Went back to Capital University to study Business Economics in 4950, graduated in 4954.

-Got his second daughter Sarah Ice in 4951, she was named after his recently deceased aunt.

-Became head of both the Federation’s Research and Development Department in 4955.

-Like Tron and the Space Police had done much sooner, he got more independence for his departments and founded Ice inc. in 4957, with his wife as Vice-President.

-His wife died in a landslide on Braal V, while studying the crystal formations in 4958.

-Devastated by his wife’s death, he took a short break from 4958 until 4960.

-His close, personal friend Roger Cristel, who was head of the Federation’s Energy Department, made the sector a part of Ice inc. in 4964.

-Like his father Mark, his two daughters had Force-abilities, and joined the Jedi in 4970.

-After their studies, Sofie joined the Space Police in 4971 and Sarah joined Ice inc. in 4978.

-Was Minister of Science from 4978 to 4982 and from 4982 to 4986.

-After Sharkthoot’s attempt to take over the U.L.F. in 4995 and the following attacks from Valcro, Ice inc. began to include security and research into weapons and defence. He put his Jedi daughter Sarah in his place as President and became Senior Vice President in 4997.

-After the Awakening in 5000, Ice and Tron began construction of many battleships.

-His daughter Sofie married Luke Valcro in 5005 and they got a son Anakin Valcro in the same year.

-Also in the same year, construction was completed of the U.L.S. Spirit, the flagship of Ice and the Federation, from which he became captain.

-Again in 5005, he led the ship and the U.L.F. to victory in the Battle of the Great Fleet.

-Towards the end of the year, he was killed for the first time, by Jonathan Valcro, his daughter’s father in law, who got killed by Luke soon afterwards.

-After they were both resurrected, he started a friendship with Jonathan.

-Was not so pleased with the continuing battles against the Valcronian Empire and the Bohrok, especially after the coups of Cell and Bebi; so he resigned from being captain of the Spirit and Vice-President of Ice and put himself in a purely advisory position in 5007.

-Celebrated his 100th birthday in 5017 and got the offer of becoming professor at Capital University. He taught planetary geology and asteroid geology from 5018 until 5030, when he became Dean of the Science department of the university.

-Was Vice-Rector of Capital University from 5042 to 5048, when he became Rector, until 5054.

-Rejoined Ice as head of exploration in the same year and accepted a 4 year mission in the Junkyard Galaxy.

-When the mission ended, he visited Braal V in 5058, exactly a century after the death of his wife.

-During a conspiracy in 5059 to start a new, fake war, by a group who feared they became obsolete in an eternal peace, he personally wanted to reprimand members of Ice who had become involved.
-He became their only victim near the end of the same year. He was killed by an ancient Spirion weapon on 12th December 5059.

-The Timothy Ice Memorial Spaceport on New Valcro Prime was named after him and was opened by his sister Anita in 5063.

-Ice inc. opened the Timothy Fund in 5068, to raise money for victims of leftover weapons from the many wars of the past.
Frank Ice:

Full Name: Frank Kelly Tomas Johanson Ice

Gender and Race: Male Human

Birthday: 20th November 4932 ACM
Place of Birth: Oz Royal Hospital, Capital Asteroid, U.L.F.

Date of death: 3rd September 4994 ACM
Father: Mark Ice (°4893)

Mother: Anna Johanson (°4896)

Siblings: Timothy Ice (°4917, +5059), Anita Ice (°4944)

Uncles and Aunts: Eugene Ice (°4905), Sarah Ice (°4906, +4950), Clara Johanson (°4892)

Cousins: Tomas Johanson (°4929), Piper Ice (°4952)

Nephews and nieces: Sofie Ice (°4945), Sarah Ice (°4951)

Life partner: Sonja Tron (°4930)

Parents in Law: Simon Tron (°4866), Edward “Emily” Howard (°4875)

Other in laws: Jean-Luc Sharkthoot (°4920, +5030), Samantha Perkins (°4917, +4958), Jack Neil (°4963)

Children: John Ice (°4968)

Grandchildren: Luke Neil Ice (°5061)

Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:

-Graduated high school in 4950.

-Started studying for engineer at the Blacktron Academy in the same year, but quit in 4951.

-Studied ICT at Capital University, graduated in 4955.

-Studied chemistry at Capital University, graduated in 4960.

-Achieved a doctorate in chemistry for his marvellous studies on the decay of “energy crystals”, when used to achieve a hyper-magnetic anti-gravity field for quantum-fusion in 4966.

-During his doctorate studies, he meets his future wife Sonja Tron.

-Becomes part of the Ice Energy Department in 4967.

-Their first and only son John is born in 4968.

-John’s enormous Force-potential is quickly noticed and the boy is trained by Wizard Oz.

-Becomes Vice-President of the Energy Department in 4970.

-Marries Sonja in the same year.

-Returns to university in 4972 and studies Law, graduates in 4977.

-Joins politics and is Minister of Justice from 4978 to 4982.

-Has a seat in the Chamber of Representatives from 4982 to 4986 and from 4986 to 4990.

-Becomes Emmett Tron’s campaign leader for he 4990 elections, but steps down from politics himself.

-Gets the extra function “head of Public Relations” at Ice inc. in 4991.

-Is Emmett’s campaign leader again for the 4994 elections, plans to study business economics after the voting.

-Is abducted by Jango Fett, the bodyguard of Emmett’s political opponent Sharkthoot, one week before the elections of July 4994.

-Is interrogated and tortured and thrown into a secret cell.

-When his son gets captured in a rescue attempt, he sacrifices his life to safe his son’s in September of the same year.

-John later becomes the most powerful Human in the universe and ends up saving it.

-John marries Jack Neil and they give their son the third name Frank (Luke Bob Frank Neil Ice)
Anita Ice:

Full Name: Anita Eugene Clara Johanson Ice

Gender and Race: Female Human

Birthday: 12th October 4944 ACM

Place of Birth: Oz Royal Hospital, Capital Asteroid, U.L.F.

Father: Mark Ice (°4893)

Mother: Anna Johanson (°4896)

Siblings: Timothy Ice (°4917, +5059), Frank Ice (°4932, +4994)

Uncles and Aunts: Eugene Ice (°4905), Sarah Ice (°4906, +4950), Clara Johanson (°4892)

Cousins: Tomas Johanson (°4929), Piper Ice (°4952)

Nephews and nieces: Sofie Ice (°4945), Sarah Ice (°4951), John Ice (°4968)

Life partner: Jean-Luc Sharkthoot (°4920, +5050) (divorced)

Parents in Law: Janine Oz (°4890), Hubert Sharkthoot (°4891)

Other in laws: Samantha Perkins (°4917, +4958), Sonja Tron (°4930),

Rick Sharkthoot (°4922, +4999)

Children: (none)

Pets: Blacky (dog) (°4989, +5001)

Curriculum Vitae:

-Won an award for best performance at a singing contest in 4960.

-Graduated high school in 4962.

-Studied biology at Capital University, graduated in 4967.

-Studied physics at Capital University, graduated in 4972.

-Achieved a doctorate in physics in 4976.

-Joined Ice, inc. in the same year.

-Refused a job as a background singer.

-Married Sharkthoot on 20th June 4980.

-Became high officer of Ice in 4981.

-Was appointed Junior Vice-President of Ice in 4983.

-Was Minister of Science and Education from 4986 to 4990.

-Turned down the opportunity of becoming a professor at Capital University in favour of becoming Senior Vice President of Ice in 4992.

-Divorced Sharkthoot in 4995, during his “coup d’état” and after the murder of her brother Frank. She went to the Valcro Zone, where she got to the semi neutral planet of Coruscant, where she retired from Ice and started to teach physics at a local high school in 4997.

-Quit her job as a teacher in 4998, because she couldn’t cope with the dogmatic teachings of the Empire.

-Started a career as a singer at a local night club in the same year.

-Worked for the local resistance from 4999 until the peace.

-Returned as Senior Vice President of Ice in 5006, during the Cell crisis.

-During this crisis, she was appointed head of research at the ancient Mumifar ship site.

-Was captain of the Ice flag ship ULS Spirit from 5007 until 5015.

-Accepted the offer of becoming professor at the Calamarian Intergalactic University on Universia Planet in 5015 and taught molecular physics until 5032

-Became professor at Capital University in 5032 and taught applied biological physics until 5050.

-Received an honorary doctorate of the University of Coruscant in 5044, when she celebrated her 100th birthday.

-Became President of Ice in 5050.

-Opened the Timothy Ice Memorial Spaceport on New Valcro Prime in 5063, after the tragic death of her brother in 5059.

-filled with grief of having lost her two brothers, she retired and started to travel in 5064.

-She still gives guest lectures at several universities she comes across during those travels.

(incomplete)
(incomplete)

7. The Space Police
(incomplete)

8. Tron

(incomplete)

Emmett Tron:
Full Name: Emmett Mortimer Grace Barns Tron

Gender and Race: Male Human

Birthday: 19th March 4502 ACM
Place of Birth: Zoblue Memorial Hospital, Colony 5, U.L.F.
Father: Bruce Tron (°4392, +5060)

Mother: Susannah “Susie” Barns (°4451)

Siblings: Kelly Tron (°4488), Blake Tron (°4502)

Uncles and Aunts: Grace Tron (°4395), Mortimer Barns (°4449, +4865), Ingrid Barns (°4451)

Cousins: Aaron Coolsaet (°4438), Jim Barns (°4508, +4722)

Nephews and nieces: Zoë Fett (°4540), Fiona Tron (°4550)

Life partner: Rachel Johnson (°4512) (divorced, remarried)
Parents in Law: Olivia Cristel (°4469), Bart Johnson (°4406)

Other in laws: Ronald Fett (°4478), Gary Darkner (°4590), Clarence Avani (°4501), Kathryn Erdam (°4596)

Children: Penny Tron (°4580), Ernest Tron (°4588)

Grandchildren: Herbert Darkner (°4621), Leo Tron (°4623), Emma Darkner (°4628)

Pets: Tommy (cat) (°4506, + unknown), Tony (cat) (°4506, + unknown)

Curriculum Vitae:
-Like his mother, Emmett was born as part of non-identical twins. He is born with a genetic malfunction: he has no left hand.
-Almost everyone in the Tron family shows at least some potential in the Force, Emmett’s was large enough to become a Jedi and he started training under his great-grandfather James Tron in 4512.

-His efforts in his Jedi training made him neglect his studies; he graduated from high school in 4523.

-He now brought his full attention to it and studied U.L.F. History at Capital University, graduated in 4528 and achieved a doctorate in 4532.

-He then studied Politics & Sociology at Capital University, graduated in 4537 and achieved a doctorate in 4541.

-Was representative of the Jedi in the U.L.F. Senate from 4543 until 4600.

-He met his future wife, a fellow senator, in 4560 and they married in 4564.

-They got a daughter Penny in 4580 and a son Ernest in 4588.

-He noticed that many people had Force powers, but too low to become a Jedi, so he started the U.L.F. Department for Special Agents in 4601. In the same year his brother became head of the Technology Department.

-When the U.L.F. Police Department gains more independence from the state and renames itself to Space Police, Emmett is asked to become its new leader in 4619, he refuses and keeps his department separated from the ordinary police force.

-Between 4621 and 4628, his three grandchildren are born.

-Together with his brother, they decide to get more independence for their departments, Emmett creates the M-Tron and Blake the Blacktron, both in 4645.

-Returns to politics in 4660 and becomes Minister of defence from 4662 to 4666, from 4666 to 4670, from 4670 to 4674 and from 4674 to 4678, when he decides to put more attention to his organisation.

-In 4702 (his 200th birthday) he has a short affair with Geraldine Mothma, a special M-Tron agent, this leads to a divorce with Rachel in 4703.

-Becomes emotionally unstable and goes to see a psychiatrist, because he’s afraid of falling to the dark side of the Force in 4705.

-He realises he still loves Rachel and after several plots to win back her heart, they remarry in 4714, on their 150th wedding anniversary

-Their marriage quickly goes into another hard time, after their new child is stillborn in 4717.

-They find strength in each other, however and their marriage lasts and they find new happiness when their first great-grandchild Sam Darkner is born in 4730.

-The U.L.F. begins a new wave of expansion and exploration in 4752 and they stumble upon the planet where Robotica Valcro has gone into exile. He quickly joins the Jedi and befriends the Tron twins. Emmett convinces him to start his company into robotic technology, with the help of Blake.

-M-Tron and Space Police get on each other’s nerves while investigating a row of thefts, probably by a Force-user in 4769, Emmett mediates and makes the two parties reconcile in 4771.

-Further investigations lead to the discovery of an organised crime syndicate, which is defeated mostly by Emmett in 4774.
-Releases a book about the gradations of Force-users, which is critically acclaimed, in 4780.

-Is asked to reform his tome into a study book and teach it as a professor at Capital University in 4783; he accepts and is Professor from 4784 to 4813.

-Retires from teaching to take a year long vacation with his wife, to celebrate his 250th anniversary (the “black metal jubilee”) in 4814.

-Returns to politics again in 4820 and becomes Minister of Education from 4822 to 4826 and from 4826 to 4830; during this time he also holds the title of Vice-Premier and receives the honorary title Minister of State.

-Becomes governor of Colonies 1 to 8 (Colony 5 is his home) from 4833 until 4860.

-Is asked by his close friend, Crown Prince Blake Oz (who had worked for both Blacktron and M-Tron) to become the official royal advisor in 4868, he accepts.

-The royal advisor is meant to be relatively neutral, so he quits the job in 4903, when he becomes the head of his political party.

-To avoid slipping into a midlife crisis, he starts to teach a young Mark Ice into the ways of the Jedi in 4904.

-Mark’s father Randy is head of the U.L.F. Department of Research; Emmett advises him to get a bit of independence like M-Tron, but he refuses.

-Enters politics yet again and gains the position of Prime Minister from 4922 to 4926, from 4926 to 4930, from 4930 to 4934, from 4934 to 4938, from 4938 to 4942, from 4942 to 4946, from 4946 to 4950, from 4950 to 4954, from 4954 to 4958, from 4958 to 4962, from 4962 to 4966, from 4966 to 4970, from 4970 to 4974, from 4974 to 4978, from 4978 to 4982, from 4982 to 4986, from 4986 to 4990, and from 4990 to 4994, when the infamous Sharkthoot won the elections.

-He convinces Randy’s grandson Timothy to get more independence for his departments and he helps creating Ice inc. in 4957.

-Timothy’s brother Frank becomes his campaign leader for the elections of July 4994, but disappears a week before the elections; it is discovered he was kidnapped by Sharkthoot’s goons and is killed in September of the same year.

-During Sharkthoot’s coup, he leads the resistance against him.

-After King Blake steps down from the throne and Alex becomes monarch, it’s decided to create a function of President, to watch over the powers of the Premier and vice-versa. Emmett is elected with a vast majority and becomes the Federation’s first President in 4996, which was also the first time a government didn’t stay the full 4 years. He is president from 4996 to 5000 and from 5000 to 5004.

-In the year 5000, an M-Tron from the future, Luke, arrives. His vast knowledge of M-Tron training makes him believe he would train the boy in the future. (In reality, a training program had been downloaded into his mind)

-Robotica manages to create an artificial left hand in 5002.

-In the elections of 5004, 3 years after the Awakening and the massive changes it has brought, he decides not to run for President again, but does become Vice-President under Sofie Ice from 5004 to 5006, when new elections are required after the expansion of the Federation, the union with the Resistance and the events around Cell. Luke is elected President and Emmett accepts the new position “Minister of Jedi affairs” from 5006 to 5010. Also in 5006, he becomes a permanent member of the Jedi Council.

-During this time he joins the battles against the Bohrok and is present when former King Blake is killed in 5006.

-Becomes a member of the New Republic Senate as representative of the Jedi Council from 5010 to 5014, from 5014 to 5018 and from 5018 to 5022, when he retires from politics for the last time.

-During this time he expands M-Tron through the Cluster and after his time as a senator he puts his full attention on it again in 5022.

-When two Saiyans arrive from another Galaxy, with Jonathan, they join M-Tron and are given special functions in 5032.

-Plans are made for Tron ships with experimental engines in 5045.

-The reborn Luke joins M-Tron, as he was destined to do, and receives personal training from Emmett (and many more great Jedi) in 5046.

-When Luke regains all of his memory, Emmett appoints him as second in command in 5050.

-One of the new Tron ships, the ULS Emmett is hijacked and plays an important role in the events with the master of evil in 5050 and 5051.

-The Republic expands into the Saiyan Galaxy and so does M-Tron, in 5053.

-Is very disappointed when his great-grandson, special agent Sam Darkner, is found out to have helped the conspiracy of 5059 to start a new fake war because, like members of other organisations, he was afraid an eternal peace would leave them without a job, which ironically he does, when going to jail.

-He replaces Sam with Jim Johnson.

-Finally hits a midlife crisis when his father dies in 5060.

-He gives Sam another chance when he comes out of prison in 5065.

-Advanced genetic engineering gives him a completely organic hand (simple reconstruction was impossible, because the missing hand was genetic) in 5068.

(incomplete)
Blake Tron:
(incomplete)

Jim Johnson:

Full Name: James Thomas Evelyn Haven Johnson

Gender and Race: Male Calamarian

Birthday: 19th September 4739 ACM

Place of Birth: Colony 32 Hospital
Father: Ferdinand Johnson (°4691, +4955)
Mother: Eleanor Haven (°4607, +4955)

Siblings: Thomas Johnson (°4722, +4955), Craig Johnson (°4725, +4955), Keira Johnson (°4737, +4955)

Uncles and Aunts: Evelyn Haven (°4599, +4872)

Cousins: Karen Zoblue (°4629)

Nephews and nieces: Joey Johnson (°4750), Ian Johnson (°4752), Gavin Bragdon (°4802)

Life partner: Tasha Dane (°4740) (divorced), Riana Covelante (°4737) (divorced, remarried)

Parents in Law: Barry Dane (°4710), Sheyanne Sorren (°4705, +5025)



  Lawrence Covelante (°4698), Jana Saravin (°4700)

Other in laws: Norbert Bragdon (°4719, +4955), Yoko Laridon (°4712, +4955), Michael Covelante (°4741) 

Children: Quinten Johnson (°5065)

Curriculum Vitae:

-Showed a small potential in the Force, but not large enough to become a Jedi.

-Graduated high school in 4758 and marries his teenage sweetheart Tasha Dane.

-Starts studying criminology at the Colony 32 University in 4759, but stops after one year.

-His marriage ends in 4760.

-Becomes an M-Tron trainee in 4761 and is a full agent in 4766.

-Marries fellow agent Riana Covelante in 4765.

-Begins an undercover mission to find a Force-wielding thief in 4769 and discovers a crime syndicate, to whom he gives information about the M-Tron after them. The dispute between M-Tron and the Space Police works to their advantage.

-When the reconciled divisions start to discover more about the mafia, he starts acting as a double agent, not loyal to either side, in 4772.

-When the syndicate is defeated, Jim’s actions are uncovered in 4774; his wife leaves him in the same year.

-He is court-martialled and fired from M-Tron in 4775, goes to jail for one year and looses his political rights for 10 years. (Until 4785)

-Goes into self-exile on the moon of Braal V (which is habitable for most Calamarians, except those allergic to the gasses produced by the plankton-like organisms) in 4788.

-Finds and activates the ancient Mumifar artificial wormhole generator to the Garbage Galaxy in 4800.

-Becomes the official operator for the device, which is rarely used by some scientists who want to study the debris.

-During the time alone on the small moon, he meditates and develops a stronger connection to the Force.

-He is bored with his life on the moon and chooses a successor to operate the machine, and goes to live near the Capital in 4806 and picks up his studies again, including Emmett’s classes on Force gradations. His own experiences help him recreate a friendship with Emmett Tron and he regains his trust in 4809, graduates in 4810 and becomes Emmett’s assistant.

-Takes over the class in 4813. Is Professor until 4829.

-Rejoins the M-Tron in 4830, but doesn’t receive a promotion to Special Agent, although his Force potential is now high enough for more daring assignments, which could grant him such promotion.

-His family travels to Capital Asteroid for a long anticipated reunion with their “lost son”, but he refuses to come back to Colony 32. His close relatives die on the way back in a mysterious shuttle accident in 4955. Jim is suspected, but proven innocent.

-Outraged with the false accusation, he leaves M-Tron and returns to his home on the moon of Braal V in 4957.

-His help is required during Sharkthoot’s second and more successful attempt at a coup in 4995, and he reluctantly rejoins M-Tron.

-For his actions in helping defeat Sharkthoot, he’s finally given the title Special M-Tron Agent in 4997.

-Infiltrates the Empire in 5001, even becomes Pro-Consul.

-Helps with the defeat of the first Death Star in the same year.

-Is discovered in 5004 and imprisoned on Saragossa V.

-Is rescued and released by the dubious Storm Trooper rebellion in 5005.

-He becomes the Second Commander on the U.L.S. Spirit later that year and participates in the Battle of the Great Fleet.

-Was killed when Jonathan Valcro murdered the crew of the Spirit and resurrected in 5005.

-Didn’t return to his function on the ship and instead watched over M-Tron business on New Valcro Prime when Sam Darkner joined the expedition to Amagosa III in 5006 and was subsequently killed when the Black Star destroyed the planet.

-Was resurrected after the defeat of Cell, later that year.

-Receives training from several Jedi and joins the battles against the Bohrok in the same year.

-Infiltrates the Imperial capital of Jonola in 5007.

-When M-Tron expands through the cluster, he opens and starts teaching at an M-Tron training centre on Lifrinall in 5017.

-Gets the hang of teaching again and becomes professor on Universia Planet, lecturing Force gradations (again) from 5025 to 5053.

-Becomes ambassador of M-Tron in the Saiyan Galaxy in 5053.

-Mediates peace talks there and is absent from the activities during the conspiracy of false war and Sam’s betrayal in 5059.

-Takes over Sam’s functions at the M-Tron HQ in 5060.

-Works together with his ex-wife and they fall in love again, remarries Riana in 5061.

-Their first and only child Quinten is born in 5065.

(incomplete)
Tina Thomson:

Full Name: Tina Tetsuo Laridon Thomson

Gender and Race: Female Calamarian

Birthday: 5th August 4971 ACM
Place of Birth: Lady Ice Memorial Hospital, Colony 9, U.L.F.
Mothers: Keiko Laridon (°4851), Samantha Thomson (°4865)

Siblings: (none)

Uncles and Aunts: Tetsuo Laridon (°4822, +4958) Lena Thomson (°4849), Akira Laridon (°4855)

Cousins: Akihiro Laridon (°4901)
Life partner: (none)
Pets: several Goranionburgish Dragons: favourite: Longwei (°4988)
Curriculum Vitae:

-Her second name came from her uncle Tetsuo, who died in the landslide on Braal V in 4958.
-Got her Force potency from both mothers; Keiko was a Jedi knight and Samantha was an M-Tron agent. Her mothers were also Goranionburgish Dragon herders.

-Graduated high school a year early, in 4988.

-She adopted a newborn Goranionburgish Dragon in the same year.

-Started studying animal biology at the Zoblue Natural Institute, also in the same year.
-Interrupted her studies in 4990, in order to tend to a large colony of neglected Goranionburgish Dragons as a volunteer.
-She returns to her studies in 4993; her practical knowledge allows her to skip several courses and she graduates in 4995, during large political unrest.
-Her parents were heavily involved in the resistance against Sharkthoot and convince her to do something with her Force potency; she becomes an M-Tron trainee in 4996 and a full agent in early 5001.

-Her first big mission was the Coruscant Mission in 5004.
-Died in the Battle of the Great Fleet in 5005.

-Received special training in the afterlife

-Was resurrected by the Circles in the same year.

-Joined the three Amigos to attack Palpatine, near the end of the year, but was quickly killed by the emperor.

-Together with the amigos, and Erick Valcro, received more intense training in the afterlife. They were resurrected in 5006.

-Her new powers got her a promotion to Special Agent and she travelled to Amagosa III, to start Jedi training in the same year.

-Was killed again, by Cell, in the same year, and resurrected, also in the same year, becoming one of the few people to have been killed and resurrected during a year time.
-She led several attacks against the invading Bohrok in 5006 and 5007.

-Joined the final attack on Krikkit in 5007.

-Joined a study of wild Dragons on Goranionburg, to examine the difference between those of the Federation and those from the native planet (who had been separated over a thousand years ago) in 5009.

-She used her research to achieve a doctorate in animal biology in 5012.
-Became the assistant of the professor of the course “social animal behaviour” at the Zoblue Natural Institute in 5013.

-Accepted to teach the course herself, on Universia Planet, in 5020.

-During this time she remains a prominent member of M-Tron, but refuses the offer to replace Jim Johnson as head of the M-Tron training centre on Lifrinall, when he becomes a professor on Universia planet too, in 5025.
-She follows Jim’s course on Force gradations in her spare time in 5027 and 5028 and becomes interested in the notion of Force potency in animals.

-She gives her course to her assistant and quits teaching in 5030, in order to investigate animals with Force potency in the seas of Wullioh in 5031, on the ocean planet of Oscion in 5035, and on the savannah of Treneb, in 5042.
-After several publications, she starts lecturing “Force potency of animal life” at the Zoblue Natural Institute in 5045.

-She starts a serious relationship with the Tarren ambassador Hotah Sucki in the same year. They get engaged in 5047.
-The relationship ends the same year, when Hotah becomes overly concerned about Tina’s safety, since she goes on M-Tron Missions more frequently.

-The break-up makes her quit teaching to become a full time agent again.

-She joins the large group of fighters to confront Luke, who has been taken over by the Master in 5050. She dies, but is quickly resurrected.

-Accepts the position as captain of the experimental ship, the ULS Emmett in the same year, which is then hijacked by Clone Anakin’s troops. She is involved in the activities which result in the defeat of the Master in 5051.
-When Sam Darkner is imprisoned because of his conspiracy, Jim Johnson takes his place and Tina is also promoted, in 5060.

-She accepts to teach “Force potency of animal life” at the M-Tron training centre on New Valcro Prime in 5063.
(incomplete)

Angela Mothma:

(incomplete)

Sam Darkner:
(incomplete)
9. The Éoleff

Current (known) population: Extinct

Sub races are the Éoréoleff, Boréoleff, Valinéoleff, Quenyéoleff and Miréoleff, extracted from the words for one (Éor), two (Boro), three (Valina), four (Quenyo) and five (Mira) but no Éoleff will ever call himself with this name.

The races each have a different colour, these colours were not genetic, but were past on from mother to child because of the interaction in the womb. Corna’El’s unique red colour was caused by a too early birth, induced by chemicals from a weapon. Corna was the only one to whom it ever happened. This colour was of course predestined, because she would find the staff.

Éoleff itself means “Chosen ones”, coming from Éor and leffon (choice).

A leader was called Éolegg, which means “wise one”, coming from Éor and leggon (wisdom), though the world Éolegg was used before leggon. Their system of one Éolegg per millennium was told in later mythology and inspired the federation’s system of one king per century.

The motto of the Éolegg was “Dol anio Éoleff, éor leff legger, Éolegg, legios anio Éoleff”, which means “From all Éoleff, one is chosen wisely, a wise one, ruling all Éoleff”. Another popular slogan was “Éoleff rochion Jedi, Éolegg rochio Éoleff”, meaning “The Éoleff watch over peace, the Éolegg watches over the Éoleff”.
The Éoleffan Sith slogan was “Legios anior dol Sith”, meaning “All are ruled from power” or “All are ruled by the Sith”.
The Éolegg always had their title from their colour, e.g. Gremfold the Green. There were however several exceptions, after the separation of the Éoleff. The Grandson of Éolegg Arbard the Green was also called Arbard; when he became Éolegg too, he was given the title Arbard the Young. The opposite happened with two Éolegg called Elroy, so the grandfather was called Elroy the Old. Elroy’s good deeds made the name popular in future generations, so there also were an Elroy III, Elroy IV and Elroy V, a sixth Elroy started his term with the title “the Sixth”, but was taken down from his position after his failed attempt at reuniting the Jedi and the Sith left him fallen to the dark side. He was later given the title Elroy the Traitor. This event made the name unpopular, so this was the last Éolegg named Elroy. There were also three Éolegg called Cayna; seven called Cole; two called Goranion and four called Lana. Éolegg Xalafia was given the title “the Unlucky” because she was killed in an accident after only 3 years in office. The very intelligent and powerful Éolegg Tim was able to combine his knowledge and power to control the weather and to create fire, he got the title “the Sorcerer”; Tim was also the Éolegg with the most terms.

The Éoleff sometimes refer to themselves as the “watchers”.

Other races have given names to them like “elves” or “fairies”. They are also called the “visitors” because of their origin.

It is said that before Corna’El’s fall, the Éoleff had a sort of glow around them, an indefinable angelic quality, probably transmitted through the Force. Although it was lost during the Sith Wars, many Éoleff, good or evil, still had an air of wisdom surrounding them.

Mythology says the Gods created Éorer, the First, the mother, who was sent to the land of the living to see how life was evolving. She found peace, but, to her disgust, in a single large sector, she found very violent races, with people fighting over a small strip of land, over possession and even over each other and their beliefs.

She reported this to the Gods, who were concerned this would spread and all life would destroy itself. Therefore, they sent Éorer to a void in the middle of the galaxies that knew war. The Gods created a man for her: Fas, the father. Together they created the Éoleff, the chosen ones, who were to watch over the violent parts of the universe from the planet Éoleffas around the star Éorer, where the undying soul of the first lives.

Their history has been told very thoroughly in the prequels, so only a list of names can be added as extra information.

List of Éolegg of the Valinéoleff:

Cardon (the last Éolegg of the entire race)

Cardon (second term)

Yarfas

Gremfold

Gremdone (son of Gremfold)

Gremded (daughter of Gremdone)

Yarfas (second term)

Yarfas (third term)

Carrer (son of Cardon)

Gralded (daughter of Gremded)

Cardal (made first contact with the Mumifar, daughter of Carrer)

Cardal (second term)

Cardal (third term)

Gralfas (son of Gralded and Yarfas)

Yarfold (nephew of Yarfas)

Yorfold (son of Yarfold)

Yorfold (second term)

Corna’El (stayed Éolegg until after the first Sith war, daughter of Cardal)

Yordal (first Éolegg after the first Sith War, granddaughter of Yorfold, related to Geldorfin)

Yordal (second term)

Greffor (related with Gremfold, Éolegg during the second Sith War)

-during the Golden Years there were 108 Éolegg:

Greffor (second term)

Tolias

Orovanion (related to Vanion and Orin)
Orovanion (second term)

Ordal (sister of Orovanion)

Cole

Yorbard

Abravanion (son of Orovanion)

Yaranion (related to Orovanion and Yarfold)

Cole (second term)

Gorfas (not related to Greffor)

Seyana

Éfas

Seyana (second term)

Seyana (third term)

Cayna

Cayna (second term)

Gorfold (related to Yorfold and Gorfas)

Gorded (son of Gorfold)

Cole II (not related to Cole)

Cole II (second term)

Cole II (third term)

Cole II (fourth term)

Vanafold (related to Vanion) 
Xalafia the Unlucky

Vanohal (mother of Vanafold)

Lana

Lana (second term, died of the Tarisian Flu before end of term)

Elroy (begins great actions against the Tarisian Flu)
Elroy (second term)

Elroy the Old (grandfather of Elroy)

Cayna II (related to Cayna)

Elroy (third term)

Cole III (related to Cole) (the Tarisian Flu is extinguished during his rule)
Goranion (related to Gorded and Yaranion)

Goranion (second term)

Goranion (third term)

Larrer (related to Lana)

Lana II (daughter of Larrer)

Lana II (second term)

Colfas (related to Cole II)

Lana II (third term)

Gremnion (related to Gremfold and Goranion)

Elroy III (not related to Elroy)

Bart (born on Earth, hence the name)

Bart (second term)

Cole IV (not related to any Cole)

Cole IV (second term)

Barfas (son of Bart)

Barfold (son of Barfas)

Barfold (second term)

Barfold (second term)

Goranion II (related to Gremnion) (the planet Goranionburg was named after him)
Arbard (related to Bart)

Arbard (second term)

Arbard the Young (grandson of Arbard)

Panion (related to Goranion II)

Cole V (related to Cole II and Gerdon)

Tim the Sorcerer (related to Tolias)

Tim (second term)

Tim (third term)

Tim (fourth term)

Tim (fifth term)

Lana III (not related to Lana)

Lana III (second term)

Kurt

Rockfeld

Mavius

Mavius (second term)

Cayna III (not related to Cayna)

Mavius (third term)

Mavefas (related to Mavius)

Elroy IV (not related to any Elroy)

Kuravanion (related to Kurt and Orovanion)

Coyda (related to Cayna III and Cole IV)

Coyda (second term)

Kurafas (related to Kuravanion)

Corder (son of Coyda, not related to Carrer)

Coller (brother of Corder)

Coller (second term)

Coller (third term)

Elroy V (related to Elroy III)

Elbard (related to Elroy IV and Arbard)

Elroy V (second term)

Mavanion (related to Mavius and Abravanion)

Cole VI (grandson of Coller)

Harafold

Harafold (second term)

Tolfeld (related to Tim)

Tolfeld (second term)

Tolfeld (third term)

Ward

Elroy the Traitor (fell to the dark side, not related to any Elroy)

Ward (second term)

Ward (third term)

Lanfold (related to Lana III)

Lanfas (brother of Lanfold)

Lanfold (second term)

Lanfold (third term)

Lanfold (fourth term)

Tolfas (related to Tolfeld)

Cole VII (related to Cole)

Cole VII (second term)

Warfas (related to Ward)

Warfold (son of Warfas)

Lana IV (not related to any Lana)

Lena (daughter of Lana IV)

Lena (second term)

-there were only two Éolegg after the Golden Years:

Yarded (was Éolegg before and at the beginning of the Sirian Wars, related to Yarfas)

Yoda (son of Yarded, stayed Éolegg after the Sirian attacks on the Éoleff, was the last of his race after the Matrix, also related to Lana)

It can also be noted that Darth Guafi called himself Éolegg after Corna’El’s death, when he died on Citadel, the Sith elected their own Éolegg: Dragobard the Green, who was killed by a Cerijin who then became Supreme Lord of the Sith. No Sith Éolegg was elected afterwards, but Éoleff remained important Lords among the exiled empire. After Dragobard, 26 Éoleff have become Supreme Lord, including Elroy the Traitor.
This is perhaps the only place where the tale of Goranion II can be told:

Before he was elected, he was already a wise Jedi master and a powerful user of the Force.

On a flight from Egyptsei to Appallonnnia, his ship crashed on a jungle planet. There was no usable technology left, so Goranion tried to call for help with the Force. In those days there were still thousands of Jedi, and one would have to be very still to hear him between all those voices. The planet he was on also had a lot of life, ad all life channels the Force, even if it’s just a small part. His message couldn’t breach the top of the trees and Goranion was unable to find an open spot. The planet had an intelligent race of birds, which could use the Force. They heard the Jedi’s call for help and offered him food and shelter. He discovered the birds used the Force under their wings, which allowed them to fly with great ease. Goranion spent two centuries on the planet, and watched several generations of the race. He learned to use the Force to hover and eventually fly. It seemed so simple that he wondered how they had never thought of it.

In reality, many mercenaries from before the peace of the alliance could fly, but none of them were left when the Jedi were created. Goranion now flew above the trees and thick vegetation, and with the birds’ help, he could shout a message across the Force in the cluster. A republic ship picked him up. He later returned to the planet and, with the help of the birds, set up a Jedi academy, where many Jedi came to learn Goranion’s technique.

The Éoleff was granted a position on the council and soon every Jedi was thought how to fly. Goranion was elected as Éolegg Goranion the Second. He was already old and didn’t run for a second term.

After his death the birds made a large statue in the city that had grown around the academy, always in harmony with the flora and fauna around it. The planet’s name was changed to Goranionburg.

During the times of the Matrix, the academy became a refuge for Jedi, until it was discovered by Jonathan during his Jedi Purge. Many of the inhabitants managed to escape and were actually the founders of the Federation. The planet was then forgotten until after the Matrix, but even during the darkness, something of the name remained, for example: the human family name “Van Goranionburg”. The most famous member of this family was the Jedi master who led the academy for many years and who started the name, the most infamous was probably Valcronian officer Nadine, who wanted to rule Valcron after the battle of the great fleet. She used to be a Jedi (the Force was still present in her family), but was captured during the last purge and transformed into an officer. She died when Jonathan showed up at the peace talks. Further information about her and the family are irrelevant, because they have little to do with the Éoleff.
The species thrived throughout the Golden Years, but they where almost completely wiped out during the Sirian Wars. Many more died during the increasing attacks by the Sith afterwards and of course because of the Bohrok invasion. There were only a few thousands left when Palpatine created the Matrix and most of them were killed in the war preceding the formation of Palpatine’s Empire. Together with the Emperor’s first Jedi purge, he created several racial genocides as well, killing all Éoleff (including Sith), except a select few. In the following 2 Jedi purges, all but one were murdered (some also died of old age). By the time the U.L.F. was created after the last purge, Yoda was the only one left of the Valinéoleff. He survived to unite the scattered Jedi from the Resistance, the Federation and some others to form a new Jedi order and he saw the creation of the New Republic before he died not long after the defeat of the Master of Evil. Luke said this at Yoda’s cremation: 

“I salute you, Yoda the Green, son of Yarded, Burivalinéoleffer, last of the 3rd race of Éoleff, Éolegg of the Valinéoleff, watcher of the cluster, heir of Corna’El of the Staff, king of Jedi and Sith, beholder of the Force, incarnation of Éorer and Fas, keeper of the keys to Valinéoleffas, chosen one of the Gods. Yodayardedoburivalinéolefferéoleggovalinéoleffobsoclusticornaelstaffarojedisith-forcéorerfasslottovalinéoleffaséoleffdeo.

Your full name and title can not describe the wonders you made possible, but to me you’re always known as friend.”
Several words and titles, including Jedi, Sith and Darth are Éoleffan words (meaning peace, power and bringer of darkness, respectively). Their word for the Force was “Ada”, short for “anio dar anior”, meaning “everything and everyone”.
The New Republic renamed the first galaxy of the former Valcro Zone the “Éoleffan Galaxy” out of respect for the extinct race that had shaped most of their history.

During the exploration and eventual expansion of the New Republic into more distant galaxies, evidence was found in the three-armed galaxy of a war preceding the current civilizations, which had destroyed all intelligent life before the rise of the Ashtor and the Riggva. Among the remains are fossils of the Boréoleff.

It is unknown if there are still populations of Éoréoleff, Quenyéoleff or Miréoleff somewhere in the universe, but some claim they have been visited by mysterious creatures that looked like orange Éoleff; though there’s no evidence to support it, it would explain how Javier’s crown ended up in the New Republic, since it were the Éoréoleff who settled in Javier’s galaxy.
10. The Mumifar

Current population: High (several quadrillions)
(incomplete)

11. The Jaridians

Current population: Normal (several trillions)
(incomplete)

Mythology:

The supreme goddess of the world, Jaridia, had two eyes: one could only see the good sides of her children, the other only the evil sides. When war broke out among her children, she could only see the bad in them; struck with immense grief, she tore out her evil eye, and buried it as deep as she could. Loosing a large part of herself, she changed her name to Laura, goddess of the day, and travelled to the sky, where she would shine a great light upon her children, in the hope they would stop their wars. But her evil eye had grown into a tree in the underworld; it’s rotten fruit brought forth demons, who cut down the tree and transformed it into a new god: Velnos: god of the night and the underworld, who kept Laura’s light from shining upon her children for half the day, putting them in utter darkness, starting the greatest war yet. But Laura had another trick up her sleeve: each warrior who had died because of Velnos’ darkness, were given a place in the night sky, shining light upon the world and putting Velnos to sleep. From that day, all Jaridians would sleep through the darkness, watched over by the souls of fallen heroes, and they would live during the day.
(incomplete)

12. The Spirion (Valcronian Agents)
Current population: Normal (several trillions)
(incomplete)

13. The Cerijin

Current population: Low (several billions)
The Cerijin have an obvious cone shaped head. The top is always bald, only at the base of the cone, and sometimes a small strip on the back has hair. When born, their cone is completely covered with hair, but almost all of it falls out when they reach sexual maturity. It is common among females to have a hairier back of their cones than males. At one time in their history, it was fashionable to wear a wig over the whole cone, as a symbol of youth. At anther time in history, it was stylish to shave all hair on the cone, to symbolise maturity and virility. In modern days, most leave whatever hair they have alone, but some shave of the hair at the base of the cone, for aesthetic reasons.
This cone is host to a large brain, which results in sharper senses than most races. Especially hearing and vision are more developed than other species. They can hear far above and below any tone produced by any other race, but their vocal cords aren’t more advanced, so their languages can be learned by other species. Like the Apallian, they can see into most of the UV light, but unlike the Apallian, they can also see all IR light. Their large brains and senses also require a denser network of nerves throughout the body, which heightens their reflexes as well, but unfortunately also their pain reception. The extremely strong endorphins that are produced are known to be extracted and used in powerful illegal drugs.
The heightened senses and reflexes make those Cerijin that are receptive to the Force enormously skilled Jedi or Sith. The sharp sense of pain and rather strong emotions produced by their large brains have made many Cerijin Force user fall to the dark side, which is why the Cerijin joined the side of the Sith in the first Sith War.

(incomplete)
Mythology:

The ancient Gods fought each other, because they each wanted to create a race from their own plans. Lesser Gods had already created the plants and the animals, but higher Gods, including those of the 4 elements, were still fighting for the creation of an intelligent race.

While the Gods of the elements were stronger, the wit of the Goddess Ceria ultimately prevailed. She defeated, but didn’t kill the other Gods, created the Cerijin and gave them wisdom.
Tears from the Goddess of water created the oceans; blood from the God of fire created rivers of molten rock; the breath of the God of wind created the clouds and the weather; the battle scars of the God of earth created the mountains.
These four were jealous of what Ceria had accomplished and tried to eradicate her creation. Volcanoes erupted, tidal waves struck the lands, the earth began to shake and enormous storms hit all that lived. Through their attacks, the 4 deities learned to work together and they managed to attack and kill Ceria.

Her bones were thrown down to the planet as shooting stars. Fragments of these divine bones are known as black metal, a substance that can’t be used because it is unchangeable, no mortal can ever accomplish it.

The 4 elemental Gods decided to keep the Cerijin, but to alter them according to their designs:

The God of fire made them proud and adventurous; the Goddess of water gave them depth and emotion; the God of wind gave them dreams and desires and the God of earth made them strong and steady.
The prediction of the end of their world states that these combined virtues will eventually make the Cerijin greater than the Gods, which they will not be able to stand. The four elemental Gods will then take new forms as the horsemen of the apocalypse.

Culture:
The most popular tradition of original Cerijin cultures that still exists in the times of the New Republic is the traditional Cerijin wedding ritual, which can be seen as a hybrid between an engagement and a wedding ceremony. This ceremony lasts an entire year, and only if the couple’s relationship survives that year, are they fully married. In ancient days, nobility would often engage in a year long party, filled with celebrations by the lower classes. Because most marriages fail, this ceremony shows the love and commitment a couple must have for each other. When the Human Ken Lorren and the Cerijin Dor Follon married, they agreed to the conditions of the ritual, and passed.
When the Cerijin joined the Sith, during the First Sith War, the ceremony was used and altered to fit Sith ideals. Instead of a couple spending a year together to test their relationship, a master’s prospective pupils were sent into the Ceronian desert to survive on their own for a year; the ones who were still alive would then become the master’s students.
After the installation of the Old Republic, and the marginalization of anything related to Sith culture, stories were told that only one pupil should survive the test, that they were encouraged to kill and cannibalize on the other students. It is highly unlikely that there is any truth in these stories. Surviving in a desert, alone or in group became an important rite of passage for young Cerijin nonetheless.
(incomplete)

14. The Humans & Sirians
Current population (Humans): At Large (several quintillions)
Current population (Sirians): Scarce (several hundreds)
(incomplete)

15. The Witeling

Current population: Low (several millions)
(incomplete)

16. The Rodians & Twi’lek
Current population (Rodians): Scarce (several hundreds)
Current population (Twi’lek): Scarce (several thousands)
The “forgotten” races
(incomplete)

17. The Zybrac

Current population: Scarce (several dozens)
(incomplete)

18. The Saiyans
Current population: Scarce (several hundreds)
(incomplete)

19. The Calamarians

This paragraph is about the Dos Calamarians, for the Mon Calamarians: see other species.

Current population: At Large (several quintillions)
(incomplete)

Mythology:

Like most races, the Calamarians had many different religions, but the biggest part of them believes in a similar creation story:

The Supreme God Tinia gave his daughters the assignment to create the world Dos with al its aspects, but there was one rule: only one god could be on Dos at the same time. First Feronia, the Goddess of fire created the core, then Alpan created the underworld, next Semia created the grounds of the world, Thesan created the first dawn, etc.
The sons of Tinia were jealous of their sisters and created fires, storms and other horrors in an attempt to destroy the work of the goddesses.
The plants, which had been created by Horta, were struck the most and she wished to travel to Dos, to confront her brother Aplu, who was causing thunder and lightning. Tinia warned her again that no two Gods could be on the world at the same time, but she wouldn’t listen and attacked Aplu. Intelligent beings awoke when the two Gods set foot on the ground; new children of Tinia, not immortal and omnipotent like the others, yet blessed with many more gifts. They stormed at the two Gods. Aplu tried to stop them with his lightning, but they resisted. Horta tried to stop them by growing plants in their way, but they got through them and drove the Gods back to the heavens.

Tinia gave the world to his new children and forbad the Gods to go there again until the end of the world, when all mortal children have met their end. The Gods would then have to undo their work, with the help of the spirits of the deceased and then they would create a new temple, where all the children of Tinia would live together for eternity.
(incomplete)

20. Krana & Kraata

Current population: (presumed) Extinct
(incomplete)

21. The Paragan

Current population: Normal (several trillions)
Double chest
(incomplete)

22. The Apallian

Current population: High (several quadrillions)
The most obvious feature of an Apallian is his/her double head. They originate from the planet Appallonnnia, a planet with many forests and jungles. Details of this planet are found in the appropriate appendix.
Mythology:

Before the Apallian were created, the planet was completely filled with plants and animals. These fields were harvested by the Gods every year when they held a great feast to celebrate their tasteful creations. One of these Gods, Oni Inari, had two heads and twice as much hunger, but he only as much food as the others until his hunger became so big, that he ate and drank everything on the planet, leaving a barren wasteland. The other Gods were furious and took many years to bring the planet back to its former glory, but they were never able to restore it completely, so highlands with only grass and summits of ice were formed.
As a punishment, an intelligent race was created, one that should never be eaten, in the image of the hungry God, with two heads. From now on, Inari’s share of the food would be for the Apallian, who could also harvest as much as they wanted.
But Inari couldn’t stand it and escaped, he presented himself to the young race as Daikoku, god of the harvest, and demanded that they sacrifice food in his name. His hunger was untameable and soon he demanded the sacrifice of several Apallian, to feast on them. When he broke the rule that none should be eaten, the other Gods interfered to cast Inari into hell, where he could only eat rotten souls that weren’t allowed to go to heaven.

These myths also predict that one day Oni Inari will return and eat everything again, including the planet itself, resulting in an apocalypse.

(These legends are probably influenced by drawings in the pyramids on Appallonnnia, which depicted Mumifar with only one head)
Their mythology is an explanation of the cannibalistic history of the Apallians, but they stopped this long before they started forming a true civilisation. Many followers of the ancient God Daikoku/Oni Inari still existed however, and many of them joined the Sith, combining their own beliefs with Corna’El’s and later with the mythology and legends that had formed around her.

They’ve got two heads, they have two mouths, two noses, four eyes and four ears, but their hearing and smell aren’t more advanced than most races, they have however a great taste, making it impossible for other races to get the full experience of Apallian cuisine. Their highly advanced sense of taste have made them survive in their lush forests and jungles, filled with poisonous plants and animals, if one tongue was infected, they still had another mouth to use.

Their sight is also superior to most races, except the Cerijin, because they can see beyond visible light and largely into UV and for a small part into IR light.

Their speech is also greatly affected, the Apallian languages are impossible for others to pronounce, which is visible in the attempt to give a good translation for their planet’s name: Appallonnnia. In fact they pronounce two words: Appallon and lonnia, with the “lon” part overlapping, giving a quite large n sound. The combined word means home of the Apallians. This special speech makes Apallian music very interesting, especially opera’s, though not everybody enjoys them.

After an almost lethal ecological disaster, they decided they’d build space station, to preserve their large forests, but their shipyards crashed on the planet during the First Sith War, creating new destruction. They then started building extremely large, but stable buildings and became famous for it. They helped shape Coruscant into its modern look and can also be credited for many buildings on the original Valcro Prime and the tower on Tower Planet and the one on New Valcro Prime.
They were never the direct target of any racial onslaught, so their population in the galaxies is rather high. Because they have cultural and architectural heights and also a large understanding of plant life also explains their large presence in the cluster on both arboreal as urban planets. Several heightened senses like taste and sight has added to their survival rate as well.
The Apallian were one of the founding races of the united Resistance, their faction was lead by General Ronovald Yervianso and their ambassador on New Valcro Prime was Prae Börn (which are the easiest ways to write and pronounce their names); they also became one of the founding members of the New Republic.
23. Other Species

Arkaloni (canine like mouth and fur)
Lapsian (from Lapsi)

Ubalian (from Ubalehe)

Murran (from Murrosika)

Otri (from Otrok)

Linksan (from Gramgue)

Komuno (from Xiaobrez)

Sosian (from Markeng)

Tophatanian (large brain)

Bisolan (split personality)

Geonosian

Darelian (have five eyes)
Rymnian (are completely bald and have purple pigment spots instead, have two stomachs)

Oronoci (cold blooded with red skin)

Zarsanian (have a large horn on their head)

Lirshan (bulky and muscular, known for their brute strength and immense citrus allergy)

Fenian (tall and thin, lack of intonation)

Riggva (Reptilians from the planet Crepin)

Ashtor (near-humans with paler skin, control over their pupils (but with reflexes), blue hair, several stomachs and large sweat-glands behind their ears)
Refugan (evolved from Force using Ashtor refugees, who had fled to Saalas; have much control over their bodily functions (to some extent) because of the Force, including the heart and stomachs; they also have a nearly white skin and very pale blue hair)
Manatoian (Vaask’s race)

Unknown race of Gabuchi Brothers

Mon Calamarian
Nalrarian

Siwan (mystical race, but with much kitsch)

Ullian

Afraiman

Hulda
Ovitani

Mattanian

Karjulani
Current Population: Unknown

The Karjulani evolved from large predator-like moles, who used the Force to dig their tunnels and hunt other creatures. They were able to drain their victims from their energy when killing them, which wasn’t necessarily evil, since they were only following their instincts. When they evolved into intelligent beings, they understood what they did wasn’t necessary, since they could draw on the Force naturally. Their thirst for power was what made them continue their habit. Soon the underground cities on Karjulan were tainted by the dark side of the Force. Death followed in the wake of the Karjulani’s megalomaniacal expansion, until the planet itself began to fight the dark taint. Formerly stable ground transformed into marshes and swamps, collapsing on the underground cities. Unfortunately, the Karjulani had already developed space-flight and built orbiting stations to which they evacuated their people. Using the same technique through which they used to dig tunnels, they created subspace tunnels, comparable to wormholes, to travel to a nearby planet, rich with primitive animals and forests. Exhausted from creating even this short tunnel in space, they sacrificed all life on the entire planet. Bathing in dark side energy, they tracked down other life filled planets across their corner of the galaxy, creating more and longer tunnels with each sacrifice. Eventually they came in contact with Ullians, Mattanians and other intelligent species and started the First Galactic War. The aftermath of the conflict shattered the great nations of the galaxy into various small countries, while Karjulani dissidents fled to Briot after a civil war, to form their own nation. During a period of unification, the Ullian kingdoms joined together into an Empire to defeat the weakened Karjulani of both Briot and the Karjulani Empire proper. Using their network of tunnels, the Ullians attacked the Siwan, the Mattanians and the Afraimans, starting the Second Galactic War. It is unknown if any Karjulani still exist, but their legacy is alive. It was agreed among the peoples of the galaxy not to use the tunnel network anymore, because it had been created by the dark side. This proved to be a problem when the Republic made contact with them and started building their artificial wormhole generators. The technology tries to use naturally present tunnels as much as possible in their attempt to create a wormhole. This is why there are few generators, and then still only in the east of the galaxy. The Jedi’s attempts to heal the wounds in the Force, created by the Karjulani did not erase the tunnels themselves, which are still considered to be evil.
Haämon

Nudro

Mustelinian (catlike, divided into two subgroups: modern and feral)
Tsufuru-jin
Current Population: Low
The Tsufuru-jin looked much like the Spirion, as they both had silvery-grey hair. Some claim that they were actually Spirion refugees who had managed to travel through the void, but this would not explain why the Tsufuru-jin have two genders, while the Spirion are unisex.

They evolved in a corner of the Waland Galaxy, outside of the influence of other species that were already at war in the rest of the galaxy. After a number of terrible global wars, all nations were abolished and a planet wide authoritarian technocracy was formed to make sure peace lasted. The dictatorship was benign and though the people were monitored by the police state at every moment, social equality rose and there were no interventions in private life as long as it didn’t pose a threat to the government. It was one of very few civilizations of the known universe to have had such a form of enlightened despotism.
Unfortunately the need to provide jobs for the growing population whit a growing life expectancy was a disaster for the planet’s ecosystem and the Tsufuru-jin started to travel into space to expand. The first planet they encountered was inhabited by a warlike race; the Tsufuru-jin tried to teach them the merits of science as a base for their society, but they refused to listen and fought the Tsufuru-jin. The King decided that his people should not participate in war and that the race they had found was a threat to their peace. They eradicated the entire race and took over the planet.
The second planet they found had several peaceful democracies. The Tsufuru-jin had not had elections since before their last war and knew that such a system was unstable and would result in war between the different states. They tried to reform the governments into a combined dictatorship, but the people didn’t allow it and rebelled. They called for the Tsufuru-jin to join them and overthrow their absolute leader. The influence was found to be too dangerous and the race was eradicated, along with all Tsufuru-jin that had conspired with them. This started a series of purges amongst their own people and the benign dictatorship became fascist. After encountering 5 other civilizations, failing to turn them to their system and killing them all, the King decided that the only way the galaxy would know peace was if they killed all other intelligent life. After a century of genocide on primitive people, they encountered other space faring races, first the Bisolan and the Manatoian, then all other important species, and it was no surprise to them that they were all at war with each other. This started the greatest crisis the Waland Galaxy had ever seen, as the Tsufuru-jin started their purge. They didn’t care about taking prisoners, except to find out better ways to kill them. After biological and chemical weapons took many casualties among the Tsufuru-jin’s enemies, they decided to form a united front against the fascists and strike back. The Tsufuru-jin had never expected them to work together and after centuries of war, they faced extinction themselves. The King, Bebi Tuffel, was to only one who managed to escape. After their success against their common foe, the other races started fighting amongst each other again.
With help from the underworld, Bebi managed to find his way to the Wild Galaxy, where he made a plan to bring back the Tsufuru-jin society. He would first destroy all life by unleashing the Bohrok and then used cloned Tsufuru-jin to repopulate the universe. Palpatine’s Matrix left Bebi and his Bohrok in stasis for five thousand years, until the Hypno-crystal was destroyed. The Bohrok were eventually defeated and the clones woke up. They realised that they were not ready for relations with other races yet and were left in peace. Bebi escaped, but was ultimately defeated by Luke Valcro. The new Tsufuru-jin are a peaceful democracy who are left alone in their corner of the Wild Galaxy. There are, however, several Tsufuru-jin who emigrate to the Republic, from time to time.
Tarisian
Current Population: Extinct

The Tarisians were the more important of the two dominant species in the Wild Galaxy, the other being the Arkaloni and the one of the first races to come in contact with the exploring Éoleff and Mumifar. The Tarisians had made their planet a clean city-planet, by using solar power collected by an enormous artificial ring they had build around it. Their way of harvesting all sort of clean energy was later implemented on many other worlds, especially Coruscant, which they helped to build. When the great war among the different races of the cluster began, the Tarisians emigrated back to Taris en masse, fearing war would pollute their world and society. Their thin and frail looking grey bodies were very resilient to disease and other forms of harm however, because of generations-long genetic manipulation. After the Peace of the Alliance, Taris became the capital of the Wild Galaxy. When the first Sith War broke out, they joined the Jedi’s side but mostly stayed absent from battles, upholding their image of pacifists. The destruction of Taris started the second Sith War and killed over ninety percent of all Tarisians. The horror of destroying the peaceful planet put all races at the Republic’s side.
Millennia later, the Tarisians’ enhanced genes caused a virus to mutate into an invincible disease. The Tarisian flu became a plague that not only eradicated every Tarisian in the cluster, but also killed many others, notably the Mon Calamari, who were left with so little, that they eventually became extinct too. A cure was never found, but because of far-reaching vaccinations throughout the Old Republic, the plague was wiped out itself, millennia later.

The Tarisians’ legacy didn’t disappear however, because the of the Valcros’ use of artificial planetary rings.
Tarren
Current Population: Normal
Like most races of the Waland galaxy, their origin was lost to time, but it is almost certain they came from a planet near the centre of the galaxy. Eons of war spread their race across the galaxy, but a large core of leaders remained near their original home. During the last days of Vaask’s Empire, the Tarren Empire had grown in importance and was the main rival of Vaask. After Jordan Vaask’s fall, freedom fighters from both Empires seized control over the Tarren Empire and with the help of the cluster’s New Republic, true peace could start.
The Tarren looked much like Humans and their look-a-likes, but their hair is “untameable”, always wild and peaking, with bright colours, like green and purple.

During their last war, they were known for their robotic suits, in which they fought and travelled. Their technology became famous in the cluster, and the Tarren gained a place in the intergalactic community.

A curious detail is that no Tarren has ever had large Force potency. The highest ever recorded was about the same amount of a low in rank M-Tron agent.

Trenebulan
Current Population: Low
Organic humanoids from the planet Treneb, which lies close to the Jolian Nebula, which is visible at night. The Trenebulans revered it as their god. When the planet was discovered and conquered by Valcron, many Trenebulans were enslaved to work in the planet’s factories. Most escaped however, and became a race of space nomads. Their religion “Nebulism” was actually enhanced by science and now has followers from other races too; they believe all nebulas are deities, because they form the stars and planets that give life.

They are forbidden to show their faces to people outside their family, so they always wear a hat. Their head is also so small that it seems like their hat is on their neck.
The only noteworthy Trenebulan was Bart Xillen, a member of the Spider clan of the Sith. He was on Valcro 2nd at the time of its destruction, but survived through pure luck. He was then sent to Treneb to help in the campaign against the Resistance, N-O.C. and Federation. Luke Valcro easily killed him during the battle of Treneb.
The Trenebulan slaves were freed when the Freedom Pact took over the planet.
Prillian (no arms)

Usferran (butterfly race)

Wullian (the short ones)

Fuboni (the tall ones)

Oscian (amphibians)
Yu’ug

Clones (mostly enhanced Humans) (Valcronian workers and Imperial army)

Numerous unmentioned races
(incomplete)

24. Hybrid Species

Saiyan & Human

These species are the only two races with no common ancestor that can biologically reproduce. Saiyan DNA is so dominant that most of it needs no counterpart; while Human DNA is adaptive enough to deal with the genes that do need it (other species’ genes cannot naturally accept the Saiyan DNA). The offspring will have the traits of both parents, but will be Saiyan for the most part, since the number of Saiyan chromosomes is much higher. Further offspring of hybrids with Humans will also be mostly Saiyan, yet this percentage will decline with each generation. The same counts if the hybrid reproduces with a Saiyan. While the Human DNA could eventually disappear with the last example, the reverse is not possible. Several specific genetic markers, including those that give Force potential, battle readiness and the one that makes transformation into a Super Saiyan possible, are present within each Saiyan or hybrid, because they will always be present in a gamete (ovum or sperm cell). These “special genes”, though dominant, like most of the Saiyan DNA, will create its own counterparts if they are not present. This can be explained as a natural way to prevent genetic defects, in case these genes are missing. These genes will make sure that any offspring will have Force potential, a will to fight and the possibility to transform into a Super-Saiyan.
Vera DeTaris was a hybrid with mostly Human DNA. The only Force-potency came from those few Saiyan genes, which is why she never joined the Jedi or even the M-Tron. Her “battle-readiness” was translated into her passion for politics.
Sirian & Human
Sirians are the original Humans. The species we call Human has in fact evolved, while the Sirians have not. Because of several very dominant genes, the offspring of a Sirian and a Human will have nearly all the traits of a Human and won’t be called a hybrid, but simply Human. It is possible that the child will have a slightly different skin tone.
The Valcros

The sons of Palpatine and others down the family tree were created through genetic manipulation, including DNA from several species, especially those connected to Force-potency. Robotica Valcro’s Saiyan DNA was augmented with Human, Zybrac and Calamarian DNA. As the first son, thus first “test” of Palpatine, the selected augmentations were mostly Human, because of the natural compatibility. This also explained how he was able to naturally impregnate Chailey Bienne (Femme Fatale).
Ashtor & Refugan
While the Refugan are considered as another species than the Ashtor, the situation is comparable to the Humans and Sirians, where one race evolved from the other, but it is more complex.
A male Ashtor and a female Refugan can have children, but they’ll be sterile and there is a high chance for genetic defects, especially if the offspring is male.

A female Ashtor and a male Refugan can have children. Daughters will be sterile, but sons can reproduce.

A female Refugan and a male hybrid can have children. Daughters will be sterile; sons are fertile and have the same reproductive properties as a male Refugan (because of purely Refugan sex-determining chromosomes).
A female Ashtor and a male hybrid can have children. Daughters are fertile and have the same reproductive properties as a female Ashtor (because of purely Ashtor sex-determining chromosomes). Sons are also fertile and have the same reproductive properties as their hybrid father.

Through technological advances, same-sex couples can also procreate:

A female Ashtor and a female Refugan can only have sterile daughters.

A male Ashtor and a male Refugan can have children. Daughters will be sterile; sons can either be sterile, with a high possibility of genetic defects, or fertile hybrids, as described above, depending on their sex-determining chromosomes.
Because both species still resemble each other greatly, and variations in skin and hair colour exist anyway, hybrids will not have visible differences. They will not however have white skin like some Refugan, or dark blue hair, as some Ashtor.

When it is certain that the offspring will be female, interspecies couples often rely on genetic manipulation to ensure their daughter will be fertile.
Spirion & other species
The Spirion is the only race that has evolved into a state of pure energy. Their method of reproduction is thus completely unique and does not have to include the emotional or physical pleasures associated with sex. The fact that they have always been a unisex race, even when they were still biological, complicates matters even more. While their ancestors always had to be with two to have a child, modern Spirion can have any number of partners (or none) and a nearly adult offspring is created instantly. A single Spirion and a single biological person from any gender and nearly any race can decide to have a child together, but it will always be considered a Spirion, despite several anomalies. His physical features will resemble his Spirion father, as if he had created a son by himself, but his personality and memory will be inherited from both parents, as if he was the offspring of two Spirion.
Such a child very often has difficulties learning at the same pace as his peers, but will have greater skill at morphing himself, especially into the species of his other parent, and will be able to wear regular clothing without irritation. Offspring from these hybrids will be regular Spirion, without any “special features” (unless off course their partner isn’t a Spirion).
Dieing hybrids can give away their final energy as any other Spirion, but their bodies will not dissolve, yet turn solid; this is the only real feat to identify a hybrid. While they remain sparse, a special cremation ritual for these dead has been devised from ancient times, when the Spirion were not yet full energy beings, but also not completely biological anymore.
The fire is lit, preferably by related Spirion and the other species from which he was created (if they have Force powers). If possible, the final energy that had been donated is used as well. The heat and light is then absorbed by all those who are present at the cremation and the ashes are buried so they too can contribute to new life. Removing plants from the only Spirion cemetery is considered as disrespect for the deceased hybrids.

It can be noted that the above is a generalisation. Individual cases might deviate extremely, especially when there are multiple non Spirion ancestors.
25. Animals

Each habitable planet had a wide arrange of animals, it would be futile to list them all, especially since very few are mentioned in this chronicle. Those that are worth telling about are those that are more common in the cluster, those that have been exported to other planets. The most obvious examples are pets, the Terran dogs and cats were rather popular, and also similar animals from other civilizations. More exotic animals were also transported for collectors and intergalactic zoos. Several animals were also shipped for food or clothing until most of it was replaced by cloned lifeless parts of animals. The relocation of species that were threatened by planetary disasters was also frequently done, but less during the times of the Matrix. There are many more reasons, also too many to list, but the animals present in the U.L.F. might require some more explanation.
Pets and several birds and bugs have been naturally shipped by the refugees from Goranionburg, many of them were taken to build an ecosystem on the asteroids, though many others, including very diverse species such as horses and lions, were cloned from samples (at least the firsts, the rest are offspring). The most peculiar is perhaps the presence of several dragons. They are in fact Goranionburgish Dragons, native to the planet. A non-Jedi farmer was so fond of them that he convinced the others to take some with them. The dragon has since appeared on several royal coats of arms (each King chooses an animal for his personal crest, see the list of king of the U.L.F. for more information). Peter Oz, the second son of King Alex also had a great fondness for the Goranionburgish Dragon, as was Tina Thomson.
Also interesting to note is that Tina was the first since the collapse of Valcron and the Empire, to study Force potency among animals, which far more common than previously thought.
26. Androids & Matrix Viruses
The Computer Virus

Medusa-The Slizer-Empty Head

The Toa (original)

Valcronian Droids


-Alpha


-Beta

Smallbots

-Smallbots: The basic model: a yellow transparent disc with a diameter of about one metre with a blue core. They have no shields, but can adapt to almost any form of energy based weapon, except lightsabres. Although a deeply controlled soul is used as the intelligence, they lack intuition, situation adaptation and even most forms of instinct, which was painfully obvious at the destruction of the Smallbot planet, where they kept flying into each other at ever increasing speeds.
-Smartbots: Smartbots have intuition and instinct, which is used to guide other Smallbots. A Smartbot creates tactical decisions for the entire fleet of Smallbots and when working together with others of its kind, they can even come up with a limited form of creativity, though such activity is kept to a minimum, else they could find out what they really were. Smartbots were programmed to be loyal to Femme Fatale first and the Valcros second, this was the key to her plans to rebel against the Valcros.
-Shieldbots: They have limited weapons, but can severely fasten up the Smallbots’ adaptive abilities, sometimes after even a single shot. When there is only a single Shieldbot and it is destroyed, it is possible other Smallbots momentarily loose their defence.

-Strongbots: Basically Smallbots with their own shields, but they lack adaptation.
-Nanobots: Although never actually built, the Valcronian Titan inspired plans to build Smallbots out of self-replicating nano-probes. The plans were cancelled when the Valcronian Civil War started.
-Blackbots: only five Smallbots were ever created with black metal. Though virtually impossible to destroy, the design was deemed too expensive. When Smallbots were being used less and less by the New Republic, the collector (the leader of the Neutrals), managed to get his hands on four of them.
During the Valcronian civil war and the pact with the Resistance and the Federation, the souls that inhabited the Smallbots were given the choice to be freed and go to the afterlife, or reincarnate as an android, with the small possibility of someday inhabiting a clone of their original body. About sixty percent chose to die, the rest became a droid. The Smallbot Queen had made it possible for Smallbots’ souls to return to a central computer even after the Matrix had been destroyed; this caused every droid, even those who had never been one, to serve as a Smallbot at certain times. After the creation of the New Republic and the “eternal” peace started, no new Smallbots were manufactured and even the droids shut down after a while, because of the stress of their unnatural long life.
Anakin’s Androids


#01


#02


#03


#04


#05
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#07


#08
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(incomplete)
27. Divine & Demonic Beings

Toa


- Tahu

-Lewa

-Onua

-Gali

-Kopaka

-Pohatu

-Taka

The Avatars

-Makuta

-Nergal

Anti Toa

The Horsemen


-Chaos


-Famine


-War


-Plague


-Death

Demons

The Master

Other Deities
(incomplete)
28. The Jedi, The Sith & Cults
(incomplete)

The Jedi
The Sith

Samanya’s cult

The Guardians

(incomplete)

29. Resistance Movements

(incomplete)

Ken Lorren:

Full Name: Kenneth Tuamared Lorren 

Gender and Race: Male Human

Birthday: 8th April 4799 ACM

Place of Birth: Bespin Medical Facility, Cloud City, Bespin, Empire

Father: Samuel Lorren (°4740, +4821)

Mother: Anja Tuamared (°4741, +4821)

Siblings: (none)

Uncles and Aunts: Conrad Tuamared (°4745), Lesley Tuamared (°4746, +5021), Quinten Lorren (°4755, +4821)

Cousins: (none)

Life partner: Lana Kahellix (°4798, +4821), Dor Follon (°4905)

Parents in Law: Gavin Kahellix (°4758, +4821), Nathalie Jones (°4760, +4821), Carn Follon (°4760, +5001), Dahlia Sorren (°4771)

Other in laws: Kevin Kahellix (°4794)

Children: Lenny Lorren (adopted) (°5050)

Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:

(incomplete)

Carn Follon:

Full Name: Carn Soroteph Follon

Gender and Race: Male Cerijin

Birthday: 20th December 4760 ACM
Place of Birth: Coruscant, Empire

Date of death: 18th November 5001 ACM
Father: Alif Follon (°4530)

Mother: Té Soroteph (°4542)

Siblings: (none)
Uncles and Aunts: (none)
Life partner: Dahlia Sorren (°4771)

Parents in Law: Lamedh Sorren (°4600), Antonia Samekh (°4802)

Other in laws: Alif Sorren (°4684), Ken Lorren (°4799)
Children: Dor Follon (°4905)
Grandchildren: Lenny Lorren (adopted) (°5050)
Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:
(incomplete)
Dor Follon:

Full Name: Dor Sorren Follon
Gender and Race: Male Cerijin
Birthday: 1st March 4905 ACM
Place of Birth: Coruscant, Empire
Father: Carn Follon (°4760, +5001)

Mother: Dahlia Sorren (°4771)
Siblings: (none)

Uncles and Aunts: (none)

Life partner: Ken Lorren (°4799)
Parents in Law: Samuel Lorren (°4740, +4821), Anja Tuamared (°4741, +4821)
Other in laws: (none)
Children: Lenny Lorren (adopted) (°5050)
Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:
(incomplete)
Aïsha Hollings:

Full Name: Aïsha David Ranjan Hollings

Gender and Race: Female Human

Birthday: 9th August 4872 ACM

Place of Birth: Appallonnnia, Valcron

Father: Daniel Hollings (°4602, +5164)

Mother: Fatima Ranjan (°4690)

Siblings: Kapil Hollings (°4750)

Uncles and Aunts: David Hollings (°4612), Mark Hollings (°4614, +5080), Ayoud Ranjan (°4650, +5005)

Cousins: Ramu Ranjan (°4722), Nathalie Hollings (°4808)

Nephews and nieces: Maria Hollings (°4820), Terry Hollings (°4823)

Life partner: (none)

Other in laws: Nathalie Garpike (°4748)

Children: (none)

Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:

-Was an unplanned (an partly unwanted) child

-Unlike her 122 year older brother, she didn’t receive a good education and started to work at a delivery service in 4887.

-Became a trucker in 4900, transporting goods between the main planets of Abbat’s region: Appallonnnia, Conia and Tower Planet where she becomes aware of the injustices.

-Moves to Egyptsei in 4912.

-Meets Rick Chom in 4919.

-Gets involved with a mainly Mumifar oriented resistance cell in 4920.

-Is captured while trying to smuggle several Jedi in her truck to Fubon in 4923.

-Escapes with the help of the Jedi in the same year an goes to hiding on Nar Shadaa.

-Becomes a trucker again in 4925, operating solely within the circle of five.

-Moves to the “cleaner” Universia in 4927.

-Meets Anna Kovitch in 4935 and becomes part of her Calamarian oriented resistance cell.

-She is put in charge of the large portion of Humans in the circle of five, who wish to participate in the resistance in 4941.

-Travels to Coruscant to meet Carn Follon, Dor Follon, Ken Lorren and Maixi To Badong in 4944.

-She becomes convinced working together is the only way to overthrow both the Empire and Valcron and also believes in a greater unison between the main groups of Humans in the Valcro Zone (Coruscian based, circle of five, UFO province, etc).

-She is visiting a resistance cell in Thrawn’s region, when she first meets Luke Valcro, in 5000, where they discuss their mutual idea of better cooperation.

-Convinces Rick Chom and Anna Kovitch to unite their resistance cells in 5001.

-Is selected to represent their united group on Trinsia in the same year, to discuss greater cooperation with the other large groups, but her ship is attacked by Smallbots, which ultimately saves her life, because Trinsia is destroyed by the Death Star during the meeting.

-The united Resistance is formed shortly after the destruction of Trinsia, and the Mumifar and Calamarian groups soon joined them too, advised by Aïsha, who is put in charge of relations between the cells.

-When the relationship with the U.L.F. becomes tense after the discovery that Luke and Darth Vader are the same person, she tries to cool things down.

-Starts developing romantic feeling towards Luke, but decides not to interfere in his relationship with Sofie.

-Returns to Appallonnnia during the Year of Chaos, to help prepare the uprising.

-Participates in the liberation of her home planet in 5005.

-After Maixi left the Resistance, she becomes the most important Human member, after Ken Lorren, in the same year.

-Gets killed during the Cell crisis, when New Valcro Prime is destroyed by the Black Star, while trying to come up with ways of a combined government in 5006.

-Is revived by the circles in the same year.

-Is put in charge of relations between the Resistance, The Federation and the Non-Organics, also in the same year.

-During this time she is frequently escorted by Ace Erdam and they start an affair.

-She ends the affair in 5007, after she finds out Ace still has a relationship with Jack Neil. All three are single again.
-Becomes an important senator of the New Republic in the same year.

-Is minister of internal affairs from 5010 to 5014 and from 5014 to 5018.

-Is minister of external affairs and vice-prime minister from 5018 to 5022, from 5022 to 5026 and from 5026 to 5030.

-Is appointed main ombudswoman of the New Republic in 5031.

-Joins Ice inc. as head of public relations in 5049.

-Convinces other small scale research companies to join the government linked Ice, and combine their resources in the same year.

-Continues with this assignment after the crisis of the Master of all evil, until she is criticized because she has nothing to do with any aspect of Ice, and wants to undermine free trade, in 5053. She resigns in 5054.

-The previous ignored topic of differences of free trade in the former Valcro Zone and the Federation requires a new governmental branch. Aïsha becomes head of the think tank involved with the problem in 5055.

-The decision is made to gradually reform the economic situation of the former Valcro Zone to match the system used in the Federation; Aïsha is appointed minister of economic reforms in 5058.

-A swift reaction against the conspiracy of false war in 5059 prevents the feared government crisis, but links several high placed individuals to other fraudulent affairs many people involved are fired or arrested, including several of Aïsha’s ministry and her former mentor Rick Chom, but she remains minister until 5062, from 5062 to 5066, from 5066 to 5070 and from 5070 to 5074.
-After great reforms in the economy, her ministry becomes obsolete in 5074.

-Becomes ambassador of the New Republic in the Waland Galaxy in 5075.

-Returns to the cluster in 5093.

-Becomes minister of external affairs and vice prime minister again from 5094 to 5098, from 5098 to 5102, from 5102 to 5106 and from 5106 until 5110.

-Becomes Prime Minister of the New Republic under President Dor Follon, from 5110 to 5114, from 5114 to 5118, from 5118 to 5122 and from 5122 to 5126.

-She’s President of the New Republic from 5126 to 5130, from 5130 to 5134, from 5134 to 5138, from 5138 to 5142 and from 5142 until 5146.

-She becomes the head of a commission to discuss the joining of nations from the Waland Galaxy into the New Republic, and its political and economical consequences in 5155.

-Her popularity in both the cluster and the Waland Galaxy convince her to run for presidency again in 5206.

-She is President of the New Republic from 5206 to 5210, from 5210 to 5214 and from 5214 until 5218.

-During her presidency, Emmett Tron dies and Sam Darkner mysteriously disappears somewhere between the cluster and the Waland Galaxy.

(incomplete)
Anna Kovitch:

Full Name: Anna Woods Kovitch

Gender and Race: Female Calamarian

Birthday: 4th September 4612 ACM

Place of Birth: Nar Shadaa, Valcron

Father: Yuri Kovitch (°4538, +5613)

Mother: Dora Woods (°4540, +5613)

Siblings: (none)

Uncles and Aunts: Sonja Kovitch (°4541, ?) (disappeared in 5602)
Cousins: (none)
Foster father: Eran Zahedi (°4291, +4635)
Life partner: Johan Bodington (°4679) (divorced)
Parents in law: Karla Reeder (°4600), Thabo Bodington (°4603)

Other in laws: Guiren Bodington (°4670)

Children: (none)

Pets: (none)

Curriculum Vitae:


-Was born to two drug merchants on the scum-filled planet Nar Shadaa, in 4612.

-A mafia boss had her parents killed a year later because they had a large debt to him.
-Her only known relative had disappeared many years earlier, so she was raised by the mafia.

-When she found out her foster father had killed her real parents, she fled to another part of the planet, in 4625.

-She became a prostitute in order to survive, in the same year.

-She killed a violent customer in 4628 and was captured by the customer’s crime partners.

-They used her, disguised as prostitute, to kill their rivals, until she was set to kill her foster father, the mafia boss, in 4634. She killed her contractors instead.
-The following year the mafia boss was killed by her contractors’ superiors and she barely escaped an attempt on her own life.

-She moved to much higher levels of the city planet and became a freelance contract killer in 4638.
-After a failed attempt to kill a Valcronian officer, she fell down into the city below and was left for death, in 4671.
-She miraculously survived and was found and brought to a hospital, where she lays in a coma for 12 years, until waking up in 4683.

-While learning how to walk again, she started reading many books, gaining a keen interest in weapons technology.
-She regains the ability to walk again, in 4685.

-Leaves her traumatic life on Nar Shadaa behind her and decides to travel around the Valcro Zone, in 4689.
-During these travels she discovers many people have had a much worse life than hers and she decides to join a group of Calamarian freedom fighters, who try to sabotage any Valcronian or Imperial plan they can, in 4732. She becomes their technology expert.

-Deciding they should have a base of operations, the freedom fighters move to the large Calamarian colonies on Universia in 4735, Anna finds this to close to her former home, and she leaves them.
-She joins the Neutrals in 4741, working on their technology.

-Falls in love with a regular customer, Johan Bodington, a bounty hunter, in 4768.

-She tells him about her former profession as contract killer and joins him on his “missions” in 4770.

-They get married in 4773.

-Their relationship starts to break apart, after Johan accepts several missions to capture rebels, in 4780.

-When Valcronian officials discover Anna has worked with the Calamarian freedom fighters, they give Johan the assignment to kill her, in 4781. Their relationship had been one of passion through danger, instead of love, and he accepts the task.
-Anna manages to escape and travel to Nar Shadaa, the one planet Johan wouldn’t expect her to be, in the same year.

-After things have cooled down, she moves to Universia, but can’t find the freedom fighters again, in 4786.

-She starts studying engineering in the same year, she graduates in 4791.

-She achieves a doctorate in 4793.

-During her doctoral studies, she becomes the assistant to the professor of advanced weapons technology.
-When the professor mysteriously disappears, she takes on his classes, in 4800.

-After investigated the disappearance herself, she’s reunited with several of her freedom fighting friends and finds out her professor had been involved with them, but had been killed, they invite her to join them again in 4801, she gladly accepts.

-She works her way to the top, both in the university and in the resistance. She becomes dean of the applied science department in 4819 and head of her resistance cell in 4821.

-She personally starts recruiting and training people for the Calamarian space troops in 4825.
-She meets Johan again in the same year, before refusing his entry into her resistance, they get an official divorce. She suspects him to still be involved with the Valcros.
-She befriends two Calamarian Jedi in 4830.

-The Jedi are captured and transformed into officers in 4834, Anna is forced to have them killed, because of their knowledge.

-Her resistance group, like others’, starts to grow steadily until 4903, when an attempt to destroy Erick Valcro’s personal palace on Lavora failed. Anna had to hide and had to resign her post as dean.
-She meets Bart Zimmer for the first time in 4912, he later leads the Calamarian space troops.

-She meets Aïsha Hollings in 4935, she becomes the first Human in her Calamarian resistance cell, Aïsha convinces her the different resistance cells need to work closer together in order to be truly successful.

-She orders Aïsha to seek out other Humans in the circle of five, who’d be interested in joining them, in 4941, she appoints her as official mediator for Human members in the same year.

-She is introduced to Rick Chom, leader of the Mumifar resistance, in 4976; it is the start of a long friendship.

-Aïsha convinces them to unite their two resistance groups in 5001.

-She sends Aïsha to the conference on Trinsia in the same year, which is destroyed before she gets there.

-Her and Rick’s cells join the large united Resistance later the same year and she becomes General of the Calamarian faction.

-She is furious when she finds out Luke was Darth Vader, but manages to forgive him, with the help of Aïsha.

-She liberates her planet during the battle of the great fleet, at the end of the Year of Chaos.

-When the Federation is destroyed and the Resistance thorn apart, during the Cell crisis, her planet Universia is annexed by the Non-Organic Companionship, but they allow her to keep control over the planet, and actually help her to rebuild to Resistance network.

-Because of the help and protection she had from the N-O.C., she is a strong supporter of the Freedom pact.
-When the New Republic is declared, she becomes an important senator, in 5007.

-She receives an honorary doctorate of the Blacktron Academy for technological and applied sciences, where she gives guest lectures, in 5019.

-She actually joins Blacktron in 5025.

-Because of her work in the field of weapons technology, she also becomes an honorary member of Ice in 5031.

(incomplete)
(incomplete)
30. Political, Religious Analysis & Evolution
(incomplete)

Many races have a mythology that says a God or Goddess created them. These stories very often tell of a period of many or great disasters, followed by a period of renewal, much like the human legend of a flood that wiped out most of their race, except those that were worthy or the Cerijin tale about Gods that tried to kill them, before altering them. The Apallian, however, believe that their race was only created after such a disaster, as a punishment for a God who ate too much.
Most religions also have a tale of an apocalypse, and many remarkably predict the coming of the four horsemen.
(incomplete)
31. Psychological Profiles of Villains
Jean-Luc Sharkthoot:
He was the oldest child of the oldest child of a King, therefore he would have been crown Prince, but his mother, Janine Oz was born after King Leo the Second’s term ended, so Leo’s brother Karl became King, and after him Blake. This situation bothered Jean-Luc much more than his mother, who didn’t really care. He went into politics to get at least some sense of power, but it was never enough, also his ideas were the direct opposites of Emmett Tron, who had been Premier for many years. This fuelled his inferiority complex into a danger zone. He became much more radical as the years went on, which affected his marital life. Seeking more and more compensation, he started planning a coup in his mind, but he would never have executed them, if it hadn’t been for the Hypno Crystal, which brought his evil desires to the surface. After his first failed attempt at a coup, his wife divorced him for obvious reasons. This sent him spiralling down into a crisis, but during a second attempt at a coup he crowned himself King and his lust for power seemed fulfilled. Before he could figure out such desires can never be answered to, he was overthrown again and escaped to the Valcro Zone, where he was given command over an entire province, named after him. His dreams had become reality, but his enhanced megalomania was not buried deep. When Valcron came to a fall, he didn’t join any other alliance, except with his own creation and former rival, the Computer Virus. Without any allies and the attacking Bohrok, his realm was shrinking quickly, but after the disappearance of the Virus, he was now the sole dictator of his dieing dominion.
His complexes were finally answered for, he didn’t care that his territory was shrinking, as long as he could rule it all be himself. He started research into the working of the circles as an attempt to change history and place himself as king of the Federation, and thus as an important member of the New Republic. He left the daily rule of the Coalition to his minions, who surrendered to the New Republic instead.
The fall of his little Empire was a deep shock for Sharkthoot and he attempted suicide. After a failed attempt he believed even harder that he was meant to rule, he was somehow chosen (not an uncommon trait among dictators), his destiny was not yet complete and he increased his research. After finding one of the legendary circles and secretly returning to the Federation, he was able to construct an artificial one, aided by the Horseman of War who wanted to use the circles after Sharkthoot, but was actually helping the resurrection of the Master of all evil and the Horseman stole the circles. He saw the evil of his ways when this being was released, it didn’t care for ruling the universe, it only wanted to destroy it. Jean-Luc realised that he was becoming a similar danger. It didn’t help him recover however, because he had lost all of what he had believed, he was an ordinary man, nothing more, he didn’t even have any powers of the Force. He figured that the only way he would be remembered was to sacrifice himself in a futile attempt to save the cosmos. Although he still searched for some fame, this act redeemed Jean-Luc.
(Ironically, his destiny was indeed not complete: he had to free the Master, so that the Messenger could defeat him)

Anakin Valcro (old version):

Oedipus syndrome
(incomplete)
Appendix D

Changes of history

1. Calendars

Here follows a short summary of different calendars, abbreviations, the events that started the new timetable and its date in the former calendars. (for conversion purposes). All years equal a “standard year” which is 1 year for Coruscant and equals the Earth year, except the Sirian Calendar. There is no calendar for the events of the Spirion, because it is very unclear how much time past between the demise of their realm and the destruction of Éoleffas. Some claim it’s just a few million years, others talk about billions, while another group says that the Mumifar were already scouting their galaxy and the Éoleff were on their way to the cluster. Even the real amount of time that the golden years lasted is often discussed. It was calculated with the sparse data from those times and the amount of Éolegg, but not all of them remained in office for the complete thousand years. It is commonly accepted that the Sirian Calendar started after 108.265 golden years.
1) The Éoleff Calendar: PED (post Éoleff disaster); started after the destruction of the original Éoleff home planet, after which they came to the cluster to found a new home.

2) The Start of the War Calendar: SSW (since the start of the War); started after a failed attempt of the Éoleff, Mumifar and other races to establish a government and a war broke out between all different species. 1 SSW = 12.874 PED.

3) The Christian Calendar: AD (Anno Domini); well known calendar of Earth, unimportant in future events, but mentioned for reference. 1 AD = 1250 SSW = 14.024 PED.

4) The First Contact Calendar: AFC (after First Contact); started after the first contact between the Humans and the Calamarians. 1 AFC = 4850 AD = 6100 SSW = 18.974 PED.

5) The Peace Calendar: SPA (since the Peace of the Alliance); started after the Jedi created peace in the cluster and the Ancient Republic was formed. 1 SPA = 622 AFC = 5472 AD = 6722 SSW = 19.596 PED.

6) The New Éoleff Calendar: YC (year of Corna’El); started after Corna’El reformed the Ancient Republic into her Éoleff Empire. 1 YC = 2000 SPA = 2622 AFC = 7472 AD = 8722 SSW = 21.596 PED.

7) The Republic Calendar: RDD (Republic Date of Democracy); started after the end of the first Sith War and the creation of the Old Republic. 1 RDD = 710 YC = 2710 SPA = 3332 AFC = 8182 AD = 9432 SSW = 22.306 PED.

8) Calendar of the Golden Years: GY (Golden Year); started after the end of the Second Sith War and the beginning of the Golden Years of peace. 1GY = 3102 RDD = 3812 YC = 5812 SPA = 6434 AFC = 11.284 AD = 12.534 SSW = 25.408 PED.

9) The Sirian Calendar: SY (Sirian Year); started with the occupation of the republic by the Sirians and the start of the Great War. There is a small problem: Sirian Years are 1,2 Standard Years, so another calculation (and notation) is used by historians: SSY (Standard Sirian Year). After the fall of the Sirians, the Calendar of the golden Years was used again, although they were over. 1 SSY (1 SY) = 108.265 GY = 111.367 RDD = 112.077 YC = 114.077 SPA = 114.699 AFC = 119.549 AD = 120.799 SSW = 133.673 PED.

10) The Imperial Calendar: ACM (after the creation of the Matrix); started when the Matrix and the Empire were created, the end of the Old Republic. Also called the Matrix Calendar or the Valcronian Calendar. It was still used after the collapse of the Matrix, until the New Republic Calendar was created. 1 ACM = 2501 SSY (2084,2 SY) = 110.766 GY = 113.868 RDD = 114.578 YC = 116.578 SPA = 117.200 AFC = 122.050 AD = 123.300 SSW = 136.174 PED.

11) The New Republic Calendar: YEP (year of Eternal Peace); started after the Conspiracy of False War, the New Republic already existed for several years, but this year was chosen because it began the prophesized everlasting or eternal peace after the final risk of war was averted. Sometimes this calendar is also called the New Peace Calendar. 1 YEP = 5060 ACM = 7561 SSY (6300,8 SY) = 115.826 GY = 118.928 RDD = 119.638 YC = 121.638 SPA = 122.260 AFC = 127.110 AD = 128.360 SSW = 141.234 PED.

2. Timeline

This is the timeline of the final, current timeline (timeline E, see below), all dates are in the Imperial Calendar (with BCM, before the creation of the Matrix, to indicate the dates before year one) and that of the era of the event (see the above paragraph for conversions between calendars), except a few things, like the Big Bang, which uses terms like “about” or “years ago” and the events of the Spirion, which counts from the war that made Sincam king (RSC, Royal Sincam Calendar and BS, Before Sincam) and can’t use the Matrix calendar, the reasons are stated in the beginning of Appendix D.
Event:


Date:


Year (ACM):

Year (Era of event):

(incomplete)


(incomplete)

(incomplete)

(incomplete)


A great war among Force users
starts on the planet Xarnia

October





20 BS


The Sincam faction wins the war
August





1 BS



Advanced use of the Force is

outlawed


September




1BS



Sincam becomes king

January





1 RSC



The Spirion start a space age
October





58 RSC


Xarnia is renamed Brasalia
May





120 RSC


They develop warp technology
October





232 RSC


Colonization of planets starts
September




300 RSC


The Spirion Realm is founded
January





512 RSC


Clans of pirates start to form
June





1456 RSC


Elmer Amonas is born

August





3098 RSC


The Staff is found by scientists
March





3105 RSC


Karim Amonas is born

October





3122 RSC

(incomplete)


(incomplete)

(incomplete)

(incomplete)


The Matrix is formed

3rd November

1 BCM


110.765 GY


Start of the Imperial Calendar
1st January

1 ACM


1 ACM



Medusa arrives from the future
May


1 ACM


1 ACM



The Empire is formed

30th August

2 ACM


2 ACM



Palpatine starts the 1st Jedi Purge
January


4 ACM


4 ACM



The Empire controls the cluster
March


12 ACM


12 ACM



The last of the Old Republic

is defeated


February

58 ACM


58 ACM



End of the 1st Jedi Purge

January


104 ACM

104 ACM


Start of the Zybrac Genocide
April


253 ACM

253 ACM


Andrew Maul betrays Palpatine
June


253 ACM

253 ACM


He creates the Neutrals

January


260 ACM

260 ACM


End of the Zybrac Genocide
May


262 ACM

232 ACM

Ki-Adi Mundi dies in exile
14th August

300 ACM

300 ACM

(incomplete)


(incomplete)

(incomplete)

(incomplete)

Robotica Valcro is born

14th May

1856 ACM

1856 ACM


Jonathan Valcro is born

19th June

2110 ACM

2110 ACM


Palpatine starts the 2nd Jedi Purge
January


2561 ACM

2561 ACM


End of the 2nd Jedi Purge

January


2661 ACM

2661 ACM


Insectoz & Ufon Valcro are born
5th November

2674 ACM

2674 ACM

Jayna Valcro is born

4th October

2701 ACM

2710 ACM


Jonathan starts planning his

insurrection


March


2850 ACM

2850 ACM

Chailey Bienne is born

20th August

2878 ACM

2878 ACM


Empty-head is created

23rd April

2905 ACM

2905 ACM

Chailey Bienne is killed

2nd December

2911 ACM

2911 ACM


Start of the Imperial Civil War
February

2912 ACM

2912 ACM


Chailey is resurrected as droid
2nd January

2915 ACM

2915 ACM


Cameron Valcro is born

7th April


2918 ACM

2918 ACM


Jayna Valcro is killed

12th May

2918 ACM

2918 ACM


Abbat Valcro is born

15th January

2926 ACM

2926 ACM


Valcron is formed

9th May


2928 ACM

2928 ACM


End of the War


29th December

2939 ACM

2939 ACM


Robotica is banished

August


2940 ACM

2940 ACM


Elias Valcro is born

19th April

2988 ACM

2988 ACM


Evil Anakin arrives from

the future


15th July


3000 ACM

3000 ACM


Erick Valcro is born

25th February

3009 ACM

3009 ACM


Lassal Valcro is born

30th April

3053 ACM

3053 ACM


Thorn Valcro is born

14th March

3072 ACM

3072 ACM


Spiden Valcro is born

7th March

3101 ACM

3101 ACM


Jonas Valcro is born

9th May


3101 ACM

3101 ACM

Red Sincam is born

1st January

3205 ACM

3205 ACM


Jake Valcro is born

20th January

3250 ACM

3250 ACM


#01 is formed


November

3805 ACM

3805 ACM

Wizard Oz is born

9th August

4024 ACM

4024 ACM


Lady Ice is born


25th January

4029 ACM

4029 ACM


James Tron is born

17th March

4029 ACM

4029 ACM


Docen Valcro is born

10th April

4032 ACM

4032 ACM


Thrawn Valcro is born

6th December

4038 ACM

4038 ACM


Wizard Oz unites Jedi and other
refugees on Goranionburg

November

4040 ACM

4040 ACM


Valcro starts the 3rd Jedi Purge
January


4041 ACM

4041 ACM

The Jedi and civilians of 

Goranionburg escape

August


4054 ACM

4054 ACM

The Creation of the

United Lego Federation

25th April 

4055 ACM

4055 ACM

Wizard Oz becomes King of 
the U.L.F.


1st May


4055 ACM

4055 ACM

The first elected government
of the U.L.F. is formed

July


4058 ACM

4058 ACM

End of the 3rd Jedi Purge

January


4141 ACM

4141 ACM


Jonathan Valcro Junior is born
23rd February

4150 ACM

4150 ACM

(incomplete)


(incomplete)

(incomplete)

(incomplete)

A conspiracy for a false war is

discovered 


December 

5059 ACM

5059 ACM

Timothy Ice is killed

12th December 

5059 ACM

5059 ACM

Start of the New Republic

Calendar


1st January

5060 ACM

1 YEP


Egbert Oz becomes King of

the U.L.F.


1st October 

5094 ACM

34 YEP


Red Sincam dies
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3. Changes in the Timeline
Both the Matrix and the Hypno-circles gave the power of controlled time travel. The most famous traveller is probably Luke Valcro, saviour of the universe. Another famous example is Medusa, who travelled back twice, each time spawning a new important version of itself. The old and “evil” version of Anakin made the creation of Cell possible.

Because all these travels create alternate timelines, I decided to give all the different realities.
These are the only travels that we know of, perhaps other changes in the timeline occurred, but we start with the version that we believe to be the original timeline, each reality is given a short summary:

The original timeline (timeline 0):
There is no explosion of Medusa at the beginning of the Matrix; Empty-head is never formed.
The U.L.F. is destroyed by Valcron, Medusa and the Black Star invade Valcron and the Empire controls the cluster again.

Jonathan Valcro sends his son back in time under the false premise of being part of a resistance group; to change history in his advantage.

Timeline A:

Luke arrives from timeline 0 and tells the U.L.F. about the Matrix and finds a way to retrieve souls. They defeat the two Death Stars, but without the help of the Toa, they loose the battle of Valcro Prime. Luke is captured and the U.L.F. destroyed.

Luke joins his father.

When Medusa and the Black Star invade Valcron, Luke and Jonathan team up to kill Palpatine. Jonathan is killed; Luke manages to transform within the Matrix and kills the Emperor. Luke makes sure another version of himself is sent back in time, after that, Medusa travels back to warn the Emperor.

Timeline B:
Medusa arrives from timeline A and is destroyed by a malfunction and its soul becomes the virus that would be the Slizer, who would create the Toa.

Luke arrives from timeline A and tells the U.L.F. about the Matrix and finds a way to retrieve souls. They defeat the two Death Stars and with the help of the Toa, also destroy Valcro Prime. When the U.L.F. destroys the Hypno Crystal, the Slizer goes back in time before the Matrix is completely gone. The soul of Medusa is transported to the past to ensure an unaltered timeline (except for the waste in the galaxy being changed).
Without the help of any resistance groups, the U.L.F. looses the Battle of the Great Fleet.

The Federation is destroyed. The new Hypno Crystal is finished in an evil version and the Matrix is restored. Luke joins his father.
The incomplete Black Star invades Valcron, but is defeated. Luke and Jonathan team up to kill Palpatine. Jonathan is killed, but Luke can’t transform within the Matrix this time, because he hadn’t been reunited with Darth Vader and barely escapes. He’s able to send back another version of himself before he dies of his injuries.

Timeline C:

Medusa’s soul arrives from timeline B and becomes the virus that would be the Slizer, who would create the Toa.

Another Slizer arrives from timeline B and becomes Empty-head.

He betrays Valcro and tells the U.L.F. about the Matrix and makes it possible to retrieve souls.

Luke arrives from timeline B. They defeat the two Death Stars and with the help of the Toa, also destroy Valcro Prime. When the U.L.F. destroys the Hypno Crystal, the Slizer goes back in time before the Matrix is completely gone. The soul of Medusa is transported to the past to ensure an unaltered timeline (except for the waste in the galaxy being changed).

All resistance groups team together with the Federation and win the Battle of the Great Fleet.

The N.V.A. and the Empire are not reunited under old Anakin or Cell. The remnants are destroyed with the help of the N-O.C. and they form a new republic, which also deals with the Bohrok and Bebi, who doesn’t find a host as powerful as Cell.

The Hypno-circles are formed to deal with the destructions of the Krana War.

Anakin turns to the dark side, but Luke can’t kill him and sends him to the past with the Circles.
Timeline D:

Medusa’s soul arrives from timeline C and becomes the virus that would be the Slizer, who would create the Toa.

Another Slizer arrives from timeline C and becomes Empty-head.

Anakin arrives from timeline C, but a malfunction because of the Matrix leaves a temporary double set of Circles with him. Anakin creates #01.

Empty-head betrays Valcro and tells the U.L.F. about the Matrix and makes it possible to retrieve souls.

There was no Luke sent back from timeline C, so the U.L.F. is destroyed by Valcron, Medusa and the Black Star invade Valcron and the Empire controls the cluster again.

Anakin creates the Titans and eventually Cell, who kills the Emperor and rules the cluster.

When Cell absorbs the Toa, the Slizer escapes to the past.

Jonathan Valcro sends his son back in time under the false premise of being part of a resistance group; to change history in his advantage.
Medusa travels back to warn the Emperor of Cell’s plot.
Current timeline (timeline E):

Medusa arrives from timeline D and is destroyed by a malfunction and its soul becomes the virus that would be the Slizer, who would create the Toa.

Another Slizer arrives from timeline D and becomes Empty-head.

Anakin arrives from timeline C, because time travel with the circles works differently than with the Matrix, this creates a copy of timeline C, to compensate for the version of Anakin in timeline D, a malfunction because of the Matrix leaves a temporary double set of Circles with him. Anakin creates #01.
Empty-head betrays Valcro and tells the U.L.F. about the Matrix and makes it possible to retrieve souls.

Luke arrives from Timeline D and they defeat the two Death Stars and with the help of the Toa, also destroy Valcro Prime. When the U.L.F. destroys the Hypno Crystal, the Slizer goes back in time before the Matrix is completely gone (the only thing that changes is Empty-head’s memory). The soul of Medusa is transported to the past to ensure an unaltered timeline (except for the waste in the galaxy being changed).

Anakin creates his Titans. History is changed enough so young Anakin won’t turn to evil.

All resistance groups team together with the Federation and win the Battle of the Great Fleet.

The N.V.A. is reunited under old Anakin and later Cell, they initially defeat the Federation and Resistance, but the young Anakin is able to destroy Cell, to reveal a remorseful old Anakin. With the power of the Circles, Luke from the original timeline C arrives to pick him up and bring him back to their reality. The doubled set of circles disappears after they deal with the damage caused by Cell. The copy of timeline C remains without Anakin, unless he somehow shows remorse in the unrecorded future of timeline D.
Bebi manages to get Cell as a body and Luke can only kill him by sacrificing himself.

The immense death toll caused by Bebi can only be reverted by recreating the Circles. They succeed and a New Republic is formed.
Through reincarnation, the Gods promise Luke that history will not be changed because there’s no version of himself going back in time.
Appendix E

Possible questions

Q: In chapter 1 it says Luke enters his 7th month (he has been in the past for 6 months) and it has been two months after New Year, but he came to the U.L.F. 5 months after the awakening, this means it would only be November.

A: Luke doesn’t arrive 5 months after the awakening, but the first scout was sent at that time, it got destroyed and Luke appeared after their reanimation, so their was quite some time between it, also,’ [Luke’s] seventh month here’ means his seventh month in the Valcro Zone; there were several weeks between his first appearance and the approval to explore the Valcro Zone. So in total there were three months between sending the first scout and sending Luke, 5+3+6 = 14 = 12+2, two months after New Year.

Q: how can so much time pass in the second chapter?

A: Again, all the events don’t happen directly after each other, there is much time between different missions.
Q: So one chapter for more than two years and 3 chapters for just one year?

A: A lot of months go by without anything spectacular going on, only when the wars evolve, especially after the fall of Valcron, do events follow each other rather quickly, you’ll also notice two large jumps near the end of the main story, one of nearly 25 years and another of 18 years. Also, the more complex the story becomes, the more text it needs to be explored, the first chapters are as important as the others, but are also an introduction to the more extreme events of the following chapters; a climax doesn’t come at the beginning of a tale.
(incomplete)
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